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In the District Court of the United States for

the Western District of Washington, North-

ern Division

No. 851

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
a corporation and CONTRACTORS, PACIFIC
NAVAL AIR BASES, an association,

Libellants,

vs.

WM. A. MARSHALL, Deputy Commissioner of

United States Employees' Compensation Com-

mission for the Fourteenth District and JOHN
B. PIATT,

Respondents.

BILL OF COMPLAINT FOR
MANDATORY INJUNCTION

Come Now the libellants above named and for

Bill of Complaint against the respondents allege:

I.

That the libellant, Liberty Mutual Insurance

Company, is now and was at all times herein men-

tioned, a mutual insurance corporation organized

and existing by virtue of the laws of the State of

Massachusetts and authorized by the United States

Employees' Compensation Commission to provide

compensation insurance protecting the employees

under the Longshoremens' and Harbor Workers'

Compensation Act as amended, and particularly by

Public Law 208, 77th Congress, Act of August 16,



vs. Marshall and Piatt 3

1941, liereinafter referred to as The Act, and the

insurance carrier provided by libellants, Contrac-

tors, Pacific Naval Air Bases, an association, in ac-

cordance with the provisions of the Act.

II.

That the libellant, Contractors, Pacific Naval

Air [2] Bases, is now and was at all times men-

tioned herein an association of contracting firms

engaged in building and erecting military and naval

installations for the United States, particularly in

the islands of the Pacific Ocean.

III.

That the respondent, William A. Marshall, is

now and was at all times mentioned herein, Deputy

Commissioner of the Fourteenth Compensation

District under the provisions of the Act, and his

office is located at Seattle within the judicial dis-

trict of the above entitled court.

IV.

That on or about August 13, 1939, the libellant,

Contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases, employed

John B. Piatt as a civilian employee to work at a

base on the Hawaiian Islands occupied or used by

the United States for military or naval purposes,

and that said John B. Piatt continued in such

employment and as such employee of said libellant

until on or about February 26, 1943.
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V.

That on or about February 26, 1943, the said

John B. Piatt suffered a cerebral thrombosis as

a result of vascular disease and hypertension, ren-

dering him unable to continue the performance of

his duties as an employee of the Contractors, Paci-

fic Naval Air Bases.

VI.

That on or about May 25, 1943, the said John

B. Piatt filed claim for compensation for disability

with the said United States Employees' Compen-

sation Commission, under Public Law 208, 77th

Congress, Act of August 16, 1941, alleging that the

cerebral thrombosis was the result of an accident

which occurred on or about December 1, 1942 when

a [3] heavy glass reflector shade dropped and hit

him on the head while in the employment of said

contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases.

VII.

The cause was within the jurisdiction of the

Deputy Commissioner for the Pacific District with

headquarters at Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii,

but with the approval of the United States Em-
ployees' Compensation Commission and as per-

mitted by law, was subsequently transferred to

the Fourteenth Compensation District, William A.

Marshall, Deputy Commissioner.

VIII.

That the libellant herein gave due notice that

said claim was controverted and denied that the
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disability commencing on February 26, 1943 was

caused by or resulted from the injury sustained

on December 1, 1942, and on June 2, 1943, testi-

mony in this matter was heard at Honolulu, Ter-

ritory of Hawaii, before John C. Gray, Deputy

Commissioner for the Pacific District, at which

time the testimony of claimant John B. Piatt, his

wife Freda F. Piatt, George L. Youmans, Com-

mander H. P. Potter, U.S.N.R., and A. W. Mor-

gan, was heard and transcribed and certain exhib-

its made a part of the record; that pursuant to

oral stipulation, the matter came on for an ad-

journed hearing before the said John C. Gray,

Deputy Commissioner, on the 30th day of June,

1943, at which time the testimony of Dr. Ralph

B. Cloward, M,D., was taken and transcribed.

That the cause was then transferred, as pei*mitted

by law, to the Thirteenth Compensation District,

W. H. Pillsbury, Deputy Commissioner, who in

turn transferred the cause to respondent Wm. A.

Marshall, Deputy Commissioner of the Fourteenth

Compensation District. [4]

IX.

That no additional hearing was had before respon-

dent Wm A. Marshall, and the only other evi-

dence submitted to him were the medical reports

of Drs. Howard A. Brown, M.D. and Ernest H.

Falconer, M.D., both of whom concluded that there

was no possible connection between the cerebral

vascular accident occurring in February, 1943 and

the head blow of December, 1942.
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X.

That thereafter on November 29, 1943 respon-

dent Wm. A. Marshall made and entered his com-

pensation order and award of compensation, a

copy of which is attached hereto marked ^'Exhibit

A" and made a part hereof as fully as if set forth

at length herein. That said compensation order

and award of compensation is not in accordance

with law and with the provisions of the Longshore-

mens' and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act in

this, that there was not at any time herein men-

tioned or at any other time any substantial evi-

dence before said respondent Wm. A. Marshall, to

the effect that the cerebral thrombosis that oc-

curred on February 27, 1943 was caused by the

injury that occurred on December 1, 1942 ; that in

truth and in fact, all of the medical testimony

submitted in the cause was to the effect that the

cerebral thrombosis which occurred in February,

1943 was caused by vascular disease and hyper-

tension, and would have occurred regardless of

whether respondent John B. Piatt would have re-

ceived a head injury in December, 1942 or not.

That in making said order and award, respondent

Wm. A. Marshall acted capriciously and without

giving due regard to medical evidence submitted

in the cause. [5]

XI.

That the Liberty Mutual Insurance Company is

joined as a libellant herein because the Longshore-

mens' and Harbor Workers' Act provides for the
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substitution of the insurance carrier for the em-

ployer.

XII.

That all the notices and the duly transcribed

original notes of testimony taken in the cause and

the original compensation order and award of com-

pensation of respondent Deputy Commissioner

Wm. A. Marshall, are in the custody of said re-

spondent, together with all exhibits submitted in

connection therewith, and it is necessary for this

court to have possession of said records and all

of the relevant papers in the possession of Deputy

Commissioner Wm. A. Marshall in order to deter-

mine whether or not the compensation order and

award of compensation of said Deputy Commis-

sioner is in accordance with law.

XIII.

That the libellants will be irreparably damaged

if a mandatory injunction annulling and vacating

said award is not granted them by this court.

XIV.
That the libellants have not the right to appeal

from the aforesaid compensation order and award

of compensation and have no remedy available

other than the redress requested by libellants in

the form and manner specified in the Longshore-

mens' and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act.

Wherefore Libellants respectfully pray as fol-

lows: [6]

1. That the said respondent Deputy Commis-
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sioner be ordered to deliver to this court or the

clerk thereof a certified transcript of any claim

for compensation made in this matter, all notices,

transcribed notes of testimony, exhibits, compensa-

tion order and award of compensation aforemen-

tioned, and all other papers and records, or mat-

ters relating to this cause or the hearing thereof.

2. That a time and place be set so that said

matters and records mav be fully heard and con-
t m.-

sidered by this coirrt.

3. That said compensation order and award of

compensation made by said respondent Deputy

Commissioner against libellants herein, be annulled,

reversed, vacated, and set aside bv mandatory in-

jimction or otherwise as provided in the Longshore-

mens' and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act

aforesaid.

4. That libellants be granted such further re-

lief as may be meet and proper in the premises.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
EGGERMAN, ROSLING &
WILLIAMS

Attorneys for Libellants [7]
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EXHIBIT A

United States Employees' Compensation Commis-

sion, Fourteenth Compensation District

Case No. DB-P-1-4042

In the matter of the claim for compensation under

Public Law 208, 77th Congress, Act of Con-

gress, Act of August 16, 1941.

JOHN B. PIATT,
Claimant,

against

CONTRACTORS, PACIFIC NAVAL AIR
BASES,

Employer,

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY
Insurance Carrier.

COMPENSATION ORDER AWARD OF
COMPENSATION

A claim for compensation having been filed in

the Pacific District and a hearing having been

held in Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii, before

Deputy Commissioner Gray, and the matter having

been transferred to this, the Fourteenth Compen-

sation District, by authority of the Commission for

such further action as might be indicated, and such

further investigation having been made as is con-

sidered necessary and no additional hearing having

been requested by the parties.

The Deputy Commissioner makes the follov^tng
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FINDINGS OF FACT

That on the 1st day of December, 1942, the claim-

ant above named was in the employ of the employer

above named at a place within the Pacific District,

established under the provisions of the Longshore-

mens' and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, as

extended by the Act of August 16, 1941, as amended

(42 U.S.C., Sec. 1651), to employees of contractors

with the United States, and others, employed out-

side of the United States, and that the liability of

the employe for compensation imder said Act was in-

sured by the Liberty Mutual Insurance Company;

That on said day claimant herein while perform-

ing service for the employer sustained personal

injury resulting in his disability while employed

as a procurement agent; that while so employed

and working at his desk an electric light reflector

shade fell and struck the claimant's head, causing

injury and resulting in his disability;

That the employer had knowledge of the said

injury

;

That the employer furnished claimant with medi-

cal treatment, etc. in accordance with section 7 (a)

of said Act;

That the average annual earnings of the claim-

ant at the time of said injury were in excess of

the [8] maximum provided by the Act;

That as a result of the said injury the claimant

was wholly disabled from December 1, 1942, to

and including January 10, 1943, and from Febru-

ary 26, 1943, to and including November 18, 1943,

arid he is entitled to 43-6/7 weeks' compensation
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at $25.00 per week for siieli disability or $1,096.43;

that on November 19, 1943 the total disability of

the claimant resiiltino^ from the said injury con-

tinued
;

That the employer and insurance carrier have

paid to the claimant $546.43 as compensation;

Upon the foregoing facts the Deputy Commis-

sioner makes the following

AWARD
That the employer, Contractors, Pacific Naval

Air Bases, and the insurance carrier. Liberty Mu-

tual Insurance Company, shall pay to the claimant

compensation as follows: $1,096.43, covering to and

including November 18, 1943; that the employer

and insurance carrier shall have credit on this

award for $546.43; that subsequent to November

18, 1943 the employer and insurance carrier shall

pay compensation to the claimant bi-weekly at

the rate of $25.00 per week during the continuance

of the said disability; that the total compensation

payable under this award shall in no event exceed

$7,500.00.

Given under my hand at Seattle, Washington,

this 29th day of November, 1943.

WM. A. MARSHALL
Deputy Commissioner, Fourteenth Compensation

District.



12 Contractors, Pacific Air Bases, et al,

Received a copy of the within Bill of Complaint

for Mandatory Injunction this 29th day of De-

cember, 1943.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 29, 1943. [9]

CERTIFICATION OF RECORD

This is to certify that the following described

documents constitute the record of proceedings in

connection with the claim of John B. Piatt against

Contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases, employer,

and the Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, in-

surance carrier:

Transcript of testimony taken at hearing held

by Deputy Commissioner John C. Gray at Hono-

lulu, T. H. on June 2, 1943.

Employers and insurance carrier's Exhibit A,

Part 1, being photostatic copies of hospital rec-

ords.

Employer's and insurance carrier's Exhibit A,

Part II, being photostatic copies of hospital rec-

ords.

Report of Dr. Howard A. Brown, dated June

23, 1943.

Report of Dr. E. H. Falconer dated 6-23-43.

Telegram addressed to John B. Piatt, dated June

11, 1943, and signed by Dr. Robert Bulman.
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Compensation order filed by the undersigned on

November 29, 1943.

WM. A. MARSHALL
Deputy Commissioner.

Seattle, Washington, December 29, 1943

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 22, 1944. [10]

United States Employees' Compensation

Commission

Before John C. Gray, Deputy Commissioner, Paci-

fic District.

Case No. DB-P-1-4042.

JOHN B. PIATT,
Claimant,

vs.

CONTRACTORS, PACIFIC NAVAL AIR
BASES,

Employer,

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE CO.,

Insurance Carrier.

TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY AND
PROCEEDINGS

Pursuant to oral stipulation, the above entitled

matter came on to be heard before John C. Gray,

Deputy Commissioner, United States Employees'

Compensation Commission, HonoUilu, T. H., on

Wednesday, June 2, 1943, at 1:45 o'clock p.m., the
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hearing being held at the home of the Claimant,

646 Wyllie Street, Honolulu, T. H.

x^ppearances

:

John B. Piatt, Claimant, in person,

C. F. White, Esq., appearing on behalf of the

employer and insurance carrier.

Reported by : R. N. Linn, Judiciary Bldg., Hono-

lulu, T. H. [13]

Commissioner Gray: This is a hearing before

the United States Employers' Compensation Dep-

uty Commissioner in the case of John B. Piatt, an

employee of the Contractors, Pacific Naval Air

Bases, an association performing contract work on

lands used or occupied by the United States for

military or naval purposes, within the Pacific Dis-

trict, of the Compensation Commission, authorized

by Public Act 208, approved August 16, 1941,—the

so-called Defense Bases Act Mr. Piatt is present

in person.

Are you represented by counsel, Mr. Piatt?

Claimant : No, sir.

Commissioner Gray: The employer and insur-

ance carrier, the Liberty Mutual Insurance Com-

pany, are represented by Mr. C. F. White of the

Mutual—Liberty Mutual Insurance Company.

Mr. Piatt has filed formal claim with the Com-

mission, which was received May 25, 1943, in which

he alleges that on or about December 1st, 1942, while

in the employment of the Contractors, Pacific Naval

Air Bases, a burned-out light being changed by a
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co-employee fell, and the reflector struck him on

the head, causing him to sustain a perion of tem-

porary-total disability, and Mr. Piatt further al-

leges that the blow caused concussion of the brain

followed by continuous high blood pressure, with

cerebral thrombosis, which manifested itself on or

about February 27th 1943. A copy of this claim

was received by the Insurance Carrier on May 25,

II943, and the hearing has been called without notice

by agreement between the [14] parties. Is that

correct %

Mr. White: Correct.

Commissioner Gray: Does that in substance

represent the primary context of your claim, Mr.

Piatt?

Mr. Piatt: Yes, sir.

Commissioner Gray: Mr. White, do you wish

to put on your witnesses first, or would you rather

have me question Mr. Piatt?

Mr. White: I believe that these gentlemen here

were brought here at Mr. Piatt's request. We are

not controverting the accident or the injury on

December the 1st 1942. As I see it, the sole ques-

tion at issue at the present time is whether or not

the accident of December 1, 1942, and the so-

called cerebral accident on February the 26th or

27th had any actual relationship either directly or

indirectly.

I think it is noted in the claim for compensa-

tion that there was a return to light work whicli

was interrupted again on or about February 26th

or 27th.
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Commissioner Gray: We will bring that out

later, Mr. White. We have an answer filed here

by the Carrier in which it is admitted that the ap-

plicant sustained an injury on or about the date

set forth in the application, December 1, 1942. It

is admitted that both the employer and employee

were subject to the Longshoremens' and Harbor

Workers' Compensation Act at the time of the

alleged injury, being public act Number 208.

It is admitted that the relationship of employer

and employee existed at the time of the injury. [15]

It is admitted that at the time of the alleged

injury the employee was performing service grow-

ing out of and incidental to his employment.

It is admitted that notice of injury was given

employer as specified in application.

It is admitted that applicant was temporarily

disabled following the injury for the period stated

in the application, and it is admitted that the rate

of wages as set forth in application is correct;

namely, being in excess of $37.50 per week.

It is denied that the applicant was permanently

disabled to the extent stated in the application.

It is denied that disability commencing on Feb-

ruary 26th or 27th, 1943, the date to be sho^vn by

evidence, was caused by or resulted from the in-

jury sustained on December 1, 1942.

Those denials, Mr. Piatt, have just been received,

and, under the law, of course you have ien days,

if you desire, in which to produce any evidence,

if you desire to exercise that perogative. If you

want to waive the ten day's notice, we would like
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to have you so state, in order that we may pro-

ceed. Do you waive any necessity for ten day's

preparation on this case"?

Claimant: I did not quite get all the denials.

(Denials are reread to the Claimant.)

Commissioner Gray: Do you want any further

time to prepare on it, or do you waive the notice.

Claimant: I waive the notice.

Commissioner Gray: All right. [16]

JOHN B. PIATT

the claimant, was called as a witness, and being

duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Commissioner Gray:

Q. State your name and address to the reporter,

please.

A. John B. Piatt; my address here is 646 Wyl-

lie Street, Honolulu.

Q. What will your address on the mainland be?

A. I cannot tell you as yet. We are going back

to California first. It is going to be Ashland, Ore-

gon.

Q. On or about December 1st 1942 were you

employed by the Contractors, P.N.A.B. 1

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was your position?

A. I was employed as procurement agent for

the Naval Construction Battalions.

Q. By the Contractors, P.N.A.B.?
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(Testimony of John B. Piatt.)

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was your annual rate of pay.

A. If I may give it.

Q. Now you are testifying before a government

official; we know for ordinary purpose that figure

is confidential, but for the purpose of the hearing

we have to have it, in view of the fact that there is

a claim of jDartial disability.

A. I was being paid at the rate of $450. a

month.

Q. Did you receive any emolument over and

above the cash [17] wage paid?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Of w^hat value, per month ?

A. Eight hundred dollars last year, divided by

12, would be about a little less than $70.—about

$67.50.

Commissioner Gray : Does the carrier agree that

the average monthly wage of Mr. Piatt approxi-

mately closely $515.50 a month?

Mr. White: Q. The $800. that you refer to

has accrued strictly for a bonus?

A. That is bonus.

Mr. White: Yes, we will agree to that.

Commissioner Gray : It will be so accepted.

Q. Mr. Piatt, will you kindly describe any un-

toward event that occurred about December 1st

1942 when you were in employment?

A. I arrived in my office just about 9:25 that

morning, and I sat down at my desk, and my
stenographer told me that my upstairs office had
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(Testimony of John B. Piatt.)

a lot of requisitions to be signed, and Commander

Potter of the 5th Battalion was in a hurry for

them, and I had her 'phone up to have the girl

upstairs bring them down to me, and they brought

them down and put them on my desk and I pushed

my chair back to get out of the way of the young

lady that brought them down, and started in to

sign the requisitions, and the lamp, a regular re-

flector shade, suddenly hit me on the head. T didn't

realize what had happened. I just [18] felt a ring-

ing and a splutter of glass went all over my shoul-

ders, and that shade had broken loose and hit me
on the top of the head, and pieces of glass flew all

over the ofiSce.

Q. Did you continue to work?

A. No, sir.

Q. Just relate what happened afterwards, then?

A. Mr. Boskhen—Boshen

Q. What is his first name?

A. ^^Hank'' they call him; H. C. Boshen, he

showed up. He was in the office right across the

hall and he came in the doorway with Mr. Frank

Shmidtz, one of the operating committee,—another

one of the operating committee project managers,

and they, my girls, 'phoned for Mr. Morgan to come

downstairs; he was upstairs, my assistant, and I

don't remember which two, but two of them took

me across to the first aid station and I walked over

there between them.

Q. Did you receive treatment?
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A. At the first aid station they had me lie down

and they put an icepack or ice-bag on my back,

and on my head, and gave me some pills, I don't

know what they were, probably aspirin, and they

kept me there for about better than half an hour,

and then they made out a card or memorandum

and sent me to Dr. Stewart of the Medical Center,

—I don't recall his initials,

Mr. White : Dr. Steele F. Stewart of the Medi-

cal Group.

A. Yes. One of the boys took me down on the

car to Dr. Stewart. [19] His name does not appear

in my statement there.

Q. Did Dr. Stew^art treat you?

A. Dr. Stew^art,—I had received a cut on the

upper forehead, on my scalp, very close,—a very

small cut, and there was a piece of glass sticking

in it, and Dr. Stew^art cleaned that out; took it

out and painted it, and looked me over, and then

told me to go home and keep quiet for 24 hours,

which I did.

Q. And then what transpired?

A. Commander Keim,—Do you w^ant the details

and the names; how it happened?

Q. It is perfectly all right.

A. Commander Keim of Public Works 'phoned

the house that afternoon, while I was staying

home, requesting that I go out to the office with

him; he wanted to have a meeting with Comman-
der Potter and Commander Alcott, and he said it

was very important, but we told him that I could
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not go, but had to stay quiet for 24 hours, and he

said ^^I will come up in the morning and pick

you up, and we wdll go then if you can," and the

next morning, that was the morning of the 3rd,

after it happened, he came up and picked me up

and we went out to Commander Potter's office and

then went on over but Commander Potter was not

in yet, and he called them up. Potter and Alcott,

and Alcott and Potter both came over to my office,

and we had a meeting, or discussion, there, that

Keim wanted,—and

Q. How long did the meeting last?

A. Oh, it must have lasted about an hour and

one-half. [20]

Q. Did you feel any distress at that meeting ?

A. I started to get,—I got dizzy and felt j)retty

rotten, and finally I told them I had had all I could

stand of it, and I got up and walked in Mr. You-

man's office, and told Mr. Youman I was feeling

pretty rotten, and I was going to have to go down

and get checked up by somebody who knew some-

thing about head trouble, and I told him I was go-

ing to go dowTi and see Dr. Cloward and I had

heard about him, and I told him I wanted to go

down and see him.

Q. When you were talking with Mr. Youman
you are pretty sure he knew what had transpii'ed

on December 1st?

A. He knew what had happened.

Q. Did you tell him during this conversation or

recall to him the event?



22 Contractors^ Pacific Air Bases, et al,

(Testimony of John B. Piatt.)

A. When I went in on the mornmg of the 3d

he knew that I had been hit in the head, I presume,

and I went in and told him that I felt very bum
and I felt like I had a little concussion, I remember

telling him that, and that I was going downtown

to get checked up, and that of course met with his

assent.

Q. You are both more or less key men of the

company? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And you did not do like the workmen, go up

and ask the foreman, you just discussed things and

took it for granted it would be noted?

A. I wanted to let him know that I was going,

and I felt like [21] I had been hurt worse than it

appeared, and so forth.

Q. And you went down to Dr. Cloward's?

A. To Dr. Cloward's office.

Q. Was Dr. Cloward there?

A. He was not there. His nurse was, and I

saw her.

Q. What is her name, do you know?

A. I don't know her name. I think the name of

the first one I saw, at that time, was Edith. I don't

know her last name.

Q. Miss Edith.

A. She called Dr. Cloward and she said he was

out operating and she thought he was over at Kan-

eohe, and she would try to get ahold of him as soon

as possible, and she took the story, and said ^^You

go home and I will have Dr. Cloward call you right

away as soon as he can get in touch with you.
ji
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Q. By *Hhe story" you mean you gave the his-

tory of what had happened and she recorded it, is

that true? A. Yes, sir.

Q. So you went home then?

A. I came right up to the house.

Q. When did they call you, or call your wife?

A. As I recall it was about four o'clock in the

afternoon, between 3:30 and 4.

Q. What directions did you receive from the

doctor?

A. He told Mrs. Piatt to have me go right to

the hospital, and he would make arrangements for

admission, and he would come [22] right over and

see me.

Q. You did go?

A. I w^ent to the hospital and he met me there

right away.

Q. Let's get the date you were admitted to the

Queen's Hospital? A. The Queen's Hospital.

Q. On what date?

A. The 3d of December.

Q. And how long were you in the hospital?

A. I was in the hospital in December. Doctor

Cloward let me come home on Christmas evening,

December 24th.

Q. Were you a bed patient at all times at the

hospital ?

A. I was a bed patient at all times at the hos-

pital.

Q. You came home on December 24th. Have
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you been able to resume your usual duties since,

Mr. Piatt?

A. During January, aftei' I was able to get up

and walk around, Dr. Cloward had me come down

in the car ; I was taken down in an automobile with

a driver; Commander Potter send a C.B. driver to

take me down, and I went down for a check-up.

Q. About what time would that be, do you recall ?

A. I had been home about a week, as I recall

;

I am not exactly sure. It was the first week in

January, Mr. Gray.

Q. It says here on the claim, simply to remind

you,—it says: '^Have you done any work in period

of disability •?" and the answer is: *^Prom January

12th to February 27th, part time." Does that [23]

agree with your notes and records?

A. Yes, that is true.

Q. Now were the duties you performed during

this inclusive period, January 12th to February

27th, wholly supervisory, or was there any manual

moving about or work connected with it?

A. When I first went out there all I went out

to do was,—I acted just simply in an advisory ca-

pacity for consulting on purchases, for my assist-

ants. There have been a lot of additional require-

ments added on for ordering materials, and at that

time I had a lot of that information in my mind

and head, and I went out and stayed there and gave

them all the help I could.

Q. What were your mental and physical sensa-

tions during that period that you were out there
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trying to assist in an advisory capacity, between

January 12 and February 27, 1943?

A. The first week or ten days I was out there I

got very tired very quick, but I was very careful

not to stay there more than about three hours on

any day.

Q. Were you under medical observation during

the entire period?

A. I was under medical observation during the

entire period, and I was going down, and having

the driver take me down, at least onc^ a week, and

sometimes twice a w^eek, to see Dr. Cloward, and he

checked me up, and checked my blood pressure and

looked me over every time I was there and told me
it was all right to go and stay at the office as long

as I did not overdo, and I did [24] not stay at the

office more than about three hours every day the

first week. After the first week I added on a half

hour at a time, and a little more, and the last three

days I was out there I did stay practically the full

time, the last three days.

Q. That would be, approximately, the 25th, 26th

and 27?

A. Just about, yes, sir; February 24th, 25th and

26th.

Q. And you have not done any work since then ?

A. None since.

Q. And you are going back to the mainland?

A. Going back to the mainland.

Q. Mr. Piatt, how old are you?

A. I was born in 1888; that would make me
about 55, in July.
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Q. For how long have you been employed?

A. I was employed by the Contractors since

December, 1939.

Q. I mean, since you became an adult, how long

have you been employed?

A. Oh, all the time.

Q. Have you ever had any lengthy periods of

disability causing you to cease work over any criti-

cal, cardiac conditions; so-called ''heart disease"?

A. No, sir.

Q. Have you ever had any long periods of dis-

ability from illness or disease?

A. In 1937, in August and September, I had

pneumonia, in Santa Rosa, California; I was sick

about six weeks, as I recall. [25]

Q. Have you ever had any major accidents re-

sulting in injury?

A. I haven't had any accidents since 1929.

Q. I imagine you are a college man, are you

not, Mr. Piatt? A. No, sir, I am not.

Q. Did you indulge in athletics very much when

you were a young fellow?

A. I played football when I went to high school.

Q. Did you ever sustain any severe head injuries

while playing football?

A. None whatever, sir.

Q. In view of the fact that you are shortly re-

turning to the mainland, and the probabilities are

that we are going to have further hearings in this

case in order to bring in all of the medical evidence

that we can get ahold of, if you leave I would like
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to have you state for the record whether or not yon

are willing to waive appearance at a subsequent

hearing that we may hold here in order that we can

get Dr. Cloward's evidence, and bring other doctors'

evidence in? A. Cei-tainly, sir.

Q. It being understood that the deputy commis-

sioner is representing all parties in interest, and

will do his best to see that the evidence is fully

brought out, whether for or against you.

A. Yes.

By Mr. White

:

Mr. White: For your information, and in that

connection, Mr. Gray, I want to stat^ for the record

that this hearing was [26] set at 12 :30 today in the

belief that Dr. Cloward would be available as a

witness, and on yesterday afternoon he informed

me that due to a major operation he had to perform

this morning, he would not be able to be here, and it

would not be before this afternoon that he would be

able to determine whether or not he could be present

at a continuation of the hearing later on this week,

before Mr. Piatt gets away. If such can be arranged,

we will be glad to come out here again, provided

Dr. Cloward will agree to come and we can make the

arrangement.

Q. Mr. Piatt, were you examined for your em-

ployment on this contract with P.N.A.B.?

A. No, sir.

Q. Have you had occasion to receive medical

attention, other that the attention you have de-
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scribed, in answer to Mr. Gray's questions, since

coming to the Islands? A. Only once, sir.

Q. What was the occasion for that?

A. I would like to amend that. I would like

to say 'Hwice. " I have been going to Dr. Van
Poole, Holmes & Van Poole, Dr. Van Poole, the

ear specialist, for dilation of my left ear, the eusta-

chian tube, for a considerable period; in fact, ever

since I have been out here. And then there was

another, in June of last year, 1942, I just happened

to be seated in the rear of a pick-up, driving up

from the waterfront,—I was down to the waterfront

offices of the company, in the yard, and some new

crane [27] operator was practicing and the driver

didn't know he was there, and happened to just

get opposite him, when he swung a load of reein-

forcing steel around and it banged into and smashed

in the car door, and hit me in the elbow, and that

is how I happened to go to Dr. Stewart in the be-

ginning. They sent me down there for an examina-

tion.

Q. I believe that was in June, 1942, wasn't it?

A. Yes, about the 19th of June, I think; I am
not sure.

Commissioner Gray: Do we have a report on

that?

Mr. White: Yes.

Q. Those are the only two occasions on which you

have visited doctors, Dr. Van Poole for your ear

condition, and Dr. Stewart for your elbow?

A. Yes.
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Q. Do you know whether either of those doe-

tors at any time took your blood pressure"?

A. To the best of my remembrance they did not.

Q. You know liow that is done*?

A. Yes, I know.

Q. By binding the arm and taking a mereur}^

column reading? A. Yes.

Q. You mentioned, as your last serious illness,

pneumonia, in 1937, while you were in Santa Rosa,

California ? A. Yes.

Q. Were you attended by Dr. Robert Bulman at

that time? [28] A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you recall, off-hand, whether he had oc-

casion to check your blood-pressure at that time ?

A. I do not recall. To the best of my memory

I don't think he did. I am not certain.

Q. For the record, is it correct to say that you

have joined in sending a telegram to Dr. Bulman ?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. With the idea in mind of getting the results

of any reading he may have made during that ill-

ness? A. Yes, I did.

Q. (By Commissioner Gray) Do you desire to

submit any such report for the consideration of the

Deputy Commissioner if it is received ?

A. Yes, certainly.

Commissioner Gray: Do you have any objection

to such a report?

Mr. White: No, I don't have any objection. What

I think Mr. Piatt and I were both trying to get at
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was whether he did have an elevation in blood pres-

sure at this time.

Commissioner Gray: If you are willing to have

such a stipulation here in this opening hearmg, at

such time as you receive it, it will be made a part

of the record.

Claimant: In the radiogram, Mr. White, it calls

for any answer to be sent to the Liberty Mutual In-

surance Company. [29]

Mr. White: I will be glad to submit a copy of

any reply that is received. Due to naval require-

ments it is not possible to request a collect wire,

and I had to guarantee in the telegram the cost of

the reply of Dr. Bulman, and I haven't heard from

him today. This may mean that he is not at Santa

Rosa, or hasn't been able to check on that informa-

tion, but as soon as a reply to this wire is received,

whether in the form of a radiogram or of a letter,

we will be glad to stipulate it may go in the record,

and submit it.

Commissioner Gray: The deputy commissioner

will receive any evidence, if received, and will re-

ceive in evidence a copy of the radio communica-

tion, sent via R.C.A. Communications, Incorporated,,

on June 1st 1943, to Dr. Robert Bulman, by John

B. Piatt, it bemg understood that the reply, if re-

ceived, will be made a part of the record, upon sti])u-

iation, as already made by both interested parties,

and the exhibit will be marked Deputy Commis-

sioner 's Exhibit Number 1.
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(Copy of radiogram marked Deputy Conmiis-

sioner's Exhibit Number 1.)

DEPUTY COMMISSIONER'S EXHIBI^J^ No. 1

Radiogram

R. C. A. Comnuniications, Inc.

Received at 223 South King St., Honolulu at 1943

Jun 11 PM 1 00 Standard Time

1618 28 Santarosa Calif 11 1119 A ASF
L. C. John B. Piatt

646 Wylie Street Honolulu

No record of blood pressure of John D. Piatt in

1937 118 over 80 in January 1935

DR ROBERT BULMAN

Received Aug 13 1943 District No. 14

4605

230947

Pass 6

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 22, 1944.

Q. Mr. Piatt, do you recall the last occasion pre-

vious to 1937 on which you had a general physical

check-up or examination^ I believe at one time

you mentioned an examination for life insurance,

about 1931.

A. It is 1929, sir. I was examined for life in-

surance consolidated policies, in Connecticut Gen-

eral Life, in 1929. [30]
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Q. And was that consolidation granted?

A. Yes, it was passed. That was a twenty

thousand dollar health policy at that time.

Q. Were you given an examination by a life in-

surance doctor at that time?

A. I was, yes, sir.

Q. And he found nothing wrong with you?

A. The policy was allowed; that is all I know.

Q. Mr. Piatt, I think we are agreed that the ac-

cident occurred on December 1st?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And that two days later, on December the

3d, late in the afternoon, you went to the Queen's

Hospital? A. Yes, sir.

Commissioner Gray: Before we go any further,

do you have any objection to that Exhibit 1 being

made part of the record?

Claimant: None whatever, sir.

Q. I believe that the second point I want to

clear up on the dates, is the date of your return to

work. That w^as reported by Mr. Biddle as Janu-

ary 11th, and we paid temporary-total compensation

on that basis, but if there is another date in your

mind we can have it rechecked.

A. I will concede it was the 11th instead of the

12th of January.

Q. Now then the next date, the last one, I think,

is the date [31] of your second admission to Queen's

Hospital. I have here what purports to be a photo-

static copy of a copy of the Queen's Hospital rec-

ord, which indicates that you were admitted at 7 :40
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a.m. on Febniaiy the 26tli, and this notation indi-

cates that at the time this was made you were still

in the hospital, as of March 26th. After checking

on the date a little further, do you agree that it was

February 26th? A. I agree, yes, sir.

Q. And do you recall when you left the hospi-

tal; what date?

A. I don't recall what date it is. We have it on

our calendar out here.

Q. I think I can refresh your memory on that.

Would it be May the 5th?

A. Was that Sunday ?—Was that a Wednesday ?

(Consulting calendar)

Q. No, it does not give the date of the week

here. A. May the 5th, yes, sir.

Q. Were you continuously under the care of

Dr. Cloward after you went to the hospital on De-

cember the 3d, 1942? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And during the second period of your stay in

the hospital ? A. Yes, sir, I w^as.

Q. Did any other physicians attend you other

than the house physician?

A. Dr. Gotshalk in the Young Building made an

electrocardiograph, and a report on the heart, for

Dr. Cloward.

Q. For Dr. Cloward? [32] A. Yes.

Q. Was that while you were in the hospital or

afterwards ?

A. No, between there, when I was out in Decem-

ber and January sometime; in January.
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Q. Do you recall whether that was before or after

you had gone back to sedentary work?

A. That was before I was,—That was just at

the time when Dr. Cloward said I could go back.

He wanted to check up and see if there was any

reason,—if there was any possible heart lesion that

was helping keep up the blood-pressure, and he

checked me up and said ^'You are o.k." As a mat-

ter of fact Dr. Cloward told me at that time that he

would pass me for life insurance.

Q. On the basis of Dr. Gotshalk's findings?

A. On the basis of finding that out. Mr. Gray,

/there is one point I want to go into.

Commissioner Gray: Just a moment. We will

allow Mr. White to finish his cross-examination, if

you please.

Q. After you had gone back to work on Janu-

ary 11th, Mr. Piatt, can you describe briefly what

your general physi(^al condition w^as? Did you ap-

pear to improve, or did you have periods when you

were not as well as at other times'?

Commissioner Gray : I think you should reframe

your question. I do not think he is qualified to

testify to his physical condition. He might testify

as to his sensations and personal feeling.

Mr. White: All right. [33]

Q. On your discharge from the hospital, Mr.

Piatt, did you feel fully recovered?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did you have any residual effects, like head-

aches ?
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A. I had headaches, like a tight band across the

top of my head, and headaches in the rear of my
head, and was pretty wobbly,—weak.

Q. I think you described the band as extending

from across your head, practically the latitude of

the ears? A. Yes.

Q. And around at the back of the head?

A. Yes, about the base.

Q. Of the brain or the skull?

A. The base of the skull. I don't know where

my brain is there.

Commissioner Gray: The witness designates a

point in the skull, in the rear portion of his head.

Q. In response to one of Mr. Gray's questions

you described a slight cut on your,—I think you

said forehead. Will you describe again where that

was. A. Here. (Indicating)

Commissioner Gray: The witness designates a

point about one inch above the hair line right above

the skull, on the forehead.

Q. Is that the spot you were struck by the fall-

ing globe?

A. The blow of the globe hit me right above

here. (Indicating) [34]

Commissioner Gray: The witness designates a

a point T'unning diagonally across the top center

portion of the skull as being the site of blow.

Q. You were apparently cut by fragments. Do

you know whether the globe fell in front of you, on

the desk?
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A. A lot of it lit on the desk, and it cascaded

over the shoulder, and lit on the floor, and it flew

and hit the wall, and flew in every direction.

Q. Were you rendered unconscious by that blow ?

A. No, I was knocked dizzy, and I slumped for-

ward down on my desk, but I was not rendered un-

conscious.

Q. After you were slumped forward did you

immediately resume a sitting position, or stand up,

or what did you do? Do you know?

A. I could not tell you. I don't know.

Q. How long after the accident did the sensa-

tion of dizziness last ?

A. I was dizzy all the time I was over in the

first-aid station, on the way down to see Dr. Stew-

art, and all the time I was there, until I got back to

the house.

Q. And on the following day how did you feel?

A. I felt all right while I was lying down, but

I would get dizzy when I,—if I raised up my head.

Q. Well, now, getting back to the time that you

left the hospital, on the first occasion, you described

the bands of pressure across your head; how long

did that sensation and the [3e5] headache last after

you had left the hospital?

A. To the best of my recollection it was con-

tinuous for approximately the first week, and it

was recurrent thereafter, but did not last.

Commissioner Gray: Let me interpose a few

questions.

Q. Since you received your original injury, has
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your mind be^n wholly free at all times, and your

memory, is it capable of retaining events as clearly

as it did prior to your injury? In other words, have

there been times since your injury when you felt

you have forgotten things?

A. There has been. I have had a hard time to

remember names of people, and I try to recall.

Commissioner Gray: Under those circumstances

I think we should pursue a different line of ques-

tioning, as the actual condition can be brought out

by the doctor, and I do not believe his evidence on

the point would be too strong.

Mr. White: No, I don't want to be confusing in

my questions. I did want to get a general idea as

to how long he felt bad or if it ever did improve.

Let me put the question that way.

By Mr. White

:

Q. Did you ever become wholly free of the tiglit-

ness across your head and the headache; that is,

prior to February 26th, the day you were admitted

to the hospital; for the period between the time

you left the hospital, and February 26th, did the

[36] headache and the tight feeling remain with

vou?

A. It was, to the best of my memory, it was re-

current eveiy day; I had a sensation of it, a feel-

ing of it there, at different periods, every day during

that period.

Q. Was it always at one time of day or did it

occur at different times?
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A. I could not recall.

Q. Will you describe, Mr. Piatt, what occurred

on February the 26th, the morning of which you

again reentered the hospital?

A. I got up and had gone into the bathroom, to

get ready to go to work, and was standing at the

wash basin, the lavatory, and I grabbed hold to

support myself, and I felt my knees starting to

give w^ay, and I could not stand up, and I tried to

call Mrs. Piatt, and I could not call, and I could not

talk,—I just slumped on the floor, and she came

and found me there.

Q. What day of the week w^as that?

A. I think it was Friday.

By Commissioner Gray

:

Q. You were about to make a remark a few

moments ago, Mr. Piatt. What did you have on

your mind?

A. When I was admitted to the hospital on Feb-

ruary 26th, when I was in the ward the nurse came

in and took my blood pressure and she took it and

I noticed she looked at it quick, sort of excited,

and took it again the second time, and then she

took it a third time, and afterwards I asked one of

the nurses what my blood pressure was, and I re-

call somebody telling me that it was [37] 240, and

that is the morning I was admitted after having a

stroke, and I would like to have that clarified.

Q. Do you know the name of the first nurse?

A. No, I cannot recall.
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Q. Do you know the name of the second nurse?

A. I know who the first nurse w^as by her voice,

but I do not know her name.

Commissioner Gray : Have you an exhibit of the

hospital records you want to enter here?

Mr. White : I have the photostatic copies referred

to earlier in the record, covering both periods of

hospitalization, but the second period only goes

through March 27th, on which date the exhibit was

prepared, and Mr. Piatt remained in the hospital

after that until May 5th.

Commissioner Gray: Will you obtain the com-

plete records and file them?

Mr. White : Yes. I can secure the balance of the

records.

Commissioner Gray: Do you want to have this

entered now ?

Mr. White: Yes, I will enter these as exhibits.

These, incidentally, are in duplicates, Mr. Gray.

This first set represents the first period, on the ad-

mission of December 3d, and the second period cov-

ers the admission on February the 26th, 1943.

Commissioner Gray: The Deputy Commissionei*

has before him Clinical records of The Queen's

Hospital, Honolulu, T. H., in [38] case No. 164,272,

covering the period of hospitalization from Decem-

ber 3d 1942, in the first entrance, and to December

24, 1942, the first discharge; and from February

26th 1943, on the second admission, and at March

27, 1943, the patient was still in the hospital. If

there are no objections those records will be re-
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ceived in evidence and marked Employers' and

Carrier's Exhibits A and B. Is there any objection?

Mr. White: No objection.

Claimant: No objection. I would like to have

a stipulation, to have you determine from Dr. Clow-

ard what my blood pressure was on or about the en-

trance to the hospital on the second trip.

Commissioner Gray: They will be marked as

exhibits. Photostat copy of hospital record, admit-

tance of December 3, 1942, is marked Employer's

& Carrier's Exhibit A. Photostat copy of hospital

record, admittance of February 26, 1943, is marked

:

Employer's & Carrier's Exhibit B.

(Witness excused.)

MRS. FREDA F. PIATT,

called as a witness for the claimant, being duly

sworn, testified as follows:

By Commissioner Gray:

Q. State you full name and address to the re-

porter, please.

A. Mrs. Freda F. Piatt, 646 Wyllie street.

Q. You are the wife of John B. Piatt? [39]

A. I am.

Q. The employee appearing in this case?

A. I am.

Q. You have at all times lived at this address

with Mr. Piatt? A. Yes.
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Q. Were you living with him there on Decem-

ber the 1st 1942"? A. Yes, I was.

Q. What w^as your first knowledge that anything

out of the way had happened to Mr. Piatt"?

A. On December the 1st he came home around

11 o'clock, and said he had been hit on the head.

Q. How long have you been married *?

A. Twenty-five years next July.

Q. Has Mr. Piatt always been a regular worker

and provided for the family regularly, without any

long periods of illness'?

A. Never ill, except with pneumonia.

Q. Specifically, for six months, to December

1942, had Mr. Piatt made any special complaints

of feeling funny, or bothered by pains m the head,

or a feeling that he should not go out to work for

any reason 1

A. No, he was always very well; willing to go

out and work, but he w^as tired.

Q. Tired when he came home?

A. Yes, as you do get in this country.

Q. x\fter he got home, after December 1st, 1942,

he related [40] the story of having been hit in the

head. You have heard him testify as to the se-

quence of the events that followed, giving the dates

and things that occurred, as to going to the hospital

and coming from it? A. Yes.

Q. You were aware of all these things, were you ?

A. Yes, I was aware of all of them.

Q. Between the two times he was in the hospital

he resided here at home, didn't he? A. Yes.



42 Contractors, Pacific Air Bases, et al,

(Testimony of Mrs. Freda F. Piatt.)

Q. He was doing part-time work out in the yard?

A. Yes.

Q. What, if any, were his specific complaints

during that interval between his periods in the

hospital 'F

A. As soon as he w^ent to work, or tried to

work, after two or three hours work he would get

very tired, and the company provided a driver and

a car for him, and it saved that much, sir, and im-

mediately he got home,—sometimes at four o'clock,

he went to bed and stayed there.

Q. Did he appear to be worried mentally about

his condition at the time? Was he worried about

his condition?

A. Yes, he wondered w^hat was the matter with

his head.
\ f-^.

Q. What was the date that here at home some-

thing out of the ordinary occurred while Mr. Piatt

was in the bathroom?

A. It was on the 26th of February, 1943. [41]

Q. Just what do you know about what happened

at that time? What did you say to him, and what

did he say to you?

A. Well, I had got up previously and gone in and

turned on the electric heat in the bathroom, and I

had gone back to bed, for just about five minutes,

maybe.

Q. What time of day, about, was this?

A. I w^ould say it was about 6:20, and for some

reason,—I don't usually go in the bathroom after
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he is in there, and I just hollered in and said ''Are

you ready yef?" and he never made any reply, and

I did not hear any noise in there, and I went in to

see, and found him on the floor.

Q. Was he unconscious?

A. No, he wasn't unconscious; he could talk.

Q. What did he say to you?

A. He kei3t saying, ''I have to get up and get

on the job, go to work."

Q. Did you try to assist him up ? A. No.

Q. What position was he in in the bathroom*?

A. He had his arm up over the tub, and this

one was down (illustrating), and he was trying

to raise up.

Q. Was he in a prone position or down on his

knees ?

A. No, his knees were out on the floor, out here,

and his arm was out over here, and he was trying

to hold himself up. (Witness illustrates.)

Commissioner Gray: Witness indicates a male

figure partially recumbent on the bathroom floor

with the right arm partially [42] over the bathtub.

A. I knew by the way he looked that he un-

doubtedly had had a stroke, and he could not move

his leg; he could not move his left leg, and I per-

suaded him to stay there, and it was warm there,

and I had had the electric heat on, and I got

blankets too, and got a pillow^ and put his head on

it, and I said "l^e quiet" and I went and called Mr.

Morgan and Dr. Cloward, and they came shortly

afterwards. Mr. Morgan came in about Ave min-
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utes, and Dr. Cloward said ^^Send him to the

hos]3itaL '

'

Q. And he was removed to the hospital, was he

in an ambulance'?

A. Yes, he was removed to the hospital. I kej^t

him on the floor until the ambulance came.

Q. Is there anything else you know about the

case that you think would be of pertinent interest?

A. I think it should be brought up that when

he went to Dr. Stewart

Q. Were you present?

A. No,—I am not saying that; I merely want

to bring up the fact

Q. What I am trying to get at is, do you know

of anything that you saw or heard of pertinent

interest in relation to the case. We have to have

that directly from your personal knowledge.

A. It is not seeing or hearing, just merely call-

ing attention to the time. Would that be all right?

Here is what I want to bring up. Suppose you

hear this, and see if it is all right? [43]

Q. Go ahead and make your statement.

A. It w^as about 54 hours from the time he had

the accident and went to see Dr. Stewart until Dr.

Cloward told him to go to the hospital and stay in

bed. He was up all that time. Now I think you

will find out that in a hit on the head you should be

hospitalized, or at least stay flat, immediately.

Q. We will go into that when we get the doctor.

Is there anything else, Mrs. Piatt?
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A. I think that is all.

Mr. White : No cross-examination.

(Witness excnsed.)

Commissioner Gray: Any other witnesses, Mr.

Piatt?

Claimant: I would like to have you question

both Mr. Youmans and Commander Potter about

my activities, health and ability to do my work prior

to the time I got hit in the head, and afterwards.

GEORGE L. YOUMANS

was called as a witness for the claimant, and being

duly sworn, testified as follows:

By Commissioner Gray:

Q. State your full name.

A. George L. Youmans.

Q. And your address?

A. 3887 Lurline Drive, Honolulu.

Q. What is your position with the Contractors,

P. N. A. B.?

A. I am a member of the operating committee.

[44]

Q. As such, are you in a position to supervise

and collaborate with and know of the actions of

Mr. John B. Piatt?

A. Yes, Mr. Piatt worked directly under my
supervision at all times.

Q. Would you state briefly, for the record, just

how this matter was brought first to your attention,
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and anything that you definitely know of the subse-

quent events?

A. Well, the morning of the accident, the day

of the accident, which I understand was December

1st, I did not happen to be in at the time they took

Mr. Piatt out of the office. My office is at the other

end of the hall, and it is three or four hundred

feet away.

Q. Is that on land used and occupied by the

United States for military and naval purposes?

A. Yes, right in the Navy Yard proper. Our

office manager, Woelfert, came into my office, know-

ing that Mr. Piatt worked under my direction, and

asked me if I had heard about Jack being hurt,

and I said no, I had not, and he said '^'Well, the

shade dropped off and hit him on the head, the

shade that w^as over his desk," and so I asked him

what had happened to Mr. Piatt after that, and

they said he was over in the first-aid station across

on the road from the office, and by the time I could

call the office they had taken Mr. Piatt home. I

think I called on Mrs. Piatt that morning, and asked

her if she knew anything more about his condition,

or had anything developed at [45] that time, and

she said no, that he was home then, and lying dow^n,

and I told her, I think, for him to stay there until

he felt able to come back to work, and Mr. Piatt,

of course, in connection with the work there, had

sole charge of the procuring of the materials for

the Construction Battalion, and we had put him

into that position because he had done similar work
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for a job we had had in one of the outlying islands

prior to the war, and about that time the Construc-

tion Battalions were getting started, and there was

work coming in, and there was a great deal of con-

fusion, more or less, as to how we were going to

operate to procure materials for them, and without

Mr. Piatt being there it left us in kind of a bad

hole, although he had several assistants that could

jjrobably carry on, so naturally we were interested

in knowing the extent of the injury, and all that was

taking place, and in getting him in first-class con-

dition and back on the work as fast as possible,

however, not knowing about the medical end of it,

and we had just acquired the knowledge he could

come back in a day or two days, as I remember,

and after that he did come back to work, and he had

a conference with Commander Potter, who was in

charge of the Construction Battalion here at that

time, and Commander Keim, I believe, who was the

Public Works officer, and he came into my office

the day he came back to work after the accident,

and told me, I think about 12 or 1 o'clock, that he

could not stand to be here any longer, he had to get

back home, and I [46] told him all right, go back,

and to stay until he did feel good ; until he felt

better.

Q. You inferred it was a physical condition that

resulted from the injury of December 1st?

A. Of December 1st. And then I kept in touch

by telephone, and by talking to Mr. Morgan, who
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worked with Mr. Piatt, after he had gone to the

hospital, and kept track of him and how he was

getting along, and how soon we could expect him

back, and I believe he came back sometime in the

early part of January and came in and saw me at

that time, and told me then he thought he could

come down maybe three or four hours a day and

keep his hand in on things and help the boys where

he could, and he would have to go back home after

that, and I told him I thought that that would be

all right, and that lasted until the latter part of

February VN^hen the second attack, that he just de-

scribed, occurred, and since then, of course, he has

not returned to his work.

,Q. This work to which Mr. Piatt returned, would

you consider it, in your opinion, simply that of an

ill man getting up and attempting to help out, to

keep the program running, and to fulfill the duties

in part that he previously had been assigned to?

A. Yes, I would, because on this kind of a job,

the man on the job,—who had charge of it, it is

something that a man carries a great deal of the

things in his head that nobody knows [47] very

much about excepting him, and it involves a knowl-

edge of the work on the outlying islands, and get-

ting stuff out to the islands, and things change in

five minutes, with ships coming in and out, and a

man in Mr. Piatt's position would be the only one

to know when those things happen, and without a

key man like he is you are pretty much lost in

that end of it.
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Q. You have observed thousands of men at

work, haven't you? A. Yes, quite a few.

Q. Would you say in your o]3inion you are

pretty well qualilied to judge Vvhether a man is

working under a physical handicap or not"?

A. I think so.

Q. Do you consider that during the time that

Mr. Piatt worked that he was laboring under a

physical, and perhaps mental, handicap, as a result

of his injury?

A. I would, very much so. Several times when

he came in and tell me some of his troubles, I would

say **Sit down, keep quiet, and don't try to talk

too much about these things." I knew he was

under mental stress.

Commissioner Gray : Any questions, Mr. AVhite ?

Mr. White: N^o cross-examination.

(Witness excused.)

COMMANDER HOWARD PRATT POTTER,
U. S. N. R.

was called as a witness for the Claimant, and being

duly sworn testified as follows: [48]

Direct

By Commissioner Gray:

Q. Will you kindly state your full name, rank

and address to the reporter, please.

A. Howard Pratt Potter, Commander, Civil En-

gineers' Corps, United States Naval Reserve.
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Q. You were stationed on this island about De-

cember 1st 1942, were you?

A. I w^as, sir. I have been here since June, 1942.

Q. Conmaander, will you state briefly, for the

record, just what you know; saw or heard, in rela-

tion to the events testified about by Mr. Piatt '^

A. Mr. Gray, could I make one statement to

show my connection with Mr. Piatt, and my work;

I think that would shorten it up?

Q. Just go right ahead and make your own

statement.

A. I first arrived on the islands as officer in

charge of the 5th Construction Battalion, and as

Mr. Piatt was the man in charge of the procurement

for the construction battalions, practically all my
contact with the P.N.A.B. w^as through Mr. Piatt,

and a few months after I was here I was made

regimental commander of three battalions, and

which grew to 11 battalions, and during that time

my contact with Mr. Piatt was increasing more and

more. Now, I think,—doesn't that show the con-

nection with Mr. Piatt?

Q. Yes. With such contacts over this period

of time, would you say it would call for the action

of a vigorous, healthy man in [49] carrying out the

duties such as Mr. Piatt was performing, in your

opinion? A. It would, sir.

Q. Gro ahead. Commander.

A. During this time I expect I have been in

telephone communcation with Mr. Piatt at least

four or five times daily, and perhaps a conference
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in the morning and a conference in the afternoon,

either in his office or in my office.

Q. Did he ever present an appearance or show

evidence of outward, untoward fatigue during the

period prior to December 1st 1942, in your

knowledge ?

A. As far as our contacts were concerned, he

did not. In fact I was awfully surprised at his

seemingly limitless energy.

Q. Now to come down to December 1st, were you

in the vicinity of the Contractors' office on De-

cember 1st 1942 *?

A. On that date,—my office is at Red Hill, and

I expect four miles from the Yard, and my first

knowledge of the accident was when I called in to

ask him something on some job, and some girl in

the office told me that he had had an accident and

had gone home.

Q. Then you did not see the accident"?

A. No, I did not see the accident.

Q. And you were not there immediately after-

wards ?

A. I did not see Mr. Piatt until the morning of

the conference with Commander Keim and Alcott

in Mr. Piatt's office. [50]

Q. During that conference did Mr. Piatt evi-

dence signs of fatigue and tiredness and mental

anxiety? A. Very much so, Mr. Gray.

Q. Did you have to break up the conference

earlier than you might otherwise have done on

that occasion?
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A. Yes, we did. I did not nearly cover the terri-

tory or the ground of this conference as planned,

because we could see that Mr. Piatt was in distress,

and I thought at the time that his memory was not

in such shape, or his physical condition was in

such shape, that the Conference really had no

particular value.

Q. In other words, compared with the mental

alertness exhibited by him on many previous oc-

casions prior to December 1st 1942 he on this

occasion presented a less fitness?

A. To a very marked degree, yes, sir.

Q. And did he complain, make any verbal com-

plaints, that you heard, at the time of this

conference %

A. He made no verbal complaints, but I noticed

he would pick his head several times.

Commissioner Gray : The witness designates Mr.

Piatt's having placed his right hand up in the re-

gion of the forehead, as if it were hurting him, and

as if he were tired.

A. And his evidence of stress made us all un-

consciously close the conference as soon as possible.

Q. Is that about the limit of your knowledge?

A. I think it is, yes, sir. [51]

Q. Do you have any other knowledge of Mr.

Piatt's disability?

A. I naturally was curious about the accident,

and I got that infomiation second or third hand,

through Mr. Morgan and through people in the

operating base, and I called here at the house sev-
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eral times in person and by 'phone to check on his

condition. In fact, I sometimes felt guilty because

there were decisions to be made that I could not

make without some assistance from him.

Conmiissioner Gray: Have you any questions

you would like to ask the Commander?
Mr. White: Yes.

By Mr. White

:

Q. On the day of the conference you speak of,

Commander, did Mr. Piatt ask that the conference

be concluded, or was that done voluntarily by you?

A. I think it w^as done voluntarily by all of us.

We saw that he was in distress.

Q. Is there anything significant about your con-

tracts with him after he came back to the office for

a short period in January?

A. Yes, I think there is. The difference in his

grasp of the situation, and on the plans and speci-

fications,—I would like to explain that a little in

detail if I could, sir.

Commissioner Gray: Go right ahead.

A. These construction battalions came out in in-

creasing number. We have been taking over the

work of the civilian [52] employees, and the ques-

tion of procurement and organization has become

a very large problem. It has reached the stage

where Mr. Piatt had been (not officially) selected

to head up that group, and he and I were working

on an organization in which our offices would be in

the same building, and our files would be correlated
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and our operations practically one operation, and

that organization had everybody's approval, and

mine, and Captain Hartung's, my senior ofiScer,

was very well satisfied with the arrangement.

Q. Is that the captain in charge of the Public

Works, or the individual?

A. The District Public Works officer, yes, sir.

Q. And after Mr. Piatt's return to the office,

what did you observe'?

A. After Mr. Piatt's accident there was such a

change, oh, in his grasp, for one thing; his grasp

of the situation, and his memory of all the details,

and it was such that opposition came up to his

appointment to that job.

Commissioner Gray: Q. Wouldn't you prefer

to say. Commander, that it became necessary to

reconsider ?

A. Yes, ''opposition" is a poor word.

Q. To reconsider his qualifications; apparently

they had deteriorated on account of the disability *?

A. Yes, T would put it that way. The thing

that stands out, in my associations with Mr. Piatt,

is his keen memory on detail, and his office seemed

to be the one everybody turned to when [53] they

could not get the answer any place else.

Q. That condition has changed since December

1st 1942?

A. Yes, it has changed since that time.

Q. In your opinion, from observation?

A. It has very much, sir. My work has in-

creased 10-fold, or my associates, rather. I think,
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Mr. Gray, that the big consideration from my view-

point, is Mr. Piatt's experience in the outlying is-

lands, his memory of things months back, say of

particular parts for an engine that somebody

needed, he could tell me where they were, and under

what conditions they were bought, and when he

same back the second time I would ask him these

things and he would say ^*I should know that, I

have some remembrance," but he would shake his

head and say ^'I cannot give you the details."

Q. Now, Commander, in the course of your naval

career you, of course, have handled thousands of

men?

A. I w^ould not say
"'^ thousands" but I have

handled a lot of men in the Navy and in my own

business.

Q. In fairness to all parties, would you consider

yourself more like an expert in determining whether

a man being observed by you was physically and

mentally capable of carrying on his work, or to the

contrary? A. I think I would, sir.

Q. And your statements, as related to Mr.

Piatt's case, are based on such expert knowledge,

are they not?

A. Yes, sir, and ample time to have had asso-

ciation with him, for several months prior to his

accident, and to know his [54] capabilities.

Q. In other words, you feel you are a little better

qualified to pass on his personality change from a

layman's standpoint than somebody whom you had

only seen casually? A. Yes.
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Mr. White: No questions.

(Witness excused.)

(A five-minute recess was here taken.)

MR. ARDEN WALTER MORGAN

was called as a witness for the Claimant, and being

duly sworn testified as follows

:

By Commissioner Gray:

Q. Will you state your name and address.

A. Arden Walter Morgan, 2982 Kuhio Avenue,

Honolulu.

Q. Are you an employee of the Pacific Naval

Air Bases? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were you such an employee on or about De-

cember 1st 1942? A. I was.

Q. Where are your offices situated?

A. Inside of the Pearl Harbor Navy Yard.

Q. Are they in close proximity to the offices

occupied by Mr. Piatt?

A. They were in the same building.

Q. Are you associated wdth him in his work?

A. Yes, sir, I was his principal assistant.

Q. Please state for the record just what you

saw and heard in [55] connection with any un-

toward event that happened on or about December

1st 1942, in which Mr. Piatt was involved.

A. I was called to his office by one of his girls,

about,—the time I don't know^, the exact time, that
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morning, and this girl called my office on the

'phone and I went right down and walked in the

door and this light globe was scattered all over

the floor, and Mr. Piatt was then,—he was sitting

down at that time, and he was qnite dazed, and then

the other girl, wlio was down there in his office,

was taking some requisitions down from my office,

and told me what had hapjjened.

Q. What was the name of that young lady?

A. Miss Jenuwin.

Q. Go ahead and relate what the young lady

said.

A. She told me that she brought the requisition

in for him to sign, and she had just gotten into

the door and was about to take them to his desk,

they were various orders, when this light globe fell.

Q. Where was the light globe situated as to

where he was seated?

A. It was on the ceiling right above where he

sat at his desk, sir.

Q. Are you an engineer by profession, sir?

A. Yes.

Q. Could you closely approximate the distance

that the globe would be above the head of Mr.

Piatt; from the height he would be sitting at the

desk in that office?

A. The height of the ceiling is approximately

ten feet, within [56] two or three inches of that,

and the light globe is the type that you find right

against,—fitting right against the ceiling, and it

does not hang down on a chandelier.
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Q. Then what would you estimate the length of

fall of the globe to be, approximately"?

A. About, between,—six feet, at least.

Q. Did you bring a globe of similar dimensions

and weight with you to this hearing*?

A. Yes, I brought one that was identical with

this.

Q. Will you bring it over liere, please.

A. (Witness produces a globe.)

Q. Have you weighed that globe "?

A. I haven't myself, but an assistant in my
office has taken the weight.

Q. Do you have a slip there on w^hich the weight

is recorded? A. Yes, given to me by him.

Q. What is the weight recorded?

A. Three and one-quarter pounds, but how ac-

curate those scales are I do not know.

Commissioner Gray: The witness testifies about,

and displays a glass composition, indirect lighting

globe, slightly rounded on the bottom, and weighing

approximately 314 pounds.

Q. Is this a similar type of a globe that is in

place as part of the fixtures of the office at which

Mr. Piatt was working on December 1st 1942?

A. Yes, that is identical with the one that fell.

[57]

Q. Then what else did you find out about the

occurrence ?

A. I have the exact height of that ceiling. Do

you want that before I go on?
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Commissioner Gray: Any objections to him

reading that into the record?

By Mr. White

:

Q. Did you make the measurement yourself?

A. My assistant did. I did not make that

myself.

Q. Who is your assistant?

A. Dwight Savage.

Q. Was that in connection with the request made

by Mr. Woelfert for measurements?

A. Yes, I knew he had made a request, and our

office gave him that information.

Q. Do you know whether Mr. Woelfert posed

as Mr. Piatt, or as the man sitting in the chair

at the desk?

A. No, I was not present when those measure-

ments were taken.

By Commissioner Gray:

Q. What was the measurement of the room, ac-

cording to this, as made by your assistaiit ?

A. 118 inches w^as the total height.

Q. That would be nine feet and over.

A. Nine feet ten inches.

Commissioner Gray: Any objection?

Mr. White : No, I think that is all right. [58]

Q. Go ahead and read any other figures you

have got. A. That is all the figures I have.

Q. Go on with your narration of anything you

saw or heard about the occurrence.

A. After being called down to the office there

and finding out what had happened, we took Mr.
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Piatt across the street to the First Aid station, and

I do not recall who helped me. There \Yere two of

us, and several people were around there, and in

the excitement I do not know who did help me, but

I know it was raining, and 1 know we carried his

raincoat and his glasses, and w^e carried his rain-

coat and glasses across the street, and attempted

to throw the coat over his shoulder as we were

going, and he was able to walk at that time across

the street, with our help; he had an arm around

me, around my shoulder, and one around another

man's shoulder, and we took him over there, where

they had him lie down on the bed.

Q. About what distance would that be from the

office to the dispensary, please?

A. I would imagine it would be about three

or four hundred feet.

Q. That is an approximation?

A. Yes, that is only a guess of how far it was;

three or four hundred feet. After he had been over

there for some little time they apparently had

called Dr. Stewart or made arrangements to take

him down to Dr. Stewaii:, and Dwight Savage took

Mr. Piatt's car, and that was the car that was

assigned to him out [59] there, and took him down

to the doctor.

Q. To get back to the dispensary, was he given

any first-aid treatment while he was there?

A. I don't know what the treatment was.

Q. Did you notice any lacerations on his head?
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A. Yes, there was one, a short cut, but it was

bleeding quite a lot, bleeding quite a little, and was

running from here. (Indicating.)

Commissioner Gray : The witness makes a point

about one inch above the center of the hair-line in

the center of the forehead.

A. That's right, it was about there.

Q. From a la}Tiian's viewpoint, did you infer

that Mr. Piatt appeared dazed at the time you

took him in to the first-aid station'?

A. Very much so. He is a very heavy man, and

he rolled several times in w^alking across the street,

or he reeled, on the way across (indicating), as we

were helping him across.

Q. You mean he shifted the burden of his weight

from you to the other man and back"?

A. Yes, he shifted his w^eight, one moment one

w^ay and the next the other. We had quite a bit

of difficulty with him.

Q. He sort of staggered %

A. Yes, he staggered very much.

Q. After that, you left ? [60]

A. When I took him into the doctor's office, that

was the last I knew of it at that time, until I came

here to the house. I am not sure when that was,

whether it was that evening or the next morning,

after work ; I believe it was that evening, I stopped

at the house, and he stated to me then that he had

been told to stay quiet for a day or so. And he did

not come back to work the following day, and the
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first day lie was back to work was when this con-

ference was called, the second day.

Q. In the course of your w^ork do you have

occasion to view the physical characteristics of a

great many workmen out there'?

A. Not a great many, but some.

Q. Well, you are in the office, are you not?

A. Yes.

Q. And you have a good deal to do with the

personnel, the people coming in and out?

A. That's right.

Q. On the basis of that fact what would be your

opinion as to Mr. Piatt's mental and physical

vigorousness prior to December 1st 1942?

A. Prior to?

Q. Yes.

A. I never worked for a man or with a man
who showed any more tremendous energy.

Q. How long have you worked with him?

A. Since September 1st, I believe; September

1st, I started there. [61]

Q. 1942?

A. 1942. I was moved into his office.

Q. So you were very closely associated with him

during all that period of three months?

A. Yes, almost continually, continual associa-

tion with him all of that time.

Q. And what, if any, difference was there in his

general appearance and actions after December 1st

as compared with his actions prior to December

first, that you observed?
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A. Well, after December 1st, of course T had

very little contact with him, except when he came

back to the office there and was taken to the hos-

pital, and I was in to see him a few times in the

hospital, and I had very little contact until he came

back to work in the early part of Jamiary, and at

that time he was not the same as he had been

before; he was not as sharp in his work, and he

tired very easily, and all of that time that he was

back we tried to consult him only to be advised of

what to do; we were in a spot, and we needed his

knowledge, to be advised,—in an advisory capacity,

and I even took over myself all the signing of

routine paper work, and signing his name.

Q. In other words, from what you learned from

observation, did you infer that there had been quite

a distinct personality change in the man following

his injury as compared with that that existed

before the injury? [62]

A. Not so much of a personality change, with

the exception of his nervousness and flightiness, but

there was a very decided change in that way, and

about very little things. He was a man that was

able to carry a good many things in his mind and

handle them efficiently, and little things, and very

few of them, did him right up and he became very

tired.

Q. You are now referring to the particular

period before December 1st 1942?

A. No, I am referring to the time after that.

May I amend that? Before that time he was able
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to carry a good many things in his mind, and the

detail did not bother him, no matter how much he

had to take care of, but after his accident, when he

came back there, then whv if we had much detail

to go over, after he came back, he became very

nervous and very tired, and w^as unable to go on.

Q. You mean he appeared to become very tired"?

A. Yes, appeared.

By Mr. White

:

Q. When you say he appeared tired, Mr. Mor-

gan, was that your conclusion or did Mr. Piatt

conmmnicate that to you in the form of a state-

ment, or what? A. Yes, sir, at times.

Q. What trouble did he complain of when he

first came back to work?

A. The only thing that he would mention to me
was getting tired, [63] and of headaches, continual

headaches; he didn't mention it very much, it was

more in his attitude and in the way he handled his

work, and my own conclusion.

Q. You were aware of the fact that he had been

away from work some forty days and there were a

good many things he had missed during that time,

and with which he had to acquaint himself, or on

that, again, did you single out the more important

things? A. Only the more important things.

Q. On which to consult him?

A. Yes, the detail I never did go into. We
tried to bother him as little as possible on the

detail, and on the more important things we did

try to keep him informed about.
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Q. You estimated, the original estimate you

made on the height of the room was ten feet, and

then you produced a measurement that comes to

nine feet A. Nine feet ten inches.

Q. How far below the ceiling surface would you

say that the globe depended; was it a chain fixture

or a flush fixture?

Commissioner Gray: The witness has already

testified to the fact that this globe was in a fixture

directly attached to the ceiling.

Q. How far below the ceiling level was the bot-

tom of the globe 1

A. That would only be a guess. It would be,

—

I don't believe it w^ould be over a few inches. It

was sitting very close to the ceiling. [64]

Q. If you were informed that the base of the

globe was approximately,—about, approximately 46

or 48 inches above the head of the man seated in

the chair beneath it, would you disagree with that

figure, seriously?

A. No, I could not, unless I made the measure-

ments myself. I would think however that it w^ould

be a little further than that, but I may be in error.

Commissioner Gray: Have you anything in that

respect ?

Mr. White: Mr. Woelfert did have such a

measurement made, and if I understood it right, his

statement to me was it was 46 inches.

Commissioner Gray: Do you want to produce

Mr. Woelfert?
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Mr. White : I would be perfectly content to have

Mr. Morgan make the measurement himself, if he

would like to, and submit it in the form of a letter.

Commissioner Gray (To claimant) : How tall

are you, sir?

Claimant : I am about five feet eleven and one-

half inches.

Commissioner Gray (To witness) : Would you

be kind enough to agree to find some man five feet

eleven and one-half inches and have him sit in that

chair, and Mr. White, would you have any objec-

tion ; would you agree to let him take the measure-

ment, and have him sit there and make the measure-

ment from the center, from his head, to the bottom

of the globe, it being understood that the globe will

be similar to the one that was there on December

1st 1943?

Mr. White: I will agree. The reason for that

is {_Q^^ that somewhere in the hospital record the

distance is described as 12 feet, and I think in

another place it is stated as eight or nine feet.

Commissioner Gray: Do you have any objection

to such observations being taken for the record,

Mr. Piatt?

Claimant: None whatever. May I add this:

When I went back in January I measured that

myself, and I had one of those flexible steel rods,

and I got it as good as I could, and one side of the

wall was 11 feet, and I made a measurement of

myself sitting in the chair; at the top of the head.
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I got a net difference of about six feet, the same as

Mr. Morgan, who spoke about the six foot fall.

Conmiissioner Gray: Perhaps it would be well

for Mr. Morgan to do that in Mr. Piatt's office.

Witness: May I go a little further in that, and

certify all of those dimensions'?

Conmiissioner Gray: We will be very glad if

you did. We would like to get at the facts.

Witness: I would like to verify all of these

figures I have given.

Commissioner Gray: For convenience sake, you

can send that to Mr. White, and we will get it.

You have no objection to those figures being en-

tered as exhibits in the case, as an appendix to

the record?

Claimant: None whatever \JoQ'\

Commissioner Gray: And you have no objection?

Mr. White: None.

(Witness excused.)

Commissioner Gray: Is there anything further?

Claimant: There were several items I was going

to have Mrs. Piatt bring out, if she remembered,

and I would like to have you put her back on

the stand.

Commissioner Gray: The witness will take the

chair, and is reminded that she is still under oath.
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recalled as a witness for the claimant, being re-

minded that she was still under oath, testified as

follows

:

Claimant : Freda, I wanted you to bring out the

point about my first visit to the hospital, in De-

cember ; what happened, the reaction when they first

sat me up in the chair?

A. Well, they told me that they thought he

could go home in fourteen days after he arrived

there.

By Commissioner Gray:

Q. Let's get this down to dates and places. What
date was this?

A. It was about nine days after he was in there,

and if he was put in on the 3d of December it would

be about the 12th of December.

Q. About the 12th. And you visited your hus-

band in the hospital at that time, is that true ?

A. Yes.

Q. Was he a bed patient? [67] A. Yes.

Q. And you inquired as to the possibility of his

being returned home? A. Yes.

Q. And then what did they tell you?

A. They said that he could probably go home

on or about the 14th day.

Q. Who made that statement, do you recall?

A. The doctor.

Q. What doctor?

A. Dr. Cloward. And they were figuring on



vs. Marshall and Piatt 69

(Testiniony of Mrs. Freda F. Piatt.)

him getting up on about the lltli day, and then a

couple of days later he could go home with me.

Q. Did they allow him to get up on this par-

ticular day?

A. He sat up on that day, and it gave him a

temperature of 101 and something.

Q. Who recorded that temperature?

A. The nurse. That will probably be in the

record.

Q. Was Dr. Cloward present?

A. Not while it was taken.

Q. But was he present w^hen your husband sat

up in the chair?

A. I don't think so, but it was by his orders, and

he stayed up about five or ten minutes, and started

to get chilled, and they put him back in bed, and

when his temperature rose the doctor said '^no, we

will put you down flat again," and they put him

clear down flat, and kept him there until the 26th.

[68]

Q. Was the doctor called into the room?

A. He went in nearly every day.

Q. We are recording the sequence of events,

and the statement was made he allowed your hus-

band to sit up, after he had been there a certain

number of days, and then he was put back down

in bed. Where was the doctor from the time he

first visited your husband until the day he in-

structed him he should stay down in bed; was he

present in the room?
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A. No, he was not present, but the next day he

called, which might possibly be the next day, and

he gave orders to put him flat.

Q. This later event you just simply heard about;

your husband told you?

A. I went back and he was flat, and I said

^^Why?"

Q. Who did you ask?

A. Well, he was asked, and I asked the nurses

why, and the doctor why, and at that time the

doctor said the blood clot evidently was not eradi-

cated, and they put him dowTi flat for a while

longer.

Q. Will you repeat that statement again.

A. He said it might not have been eradicated,

but ''dissolved," I think, is the word he used; that

the blood clot had not been dissolved.

Q. Who made that remark?

A. Dr. Cloward.

Q. And that was in the presence of yourself

and your husband? [69]

A. Yes. And so they will put him down flat

again, and they started bringing him up after

four or five days, the same as they had before,

and when they sat him up again one day he could

come home, and he stayed a week longer than they

had intended him to in the first place, and they

were figuring on him coming home earlier.

Q. We appreciate your concern, but I am afraid

we will have to bring out the proof on this from
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the hos])ital records and on Dr. Cloward's testi-

mony, otherwise the other interested party conld

ohjeet to it being entered.

A. I was merely trying to bring out the fact

that he was there longer than they expected him

to be.

BvMr. White:

Q. These conversations with the nurses and

with Dr. Cloward, they all concerned the time of

about December 12th and 13th? A. Yes.

Q. This sitting up one day and your finding

him lying back in bed on the following day?

A. Yes, they put him down flat again on the fol-

lowing day.

Q. Yes, and after which you discussed certain

matters with Dr. Cloward?

A. Yes, and they said he could not come home,

and he had to go back to being flat until the blood

clot was dissolved.

Q. Are you certain that Dr. Cloward used the

words ^^ blood clot"?

A. I am practically certain he said that the

blood clot was not dissolved. [70]

Q. Do you know from anything in your con-

versation to what bloodclot he was referring?

A. To some kind of a,—as T understood, some

kind of a blood clot on the inside of his head, that

is caused by practically any hit on the head.

Q. That was your imderstanding from talking

to Dr. Cloward? A. Yes.
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Mr. White: I think that is all.

(Witness excused.)

Commissioner Gray: I think that what Mrs.

Piatt has in mind is this; that even though he

should not be present during Dr. Cloward's testi-

mony, he would like to have him interrogated on

that line.

For the record, the Deputy Commissioner will

state that subject to his limited qualifications he

will attempt to bring out all medical facts perti-

nent to the case, both pro and con, for and against

you, and as I said before, to do so in an effort to

get every fact on which we can consider the case.

Now if you desire that the hearing be held here,

and Dr. Cloward can come here, we will be glad

to have the hearing here, but you have to realize

that these doctors are terribly busy men these days,

and in order to get these cases attended to with

some despatch we have to favor them somewhat;

they are fatigued and tired, and they are doing this

in their off moments, when they are not w^orking.

Now in the event we cannot get Dr. Cloward to

[71] appear at your home, are you willing to

waive your personal appearance at a further hear-

ing, in order that we can record Dr. Cloward's

testimony ?

Claimant : Certainly.

Commissioner Gray: It is your right to agree,

or not to agree.

Claimant : Yes.
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Commissioner Gray: Wliat is your position'?

Claimant: Yes, I will give a waiver.

(At this point an off-the-record discussion

was held by all interested parties.)

Commissioner Gray: (To reporter) Make a

note that the discussion was relative to the general

conduct of the handling of this claim.

Mr. White, do you agree with the Deputy Com-

missioner that the claimant in this case has been

more or less under medical observation for diag-

nostic purposes until the present time?

Mr. White: When Mr. Piatt returned to the

hospital, on February 26th, I think, he was imme-

diately notified both by Mr. Woelfert and also by

the hospital; a representative of the hospital hav-

ing inquired as to whether or not we were to stand

the cost of the hospital confinement, that I agreed

to assume the hospital expenses pending the mak-

ing of a diagnosis or the arrival at a definite con-

clusion as to what relationship the [72] cause for

the second confinement had to the accident of De-

cember the 1st. In that way w^e have paid all the

hospital expenses throughout the second period.

Dr. Cloward has made a fairly definite commitment

with respect to the cause of relationship, which I

have referred to, but I do not think that they are

wholly satisfactory either from our point-of-view

or from, certainly, Mr. Piatt's point-of-view, in

view of the questions he has asked me personally,

and the questions that were put in the record here.

Commissioner Gray: It is your feeling to have
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a further medical examination in view; of probing

into the situation, with a view of determining the

conditions ?

Mr. White: My personal feeling is this, after

having contacted other people in whom I have a

good deal of confidence, that we have not exhausted

all of the avenues of research. For example, I

think one thing that sticks in my mind as a layman

is the fact that no X-ray has ever been made. Dr.

Steward did not take any, and I could not find, in

the hospital charges, w^here the hospital made one.

Claimant: There never was anv taken. Dr.

Cloward said he was going to, but he never did.

Mr. White: The working diagnosis in this case

at present is cerebral thrombosis, which Dr. Clow-

ard, in effect says is the result of high blood pres-

sure, and to some extent arteriosclerosis, and which

he feels has no relationship, either [73] in actual

effect or in time chronology to the accident of De-

cember the 1st. In other words, it is a sort of ac-

cident, or stroke, which a man of Mr. Piatt's age is

exposed to as a natural hazard of life. We cannot

disregard either the immediate effect of the acci-

dent of December the 1st, and the ensuing disability.

Commissioner Gray: Have you paid Mr. Piatt

any compensation yet?

Mr. White: No, and simply for the reason that

I had to inform him, frankly, within a week or so

after he went back to the hospital, that Dr. Cloward

had informed me that he did not see any relation-

ship between the two. On the other hand I did tell

Mrs. Piatt, and I think she in turn told Mr. Piatt
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that wo would mark-time pending the investigation

of the matter. For that reason, I think that we feel

dis])osed to pay compensation from February the

26th until such time as a definite medical conclusion

can be reached.

Commissioner Gray: I believe that the Carrier's

representative's statement in this last respect is

well founded, in view of the presumptions contained

in Clause 20 of the Act, wherein it says that in any

proceedings for enforcement of a claim for compen-

sation under this Act it shall be presumed, in the

absence of substantial evidence to the contrarv,

that the claim comes within the provisions of the act,

and that sufficient notice was given, and so forth.

I think until such [74] time as we do exhaust the

medical possibilities that there is a reasonable in-

ference here that the man is entitled to a replace-

ment of part of his wages in the form of compensa-

tion; the period of disability will be considered

more or less only for diagnostic purposes until we

can get something definite. I think your statement

in that respect is highly laudable, and it certainly

is acceptable to the Commissioner.

Mr. White: I wonder if I could ask Mr. Piatt

one thing?

Commissioner Gray: Yes, certainly.

Mr. White: Q. Mr. Piatt, it is pretty close to

the time of your departure, and I do not know

that we could work out the medical details here

before you leave. In other words, I am no one to

say it can be done in three days or four days. That
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certainly would be a matter for a doctor to deter-

mine, but I am going to suggest to Dr. Cloward that

it certainly would not be amiss to have a further

examination by himself,—I mean by that a defina-

tive examination, in consultation with a physician

who has had no prior contact with your case, and is

not concerned w:ith you personally, nor with the

financial end of the case in any way. If that could

be done here in the Queen's Hospital before you

leave, would you be willing to go back th-ere for the

purpose of that examination?

Claimant : Certainly.

Mr. White : If it, for any reason, cannot be done

here without interrupting or interfering with your

going to the Coast [75] at an early date, would you

have any objection to stopping in, for example, San

Francisco, at our expense, well, for the period of the

examination? As I say, I can approximate but I

cannot guaranty the length of time.

Claimant: How long do you think that would

take, approximately?

Mr. White: I should think if vou went into the
ft/

hospital for two or three days they would certainly

have ample oppoii;unity to investigate all phases of

it.

Commissioner Gray: Providing we got the in-

formation to them as soon as we know he is leav-

ing, so that there will be no undue delay.

Claimant: I think that would be proper. I

would be perfectly willing. I would probably like to

rest a few days there before going north.

Commissioner Gray : If the examination is to be
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had in San Francisco the deputy commissioner will

forward the papers to Warren Pillsbury, who is

located at 417 Market street, and I will suggest to

him that at such examination they ask one of the

analytical consultants of the Public Health to take

part in the examination, in order to expedite mat-

ers and attempt to arrive at a definite finding.

Mr. White: I am perfectly agreeable to paying

compensation from February 26th until such time

as we reach a reasonable medical conclusion, which

can be submitted to the [76] Deputy Commissioner

for decision on the case as a whole, and in that con-

nection, if the examination should be done in San

Francisco, I would consider that Mrs. Piatt, be-

cause she is attending you, would also be there at

our expense in connection with the examination. In

other w^ords, the examination w^on't cause you any

fuiancial loss through the delay there.

Commissioner Gray: For the record purposes,

the Deputy Commissioner approves the action con-

templated by the Insurance Carrier, as to the lia-

bility for compensation involved, as set forth in the

preceding statement of Mr. White's, and if there

is nothing further to be brought forth at this time

we will adjourn until a further hearing to be held

at such time as definite medical evidence is brought

before the Commission.

I wish to officially inform you that your claim,

as the law provides, lives during the period that

you are being paid compensation and for one year

thereafter; without the filing of any formal claim

other than that which you filed. However, if you
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change your address you are requested to notify

both the insurance carrier and the Commissioner,

and it is our recommendation, as you have done here-

tofore, that you cooperate in any steps that may be

taken and assist in straightening out your case.

Jurisdiction will be transferred subsequently to the

appropriate deputy commissioner of the compensa-

tion district nearest to the point where you take up

your residence on the mainland. [77]

Claimant: That will be San Francisco.

Commissioner Gray: We will probably transfer

it to San Francisco, and subsequently to Mr. Mar-

shall in Seattle, if you move to Oregon.

We will adjourn.

(Hearing concluded)

Territory of Hawaii

City & County of Honolulu—ss.

I, R. N. Linn, an official shorthand reporter of

the First Circuit Court of the City and County of

Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii, Do Hereby Certify,

that the above and foregoing transcript, pages 1 to

66, inclusive, is a full, true and correct transcript

of my shorthand notes taken in the within entitled

matter, at the time and place aforesaid.

Dated: Honolulu, T. H., this 11th day of June

1943.

Official Circuit Court

Reporter.

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov. 30, 1944, San Fran

Cisco. [78]
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Howard C. Naefziger, M.D.

O. W. Jones, Jr., M.D.

Howard A. Brown, M.D.

384 Post Street

San Francisco, U.S.A.

June 23rd, 1943

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company,

Central Tower,

San Francisco, California.

Attention of Mr. Chandler.

Re: Mr. John Piatt.

Dear Mr. Chandler:

The above patient was hospitalized at the Frank-

lin Hospital for observation and study. This pa-

tient is 55 years of age, married, and has been

occupied as a civil engineer.

The patient states that he was quite well, although

he was working very hard, until December 1st, 1942.

At that time, a heavy glass chandelier fell and

struck him on the vertex of the head. He was sit-

ting in a chair at the time and was thrown for-

ward but was not rendered unconscious. He felt

somewhat dazed and sustained a slight scalp lacera-

tion. Following this, he had a headache which was

troublesome. The patient was put to bed for about

twenty-four hours, after which he attempted to re-

sume work. At that time, he felt difficulty in con-

centrating, was somewhat nauseated^ and com-

plained of dizziness.

He was then seen by Dr. Ralph Cloward, of
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Honolulu, wlio hospitalized the patient at that

time. On the day of his admission, it was reported

to him that his blood-pressure was 240/100. The

patient states that that w^as the first time he had

any knowledge of an increase in blood-pressure. He
stated that Dr. Bulman, of Santa Rosa, had cared

for him wdth a lobar pneumonia in 1937, and had

told him at that time that his health was good. He
states that in 1929 he passed a life insurance ex-

amination without difficulty. As far as could be

determined, he had no definite knowledge of this

hypertension prior to the above date.

He was hospitalized for about three weeks, fol-

lowing which he was sent home to bed for a week.

During that interval, his blood pressure ranged

from 170-190 systolic, according to his statement.

He then returned to his work, and was feeling fairly

well except for continual headaches, which per-

sisted intermittently, and gave him a sensation of

a constricting band over the top of his head to a

point between the ears.

On the morning of February 26th, 1943, while

shaving, he states, his legs buckled and he fell to

the floor. He did not lose consciousness, but was

imable to move the left arm and leg and face. His

tongue was thick and his speech was very difficult.

He states [128] that at that time he had an abso

lutely complete paralysis, and was unable to move

the arm and leg in any way. He was immediately

hospitalized under the care of Dr. Cloward, and at

that time his blood-pressure was said to have been

200. Prior to this episode, the patient had noted no
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difficulty in tlio use of his arms and legs. There

has been a gradual improvement, particularly in

the leg, since that time, but the arm has been very

slow. He has received physiotherapy and has just

now returned to the mainland. He plans to return

to his home in Oregon for further convalescence.

In addition to the motor disturbance, there has

been some sensory change and numbness, particu-

larly noticeable in the left forearm and hand.

The patient further comments on the fact that

he has been under terrific strain for the last three-

and-a-half years. Since January, 1940, he has been

under contract with the Navy, living and working

in Honolulu as a civil engineer, and had directed

numerous construction projects, which had de-

manded a great deal, both mentally and physically,

according to his statements.

The patient recalls one other fact, and that is

that three our four days before his paralysis ap-

peared, he had had a ^^few transient spasms" in the

left arm, hand and leg, as if the muscles would

tighten up momentarily.

Family history: his mother is alive at 81. His

father died at 84. No other familial illnesses.

Past History: the patient apparently had con-

vulsions of undetermined origin when he was an

infant. No recurrence subsequently. He had the

usual childhood illnesses. Gc. in 1907. Pneumonia

in 1937. Accidents: he had a multiple fracture of

his left arm and forearm in 1899, but made a good

recovery. He received a blow to the left elbow

in June, 1942, and some numbness of the hand fol-
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lowed that, but it cleared completely. Operations

:

appendectomy in 1909. Sinuses opened in 1917.

Systems: essentially negative.

Weight: average 190-200 lbs. at present about

186 lbs.

Examination: the j^atient is rather a large,

moderately obese man, who seems oriented and

rational. He is quite talkative, particularly with

regard to his illness.

Head: negative to auscultation, palpation and

percussion.

His general physical examination will be covered

by Dr. Ernest Falconer, who is examining him at

this time. His blood-pressure now is recorded as

188/88. [129]

I. Cranial nerve examination: Subjectively

negative.

II. Visual fields and acuity roughly within nor-

mal limits. The fundi showed disc margins which

were fairly well outlined. There was no evidence

of increased pressure. The vessels showed some

definite sclerotic changes.

III. IV & VI. Pupils and reactions normal.

No extraocular palsies. No ptosis.

V. Motor and sensory negative.

VII. The patient has slight weakness of the left

face, of the central type. Subjectively, taste is not

disturbed.

VIII. Vestibular and auditory negative.

IX. X, XI & XII. Negative.

Gei'ebral lobe test: as noted, the patient shows
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no disorientation at the present time. He lias very

little in the way of residual headache at present.

Motor power: the patient has a marked paralysis

of the left ai*m, with very little motion, except in

the shoulder girdle, where there is slight motion.

He has no real ability to move the forearm or hand.

The kft leg functions fairly w^ell, and he is able

to get about although with some difficulty.

Sensory examination shows some hypesthesia

over the left side of the body, most marked in the

arm.

The reflexes are all quite hyperactive, the left

side greater than the right. No pathological re-

flexes or cloans at this time.

There is a good deal of spasticity and joint

stiffness, and it is impossible to move the fingers

or wrist on the left side, very much, because of

these factors, plus the pain associated with them.

X-rays of the skull show no sign of any frac-

ture or other pathological change.

The urine shows a slight trace of albumen.

The blood count is within normal limits.

I have reviewed the file submitted, including the

reports from Honolulu and the hospital records in

this case. I have also discussed the matter at some

length with Dr. Falconer, who has examined him

from the medical standpoint. [130]

Discussion: this patient originally sustained a

blow to the head without loss of consciousness, but

with slight laceration of the scalp. He showed no

evidence of any brain injury, according to Dr. Clo-
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ward's report. There was no evidence of a frac-

ture of the skull.

Following that, the patient had some head dis-

comfort, which would not be unusual, considering

his hypertension. However, he reached a point

where he was able to return to work, and it was

almost three months after the original blow to

the head that the patient developed evidence of a

definite cerebral vascular accident. I would agree

with the previous examining physician that this

represented a cerebral thrombosis secondary to his

vascular disease and hypertension.

Considering the length of time that elapsed, fol-

lowing the blow to the head, i3lus the fact that

this was a slight injury without evidence of any

brain damage, I do not feel that there is any con-

nection between the cerebral vascular accident oc-

curring in February, 1943, and the head blow of

December, 1942.

The patient very definitely shows the hyperten-

sion and vascular changes which are a causative

factor in the cerebral thrombosis, and, in my opin-

ion, this condition would have occurred regardless

of whether the patient had a blow to the head in

December or not.

Very truly yours,

HOWARD A. BROWN, M.D.

HAB/FM [131]
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Howard C. Naeffziger, M.D.

Raymond J. Meitzel, M.D.

384 Post Street

San Francisco

Douglas 3266

June 23, 1943

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company

Central Tower

San Francisco, California

Attention: Mr. Chandler

Re: Mr. John Piatt

Dear Mr. Chandler:

The above patient was seen on June 23, 1943 at

the Franklin Hospital in consultation with Dr.

Howard Brown. Following is the report of my
examination.

Family Histoiy: Mother alive and w^ll at 80.

Father died at 84. One brother died after ab-

dominal operation. One sister died after append-

ectomy. One brother alive and well. No asthma,

pulmonary tuberculosis, cardiac, renal diabetes,

epilepsy or pernicious anemia in family history.

Past History: Bom in Minnesota 1880. Had
severe convulsions in infancy. Had usual child-

hood diseases, all mild.

Venereal Diseases: Neisser in 1907, treated by

an M. D., no sequelae.

Operations: Appendix removed in 1909. In

1917 sinuses operated on, sphenoids and ethmoids?

In 1937 patient had *^ double pneumonia" at Santa

Rosa, was under care of Dr. Bowman.
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Accidents: In 1899 had multiple fractures left

arm and forearm, elbow joint badly smashed, left

arm never regained complete strength. Left elbow

injured again in 1942, numbness for one we-ek.

Habits: Usual weight 190-200 lbs., present

weight 186. Coffee Ix; tea Ix; drinks alcoholic

liquors moderately; smokes 6-8 cigarettes, 1-2

cigars daily. Appetite good. Sleep fair. Nycturia

Ix; bowels constipated. Has frequent *' colds" usu-

ally in head. All teeth removed in 1932.

Complaints: 1. Paralysis, left arm. 2. Head-

ache. 3. Nmnbness, left forearm and hand, four

months' duration.

Historv of Present Illness: Patient states he

was well up until December 1, 1942. He was em-

ployed as an engineer in the Hawaiian Islands at

this time, and, on that date as he was sitting at his

desk, a glass chandelier above him fell and struck

him over the vertex of the head. States he was

not knocked out but was dazed. Received a scalp

wound. Was put to bed for twenty-four hours

after which he attempted to return to work. He
was unable to concentrate and felt nauseated, also

dizzy. Was referred to Dr. R. B. Cloward, a [132]

neurological surgeon, who hospitalized patient on

December 3, 1942, at Queens Hospital. Patient

states that on the day of entering hospital his blood

pressure was 240/110. He states this is the first

time he knew he had a hypertension. Dr. Bow-

man, who looked after patient at Santa Rosa when

he had pneumonia in 1937, told him at that time
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after recovery from the pneumonia that his general

healtli was excellent. (This is patient's version.)

He remained in the hospital for three weeks,

then returned home, remaining in bed for one week.

During this time his blood pressure ranged fi'om

170 to 190 systolic. Patient resumed work after

one week at home and states he felt well except

for headaches. On February 26, 1943 while shav-

ing in his bath room, at home, his legs ''buckled"

under him and he sank to the floor. He did not

lose consciousness but could not move left arm and

leg. He was immediately hospitalized again at

Que-ens Hospital, Honolulu under Dr. R. B. Clo-

ward. Blood pressure on admission, he states, was

200. Since February he has received physiotherapy

and there has been a gradual return of motor power

in left arm and leg, the latter returning first.

When patient was confined to the Queens Hos-

pital, Honolulu, after his left hemiplegia, the case

record from this hospital shows that he had a left

facial paralysis, thick speech, paralysis of left arm,

paresis of left leg. Babinski on the left. On Feb-

ruary 27, 1943, there was some movement of left

arm, and left leg was stronger.

During the first three weeks of his hospitalization

he ran a low grade fever reaching as high at 100

F.° at times. He was discharged on March 27,

1943. The urine examination, February 27, 1943,

showed a ti'ace of albumin, 8-10 white blood cells

and 8-10 red blood cells. The blood count, Febru-

ary 27, 1943, was Hemoglobin 101.3%, red blood

cells 4,980,000, white blood cells 8,100, neutrophils
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71%, l>Tiiphocytes 28%, monocytes 1%. Dr. Clo-

ward's diagnosis on the hospital record was: ** Ce-

rebral arteriosclerosis with small thrombosis an-

terior limb of right internal capsule, involving the

anterior lateral nucleus of the thalamus."

Physical Examination: Patient is lying com-

fortably in bed. He appears somewhat overweight

and obese. Face somewhat pale and cyanotic ap-

pearing. Hair is brown, oily, medium coarse tex-

ture. Scalp shows seborrhoea. Small suiDcrficial

scar over upper frontal region behind hair line.

Skull shows no depressions or tender areas. Eye-

brows heavy.

Eyes : There are no ocular muscle palsies. Lower

lids show bilateral conjunctivitis. Pupils somewhat

irregular in outline, react to light and distance.

Ears: Slight bilateral diminution of hearing.

Nose: Left passage enlarged by previous nasal

(septum and turbinate) operation. The mucous

membranes of both nasal passages are congested.

Mouth : Lips are cyanotic. Teeth are out in

upper and lower jaws, replaced by plates. Tongue

is pale, flabby, coated. Tonsil stumps are ragged.

Glandular System: No enlarged nodes made out.

The thyroid gland is palpable, the lobes are soft,

elastic, no adenomatous nodules felt. [133]

Vessels: The superficial arteries are palpable,

somewhat thickened. Radial pulses are equal, syn-

chronous. Blood pressure 190/122.

Heart: The borders of cardiac dullness are

slightly increased to the left on percussion. The

P.M.I, is not seen but is felt in the 5th and 6th
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interspaces 12.5 cm. from the M.S.L. Over the

lower precordium the heart sounds are well heard.

The first sound is accentuated. At the base A2 is

high pitched and acc-entuated. No murmurs heard

at the base.

Chest: Well developed, well clothed. Emphy-

sematous in type. On percussion the chest is reso-

nant throughout. The breath sounds are rough-

ened over the scapular areas. On coughing and

deep breathing no rales or crepitations are made

out.

Abdomen: Prominent. Liver edge is palpable

at the costal border upper right quadrant. The

edge of the liver is slightly tender on palpation.

The sigmoid portion of the colon is tender. The

abdomen is distended. Spleen and kidneys not

felt. No masses. No shifting dullness in flanks.

Extremities: The left elbow joint is deformed

from a former accident and operation. There is a

scar over the dorsum of the left wrist. Lower ex-

tremities show slight edema.

Reflexes: The left facial paralysis has disap-

peared. Left side of face moves well. The left

arm has very little power of movement. He can-

not move forearm or hand. The left leg can be

moved but is spastic. The deep reflexes ai*e hyper-

active, greater on the left than right.

Discussion and Opinion:

This patient sustained a moderately severe head

injury on December 1, 1942. There was no loss

of consciousness, no skull fracture, no evidence of
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any brain injury. He had rather protracted symp-

toms after the head injury due to his age and the

fact that he has cerebral arteriosclerosis and hy-

pertension.

Patient returned to his work, and, almost three

months after his head injury, he suffered a throm-

bosis of a cerebral vessel, diminishing the blood

supply to certain centers in the brain that control

the muscular movements of face, arm and leg on

the left side of the body. Cerebral thrombosis

means that a clot forms inside a cerebral vessel. I

do not see any possible connection between the

formation of this clot inside a cerebral vessel and

his head injury nearly three months before.

He has evidence of arteriosclerosis in the fundi

of the eyes, also in the kidneys as his urine shows

constantly a small trace of albumin.

On account of his hypertension his future is un-

certain and he will be a candidate for future

trouble of the type he is now suffering.

ERNEST H. FALCONER, M.D.

EHP:rfm [134]

I
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[Title of Commission and Cause.]

COMPENSATION ORDER
AWARD OF COMPENSATION

A claim for compensation having been filed in

the Pacific District and a hearing having been held

in Honolulu, Territory of Hawaii, before Deputy

Commissioner Gray, and the matter having been

transferred to this, the Fourteenth Compensation

District, by authority of the Commission for such

further action as might be indicated, and such

further investigation having been made as is con-

sidered necessary and no additional hearing having

been requested by the parties,

The Deputy Commissioner makes the following

FINDINGS OF FACT:

That on the 1st day of December, 1942, the claim-

ant above named w^as in the employ of the employer

above named at a place within the Pacific District,

established under the provisions of the Longshore-

men's and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act,

as extended by the Act of August 16, 1941, as

amended (42 U.S.C., Sec. 1651), to employees of

contractors with the United States, and others,

employed outside of the United States, and that

the liability of the employer for compensation un-

der said Act was insured by the Liberty Mutual

Insurance Company;

That on said day claimant herein while perfoi-m-

ing services for the employer sustained personal

injury resulting in his disability while employed
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as a procurement agent ; that while so employed

and working at his desk an electric light reflector

shade fell and struck the claimant's head, causing

injury and resulting in his disability;

That the employer had knowledge of the said

injury
; [136]

That the employer furnished claimant with med-

ical treatment, etc. in accordance with section 7 (a)

of said Act;

That the average annual earnings of the claim-

ant at the time of said injury were in excess of

the maximum provided by the Act;

That as a result of the said injury the claimant

was wholly disabled from December 1, 1942, to

and including January 10, 1943, and from Febru-

ary 26, 1943, to and including November 18, 1943,

and he is entitled to 43 6/7 weeks' compensation at

$25.00 per week for such disability or $1,096.43;

that on November 19, 1943 the total disability of

the claimant resulting from the said injury con-

tinued
;

That the employer and insurance carrier have

paid to the claimant $546.43 as compensation;

Upon the foregoing facts the Deputy Commis-

sioner makes the following

AWARD

:

That the employer. Contractors, Pacific Naval

Air Bases, and the insurance carrier, Liberty Mu-

tual Insurance Company, shall pay to the claim-

ant compensation as follows: $1,096.43, covering

1
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to and including November 18, 1943; that the em-

ployer and insurance carrier shall have credit on

this award for $546.43; that subsequent to Novem-

ber 18, 1943 the employer and insurance carrier

shall pay compensation to the claimant bi-weekly

at the rate of $25.00 per week during the continu-

ance of the said disability; that the total com-

pensation payable under this award shall in no

event exceed $7,500.00.

Given under my hand at Seattle, Washington,

this 29th day of November, 1943.

WM. A. MARSHALL
Deputy Commissioner, Four-

teenth Compensation Dis-

trict. [137]

PROOF OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing

compensation order was sent by registered mail to

the claimant, the employer and th-e insurance car-

rier at the last known address of each as follow^s:

Mr. John D. Piatt, 176 Lincoln St., Ashland, Ore.

Contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases, P.O. Box

857, Oakland 4, Calif.

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, 703 Market

St., San Francisco, Calif.

C. F. White, Atty. at law, Honolulu, Territory

of Haw^aii.

John C. Gray, Deputy Commissioner, U. S. Em-
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ployees' Compensation Commission, 407 Hawaiian

Trust Bldg., Honolulu, T. H.

WM. A. MARSHALL
Deputy Commissioner.

Mailed November 29, 1943. [138]

CERTIFICATION OF RECORD
Re: Liberty Mutual Insurance Co. vs. Marshall

and John B. Piatt, Cause No. 851.

This is to certify that the following are a por-

tion of the record in the above case:

Transcript of record of a continued hearing held

before Deputy Commissioner Gray at Honolulu on

June 30, 1944, consisting of 28 pages.

Insurance Carrier's Exhibit A, Parts 1 and 2,

being photostatic copies of hospital records in

this case.

WILLIAM A. MARSHALL
Deputy Commissioner 14th

Compensation District

Seattle, Washington, August 30, 1944.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sep. 6, 1944. [139]

[Title of Commission and Cause.]

TRANSCRIPT OF TESTIMONY

Before John C. Gray, Deputy Commissioner, Pa-

cific District.

Pursuant to oral stipulation, the above entitled

matter came on for an adjourned hearing before
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John C. Gray, deputy commissioner, United States

Employees' Compensation Commission, at Honolulu,

T. H., on the 30th day of June, 1943, at 2 p.m.

Appearances

:

C. F. White, Resident Manager, Liberty Mu-

tual Insurance Company, on behalf of the

respondents.

Reported by: Carey S. Cowart, Certified Short-

hand Reporter, Honolulu, Hawaii. [141]

Comm. Gray: This is an adjourned hearing in

the case of John Piatt, agreed to by stipulation of

the claimant and of the employer and carrier, under

public law 208, with respect to certain reports per-

taining to the medical attention given by Dr. Clo-

ward. Personal appearance having been waived by

the claimant, proceedings came under the purview

of public law 208.

Are you ready, Mr. White?

Mr. White: Yes, sir.

Comm. Gray: Dr. Cloward, will you be kind

enough to state your name and address to the re-

porter for the purpose of the record?

Dr. Cloward: Ralph B. Cloward, 388 Young

Hotel, Honolulu.

Comm. Gray: Will you kindly rise and be sworn?

RALPH B. CLOWARD, MD,

being first duly sworn, testified as follows

:

Comm. Gray: Do you want to qualify the doctor?

Mr. White: Yes.



96 Contractors, Pacific Air Bases, et al,

(Testimony of Ralph B. Cloward, M.D.)

Comm. Gray: I think it may be well imder

the circumstances.

Mr. White: I was going to ask Dr. Cloward, in

view^ of the absence of the claimant, and patient, if

he would be so kind as to state his qualifications of

the record. That is, as to your formal education.

A. Doctor of medicine, graduate of Rush Medi-

cal College [142] in 1934, with five years post-

graduate training in my speciality.

Q. (By Comm. Gray) Which is what. Doctor?

A. Neurology and neuro-surgery.

Q. (By Mr. White) Are you a duly licensed

practitioner in the Territory of Hawaii?

A. Licensed by the Territory of Hawaii Oc-

tober, 1938.

Q. Dr. Cloward, will you state whether or not

you have ever attended Mr. John B. Piatt.

A. Yes, I have.

Q. Can you state the approximate date and the

purpose for which you w^ere called ?

A. I have more or less attended Mr. Piatt since

the first week in December, 1942. December 3, 1942.

This is the hospital record. And my last connection

with him was—Do you know when he was dis-

charged from the hospital, his date of discharge?

Q. I believe the record indicates Mr. Piatt was

last discharged from the hospital on May 5, 1943.

A. May 5. I haven't examined him since his

discharge from the hospital.

Q. Dr. Cloward, will you state for what injury

or purpose you were first called to attend him?
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(Testimony of Ralph B. Cloward, M.D.)

A. I first saw the patient

Mr. White. Pardon me. Mr. Gray, will there

be any objection to Dr. Cloward refreshing his

memory from his own written notes ? [143]

Comm. Gray: Not a bit. We have a copy of

them. I can get them from the record here, Mr.

White, if it is all right. Will you furnish a copy

of your reports submitted by Dr. Cloward to the

Commission in order that they may be forwarded

with the record?

Mr. White: Yes, sir.

A. I first saw the man about an hour after his

admission to Queen's Hospital on December 3, 1942.

Q. (By Comm. Gray) You are now referring

to the Queen's Hospital reports, are you, Dr.

Cloward? A. Yes.

Comm. Gray: Which previously have been in-

spected.

A. There is no record of my having visited him

in this record, but I recall of having examined him

about an hour after he was admitted to the hospital.

Q. (By Comm. Gray) The records you are now

looking at are records that have been subpoenaed

from the Queen's Hospital?

A. I referred to them as the date on which I

saw him.

Q. (By Mr. White) Doctor, this is purportedly

a copy of the record from which this copy was also

made. A. Yes.

Q. It may be a little more convenient for you

to have before you. Will you state what his physical
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(Testimony of Ralph B. Cloward, M.D.)

condition was at the time you first saw him, what

you treated him for ?

A. On the first examination the patient was

perfectly [144] conscious. He was in an extremely

nervous state, trembling, perspiring profusely, and

when attempting to talk his voice quivered. And he

gave me a history that he has been sitting at his

desk when a large chandelier came loose from the

ceiling and had fallen, he said, approximately eight

to twelve feet, and striking him on top of his head,

and the chandelier bursting into a million pieces.

Q. The description of the fallen object as a

chandelier was given to you by the patient?

A. Yes. That is what he told me at that time.

Q. I understand you to say that he also gave

you the history that it had fallen a distance of

—

how far ?

A. Well, he told me it was approximately eight

to ten feet.

Q. Eight to ten feet?

A. As far as he could ascertain.

Q. What evidence of injury did you find, if

any. Doctor?

A. On his examination, the most striking thing

about his examination was that of extremely high

blood pressure, which as I recall was somewhere

around 240 or 230 over 140. That initial blood pres-

sure we felt was probably due to primary hyper-

tension that the patient had prior to his injury,

although we attributed some of it to the extreme
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(Testimony of Kalph B. Cloward, M.D.)

nervous state that he was in on his admission to the

hospital.

Examining his head, there was no very extensive

wound [145] about his head that would look as

though he had been strucd^: by any heavy object.

There was no large bump, swelling or bruise or

contusion that I could find. The following day, how-

ever, there was a small crust found in his scalp

from a scratch which he may have got from a cut

from glass.

The remainder of his examination was entirely

negative, and purely from the story and not the

examination of his nervous system we made a ten-

tative diagnosis of concussion of the brain.

Q. You say that was purely from his story,

rather than any objective findings?

A. Yes. Diagnosis of concussion very frequently

has to be made purely on history rather than find-

ings, because if a concussion of the brain is not se-

vere enough to render a patient unconscious it is

usually not severe enough to bring about any other

change in the brain that we can demonstrate by our

neuro-logical examination.

Q. Doctor, I understand you have to make an

examination, however, to determine whether or not

there were any objective rather than symptomatic

evidences of a concussion?

A. Yes. That is routine procedure in all my
head injuries. I go over them carefully from a

neurological standpoint to determine what the status

of their intercranial damage is, and if we find noth-
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(Testimony of Ralph B. Cloward, M.D.)

ing in that examination then our diagnosis is made

purely on history. If the patient has been struck

and has been dazed for a few minutes and come

out of it and has a headache [146] that is sufficient

to make a diagnosis of mild concussion of the brain

without clinical findings on examination.

Q. Doctor, will you explain for the record what

is meant by a blood pressure of 230 over 140?

A. Well, that blood pressure in any individual

would be called a primary hypertension. By that

we mean that certain changes have to take place in

an individual's arteries to bring about changes in

the pressure of the blood. That is the force with

which the heart beats. We measure blood pressure

by the systolic and diastolic measurements, the sys-

tolic being the first number, and in this instance

was 230. Now an elevation m the systolic pressure

can be brought about by emotional changes in the

individual, fear, anger, and extreme apprehension,

and all elevate the systolic pressure. The diastolic

pressure, on the other hand, or the second figure,

which on admission was aromid 130, which normal Iv

is between 80 and 100, this pressure is usually de-

pendent on the condition of the peripheral arteries,

that is the arteries in the body. Those arteries are

normally small and the heart has to ]}ush harder

to get the blood through the small arteries, and that

causes a rise in the diastolic pressure.

Q. Dr. Cloward, assume that Mr. Piatt's ap-

proximate age is 54 to 55 years ; on the basis of his
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blood pressure on admission to the hospital on De-

cember 3 was his diastolic pressure abnormal ?

A. Yes, his diastolic was definitely abnormal,

that of [147] 130, whereas the normal diastolic in

such an individual would be 80, 90, to 100.

Q. I believe your reference to the record a few

months ago indicated diastolic pressure of 140,

rather than 130. Is there enough difference

A. Yes, the diastolic was 140.

Q. On the rule of thumb it should have been

approximately 150 to 155?

A. That is the diastolic. The diastolic is 130.

That is the second figure. The systolic was 240. I

should say the systolic was 230.

Q. (By Comm. Gray) Above the average, is it.

Doctor?

A. The normal blood pressure will run 120/80.

That is supposed to be considered normal.

Q. Approximately 120 plus his age?

A. They say 100 plus his age. If a man is 54

and he has a blood pressure of 154, that is about

normal.

Q. You allow 10 to 15 percent for emotional dis-

turbance or climbing up stairs?

A. It depends entirely on the individual, Mr.

Gray. The fluctuation of different individuals'

blood pressure varies according to their emotional

stability. Some individuals may be extremely emo-

tional and a sudden upset in their emotions may
shift their blood pressure 50 or 60 points.

Q. Take the average individual coming into see

a doctor. [148] A. Yes.



102 Contractors, Pacific Air Bases, et al,

(Testimony of Ralph B. Cloward, M.D.)

Q. Reducing it down to a quotient, that normal

person, ten or fifteen points

A. Ten or fifteen points, such a normal person,

if you put them down on their back and let them

rest and relax for ten or fifteen minutes, that ten

or fifteen points will drop down to pretty near

normal.

Q. (By Mr. White) Dr. Cloward, did Mr.

Piatt's blood pressure become normal or anywhere

near normal? A. Yes, it did.

Q. Subsequent to the date of his admission ?

A. After his admission—I don't see any record

of his blood pressure one week after his admission.

But ten days or so after he was admitted the nurse

reports a blood pressure of 143/80, 160/100, and

those pressures

Q. (By Comm. Gray) Will you try to answer

the question, please?

A. Those blood pressure could be expected in

a person with a primary hypertension after being

flat on his back in bed for a period of a week or

ten days.

Q. During the period that he was on his back

ten days or twelve days. Dr. Cloward, was he ad-

ministered certain sedatives? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And other treatment that might tend to re-

duce the [149] blood pressure to normal?

A. Rest and inactivity are much more important

factors in reducing the pressure than drugs or medi-

cines. And keeping him flat on his back and giving

him a sedative to sleep well at night, and relieving
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j)ain, if any, was all that was done for him and his

blood pressure came down to this level. Of course

we know external environmental conditions that

would change the emotional or let the emotional

factor interfere with his blood pressure.

Comm. Gray: Mr. White, do you object if I

ask another question, with intent to bring out the

facts?

Mr. White: I would like to finish my direct ex-

amination.

Comm. Gray: Go right ahead. I hope you can

shorten this because the Doctor, I know, is a very

busy man.

A. That is all right. Take all the time you need.

I have my case scheduled for four o'clock.

Q. (By Mr. White) Doctor, I notice that on the

first few days of treatment in the hospital Mr. Piatt

was apparently administered membutal.

A. Yes.

Q. What was the purpose of that medication?

A. The membutal is usually administered chiefly

for sleep, and with patients as extremely nervous

and apprehensive as Mr. Piatt w^as on his admission

to the hospital initial orders [150] on the date of

admission included one capsule of membutal to be

given at night for sleep and repeated once if neces-

sary, that is, if he couldn't sleep.

Q. The intention of that drug was simply to

put the j)atient at ease so that he could get his rest ?

A. Yes, and sleep at night.

Comm. Gray: Incidentally, are we talking about

the first visit of Mr. Piatt?
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Mr. White: This is all at the first visit in De-

cember.

Comm. Gray: Let it be understood we are now

discussing the first visit of the patient to the hos-

pital under the attention of Dr. Cloward.

Q. (By Mr. White) Incidentally, Dr. Cloward,

how long w^as the patient in the hospital on the

occasion of his first period of hospitalization?

A. From December 3 to December 24; that is 21

days or 3 weeks.

Q. After his admission to the hospital did any

abnormal development occur?

A. No, nothing whatsoever. As I recall, he

complained of mild headache for the first few days,

after which his symptoms disappeared. He still

showed signs of apprehension and nervousness, but

if I recall right at the end of a week or ten days

he was quite anxious to go home. [151]

Q. Was there at any time an elevation in his

temperature such as to produce unusual complaint?

A. For the first two weeks.

Q. (By Comm. Gray) What was the reason

that he was discharged by ambulance. Doctor, when

he left the hospital the first time?

A. Was he? I didn't recall, Mr. Gray, that he

was discharged by ambulance.

Q. That is what the record shows.

A. Oh, yes. That is right. '^Home by ambu-

lance.'' I don't remember specifically. It was not

on my order. It was probably on the patient's

request.
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Q. Ill the face of his being discharged by ambu-

lance would you consider that he had fully recov-

ered from the effect of his claimed injury?

A. Well, we very frequently send patients home

by ambulance that are completely well, if they have

no other means of transportation.

Q. In other words, is that a matter of meeting

the whims of the patient?

A. That is right. It wasn't that I felt his con-

dition was such that he had to go home by ambu-

lance. As a matter of fact, I was ready to discharge

him at the end of the two weeks period and we
kept him in the hospital an additional week at his

request. I think we let him sit up about the twelfth

or thir- [152] teenth day after his admission, and

then he developed an infection in one of his fingers

and ran a little fever with this infection.

Q. Was it the finger or the back, Doctor?

Didn't you take a biopcy, a little speciman from his

back ?

A. Yes. He had a little skin tag on his back

and he asked me if I would clip it off for him, and

I cli])ped that off one day. He had an infection in

his finger, which I thought perhaps was the cause

of this elevation in temperature and we had that

finger wrapped up and dressed with some alcohol

and glycerin, I think, something of the sort, on the

thirteenth.

Q. Would you consider that a side issue, more

or less coincidental to the treatment of any patient

that might be worrying about a lot of trouble?
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A. Yes, but the generalized influence that this

minor infection and rise in temperature had on the

man was all out of proportion to the seriousness of

the condition, which we passed off as being due to

the man's particular personality. That is, he got

this little rise in temperature, he became chilly and

perspiring, and then along with it he became ex-

tremely nervous, shaky and jittery, and he couldn't

stand to have anybody touch him and he hollered

and yelled at the nurses and carried on like that

for two or three days.

Q. Did he actually have a cerebral episode, prob-

ably due to this thing hitting him on the head?

A" At this time, do you mean? [153]

Q. Had he had a condition, drawing it along

towards a cerebral episode, do you think that this

chandelier falling on his head might have accele-

rated or brought it forward more quickly than

otherwise might have happened, the fact that he

had the blow on his head?

A. We couldn't have determined that during his

first stay in the hospital. In view of his subsequent

history there was nothing in his first admission to

the hospital, either in his examination, his clinical

course, that would lead us to believe that anything

was going to happen in the future as it did.

Q. How about the second one?

A. That is an altogether different story.

Q. He was brought back into the hospital a

second time ?

A. •' Some months later, yes.
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Q. Did youv observation of him on the second

visit tend you to form perhaps a more broader

opinion after observation of him, a different opinion

than that which you had formed on his first ad-

mission '^

A. In reference to the severity of the injury to

his head?

Q. I say the casual lelationship, that existing

condition, and the history of accident as it had been

brought out.

A. No, it didn't cause me to change my impres-

sion at all. As a matter of fact, when I first ex-

amined him on his first admission and recognizing

the nature of the changes in his brain that had

brought about this condition, it didn't once enter

my mind that this injury he had had several months

previously might [154] have contributed to it, at

the time, until some weeks later^ when the patient

himself brought up to me the fact that he thought

the scratch on his head had made him paralyzed.

Q. What do you mean by the examination of his

brain, Doctor?
,

A. As I stated, on first admission any patient

who has had any trouble with his head, we do what

we call a neurological examination. That is an ex-

amination to determine the function of the differ-

ent parts of the brain and all the nerves in the

body, to see if any of them are not functioning

properly, or if all of them are functioning noi'mally.

And in such an examination we can determine that

the part of the nervous system that has ceased to
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function or that the function has altered, and in

this particular patient we were faced at first with

a partial weakness or paralysis of his left side.

Q. (By Mr. White) Doctor, what period of

hospitalization are you referring to?

A. This is No. 2 that he asked me about.

Q. No. 2

A. Yes, sir. At this time the patient was ad-

mitted on the 26th of February.

Q. On the date of his first admission were there

any neurological signs'?

A. None, as I said. I think none whatsoever,

and on his discharge from the hospital there was

none, on the 24th of December. [155]

Q. (By Comm. Gray) Pardon me just a mo-

ment. Dr. Cloward, what caused you to make the

neurological examination then on the second admis-

sion if you found that on his admission results were

entirely negative?

A. I don't get your question, Mr. Gray.

Q. What I am trying to get at is this.

A. We examine all these patients.

Q. Here we have a man, according to the evi-

dence that is in the record, and I think Mr. White

will agree with me, we will leave the distance out,

that the globe fell and struck him on the head and

shortly thereafter he became disabled; he entered

your hospital, he was in there for a certain length

of time and then was discharged; he held several

conferences with some difficulty, as the record will
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show, consulting with these people and trying* to

straighten out his work, and then re-entered your

hospital. Now, all I am interested in is simply this.

A workman has an object strike him on the head;

apparently he has some indefinite, indisc-ernible con-

dition existing; we have a record that prior to the

time that the globe fell on him that he was one of

these individuals who worked hard, long hours, giv-

ing the best that he had to the job; following this

he became pau, finished, he was unable to w^ork.

All I am trying to do is to find out whether or not

medically there was any causal relationship between

the condition that followed after this blow and the

underlying pre-existing condition. Frankly, that is

my position.

Mr. White: I think Dr. Cloward answered that

a few [156] minutes ago when he said that on the

occasion of Mr. Piatt's second admission to the hos-

pital his condition was different.

Comm. Gray: Unfortunately, Dr. Cloward was

not in a position to either see or know of the char-

acteristics of the individual prior to the time he was

injured. He is simply going on his medical observa-

tion of the man, which is perfectly all right. We
want the medical opinion.

The Witness: And the story that the patient

gave me.

Comm. Gray: He observed him twice. All we

are anxious to do is to obtain Dr. Cloward 's testi-

mony as an expert as to the possible causal relation,

where a man had been working and demonstrated an
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ability to work prior to this accident, and what

hapi')ened to him afterwards.

A. Anyone who se^s a person once or twice a

day for a period of five or six months can get a

pretty broad im2)ression of the individual's person-

ality or characteristics.

Comm. Gray: We admit that.

A. Other than just the medical position. And I

very soon formed an opinion of Mr. Piatt's per-

sonality. I could see that he was what the psy-

chiatrists term manic depressive. These individuals

have definite swings in their mood. At one time

they will have tremendous drive, a tremendous

amount of force to go ahead and do their job, and

something happens to them and the next minute they

are clear down in the depths of depression and they

won't move off of their seat. That was the impres-

sion of Mr. Piatt's personality that T got durmg

the period I took care. [157]

Q. (By Comm. Gray) You have handled thou-

sands of these cases, have you, Doctor?

A. I imagine so, in ten years. Your direct ques-

tion as to what I considered the causal relationship

between this injury and his subsequent pa-

ralysis I

Q. That is the question. I

A. Yes. My impression is this, entirely in a nut-

shell. I don't think that we could say positively,

one way or the other, that the injury to his head

caused his paralysis, but from experience

1
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Q. Even for a temporary period, we will say?

For a period of what you would nominally consi-

der the necessity of getting over the result of a

concussion that he had?

A. Yes. From our knowledge and experience

of diseases of the brain and things that cause para-

lysis, we recognize that changes in the brain can

bring about the picture such as Mr. Piatt had.

Any paralysis that is brought on by an accident

to tlie head will come in two ways. Either it will

come immediately at the time of the injury, and

that paralysis is either due to a fracture of the

skull, with destruction of the part of the brain

that moves the extremities, or is due to a very

rapid loss of blood inside of the head that presses

on the brain. Paralysis of that type will come on

immediately or within a period of a few minutes

or hours after the injury. That he didn't have.

The second type of paralysis that a person can

get following a head [158] injury is due to a slow

gradual accumulation of blood on the outside of

the brain. With such paralysis the individual grad-

ually over this period loses the function of his

extremities. It does not come on suddenly; it

comes on slowly. He will get awkwardness of his

hand, his hand will get heavy; every day it gets

a little weaker and weaker and weaker, and over

the ])eriod of weeks—I think the longest case T

ever had was two months—he becomes com[)letely

paralyzed on that side.
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Those are the only two types of paralysis that

you can ge\ by an injury of this type.

Q. It applies in this case?

A. I say those are the only two types of para-

lysis you can get following an injury to the head.

If an individual goes from the time of his injury

two or three or four or five months and then sud-

dently, out of a clear sky, develops a paralysis of

his extremity, in the intervening period being per-

fectly well and showing no signs of paralysis, then

the conchision, I am sure, would be of all neurolo-

gists that he has had a second lesion. By that I

mean a condition has arisen separate and apart

from his original injury. And that was my impres-

sion of Mr. Piatt.

Q. Gradual weakening of the blood vessels be-

ing one thing?

A. No. I mean a separate condition altogether,

a sei)arate diagnosis. Between Mr. Piatt's discharge

from the hospital and his second admission, from

the neurological standpoint he was [159] perfectly

normal. I examined him, I think, tw^o or three

times in my office and the only thing I found on

these examinations was again his extreme ner-

vousness and the elevation in his blood pressure,

which was always in the office around 190—180 to

90 systolic. This accident came on very suddenly,

as he told me the next day. He was standing in

his bath room, ready to shave, and his left side

became weak.
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Q. That was February 26?

A. Yes, the 26th of February. Two months after

lie was discharged from the hospital. His left leg

became weak; he fell to the floor. When his wife

rushed in to pick him up his left side was com-

pletely paralyzed. The condition bringing about

that paralysis was something that hit him sud-

denly and kn.ocked out the function of that part

of his brain. We recognize a sudden paralysis like

that; it is called a vascular accident. Why *^acci-

dent" I don't know\ But it is usually due to one

or two things: either a blood vessel in the brain

ruptures or it becomes plugged up.

Q. Naturally there is an unexpected and un-

toward and unexplained condition.

A. That is a medical term—cerebral vascular

accident—and it has nothing to do with trauma.

Well, with this history and the findings of the weak-

ness of his extremity that became completely para-

lyzed in the next few hours it was my impression

that he had a cerebral accident, probably secon-

dary to his high [160] blood pressure and having

no relation whatsoever to his previous accident or

previous injury.

Q. Let me ask you a question. Up until Febru-

ary 25 would it be reasonable to attribute any dis-

ability prior to February 26, the day that you

saw him the second time, to the concussion as a

matter of a temporary total disability due to his

original injury?
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A. Disability from a concussion of the brain

would necessarily have to include organic symp-

toms from injuries to the brain and functional

symptoms of injury to the individual's personal-

ity and emotions. He didn't complain of headaches

appreciable, dizzy spells, or things of that sort,

that we hear patients complain of that have had

a concussion of the brain. He was extremely ner-

vous and high strung and jittery, and during the

period, as was demonstrated by his blood pressure,

and every time he would come into the office he

would give us the same picture of the individual.

Any disability from his first injury until he had

this second accident I would say would probably

be on an emotional basis rather than organic basis.

Q. But it might reasonably be attributed

A. Yes.

Q. to the inception of the injury?

A. Yes.

Q. Now, after you observed him on the 26th

and subsequently, would you care professionally

to state in your best knowledge as an expert in

neurological cases that the disability beyond [161]

February 26, in your opinion, was not causally

related to the minor blow that he received to his

head?

A. Do you want me to answer that without

any conditions whatsoever.

Q. No. You can qualify it. Doctor.

A. I said in the beginning that I didn't think
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any neurologist could say positively that an in-

jury to the head, as minor as this seemed to be,

might not in some way be related to subsequent

changes that went on in his brain.

Q. What is its possibility and probability?

A. Well, it is possible but it is probably more

probable.

Q. More probable. Considering the condition of

the man and the underlying condition ?

A. His underlying condition being his high

blood pressure due to pre-existing changes in the

arteries of his brain. If one of these arteries sud-

denly becomes plugged up, the brain that artery

supplies is deprived of its blood supply and ceases

to fimction. I don't know whether a person could

say that plugging up was due to the blow he got

on the head three months ago or not. My personal

opinion would be that it had no relation to it

whatsoever. I don't know what else I could sav.

Our diagnosis of this second vascular accident

was a thrombosis. In these hypertension cases there

are two things that happen. Either a blood vessel

breaks open and throws an unusual amount of

blood into the brain and the brain loses its [lf)2]

function from the collection of blood, or one of

the arteries gets plugged up.

Q. A blow of that kind, which you received a

history of, would have been more probable to liave

made him susceptive to such a thrombosis?

Mr. White: I think the Doctor answered that
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question a few minutes ago, Mr. Gray, in answer

to an equally general question.

Comm. Gray: All I am trying to do is get

the facts. Here we have a man, as I understand

it from the record, had been performing his work

in more or less a normal state; an accident inter-

vened and he has two occurrences, as we see them.

The one was of a temporary nature; he returned

to work and attended certain conferences, as the

record will show, under diflSculty. In fact, they cut

the conferences short because of his apparent dis-

tress. Then his wife goes in and finds him in the

bath room apparently in the throes of a paralytic

state, and he is returned to the care of a doctor.

Purely a medical question.

Mr. White: The doctor has already said that

it is not. J

Comm. Gray : I have to depend upon the Doc-

tor 's professional knowledge, and what I am try-

ing to do, on the basis of his professional knowl-

edge, is to determine the possibility or the proba-

bility of the second occurrence being related to

the first occurrence.

Mr. White: He has already said in his personal

opinion there is no relation. [163]

Comm. Gray: I have to determine it in the

final analysis and I can only determine it on the

basis of the advice that the doctors give to me.

I am not trying to sw^ay the Doctor's opinion; I

am trying to find out what he thinks about it.



vs. Marshall and Pmtt 117

(Testimony of Ralph B. Cloward, M.D.)

Mr. White: May I interject a question?

The Witness: I said that in my opinion there

would be no relation between the two, even though

it seems like to to the layman. But from the patho-

logical standpoint, that is, conditions in the brain

that produce these different pictures, the one is

not a part or parcel of the other.

Q. (By Comm. Gray) : In other w-ords, had

th^re been no accident it may have follow^ed in nor-

mal course? A. That is right.

Q. But with an intervening accident can you

deny that the accident did not have any connection

with it? A. No, I cannot deny it.

Q. Is there a strong possibility that the acci-

dent did have something to do with it?

A. I wouldn't say there was a strong possi-

bility.

Q. Reasonable possibility?

A. I think it is very slight.

Q. I am not trying to lead you on.

A. If I had realized that this case was going

to cause so much controversy—at the time it did

not enter my mind that there would be any connec-

tion between this minor crack he had no his head

and this vascular accident that we see in a large

percent- [164] age or many people normally his

age—I might have even attempted to open up tlie

man's skull and take a look at his brain, to see

wiiat happened to it.

Q. But you did not do that ?
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A. No, sir, I did not. I didn't see that it was

indicated, because people who have these vascular

accidents there is usually nothing you can do for

them surgically. Once the damage is done nobody

can repair it. If this blood vessel has a cork in it

there is nobody can find that cork and take it

out; by the time you would get in there and could

find it it would be too late.

Comm. Gray: In fairness to you, Doctor, I think

we have arranged to have a subsequent examina-

tion. Haven't we agreed on that?

Mr. White: Yes.

Comm. Gray: The whole thing is not to em-

barrass you.

The Witness: I have tried to bring out the dif-

ferent medical pictures that can produce these

conditions.

Comm. Gray : Your instructions to us have been

invaluable. Go ahead, Mr. White.

Q. (By Mr. White) : Doctor, one of the wit-

nesses at the prior hearing testified to a purported

conversation with you, which was alleged to have

occurred about December 13 or 14, in which you

were alleged to have used the words *^ blood clot."

Comm. Gray: In the presence of the claimant's

wife, I believe. [165]

Q. (By Mr. White) : In the presence of the

claimant's wife and a nurse. Was there at any time

anything in your observation of the case which

suggested a blood clot?
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A. On the first admission "?

Q. Yes.

A. No, there was none whatsoever. If I made

some statement to the wife or the nurse that I

thought this man had a blood clot in his brain it

was certainly done unintentionally.

Q. (By Comm. Gray) : That is a possibility,

isn't it, at any time, if a man has a vascular

accident ?

A. This was the first admission, after the crack

on his head, December 3. Very often when attempt-

ing to explain some of these things to lay people,

who know little about it, we may use terms that

are more intelligible to them, realizing ourselves

that from a medical standpoint that it is not the

actual pathological situation, and I might have

used the w^ords *' blood clot" in some of my dis-

cussions with the patient's wife.

Q. (By Mr. White) : But from your observa-

tion of the case and your neurological examina-

tion there is no evidence whatsoever?

A. There was no evidence of any blood clot of

any kind inside this man's head during his first

admission to the hospital.

Q. (By Comm. Gray) : How about the second

admission'? Did you find any evidence of blood

clot during the second admission?

A. No, no. Our impression was that this was

purely a thrombosis or plugging uj) of blood ves-

sel, rather than a rupture of a blood vessel. [166]

Q. What is a thrombosis?
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(Testimony of Ralph B. Cloward, M.D.)

Mr. White: Just one more question. I think

perhaps Dr. Cloward has not described officially

for the record just the condition he did find on

February 26 when Mr. Piatt was returned to the

hospital.

Q. (By Mr. White): Will you describe that

for us? That is insofar as it was manifest?

Comm. Gray: On the second admission.

A. Yes.

Comm. Gray : I have the record here.

A. The patient was completely conscious. As a

matter of fact, he said he hadn't lost consciousness

at all in this vascular accident. On his examination

immediately after his admission to the hospital,

and I saw him a few minutes after he came in,

he had complete paralysis of the left side of his

face and marked weakness of both the left arm and

leg. On encouragement and \dolent effort on the

patient's part he was able to raise his left arm

and use all of the muscles in this extremity. His

face, however, was completely paralyzed so that he

couldn't smile or pull up the corner of his mouth.

I saw him, I think, three times that first day, and

on the third visit, late in the evening, this appar-

ent weakness which he had had in the morning

had progressed to a complete paralysis of the left

upper extremity so that he had no voluntary move-

ment whatsoever in his hand furthermore, or upper

arm. He was still able, however, to move his lower

extremi- [167] ty, although the weakness here was
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(Testimony of Ralph B. Cloward, M.D.)

more profound. And there was also change in the

sensation of the left lialf of his body, there being

a decrease in all forms of sensory stimulae with

the normal side.

Q. What was your diagnosis at that time

—

cerebral thrombosis? A. Yes.

Q. Will you explain for the record what that

is?

A. I think I explained a little earlier the differ-

ence between thrombosis and hemorrhage. Had this

paralysis been due to hemorrhage or rupture of a

blood vessel his paralysis would have been com-

I)lete and profound on his admission to the hospi-

tal or immediately after it happened. The fact

that on his admission to the hospital he had merely

weakness, without paralysis, a gradually progres-

sive weakness to a paralyzed condition within

twelve hours, indicated that the process in his

brain producing the paralysis was one of slow for-

mation, and that we recognize as thrombosis or

plugging of one of the arteries of the brain.

Comm. Gray: Is there anything else, Mr.

White?

Mr. White : I think that is all.

Comm. Gray: We will adjourn this hearing and

transfer the case to San Francisco.

(June 30, 1943, 3:06 p.m. The hearing was

adjourned.) [168]
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Territory of Hawaii,

First Judicial Circuit—ss.

I, Carey S. Cowart, Certified Shorthand Re-

porter, do hereby certify that on the 30th day of

June, 1943 I reported in shorthand the testimony

adduced and proceedings had on a hearing before

John C. Gray, deputy commissioner, U. S. Em-

ployees' Compensation Commission, Pacific Dis-

trict, at Honolulu, T. H., in Case No. DB-P-1-4042,

John B. Piatt, claimant, versus Contractors,

PNAB, and Liberty Mutual Insurance Company,

respondents; I further certify that the foregoing

28 pages contains a full, true, and correct tran-

script of my shorthand notes taken as aforesaid.

Dated this 10th day of June, 1943.

CAREY S. COWART
Certified Shorthand Reporter.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 7, 1944. [169]



vs, Marshall and Piatt 123

In the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division

No. 851

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
a corporation and Contractors, Pacific Naval

Air Bases, an association,

Libellants,

V.

WILLIAM A. MARSHALL, Deputy Commis-

sioner of United States Employees Compensa-

tion Commission for the Fourteenth District

and JOHN B. PIATT,
Respondents.

MOTION TO DISMISS

Comes now William A. Marshall, Deputy Com-

missioner of the United States Employees Compen-

sation Commission for the Fourteenth Compensa-

tion District, defendant in the above entitled cause,

and respectfully moves the Court for an order dis-

missing the bill of complaint for mandatory in-

junction herein.

This motion is based upon the files and records

in the above entitled cause.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
United States Attorney

G. D. HILE
Asst. LTnited States Attorney
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Copy Received: Mar. 29, 1944.

EGGERMAN, ROSLING &
WILLIAMS
Attorneys for Libellants

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 5, 1944. [170]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER GRANTING DEFENDANT JOHN B.

PIATT PERMISSION TO INTERVENE

This matter came on regularly for hearing before

the undersigned, one of the judges of the above-

entitled court, and defendant having made motion

to intervene in the above cause upon the ground

and for the reason that if judgment is entered

herein in behalf of petitioner it will adversely af-

fect John B. Piatt, defendant, and the court being

fully advised in the premises, now therefore, it is

Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that John B.

Piatt be given and is hereby granted permission

to intervene in the above-entitled cause.

Done in Open Court this 14th day of August,

1944.

JOHN C. BOWEN
Judge

Presented by:

KOENIGSBERG & SANFORD
Attorneys for Defendant

I
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Approved as to form:

HERBERT O'HARE
Ass't U. S. Atty.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
Attny for Plff

.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 14, 1944. [171]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORAL DECISION OF THE COURT
GRANTING MOTION TO DISMISS

Be It Remembered, that heretofore and on to-

wit, October 18, 1944, at the hour of 2:00 p.m., the

above entitled matter came regularly on for hearing

on Respondents' Motion to Dismiss, before the

Hon. John C. Bowen, one of the Judges of said

Court

;

Libellants appearing by Joseph J. Lanza, Esq.,

(Messrs. Eggerman, Rosling & Williams), their

proctors and counsel

;

Respondents appearing by L. M. Koenigsberg,

Esq., (Messrs. Koenigsberg & Sanford), their proc-

tors and counsel;

Whereupon, the following proceedings were had

:

[172]

The Court: On December 1, 1942, the Claimant,

John B. Piatt, while working at his desk in his

office furnished by his employer, sustained a blow

on his head by a falling light globe and light globe

shade, weighing altogether about three and a half

pounds.
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The immediate results of that accident were that

Mr. Piatt experienced dizziness immediately after

receiving the blow, and sustained a laceration and

puncture of the skin of the scalp.

He was conducted by two oi* more of his business

associates to a first aid station where he received

first aid and was sent home.

On the second day thereafter he returned to his

office for the purpose of attending a conference,

but had to leave the conference because of physical

weakness and discomfort. Thereafter he was sent

to a hospital where he received treatment for about

twelve days.

After this first period of hospitalization he re-

turned to his home and made daily visits to his

office for the purpose of putting in some time on

his business duties, but he usually did not put in

a full day at his office and returned to his home

earlier than the end of business hours each dav.

He thus partially attended to his business duties

daily until about the 26th of February, 1943, when,

while resting in the early morning he collapsed in

the bathroom of his home with a paralytic stroke.

He thereupon was re-hospitalized and continued in

the hospital until about the 5th of May, 1943.

Off and on during most of the time from the

day of his injury until the day of his discharge

from the hospital [173] and do\vn to the time of

the hearings before the Deputy Commissioner, Mr.

Piatt complained of headaches and dizziness and

of being unable to concentrate his mind efficiently
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on business tasks. These symptoms were likewise

testified to by business associates of Mr. Piatt.

The Deputy Commissioner found that Mr. Piatt's

])resent (Condition of total disability is the result

of the accident which occurred on December 1, 1942.

There is ample non-medical testimony in support

of that finding. I do not take the view that there

was no medical testimony tending to support the

Deputy Commissioner's findings; on the contrary,

I think there was some medical testimony in sup-

port of such findings. For example, Dr. Cloward's

statement to Mrs. Piatt concerning the blood clot

not dissolving as a reason for the Doctor keeping

Mr. Piatt in bed in a reclining position longer than

the Doctor had expected to do; and also Dr. Clow-

ard's testimony that it could not be said positively

whether the accident caused the paralysis or not,

and that cerebral paralysis could develop quickly

or gradually and progressively.

It is contended by Claimant that his paralysis de-

veloped gradually and progressively after the acci-

dent. Libelants contend that the blow on the claim-

ant's head had nothing to do with his cerebral

thrombosis which caused his disability.

It seems to me, without attempting to make a

detailed analysis at this time, that the evidence in

this record amply supports the Deputy Commis-
sioner's findings and award. In fact, I do not see

how one reading this record could come to any

conclusion as to the cause of Mr. Piatt's disability

[174] other than the one the Deputy Commissioner

came to.
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I am aware that three doctors gave it as their

final opinion that the present disability, directly

attributable to cerebral thrombosis, was not caused

by this accident, but I have some considerable doubt

whether or not either of these doctors had accu-

rately in mind in expressing that opinion some of

tlie vital facts underlying that opinion. While I

realize these doctors have expressed conclusions

different from those of the Deputy Commissioner,

yet from the careful study that this record merits

and which I have attempted to give it, I find myself

not convinced by the medical opinions. On the other

hand, I am, in view of the whole record including

the non-medical testimony, convinced of the cor-

rectness of the Deputy Commissioner's findings

and award.

I have taken the time necessarv to carefullv con-

sider all of the authorities that Counsel have col-

lected and exhaustively reviewed in their oral argu-

ments before the Court. The great weight of Fed-

eral Court authority is to the effect that, even

where all the medical testimony is all one way, the

Deputy Commissioner is not bound by such medical

testimony, if there is other competent testimony

requiring a finding different from that indicated

by the medical testimony.

Upon the authority of Southern S. S. Co. vs.

Norton, 41 F. Supp. 108, Ryan Stevedoring Co. vs.

Norton, 50 F. Supp. 221, Frank Marra vs. Norton,

56 F. (2d) 246, and McNeelly vs. Sheppeard, 89 F.

(2d) 956, which in effect hold that the Deputy

Commissioner is not required to follow the testi-
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moiiy of medical experts where there is other

com- [175] petent evidence to support the findings

made by the Deputy Commissioner, it is the opinion

and decision of the Court that the motion to dismiss

the complaint should be granted and the Deputy

Commissioner's findings and award should be con-

firmed.

Mr. Lanza: Exception.

The Court: The Employer and insvirance car-

rier note an exception to the Court's ruling, and

such exception is allowed.

Mr. Koenigsberg: Does your Honor wish to fix

attorney fees in this matter at this time ?

The Court: An attorney's fees of $200 is al-

lowed, payable from the award at a rate not to

exceed $20 from each bi-w^eekly installment.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 20, 1944. [176]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER GRANTING MOTION TO DISMISS
AND AFFIRMING FINDINGS AND
AWARD OF COMMISSIONER

This Matter came on regularly for hearing before

the undersigned, one of the Judges of the above

entitled court, Wednesday, October 11, 1944, at

10:00 o'clock a.m., and was continued from time to

time, argument being concluded on October 16,

1944, plaintiffs appearing by J. Lanza of Egger-
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man, Rosling & Williams, their attorneys, defend-

ants appearing by their attorney, Herbert O'Hare,

Assistant United States Attorney, Assistant to J.

Charles Dennis, United States Attorney, and Leo

M. Koenigsberg appearing for defendant, John B.

Piatt, and it having been stipulated in open court

by and between counsel for all the parties that the

transcript of all the testimony taken before the

Deputy Commissioner and all the exhibits includ-

ing hospital records and others introduced at the

hearings before the Deputy Conunissioner and the

reports of doctors who examined claimant be con-

sidered part of the files and records in this cause

and the court be deemed to have considered all of

said records for the purpose of making its determi-

nation and ruling, and the court having perused and

considered, all of said records, the argument of

counsel, and the briefs [177) submitted by counsel,

and being fully advised in the premises, and motion

having been made by defendants to dismiss the

petition for injunctive relief,

Now, therefore, it is

Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that the motion

to dismiss the petition to set aside the Deputy Com-

missioner's award as not being in accordance with

law be and is hereby granted, and that the Deputy

Commissioner's finding of fact and award be and is

hereby affirmed.

It Is Further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that legal services rendered to defendant, John B.

Piatt, by Leo M. Koenigsberg are of the reasonable

value of $200.00; that Leo M. Koenigsberg has
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lieretofore received from John B. Piatt the sum of

$25.00, out of which he expended $2.00 for hling his

appearance in this cause, and that the defendant,

John B. Piatt, shall have credit for $23.00, leaving

a balance due of $117.00 on said attorney's fees;

that the plaintiff shall pay said sum to Leo M.

Koenigsberg, which payment shall constitute a lien

on the compensation now due or hereafter to become

due to said defendant, John B. Piatt, and said

plaintiff shall be permitted to satisfy said lien by

deducting $17.70 from each bi-weekly payment now

due or hereafter to become due, making said deduc-

tions until such time as the full sum of $117.00

paid to Leo M. Koenigsberg has been fully satisfied.

The plaintiff excepts to all of the foregoing and

the exception is hereby allowed.

Done in Open Court this 20th day of October,

1944.

JOHN C. BOWEN
Judge

Presented by:

L. M. KOENIGSBERG
Attorney for Defendant Piatt

Approved

:

HERBERT O'HARE
Asst. United States Attorney

By L. M. KOENIGSBERG
O. K. as to form:

JOSEPH J. LANZA
Attorneys for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 20, 1944. [178]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OP APPEAL TO CIRCUIT COURT
OP APPEALS

Notice Is Hereby Given that Liberty Mutual In-

surance Company, a corporation, and Contractors,

Pacific Naval Air Bases, an association, libelants

above named, hereby appeal to the Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the order

granting motion to dismiss and affirming findings

and award of Commissioner entered in this action

on the 20th day of October, 1944.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
EGGERMAN, ROSLING &

WILLIAMS
Attorneys for Libellants

Address: 918 Vance Building, Seattle, Wash.

Received a copy of the within Notice this 16 day

of Jan., 1945.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
U. S. Attorney

Attorney for William A.

Marshall

Copy Received. Date 1-16-1945.

KOENIGSBERG & SANFORD
Attorneys for Defendant

By B. TAYLOR

[Endorsed] : Piled Jan. 16, 1945. [179]
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United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
Baltimore, Maryland

No $

In the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Northern

Division

No. 851

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
a corporation, and CONTRACTORS, PA-
CIFIC NAVAL AIR BASES, an Association,

Libelants,

vs.

WM. A. MARSHALL, Deputy Commissioner of

the United States Employees Compensation

Commission for the 14th Compensation Dis-

trict, and JOHN B. PIATT,
Respondents.

Know All Men by These Presents: That we,

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, a corpora-

tion, and Contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases, an

Association, as Principals, and United States Fi-

delity and Guaranty Company, a corporation of

Baltimore, Maryland, authorized to do the business

of surety in the State of Washington, as surety,

acknowledge ourselves to be jointly indebted to

Wm. A. Marshall, Deputy Commissioner of the

United States Employees Compensation Commis-

sion for the 14th Compensation District, and John
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B. Piatt, Respondents, in the above entitled cause,

in the sum of Two Hundred Fifty and No/100

($250.00) Dollars, conditioned that, whereas, on

the 20th day of October, 1944, in the District Court

of the United States for the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, in a suit pending

in that Court wherein Liberty Mutual Insurance

Company, a corporation, and Contractors, Pacific

Naval Air Bases, an Association, were libelants,

and Wm. A. Marshall, Deputy Commissioner of the

United States Employees Compensation Commis-

sion for the 14th Compensation District, and John

B. Piatt, were Respondents, an order was entered

granting motion to dismiss and affirming findings

and award of Commissioner, and the said Libelants

having filed in the office of the Clerk of the said

District Court a notice of appeal to the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit, to be held in the City of San Francisco,

in the State of California.

Now, Therefore, the condition of the above obli-

gation is such, that if the said Liberty Mutual

Insurance Company, a corporation, and Contrac-

tors, Pacific Naval Air Bases, an Association, shall

prosecute its appeal to effect and answer all costs,

if the appeal is dismissed or by judgment affirmed,

or all such costs as the appellate court may award

if the judgment is modified, then the above obliga-

tion is void, else to remain in full force and effect.
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Sealed with our seals and dated this 12th day of

Jainiarv, 1945.

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE
COMPANY, and CONTRACTORS,
PACIFIC NAVAL AIR BASES, anj

Association,

By JOSEPH J. L/VNZA,

one of their attorneys

[Seal] UNITED S^^ATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY COMPANY

By JOHN C. McCOLLISTER
Attorney-in-fact. [180]

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

On the 12th day of January, 1945, before me
personally appeared John C. McCoUister to me
known to be the Attorney-in-fact of the corporation

that executed the within and foregoing instrument,

as surety, and acknowledged said instrument to be

the free and voluntary act and deed of said cor-

poration, for the uses and purposes therein men-

tioned, and on oath stated that he was authorized

to execute said instrument and that the seal affixed

is the corporate seal of said corporation.

In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed my official seal the day and year first

above written.

[Seal] J. C. BEERON
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Seattle.
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State of Washington

County of King—ss.

On this 16th day of January, 1945, before me
personally appeared Joseph J. Lanza, to me known

to be one of the attorneys for and on behalf of said

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, a corporation,

and Contractors, Pacilic Naval Air Bases, an asso-

ciation, that executed the within and foregoing

instrument as principals, and acknowledged the

said instrument to be the free and voluntary act

and deed of said corporation and association for

the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on

oath stated that he was authorized to execute said

instrument.

In Witness Whereof I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my official seal the day and year

first above written.

KATHRYN BRYAN
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Seattle

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 16, 1945. [181]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OP POINTS ON WHICH x\P-

PELLANTS INTEND TO RELY ON APPEAL

The following is a concise statement of the points

on which Appellants intend to rely on appeal

:

1. That there is no substantial evidence in the

record to support the finding of the Deputy Com-

missioner that the accident that occurred on De-

cember 1, 1942, was the direct proximate cause of
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the cerebral thrombosis that occurred on February

27, 1943.

2. That the Claimant failed to sustain the bur-

den of proof upon the issue of whether the accident

that occurred on December 1, 1942, was the direct

and proximate cause of the cerebral thrombosis

that occurred on February 27, 1943.

3. That the finding of the Deputy Commissioner

as above, is a mere assumption based upon possi-

bility and conjecture instead of substantial proof,

and is therefore not in accordance with law.

4. That the Deputy Commissioner in making

the finding as above, ignored all of the medical

evidence presented herein.

5. That the United States District Court for

the Western District of Washington, Northern

Division, erred in entering its order granting De-

fendants' motion to dismiss and affirming the find-

ings and award of the Deputy Commissioner.

Dated this 20th day of January, 1945.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
EGGERMAN, ROSLING &
WILLIAMS
Attorneys for Appellant.

Received a copy of the within Statement this

20th day of Jan. 1945.

J. CHARLES DENNIS,
Atty. for Wm. A. Marshall

Copy Received. Date 1-20-1945.

KOENIGSBERG & SANFORD

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 20, 1945. [182]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPELLANTS' DESIGNATION OF RECORD,
PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE TO BE
CONTAINED IN THE RECORD ON
APPEAL

Come now the Appellants above named, and pur-

suant to Rule 75 of the Rules of Civil Procedure

pertaining to record on aj^peal to the Circuit Court

of Appeals, herewith designates the following por-

tion of the record, proceedings and evidence to be

contained in the record on appeal:

1. Bill of complaint for mandatory injunction

filed December 29, 1943 and Exhibit ^^A" thereto

attached.

2. Certification of record of Deputy Commis-

sioner Wm. A. Marshall filed January 22, 1944,

including the following:

a. Transcript of testimony taken at hearing

held by Deputy Commissioner John C. Gray at

Honolulu, T. H., on June 2, 1943.

b. Employer's and insurance carrier's Exhibit

*'A" (Part 1), being photostatic copies of hospital

record.

c. Employer's and insurance carrier's Exhibit

*'A" (Part 2), being photostatic copies of hospital

record.

d. Report of Dr. Howard A. Brown, dated June

23, 1943.

e. Report of Dr. Ernest H. Falconer, M.D.,

dated June 23, 1943. [183]
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f. Telegraui addressed to John B. Piatt, dated

June 11, 1943 and signed by Dr. Robert Bulman.

g. Compensation order filed by Wm. A. Mar-

shall on November 29, 1943.

3. Certification of record of Deputy Commis-

sioner Wm. A. Marshall filed September 6, 1944,

including the following:

a. Transcript of record of a continued hearing

held before Deputy Commissioner Gray at Hono-

lulu on June 30, 1944.

4. Motion to dismiss filed April 5, 1944.

5. Order granting defendant John B. Piatt per-

mission to intervene filed August 14, 1944.

6. Transcript of oral decision of the court grant-

ing motion to dismiss.

7. Order granting motion to dismiss and affirm-

ing findings and award of Commissioner filed Oc-

tober 20, 1944.

8. Notice of appeal to Circuit Court of Appeals

filed Januaiy 16, 1945.

9. Cost bond on appeal filed January 16, 1945.

10. Appellants' designation of contents of record

on appeal filed January 20, 1945.

11. Statement of points on which appellants

intend to rely appeal.

12. Certificate of clerk to transcript of record

on appeal.

Dated this 20th day of January, 1945.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
EGGERMAN, ROSLING &

WILLIAMS
Attorneys for Appellants
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Received a copy of the within Designation this

20th day of Jan., 1945.

J. CHARLES DEXXIS
Attorney for Wni. A. Marshall

Copy Received. Date 1-20-1945.

KOEXIGSBERG & SAXFORD
Attornev for Defendant

By B. TAYLOR

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 20, 19-15. [184]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION AND APPLICATION FOR
ORDER FOR TRANSMITTAL OF EX-
HIBITS TO APPELLATE COURT

It Is Hereby Stipulated between appellants and

appellees, through their respective attorneys of

record, that an order may be entered herein direct-

ing the Clerk of this court to transfer to the ap-

pellate court the original exhibits known as **Em-
ployer's and Insurance Carrier's Exhibit A (Part

1)" and '^Employer's and Insurance Carrier's Ex-

hibit A (Part 2)" for purposes of inspection by

the appellate court in comiection with the appeal

now pending herein.
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Dated this 17th day of February, 1945.

EGGERMAN, ROSLING &
WILLIAMS

JOSEPH J. LANZA
Attorneys for Appellants

J. CHARLES DENNIS
U. S. District Attorney

Attorneys for Appellee

Wm. A. Marshall

LEO M. KOENIGSBERG
Attorney for AppeUee

John B. Piatt

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 19, 1945. [185]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER DIRECTING CLERK TO SEND
ORIGINAL EXHIBITS TO APPELLATE
COURT

It Having Been Stipulated Herein between ap-

pellants and appellees thru their respective attor-

neys of record, that an order may be entered herein

directing the Clerk to transmit the original exhibits

known as *' Employer's and Insurance Carrier's

Exhibit A (Part 1)" and ^'Employer's and Insur-

ance Carrier's Exhibit A (Part 2)", for purposes

of inspection by the appellate court, and this court

being of the opinion that the original of said ex-

hibits should be inspected by the appellate court,

upon the ground that said exhibits are not readily

copiable into the record, now therefore
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It Is Hereby Ordered that the Clerk of this court

transmit to the appellate court the originals of said

exhibits for purposes of inspection by the appellate

court in connection with the appeal pending herein.

Done in Open Court this 19th day of February,

1945.

JOHN C. BOWEN
District Judge

Presented by

JOSEPH J. LANZA
of Attorneys for Appellants

Approved as to form.

HERBERT O'HARE
Asst. U. S. Atty.

Approved.

L. M. KOENIGSBERG

[Endorsed] : Piled Feb. 19, 1945. [186]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION FOR ORDER EXTENDING
THE TIME FOR FILING THE RECORD
ON APPEAL AND DOCKETING OF
ACTION

Pursuant to Rule 73 (g) of the Rules of Civil

Procedure it is hereby stipulated between Appel-

lants and Appellees through their respective attor-

neys of record, that the District Court may extend

the time for filing the record on appeal with the
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ap23ellate court and docketing the action in that

court to the 10th day of March, 1945.

Dated this 23 day of February, 1945.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
EGGERMAN, ROSLING &
WILLIAMS

Attorneys for Appellants

J. CHARLES DENNIS
U. S. District Attorney

HERBERT O^HARE
Asst. U. S. District Attorney

Attorneys for W. A. Marshall

L. M. KOENIGSBERG
Attorney for John B. Piatt

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 23, 1945. [187]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER ON STIPULATION EXTENDING
TIME FOR FILING THE RECORD ON
APPEAL AND DOCKETING THE ACTION

Pursuant to stipulation filed herein and by virtue

of the authority granted to the District Court by

Rule 73 (g) of the Rules of Civil Procedure, now
therefore

It Is Hereby Ordered that the time for filing the

record on appeal with the appellate court and

docketing the action in that court, is hereby ex-

tended to the 10th dav of March, 1945.
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Done in Open Court this 23 day of February,

1945.

JOHN C. BOWEN
District Judge

Presented by:

JOSEPH J. LANZA
Of Counsel for Libelants

O. K. for entry:

HERBERT O'HARE
Asst. L"^. S. District Atty.

Atty. for Wm. A. Marshall

L. M. KOENIGSBERG
Attorney for John B. Piatt

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 23, 1945. [188]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPELLANTS' SUPPLEMENTAL DESIGNA-
TION OF RECORD TO BE CONTAINED
IN THE RECORD ON APPEAL

Come Now the appellants above named, and here-

with designate the additional portion of the record

to be contained in the record on appeal:

1. Stipulation and application for order for

transmittal of original exhibits to appellate court.

2. Order directing Clerk to transmit original

exhibits to appellate court.

3. Clerk's certificate as to exhibit transmitted

to appellate court.

i
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4. Appellants' supplemental designation of

record.

Dated this 19th day of February, 1945.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
EGGERMAN, ROSLING &
WILLIAMS
Attorneys for Appellants

Copy received 2/16/45.

L. M. KOENIGSBERG

Copy received 2/19/45.

HERBERT O'HARE
Asst. U. S. Atty.

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 19, 1945. [189]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPELLANTS SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL
DESIGNATION OF RECORD TO BE CON-
TAINED IN THE RECORD ON APPEAL

Come now the Appellants above named and the

herewith designate the additional portion of the

record to be contained in the record on appeal:

1. Stipulation and Order extending time for

filing record and docketing case in the appellate

court.

2. This second supplemental designation of

record.
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Dated this 23 day of February, 1945.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
EGGERMAN, ROSLING &
WILLIAMS

Attorneys for Appellants

Copy Received this 23 day of Feb. 1945

:

L. M. KOENIGSBERG
Atty. for John B. Piatt

HERBERT O'HARE
Asst. U. S. District Attorney

Atty. for Wm. A. Marshall

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 23, 1945. [190]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK TO TRANSCRIPT
OF RECORD ON APPEAL

United States of America

Western District of Washington—ss.

I, Millard P. Thomas, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the Western District of Wash-

ington, do hereby certify that the foregoing type-

written transcript of record, consisting of pages

niunbered 1 to 190, inclusive, is a full, true and

complete copy of so much of the record, papers and

other proceedings in the above and foregoing en-

titled cause as is required by Designation of Coun-

sel filed and shown herein, as the same remain of

record on file in the office of the Clerk of said Dis-

trict Court at Seattle and that the same constitute
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the record on appeal from the order of dismissal of

said United States District Court for the Western

District of Washington to the United States Circuit

of Api)eals for the Ninth Circuit. [191]

I further certify that the following is a true and

correct statement of all expenses, costs, fees and

charges incurred in my office for making record,

certificate or return to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, to-wit:

Clerk's Fees (Act of February 11, 1925) for

making record, certificate or return.

438 folios at 05c $21.90

36 folios at 15c 5.40

Appeal fee (Section 5 of Act) 5.00

Certificate of Clerk to Transcript of Record. .50

Certificate of Clerk to Original Exhibits 50

Total $33.30

I further certify that the foregoing fees have

been paid by the attorney for the appellants.

In Witness Whereof I have hereunto set my hand

and affixed the official seal of said District Court

at Seattle, in said District, this 31st day of Jan-

uary, 1945.

[Seal] MILLARD P. THOMAS,
Clerk

By BONITA WATKINS
Deputy Clerk [192]
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[Endorsed]: No. 10995. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Contrac-

tors, Pacific Naval Air Bases, an association, and

Liberty Mutual Insurance Company, a corporation,

Appellants, vs. Wm. A. Marshall, Deputy Connnis-

sioner of the United States Employees' Compensa-

tion Commission for the Fourteenth District and

John B. Piatt, Appellees. Transcript of Record.

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United

States for the AVestern District of Washington,

Northern Division. \

Piled March 2, 1945.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN |
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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The United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 10995

LIBERTY MUTUAL INSURANCE COMPANY,
a corporation, and CONTRACTORS, PA-
CIFIC NAVAL AIR BASES, an Association,

Appellants,

vs.

WM. A. MARSHALL, Deputy Commissioner of

the United States Employees Compensation

Commission for the 14th Compensation Dis-

trict, and JOHN B. PIATT,

Appellees.

STIPULATION AND APPLICATION FOR
ORDER DISPENSING WITH THE RE-
PRODUCTION OR PRINTING OF EX-
HIBITS

It Is Hereby Stipulated between Appellants and

Appellees, through their respective attorneys of

record, that an order may be entered herein dis-

pensing with the reproduction or printing of Ex-

hibits known as '^Employer's and Insurance Car-

rier's Exhibit 'A' (Part 1)" and ''Employer's and

Insurance Carrier's Exhibit 'A' (Part 2)", being

copies of hospital records, laboratory reports, nurses

records, and temperature, pulse and respiration

sheets, upon the grounds and for the reason that

the temperature, pulse and respiration sheets ar^*
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not of a printable type, and the cost of printing

the balance of said records would prove expensive

and unduly extend the length of the Transcript of

Record to be printed herein.

It Is Further Stipulated that said Exhibits may
be considered by this Court in the forni in which

they are included in the District Clerks Record on

appeal, without rex)roduction.

This Application is based upon th(» affidavit of

Joseph J. Lanza, attached.

Dated this 19th day of February, 1945.

EGGERMAN, ROSLING & -

WILLIAMS
I

JOSEPH J. LANZA '

Attorneys for Appellants.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
U. S. District Attorney

HERBERT O'HARE
Asst. U. S. District Attorney

Attorneys for Appellee,

William A. Marshall.

L. M. KOENIGSBERG
Attorney for Appellee,

John B. Piatt.

i

Ordered that the original exhibit ^'A" referred

to herein, in two parts, need not be printed, but will

be considered by the Court in its original form.

CURTIS D. WILBUR
Senior United States Circuit

Judge.
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AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF FOREGOING
APPLICATION

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

Joseph J. Lanza, being first duly sworn on oath

deposes and says: That he is an attorney at law,

admitted to practice in the Courts of the State of

Washington and in the District Court of the Ninth

Circuit, and is one of the attorneys for Appellants

in the above entitled and number cause; that he

makes this affidavit in support of the foregoing ap-

plication for order dispensing with the reproduction

or printing of the Exhibits therein specified; that

said Exhibits consist of forty-nine (49) pages of

hospital records, laboratory reports, nurses records,

and temperatures, pulse and respiration sheets ; that

a great portion thereof consisting of the tempera-

ture, pulse and respiration sheets, are not of a

printable type ; that while the balance of the records

of said Exhibits are of a printable type, the printing

of the same will prove expensive and unduly extend

the size of the transcript of record to be printed

herein.

JOSEPH J. LANZA

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19 day

of February, 1945.

[Seal] KATHRYN BRYAN
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Seattle.

[Endorsed]: Piled Mar. 5, 1945. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.



152 Contractors, Pacific Air Bases, et al,

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

APPELLANTS' STATEMENT OF POINTS ON
WHICH THEY INTEND TO RELY ON
APPEAL AND DESIGNATION OP THE
RECORD DEEMED NECESSARY FOR
THE CONSIDERATION THEREOF

Come now Appellants and, pursuant to Sub-

division 6, Rule 19, of the Rules of the L^nited

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth

Circuit, herewith adopt the statement of points filed

in the District Court upon which Appellants intend

to rely on appeal, and herewitli designate the entire

transcript of record as prepared and certified by

the Clerk of the Dit.nct Court, to be printed for

purposes of this appeal.

Dated this 23 day of February, 1945.

JOSEPH J. LANZA
EGGERMAN, ROSLING &
WILLIAMS

Attorneys for Appellants

Service of the foregoing by receipt of true copy

thereof is hereby acknowledged this 23 day of Feb-

ruary, 1945.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
U. S. District Attorney

HERBERT O'HARE
Asst. TJ. S. District Attorney

Attorneys for Wm. A. Mar-

shall, Deputy Commissioner

L. M. KOENIGSBERG
Attorney for John B. Piatt

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 5, 1945. Paul P,

O'Brien, Clerk.
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EN THE
UP^TED STATES

ciKCurr couKT or appeals
rOK THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Contractors, Pacific Naval Air Bases,

an Association, and Liberty Mutual
Insurance Company, a Corporation,

Appellants,

vs.

No. 10995
Wm. a. Marshall, Deputy Commissioner

of the United States Employees' Com-
pensation Commission for the Four-
teenth District and John B. Piatt,

Appellees,

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the
United States for the Western District

of Washington, Northern Division.

BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

INTRODUCTORY

This is an appeal from the final decree of the Dis-

trict Court granting appellees' motion for dismissal

of appellants' Bill of Complaint for Mandatory In-

junction and affirming the findings and award of

William A. Marshall, Deputy Commissioner of the

United States Employees' Compensation Commission
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for the 14th Compensation District, respecting the

claim of John B. Piatt filed therewith (Tr. 129-131).

JURISDICTION

District Court

The jurisdiction of the District Court is believed

to be sustained by subdivision (b) of Section 21 of the

Longshoremen's and Harborworkers' Compensation

Act (Public Law No. 803—69th Congress) as amend-

ed (33 U.S.C.A. Sec. 921(b)) which reads in part as

follows

:

^Tf not in accordance with law, a compensation

order may be suspended or set aside, in whole or

in part, through injunction proceedings, manda-
tory or otherwise, brought by any party in in-

terest against the deputy commissioner making
the order, etc."

and under subsection (b) of Section 3 of the De-

fense Base Act (Public Law No. 208—77th Con-

gress) (42 U.S.C.A. Sec. 1653(b)), reading in part

as follows:

"Judicial proceedings provided under Sections

18 and 21 of the Longshoremen's and Harbor-

workers' Compensation Act in respect to a com-

pensation order made pursuant to this act shall

be instituted in the United States District Court

of the judicial district wherein is located the of-

fice of the Deputy Commissioner whose com-

pensation order is involved if his office is lo-

cated in a judicial district,'' etc.

Circuit Court

The jurisdiction of this court is believed to be sus-



tained by Judicial Code Sec. 128(a) (28 U.S.C.A.

Sec. 225(a)), reading in part as follows:

^'The Circuit Courts of Appeal shall have ap-

pellate jurisdiction to review by appeal final de-

cisions

—

^'First. In the District Courts in all cases save

where a direct review of the decision may be had

in the Supreme Court under Section 345 of this

title."

The decree appealed from was entered on October

20, 1944 (Tr. 129, 131) ; within three months there-

after, pursuant to Section 240-8 (c) of the Judicial

Code (28 U.S.C.A. Sec. 230), to-wit, on January 16,

1945, Notice of Appeal was served and filed in ac-

cordance with Rule 73(a) and (b) of the Rules of

Civil Procedure (Tr. 132). Cost Bond on appeal in

the sum of $250.00 was filed with the Notice of Ap-

peal on January 16, 1945, pursuant to Rule 73(c)

of the Rules of Civil Procedure (Tr. 133-136). Desig-

nation of Record, Proceedings and Evidence to be

contained in the Record of Appeal was served and

filed January 20, 1945, pursuant to Rule 75(a) of the

Rules of Civil Procedure (Tr. 138-140). Statement of

Points on which Appellants Intend to Rely on Appeal

was served and filed January 20, 1945, pursuant to

Rule 75(d) of the Rules of Civil Procedure (Tr.

136-137). Order extending time for filing the record

on appeal and docketing the action to March 10, 1945,

was entered by the District Court on February 23,

1945, pursuant to Rule 73(g) of the Rules of Civil

Procedure (Tr. 143-144).



STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The question involved is whether there is any sub-

stantial evidence in the record to support the award

of compensation by the Deputy Commissioner based

upon a finding that the cerebral thrombosis, suffered

by claimant John B. Piatt on February 26, 1943,

was caused by an injury sustained by him December

1, 1942, when a glass composition indirect lighting

globe fell from the ceiling and struck claimant on the

head while in the employment of Contractors, Pacific

Naval Air Bases, in the Territory of Hawaii.

The following is a brief summary of the evidence:

Claimant had been employed by the Contractors,

Pacific Naval Air Bases, as a Procurement Agent in

the Hawaiian Islands since December of 1939 (Tr.

17 and 26).

On December 1, 1942, claimant, then fifty-four

and one-half years of age, was hit on the head by a

three and one-quarter pound glass composition in-

direct lighting globe (Tr. 58) which fell from the

ceiling, while he was sitting at his desk (Tr. 18, 19).

The blow made him dizzy, but not unconscious (Tr.

36). The blow caused a very small cut on the upper

forehead above the hairline (Tr. 20, 35). With the

aid of two co-workers, he walked over to the first

aid station about three or four hundred feet from

the place where he had been hit (Tr. 60). There, Dr.

Stewart removed a piece of glass from the cut, painted

it, and told claimant to go home and keep quiet for

24 hours (Tr. 20).

The next morning, claimant went to the office for



a short conference lasting about an hour and one-

half, which split up prematurely due to his fatigue

and distress. He expressed a desire to see and be

checked up by Dr. Cloward (Tr. 21).

Dr. Cloward was not in, so his nurse told claimant

to go home and she would have Dr. Cloward call him

(Tr. 22). Claimant then went home, and about four

o'clock that day. Dr. Cloward called claimant and told

him to go to the hospital where he would see him.

Claimant was admitted to the Queen's Hospital on

December 3, where he remained a bed patient until

December 24, 1942 (Tr. 23).

After spending about a week at home and during

the first week in January, 1943, claimant went to

Dr. Cloward's office for a check-up (Tr. 24). On

January 11, 1943 (Tr. 32), claimant went back to

the office, working three or four hours a day, grad-

ually increasing his working time until he worked

full time for three days before his collapse on Febru-

ary 26, 1943 (Tr. 24, 25, 33).

During this entire period he was under medical

observation and received checkups by Dr. Cloward

at least once a week, and sometimes twice a week

(Tr. 25).

Just before going back to work on January 11,

1943, Dr. Cloward had an electro-cardiograph made

of claimant's heart to see if there was any possible

heart lesion that was helping to keep up his blood

pressure. Dr. Cloward told him he was ''0. K." and

that he would even pass him for life insurance (Tr.

34).
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After his discharge from the hospital on December

24, claimant stated that he did not feel fully re-

covered, and that he had headaches ''like a tight

band across the top of his head/' extending to the

rear portion thereof (Tr. 34, 35). That sensation was

continuous for approximately the first week after leav-

ing the hospital, and it was recurrent thereafter but

did not last (Tr. 36).

On February 26, 1943, claimant, while preparing

to go to work, collapsed in his bathroom (Tr. 38),

which Dr. Cloward testified was due to a ''cerebral

vascular accident'' and having no relation whatso-

ever to his previous accident or injury (Tr. 113).

Prior to the date of the occurrence of the first

accident, claimant was a man of seemingly unlimited

energy, in charge of purchasing material to keep

eleven battallions of Navy Engineers busy (Tr. 50,

51, 62). After returning to the office after his first

accident, his colleagues noticed that he had failed in

memory, particularly as to details, that he was an-

noyed with details, and was nervous and excitable

to such an extent that the officials reconsidered a

decision to make him head of a new supply division

(Tr. 53, 54, 63, 64).

As a result of the stroke suffered on February 26,

1943, claimant was again hospitalized at Queen's

Hospital, and remained there until May 5, 1943. He

was continuously under the care of Dr. Cloward

during both periods of hospitalization and for the

intervening period (Tr. 33).

On or about May 25, 1943, claimant filed claim for



compensation for disability with the United States

Employees' Compensation Commission, under Public

Law 208, 77th Congress, Act of August 18, 1941,

commonly known as the "Defense Base Act,'' alleging

that the cerebral thrombosis which occurred on Febr-

uary 26, 1943, was the result of the injury which oc-

curred December 1, 1942 (Tr. 14, 15).

The employer and insurance carrier gave due no-

tice that the claim was controverted, and denied that

the disability commencing on February 26, 1943, was

caused by or resulted from injuries sustained on De-

cember 1, 1942 (Tr. 16). The matter then came on

for hearing before Deputy Commissioner John C.

Gray at Honolulu, T. H., on June 2, 1943, the hear-

ing being held at the home of the claimant who was

residing in Honolulu at that time (Tr. 13, 14).

At that hearing, testimony of claimant John B.

Piatt (Tr. 17-40), his wife, Frieda F. Piatt (Tr. 40-

45, 68-72), George L. Youmans, Piatt's Supervisor

(Tr. 45-49), Cmdr. H. P. Potter, USNR, Officer in

Charge of the Fifth Construction Battalion (Tr. 49-

56), and A. W. Morgan, Piatt's principal assistant

(Tr. 56-67) was introduced.

Dr. Cloward, the attending physician, was unable

to attend the hearing on that date to give his testi-

mony (Tr. 27). However, at the conclusion of that

hearing, claimant waived personal appearance at a

further hearing when Dr. Cloward's testimony could

be taken (Tr. 72, 73). Claimant at that time was

planning to return to the United States, and it was

therefore agreed at that hearing that if a further



8

examination could not be taken at the Queen's Hos-

pital before claimant left for the mainland, he would

stop in San Francisco for further examination by

doctors there (Tr. 76).

On June 30, 1943, the matter came on for an ad-

journed hearing before Deputy Commissioner Gray,

at which time the testimony of Dr. Cloward was taken

and transcribed, personal appearance having been

waived by claimant (Tr. 95-122).

At that hearing Dr. Cloward testified that he ex-

amined the claimant about one hour after his admis-

sion to the hospital on December 3, 1942 (Tr. 97),

and that ^^the most striking thing about his examina-

tion was that of extremely high blood pressure," which

as he recalled was somewhere around 240 or 230/140.

Continuing, the doctor said:

'That initial blood pressure, we felt, ivas

probably due to primary hypertension that the

patient had prior to his injury, although we at-

tributed some of it to the extreme nervous state

that he was in on his admission to the hospital."

(Tr. 98-99)

The doctor further testified that examination of

claimant's head revealed "no very extensive wound,"

''that would look as though he had been struck by any

heavy object," and that "there was no large bump,

swelling or bruise of contusion" that he could find.

The following day, however, there was a small crust

found in his scalp from a "scratch" which he may

have received from a cut from glass (Tr.99).

The remainder of his examination was entirely

negative, and purely from the ^'story^^ and not the
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examination of the patient's nervous system, he

made a 'Hentative^^ diagnosis of concussion of the

brain. He explained that a diognosis of concussion

very frequently had to be made purely on history

rather than on findings, because if a concussion is

not severe enough to render a patient unconscious it

is usually not severe enough to bring about any other

change in the brain that can be demonstrated by a

neuro-logical examination (Tr. 99).

The doctor explained that the blood pressure in

any individual is measured by the systolic and di-

astolic measurements, and that the normal systolic

measurement is 120 and the normal diastolic meas-

urement is from 80 to 100, although as a ^*rule of

thumb,'' a normal systolic measurement could be 100

plus the individual's age. Thus, if a man is fifty-four

years old and he has a systolic measurement of 154,

it would be considered normal (Tr. 100, 101).

Dr. Cloward further testified that any paralysis

which is brought on by an accident to the head will

come in two ways. Either it will come immediately

at the time of the injury, due to a fracture of the

skull, with destruction of that part of the brain con-

trolling the movement of the extremities, or due to a

very rapid loss of blood inside the head that presses

on the brain. Paralysis of that type will come on

immediately or within a period of a few minutes or

hours after the injury. Claimant did not have that

type of paralysis (Tr. 111).

The second type of paralysis that can occur follow-

ing a head injury, according to Dr. Cloward, is due

to a slow, gradual accumulation of blood on the out-
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side of the brain. With such paralysis, the individual

gradually over this period loses the function of his

extremities. It does not come on suddenly; it comes

on sloivly. He will get awkwardness of his hands,

his hands will get heavy; every day it gets a little

weaker, and over a period of weeks (he thought

the longest case he ever had was two months), he

becomies paralyzed on that side Tr. 111).

It was his opinion, therefore, that if an individual

goes from the time of his injury, two, three, or four

or five months, and then suddenly, out of a clear

sky develops a paralysis of his extremities, in the

intervening period being perfectly well and showing

no signs of paralysis, then the conclusion of all neuro-

logists would be that he had had a second ^^lesion.^'

By that, he meant a condition has arisen separate and

apart from his original injury. That was his impres-

sion of Mr. Piatt (Tr. 112). He further testified

that between Mr. Piatt's first discharge from the

hospital and his second admission, from the neuro-

logical standpoint he was perfectly normal. In his

examination of Piatt two or three times in his office,

in the intervening period, the only thing he found

was his extreme nervousness and the elevation in his

blood pressure which was always around 190 to 180

systolic (Tr. 112).

The doctor further testified that the condition

that brought about the paralysis on February 26

was something that hit him suddenly and knocked

out the functioning of that part of his brain. It is

called a ^Vascular accident,'' usually due to one of two
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things: either a blood vessel in the brain ruptures,

or it becomes plugged up (Tr. 113).

The cerebral vascular accident has nothing to do

with trauma. With this history and the findings of

the weakness of his extremity that became completely

paralyzed in the next few hours, it was the doctor's

opinion that Piatt had had a cerebral accident ^^prob-

ably secondary to his high blood pressure and having

no relation whatsoever to his previous accident or

previous injury^^ (Tr. 113).

In answer to the question whether it would be

reasonable to attribute any disability prior to Febru-

ary 26 to the concussion as a matter of a temporary

total disability due to his original injury, the doctor

said:

'^Any disability from his first injury until

he had the second accident, I would say would

probably be on an emotional basis rather than or-

ganic basis.'' (Tr. 114)

Again, v/hen asked to give his opinion as an ex-

pert in neurological cases whether the disability be-

yond February 26 was causally related to the minor

blow that he received to his head, the doctor replied

:

"1 don't know whether a person could say that

plugging up was due to the blow he got on the

head three months ago or not. My personal opin-

ion would he that it had no relation to it whatso-

ever, I don't know what else I could say." (Tr.

115).

Later on in the testimony, Dr. Cloward said:

^'l said that in my opinion there would be no

relation between the two, even though it seems

like to be the layman. But from the pathological
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standpoint, that is, conditions in the brain that

produce the different pictures, the one is not a
part or parcel of the other.

''Q (COMM. Gray) : In other words, had there

been no accident it may have followed in nor-

mal course?

A That is right.

Q Is there a strong possibility that the ac-

cident did have something to do with it?

A I wouldn't say there was a strong possibil-

ity.

Q Reasonable possibility?

A I think it is very slight.'' (Tr. 117)

Mrs. Piatt, at the first hearing, had testified that

Dr. Cloward had used the word ''blood clot" in de-

scribing Mr. Piatt's condition during his first stay in

the hospital (Tr. 71). Accordingly, Dr. Cloward was

asked at the adjourned hearing whether there was

anything in his observation of the case which sug-

gested a blood clot on the first admission to the hospi-

tal. He answered:

''No, there was none whatsoever. If I made
some statement to the wife or the nurse that I

thought this man had a blood clot in his brain,

it was certainly done unintentionally." (Tr. 119)

He repeated the same answer later on by saying:

"There was no evidence of any blood clot of

any kind inside this man's head during his first

admission to the hospital." (Tr. 119)

Commissioner Gray then asked him whether he

found any evidence of a blood clot during the second

admission to the hospital, to which the doctor an-

swered :

"No, no. Our impression was that this was
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purely a thrombosis or plugging up of blood ves-

sels, rather than a rupture of a blood vessel/'

(Tr. 119)

Dr. Cloward concluded his testimony by explaining

what is meant by cerebral -^feg^ri^esis in the following

language

:

'1 think I explained a little earlier the differ-

ence between thrombosis and hemorrhage. Had
this paralysis been due to hemorrhage or rupture

of a blood vessel, his paralysis would have been

complete and profound on his admission to the

hospital or immediately after it happened. The
fact that on his admission to the hospital he had
merely weakness without paralysis, a gradually

progressive weakness to a paralyzed condition,

within twelve hours, indicated that the process

in his brain producing the paralysis was one of

slow formation, and that we recognize as throm-

bosis or plugging of one of the arteries of the

brain.'' (Tr. 121)

It win be remembered that at the conclusion of the

first hearing, Mr. Piatt had made plans to return to

the mainland, and had agreed that upon arriving in

San Francisco, he would submit to further examina-

tion by doctors there. Accordingly, he was hospital-

ized at the Franklin Hospital in San Francisco for

observation and study by Drs. Howard A. Brown and

Ernest H. Falconer.

In Dr. Brown's report, he observed that X-rays of

the skull showed no sign of any fracture or other

pathological change (Tr. 83). After reviewing the

file submitted, including the reports from Honolulu

and the hospital records in the case, and after dis-
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cussion with Dr. Falconer, who examined Piatt from

a medical standpoint, Dr. Brown stated his opinion

as follows:

'^Discussion: This patient originally sustained

a blow to the head without loss of consciousness,

but with slight laceration of the scalp. He showed

no evidence of any brain injury, according to Dr.

Cloward's report. There was no evidence of a

fracture of the skull.

''Following that, the patient had some head

discomfort, which would not be unusual, consider-

ing his hypertension. However, he reached a point

where he was able to return to work, and it

was almost three months after the original blow

to the head that the patient developed evidence

of a definite cerebral vascular accident. I would

agree with the previous examining physician that

this represented a cerebral thrombosis secondary

to his vascular disease and hypertension.

"Considering the length of time that elapsed,

following the blow to the head, plus the fact

that this was a slight injury without evidence

of any brain damage, I do not feel that there

is any connection between the cerebral vascular

accident occurring February, 1943, and the head

blow of December, 1942.

"The patient very definitely shows the hyper-

tension and vascular changes which are a causa-

tive factor in the cerebral thrombosis, and, in

my opinion, this condition would have occurred

regardless of whether the patient had a blow to

the head in December or not^ (Tr. 83, 84)

Dr. Falconer, after a complete examination, con-

cluded his report with the following discussion and

opinion

:

"This patient sustained a moderately severe
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head injury on December 1, 1942. There was no
loss of consciousness, no skull fracture, no evi-

dence of any brain injury. He had rather pro-

tracted symptoms after the head injury due to

his age and the fact that he has cerebral arteri-

osclerosis and hypertension.

'Tatient returned to his work, and almost

three months after his head injury, he suffered

a thrombosis of a cerebral vessel, diminishing

the blood supply to certain centers in the brain

that control the muscular movements of face,

arm and leg on the left side of the body. Cerebral

thrombosis means that a clot forms inside a

cerebral vessel. / do not see any possible connec-

tion between the formation of this clot inside a

cerebral vessel and his head injury nearly three

months before,

*^He has evidence of arteriosclerosis in the

fundi of the ej^^ also in the kidneys as his urine

shows constantly a small trace of albumin.

''On account of his hypertension his future is

uncertain and he will be a candidate for future

trouble of the type he is now suffering." (Tr.

89, 90)

After leaving San Francisco, Mr. Piatt returned

to his home in Oregon, and the file was accordingly

transferred to Deputy Commissioner William A. Mar-

shall of the Fourteenth Compensation District, whose

office is located at Seattle. No additional hearing

was had before Mr. Marshall, and the only other evi-

dence submitted to him were the medical reports of

Drs. Brown and Falconer. After reading the record

as thus made up, and without ever seeing the claimant

or any of the witnesses in the case, Mr. Marshall
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made and entered his compensation award on Novem-

ber 29, 1943, in favor of claimant based upon a find-

ing holding in effect that the injury sustained by

claimant on December 1, 1942, was the cause of the

disability not only from December 1, 1942, to and

including January 10, 1943, but also from February

26, 1943, continuously thereafter (Tr. 91-93).

The employer and insurance carrier, feeling ag-

grieved by said order, filed complaint for mandatory

injunction on December 29, 1943, pursuant to Sec-

tion 21 of the Longshoremen's & Harborworkers'

Compensation Act (Tr. 2-12).

In due course, appellees filed a motion to dismiss

(Tr. 123), and the matter came on for hearing be-

fore the District Court. On October 18, 1944, the

District Court rendered its oral decision granting

appellees' motion to dismiss upon the theory that the

evidence in the record supported the Deputy Com-

missioner's findings and award, since the Deputy

Commissioner under the authorities was not required

to follow the testimony of the medical experts (Tr.

125-129).

The court's order granting the motion to dismiss

and affirming the findings and award of the Com-

missioner was thereafter duly entered on October 20,

1944 (Tr. 129-131). This appeal followed.
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SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS
1. There is no substantial evidence in the record to

support the finding of the Deputy Commissioner that

the accident that occurred on December 1, 1942, was

the direct proximate cause of the cerebral thrombosis

that occurred on February 26, 1943.

2. The claimant failed to sustain the burden of

proof upon the issue of whether the accident that

occurred on December 1, 1942, was the direct and

proximate cause of the cerebral thrombosis that oc-

curred on February 26, 1943.

3. The finding of the Deputy Commissioner as

above, is a mere assumption based upon possibility

and conjecture, instead of substantial proof, and is

therefore not in accordance with law.

4. The Deputy Commissioner in making the find-

ing as above, ignored all of the medical evidence

presented herein.

5. The United States District Court for the West-

ern District of Washington, Northern Division, erred

in entering its order granting appellees' motion to

dismiss and affirming the findings and award of the

Deputy Commissioner.

ARGUMENT

Inasmuch as the various specifications of error

are so inter-related that the argument upon one

necessarily involves a discussion on each of the others,

and in order, therefore, that this brief will not be

unduly encumbered with repetitious arguments, ap-
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pellants will treat all the assigned errors in one argu-

ment, a brief summary of which is as follows:

1. The findings must be supported by ''substantial

evidence/'

2. Substantial Evidence : Necessity of medical tes-

timony.

I.

The Findings Must Be Supported by "Substantial

Evidence"

The statute with which we are concerned provides

:

"If not in accordance with law, the compensa-

tion order may be suspended or set aside in whole

or in part * * ^'' (33 U.S.C.A. 921(b))

This language was construed by Mr. Chief Justice

Hughes in Crowell v. Benson, 285 U.S. 22, 46, 52

S. Ct. 285, 291, 76 L. ed. 598, 610, to mean that,
u* * * ^Yie findings of the Deputy Commissioner, sup-

ported by evidence and within the scope of his au-

thority, shall be final" (Our italics). This construc-

tion was arrived at to support the validity of the act

in the year 1932.

Thereafter, and in January of 1944, the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit decided the

case of Steamship Terminal Operating Corporation,

et al, V, Schwartz, 140 F. (2d) 7, 8, and in a per

curiam opinion said:
u* :!c :k rpi^^ Supreme Court has several times

declared that if there is evidence to support the

findings of a Deputy Commissioner, they must
be affirmed ; and by this we understand 'substan-

tiaP evidence."

Further clarification of the construction and mean-

ing of the phrase "supported by evidence," as used
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by the Supreme Court in the Crowell case, is con-

tained in Consolidated Edison Co, v. National Labor

Relations Board, 305 U.S. 197, 229, 83 L. ed. 126,

140, where the Supreme Court, in construing a similar

provision in the National Labor Relations Act said:

*'We agree that the statute, in providing that

'the findings of the Board as to the facts, if sup-

ported by evidence, shall be conclusive,' means
supported by substantial evidence. * * * Substan-

tial evidence is more than a mere scintilla. It

means such i-elevant evidence as a reasonable

mind might accept as adequate to support a

conclusion." (Our italics)

Again, in National Labor Relations Board v. Co-

lumbian E, c& S. Co., 306 U.S. 292, 299, 83 L. ed.

660, 665, the Supreme Court, speaking of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act, said:

''Section 10(e) of the Act provides: ^* * * the

findings of the Board as to the facts, if supported

by evidence, shall be conclusive.' But as has often

been pointed out, this, as in the case of other

findings by administrative bodies, means evi-

dence which is substantial, that is, affording a

substantial basis of fact from which the fact

in issue can be reasonably inferred. * * * Sub-

stantial evidence is more than a scintilla, and
must do more than create a suspicion of the

existence of the facts to be established." (Our
italics)

In the light of the foregoing cases, there can be

no question but that a compensation order is not

"in accordance with law" and may therefore be set

aside by the reviewing court, if the findings upon

which the order is based are not supported by "sub-

stantial evidence."
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As sai^ by the court in National Labor Relations

Board v. Gompson Products, Inc, 97 F. (2d) 13 (C.

C.A. 6th Cir.) at page 15:

^^The rule of substantial evidence is one of

fundamental importance and is the dividing line

between law and arbitrary power. Testimony is

the raw material out of which we construct truth

and, unless all of it is weighed in its totality,

errors will result and great injustices be

wrought.'^

This case, therefore, presents the narrow issue:

Are the findings of the Deputy Commissioner as to

causal relationship supported by ''substantial evi-

dence'^ as these words are above defined?

n.

Substantial Evidence:

Necessity of Medical Testimony

It is obvious that we are dealing here with a

highly complicated medical subject requiring, of ne-

cessity, the opinion of expert medical testimony to

establish the pathological cause of the cerebral throm-

bosis suffered by claimant on February 26, 1943.

That Deputy Commission Gray, who conducted the

original hearing on the matter, clearly recognized

that fact, will be seen from his careful and painstak-

ing examination of Dr. Cloward, during which he

said:

COMM. Gray: ''All I am trying to do is get the

facts. Here we have a man, as I understand

it from the record, had been performing his

work in more or less a normal state ; an accident

intervened and he has two occurrences, as we
see them. The one was of a temporary nature;
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he returned to work and attended certain con-

ferences, as the record will show, under difficulty.

In fact, they cut the conferences short because

of his apparent distress. Then his wife goes in

and finds him in the bath room apparently in the

throes of a paralytic state, and he is returned to

the care of a doctor. Purely a medical question,''^

CoMM. Gray : "I have to depend upon the doc-

tor's professional knowledge, and what I am
trying to do, on the basis of his professional

knowledge, is to determine the possibility or the

probability of the second occurrence being re-

lated to the first occurrence.''

CoMM. Gray: '1 have to determine it in the

final analysis and / can only determine it on

the basis of the advice that the doctors give to

me, I am not trying to sway the doctor's opinion

;

I am trying to find out what he thinks about it."

(Tr. 116)

The rule as to the necessity of medical testimony

in such cases is well stated in 32 C.J.S. Sec. 569d,

page 399, as follows:

''As a general rule the weight to be given the

opinion of a medical or other expert witness as

to the cause or effect of a happening, condition,

situation, or circumstance is for the jury or other

trier of the facts, and the opinion is not conclu-

sive, but when the subject under consideration

is one within the knowledge of experts only, and
there is no reason for the exercise of common
knowledge, undisputed expert testimony which is

based on scientific processes, methods, or knowl-

edge is to be accepted as conclusive by the trier

of the facts, provided the credibility of the wit-

ness or witnesses is accepted. An expert opinion

as to cause or effect may constitute substantial
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evidence, sufficient to support a finding in ac-

cordance with the opinion. Expert evidence as

to causal connection is not necessary where facts

are testified to by lay witnesses with sufficient

clearness that laymen in ordinary affairs of life

can infer cause from effect, but, where an in-

jury is of such a character as to require skilled

and professional men to determine the cause

thereof, the question is one of science, which
must be proved by the testimony of skilled and
professional menJ*

Certainly the cause of the cerebral thrombosis in

question here, involves a determination of abstruse

physical processes, concerning which a layman can

have no well-founded knowledge, and can do no more

than indulge in mere speculation and conjecture.

Clearly, the cause thereof is purely a question of

science which must be proved by the testimony of

skilled and professional men.

A well-reasoned case bearing out this principle is

Pacific Employey^s Ins. Co. v. Ind. Ace. Comm., 118

P. (2d) 334 (Cal. 1941). There the question was

whether there was any evidence in the record to sup-

port the award of compensation based upon a finding

that a varicose ulcer from which applicant was suf-

fering constituted a new and further disability proxi-

mately caused by an injury for which the claimant

had already received medical treatment.

There, as in this case, the medical experts testified

or reported that there was no causal relation between

the original injury and claimant's subsequent condi-

tion. There was evidence, however, that the subse-

quent ulcer was in the exact site or in the region of
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the original ulcer. Also, the claimant testified that

her personal physical' told her that the original in-

jury was responsible for her subsequent condition.

The court, in setting aside the award as not based

on ^^evidence,'^ announced the following principles:

1. The findings of the Commission are subject to

review only insofar as they have been made
without any evidence whatever in support there-

of.

2. An award of compensation may not be based

upon surmise, conjecture or speculation.

3. Evidence that the subsequent ulcer was in exact

site or in the region of the original ulcer, stand-

ing alone, was not sufficient upon which to base

an award upon the ground that the original in-

jury proximately caused a new and further dis-

ability.

4. The location of the subsequent ulcer in the region

of the former could be proved by testimony of

a layman, who observed its external appear-

ance, but the cause of such ulcer could best be

proved by one having expert scientific knowl-

edge.

5. Witnesses of common experience from ordinary

observation and obvious facts may testify as to

the existence of the physical or mental condi-

tion, but the pathological cause of an ailment

is a scientific question upon which it is necessary

to obtain scientific knowledge.

Concluding its opinion, the court said

:

*The Commission evidently disregarded the

testimony of experts introduced by the petitioner

herein to the effect that the present ulcer was
in no way related to the original injury. This

was within the province of the Commission, but
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it leaves the record devoid of evidence upon an
ultimate fact on a scientific question/'

Likev/ise, the record here is barren of any expert

medical testimony establishing a causal connection

between the accident that occurred on December 1,

1942, and the cerebral thrombosis which developed

approximately three months thereafter, on February

26, 1943. Thus, Dr. Cloward, who was the attending

physician, testified that claimant's collapse on Febru-

ary 26, 1943, was due to cerebral thrombosis, which

had no connection whatever with the blow received

on December 1, 1942. He admitted that, to a lay-

man, there might appear to be some connection, but

not to him. He concluded, after watching the claim-

ant for a few days, that he was a ''maniac depressive

type," and said that the high blood pressure from

which the claimant was suffering at the time he first

examined him, was not due to the accident, and that

this high blood pressure caused the vascular accident

that resulted in his paralysis.

Dr. Howard A. Brown, who examined claimant at

the Franklin Hospital in San Francisco in June,

1943, after observation and study, concluded his re-

port by saying that the hypertension and vascular

changes v/hich are a causative factor in the cerebral

thrombosis, would have occurred regardless of wheth-

er the patient had a blow to the head in December or

not.

Dr. Falconer, who likewise examined the claim-

ant in consultation with Dr. Brown, gave as his un-

qualified opinion that there was no possible connection

between the formation of the clot that formed inside



26

claimant's cerebral vessel and his head injury nearly

three months before.

In City of Owerisboro v. Day, 145 S.W.(2d) 856

(Ky. 1940), the court said:

''When the disputed fact is one relating to a

particular science, concerning which only an ex-

pert may possess knowledge, then the witness

necessarily becomes an expert in that science,

since laymen are not supposed to — and in a

great majority of cases do not—possess knowl-

edge concerning the involved, obscure and scien-

tific facts. Therefore, in a case like this one, the

only competent witnesses to prove the concrete

and decisive fact involved must necessarily be

miembers of the medical profession. Laymen can,

and they did in this case, testify concerning

many relevant facts — concerning the conduct,

effect, external symptoms, reduction in weight,

and other occurrences and conditions having a

more or less bearing upon the case, but, after

all, the expert witness must be consulted in order

to arrive at a correct conclusion.''

The court below, in its oral decision, did not con-

cede, of course, that there was no medical testimony

tending to support the findings. It gave two examples

of what it considered ''mxcdical testimony" in support

of such findings:

(1) Dr. Cloward's purported statement to Mrs.

Piatt concerning the blood clot not dissolving

as a reason for the doctor keeping Mr. Piatt

in bed in a reclining position longer than the

doctor had expected to do; and

(2) Dr. Cloward's testimony that it could not be

said positively whether the accident caused

the paralysis or not, and that cerebral par-
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alysis could develop quickly or gradually and
progressively.

It is submitted that neither one of these examples

constitutes medical testimony of such quality or de-

gree as can be said to be '^substantial evidence'' as

heretofore defined. At most, they constitute nothing

more than ^'scintilla'' and do nothing more than

^^create a suspicion of the existence of the fact to be

established."

Considering the first example given by the court,

there are three answers to the same:

(1) The statement was ^^mere uncorroborated

hearsay'' and as such does not constitute *^sub-

stantial evidence." Consolidated Edison Co. v.

National Labor Relations Board, 305 U.S. 197,

230, 83 L. ed. 126, 140.

(2) Dr. Cloward testified positively that there

was no evidence of any blood cot during the

claimant's first admission to the hospital, and

that if he ever made such a statement to claim-

ant's wife, it was ''certainly done unintention-

ally." (Tr. 119)

(3) The statement of itself does not establish

causal relationship.

As to the second example of medical testimony

given by the court below, the following may be said:

(1) The mere fact that Dr. Cloward stated

that he didn't think it could be said positively

one way or the other that the injury to claim-

ant's head caused his paralysis, certainly, of

itself, would not constitute "substantial evidence"

upon which the finding of causal relationship

could be based, since it amounts to nothing more

than a statement of doubt on the subject;
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(2) His testimony must be read in its entirety,

and the meaning thereof not distorted by select-

ing a word or phrase here and there. His ex-

planation as to the two methods whereby par-

alysis is brought about through an accident to

the head, when read in its entirety, establishes

that claimant's paralysis did not come from
either method. It certainly did not come on im-

mediately following the blow, and it did not

come on gradually, since it was not evidenced

by any awkwardness of the function of claim-

ant's extremities during the intervening period.

There was no evidence that claimant showed

any signs of paralysis from December 1, 1942, to

February 26, 1943. On the contrary, the evidence

was undisputed that the paralysis came on sud-

denly on the latter date, with no intervening

signs of paralysis in the interim. How, then,

can it be said that Dr. Cloward's explanation

that cerebral paralysis could develop quickly

or gradually and progressively, supports the find-

ing of causal relationship herein, from a medical

standpoint?

The lower court, however, did not rely upon these

examples of so-called ^^medical testimony'' upon which

to base its decision. Rather, it felt that support for

the finding of causal relationship could be found in

the non-medical testimony, and that the medical testi-

mony to the contrary could be disregarded.

In other words, medical testimony was not neces-

sary to establish the pathological cause of the cerebral

thrombosis suffered by claimant, but that proof there-

of may be established from the testimony of laymen

concerning the conduct, effect and external symptoms

of the claimant.
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The lower court as authority for such a conclusion

relied upon the following four cases, the facts and

holdings of which are as follows

:

1. Southern S,S. Co, v. Norton, 41 F. Supp. 108

(D.C. Penn. 1941). There, the employee was struck

on the face over his eye by a cargo net. He testified

that his vision was impaired after the accident, al-

though it had not been impaired prior thereto. One of

the doctors who examined the employee at the instance

of the Deputy Commissioner, reported that there was

a partially dislocated lens in his eye which with other

conditions present, was sufficient to account for the

diminution in vision. He further stated that in his

opinion ''this condition could have been caused by

the above injury. Likewise, it was perfectly possible

that this could have existed before the injury.''

Another impartial physician rendered his report,

in which it was stated that there was a dislocated

lens in the left eye, and that ''this man's condition

may be due to the accident or it may have existed

prior to this injury."

Several doctors, testifying for the employer, stated

that while there was some physical injury to the eye

due to the accident, the latter caused no impairment

of sight.

On the basis of this evidence, the court held that

there was sufficient competent evidence to support

a finding by the Commissioner to the effect that the

injury did result from the accident.

In the first place it does not appear from the de-

cision whether any interval of time elapsed between

the occurrence of the accident and the subsequent
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diminution in vision. In all probability howv^r, both

occurred simultaneously. Secondly, all doctors agreed

that there was some physical injury to the eye due to

the accident, the only dispute being whether such

physical injury caused impairment of sight. Thirdly,

one of the doctors gave as his opinion that the impair-

ment in vision could have been caused by the injury.

Lastly, this was a case where laymen in ordinary

affairs of life could infer cause from effect, for ob-

viously if the testimony of the employee was believed

that his left eye and vision was normal prior to the

accident, but that he could not see so well after the

accident, and doctors corroborated the presence of

actual physical injury to the eye, medical testimony

positively establishing a causal relation was obviously

unnecessary.

In the case at bar, however, the original accident

and the paralysis that manifested itself did not follow

each other in such immediate sequence as to permit

laymen in ordinary affairs of life to infer cause from

effect. Also in the case at bar, all the doctors were

unanimous in their several opinions that there was
no causal connection, and that the paralysis was due

to hypertension and vascular changes, which were not

in any way related to the original blow. In other

words, the medical testimony definitely and positively

established no causal relation. This was not even a

^'doubtful" case from a medical standpoint.

2. The next case relied upon by the lower court was

Rtjan Stevedoring Co. v. Norton, 50 F. Supp. 221 (D.

C. Penn. 1943). There, the opinion does not disclose

the nature of the injury or the disability involved.
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The decision merely states that the claimant was in-

jured on April 25, 1939, and was disabled intermit-

tently to August 4, 1940, and received compensation

for this disability. In August of 1941, claimant filed

a claim for compensation on the ground of recur-

rence of the disability, and after a hearing, an award

was made for compensation for a period of about

four weeks. Thereafter, there was a further recur-

rence of disability, and compensation, was voluntar-

ily paid until February 12, 1942. In April, 1942, the

claimant filed an application for review, and an order

was entered allowing compensation for a period ter-

minating April 2, 1942. The award which plaintiffs

sought to set aside was made August 28, 1942, and

granted compensation to the claimant for a three-

week period beginning August 6, 1942, on the ground

that claimant had suffered another recurrence of total

disability during that period.

At the hearing, the only doctor who testified stated

that there was no causal connection between claim-

ant's present disability and the accident of April 25,

1939. However, the award was sustained on the basis

of claimant's own testimony as to his condition and

ability to work prior to the accident and the pain

which he suffered during the period in question when

he attempted to perform any physical labor, a con-

dition which had recurred intermittently for a period

of several years since the injury.

In connection with that case, it may be said that

since the nature of the injury or disability involved

is not disclosed, it might therefore very well be that

the cause of the disability was not of the type re-
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quiring expert medical testimony. Furthermore, the

disability involved was apparently a subjective con-

dition, and one for which compensation was allowed

as late as April 2, 1942. The facts in that case, there-

fore, are so obviously dissimilar to the facts in the

case at bar, as to rob the decision of any convincing

weight.

3. The third case relied upon by the lower court was

Frank Marram i)'. Norton, 56 F.(2d) 246 (D.C. Penn.

1931). There, the question was whether the employee

died in consequence of the injuries sustained, or

whether his death was due to what are usually

termed natural causes. The opinion does not disclose

the type of injury or the interval that elapsed between

the two events.

The medical testimony was merely to the effect that

the death might have been due to the injuries re-

ceived. The Court conceded that if the expert testi-

mony was all the evidence in support of the findings

made, it would have been insufficient. But it said

that there was other evidence, without specifying it,

that would support the finding, and therefore the

expert testimony need not have been relied upon.

That case is likewise weak as authority in view of

the nondisclosure of the type of injury received and

of the time intervening before the death resulted. It

may very well have been therefore that laymen in

ordinary affairs of life could infer cause from effect,

from the facts themselves, without the aid of expert

opinion. Certainly, the cause of a death is not within

the peculiar province of expert opinion in every in-

stance.
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4. The last case cited by the court as authority is

McNeelly v. Sheppeard, 89 F.(2d) 956 ( 5th Cir. 1937).

There, the question was whether the pneumonia which

the employee died of was caused through becoming

overheated and suddenly chilled as a result of his

employment. The Deputy Commissioner found that

the working conditions were otherwise normal, and

that neither the work in which he was engaged nor

the conditions of his employment caused him to be-

come overheated. He thereupon denied compensation.

The employee's physician testified that he thought the

cause of death was the natural result of the condition

under which he worked, but he also testified that

sleeping in a draught, or driving in an automobile, or

other exposure could cause it, and that often a man in

good health could take pneumonia without any expo-

sure; it coming from different causes and being no

respecter of persons.

The District Court affirmed the order denying com-

pensation, saying that the physcian's opinion, while

admissible, was not conclusive.

It will be noted that this case does not involve the

occurrence of any accident. Furthermore, pneumonia

was shown not to be an occupational disease. At any

rate, this was a case where the subject under con-

sideration was not one within the knowledge of ex-

perts only, but one within the common knowledge of

laymen. It is difficult to see how this decision stands

in the way of a reversal of the order complained of.

Additional cases were cited by Appellees in the lower

court as authority for the statement that the Deputy

Commissioner is not bound to accept the opinion or
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theory of any particular medical examiner, and that

he may rely upon his own observation and judgment

in conjunction with the evidence. These cases will

be discussed in chronological order:

1. Joyce V. United States Deputy Commissioner, 33

F.(2d) 218 (D.C. Me. 1929). This case was the first

to announce that doctrine and cited no cases in sup-

port thereof. The case, however, does not involve a

question of causality, but merely a determination of

the percentage of disability sustained by an employee

to his hand. The court recognizes that the question

was not ^'wholly a medical question."

This was clearly a case where the Deputy Commis-

sioner was in as good a position to pass on the ques-

tion fi^om his own observation, as any doctor could do,

since the injury was visible.

2. Jarka Corporation v. Norton, 56 F.(2d) 287 (D.

C. Penn. 1930). The injury involved herein was a

fracture of a bone in the spinal column. The question

involved was not strictly a matter of causation, but

merely whether the pain which the claimant complain-

ed of wwas due to the fracture. A disinterested doctor

testified as to ''possibility.'' The opinion likewise does

not cite any case on this point.

3. Zurich General Accident & L, Ins. Co, v. Mar-

shall, 42 F.(2d) 1010 (D.C. Wash. 1930). The injury

involved was a fractured back and a dislocated shoul-

der. Several doctors testified that the claimant was

totally incapacitated from following the duties of a

longeshoreman. The question was whether claimant

was actually disabled, and the matter of causation was
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in no way involved. The opinion merely states that

the Joyce case supra ^^is in harmony herewith."

A. Booth V. Monahan, 56 F.(2d) 168 (D.C. Me.

1930). This opinion was written by the same judge

who wrote the opinion in the Joyce case supra. Like

the Joyce case, it involved merely the percentage of

disability sustained to an injured limb, and does not

involve the question of causation.

B.Baltimore & Ohio R,R. Co. v, Clark, 56 F.(2d)

212 (D.C. Md. 1932). In this case, the employee died

two days following an attack of heat prostration. Ac-

tually there was medical testimony in support of

the finding of causal relationship. It will be further

noted that a comparatively short interval intervened

between the two events.

6. Liberty Stevedoring Co. v. Cardillo, 18 F. Supp.

729 (D.C. N.Y. 1937). In this case, there was in-

volved an injury to the foot. The claimant was under

continuous medical treatment at a hospital for one and

a half years. His leg was eventually amputated.

Medical evidence supported the finding of causal re-

lationship.

It will be seen from a review of each of the fore-

going cases that the question of causation was not in-

volved in many of them, and in those where that ques-

tion was involved, there was medical testimony in sup-

port of the finding. These cases go no further than

to state the rule that the Deputy Commissioner is not

required to follow the testimony of medical experts

where there is other competent evidence to support

the finding. They do not pass upon the question of

whether non-medical testimony is competent to prove
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causation where the physical processes terminating

in death or disability are obscure and abstruse, and

concerning which a layman can have no well-founded

knowledge. Appellants submit that the rule firmly

established in the State courts to the effect that where

disability for which compensation is sought under the

Workmen^s Compensation Act is of such a character

as to require the determination of its nature, cause

and extent to be made by professional persons, the

only competent proof thereof must be made by the

testimony of such witnesses, should be followed by

this court.

A State decision on ^^all fours^' with the situation

involved in the case at bar, is Burton v, Holden & M,

Lbr, Co., 20 Atl.(2d) 99, 135 A.L.R. 512 (Vt. 1941).

The case involved a determination of the cause of

cerebral thrombosis and the sufficiency and necessity

of expert medical testimony to support the finding

and award of a Workmen's Compensation Commis-

sioner. The facts were these:

On April 9, 1940, Burton, aged 61, was examined

by a physician for hospital benefit insurance, and was
found to be in normal condition for a man of his age,

and no material hardening of the arteries was ob-

served. On April 11, 1940, he got a sliver in his left

thumb while working in the lumber yard of defend-

ant employer. He was first treated by a doctor on

April 18 following, who testified that Burton was then

suffering from an infection of the injured thumb;

that the infection was localized and did not go into

his system at any time, and, although serious as far

as the function of the thumb was concerned, was not
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serious as far as his system was concerned; that the

thumb healed perfectly well, but continued to be more

tender than the other thumb, which was to be ex-

pected, inasmuch as there was new scar tissue there

and the thumb had gone through a process of inflam-

mation; that ten days to two weeks after the thumb

had healed, he was again called upon to treat Bur-

ton, and found that he had difficulty in walking, had

been a bit confused, was unable to get about his house

without some help, and was in a weakened condition

;

and that he was taken to the hospital, where he re-

mained three weeks, until he died of cerebral throm-

bosis on June 19, 1940. The doctor further testified

that in his opinion the infection could have been a

possible contributing cause of the thrombosis. The

question certified for review was whether the evidence

concerning the alleged causation of death by the in-

jury to decedent's thumb was legally sufficient to sup-

port the finding that the injury to the decedent's

thumb resulted in his death.

The Supreme Court of Vermont, in annulling the

order of the Commissioner of Industrial Relations,

said:

**There are many cases where the facts proved

are such that any layman of average intelligence

would know, from his own knowledge and exper-

ience, that the injuries were the cause of death.

In such a case the requirements of law are met
without expert testimony. * * * But where, as

here, the physical processes terminating in death

are obscure and abstruse, and concerning which

the layman can have no well-founded knowledge

and can do no more than indulge in mere spec-

ulation, there is no proper foundation for a find-
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ing by the trier without expert medical testi-

mony. * * *

''The mere fact that the infection in decedent's

thumb resulting from the sliver could have been

a possible contributing cause of his death, does

not alone warrant a finding that it was. * * *

There must be created in the mind of the trier

something more than a possibility, suspicion or

surmise that such was the cause, and the infer-

ence from the facts proved must be at least the

more probable hypothesis, with reference to the

possibility of other hypotheses. * * *

'The Commissioner recognized that the cause'

of death was obscure, that expert medical testi-

mony could alone lay a foundation for his award,

and that the testimony of the doctor that the

infection from the sliver could have been a pos-

sible contributing cause of death, without more,

was not enough to support an award. But by
taking into consideration all of the evidence, not

only the expect testimony but also all the cir-

cumstances of the case as shown by the evidence,

he concluded that he was justified in finding

that the sliver was the cause of death.

"Since expert evidence that an accident can

or cannot cause a certain result may affect the

conclusion to be reached * * *, it follows that in

the case of injuries so naturally and directly

connected with the accident that proof of causa-

tion does not depend upon expert evidence, med-
ical testimony of 'possibility' may corroborate

the other testimony. But unless the facts, outside

such medical testimony, fairly warrant the con-

clusion that the injury resulted from the acci-

dent, causation is not established. * * * A pos-

sible cause cannot be accepted as the operating

cause unless the evidence excludes all other causes
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or shows something in direct connection with the

occurrence. * * *''

In concluding its opinion, the court said:

''In spite of the decedent's good health so soon

before his death, a layman of average intelli-

gence, from his own knowledge and experience,

could have no well-grounded knowledge that the

sliver was the cause of death. Although told that

the sliver might have caused the fatal illness, the

trier could only speculate as to whether it did or

not.''

To the same effect see Cutler v, Bergen Etc, Co,,

25 Atl.(2d) 75 (Penn.).

As in the Burton case. Deputy Commissioner Gray,

who conducted the original hearing in this matter,

and was the only one to face the various witnesses,

recognized that the cause of the cerebral thrombosis

was obscure, and that expert medical testimony could

alone lay a foundation for an award, when he said

that the situation involved ''purely a medical ques-

tion," and that "I can only determine it on the basis

of the advice that the doctors give to me" (Tr. 116).

The Burton case is also similar to the case at bar

not only because it involved the same subsequent ail-

ment, viz,, cerebral thrombosis, but also ^because the

Commissioner felt that while the medical testimony

was insufficient of itself, he was justified, by taking

into consideration all of the circumstances of the case,

in finding that the original accident was the cause

of death. In other words, the Commissioner there,

as the Deputy Commissioner in the instant case, per-

mitted sequence of events to supply the necessary

proof of causation in a case where a layman of aver-
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age intelligence could have no well-grounded know-

ledge on the particular ailment in question.

In 32 C.J.S., p. 1127, Sec. 1042, the author, speak-

ing on the subject of causation, says:

"The mere fact that one event follows another

in time does not establish a causal relationship

between them."

Cited in support thereof is Bussmann Mfg. Co. v.

National Labor Relations Board, 111 F. (2d) 783

(8th Cir. 1940), where the court said, at page 787:

'Troof of mere sequence is not sufficient to es-

tablish consequence or causal sequence. A post

hoc ergo jjroper hoc is sound neither in logic nor

in law.''

As an illustration, the 32 C.J.S., p. 1127 cites Trad-

ers & General Ins. v. Cole, 108 S.W.(2d) 864 (Tex.),

holding that proof that a person was sane prior to ac-

cident and that at some time after the accident he be-

come insane, did not, in the absence of evidence that the

accident was the cause of the insanity, constitute proof

that insanity was the result of the accident.

The Burton case presented a stronger case from a

medical standpoint than that presented in the case at

bar, since the doctor there went so far as to say that

the infection could have been a "possible contributing

cause'' of the thrombosis. In the instant case, there

is not even that opinion expressed by any of the doc-

tors. The strongest admission made by any of the doc-

tors came from Dr. Cloward, who in answer to Deputy

Commissioner Gray's question as to whether there was

a "strong possibility" that the accident did have some-

thing to do with the subsequent disability, answered:

"I wouldn't say there was a strong possibility.

I think it is very slight." (Tr. 117)
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CONCLUSION
The Deputy Commissioner who entered the order

complained of herein had only the cold record upon

which to predicate his findings. This is not a case

where he could from his own observation of the claim-

ant, arrive at his own conclusions. Instead the case

presented a "purely medical question." After reading

the record, he chose to disregard entirely the only

true probative evidence in the case, given by men of

science, who were the only persons qualified to pass

on such a highly complicated medical question. As

stated in Pacific Employers Ins, Co. v. Ind, Ace.

Comm., 118 P. (2d) 334 (Cal. 1941), this probably

was within his province, but by disregarding the med-

ical evidence the record was thereby devoid of the

only competent evidence bearing on the question of

cause and effect. In so doing, the Deputy Commis-

sioner entered the field of speculation and conjecture.

The award entered by him, being based on specula-

tion and conjecture, rather than upon "substantial ev-

idence" is therefore "not in accordance with law."

The compensation order of the Deputy Commissioner

should therefore be annulled, set aside and held for

naught, and the Judgment of the District Court grant-

ing Appellees' Motion for Dismissal of Appellants'

Complaint for Mandatory Injunction should be re-

versed.

Respectfully submitted,

Eggerman, Rosling & Williams,
D. G. Eggerman,
Edw. L. Rosling,

DeWitt Williams,
Joseph J. Lanza,

Attorneys for Appellants.
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from an order of the United

States District Court for the Western District of

Washington, Northern Division, Honorable John C.

Bowen, District Judge, dismissing the petition of Con-

tractors, PNAB, to set aside the award of compensa-

tion filed on November 29, 1943, by Deputy Commis-

sioner William A. Marshall, one of the appellees

herein, in favor of John B. Piatt on account of disa-

bility resulting from injuries sustained on December

1, 1942, while employed in the Territory of Hawaii



by appellant Contractors, PNAB, hereinafter referred

to as the employer. The other appellant, Liberty Mu-

tual Insurance Company, hereinafter referred to as

the carrier, was the insurance carrier of the compen-

sation liability of the employer. The compensation

award was made pursuant to the provisions of the

Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Compensation

Act of March 4, 1927, 44 Stat. 1424 (33 U.S.C. 901,

et seq,) as made applicable to persons employed at cer-

tain defense base areas and other places by the Act of

August 16, 1941, 55 Stat. 622 (42 U.S.C. 1651-1654).

On December 1, 1942, Piatt was seated at his

desk when an electric light reflector shade fell from

the ceiling and struck him on the head. Piatt was

assisted to the first aid station where those who were

caring for him had him lie down and placed an ice-

pack on his back and head. He was told to go home

and lie down for 24 hours, which he did. On Decem-

ber 3, 1942, he was picked up in an automobile and

taken to his office for an important conference but

could not continue with the meeting because of his

condition. The same day the doctor ordered him to

the hospital where he remained until December 24,

1942, when he was brought home in an ambulance.

From January 12, 1943, to February 26, 1943, he

performed light duties at the office in an advisory



capacity for a few hours a day. He was very tired,

had severe headaches, and felt dizzy. Finally on

February 26, 1943, while getting ready to go to work,

Piatt collapsed in the bathroom of his home and was

again taken to the hospital. His condition was diag-

nosed as cerebral thrombosis, which had paralyzed his

left side.

Piatt filed claim for compensation. The employ-

er and the carrier denied the claim upon the sole

ground that the cerebral thrombosis was not related

to the injury of December 1, 1942. Hearings were

held before the deputy commissioner on June 2, 1943

and June 30, 1943. Both sides offered evidence with

respect to the issue controverted. Upon the evidence

thus adduced before him the deputy commissioner on

November 29, 1943 filed the compensation order com-

plained of (R. 9), whereby he found that Piatt was

disabled as the result of the injury of December

1, 1942.

The employer and carrier thereupon instituted

a proceeding to review the compensation order pur-

suant to the provisions of section 21 (b) of the Long-

shoremen's Act (33 U.S.C. 921 (b)). They alleged,

in substance, that the compensation order is not in

accordance with law because there was no evidence



that the cerebral thrombosis which became manifest

on February 26, 1943, was caused by the injury of

December 1, 1942. A motion to dismiss the complaint

was filed on behalf of the deputy commissioner. The

cause came on for a hearing before the District Judge,

who by an order entered on October 20, 1944, granted

the motion and dismissed the complaint. The em-

ployer and its carrier appeal.

ARGUMENT
I

THE FINDING OF THE DEPUTY COMMIS-
SIONER THAT CLAIMANT WAS DISABLED
AS THE RESULT OF HIS INJURY IS SUP-
PORTED BY EVIDENCE, AND BEING THUS
SUPPORTED IS FINAL AND CONCLUSIVE.

A. The Principles of Law Support the Deputy
Commissioner's Action

The crux of the appellants' case is (1) that the

deputy commissioner did not accept certain medical

testimony favorable to appellants in making his find-

ings of fact, and (2) that the medical testimony does

not support his finding that disability resulted from

the injury.

The only conclusion to be drawn from the ap-

pellants' contentions is that the deputy commissioner

of necessity had to rest his decision on no other basis



than the particular part of the medical testimony

which they cite, notwithstanding all of the other

direct and circumstantial evidence before him in the

case. No rule of law requires the deputy commis-

sioner to base his decision upon the testimony or a

part thereof, of any particular witness, whether he

be a medical or a lay witness. On the contrary, it is

well known that the decision of the deputy commis-

sioner must rest upon the whole body of the evidence,

with due appraisal of the probative value of each

part of it, as well as upon the proper inferences which

are to be drawn from the evidence, giving to circum-

stantial evidence its due weight. ""

The action of the deputy commissioner in the

present case is supported by (1) the direct and cir-

^ It is solely within the province of the deputy
commissioner or compensation administrator to de-

termine the credibility of witnesses, and he may ac-

cept and believe all or any part of the testimony ac-

cording to his own sound judgment of its truthfulness

and reliability. Wilson & Co,, Inc, v, Locke, deputy
commissioner, 50 F. (2d) 81 (CCA. 2, 1931); Ra-
kowski's case, 173 N.E. 521, 273 Mass. 363 (1930);
Benjamin v, Rosenberg Bros,, 167 N.Y.S. 650 (1917),
aff d. 223 N.Y. 569. In considering the evidence the

deputy commissioner may give weight to ^^the com-
mon-sense of the situation'\ Avignone Freres, Inc. v.

Cardillo, deputy commissioner, 117 F. (2d) 385 (App.
D.C, 1940).



cumstantial evidence in the case; (2) the presump-

tion which arises from the following facts, all of which

were consistent with the kind of injury which he sus-

tained: (a) the apparent good health of the employee,

(b) the sustaining of an injury, (c) the consequent

chain of symptoms, illness, headaches, and disability,

including his final collapse; and (3) the general pre-

sumption in the Longshoremen's Act. These will be

discussed in the order given.

(1) The direct and circumstantial evidence, in

direct proof of his claim, and as supporting the in-

ference and ultimate conclusion that the disability

from paralysis resulted from the cause alleged, is so

strong as to leave it hardly likely that a reasonable

person would conclude otherwise than did the deputy

commissioner.^ Not only was this conclusion reached

by the deputy commissioner, but it is also that of the

^ The findings of fact of the deputy commissioner
supported by evidence should be regarded as final

and conclusive and not subject to judicial review.

Marshall, deputy commissioner v, Pletz, 317 U.S. 383
(1943) ; South Chicago Coal & Dock Co, v, Bassett,

deputy commissioner, 309 U.S. 251 (1940); Del
Vecchio v. Bowers, 296 U.S. 280 (1935); Voehl v.

Indemnity Insurance Co, of North America, 288 U.S.
162 (1933) ; Jules C, UHote v, Crowell, deputy com-
missioner, 286 U.S. 528 (1932) ; Parker, deputy com-
missioner V, Motor Boat Sales, Inc, 314 U.S. 244



District Judge who independently read the record, for

he said (R. 127):

''In fact, I do not see how one reading this

record could come to any conclusion as to the

cause of Mr. Piatt's disability other than the one
the deputy commissioner came to/'

This appraisal of all of the evidence, circumstan-

tial and direct, by the court below and its conclusion

thereon, is the fair one and that which appeals strong-

est to the reason. It is the ''common sense of the sit-

uation'' {Avignone Freres, Inc, v, Cardillo, 117 F.

(2d) 385; App. D.C. 1940). Here we have the case

of an employee in apparent good health prior to the

injury, working at a war job which required good

health and great vigor. He was struck a blow upon

the head, which was diagnosed as concussion of the

brain, and from that point on there is a record of a

constant and continual succession of illness and sym-

toms until the day of his final collapse. No inter-

(1941); See 71. C. J. 1297, Sec. 1268. The findings

of fact of the deputy commissioner are presumed to

be correct. Anderson v, Hoage, deputy commissioner

,

70 F. (2d) 773 (App. D.C. 1934); Luckenbach
Steamship Co, v. Norton, deputy commissioner, 96 F.

(2d) 764 (CCA. 3, 1938); Burley Welding Works,
Inc. V. Lawson, deputy commissioner, 141 F. (2d)

964 (CCA. 5, 1944).
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vening accident was shown. None is alleged. If a

fair appraisal is to be made of all of the evidence,

these facts and circumstances, here briefly stated but

appearing in full in the record, must be weighed as

part of the totality of the evidence.

(2) But aside from this direct and circumstan-

tial evidence, there is a presumption arising from the

facts themselves which further supports the action

of the deputy commissioner. This is the presump-

tion followed in Wroten v, Woodley Petroleum Co.^

12 La. App. 348, 124, So. 542 (1929), which holds,

in substance, that where a workman in apparent good

health sustains injury producing immediate symptoms

and disability and these symptoms and disability con-

tinue thereafter, there arises a presumption that the

subsequent disability, if consistent with the kind of

injury sustained, did in fact result from the injury.

In the present case the ultimate result was consistent

with the kind of injury sustained.^ It was definitely

not consistent with some other kind of injury. This

presumption is very similar to the general ''presump-

^ Logical deductions and inferences which may
be and are drawn by the deputy commissioner from
the evidence are the equivalent of established facts

and are not judicially reviewable: Liberty Mutual
Insurance Co. v. Gray, deputy commissioner, 137 F.

(2d) 926 (CCA. 9, 1943); Michigan Transit Cor-
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tion of continuity'' of the existence of a given state of

facts, or a condition, which the courts frequently

rely upon.

(3) There is, finally, the general presumption

in the Longshoremen's Act (33 U.S.C. 920) that the

claim comes within the provisions of the Act/ Here,

the testimony of the claimant, Piatt, with that of his

wife and of the other witnesses constituting a narra-

poration v. Brown, deputy commissioner , 56 F. (2d)

200 (D.C. Mich., 1929) ; Del Vecchio v. Bowers, 296
U.S. 280 (1935); Eastern Steamship Lines, Inc, v.

Monahan, deputy commissioner, 21 F. Supp. 535
(D.C. Me., 1937); Grain Handling Co,, Inc, v, Mc-
Manigal, deputy commissioner, 23 F. Supp. 748
(W.D.N. Y., 1938) ; Simmons v, Marshall, deputy com-
missioner, 94 F. (2d) 850 (CCA. 9, 1938) ; Lowe,
deputy commissioner v. Central R,R, Co,, 113 F. (2d)
413 (CCA. 3, 1940) ; Parker, deputy commissioner v.

Motor Boat Sales, Inc., 314 U. S. 244 (1941); Con-
tractors, PNAB, V, Pillsbury, deputy commissioner,
F. (2d) (CCA. 9, No. 10,950, June 22, 1945).

^ The Longshoremen's Act should be liberally con-
strued in favor of the injured employee or his de-
pendent family. Baltimore & Philadelphia Steam-
boat Co, V, Norton, deputy commissioner, 284 U.S.
408 (1932) ; Fidelity & Casualty Co. v. Burris, 59 F.

(2d) 1042 (App. D.C 1932); Associated General
Contractors v. Cardillo, deputy commissioner, 106 F.
(2d) 327 (App. D.C, 1939) ; DeWald v. Baltimore &
Ohio R.R. Co., 71 F. (2d) 810 (CCA. 4, 1934),
cert. den. 293 U.S. 581.
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tion of all the facts and circumstances, together with

the permissible inferences which the evidence sup-

ports, of itself established a prima facie case for the

claimant.^

A prima facie case having been thus established,

the burden of proof shifted to the employer. This

burden, as spelled out under the Act, was to estab-

lish, if it could, by ^^substantial evidence to the conN

trary" (33 U.S.C. 920), that the claim did not come

within the provisions of the Act.^ What was this

'^substantial'' evidence to the contrary which respon-

dents submitted? It certainly was not any evidence

relating to the fact and circumstances of the injury,

or to the fact of subsequent disabilitity and illness as

^ Notwithstanding sharp conflict in the evidence

on question of disability, the injured employee's tes-

timony alone is sufficient to sustain an award in his

favor. Independent Pier Co, v, Norton^ deputy com-
missioner, 54 F. (2d) 734 (CCA. 3, 1931).

^ The burden is on the plaintiff to show that
there was no evidence before the deputy commissioner
to support the compensation order complained of in

the bill. Grant v, Marshall, deputy commissioner^ 56
F. (2d) 654 (W.D. Wash. 1931); United Employees
Casualty Co. v, Summerous, 151 S. W. (2d) 247 (Tex.

1941); Nelson v, Marshall, deputy commissioner, 56
F. (2d) 654 (W. D. Wash. 1931) ; Gulf Oil Corpora-
tion V. McManigal, deputy commissioner, 49 F. Supp.
75 (N.D. W. Va. 1943).
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related by the claimant and the other witnesses, be-

cause that part of the case was not disputed. The

only evidence to the contrary which the employer has

to rely upon is that part of the medical testimony

consisting of medical opinion. Considering the na-

ture of the injury and the disability suffered by the

claimant, unequivocal proof that all of his disability

was not caused by the injury could not be of a dem-

onstrable nature.

This is clear from the medical opinion itself.

This factor has a definite bearing upon the ^^substan-

tiaF' quality of the employer's "evidence to the con-

trary'\ It is not possible for the physicians to see the

pathological condition, while this patient is alive.

Moreover, if physicians could see the pathology they

would still have to theorize upon the cause, — and

theories of causation in medical science are not no-

table for their infallibility. The medical opinion must

of necessity rest in a large measure on hypotheses,

and as hypotheses in medicine go they are frequently

subject to vagaries because of the very uncertainties

in the science itself.

In the present case there of necessity had to be

two hypotheses: (1) as to the direct cause of the pa-

ralysis, and (2) as to the indirect cause which oper-

ated to make the paralysis possible. The causes of
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the end result (paralysis) being beyond observation,

a physician in the present case would be safe in his

hypotheses, either way, in respect to the mediate and

immediate causes of the paralysis. But such hy-

potheses of the physicians need not rest upon that be-

lief-to-moral-certainty which the deputy commission-

er must have before he can decide a case, either way.

Therefore, in appraising the value of evidence, medi-

cal opinion on so illusive a subject should not neces-

sarily outweigh the cogency of the contemporary facts

and the appeal to reason of those facts, nor operate

to deprive the claimant of the right to the benefit of

any doubt, — a right to which he is entitled under

the decisions requiring liberality in the application

of workmen's compensation law. To hold otherwise

would place claimants in the ultimate power of medi-

cal witness, as to the disposition of their claims, as the

deputy commissioner could not do otherwise than find

according to the medical opinion. Thus the physi-

cian would be the ultimate arbiter of the facts.

As the direct and circumstantial evidence in the

case is sufficient to cause a reasonable person to con-

clude (as did both the deputy commissioner and the

court below) that the final disability resulted from

the original cause, and this in turn is reinforced by

the presumption of law in the Longshoremen's Act,
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and by the presumption arising from the facts (as

stated in the Wroten case), the ^^substantial-evidence-

to-the-contrary'^ burden of the employer required the

production of evidence of greater probative value to

give it the quality ^^substantiaF'. It may be noted

that the medical opinion was not expressed so as to

deny the fact of causal relationship on the ground that

the ultimate condition of the claimant (paralysis)

could not have resulted from the injury. In other

words, the medical opinion was not to the effect that

the subsequent disability is not of a nature consist-

ent with that which might be expected to result from

such a concussion or head injury. If it had been, the

medical opinion would have had more substance or

worth. And as affecting the value of such medical

opinion as there was, it is here emphasized that such

opinion was based in part on a misapprehension of

the facts. Dr. Cloward testified that medical prac-

titioners could not say positively one way or the other

that the injury to the claimant's head caused his

paralysis (R. 110, 115). This is certainly not ''sub-

stantial evidence to the contrary'', but shows the tenu-

ousness of the medical hypotheses. Furthermore, the

physician disclaimed knowledge one way or the other

of causal relationship when he testified '7 dojiH know

whether a person could say that plugging up [which
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caused paralysis] was due to the bloiv he got on the

head three months ago or noL^^ (R. 115). If he does

not know, he can not deny the fact.

This is not a case where there had been an injury

with absence of any related train of symptoms, and

then some time later the occurrence of pathology, the

relationship of which to the injury is not apparent,

or which has every appearance of remoteness where

the only evidence upon which to go forward may be

medical opinion. But because such evidence may be

vital in such a case does not mean that medical opin-

ion evidence as such, is necessary to support an award

or is controlling where, as in the case at bar, there is

other evidence to establish the nexus between injury,

illness, and eventual disability.

A considerable portion of Appellants' brief is

spent in attempting to show that the findings must

be supported by ''substantiaP' evidence and that in

the present case no finding in respect to causal re-

lationship can be so supported unless it be by expert

medical testimony, because the subject is ''highly com-

plicated'\ The Supreme Court has too often consid-

ered the rule applicable to findings of fact under the

Longshoremen's Act to leave the rule in any doubt.

None of the Court's decisions specify that such find-

ings shall be supported by ''substantial evidence'';
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many enunciate the necessity that findings of fact

must be ''supported by evidence'', and rule that if

they be, they are final. South Chicago Coal & Dock

Co, V, Bassett, 309 U.S. 251 (1940); Davis v, Dept

of Labor, 317 U.S. 249, 256 (1943) ; Norton v, War-

ner, 321 U.S. 565, 568 (1944); Del Vecchio v. Bow-

ers, 296 U.S. 280 (1935) ; Voehl v. Indemnity Ins, Co.,

288 U.S. 162 (1933).

Here at issue is the weight of medical opinion

testimony. The Davis case, supra, involved the far

more carefully defined and restricted issue of juris-

diction. That decision quotes the Longshoremen^s Act

statutory presumption that as to any claim made

thereunder it is to be ''presumed, in the absence of

substantial evidence to the contrary" (33 U.S.C. 920;

italics added), that such claim comes within the Act,

and, significantly, omits the qualifying "substantial''

as it continues (317 U.S. 249, 256-7):

"Findings of fact of the agency [U. S. Compen-
sation Commission through its deputy commis-
sioners], where supported by the evidence, are

made final. Their conclusion that a case falls

within the federal jurisdiction is therefore en-

titled to great weight and will be rejected only
in case of apparent error."

The Supreme Court cases cited by appellants in

this connection deal with statutory provisions not to
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be found in the Longshoremen's Act and with an en-

tirely different kind of law7 ^'Supported by evidence^'

is substantial enough in its own right. This statute

"aims at ^sure and certain relief for workmen' '' (the

Davis case, supra^ 317 U.S. at p. 254), and the lan-

guage of each statute '' ^must be read in the light of

the mischief to be corrected and the end to be at-

tained'." South Chicago Coal & Dock Co, v. Bassett,

309 U.S. 251, 259 (1940).

The deputy commissioner had to consider the

credibility of the witnesses and had to weigh conflict-

ing evidence, part of it relating to the fact of the in-

jury and the chain of events which followed, the other

part of it relating to the medical testimony. The rule

has been repeatedly stated by the Supreme Court that

in judicial review of cases arising under the Long-

^ The rights, remedies and procedure under the

Longshoremen's Act are governed exclusively by that

statute. Associated Indemnity Corp. v, Marshall, dep-

uty commissioner, 71 F. (2d) 235 (CCA. 9, 1934);
Shugard v, Hoage, deputy commissioner, 89 F. (2d)
796 (App. D.C, 1937) ; Luyk v, Hertel, 242 Mich.
445, 219 N.W. 721 (1928) ; Texas Indemnity Ins. Co.

V. Pemberton, 9 S.W. (2d) 65 (Tex. 1928) ; Nierman
V. Industrial Comm., 329 111. 623, 161 N. E. 115
(1928); Town of Albion v. Industrial Commission,
202 Wis. 15, 231 N.W. 249 (1930). Compare Bassett,
deputy commissioner v. Massman Construction Com-
pany, 120 F. (2d) 230 (CCA. 8, 1941), cert. den. 314
U. S. 648.
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shoremen's Act, the courts will not reweigh the evi-

dence to determine where the preponderance thereof

lies.® In weighing this evidence the deputy commis-

sioner had to apply the presumptions above men-

tioned.

B. The Findings of Fact Are Fully Supported

by Evidence

The following is a reference to testimony taken

at the hearings before the deputy commissioner suf-

ficient to show that the complained of findings of fact

of the deputy commissioner are supported by evidence.

John B, Piatty claimant, testified as follows:

That he was employed by Contractors, PNAB, on De-

cember 1, 1942, as Procurement Agent for the Naval

Construction Battalion (R. 17); that on that day,

while seated at his desk, a reflector shade from the

® Even if the evidence permits conflicting infer-

ences, the inference drawn by the deputy commis-
sioner is not subject to review and will not be re-

weighed: South Chicago Coal & Dock Co, v. Bassetty

deputy commissioner, 309 U.S. 251 (1940); Parker,
deputy commissioner v. Motor Boat Sales, Inc., 314
U.S. 244 (1941); Liberty Mutual Insurance Co, v.

Gray, deputy commissioner, 137 F. (2d) 926 (CCA.
9, 1943) ; Lowe, deputy commissioner, v. Central R.R.
Co,, 113 F. (2d) 413 (CCA. 3, 1940) ; Henderson,
deputy commissioner v. Pate Stevedoring Co,, Inc.,

134 F. (2d) 440 (CCA. 5, 1943).
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lamp above him fell and hit him on the head ; that he

stopped work and was helped to the first aid station by

two of his assistants where they had him lie down,

placing an ice-pack on his back and on his head, and

they gave him some medicine ; that he was then taken

by car to Dr. Stewart of the Medical Center; that he

had received a cut on the upper forehead and his

scalp, which Dr. Stewart treated and painted ; that he

was told to go home and to keep quiet for 24 hours,

which he did (R. 19, 20) ; that on the morning of De-

cember 3, he was picked up by automobile at his home

and was taken to his office for an important confer-

ence; that he became dizzy at the meeting, felt very

ill, and finally stated that he could stand it no longer,

that he was going to get checked over by someone who

knew something about head injury, and that he was

going to see Dr. Cloward to find out what was the

matter with him (R. 21) ; that he went to Dr. Clow-

ard's office but the latter was not in; that the nurse

told him to go home and she would have the doctor

call; that he went home immediately and then Dr.

Cloward ordered him to go directly to the hospital ; that

he was admitted to the hospital on December 3, and

remained there until December 24, during all of which

time he was a bed patient (R. 22, 23) ; that during

January 1943, after he had been home from the hos-
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pital about a week, he was taken in an automobile

to see Dr. Cloward for a checkup ; that from January

12, 1943, to February 27, (sic) 1943, he performed

duties in an advisory capacity but became tired very

quickly while working and could not remain at work

more than about three hours a day ; that he was under

medical observation during the entire period and was

being examined by Dr. Cloward once or twice a week

;

that Dr. Cloward said that he might go to the office

as long as he did not overdo it.

Piatt further testified that he was born in 1888

(R. 24, 25) ; that he had been employed by Contrac-

tors, PNAB, since December 1939; that he had no

lengthy periods of disability resulting from any dis-

ease except in 1937, when he had pneumonia for about

6 weeks (R. 26) ;
(a report of examination made in

1935 from his own physician and received in evidence

by agreement showed claimant's blood pressure to be

118/80) (R. 31) ; that he had had a physical exam-

ination for life insurance in 1929; that a $20,000

health policy was issued to him at that time (R. 32)

;

that Dr. Cloward had an electrocardiograph and re-

port on the heart, made by Dr. Gotshalk, when Dr.

Cloward treated Piatt following the injury of De-

cember 1, 1942; that this was during the time Piatt

was away from work and Dr. Cloward made a check-
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up, saying: ''You are o.k." (R. 33, 34) ; that on Piatt's

discharge from the hospital he had headaches and the

sensation of a tight band across the top and in the

rear of the head, and felt weak (R. 35) ; that after the

accident he was dizzy, but felt all right while he was

lying down, becoming dizzy when he raised his head;

that during the first week after he left the hospital

he had a continuous headache and recurrently there-

after every day up to the day of his collapse on Feb-

ruary 26 (R. 36, 37) ; that on February 26, he arose

and went into the bathroom to get ready to go to work,

and while standing at the wash basin, he had to seize

the basin to support himself; that he felt his knees

sag and could not stand up; that he tried to call his

wife, but could not speak and slumped to the floor

where she found him; that on his admission to the

hospital on the same day, the nurse took his blood

pressure, looked at it ''quick, sort of excited", then

took it a second time and a third time; that his recol-

lection is that his blood pressure was 240 (R. 38).

Mrs, Freda F. Piatt, claimant's wife, testified as

follows: That on December 1, 1942, her husband came

home around 11 o'clock and said he had been hit on

the head ; that he had never been ill, except with pneu-

monia (R. 41) ; that after his injury, as soon as he

tried to work, after two or three hours at work he
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would get very tired and his employers provided a

driver and car for him; that he went to bed as soon

as he got home and stayed there; that he wondered

what was the matter with his head; that on Febru-

ary 26, 1943, about 6:20 in the morning, she called to

him asking him if he was ready, but he made no reply,

so she went to see and found him on the floor ; that he

appeared to have a stroke and could not move his left

leg; that she got blankets and a pillow for him and

she called Dr. Cloward who directed that her husband

go to the hospital in an ambulance.

Mrs. Piatt further testified that it was about

54 hours from the time of the accident to her hus-

band until Dr. Cloward sent her husband to the hos-

pital to stay in bed, whereas during the intervening

period her husband had been up and around (R. 42

to 44) ; that when, on or about December 12 she called

at the hospital to see her husband, she inquired as to

the possibility of his being returned home and Dr.

Cloward advised that her husband could probably go

home about the fourteenth day, but when her hus-

band sat up his temperature went to 101 and he was

ordered back to bed and kept there until December

26 (R. 68, 69) ; that the reason given by Dr. Cloward,

the attending physician, was that the blood clot evi-

dently was not eradicated or dissolved (R. 70) ; that
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she was told by Dr. Cloward that her husband could

not come home until the blood clot was dissolved

(R. 71).

George L. Youmans testified as follows: That

he is a member of the operating committee of Con-

tractors, PNAB; that claimant, Piatt, worked under

Youmans' supervision; that on the day that claimant

came to attend the conference after his injury, he

told the witness that he could not remain any longer,

but had to return home (R. 45, 47) ; that when clai-

mant returned to work after his first hospitalization

he told the witness that he thought he could report

for work perhaps three or four hours a day, to help

out as he could, but would have to return home after

such period; that he did so until the latter part of

February when he had a further attack; that the

witness considered the claimant an ill man who was

getting up and attempting to help out to keep the

program running although the witness knew that

claimant was under physical and mental stress as the

result of his injury (R. 48, 49).

Commander Howard P, Potter testified as fol-

lows: That he is a Commander, Civil Engineers'

Corps, United States Naval Reserve, and was sta-

tioned at Hawaii in December 1942; that his work

brought him in frequent contact with the claimant,
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Piatt; that Piatt's duties required him to be vigorous

and healthy (R. 49, 50) ; that before the accident of

December 1, 1942, he appeared to have limitless

energy; that at the conference which he attended

shortly after his injury he exhibited signs of fatigue,

tiredness, and mental anxiety; that the conference

adjourned earlier than was intended because he was

in distress; that there was marked change in his

mental alertness; that he put his hand to his head

frequently as if it were hurting him (R. 51, 52) ; that

after the injury there was a difference in his ability

to grasp situations and in his ability to remember

details (R. 53-55).

Arden Walter Morgan testified as follows: That

he was employed by Contractors, PNAB, and was

claimant's principal assistant (R. 56); that the wit-

ness was called into the office on the morning of the

accident and saw the light globe scattered about the

floor, and noted that the claimant was quite dazed;

that the height of the ceiling from which the globe fell

was approximately ten feet and the globe was within

two or three inches of the ceiling (R. 57) ; that the

globe weighed three or four pounds (R. 58) ; that the

witness helped take claimant across the street to the

first aid station; that there was a cut on claimant's

head which was bleeding and he appeared dazed and
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reeled several times, staggering very much while

crossing the street (R. 60, 61) ; that the witness had

never worked with a man who had showed more

energy than claimant prior to his injury (R. 62)

;

that after the injury he was not the same as he had

been before; that he was not as sharp in his work

and tired very easily (R. 63); that he complained

of continual headaches; that his associates avoided

concerning the claimant with details after the injury

(R. 64).

Dr, Ralph B, Cloward testified in part as follows

:

That his first examination of claimant after the in-

jury was on December 3, 1942, two days after the

accident; that it disclosed that claimant was in an

extremely nervous state, was trembling and perspir-

ing profusely, and that his voice quivered; that the

claimant gave the history of having been struck on

the head by a large chandelier while sitting at a desk;

that the most striking thing about the examination

was the extremely high blood pressure; that the wit-

ness made a tentative diagnosis of concussion of brain

(R. 98, 99).

Dr. Cloward further testified that he could not

say positively one way or another that the injury to

claimant's head caused his paralysis (R. 110) ; that

the witness did not think any neurologist could say
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positively that an injury to the head might not in

some way be related to subsequent changes that went

on in the brain (R. 115); that he did not know

whether or not a person could say that the plugging

up of the artery in the brain was due to the blow on

the head three months before (R. 115), but that in

his opinion there would be no relation between the

two (R. 117) ; that paralysis can come on quickly or

slowly and progressively (R.lll).

In forming his opinion that there was no causal

relationship between the blow on the head and the

subsequent paralysis, Dr. Cloward assumed as a fact

that claimant was ^'perfectly welV^ in the intervening

period between his two periods of hospitalization and

that the paralysis developed ''out of a clear sky^^

(R. 112). He also accepted as a fact that claimant

^'didn't complain of headaches, appreciable dizzy

spells, or things of that sort'' (R. 114) and he re-

ferred to claimant's injury as a ^^scratch on the head''

(R. 107). However, the hospital records (Employer's

and Carrier's Exhibit A, Part I) show that during

the period December 3 to 24 when claimant was first

in the hospital, he had headaches on December 3, 4, 6,

7, 10, 11, 18, 19, 20, 21 and 23. After his discharge

from the hospital on December 24, 1942, and up to the

time of his paralysis, February 26, 1943, the evi-
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dence shows a history of continual headaches, weak-

ness and dizziness (R. 24, 35, 36, 37, 42, 47, 49, 51,

52,54,63,64).

Dr. Brown and Dr. Falconer examined claimant

upon his return to the United States at the request

of the employer and insurance carrier. They stated

that in their opinion there was no causal relation be-

tween the injury of December 1, 1942, and the cere-

bral thrombosis of February 26, 1943. But both opin-

ions were based upon several matters of misinforma-

tion: for example, Dr. Brown stated that claimant's

blood pressure, upon admission to the hospital two

days after his first injury, was 240/110, whereas

it was 230/140 (see Carrier's Exhibit A, Part I,

"Temperature, Pulse and Respiration Chart''); Dr.

Brown's opinion is further based upon the erroneous

impression that claimant, upon his return to work

"was feeling fairly well," whereas the testimony of

claimant, his wife and his associates discloses just the

opposite situation. This phyician's opinion was also

based upon the inaccurate understanding that claim-

ant's blood pressure upon admission to the hospital

the second time was 200, whereas the hospital records

(Carrier's Exhibit A, Part II, "Neurological Exam-

ination on Admission") shows that the blood pressure

was only 170/110.
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Dr. Falconer^s opinion was also based upon mis-

information: he stated that claimant's blood pressure

during his first period of hospitalization was 170 to

190, whereas the hospital records (Carrier's Exhibit

A, Part I) show that it ranged from 230 on December

3, to 140 on December 17; also, he states that claim-

ant's blood pressure on admission to the hospital on

February 26 was 200 whereas the hospital records

(Employer's Exhibit A, Part II) show that his blood

pressure was 170/110 on February 26th. An addi-

tional error in Dr. Falconer's assumptions is that he

states the claimant was discharged from the hospital

on March 27, 1943, whereas he was discharged on

May 5, 1943.

It is believed that the evidence above narrated

discloses unmistakenly a situation of continuing disa-

bility from the time claimant received the blow to his

head on December 1, 1942, until he became totally dis-

abled on February 26, 1943. During that entire pe-

riod claimant was either seeking to recuperate at

home, was in the hospital, or was working only part

of the day, — all such inactivity being plainly and

directly the result of his injury. As the court below

stated, it is difficult to see how anyone reading the

record could come to any conclusion as to the cause
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of claimant's disability other than the one to which the

deputy commissioner came.

C. Medical Testimony Was Not Necessary

The decided cases show medical testimony is not

necessary to establish causal connection. When an

accident results in immediate injury and disability,

such as head injury, and there then ensues a series of

related complaints, such as headaches and dizziness of

a substantially continuous nature, persisting until the

employee is obliged to stop work, the causal connection

between the injury and the disability which follows

does not have to be established exclusively by testi-

mony of professional witnesses; it may equally be es-

tablished by other competent evidence, circumstantial

and direct In addition — where a workman in appar-

;ent good health sustains an injury which produces

immediate symptoms and disability, illness or pain,

with related symptoms which continue thereafter,

there arises a presumption that the subsequent dis-

ability (where it is of a nature consistent with that

which may result from such an injury) did in fact

result therefrom. Wroten v, Woodley Petroleum Co,,

12 La. App. 348, 124 So. 542 (1929) ; compare Jarka

Corporation v, Norton, deputy commissioner, 56 F..

(2d) 287 (E.D. Pa., 1930), where the court said:



29

<< * * *
I am unwilling to hold that a claimant,

in order to establish a case for compensation,
must produce expert medical testimony to sub-
stantiate his claim, where it is proved that he
sustained a fracture of the back and is now un-
able to work, and where the disability, not hav-
ing existed before the injury, has been more or
less continuous since the injury, I am also un-
willing to hold that the commissioner is bound
to accept the opinion of a medical expert for a
respondent merely because uncontradicted. It

seems to me that to sustain his contention that
the award is not in accordance with law would
require the court to adopt either of the foregoing
rules.'' (Italics supplied).^

^ As to the effect of circumstances outweighing
and disposing of a physician's expressed opinion, the
Supreme Court of Kansas in Dinoni v, Vulcan Coal
Co., 132 Kans. 810, 297 P. 721, said (from syllabus
by the Court) : ''When all the facts and circumstances
of an injury, its treatment, changes, and results, are
before the compensation commissioner, and later be-
fore the district court, and also the opinion of a physi-
cian, the latter can not be said to be the undisputed
evidence in the case, if the facts and circumstances
reasonably tend to show or indicate a different con-
clusion from that expressed in his opinion,'' (Italics
supplied).

To the same effect is Utah Delaware Min, Co. v.

Ind, Commission, 76 Utah 187, 289 P. 94, (1930),
wherein the court said : "Notwithstanding the opinion
expressed by the attending physician — it was but an
opinion — that he saw no connection between the pres-
ent disabilities of the applicant and the injuries sus-

tained by him at the time of the accident, neverthe-
less the commission had before it sufficient evidence
to justify a finding that the disabilities were attribu-
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While there was medical opinion to the effect

that the disability directly attributable to cerebral

thrombosis was not caused by the accident, the opinion

was not based upon the correct factual situation in the

case, as shown in the record. Moreover, the deputy

commissioner is not bound to accept the opinion or

theory of any particular medical examiner. He may

rely upon his own observation and judgment in con-

junction with the evidence: Contractors, PNAB, v.

table to the accident. The nature and extent of the
injuries occasioned by the accident and the parts of

the body injured and affected, and the physical condi-

tion of the applicant thereafter from the time of the

accident until the hearing, were all fully described and
laid before the commission. Whether the present dis-

abilities were or were not attributable to the injuries

received at the time of the accident, constituted the

ultimate fact or question to be determined by the com-
mission. They were not bound to accept a mere opin-

ion of an expert on such an ultimate question, unless

such was the only reasonable conclusion to reach in the

premises. * * * The applicant, prior to the accident,

having been healthy and able-bodied and having no
prior kidney or bladder trouble and no sickness of any
kind, and receiving a rather severe injury in the re-

gion of the kidney, together with evidence that he
thereafter almost continually suffered and complained
of pain in that region, and not anything to show that

the diseased and infectious conditions were attribu-

table to another cause, the natural cause to which
they may be attributable is the injury received at the

time of the accident. We thus think the evidence suf-

ficient to support the findings in such respect.'^
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Pillsbury, deputy commissioner, .... F. (2d) ....

(CCA. 9, No. 10,950, June 22, 1945). i° In South-

ern Steamship Co. v. Norton, deputy commissioner,

41 F. Supp. 108 (E.D. Pa. 1941) Affd. 128 F. (2d)

263 (CCA. 3, 1942), the court said:

<<rThe medical testimony was no stronger in the

Di Giorgio case than in the case at bar. There,

as here, no physician positively established a
causal relation between the accident and the in-

jury; nor was there any medical testimony even

that the accident probably caused the injury. One
physician said it was a doubtful case: the physi-

cians in general could not conclude definitely

that the accident was the cause of the catarac-

tous condition. Obviously, the Deputy Commis-
sioner in the Di Giorgio case reached his conclu-

sions that the injury and the cataractous condi-

tion did result from the accident from other and
nonmedical testimony in the case.

^°See also Liberty Stevedoring Co,, Inc, v, Car-
dillo, deputy commissioner, 18 F. Supp. 729 (E.D.
N.Y., 1937) ; Joyce v. United States Deputy Commis-
sioner, 33 F. (2d) 218 (D.C. Me., 1929); Jarka Cor-
poration V, Norton, deputy commissioner, 56 F. (2d)
287 (E.D. Pa., 1930) ; E, S. Booth v. Monahan, deputy
commissioner, 56 F. (2d) 168 (D.C. Me., 1930);
Zurich General Accident & Liability Insurance Co, v.

Marshall, deputy commissioner, 42 F. (2d) 1010 (D.C.
Wash. 1930); Baltimore & Ohio R,R. Co, v. Clark,
deputy commissioner, 56 F. (2d) 212 (D.C. Md.,
1932) ; Ryan Stevedoring Co,, Inc, v, Norton, deputy
commissioner, 50 F. Supp. 221 (E.D. Pa. 1943) ; Lib-
erty Mutuul Ins, Co, V, Marshall, deputy commission-
er, 57 F. Supp. 177 (W.D. Wash. N.D. 1944).
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^'I reach the same conclusions in the instant

case, to wit, that the absence of medical testimony
definitely or positively establishing a causal
relation between the accident and the loss of

vision does not rob the findings and award of

the Deputy Commissioner of validity, provided
there is any other testimony to support them.
That other testimony is furnished by the em-
ployee himself, including the testimony that his

vision, good before the accident, was impaired
thereafter." (Italics supplied).^

^

In Frank Marra Co., Inc, v, Norton, deputy com-

missioner, 56 F. (2d) 246 (E.D. Pa., 1931), the court

said :

'The further proposition which bears the brunt
of the argument is to the effect that the cause
of a death is within the peculiar province of ex-

pert opinion and that a finding must have as one
of its supports the testimony of an expert. It

is urged that the finding of the cause of death
in this case is without such support, inasmuch as

the expert testimony was not that the death was
due to injuries received in the course of employ-
ment, but merely that it might have been so due.

In this view, the death may have resulted from
any one or two or more causes, one of which was
traumatic. If the testimony of the experts were
all the evidence in support of the fact finding
made, it is clear that it would give equal support

^ ^ In McNeelly v, Sheppeard, deputy commission-
er, 89 F. (2d) 956 (CCA. 5, 1937), which also in-

volved the question of causal relationship between an
alleged injury and subsequent death, the court said:

''The physician's opinion, while admissible, was not
conclusive.''
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to any one of several different findings. There
was, however, other evidence. An acceptance of

the argument addressed to us would closely ap-

proach the proposition that no finding of a cause
of death can be made which does not have the

support of expert opinion. This latter proposi-

tion we cannot accept. Whenever opinion evi-

dence is admissible, the opinion of an expert is

evidence, but it is in itself nothing more. It may
be convincing or unconvincing. It may in itself

be all sufficient to support a finding, but it does
not follow that a finding may not be made with-
out it. To hold otherwise would be to rule in

effect that it is not for the fact finding tribunal,

but for the experts, to find the cause of death.
^'

In the case of Ryan Stevedoring Co, v, Norton,

deputy commissioner, 50 F. Supp. 221 (E.D. Pa.,

1943), which arose under the Longshoremen's Act,

the court said:

^^While it is true that the sole medical testimo-

ny in the case shows no causal connection between
the accident and the disability for which the

challenged award of compensation was made, it

has been held that such causal connection need
not be established by medical testimony, but that
the Deputy Commissioner may rely upon his

own observation and judgment in conjunction
with the evidence. Southern Steamship Co. v.

Norton, 41 F. Supp. 108, affirmed 128 F. (2d)
263, CCA. 3; Frank Marra Co. v. Norton, 56 F.

(2d) 246. It has further been held that the

Deputy Commissioner is not bound by the un-
contradicted testimony of medical witnesses
where other evidence warrants a different con-
clusion. Wood Preserving Corp. v. McManigal,
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39 F. Supp. 177; Jarka Corp. of Philadelphia v.

Norton 56 F. (2d) 267.''i2

The decisions under the Longshoremen's Act

are consistent with the decisions under the various

state compensation laws. Thus in Liberty Mutual

Insurance Company v, Williams, 44 Ga. App. 452,

161 S. E. 853 (1932), the employee sustained an in-

jury to his leg and side on February 20, 1930. On

April 8, the attending physician dismissed the em-

ployee as being able to return to work, but he was

still unable to get about, except by the use of crutches

and from then on his condition grew worse so that

he was soon confined to bed and continued in a state

of illness until his death on May 3, 1930, from a

cerebral hemorrhage caused by high blood pressure.

The two physician witnesses for the employer testi-

fied that there was no causal relationship between

the employee's injury and the high blood pressure

^^See also Associated General Contractors v.

CardillOy deputy commissioner, 106 F. (2d) 327 (App.
D.C., 1939), where an award for death from a cere-

bral hemorrhage which occured a month and a half

after the alleged injury was sustained upon medical
evidence that the injury could have occured in the

manner described and could have caused the condi-

tion disclosed by the medical examination. Cf. Inde-
pendent Pier Co, v, Norton, deputy commissioner,
54 F. (2d) 734 (CCA. 3, 1931).
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and cerebral hemorrhage. The court, in sustaining an

award of compensation, stated:

*The testimony of the physicians as to want
of any causal association between the employee's
injuries and the cerebral hemorrhage and high
blood pressure from which he died was not bind-
ing upon the Industrial Commission but the ques-
tion as to the weight and credit to be given to

such testimony was a matter to be determined
by the Commission/'

In Kempa v, Pittsburgh Terminal Coal Corpor-

ation, 133 Pa. Super. 392, 3 A. (2d) 34 (1938), the

employee, a miner for 30 years, aged 61 years, was

injured on March 2, 1936, when he was struck on the

head and shoulders by loose coal which fell from the

roof rendering him unconscious for a short time, es-

timated at from two to five minutes. He was taken

to the mine doctor who ordered him to return home

and go to bed. The next day the doctor directed that

ice be put on his head. He returned to work on March

6, 1936, and continued until Labor Day (first Mon-

day in September), when he was compelled to quit

due to failing health. The referee made an award

of compensation, finding as follows:

^Trom a consideration of all the testimony in

the case, particularly the fact that claimant suf-

fered a concussion of the brain at the time of
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the accident, and the continued complaints of

headaches and dizziness thereafter, your Referee

is of the opinion and finds as a fact that said

claimant is suffering with total disability and
that said disability is the result of the injury

sustained by him on March 2, 1936/'

The court in affirming the compensation award,

said:

^^There is no doubt that claimant had been
steadily employed as a miner until the accident,

that there was an accidental injury, and that

immediately and directly thereafter total dis-

ability, for at least a time, followed.

^Testimony offered upon the part of the claim-

ant was to the effect that after the accident he
apparently did not readily comprehend what was
said to him, that he was unable to sleep, suf-

fered from severe headaches, dizziness, had trou-

ble with his eyes, and became irritable.

^'The connection between the injury, which re-

sulted from a fall of coal that buried claimant
to his waist, and the disability which followed

was not remote but so direct and natural that

an award does not depend solely on the testimony
of the professional witnesses; essential facts to

support it were established by other competent
evidence, (citing cases)

^Taking into consideration all the testimony
offered by claimant, we have no difficulty in

reaching the conclusion that the granting of the

award was fully justified * * * the fact-finding

body has a right to use the conclusions and tests

of ordinary everyday experience and draw the

inferences which reasonable men would thus
draw from similar facts.''
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In Southern Cement Co, v. Walthall, 217 Ala.

645, 117 So. 17 (1928), the employee was injured on

June 14, 1926, by a blow on the head from a falling

beam of timber. He laid off work for several days,

went back to work for two days, then quit work en-

tirely and about August 21, 1926, suffered a stroke

of apoplexy with paralysis of the left side, from which

he died August 31, 1926. An award of compensa-

tion was made from which the employer appealed,

contending that the death was not causally related

to the injury. The court, in affirming the award,

said:

*

'While the testimony of the two physicians

examined on behalf of defendant tends strongly

to the conclusion that the deceased workman's
death was due to a long-standing and far-ad-

vanced condition of arteriosclerosis, which cul-

minated naturally and inevitably in a fatal cer-

ebral hemorrhage, yet there was other testimony
which, we think, supports the trial court's find-

ing that the blow or blows on the workman's head
proximately caused the fatal hemorrhage about
two months afterwards."

Cf. M. P. Moller Motor Car Co. v. linger, 166 Md.

198, 170 A. 777 (1934) ; Pierron v. Prudential Insur-

ance Company, 65 Ohio App. 465, 30 N. E. (2d) 563

(1941).

Appellants, in substance, simply urge that there



38

is no evidence to support the deputy commissioner's

finding that the accident was the "direct and prox-

imate cause'' of the cerebral thrombosis. Without

delving into the subject of "proximate cause", it is

respectfully submitted that (1) an injury which

either causes, or concurs with a disease to cause, dis-

ability is the proximate cause of the disability;^ ^ (2)

the concept of proximate cause, as it is applied in tort

law, is not applicable in the administration of work-

men's compensation laws;^"^ and (3) the deputy com-

missioner did not find that the injury was the cause,

^^ See Victor Oolotic Stone Co, v. Crider, 106 Ind.

App. 461, 19 N. E. (2d) 478 (1939), where an em-
ployee injured by a blow on the head on December
7, 1937 died from meningitis on February 8, 1938;
Texas Indemnity Co, v, Staggs, 134 Tex. 318, 134 S.

W. (2d) 1026 (1940). Where it is intended that the

injury, to be compensable, must be the sole cause of

the disability, it is the rule to so provide in the law.

For example, see sec. 301 (c) of the Pennsylvania
workmen's compensation statute, which provides in

substance that silicosis shall not be considered com-
pensable unless it is the sole cause of the disability.

"^^ Manitoivoc Boiler Works v. Industrial Com-
mission, 165 Wis. 592, 163 N. W. 172, 106 A.L.R.
82 (1917) ; Hartford Accident ayid Indemnity Co, v,

•Cardillo, deputy commissioner, 112 F. (2d) 11, 17
(App. D.C. 1940). Cf. Morris, On the Teaching of
Legal Cause (1939), 39 Col. L. Rev. 1087; Avignone
FrereSy Inc, v. Cardillo, deputy commissioner, 117 F.
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proximate or otherwise, of the cerebral thrombosis,

or as appellants contend, that the cerebral thrombosis

resulted from the injury and was the sole cause of

claimant's disability; the deputy commissioner merely

found that claimant was disabled as the result of the

injury, a finding fully supported by the evidence in

its natural and common sense interpretation.

^(2d) 385 (App. D.C. 1940) ; Texas Indemnity Co. v.

Staggs, 134 Tex. 318, 134 S. W. (2d) 1026 (1940).
In Travelers Insurance Company v, Peters 14 S. W.
(2d) 1007 (Tex. 1929), the court said: "We are of
the opinion that the rule of proximate cause ha^ no
application to cases arising under the Workmen^s
Compensation Act. The term 'proximate cause' is

not used an3rwhere in the act. A party claiming com-
pensation under such act cannot be compelled to go
further than is required by the provisions of the act,

either in pleading or proving his cause of action. It

is true that there must be established a causal con-
nection between an injury and the death of an em-
ployee before a recovery would be authorized. If,

however, the injury is shown to be the producing
cause of the death, a finding is justified that death
was due to the injury, if it arises in the course of and
out of the employment. It need not be established
that the death was a proximate result of the injury.
Snyder's [Schneider] Workmen's Compensation Laws,
vol. 2, sec. 523; Lundy v. George Brown Co., 93 N.J.
Law, 107, 106 A. 362; Tanner v. Aluminum Castings
Co., 210 Mich. 366, 178, N.W. 69; Krueger v. Hayes
Mfg. Co., 213 Mich. 218, 181 N.W. 1010; King v.

Buckeye Cotton Oil Co., 155 Tenn. 491, 296 S.W. 3,
53 A.L.R. 1086; Bramble v. Shields, 146 Md. 494,
127 A. 44; Anderson v. Industrial Ins. Co., 116 Wash.
421, 199 P. 747." (Italics supplied)
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Assuming, arguendo^ that the cerebral thrombo-

sis did not result from the injury but merely added

to the disability, the employer and insurance carrier

would not be relieved of their liability for the disa-

bility existing on February 26, 1943. Where inter-

vening disease or injury which would itself cause

disability is superimposed upon the compensable dis-

ability then existing, liability for disability from the

first cause continues. Bernatowicz v, Nacirema Op-

erating Co., 142 F. (2d) 385 (CCA. 3, 1944). In the

case just cited, the court quoted from Bay Ridge Op-

erating Co, v. Lowe, deputy commissioner, 14 F. Supp.

280 (S.D. N.Y.) stating:

'' 'The act does not say that although the dis-

ability continues, payments are to cease in the

event that the employee later also becomes inca-

pacitated from another cause. If the plaintiff^s

contention is right, it must be because such a
limitation is to be read into the statute and to

do this would be contrary to the general policy

in dealing with this statute and which should be
liberally construed. Rothschild & Co, v, Marshall
[9 Cir.], 44 F. (2d) 546; De Wald v, Baltimore
& 0, R, Co,, [4 Cir.], 71 F. (2d) 810.

*' 'It could not reasonably be contended that

if an employee receiving payment for a perma-
nent total or permanent partial disability met
with another accident or from some other cause
suffered another permanent disability, that the
employer could then stop his payment' '' (Italics

supplied)
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Cf. Whitehead's Case, 312 Mass. 611, 45 N. E. (2d)

839 (1943).

It is respectfully submitted that if the Deputy

Commissioner had found that claimant's disability re-

sulting from the injury of December 1, 1942, had

terminated prior to February 26, 1943, the date of

the paralysis, the finding would have been contrary

to the uncontradicted evidence of claimant, his wife

and all his business associates.
""^ As to the period

subsequent to February 26, 1943, there is no evidence

that the disability resulting from the injury had

terminated. All that the physicians testified to— and

that upon incorrect factual bases— was that in their

opinion the injury of December 1, 1942, did not cause

the cerebral thrombosis. They did not state that

^ ^ The evidence is uncontradicted that claimant

was disabled or continually ill from the time of his

injury on December 1, 1942, to the date of his paral-

ysis on February 26, 1943. Disability is defined in

the Longshoremen's Act (33 U.S.C. 902 (10)) as

the ''incapacity because of injury to earn the wages
which the employee was receiving at the time of in-

jury in the same or any other employment''. Al-

though presumably claimant received his pay during
the period in which he worked part time, he was dis-

abled within the meaning of the Act. The fact that

the employee receives his regular wages after the in-

jury does not mean that he is not disabled. Twin
Harbor Stevedoring & Tug Company v. Marshall,



42

claimant was not disabled from the original cause.

Thus the gap in their testimony is apparent.

II

APPELLANTS' AUTHORITIES ARE INAPPLI-
CABLE TO THE CASE AT BAR

Appellants rely principally upon the state court

cases of Burton v, Holden & M. Lumber Co., 112 Vt.

17, 20 A. (2d) 99 (1941), and Pacific Employers

Ins, Co, V, Industrial Accident Comm,, 118 P. (2d)

334 (Cal. 1941), as establishing the necessity of med-

ical opinion. Whatever weight these cases may have

on the proposition for which cited, there are numer-

ous authorities to the contrary, and furthermore,

such cases are distinguishable from the case at bar

deputy commissioner, 103 F. (2d) 513 (CCA. 9,

1939); Hartford Accident and Indemnity Co. v.

Hoage, deputy commissioner, 85 F. (2d) 420 App.
D.C, (1936); Luckenbach Steamship Co. v. Norton,
deputy commissioner, 96 F. (2d) 764 (CCA. 3,

1938) ; Roller v. Warren, 98 Vt. 514, 129 Atl. 168

(1925) ; Postal Telegraph-Cable Co. v. Industrial Ac-
cident Commission, 213 Cal. 544, 3 P. (2d) 6 (1931)

;

Burley Welding Works, Inc. v. Lawson, deputy com-
missioner, 141 F. (2d) 964 (CCA. 5, 1944). An
employee might be paid and receive his full wages al-

though he is able to perform none or only a few of

his duties. The concept of payment and receipt of

wages and the concept of incapacity and disability

to earn wages are not mutually exclusive.
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and without application to the facts at hand. The

Burton case involved the question of causal relation

between a sliver which the employee got in his finger

and a cerebral thrombosis. Such a situation is one

of those ''not apparent" type of cases where no com-

mon sense connection can be perceived. In the pres-

ent case the employee was struck and seriously

wounded on the head, the same place where his sub-

sequent trouble developed after the continuance of

persistent headaches and dizziness in the interval be-

tween the accident and the climax, — circumstances

entitled to the greatest weight in the appraisal of the

evidence. In the Pacific Employers case, the question

involved was whether an ulcer from which the employee

suffered was due to an injury. The employee there

had admitted that she was bothered with ulcers since

childhood. In the present case there was no evidence

that the employee had any previous concussion or

cerebral thrombosis. On the contrary, the evidence

discloses that up to the time of the accident he was a

man in excellent condition, robust and energetic phys-

ically and mentally.
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CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted that the order of the

Court below dismissing the petition to set aside the

deputy commissioner's award was proper and should

be affirmed.

J. CHARLES DENNIS,
United States Attorney^
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REPLY BRIEF OF APPELLANTS

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

For reply to the brief of appellees, appellants first

wish to point out several inaccuracies made in the

statement of the case therein

:

1. On page 2, the object which fell on claimant is

described as an ''electric light reflector shade/' The

record shows, however, that it was a glass composi-

tion indirect lighting globe (Tr. 58).

2. On pages 2 and 3, appellees state that claimant

from January 12 to February 26, 1943, performed

light duties at the office in an advisory capacity "for
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a few hours a day." Claimant's testimony, however,

was as follows

:

''After the first week I added on a half hour at

a time, and a little more, and the last three days

I was out there I did stay practically the full

time, the last three daysJ'

3. On page 3, appellees state that hearings were

held before the ''Deputy Commissioner^' on June 2

and June 30, 1943, and that, upon the evidence thus

adduced, the "Deputy Commissioner'' on November

29, 1943, filed his compensation order. The inference

from such a statement is that there was only one

Deputy Commissioner involved in the case, and that

the one who made the order, heard the testimony.

Such was not the case, however.

Reply to Appellees' Argument

The crux of appellants' case is not correctly stated

by appellees on page 4. Rather, the true crux is

( 1 ) Medical testimony was necessary in this case to

establish causality; and

(2) The medical testimony introduced does not sup-

port the findings.

It is observed that appellees in their brief do not

contend that the medical testimony supports the find-

ings. Therefore, appellants consider Point 2, supra,

to be conceded.

The only issue between the parties before this

court, therefore, is Point 1, viz., whether in the type

of disability involved herein (cerebral thrombosis),

medical testimony was necessary to establish causa-

tion.

Appellees argue, on page 5, that no rule of law re-
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quires the Deputy Commissioner to base his decision

upon the testimony of any particular witness, since

he is the sole judge of their credibility. We have no

quarrel with the statement of the rule as such. Its

application to the facts of this case, however, is chal-

lenged, since that point is not at issue herein.

In the first place, there is no conflict in the medical

testimony as such. Nor is there any conflict in the

non-medical testimony.

In the second place, the Deputy Commissioner who

made the order, did not hear the witnesses, or face

any of them. Therefore, how can it be said that he was

either in a position to judge the credibility of wit-

nesses, or that he alone has the exclusive province to

pass on that issue? If the credibility of any witness is

involved herein, this court is in exactly the same

position to pass on that question as was the Deputy

Commissioner whose order is under attack.

The argument is made on page 6, that the direct

and circumstantial evidence is so strong in this case

'*as to leave it hardly likely that a reasonable person

would conclude otherwise than did the Deputy Com-

missioner.'' The implication in that statement, of

course, is that all of the medical experts who con-

cluded ''otherwise'' are not ''reasonable men." In fact,

an attempt is made to belittle the opinions of the

medical experts, by pointing out certain minor inac-

curacies, to show that their opinions were based upon

"misinformation." This subject will be discussed at a

later point in this brief.

If the "direct and circumstantial" evidence in this

case was so strong as to indicate only one conclusion



to a "reasonable person/' how can we explain the

fact that these same facts did not persuade the ex-

perts whose opinions were solicited to aid the Deputy

Commissioner in arriving at his conclusion? Granted

that two of the experts, Dr. Brown and Dr. Falconer,

were of the insurance carrier's choosing, how explain

that claimant's own personal physician, whom he se-

lected at the outset, and who attended him during the

period of both hospitalizations, stood unconvinced by

the so-called direct and circumstantial evidence?

If the "common sense" possessed by laymen is to

govern the conclusion to be reached on the medical

question involved herein, why was it necessary to go

to the trouble of obtaining the opinions of doctors in

the first place? Deputy Commissioner Gray certainly

did not think that the "common sense of the situation"

was sufficient, otherwise, why did he say that he

could only determine the question "on the basis of the

advice that the doctors" gave to him? (Tr. 116).

On page 7, appellees state that the blow was diag-

nosed as "concussion of the brain," in order to estab-

lish the first link in the "common sense" situation

rule. Compare, however, the actual testimony of Dr.

Cloward, who described the blow as producing "no

very extensive wound," and "no large bump, swelling

or bruise or contusion," but only a "scratch." His di-

agnosis of concussion was "tentative" only, and made

purely from the "story" and not from any objective

finding (Tr. 99).

Appellees also say that "no intervening accident was

shown" However, Dr. Cloward testified that the par-

alysis was due to an intervening "cerebral vascular



accident/^ arising separate and apart from the orig-

inal injury (Tr. 112, 113).

On page 8, appellees argue that since the ultimate

result was consistent with the kind of injury sus-

tained, and that, since it was definitely not consistent

with some other kind of injury, therefore, the pre-

sumption arising from the facts themselves would

be sufficient to support the finding. The argument,

however, begs the question, for the very point at issue

is whether the paralysis was consistent with the type

of injury sustained. It is surprising that if it was so

simple for a layman to see consistency in the situation,

that three eminent specialists could not likewise see

the same.

To be consistent, from a medical standpoint, the

paralysis would have manifested itself either imme-

diately following the blow, or by a gradual awkward-

ness of the extremities (Tr. 111). Claimant had

neither Tnanifestation during the intervening period.

The doctors, at least, not only felt that the paralysis

was inconsistent with the type of injury sustained, but

that it was only consistent with a vascular disease

and hypertension, entirely unconnected with the

minor head injury received nearly three months pre-

viously.

Sec. 20 of the Longshoremen^s Act (33 U.S.C.A. Sec.

920) is cited by appellees. From that, it is argued that

the non-medical testimony spelled out a prima facie

case in favor of claimant, and that, therefore, the

burden shifted to the employer to establish that the

claim did not come within the provisions of the act

"by substantial evidence to the contrary.^' Contrary



to appellees' rather labored argument and tenuous

reasoning that the medical testimony did not con-

stitute ''substantial evidence to the contrary/' it is

submitted that if the testimony of claimant's own

attending physician, as well as of two other medical

experts, is not ''substantial evidence to the contrary,"

then the opinions of doctors based upon physical ex-

amination and observation, when made in support of

the findings, should likewise be ignored. If they do

not constitute substantial evidence in the former,

they likewise do not constitute such evidence in the

latter case.

It is submitted that the presumption created by

Sec. 20 is not sufficient to sustain the award, for in

this case, the opinions of the several doctors of non-

causal relation is positive, direct and unequivocal,

based upon personal observation and examination of

the claimant himself. The injection of this argument

on presumption is but to play with shadows, and re-

ject substance.

Furthermore, by this reference, appellees are con-

fusing the difference between the procedural burden

of going forward with the evidence involved in hear-

ings before the Deputy Commissioner, and that in-

volved in a proceeding to review the order of the

Commissioner before the court under Sec. 21(b) of

the act. The cases cited by appellees on page 10

under Note 6, involve the latter.

As to proceedings before the Deputy Commissioner,

the function of the statutory presumption and the ef-

fect thereof is clearly stated in Indemnity Ins, Co.



of North America v, Hoage (App. D.C. 1932) 58 F.

(2d) 1074, at page 1075, as follows:

'This statutory presumption, however, fur-

nishes merely a basis for proof and not a substi-

tute therefor. It does not shift the burden of proof

from the claimant to prove by substantial evi-

dence that the injury arose out of and in the

course of his employment. To determine whether

or not the Commissioner's conclusions of law are

correct, it is necessary for the court to ascertain

whether they are supported by sufficient evidence.

An order based upon insufficient evidence is an

order contrary to law, and to determine this ques-

tion a review of the evidence becomes essential.''

(Italics ours)

In other w^ords, in proceedings before the Deputy

Commissioner, the presumption that a claim comes

within the provisions of the act, disappears as soon

as substantial evidence to the contrary is introduced,

and the burden of establishing the claim by substan-

tial evidence is then reimposed upon claimant. Upon

appeal to the court, the burden is upon the party at-

tacking the order, to show that the findings are not

supported by substantial evidence. The burden in the

latter case, however, is merely one of argument, rather

than proof, since no additional proof is heard or can

be heard by the court.

Little space need be devoted to appellees' argu-

ment that ''supported by evidence" as used by the

Supreme Court in construing the Longshoremen's

Act, does not mean "substantial evidence." The fact

that any such distinction is attempted to be made,

carries with it the implication that the evidence in
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this case upon which the Deputy Commissioner based

his finding was not ''substantial/' but merely ''evi-

dence/'

On page 16, appellees say that the Deputy Com-

missioner had to consider the "credibility'' of the wit-

nesses, and had to weigh "conflicting" evidence. In

the first place, as previously pointed out, the Deputy

Commissioner faced none of the witnesses, so as to

be in a position to judge their credibility from their

demeanor, their candor or lack of candor, but had

only the written record to predicate his findings upon.

In the second place, the case is singularly free of

"conflicting" evidence. There was no dispute as to the

facts. There was no conflict among the medical ex-

perts. The only conflict is in the conclusion reached by

a lay member of the United States Employees' Com-

pensation Commission on the one hand, and members

of the medical profession, on the other hand, upon

what even appellees on page 12 admitted to be an

"elusive" medical subject.

In attempting to break down the force of Dr. Clow-

ard's testimony, appellees say on page 25 that he

assumed as a fact that claimant was "perfectly well

in the intervening period between his two periods

of hospitalization, and that the paralysis developed out

of a clear sky." The words "perfectly well," as used

by Dr. Cloward in one stage of his testimony, should

be read in conjunction with his statement immedi-

ately following, wherein he said:

"Between Mr. Piatt's discharge from the hos-

pital and his second admission, from a neuro-

logical standpoint he was perfectly normal."
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His statement that the paralysis developed ''out of a

clear sky'' is certainly accurate, since there is no

shred of evidence in the record to show that claim-

ant suffered from any symptoms of paralysis in the

intervening period.

Also, on page 25, the statement is made that Dr.

Cloward testified that claimant ''didn't complain of

headaches, appreciable dizzy spells, or things of that

sort."

Through inadvertence, undoubtedly, the first com-

ma in the above quotation was misplaced, which gives

an entirely different meaning to the testimony. The

record does not show any comma after the word "head-

aches," so as to make the word "appreciable" modify

"dizzy spells." Instead, the comma appears after the

word "appreciable," so as to qualify the word "head-

aches." In other words, his testimony was that claim-

ant did not complain to him of appreciable headaches

or dizzy spells.

Appellees overstate the record on page 26, when

they say the evidence after his discharge from the

hospital on December 24, 1942, up to the time of his

paralysis on February 26, 1943, "shows a history of

continual headaches, weakness and dizziness.^^ Refer-

ence to each page of the record cited in support of

that statement, fails to reveal any mention of "dizzi-

ness," except in one instance, on page 36 of the rec-

ord, which concerned the after-effects immediately fol-

lowing the original blow on December 1 and Decem-

ber 2. There is not one iota of evidence concerning

dizzy spells after that date.

The attempt, likewise, is made to discredit the tes-
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timony of Dr. Brown and Dr. Falconer, by showing

that their opinions were based upon several matters

of ''misinformation.'' The inference being that, if these

doctors had not been so misinformed, their opinions

might have been more favorable.

As we read the opinions of the doctors, they are not

predicated upon the vagaries of claimant's blood pres-

sure readings, but upon three essential factors

:

(1) The original injury to the head was slight, with

no evidence of fracture, and produced no loss

of consciousness

;

(2) The length of time that elapsed following the

blow before paralysis manifested itself for the

first time; and

(3) The suddeness of the onset of paralysis without

any intervening awkwardness in the use of his

extremities.

Whether the blood pressure reading on the first ad-

mission to the hospital was 230/140, rather than

240/110, or whether claimant was feeling '^fairly

well" in the interim, or whether claimant's blood

pressure upon the second admission to the hospital

was 170/110, rather than 200, would certainly not

have altered the ultimate conclusion one whit on the

part of Dr. Brown.

Likewise, so far as Dr. Falconer is concerned, his

opinion would not have been any different if he knew

that claimant's blood pressure during the first period

of hospitalization was 230 to 140, rather than 170 to

190, or that his blood pressure on the second admission

was 170/110, rather than 200, or that claimant was

discharged on May 5, 1943, rather than March 27,

1943, since none of these factors would have changed
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the fundamental basis upon which his conclusions

were based.

On page 27, appellees argue that the record dis-

closes a situation of ''continuing disability" during

the intervening period. What, may we ask, was the

nature of the so-cailed continuing disability? It cer-

iaing was not in the use and motion of his arms or

legs
J
which ivas the disability that occurred for the

•first time on February 26. Furthermore, claimant

returned to work January 12, 1943, and continued

until Frebruary 26, 1943, albeit for three hours per

day the first week, and thereafter a half hour more

each day, until working full time the last three days

preceding his collapse. How can it be said, therefore,

that he suffered from a ''continuing disability" dur-

ing the entire intervening period?

On page 28, appellees say that "when an accident

results in immediate injury and disability, such as

head injury, and there then ensues a series of related

complaints, such as headaches and dizziness of a sub-

stantially continuing nature, persisting until the

employee is obliged to stop work," medical testimony

is not necessary to establish casual connection.

The vice in such an argument is that it assumes

facts not present here. In the first place, there was no

evidence of dizziness suffered by claimant except on

the day of his injury and on the day following. In

the second place, the headaches, as such, did not

oblige the employee to stop work. The event that

caused a termination of the employment, was an al-

together different type of disability, than that suffered



12

by claimant from December 1, 1942, to January 12,

1943.

Cited is Wroten v. Woodley Petroleum Co, (La.

1929) 124 So. 542. There, the employee injured

his side when he fell from a height of eight feet onto

a metal object. The fall produced immediate disability,

for which the employer paid compensation for a period

of about six weeks. The issue involved was whether

his subsequent disability was due to the injury, or to

arthritis. There were a number of physicians called,

and all of them stated that the disease could have been

caused by the trauma. In the present case, not one

single doctor testified that the cerebral thrombosis

could have been caused by the original blow.

Jarka Corp. v. Norton (D.C. Pa. 1930) 56 F.(2d)

287, cited on page 28, has already been discussed on

appellants' opening brief (page 33).

The syllabus quoted from the case of Dinoni v.

Vulcan Coal Co. (Kan. 1931) 297 Pac. 721, cited on

page 29, should be read in the light of the peculiar facts

presented in that case. There an employee injured his

knee, causing infection. Later, while walking in his

home, with the use of a cane, he slipped and fell, strik-

ing the same knee against a chair, fracturing the knee-

cap. This was followed by an operation in which the

fractured parts were wired together, and protracted

and serious infection ensued. A physician testified that

he believed the infection following the operation de-

veloped from the previous infected condition of the

leg. The court, however, said that the facts of the

second fall, the fractured kneecap, the difficult oper-

ation in wiring the broken parts together, and the
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great danger of infection, all in effect contradicted

and raised an issue as to whether the infection de-

veloped from the infected condition of the leg from

the first injury. Furthermore, that, in order for there

to be a causal connection between the original injury

and the later condition, it must have been so natur-

ally, without any intervening incident or the result

of a necessary course on account of the original

injury.

Thus, it will be seen that two separate accidents

were sustained by the employee. Infection to the knee

could have been caused as a result of either one. It

was anybody's guess as to whether the infection aris-

ing from the second accident was attributable to the

first. Such a question was not exclusively within the

province of the doctor to determine.

The quotation from Utah Delaware Mining Co, v.

Ind. Coram, (Utah 1930) 289 Pac. 94, omits a very

important statement of the court, which, of itself,

distinguishes the case from the facts involved herein.

A portion of the part omitted reads as follows:

^'That at the time of the accident the applicant

was injured rather severely in the region of the

right kidney, is not disputed. No opiniion was
advanced, and no reason given by the physicians,

that if the diseased and infectuous condition of the

kidney and of the gall bladder and the adhesions

were not attributable to the injury received at

the time of the accident, to what likely or probable

cause or causes they were attributable, ''^ (Italics

ours)

Here, not only was an opinion advanced, and rea-

sons given by the physicians, that the subsequent
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paralysis was not attributable to the injury received,

but a full explanation was given as to its probable

cause.

Furthermore, it would seem that a causal connec-

tion could have been found there without the aid of

medical testimony.

In any event, these two state cases were decided

approximately fifteen years ago. Medical science has

made considerable progress in the interim, so that

even in the forward-looking states of Kansas and

Utah, the opinions of medical experts on questions

involving the pathological cause of physical ailments,

might now be accorded more respect than was given

them in 1930 and 1931.

On page 30, the statement is made that the Deputy

Commissioner is not bound to accept the opinion of

theory of any particular medical examiner. That is

correct, but that rule assumes that there are several

medical examiners testifying who differ in their opin-

ions. Here, there was no conflict among the doctors.

It is also said that the Deputy Commissioner may

rely upon his own observation and judgment in con-

junction with the evidence. Cited in support thereof

is the recent case of Contractors PNAB v, Pillsburyy

No. 10, 950, recently decided by this court. The ques-

tion involved therein was whether the contraction of

pulmonary tuberculosis was due to working condi-

tions. One physician actually testified that the disease

could have developed since March, 1942, the com-

mencement date of the employment. Another physician

gave as his opinion that the employee suffered from

a reactivated type of tuberculosis. A certain document
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from an officer of the Navy Medical Corps confirmed

the testimony of the claimant that he was free of

tuberculosis before he left the mainland to work on

the project.

It will, therefore, appear that there was ample med-

ical evidence to sustain the finding.

Each of the other cases cited in support thereof,

appearing in footnote 10 on page 31, with the excep-

tion of Liberty Mut. Ins, Co, v, Marshall (D.C. Wn.

1944), which is the opinion of the lower court herein

from which this appeal is prosecuted, are fully dis-

cussed in appellants opening brief, and hence further

comment thereon would be needless repetition.

The same may be said of Frank Marra Co., Inc., v.

Norton (D.C. Pa. 1931) 56 F.(2d) 246; So. Steam-

ship Co. V. Norton (D.C. Pa. 1941) 41 F. Supp. 108,

and McNeelhj v. Sheppeard (CCA. 5, 1937) 89 F.

(2d) 956.

Liberty Mut. Ins. Co. v. Williams (Ga. 1932) 161

S.E. 853, can be distinguished as falling within that

group of cases where the disability is so immediate

and severe following the injury, that laymen in

ordinary walks of life can infer cause from effect.

There, also, the disability grew progressively worse

following the original severe injury. Here, the condi-

tion of claimant progressively improved to such an

extent that for three days preceding his sudden par-

alysis, he was able to work full time.

Associated Gen. Contractors v. Cardillo (App. D.C.

1939) 106 F.(2d) 327, was supported by medical

testimony that the fatal hemorrhage resulted from
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trauma, and, therefore, aids, rather than hinders, ap-

pellants in their position herein.

Independent Pier Co, v. Norton (CCA. 3, 1931)

54 F. (2d) 734, is likewise inapposite, since it did not

involve the issue of casualty, but the question of con-

tinuing disability from an injured knee that had al-

ready been the subject of a compensation award.

Kemp V, Pittsburgh Terminxil Coal Corp, (Pa. 1938)

3 Atl. (2d) 34, a decision by the Superior Court, cited on

page 35, certainly does not support the position of

appellee. There, the condition causing cessation of

work was severe headaches, not paralysis. The orig-

inal blow was so severe as to render the employee

unconscious. He also suffered from dizziness there-

after, and had trouble with his eyes. When he was

examined by a doctor, nine months later, he was

unable to respond to the directions to undress. His

blood vessels appeared normal, and there was no evi-

dence of arteriorsclerosis. The doctor's conclusion was

that ^'a concussion developed at the time of his in-

jury, and that his personality changes that were re-

ported by his family were the result of that injury.''

None of those elements are present in the case at bar.

Furthermore, as the court pointed out, the connection

between the injury and the disability that followed

was not remote, but so direct and natural that the

award did not depend solely upon the testimony of the

professional witnesses.

In Southern Cement Co, v. Walthall (Ala. 1928)

117 So. 17, cited at page 37, the ''other testimony''

referred to in the quotation, consisted of a statement

made by a doctor on cross-examination to the effect
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that the blow might have been a contributing cause

of the brain hemorrhage and resulting death, and of

another doctor's statement that in his best judgment

the blow was the cause, or a contributing cause to

the paralysis. No such ''other evidence'' is present in

the case at bar.

M. P. Moiler Motor Car. Co. v. Unger (Md. 1934)

170 Atl. 777, cited at page 37, recognizes the rule that

medical testimony is not required in those cases

where by other evidence facts are shown which fairly

and logically tend to prove that the accident was the

efficient cause of the condition complained of. There,

within a week following the head blow, the employee

began showing symptoms of paralysis, by having

trouble with his speech and his walk. He stopped

working altogether about a month after the blow, took

to his bed, getting worse all the time, until his death

about three months following his injury. His attend-

ing physician stated that the accident could have

been the cause of the illness which he found, and that

he knew of no intervening cause.

This, therefore, is a case where the medical testi-

mony was not altogether negative, and not necessarily

required, since a layman in the ordinary walk of

life could infer cause and effect from the facts.

Pierron v. Prudential Ins. Co. (Ohio 1941) 30 N.

E.(2d) 563, is a case wherein there is medical testi-

mony of possibility, coupled with evidence of disability

immediately following the injury. Both were held

sufficient for the award. The court recognized, how-

ever, that some of the afflictions from which plaintiff
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suffered could not be said to be the result of the fall,

without the aid of expert testimony.

To argue as appellees do on page 39, that the

Deputy Commissioner did not find that the injury

was the cause, proximate or otherwise, of the cerebral

thrombosis, but merely found that claimant was dis-

abled as a result of the injury, is to ignore the true

meaning of the finding that ^^as a result of the said

injury, the claimant was wholly disabled from De-

cember 1, 1942, to and including January 10, 1943,

and from February 26, 1943, to and including No-

vember 18, 1943 * * * and that on November 19,

1943, the total disability of the claimant resulting

from the said injury continued.''

Certainly, it must be conceded that the type of

disability suffered from February 26 on was alto-

gether different than the type suffered between De-

cember 1 and January 10. Hence, a finding that his

disability on and after February 26 was the ''result''

of the injury sustained is, in effect, a finding that

there was a causal connection between the two events.

Throughout appellees brief, and particularly on

pages 40 and 41, the impression sought to be conveyed

is that the disability of claimant was continuous from

December 1, 1942, on. Thus, it is said on page 40,

that even assuming arguendo that the cerebral throm-

bosis did not result from the injury, but merely added

to the disability, the employer would not be relieved of

liability for the disability that existed on February

26, since liability for disability from the first cause

continued and, on page 41, the statement is made that

if the Deputy Commissioner had found that claimant's
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disability resulting from the injury on December 1

had terminated prior to February 26, the date of the

paralysis, the finding would have been contrary to the

uncontradicted evidence of claimant, his wife and all

his business associates.

Yet, did not the Deputy Commissioner actually

find that claimant was only ''disabled'' from De-

cember 1 to January 10, and from February 26 on?

Does not such a finding necessarily hold that he was

not ''disabled'' between January 10 and February 26?

There is, therefore, a clearly recognized gap in the

two periods of disability, and the evidence is clear

that the "disability" suffered during the first period

was of an altogether different nature than that suf-

fered during the second period. How, then, can it be

said that an intervening disease was merely super-

imposed upon a "compensable disability then ex-

isting"?

This should certainly distinguish the facts from

those involved in Bernatowitz v, Nacirema Operating

Co, (CCA. 3, 1944) 142 F.(2d) 385, cited at page 40.

In attempting to distinguish Burton v. Holden &
M. Lbr. Co. (Vt. 1941) 20 A. (2d) 99, and Pac. Em-
ployers Ins, Co. V. Ind. Ace. Comm. (Cal. 1941) 118

P. (2d) 334, appellees again refer to the claimants in-

jury as a serious wound on the head. Yet, his own
attending physician called it merely a "scratch," and

it was conceded that the blow was not serious enough

to produce unconsciousness or a fracture of the skull.

Also, appellees refer to persistent dizziness, which

the record does not bear out.

It is submitted that the attempted distinction of
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these two eases is invalid, and that they squarely sup-

port appellants' contention as to the necessity of

medical evidence to establish causality in those cases

where the subsequent disability does not flow so di-

rectly and naturally from the original injury as to be

within the knowledge of laymen to pass upon.

CONCLUSION
Full opportunity is afforded claimants under the

Longshoremen's Act to introduce medical testimony

to establish causality, in those cases where the ulti-

mate disability does not follow the original injury

so naturally and immediately as to be within the com-

mon knowledge of laymen. If a claimant does not pro-

duce such testimony, or if the doctor that he does pro-

duce, does not support his contention, then sound

logic demands that the Deputy Commissioner should

not be permitted to speculate on the subject, or to

ignore the uncontradicted testimony of medical ex-

perts who say that there is no connection whatsoever

between the original injury and the subsequent ulti-

mate disability. To hold otherwise, affords the em-

ployer no protection whatsoever, since it places him

in the arbitrary power of the Deputy Commissioner,

who, under the law, is directed to construe the act

liberally in favor of the employee, and to give him the

benefit of any doubt.

Respectfully submitted,

Eggerman, Rosling & Williams,

D. G. Eggerman,
Edw. L. Rosling,

DeWitt Willums,
Joseph J. Lanza,

Attorneys for Appellants.
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2 George Kerr vs.

United States District Court,

Western District of Washington,

Southern Division.

No. 6e57

GEORGE KERR,
Petitioner,

vs.

P. J. SQUIER, Warden, United States Peniten-

tiary, MsNeil Island, Washington,

Respondent.

PETITION FOR WRIT OP HABEAS
CORPUS

To the Honorable Judge of the District Court of

the United States, Western District of Wash-

ington, Southern Division:

The petition of John M. Schermer and James W.
Mifflin respectfully shows as follows:

1.

That you petitioners are attorneys at law, mem-

bers of the Bar Association of the State of Wash-

ington and duly and properly admitted to practice

in the Courts of the State of Washington and the

above entitled Court; that your i^etitioners have

been retained to represent the ])etitioner, George

Kerr, who at the present time is confined as an in-

mate at the United States Penitentiary at McNeil

Island, Washington.
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II.

That your petitioner, George Kerr, was on the

12th day of March, 1934 sentenced to confinement

in the United States Penitentiary at McNeil Island,

Washington, by judgment, to serve an aggregate

term of 27 years and pay a fine of $1000.00; that

said judgment and sentence was in Cause Number
»5925 In The Northera Division Of The United

States District Court For The Northern District Of

California, in a cause entitled United States Of

America vs George Kerr; that said judgment was

on a plea of guilty to counts 2, 4, 5, 6 and 7 [1*]

of an indictment containing seven counts filed in

said cause; that upon motion of the Government

Counts 1 and 3 of said Indictment were dismissed

as to said Petitioner, George Kerr; that said sen-

tence provides that said petitioner be imprisoned

for a period of ten years on the 2nd Count, which

charged the said defendant with the crime of rob-

bing one Walter E. Williams, a person having law-

ful charge, control and custody of certain maiV

matter of the United States ; said mail matter being

described as three registered mail bags thereof; that

said judgment and sentence provided that said

George Kerr be imprisoned for a period of five

years upon Counts 4, 5 and 6 each; each of said

counts charging, in identical language, that the de-

fendant did unlawfully, knowingly and feloniously

steal, take and abstract from a Post Office in the

United States of America a certain mail bag. That

each of the mail bags described in Counts 4, 5 and 6

•Pap^e numbering appearing at foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Record
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were the identical mail bags described in Coimt 2;

that said George Kerr was further sentenced under

Count 7 of said Indictment to be imprisoned for a

period of two years and pay a fine of $1000.00 ; said

7th Count charging said George Kerr, with others,

with the crime of conspiracy to commit the robbery

aforementioned in Count 2 and the various larcenies

alleged in Counts 4, 5 and 6.

III.

That said sentence was imposed on the 12th da}'^

of March, 1934, and the said George Kerr was forth-

with committed to the County Jail for transporta-

tion to the Federal Penitentiary; that his sentence

commenced to run from the 12tfe day of March,

1934 and he has served said sentence continuously

up to the present time. [2]

IV.

That by said judgment and sentence the service

thereof on each count was to be consecutive.

V.

That the Coui-t pronouncing said sentence was

without jurisdiction to sentence the said George

Kerr on Counts 5 and 6 of said Indictment; that a

computation of the time served by the said George

Kerr, being given credit for good time, shows that

he is now being illegally confined by the defendant

herein; that the said George Kerr's record while an

inmate of the institution, has been good and he is en-

titled to credit for good time served and industrial

good time; that said computation shows that said
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George Kerr conipleted service of the legal maxi-

mum time of imprisonment imposed under Counts

2, 4 and 7.

VI.

That in addition thereto he has served a period

in excess of 30 days by reason of the fine imposed

by the Court in the sentence on Count 7 of the in-

dictment.

VII.

That the said George Kerr is a pauper, or poor

prisoner, and totally without funds and unable to pay

the fine of $1000.00 as prescribed by said sentence;

that he has not any property exceeding $20.00

in value, except such as is by law exempt from

being taken on execution for a debt; that until such

time as the above entitled Court determines that he

has served the maximum legal imprisonment he is

not entitled to apply to the United States Commis-

sioner in the [3] District where he is imprisoned

for leave to take the pauper's oath and have the

said Commissioner determine that he is in fact a

pauper as within the meaning of Title 18, U. S.

Code, Section 641.

Wherefore the petitioners pray that a Writ of

Habeas Corpus may be granted directed to the said

P. J. Squier, Warden as aforesaid, commandint^^

him to have the body of George Kerr before the

said Court at a time and place therein specified to

d(^ and receive w^hat shall then and there be con-

sidered concerning said George Kerr, togethcT- with

the time and cause of his restraint and said Writ,
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and that lie, George Kerr, may be restored to his

liberty.

JOHN M. SCHERMER
and

JAMES W. MIFFLIN
Petitioners

JOHN M. SCHERMER
and

JAMES W. MIFFLIN
Attorneys for George Kerr

[4]

L^nited States of America

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

John M. Schermer being first duly sworn upon

oath deposes and says:

That he is one of the petitioners in the above

entitled matter; that he has read the foregoing Peti-

tion for Writ of Habeas Corpus, knows the con-

tents thereof and believes the same to be true.

JOHN M. SCHERMER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 31 day of

August, 1944,

[Seal] WINIFRED KASTRUP
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

Residing at Seattle

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 1, 1944. [5]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE

This matter having come on for hearing this 1st

day of September, 1944, and the petition of George

Kerr for Writ of Habeas Corpus being on tile and

before the Court, and the Court having examined

the files and records herein and being fully advised

in the premises, now, therefore, it is hereby

Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that respondent,

P. J. Squier, Warden of the United States Peni-

tentiaiy, McNeil Island, Washington, show cause in

the above entitled Court at Tacoma, Washington,

on Monday the 11 day of September 1944, at 10

o'clock A. M., of said day, why the prayer of the

petitioner should not be granted, and it is further

Ordered that the Clerk of the Couii forthwith

mail or deliver to George Kerr, in whose behalf the

petition was filed, to P. J. Squier, Warden of the

Federal Penitentiarv, McNeil Island, to counsel,

the United States attorney for this District, or his

assistant, each an uncertified copy of this order.

Done in open Court this 1st day of September,

1944.

CHARLES H. LEAVY
U. S. District Judge

Copy of above order and of petition handed U. S.

Atty., Tacoma, 9/1/44 and mailed to George Kerr

and P. J. Squier, AVarden, 9/2/44. E. Scofield,

Deputy.

[Endorsed] : Piled Sept. 1, 1944. [6]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

RESPONDENT'S DEMURRER
Comes now the respondent, by the undersigned,

his attorneys, and demurs to the petition for writ of

habeas corpus herein, upon the following* grounds

and reasons:

1. That said petition does not state facts suf-

ficient to entitle the petitioner to a release from his

confinement in the United States Penitentiary on

McNeil Island, Washington;

2. And upon the further ground that said peti-

tion does not allege sufficient facts to show that said

petitioner is being unlawfully restrained by respon-

dent.

3. That copy or record of the instrument at-

tacked was not attached to petition.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
United States Attorney

GUY A. B. DOVELL
Assistant United States

Attorney

[Endorsed] : Piled Sept. 6, 1944.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

RESPONDENT'S ANSWER AND RETURN

Comes now the above named respondent, P. J.

Squier, Warden, United States Penitentiary, Mc-



p. J. Squier 9

Noil Island, Washington by J. Cliarles Dennis,

United States Attorney for the Western District of

Washington, and for his answer and return to the

petition and amended petition for Writ of Habeas

Corpus herein, and Order to Show Cause heretofore

issued, admits, denies and alleges as follows:

I.

Respondent denies each and every allegation con-

tained in the petition and amended petition for Writ

of Habeas Corpus herein, save and except what is

specifically admitted herein.

Further answering said petition and amended

petition for writ of habeas corpus, and as an affirma-

tive defense thereto and as return to the order to

show cause issued herein, respondent alleges:

I.

That petitioner, George Kerr, is nov; being held

in custody of the respondent as Warden of the

United States Penitentiary at McNeil Island, Wash-

ington, by authority of a judgment s^^ence and

commitment entered by thc^ District Court of the

United States for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, Northern Division, on the 12th day of March,

[8] 1934 in a certain criminal case in said court en-

titled ''United States of America vs. George Kerr,

and being designated as Case No. 5925-Cr., records

of said court.

II.

That the indictment containing seven counts in

said Cause No. 5925-Cr. was returned on September
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30, 1933, to. which defendant George Kerr on arraign-

ment on January 2, 1934, entered his plea of not

guilty, and thereafter on March 12, 1934, being rep-

resented by counsel the defendant, George Kerr,

petitioner herein, was allowed to withdraw his plea

of not guilty, on motion of his counsel, and the peti-

tioner thereupon plead guilty to counts 2, 4, 5, 6 and

7, comits 1 and 3 of said indictment being dismissed

on motion of the government, whereupon the said de-

fendant, George Kerr, petitioner herein, was sen-

tenced by the court to imprisonment on the second

count for a period of ten years, on the fourth, fifth

and sixth counts for a x)eriod of five years each, and

on the seventh count for a period of two years and

to pay a fine of $1,000.00, sentence under fourth

count to commence to run upon expiration of sen-

tence under second count ; sentence under fifth count

to commence to run upon expiration of sentence

under fourth count; sentence under six count to

conmfience to ran upon expiration of sentence under

fifth count, and sentence under seventh count to com-

mence to run upon expiration of sentence under

sixth count.

That said indictment charged the defendant,

George Kerr with violation of Section 320, Title 18,

U.S.C.A. in Count two, in that defendant did rob

one Walter E. Williams, a person having lawful

charge, control and custody of certain mail matter

being described as three registered [9] mail bags

thereof, and in counts four, five and six in that de-

fendant did commit larcenies from and out of a post

office of the United States of certain mail bags which
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were under separate labels and locks, and which

charges were based upon violation of Section 'U7,

Title 18, U.S.C.A. and in count seven in that de-

fendant did conspire w^ith others to conarnit the

offenses charged in the preceding counts of the

indictment.

III.

That thereafter the petitioner was delivered under

said commitment by the United States Marshal to

the United States Penitentiary at McNeil Island,

Washington, sentence having commenced to run

March 12, 1934, the date of imi)osition; and that

pursuant to said judgment, sentence^ and commit-

ment said petitioner is now imprisoned and con-

fined in the United States Penitentiary on McNeil

Island, Washington, and his custody and confine-

ment under such judgment and sentence is lawful

and valid.

IV.

That the said petitioner, George Kerr, by virtue

of his said confinement in the United States Peni-

tentiary on McNeil Island has been deprived of no

constitutional rights and is now lawfully and regu-

larly confined in execution of said judgment and

sentence.

Wherefore having fully answered the petition

herein the respondent prays that the petition for

WTit of habeas corpus be denied and dismissed and

the f)etitioner be remanded to the respondent's cus-
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tody to carry out the sentence and judgment for

which he is now imprisoned.

J. CHARLES DENNIS
United States Attorney

GUY A. B. DOVELL
Assistant United States

Attorney [10]

United States of America

Western District of WashinQ:ton

Southern Division—ss.

P. J. Squier, being first duly sworn on oath, de-

poses and says

:

That he is the respondent named in the above en-

titled action; that he has read the foregoing Re-

spondent's Answer and Return and knows the con-

tents thereof, and that the matter and things therein

contained are true to the best of his knowledge, in-

formation and belief.

P. J. SQUIER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 21st day

of September, 1944.

(Seal) JOHN J. HOPKINS
Notary Public in and for Stat-e of Washington, re-

siding at McNeil Island, AVashington.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 22, 1944. [11]

.\
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MEMORANDUM ON PETITION

This petition is based upon the position that the

District Court, Northern District of California, the

sentencing Court, did not have jurisdiction to im-

l)Ose sentence on Counts 5 and 6 of the indictment.

Ex parte Lago Marcino, 13 Fed. Supp. 947;

Colson V. Johnston, 35 Fed. Supp. 317.

A writ of habeas corpus will lie to determine the

question of excessive punishment.

Stevens v. McClaughry, 207 Fed. 18.

Despite the fact that a one thousand dollar fine

was imposed and petitioner has not been adjudged

a poor prisoner or pauper, this Court has authority

and must determine the question of excessive ])un-

ishment prior to proceeding under Section 641 of

Title 18, United States Code.

Hogan V. Hill, 9 F. Supp. 333.

Kerr v. Johnston, 130 Fed. 2d, 637 was an applica-

tion for a release brought by this same })etitioner in

the United States District Court, Northern Division

of California. That api^lication was brought in 1941

and was decided in 1942. An examination of th(^

original petition therein and the briefs shows that

the sole contention at that time was that Counts 4,

5 and 6 were all invalid as being an integral part of

Count 2, the robbery [12] count. At the time the pe-

tition ill that case was brought, the ])etitioner,

George Kerr, had not served the sentence imposed

on Count 4. Therefore the question raised in the
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iiistant petition For a writ of habeas corpus was not

before the Court in Kerr v. Johnston, supra, and

the language contained in that case is not controlling

on the instant decision of the Court.

Respectfully presented,

JOHN M. SCHERMER
JAMES W. MIFFLIN

Attorneys for Petitioner

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 26, 1944. [13]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITIONER'S REPLY TO RESPONDENT'S
ANSWER AND RETURN

Comes now the above named petitioner, by his at-

torneys, John M. Schermer and James W. Mifflin,

and for his traverse and reply to respondent's an-

swer and return, admits, denies and alleges as fol-

lows:

I.

Admits the allegations contained in paragraphs

I and II of respondent's Affirmative Defense.

II.

Admits the allegations contained in paragraph III

of said resj^ondent's Aflfirmative Defense, except

that petitioner denies the allegations contained in

lines 17 and 18 thereof.

III.

Denies each and every allegation contained in

paragraph IV of said Affirmative Defense.
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AVherefore, having full}' replied and traversed to

the allegations (contained in said respondent's An-

swer and Return and the affirmative defense therein,

petitioner i)rays that the relief prayed for in his

petition on tile herein be granted.

JOHN M. SCHERMER
JAMES W. MIFFLIN

Attorneys for Petitioner [14]

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

John M. Schermer, being first duly swoi'n upon

oath deposes and says:

That he is one of the attorneys for the petitioner

above named and makes this verification on his be-

half for the reason that said petitioner is now eon-

fined to the United State Peniteitiary at McNeil

Island, Washington, and is not available for signa-

ture thereof: that he has read the foregoing Reply

and Traverse and knows the contents thereof and

that the matters and things therein contained are

true to the best of his knowledge, information and

belief.

JOHN M. SCHERMER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 2r)th day

of September, 1944.

(Seal) EDA M. KRULLER
Notary Public in and for th(» State of Washinuton,

residing at Seattle.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 2(), 1944. [15]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

OKDER OVER -RULING DEMURRER AND
GRANTING LEAVE TO AMEND

This matter having come on for hearing the 11th

day of September, 1944, the petitioner being present

in person and represented by his comisel, John M.

Schermer, and respondent being represented by his

counsel, J. Charles Dennis, United States Attorney

and Guy A. B. Dovell, Asst. United States Attorney,

upon hearing of the demurrer interposed by the re-

spondent, and the Court having examined the files

and records herein and being fully advised in the

premises.

It is Hereby Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that

the demurrer of the respondent interposed herein

be and the same is hereby over-ruled,

And it is Further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that the petitioner is permitted to amend his said

petitioned by filing with the Clerk of the above en-

titled court, certified copies of the indictment and

judgment and sentence relevant to the above entitled

cause, and serving a copy thereof upon coimsel for

the respondent. [16]

And it is Further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that respondent's exceptions to the foregoing order

are noted and allowed.

Done in 0})en Court this 27 day of September,

1944.

CHARLES H. LEAVY
Judge
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Presented by:

JOHN M. SCHERMER
Attorney for Petitioner

Received copy of above order Sept. 27, 1944.

GUY A. B. DOVELL
Asst. U. S. Atty.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 27, 1944. [17]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
OF LAW

The above entitled matter coming on before the

court on the 16th day of October, 1944, for fui^ther

hearing upon the Order to Show Cause heretofore

issued herein, pursuant to continuance of hearing

from September 27, 1944, and a previous continu-

ance from September 11, 1944, the petitioner having

ajjpeared in person at time of said previous hearings

and being represented now and at said prior hear-

ings by John M. Schermer, of his counsel, John M.

Schermer and James W. Mifflin, and the respondent

having been represented by J. Charles Demiis,

United States Attorney and Guy A. B. Dovell, As-

sistant United States Attorney for this district, and

the court having heretofore on September 11, 1944,

overruled the respondent's demurrer to the petition

and I'espondent having thereupon made and filed his

answer and return thei'eto, and the court having, on

September 27, 1944, lieard the testimony of the peti-
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tioner and received the doeimientary evidence sub-

mitted by counsel for resi^ondent and petitioner, and

on the 16th day of October, 1944, received the fur-

ther evidence submitted by counsel for petitioner,

and the coui't having heard and considered the argu-

ments of counsel, and considered the matter before

the court, the law and the evidence, and being fully

advised in the premises, now makes the follow-

ing: [18]

FINDINGS OF FACT

I.

That petitioner, George Kerr, is now being hold

in custody of the respondent as Warden of the

United States Penitentiary at McNeil Island, Wash-

ington, by authority of a judgment, sentence and

commitment entered by the District Court of the

United States for the Northern District of Califor-

nia, Northern Division, on the 12th day of March,

1934, in a certain criminal case in said court entitled

^^ United States of America vs. George Kerr,'' and

being designated as Case No. 5925CR, records of

said court.

II.

That the indictment containing seven counts in

said Cause No. 5925-CR was returned on September

30, 1933, to which defendant, George Kerr, on ar-

raignment on January 2, 1934, entered his plea of

not guilty, and thereafter on March 12, 1934, being

re])resent-ed by counsel, the defendant George Kerr,

petitioner herein, was allowed to withdraw his plea

of not guilty, on motion of his counsel, and ])etitioner
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thei-oiipon plead guilty to counts 2, 4, 5, 6 and 7,

Counts 1 and 3 of said indictment being dismissed

on motion of the government, whereupon tlie said

defendant, (xeorge Kerr, petitioner herein, was sen-

tenced by the court to imprisonment on the second

count for a period of ten years, on the fourth, fifth

and sixth counts for a period of five years each, and

on the seventh count for a period of two years and

to pay a fine of $1,000.00, sentence under fourth

count to commence to run upon expiration of sen-

tence under second count ; sentence under fifth count

to commence to run upon expiration of sentence

mider fourth count; sent-ence under sixth count to

commence to run upon expiration of sentence under

fifth count, and sentence [19] under seventh count

to commence to run upon expiration of sentence

under sixth count.

That said indictment charged the defendant,

George Kerr with violation of Section )>20, Title

18, USCA in Count two, in that defendant did ]*ob

one Walter E. Williams, a person having lawful

charge, control and custody of certain mail matter

being described as three registered mail bags

thereof, and m counts four, five, and six, in that

defendant did commit larcenies from and out of a

post office of the United States of certain mail bags

which were under separate labels and locks, and

which charges were based upon violation of S(h--

tion 317, Title 18, U.S.C.A. and in count seven in

that defendant did conspire with others to commit

the offense charged in the preceding counts of the

indictment.
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III.

That t]iereafter the petitioner was delivered under

said commitment by the United States Marshal to

the United States Penitentiary at McNeil Island,

Washington, service from date of imposition; and

that pursuant to said judgment, sentence and com-

mitment said petitioner is now imprisoned and con-

fined in the United States Penitentiary on McNeil

Island, Washington, and his custody and confine-

ment under such judgment and sentence is lawful

and valid.

Petitoner, by counsel, excepts to so much of the

foregoing finding as involves the validity of his

present confinement, and his exception is allowed.

IV.

That while an inmate of said institution said pe-

titioner's conduct has been good and he has worked

in prison industries and from a computation of the

time served by said petitioner it appears he has al-

ready completed service of the legal maximum time

of imprisonment [20] in custody imposed under

counts 2, 4 and 7 of said indictment, and that on a

cumulative sent-ence of seventeen years thereunder

would have been entitled to conditional release on

July 28, 1944, or, with fine, August 28, 1944.

V.

That the three mail bags described in counts 4, 5

and 6 of the indictment were simultaneously taken

and their taking involved but one transaction and

were all of the mail bags carried at that time by the

said Walter E. Williams, custodian thereof named
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in said indietment and cacli was imd-er a se])avate

label and luck as set forth in the said counts, to-wit

:

In count 4 as bearing label '^Froni Sacramento,

California, to San Francisco, California,'' and

closed by rotary lock No. J 1988-425

;

In count 5 as bearing label ^^Frorn Sacramento,

California, to Chicago, Illinois," and closed by

rotary lock No. PI18880-384; and

In count 6 as bearing label '^Frorn Sacramento,

California, to Sacramento Terminal, Sacram.ento,

California,'' and closed by rotary lock No. L 1057-11.

Done in Open Court this 23 day of Dec, 1944.

CHARLES H. LEAVY
United States District Judge.

From the foregoing Findings of Faet, the Court

now makes the following

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
I.

That the court has jurisdiction of the })ai'ties to

this cause and of the subject matter thei*eof. [21]

II.

That the court in said Cause No. 5925 CR had

jurisdiction of the person and offense against him

and had jurisdiction to imj)ose the said aggregate

sentence of twenty-seven years and a payment of a

fine of $1,000.00.

III.

That each of the offenses set forth in counts 4, 5

and 6 of said indictment, which charged the peti-
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tioner in each of said counts with the theft of a dif-

ferent mail bag, requires proof of a fact that the

others do not, and the theft of each bag was a sep-

arate otfense under the provisions of Section 317,

Title 18, 11.8.C.A. and the sentences imposed under

said counts 4, 5 and 6 of the indictment are valid.

IV.

That petitioner's conviction and sentence under

Sections 88, 317 and 320 of Title 18, U.S.C. upon

his plea of guilty to the counts 2, 4, 5, 6, and 7 of

the indictment in said Cause No. 5925 CR and repre-

sentation by counsel as hereinbefore found, was and

is in all respects valid and binding, and petitioner is

not now unlawfully restrained and detained by the

respondent.

V.

That petitioner has failed to establish grounds

upon which he is now entitled to be released from

him present confinement in the United States Peni-

tentiary at McNeil Island, Washington, and that his

petition for writ of habeas corpus and release from

confinement should be denied.

To all of which Conclusions of Law petitioner,

by counsel, excepts and his exceptions are hereby

allowed.

Done in Open Court this 23 day of December,

1944.

CHARLES H. LEAVY
United States District Judge.
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Presented by

:

GUY A. B. DOVELL
Assistant United States

Attorney

Approved as to form and Notice of Entry waived.

JOHN M. SCHERMER
Attornev for Petitioner.

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 26, 1944. [23]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER OP DISMISSAL

The above entitled matter coming on before the

court on the 16th day of October, 1944, for further

hearing upon the Order to Show Cause heretofore

issued herein, pursuant to continuance of hearing

from September 27, 1944, and previous continuanc:e

from September 11, 1944, the petitioner having

appeared in person at time of said previous lieariug

and being represented at all hearings in this matter

before the court by John M. Schermer of his coun-

sel, John M. Schermer and James W. Miffliu, and

the respondent having been represented by J.

Charles Dennis, United States Attorney, and Guy
A. B. Dovell, Assistant United States Attornev for

this district, and the cou]*t having heretofore on Sep-

tember 11, 1944, overruled the i*espondent's demur-

rer to the petition and respondent having thereupon

made and tiled his answei* and retuiu thereto, and

the court having on September 27, 1944, heard the
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testimony of the petitioner and received the doeu-

mentarv evidence snbniitted by counsel for resi)on-

dent and petitioner, and on the 16th day of October,

1944, received the further evidence submitted by

counsel for petitioner, and the court having heard

and considered the arguments of counsel and having

heretofore on the 23rd day of December, 1944, made

and entered its Findings of Fact and Conclusions

of Law whereform it appears that the petitioner is

not entitled to any relief prayed for in his said

petition; now, therefore, it is hereby

Ordered that the petition of the petitioner herein

be, and the same is hereby denied; that the above

entitled action be, and the same is hereby dismissed

;

and it is further

Ordered that the petitioner is remanded to the

custody of the respondent, P. J. Squier, Warden of

the Unit-ed States Penitentiary on McNeil Island,

Washington, to complete the service of the sentence

imposed upon him by the District Court of the

United States for the Northern District of Cali-

fornia, Northern Division.

To w^hich ruling the petitioner, by counsel, excepts

and his exceptions are hereby allowed.

Done in Open Court this 23 day of Dec, 1944.

CHARLES H. LEAVY
United States District Judge.

Approved as to Form and Notice of Entry waived.

JOHN SCHERMER
Of Counsel for Petitioner
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Pr^esented by:

GUY A. B. DOVELL
Assistant United States

Attorney

[Endorsed] : Filed Dee. 23, 1944. [25]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OP APPEAL

To the Clerk of the above entitled Coiui to George

W. Kerr, to P. J. Squier, Warden, United

States Penitentiary, McNeil Island, Washing-

ton, to Charles A. Dennis, United States At-

torney and Guy A. B. Dovell, Asst. United

States Attorney: his attorneys:

You and each of you will please take notice that

George W. Kerr, petitioner in the above entitled

matter and appellant herein, hereby appeals to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit from an ordei' of dismissal and judg-

ment made and entered in the above entitled cause

on the 23rd day of December, 1944, denying said

petition and discharging the Order to Show Cause

theretofore issued herein.

Dated : December 28, 1944.

JOHN M. SCHERMER
JAMES W. MIFFLIN

Attorneys for George W. Kerr,

Petitioner and Appellant
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Copy of the within Notice of Appeal delivered to

Guy A. B. Dovell, Asst. United States Attorney, this

29th day of December, 1944.

E. E. REDMAYNE,,
Deputy Clerk

Receipt of a coj)y of the within Notice of Appeal

is hereby acknowledged this 29th day of December,

1944.

GUY A. B. DOVELL,
Asst. U. S. Attorney

[Endorsed]: Piled Dec. 29, 1944. [26]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR EXTENSION OP TIME TO
DOCKET CAUSE IN CIRCUIT COURT OF
APPEALS

Comes now the petitioner above named and alleges

as follows:

I.

That your petitioner above named now is and at

all times herein mentioned was incarcerated as an

inmate at United States Penitentiary at McNeil

Island, Washington.

II.

That Findings of Pact and Conclusions of Law^

and an order denying petitioner's application for a

wTit of habeas corpus were entered in the above en-

titled cause on the 23rd day of December, 1944.
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That thereaftei-, on the 28th day of December, 1944,

notice of appeal from the entry of said Findings of

Fact, Conclnsions of Law and order was duly given

and filed. That since that time petitioner's counsel

have been engaged in the trial of several causes,

each requiring extended preparation and extended

attendance thereon. That this matter throughout

has been handled by Mr. Schermer of petitioner's

counsel, and that Mr. Schermer, on January 8, 1945,

was without notice called to Palo Alto, California,

by reason of the serious illness of his father. That

as a result, Mr. Schermer has been unable to dili-

gently prepare and perfect petitioner's apjjeal, and

that petitioner's counsel require additional time to

perfect the appeal. [27]

III.

That petitioner believes that an extension of time

to 28 day of February, 1945, will enable petitioner's

counsel to properly perfect the appeal.

JOHN M. SCHERMER
JAMES W. MIFFLIN

Attorneys for Petitioner and

Appellant

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

John M. Schermer, being first duly sworn upon

oath deposes and says : That he is one of the attor-

neys for api^ellant in the above entitled cause, that

he has read the foregoing petition, knows the con-

tents thereof and believes the facts therein stated
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to be true and the application for extension of time

to docket cause in the Circuit Court of Appeals is

meritorious and well taken.

JOHN M. SCHERMER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th day

of February, 1945.

(Seal) WINIFRED KASTRUP
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Seattle.

Copy received this 6th day of Feb., 1945.

J. CHARLES DENNIS,
U. S. Attorney

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. (i, 1945. [28]

United States District Court, Western District of

Washington, Southern Division

No. 657

GEORGE KERR,
Petitioner,

vs.

P. J. SQUIER, Warden, United States Peniten-

tiary, McNeil Island, Washington,

Respondent.

ORDER
This matter having come on for hearing this (>

day of February, 1945, upon petitioner and appel-

lant's application for an extension or enlargement

of time in v/liich to docket the above entitled cause

on appeal in the office of the Clerk of the Circuit
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Court of Appeals for the 9tb Circuit, petitioner ap-

pearing by one of his attorneys, John M. Schermer,

and the court having examined the i)etition of the

petitioner, and having examined the files and records

herein and being fully advised in the premises, now,

therefore,

It is Hereby Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that

the time for docketing tho above entitled cause on

appeal in the office of the Clerk of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the 9th Circuit be and

the same is hereby extended and enlarged to the

28 day of February, 1945.

Done in Open Court this 6 day of February, 1945.

CHARLES H. LEAVY
Judge

Presented by

:

Approved

:

JOHN M. SCHERMER
Of Attorneys for Petitioner

HARRY SAGER
Asst. U. S. Atty.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 6, 1945. [29]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ASSIGNMENT OF ERRORS

Comes now George Kerr, petitioner in the above

entitled action, and by John M. Scheimer and James

W. Mifflin, his attorneys of record, and in connec-

tion with his petition for appeal in the above entitled
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action assigns the following errors which he alleges

occuiTed upon the hearing of the above entitled

action and upon which he will rely upon appeal to

the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

9th Circuit, from the Order of Dismissal made by

this honorable court on December 23, 1944:

I.

The court erred in ordering the petition denied

and the Order to Show Cause to be discharged.

II.

The court erred in holding that the allegatioiis

contained in said petition for a Writ of Habeas

Corpus were insufficient in law to justify the grant-

ing of an order, discharging the petitioner herein.

III.

The court erred in holding that the Conclusions

of Law made by the court followed from the Find-

ings of Fact made by the court. [30]

IV.

Petitioner alleges that from the Findings of Fact

made by the court after the hearing of the evidence

introduced and the examination of the exhibits in-

troduced and admitted, that the court erred in mak-

ing its Conclusions of Law.

Wherefore, said appellant and petitioner prays

that the order and judgment of the United States

District C^ourt, Western District of Washington,

Southern Division, made and entered herein in the
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office of the Clerk of said court, on the 23rd day of

December, 1944, denying the petition of George

Kerr for a Writ of Habeas Corpus, heretofore en-

tered herein, be reversed, and that the said George

Kerr, petitioner and appellant herein, be granted a

Writ of Habeas Corpus and discharged from the

custody of the Warden of the United States Peni-

tentiary at McNeil Island, Washington.

Dated this 9th day of February, 1945.

JOHN M. SCHERMER
JAMES W. MIFFLIN

Attorneys for Petitioner and

Appellant

Received copy 2/10/45.

GUY A. B. DOVELL
Of Counsel for Respondent

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 10, 1945. [31]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITION

To the Honorable Judge of the District Court of

the United States, Western District of Wash-

ington, Southern Division:

Comes now George Kerr, petitioner and appellant

above named and respectfully represents to the

Court

:

I.

That he is the petitioner in the above entitled

cause and that he is at ijresent incarcerated as a
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prisoner at United States Penitentiary at McNeil

Island, Washington. That as a resnlt of his incar-

ceration his funds for prosecuting the appeal in the

above entitled cause are limited.

II.

That five exhibits were introduced during the trial

of the above cause, and that said five exhibits con-

sist as follows:

Petitioner's 1; Appellee's brief in the prior case

of Kerr vs. Johnston.

Petitioner's 2; Certified copy of record, including

indictment, commitment, etc., in the case of United

States vs. Kerr.

Petitioner's 3; Brief of appellant Kerr vs. John-

ston.

Petitioner's 4; Appellant's reply brief Kerr vs.

Johnston. [32]

Petitioner's 5; Respondent's A-1; certified coyjies

of petition for writ ; order to show cause ; return to

order to show cause; points of authorities in support

of petition; Kerr vs. Johnston.

That all the foregoing exhibits are somewhat vol-

uminous, and Vv'ould entail considerable ex])ense to

incorporate in the transcript of record.

That your petitioner respectfully requests that the

court enter an order herein directing that the (uig-

inal exhibits be forwarded for docketing and filing

i\\ the office of the Clerk of the United States Circuit
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Court of x\])peals, 9tli Circuit, at Sau Francisco,

California.

JOHN M. SCHERMER
JAMES W. MIFFLIN

Attorneys for Petitioner

State of Washington

County of King—ss.

John M. Schermer, being first duly sworn upon

oath deposes and says. That he is one of the attor-

neys for appellant in the above entitled cause, that

he has read the foregoing petition, knows the con-

tents thereof and believes the facts therein stated to

be true.

JOHN SCHERMER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 8th day

of February, 1945.

(Seal) WINIFRED KASTRUP
Notary Public in and for the State of Washington,

residing at Seattle.

Received copy 2/10/45.

GUY A. B. DOVELL
Of Counsel for Respondent

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 10, 1945. [;]3]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER
This matter having come on for hearing this 10

day of P^ebruary, 1945, upon the petition of the
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above named appellant for the issuance of an order

directing that the original exhibits introduced and

admitted herein during the trial of the above cause

be forwarded to the office of the Clerk of the United

States Court of Appeals, 9th Circuit, at San Fran-

cisco, California, for docketing, filing and use in the

appeal herein in lieu of incorporation of said ex-

hibits by copying by the Clerk of the above entitled

Court in the transcript of record, and the Coui-t hav-

ing examined the files and records herein, and it ap-

pearing to the Court that said exhibits are somewhat

voluminous, and that the appellant is incarcerated

as a prisoner at United States Penitentiary at Mc-

Neil Island, Washington, and has limited funds with

which to prosecute his said api)eal, and the Court

being fully advised in the premises, now, therefore.

It is Hereby Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that

the Clerk of the above entitled Court be and the

same is; hereby authoried to forward the following

exhibits offered and admitted in the trial of the

above cause: [34]

Petitioner's 1; brief.

Petitioner's 2; certified copy of record

Petitioner's 3; brief of appellant

Petitioner's 4; appellant's reply brief

Petitioner's 5; respondent's A-1. Certified

copies of record

to the Clerk of the Court, United States Circuit

Court of Appeals, 9th Circuit, at San Francisco,

California, and the said Clerk of the above entitled
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Court, in view of the foregoing order, is not required

to eopy said exliibits in the transcript of record.

Done in 0})en Court this 10 day of Februaiy,

1945.

CHARLES H. LEAVY
Judge

Presented by:

GUY A. B. DOVELL
JOHN M. SCHERMER,

Attorneys for Petitioner and

Appellant

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 10, 1945. [35]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

COST BOND ON APPEAL

Know All Men By These Presents: That we,

George Kerr, Petitioner, as principal, and Conti-

nental Casualty Company, a corporation organized

under the laws of the State of Indiana, as surety,

are held and affirmatively bound under the above

named respondent, P. J. Squier, Warden, United

Stat-es Penitentiary, McNeil Island, Washington, in

the full and just sum of $250.00, to be y)aid to the

said respondent, his heirs, executors, administi-ators,

successors or assigns, to which i)ayment well and

truly to be made we bind ourselves, our heirs, execu-

tors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly

aiid severally by these presents.

Executed this 9th day of February, 1945.
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The condition of tliis application is such that

:

Whereas, on the 23rd day of December, 1944, in

the above entitled action between the above named

petitioner, George Kerr and the above named re-

spondent, P. J. Squier, Warden, an order was en-

tei'ed denying petitioner's application for a writ of

habeas corpus, dismissing the above entitled action

and remanding the petitioner to the custody of the

respondent, and the said petitioner has appealed to

the [36] United States Circuit Court of Appeals, 9th

Circuit.

Now, Therefore, the said George Kerr, petitioner,

shall pay the costs if said appeal is dismissed, or the

order of dismissal affirmed, or such costs as the

Appellate Court may award if the judgment is modi-

fied, then the above obligation to be void; otherwise

in full force and effect.

GEORGE KERR
By JOHN M. SCHERMER,

his attorney

(Seal) CONTINENTAL CASUALTY
COMPANY

[Illigible]

Its Attorney in Fact

Approved 2/10/45.

CHARLES H. LEAVY
U. S. Dist. Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 10, 1945. [37]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OP RECORD

To the Clerk of the Above Entitled Court:

You will please prepare a certified transcript of

record on appeal to the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals, 9th Circuit, in the above entitled cause,

and include therein the following papers and pro-

ceeding :

1. Petition for writ of habeas corpus

2. Order to Show Cause

3. Respondent's demurrer

4. Respondent's answer and return

5. Petitioner's reply to respondent's answer

and return

6. Respondent's memorandum on petition

7. Order over-ruling demurrer and granting

leave to amend

8. Findings of Facts and Conclusions of Law

9. Order of dismissal

10. Notice of appeal

11. Petition for entry of order extending time

for docketing in Circuit Court

12. Order extending time for docketing

13. Petition directing clerk to forward original

exhibits to Circuit Court

14. Order directing clerk to send original ex-

hibits to Circuit Court

15. Coj)y of this praecipe

16. Bond for costs
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17. Assignment of Errors to be relied npon on

appeal

Dated this 9 day of February, 1945.

JOHN M. SCHERMER
JAMES W. MIFFLIN

Attorneys for Petitioner and

Appellant

Received copy 2/10/45.

GUY A. B. DOVELL
Of Counsel for Respondent.

[Endorsed] : Piled Feb. 10, 1945. [39]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE

I, Millard P. Thomas, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the Western Distiict of Wash-

ington, do hereby certify and return that the forc-

ing Transcript, consisting of pages numbered 1 to

39, inclusive, is a full, true and correct copy of so

much of the record, papers and proceedings in Cause

657, George Kerr, Petitioner-App-ellant, vs. P. J.

Squier, Warden, United States Penitentiary, McNeil

Island, Washington, Respondent-Appellee, as re-

quired by Appellant's Praecipe for the Transcript

of the Record on Appeal, on file and of record in

m}^ office at Tacoma, Washington, and the same con-

stitutes the Transcript of the Record on Appeal

from the Order of Dismissal of the United States
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District Court for the Western District of Wasli-

ington, Southern Division, to the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

1 do further certify that x)ursuant to order of the

District Court I have this dav transmitted to the

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

original exhibits niunbered as follows, to-wit: Peti-

tioner's Exhibits Nos. 1, 2, 3 and 4; Respondent's

Exhibit No. A-1.

I do further certify that the following is a full

true and correct statement of all expenses, fees and

charges [40] earned by me in the preparation and

certification of the aforesaid Transcript of the Rec-

ord on Api>eal, to-wit:

Appeal fee $ 5.00

Clerk's fee for preparing, comparing and

certifying Transcript of the Record on

Appeal of the Petitioner-Appellant, 33

folios ® 15c per folio, and 60 folios

® 5c per folio, and certificate 8.45

$13.45

I do further cei*tify that the said fees, as above

set forth, have been ])aid to me in full by the afore-

said Petitioner-Appellant.

I do further certify that the appeal in the fore-

going cause was taken within the statutory tim(^

allowed, there being no particular provisions of the

local rules of the Disti'ict Court for this District
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otherwise fixing the time for taking appeals from

orders in habeas corpus cases.

In Testimony Whereof I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said Court, in the City

of Tacoma, in the Western District of Washing-

ton, this 15th day of February, 1945.

[Seal] MILLARD P. THOMAS
Clerk

By E. E. REDMAYNE
Deputy [41]

[Endorsed]: No. 10996. United States Circuit

Court of Ai3peals for the Ninth Circuit. George

Kerr, Appellant, vs. P. J. Squier, Warden, United

States Penitentiary, McNeil Island, Washington,

Appellee. Transcript of R-ecord. Upon Appeal from

the District Court of the United States for the

Western District of Washington, Southern Division.

Filed March 5, 1945.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 10996

GEOEGE KERR,
Petitioner,

vs.

P. J. SQUIER, Warden, United States Penitenti-

ary, McNeil Island, Washington,

Respondent.

STIPULATION AND REQUEST THAT EX-
HIBITS BE CONSIDERED IN THEIR
ORIGINAL FORM

Comes now the parties above named and respect-

fully request the above entitled Court that said

Court permit the appellant herein to present the

original exhibits to the Court for consideration in

their original form and not require said exhibits to

be printed in the transcript of record.

I.

All the exhibits herein consist of printed briefs

of a prior cause and certified copies of records and

pleadings in said prior cause.

II.

That the appellant herein is incarcerated as an

inmate at the Federal Penitentiary at McNeil

Island, Washington, and does not have adecjiiate

funds, and that if said permission is granted it will
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materially assist him in preparing and presenting

his appeal herein. That the above set forth request

is agreeable to counsel for all parties herein.

JOHN SCHERMER
JAMES W. MIFFLIN

Counsel for Apellant

OK:
J. CHARLES DENNIS
GUY A. B. DOVELL

Counsel for Respondent

Ordered that the original exliibits herein need not

be printed, but will be considered by the Court in

their original form.

CURTIS D. WILBUR
Senior United States Circuit

Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 4, 1945. Paul P. O'Brien,

Clerk.
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George Kerr, Appellant,
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P. J. Squier, Warden of the United ) No. 10,996

States Penitentiary, McNeil Island,

Washington, Appellee.
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United States for the Western District of

Washington, Southern Division

BRIEF FOR APPELLANT

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This appeal is from the entry of an order of the

United States District Court for the Western District

of Washington, Southern Division, denying Appel-

lant's petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus (Tr.

23-24).

FACTS OF THE CASE

Appellant was indicted upon seven (7) counts of

an indictment (Pet. Ex. 2) charging violations of the

postal laws, pleaded guilty on Counts 2, 4, 5, 6 and 7

;

he was sentenced to imprisonment for ten (10) years

on Count 2, five (5) years on each of Counts 4, 5 and



6, and two (2) years and a fine of $1,000.00 on Count

7, all sentences to run consecutively (Pet. Ex. 2).

Appellant concedes the validity of the sentence im-

posed on Counts Two, Four and Seven. It is his con-

tention that the sentencing Court was without juris-

diction to impose sentence on him on Counts Five

and Six, for the reason that said sentence placed him

in double jeopardy by imposing double punishment,

and is therefore void.

Count 2 charged a violation of Title 18, U.S.C.A.,

Section 320, namely, robbery of three certain regis-

tered mail bags from a named custodian of the same,

at the Sacramento Post Office, California, February

9, 1933 (Pet. Ex. 2).

Counts 4, 5 and 6 charged a violation of Title 18,

U.S.C.A., Sec. 317, namely, unlawfully, knowingly

and feloniously stealing, taking and abstracting out of

the Sacramento Post Office, California, the same three

registered mail bags, each separately charged as an

offense, as are referred to in Count 2, on the same

date (Pet. Ex. 2).

Count 7 charged a violation of Title 18, U.S.C.A.,

Section 88, namely, a conspiracy to commit and the

commission of certain acts aiding the commission of

the acts complained of in the previous counts (Pet.

Ex. 2).

The physical facts are not in dispute. The Appel-

lant, in company with others, committed the crime

of robbery of a custodian of mail matter at the time

and place charged (Pet. Ex. 2). There was but one

custodian, one Williams, a postal employee; but one
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transaction, the taking of three registered, locked

mail pouches from the said Williams, and that trans-

action was simultaneous and inclusive, all having oc-

curred at the precise time and place charged in the

indictments (Pet. Ex. 2). For this single transaction

and simultaneous taking (Tr. 20-21), the Appel-

lant received a sentence of ten years on Count Two,

five years each on Counts Four, Five and Six for tak-

ing the said mail bags from the Post Office, and two

years and a fine of $1,000.00 on Count 7 (Pet. Ex. 2).

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

The errors assigned and relied upon on this appeal

are:

1. The Court erred in holding that the allegations

contained in said petition for a Writ of Habeas Corpus

were insufficient in law to justify the granting of an

order discharging the Appellant herein (Tr. 23-24).

2. The Court's Findings of Fact do not support the

Court's Conclusions of Law (Tr. 21-23).

3. The Court's Findings of Fact (Tr. 17-21) are

inconsistent with the Court's order denying Appel-

lant's petition for discharge (Tr. 23-24).

4. The Court erred in denying the discharge of

Appellant from custody (Tr. 23-24).

QUESTION

Did the trial court, after imposing sentence on

Counts Two, Four and Seven, have the power to fur-

ther impose sentence on Counts Five and Six? It is

conceded that the sentences on Counts Two, Four and

Seven were valid, in that each of said counts and sen-



tences thereon, although arising out of one transac-

tion, denounces a different class of criminal act. The

question here, however, goes to whether or not, the

taking, being one transaction and simultaneous, and

not selective, double punishment has been inflicted

for one criminal act, to-wit : the larceny of three mail

bags.



ARGUMENT

The fundamental concept underlying Appellant's

appeal in the case at bar is an oft enunciated rule

of law, stemming from the Fifth Amendment to the

Constitution of the United States. The Appellant con-

tends that his rights were infringed upon, and he has

been subjected to double punishment by the imposition

of the sentences on Counts Five and Six. Under the

Fifth Amendment to the Constitution of the United

States, the sentences were invalid and the Court, with-

out jurisdiction to impose them, if they do so consti-

tute double punishment.

Ex-parte Lagomarsino (CCA. 9) 88 F. (2d)

86;

Pringle v. United States, 128 F.(2d) 736;

Stevens v, McLaughry, 207 Fed. 18.

In the case at bar, the District Court, after hear-

ing evidence and argument of counsel, made and en-

tered Findings of Fact (Tr. 18-21). Finding No. 5

(Tr. 20-21) clearly states that the taking of the three

mail sacks, charged in Counts Four, Five and Six

of the original indictment were ^^simultaneously taken

and their taking involved but one transaction, and

were all of the mail bags carried at that time by the

said Walter E. Williams, custodian thereof, named in

said indictments * * */' In view of this Finding, it is

submitted that the case at bar comes precisely within

the rule voiced by several recent decisions.

In EX'parte Lagomarsino (supra) the Appellant

was charged under an indictment containing five

counts ; Count One charged breaking and entering into

a certain post office with intent to commit larceny;
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Count Two charged that with intent to rob mail, de-

fendant cut a certain mail pouch used for the convey-

ance of mail. Count Three charged the defendant did

steal, take and abstract mail from said pouch. Count

Four, also alleges stealing from the said mail deposi-

tory, and Count Five was identical. The only distinc-

tion in Counts Three, Four and Five was that mxail

matter addressed to different persons were taken from

the same depository. In that case, Lagomarsino con-

ceded that the sentences on Counts One, Two and

Three were valid, but contended that the sentences

on Counts Four and Five were invalid, as being all

part of one simultaneous transaction. The Court, in

determination of this matter said:

^*The parcels charged to have been stolen under

Counts 3, 4, and 5 are three separate articles

and had a different addressee. It is conceded by

the appellant that the taking might have been

simultaneous and continuous.

(2, 3) In Braden v. U, S. (CCA.) 270 F.

441, in which Judge Sanborn, later Justice of

the Supreme Court, sat with the other Circuit

Judges, it is said held that the larceny of four

horses from a barn at the same time constituted

but one offense. While every presumption must

be indulged in favor of the judgment and sen-

tence. Hall V, Johnston, Warden (CCA.) 86 F.

(2d) 820, just decided, but where upon the face

of the record it is disclosed that the offense

charged involved several separate articles, not

charged as separately taken, but which may have

been simultaneous and continuously taken, a dif-

ferent relation obtains. Suppose a flock of sheep

is stolen as one act. May the thief be punished

for stealing each sheep simultaneously and con-



tinuously driven away? If a person kills a flock

of sheep, unless under very peculiar circum-

stances, the killing of each sheep would be a sep-

arate act, as cutting separate mail bags. To take

several letters from a mail depository simulta-

neously and continuously is one act and compre-

hends one intent.

This court held in Parmagini v, U. S., 42 F.

(2d) 721, that concealment and distribution of

narcotics was a part of the indivisible acts of the

offense of selling. That case, however, is distin-

guished from this in that the concealing and dis-

tributing were merely steps to the consummated
act of selling. The acts charged in counts 3, 4,

and 5 connote a simultaneous and continuous act,

therefore, are indivisible parts of the act charged

in count 3.

Appellee concedes that the sentences on Counts

1, 2, and 3 are valid, but contends that as to

Counts 4 and 5 the sentences pronounced were
void because the charges in said counts were
indivisible parts of the offense charged in count

3, and having served the sentences on counts 1, 2

and 3, his further detention is unlawful. The Dis-

trict Court so held and ordered the defendant dis-

charged. Affirmed.^'

In Colson v. Johnston^ 35 F. Supp. 317, the defend-

ant was charged under an indictment containing

eleven counts. The first count charged assault on

Post Office employees in charge of mail matter. The

second count charged robbery of the said post office

employees of a certain number of registered mail

pouches. The remaining counts, No. 3 to 11 inclusive,

contained the identical charges against the petitioner

contained in the second count, save that in each latter
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count reference was made to a different numbered

mail pouch. All of the several mail pouches, however,

referred to in Counts 2 to 11, formed a part of the

mail matter which was taken in a single robbery upon

which the charges in the indictment were based. The

Court said as follows

:

*'(1) It is the conclusion of this court that the

sentences imposed on petitioner under these re-

maining counts are, and each of them is, invalid

as being in excess of the power of the sentencing

court; that such court, after having imposed a
sentence of twenty-five years on the second count,

reached the limit of its jurisdiction so far as its

power to sentence petitioner for the offenses set

forth in the indictment was concerned. This con-

clusion is based in turn on the determination of

this court that although it contained eleven sep-

arate counts, the indictment against petitioner in

fact stated but one offense carrying a maximum
penalty of twenty-five years, namely robbery of

mail matter from persons having custody thereof

in the course of which the lives of such persons

were placed in jeopardy by the use of dangerous

weapons. And petitioner, having served the maxi-

mum sentence, is entitled to release from further

custody. * * *

''(4) Counts three to eleven, inclusive, charge

the identical offense charged in count two and
consequently the sentences imposed thereunder

are void. What these remaining counts propose

to do is to make as many separate acts of robbery

out of what was in fact a single robbery as there
were mail pouches taken in that one robbeiy.

Section 197 of the Criminal Code (supra) does

not authorize such an interpretation of its provi-

sions. Further, the case of Johnston v, Lago-
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marsino, 88 F. (2d) 186, of this Ninth Circuit,

is authority for the proposition that a single theft

cannot be split up into as many separate offenses

of theft as there were articles taken in the theft.

^'Petitioner has served his full sentence for

the crime of robbery of mail matter from postal

employees in charge thereof, whose lives were

placed in jeopardy by the use of dangerous weap-

ons in the course of the robbery. The later con-

secutive sentences imposed on him under the other

counts of the indictment which were repetitious

of the same offense of which he had served full

time were in excess of the power of the court to

impose and, therefore, illegal and void.

''(5) Wherefore, the writ of habeas corpus

will be issued and the petitioner will be dis-

charged;'' * * *

While it is true that the decision of a District Court

is not binding upon this Court, it is significant, how-

ever, that the facts in the Colson case are identical

with the facts in the present appeal, and it is further

significant that the U. S. District Attorney for the

Northern District of California, Southern Division,

did not see fit to appeal to the Circuit Court of Ap-

peals. By inference, in McKee v. Johnston, 125 F. (2d)

282, this court, at page 383, has tacitly approved the

ruling in the Colson case. At that time, this court, in

distinguishing the McKee case then before the court,

from the Colson case, stated

:

''that the indictment referred to in Colson v,

Johnston, Warden (D.C. Cal.) 35 F. Supp. 317,

called to our attention by appellants as support-

ing their cause, did not charge the abstraction of

letters, etc., from the mail bags stolen, but sim-

ply designated the theft of each bag under a

separate count.*'
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The most recent case pertinent to this issue is

Robinson v. United States (CCA. 10), reported 143

F.(2d) 276. This case was decidea on May 26, 1944,

and a re-hearing denied July 17, 1944. In this case,

the appellant, Robinson, was charged under two in-

dictments. The court concluded that the sentence im-

posed upon the three counts contained in the second

indictment were valid. The question which is apropos

to the present inquiiy arose, however, under the first

indictment which contained four counts. The first

count of that indictment charged a conspiracy. The

second, third and fourth counts charged the defend-

ant with transporting in interstate commerce from

Texas to Oklahoma by means of a motor vehicle three

different women for the immoral purpose of having

the said women engage in the practice of prostitution.

Each of the latter three counts were identical, except

for the identity of the different women. The court in

this matter delivered a rather exhaustive and search-

ing opinion, which is peculiarly controlling and per-

suasive with reference to the instant cause.

*The question remains whether counts two,

three and four in No. 13,457 charge separate

and distinct offenses. 18 U.S.CA., Sec. 398,

makes it an offense to transport in interstate

commerce ^any woman or girl for the purpose

of prostitution or debauchery, or for any other

immoral purpose.'

*^We think it is a fair inference that each of

the women named in counts two, three, and four

of No. 13,457 was transported at the same time

and in the same automobile.

"(2) The test for determining whether the of-
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fenses charged in the several counts of the indict-

ment are identical is whether the facts alleged in

one, if offered in support of the others, would
sustain a conviction. Where each count requires

proof of a fact, which the others do not, the sev-

eral offenses charged are not identical.

''It may be urged that in order to establish

count two in No. 13,457, it was necessary to

prove the transportation of the particular woman
named therein and that she was transported for

the purpose of prostitution, facts not required to

be proven in order to establish either of the other

two counts; that the same may be said with re-

spect to counts three and four; and, hence, that

each count required proof of facts which the

others did not.

"(3) The same transaction may constitute

separate and distinct crimes where it is suscep-

tible of separation into parts, each of which in

itself constitutes a completed offense. But the

same evidence test must be applied with some
discrimination. Merely because one element of a

single criminal act embraces two persons or

things, a prosecutor may not carve out two of-

fenses by charging the several elements of the

single offense in different counts and designating

only one of the persons or things in one count

and designating only the other person or thing in

the other count.

''(4) Unlawful transportation is the gist of

the offense. In order to come within the statute,

it must be of a woman or girl and for one or

more of the immoral purposes designated in the

statute. Here, the transportation was a single

continuous act and the offense was completed

when the transportation crossed the state line.

As to each woman the offense commenced and
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ended simultaneously. There was not a series of

steps, following one after the other, each of which

constituted in itself a complete offense. We think

an analogy may be drawn with larceny at com-

mon law. Larceny is the felonious taking by

trespass and the carrying away of the personal

property of another, without the latter's consent,

and with the felonious intent permanently to de-

prive the owner of such property. If a person

drove a vehicle to the barn of another and un-

lawfully and feloniously loaded into the vehicle

25 sacks of corn, which had been stored in the

barn by the owner, and carried it away with the

intent permanently to deprive the owner of the

possession thereof, such person would be guilty

of a single larceny, although he loaded each sack

into the vehicle separately and had an unlawful

intent as to each sack of corn. It would consti-

tute a single offense, even though the corn taken

belonged to different owners, because there would

be one single act of taking and carrying away.

''And, by the weight of authority, where the

same act or stroke results in the death of two

persons, acquittal or conviction of the murder of

one bars a subsequent prosecution for the killing

of the other, because the killing is but one crime

and cannot be divided. If a single act against two

persons, where the offense is against the person,

constitutes but one offense, it must be all the

more true when, as here, the offense is not against

the person, but consists in the unlawful trans-

portation for one of the interdicted purposes, and

there was but a single transportation.

''(5) We are of the opinion that the trans-

portation here was a single, continuous act and

constituted but one offense.
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It follows that counts two, three, and four of

the indictment in No. 13,457 constituted but one

offense, and the maximum sentence which could

have been lawfully imposed under No. 13,457

was seven years, and the maximum sentence

which could have been lawfully imposed under

No. 13,528 was twelve years.

'*The order is reversed and the cause is re-

manded with instructions to vacate the sentences

and impose new sentences within the limitations

above indicated.''

In light of the foregoing, it would seem that the

appellant's position is unequivocally correct. However,

counsel for the appellant is mindful of this court's

ruling in the case of Kerr v. Johnston^ 130 F. (2d)

637. The Appellant in that matter is the identical ap-

pellant herein and at first blush it would appear that

the position of the appellant in this proceeding has

previously been adjudicated.

A careful examination of that prior case will dis-

close that the point raised in that proceeding was

definite and distinct from the present matter at issue.

The present question was not even before the Court

at that time. The Writ was then sought on the theory

that the sentencing court was without jurisdiction to

impose sentence on any counts other than Counts Two
and Seven. An examination of the briefs in that

matter filed herein as exhibits (Petitioner's One, Peti-

tioner's Three, Petitioner's Four) disclose conclusively

that appellant's then contention, which the District

Circuit Courts resolved against him, was that since

only one transaction occurred, he could not be sen-

tenced for both robbery, under Title 18 U.S.C.A., Sec.
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320, and larceny, under Title 18 U.S.C.A., Sec. 317.

Indeed, Appellant was not then eligible to question

the validity of sentence on Counts Five and Six, hav-

ing at that time not served any time under Count

Four of the indictment; McNally v. Hill, 293 U.S.

131. That being so, certainly the government could

be in no better position than the Court. If the Appel-

lant was not eligible to challenge the validity of Counts

Five and Six, then the government could not ask for

what would amount to a declaratory judgment as to

their validity. In the government's brief, filed in that

cause (Pet. Ex. 1) on p. 7 thereof, it is said, after

setting forth the two pertinent statutes, being Sec-

tions 317 and 320 of Title 18 U.S.C.A.:

^^bearing in mind the two above quoted statutes,

the only question that need now be decided is:

Does Count 2 recite an offense separate and dis-

tinct from that recited in Count 4? Whether or

not Counts 4, 5 and 6 recited but one offense and

justified but one sentence, need not be decided,

since on authority of McNally v. Hill, 293 U.S.

(3), if the conviction and sentence on Count 4

was proper, Appellant cannot question his im-

prisonment until he has served the unexpired

portion of the sentence on Count 4.''

Again, in the brief of Appellant (Pet. Ex. 3) on

p. 4 thereof, in a summary of the question to be then

decided, it is said:

''in short, were the acts complained of in Counts

4, 5 and 6, necessarily part of and included with-

in the findings, alleged in Count Two so as to

preclude separate punishment therefore.''

The language of Kerr v, Johnston {supra), al-

though not on its face conclusive, must accordingly be



15

read and interpreted in light of the foregoing. It is

self evident that when the Court said, at p. 639

"the evidence charged in Count Two was distinct

from the evidence charged in Counts Four, Five

and Six, Schultz v. Hudspeth, 10 Circ, 123 Fed.

(2d) 729. The findings charged in Counts Four,

Five and Six were distinct from each other.

McKee v. Johnston, 9th Circ, 109 Fed. 2, p. 273,

275. Hence, the sentences imposed under Counts

Four, Five and Six, as well as those imposed

under Counts Two and Seven were valid.''

The Court simply meant that Counts Four, Five and

Six were all valid as to the particular question then

before the Court ; in short, the sentence on Count Two
for robbery did not preclude the passing of a valid

sentence for larceny under Title 18 U.S.C.A., Sec. 317.

As part of the sentence imposed on Count Seven

of the indictment, the Court ordered the Appellant to

pay a fine of $1,000.00. The Appellant, in his peti-

tion (Tr. 5) has alleged that he is a pauper or poor

prisoner. In order for the Appellant to purge himself

of the fine, he must show afRirmatively that he has

served at least one month after completion of all valid

terms of imprisonment. By the District Court's Find-

ings of Fact No. 4 (Tr. 20) it is shown that he has

so served, it is uncontroverted that he has been in

continuous custody since 1934, that more than one

month has elapsed since August 28, 1944, and that

he is still in custody. It is the position of Appellant

that under the provisions of Title 18 U.S.C.A., Sec.

641, which relates to the exoneration of poor prison-

ers from the payment of fines, that before he can

invoke the jurisdiction of the appropriate U. S. Com-
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missioner, this court must first adjudicate the ques-

tion of whether or not he has completed service of

terms of imprisonment imposed by the sentencing

court on all valid sentences. Manifestly, the U. S.

Commissioner does not have the jurisdiction to

determine the validity of the detention of the

Appellant, where such detention is under and by

virtue of a judgment and commitment valid on its

face. This view of the proper procedure is substan-

tiated by the opinion in Hogan v. Hill, 9 F. Supp. 333,

at p. 336, Paragraph 7, thereof. Under that holding,

it would appear that the indicated method would be

to invite this Court to determine the validity of the

imposition of the sentence under which the Appellant

is detained, and that if this court determines that the

imposition of the sentences on Counts Five and Six

was invalid, then, although the instant application for

a Writ of Habeas Corpus must be denied, the cause

may be remanded to the District Court, to permit the

Appellant to make the appropriate showing before the

U. S. Commissioner having jurisdiction. This is the

procedure followed in Hogan v. Hill (supra).
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CONCLUSION

It is axiomatic that each application for a Writ of

Habeas Corpus is de novo and is therefore to be con-

sidered on its individual merits. It is submitted that

the precise question presented by this appeal has not

heretofore been determined, with respect to this indi-

vidual Appellant.

The language of several of the cited cases, partic-

ularly that contained in Colson v, Johnston (supra),

Robinson v. United States {supra) and Ex-parte

Lagarmarsino (supra) is so apt, so in point, and so

decisive of the issue herein that any argument evolved

by the Appellant would be repetitious and fulsome.

It is apparent that the Conclusions of Law (Tr. 21-

22) and the order of the District Court (Tr. 23-24),

cannot be supported by the Findings (Tr. 17-21), and

that this Court should reverse the order of the Dis-

trict Court, subject to the Appellant's qualification as

a pauper or poor prisoner, under Title 18 U.S.C.A.,

Sec. 641.

Respectfully submitted,

John M. Schermer,

James W. Mifflin,

Counsel for Appellant.
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No. 10996

IN THE

Circuit Court of Sppeate
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

GEORGE KERR,
Appellant,— vs.—

P. J. SQUIER, Warden, United States

Penitentiary, McNeil Island, Washington,

Appellee.

UPON APPEAL, FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OP THE UNITED
STATES FOR THE WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON,

SOUTHERN DIVISION.

HONORABLE CHARLES H. LEAVY, Judge.

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

First: Does the theft of each of three mail bags

taken at the same time from a mail custodian con-

stitute three separate and distinct offenses under

Title 18, U.S.C.A. Section 317, as charged in Counts

4, 5 and 6 of the indictment herein?



Second: In view of the fact that pending set-

tlement of fine the appellant herein is not now and

was not at time of his previous appeal (130 F. (2d)

637, 639) entitled to immediate release, even if all

unserved counts were invalid, can it be said the first

question is now before the court and was not at that

time?

STATEMENTS OF PLEADINGS
AND FACTS

On September 1, 1944, appellant appearing by

legal counsel filed his present petition for writ of

habeas corpus in the District Court of the United

States for the Western District of Washington, South-

ern Division, alleging among other things that his

sentence was imposed and commenced to run on March

12, 1934, which he has served continuously since; that

the court was without jurisdiction to sentence him on

counts 5 and 6 of said indictment; that computation

shows that he has completed service of the legal maxi-

mum time of imprisonment imposed under counts 2,

4, and 7, being entitled to good time allowance; that

he is a pauper and has served a period in excess of

30 days by reason of fine imposed under count 7, but

is not entitled to apply for leave to take the pauper's

oath and have the court determine that he is in fact



a pauper until such time as the court determines he

has served the maximum legal imprisonment.

(Tr. 2-6).

The District Court thereupon issued an Order to

Show Cause, returnable September 11, 1944 (Tr. 7).

The appellee Warden appeared by the United States

Attorney for said district and demurred to the peti-

tion. (Tr. 8.) Thereafter on September 27, 1944, time

of further hearing, appellee^s demurrer was overruled

and appellant was granted leave to amend his peti-

tion (Tr. 16), which application after hearing Oc-

tober 16, 1944, on the amended petition, the return

thereto (Tr. 8-12), and reply (Tr. 14-15) was denied

and appellant was remanded to the custody of appellee

to complete the service of his sentence. (Tr. 14-24).

December 29, 1944 appellant filed with the clerk

of said District Court his notice of appeal (Tr. 25),

from order of dismissal formally entered December

23, 1944 (Tr. 23-24). Order extending time to docket

this cause was entered February 6, 1945. (Tr. 28-29).

Some three or four years previous to his present

application, the appellant after having served that

portion of his sentence in the United States Peniten-

tiary, Alcatraz, California, which with credit for good

behavior and industrial good time would have entitled



him to release from sentence equivalent to ten years

and two years on counts 2 and 7, filed his petition

for writ of habeas corpus in the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Northern District of California,

Southern Division, alleging sentences on counts 4, 5,

and 6 illegal and void and constituting double jeopardy

and double punishment in that the crime alleged in

said counts 4, 5, and 6, and the sentences thereunder

were for the same offense set forth in count 2 of the

indictment and punished thereunder.

The California District Court denied appellants

petition and this court affirmed the decision below,

and held the offenses charged in count 2 was distinct

from the offenses charged in counts 4, 5, and 6 ; that

the offenses charged in counts 4, 5, and 6 were dis-

tinct from each other; and the status of the undis-

posed of fine under count 7 would not in any event

entitle appellant to a present release by writ of habeas

corpus.

See Kerr v, Johnston, Warden, (CCA. 9, Sep-

tember 10, 1942), 130 F. (2d) 637.

Thereafter appellant was transferred to the

United States Penitentiary on McNeil Island, Wash-

ington, where he is now serving sentence under said

judgment of the court.



ARGUMENT
1. THE THEFT OF EACH OF THREE

MAIL BAGS TAKEN AT SAME TIME FROM
CUSTODIAN IS A SEPARATE OFFENSE.

The Statute involved in this proceeding is Title

18, U.S.C.A. Section 317, which provides as follows:

"Whoever shall steal, take, or abstract * * * from
or out of any * * * post office * * * any letter,

postal card, package, bag, or mail * * * shall be
fined not more than $2,000, or imprisoned not
more than five years, or both/'

The related offenses defined in Sections 312 and

313 of said title make the injury to and theft of such

mail bag, respectively, a separate and distinct offense.

And this court in a former appeal herein has so

construed the above Section 317 as to the counts of

the indictment here involved.

Kerr v. Johnston, 130 F. (2d) 637, 639.

The theft of each mail bag whether in use or

merely belonging to the Post Office Department is a

separate offense under the terms of Title 18, U.S.C.A.,

Section 313, and has been so held in the case of

Phillips V, Biddle, (CCA. 8, 1926), 15 F. (2d) 40,

41, citing as direct authority Ebeling v. Morgan, 237

U. S. 625, wherein the Supreme Court at pages 629-

630, said:



"The separate counts each charged by its dis-

tinctive number the separate bag, and each time
one of them was cut there was, as we have said,

a separate offense committed against the statute.

Congress evidently intended to protect the mail
in each sack, and to make an attack thereon in

the manner described a distinct and separate
offense."

The court in the Ebeling case did not )extend

such protection to each letter or piece of mail in the

sack as a separate entity, but gave to such contents a

blanket protection.

And citing as authority the same case, this court

in the case of Johnston v, Lagomarsino, 88 F. (2d)

86, 88, held

:

'These two sections (312 and 317) apply to two
separate and distinct offenses. One injury to a
'mail bag', and the other refers to taking from
a depository of 'mail matter'. Each has a dis-

tinctive function. The mail bag carries the mail
and informative matter, and such was no doubt
the intent of the Congress, for mail could not
have been intended by Congress as a generic
term and cover the express purpose of these sec-

tions, which are to protect the hag and the mail
within the hag, (Italics ours). The intent of the
act is to make it an offense to cut each mail bag
and when a bag was cut the offense was com-
plete. Eheling v. Morgan, 237 U.S. 625, 35 St.

Ct. 710, 59 L.Ed. 1151."

To contend that the three sacks here involved

were along with their contents just so much mail mat-



ter is to overlook the reasoning of the courts and the

apparent purpose disclosed in the language of the sev-

eral statutes.

This court in the case of McKee vs. Johnston, 109

F. (2d) 273, 275, followed the Ebeling case in its in-

terpretation of Section 317, holding:

^*No distinction of significance can be drawn
between the statute there involved, 18 U.S.C.A.,

Section 312, and the one before us. A locked and
registered mail pouch, consigned by the postal

authorities to a named destination, is an au-
thorized depository for the mail matter contained
in it. It is made an offense to steal a letter from
any authorized depository. It is also an offense

denounced by the statute to abstract from a mail
pouch any article or thing contained therein.

Here, each of the pouches bore a different number
and the required proof of the theft differed in the

case of each pouch,''' (Italics ours).

In the McKee case this court followed the con-

struction laid down in the Ebeling case and did not

find three letters taken from a single pouch consti-

tuted three separate offenses. On the other hand,

the court did find in the words of the Supreme Court:

^^Congress evidently intended to protect the mail
in each sack, * * *'' Ebeling v. Morgan, supra.

Therefore, to contend that the wholesale theft

of three mail bags from the hands of a mail custo-

dian constitutes but a single offense is not only to
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make an exception to the Supreme Courts construc-

tion of protection for each mail bag, but also to claim

without any apparent reason for such theft, a far

lesser penalty than for the theft of three mail bags

from a railway post office.

See Phillips v. Biddle, supra.

Appellant would confuse the nature of the of-

fense under Section 317, supra, with that of a con-

tinuous offense, such as illicit cohabitation, a single

offense, as held by In Re Snow, 120 U.S. 274, or lar-

ceny at common law as distinguished in Braden v.

United States (8th Circ.) 270 F. 441, 444; or where

the gist of the offense is such as the case of unlaw-

ful transportation of women in interstate commerce,

Robinson v. United States, 143 F. (2d) 276; or sale of

narcotics, Parmagini vs, C7. S, 42 F. (2d) 721.

Simultaneous taking or act may have been plead-

ed to cover a multitude of offenses in such cases where

no statutory or natural numerical limitation was set

upon a single offense either as to things or persons in-

volved or acts done. But, such was not the test

applied by the Supreme Court in its construction as

to the theft of each mail pouch. Ebeling v. Morgan,

supra, Morgan v, Devine, 237 U.S. 632, and cases

there cited.



And in Morgan v. Devine, supra, at page 639, the

court quoted from Bishop's Criminal Law, 8th Ed.:

"The test is iivhether, if what is set out in the

second indictment had been proved under the

first, there could have been a conviction; when
there could, the second count cannot be main-
tained; when there could not, it can be/'

And to the same effect and following the Ebe-

ling case is Blockbitrger v. United States, 284 U.S.

299, 303, cited in Robinson v. United States, supra.

"The test is whether the individual acts are pro-

hibited or the course of action which they con-

stitute."

Blockburger v. United States, supra, page 302,

quoting from Wharton's Criminal Law, 11th Ed.;

Braverman v. United States, 317 U.S. 49, 54, revers-

ing 125 F. (2d) 283.

And Colson v, Johnston, 35 F. Supp. 317, 318,

forbidding the making of separate acts of robbery

out of what was in fact a single robbery, is not at

variance with the cases above cited.

The case of McDonald v. Hudspeth, 129 F. (2d)

196, 199, holding the number of offenses committed

in a bank robbery for putting in jeopary the life of

any person, would be equivalent to the number of lives

so affected and charged, is an example of one trans-
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action simultaneously performed, constituting by

statute a number of offenses. See Section 588(b),

Title 12. U.S.C.A. See also Gavieres v. United States,

220 U.S. 338; Burton v. United States, 202 U.S.

344, 377.

2. The validity of counts 4, 5. and 6 were before

the court in appellant's former appeal as now (130

F. (2d) 637). if the question is proper in these pro-

ceedings where appellant must still serve a pait of

his sentence not assailed as invalid.

Under the rulings as found, footnote 6. in Mc-

Nally V. Hill 293 U. S. 131. 139. the Circuit Court

of Appeals in circuits other than the 8th have uni-

formly denied petitions for writ of habeas corpus

when the prisoner was not at the time serving the

pan of sentence said to be invalid.

This ruling has not been strictly adhered to in

some cases.

See COlson v. Ar/-
••'- -^-^ 5 F. Supp. 111.

This court in Ex partt De Maurez, 106 F. (2d)

457, 458, and again in DeM : .'. Sqiiier, 121 F.

(2d) 960. under circumstances somewhat similar as

here, held the offenses there charged were separate

and distinct, refusing, however, in the latter case to
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decide which of the two statutes in question was vio-

lated.

If under the holding in Hogan v. Hill, 9 F. Supp.

333, 337, appellant's application is to be considered

not premature, although the writ must be denied in

any event, there would seem no logical contention

could be made against this court having passed upon

the issue here at the time of the former appeal, ex-

cept that in the nature of the proceedings further

litigation should not be discouraged.

CONCLUSION

For the foregoing reasons, it must be contended

the decision below should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

J. CHARLES DENNIS,
United States Attorney

GUY A. B. DOVELL,
Assistant United States Attorney
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APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF

- REPLY TO APPELLEE'S FIRST QUESTION

I An examination of the cases cited by the respond-

ent in support of his contention relative to the first

question set forth in his brief will disclose that with-

out exception they do not support the argument what-

soever.

In support of the contention that the theft of three

mail bags taken at the same time from a mail custo-

dian constitutes separate offenses under Title 18, U.

S.C.A., Section 317, the appellee relies upon a chain

of cases stemming from Ebeling v. Morgan, 237 U.S.

625.

It is significant that only a small portion of the



opinion of Ebeling v, Morgan, supra, is set forth in

the brief of the appellee. A complete reading of that

case will show that it went solely to the question of

whether separate offenses are committed when de-

fendant, while in the course of one transaction, cuts

individual mail bags. Since the cutting of a mail bag

is specifically denominated a crime under Title 18

U.S.C.A., Section 312, and as the gist of the offense

is the cutting, it is obvious that a valid distinction lies

between the simultaneous taking of three bags from

one custodian and the cutting of three bags. Under

Section 312 it w^ould be impossible to conceive of a

factual situation wherein a defendant did simultane-

ously cut three bags with intent to obtain possession

of the contents thereof. It is significant that although

the statutes of the United States make it a crime to

steal mail matter, the Ebeling case, supra, specifically

states that there is a distinction between a transaction

wherein an offense is completed as in the cutting

cases, and other types of crimes where the act is also

a continuous transaction,

*Vhen the facts showed that there was but one

offense committed between the earliest day

charged and the end of the continuing time at-

tempted to be charged in separate indictments.

These and similar cases are but attempts to cut

up a continuous offense into separate crimes in

a manner unwarranted by the statute making the

offense punishable.'' Ebeling v, Morgan, page 630.

The case of Phillips v, Biddle (CCA. 8, 1926) 15 F.

(2d) 40, is cited in appellant's brief as authority for

his position. The case was heard by the Circuit Court

on a totally different question. The matter at issue
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there was whether or not the theft of mail bags could

be punishable under the section under which the ap-

pellant was sentenced or under a separate and distinct

section of the code. That question became important

because if appellant was correct the Court had im-

posed a sentence in excess of the statutory limits

under the proper section. The question at issue here

was not raised in the Phillips case except that in the

opinion, by obiter dicta, the court stated gratuitously

that the theft of separate bags constituted separate

offenses and cited as authority therefor the Ebeling

case, siipi'a.

In other words, appellant does not quarrel with the

rule that cutting mail bags constitutes a separate of-

fense for each mail bag cut. Indeed, this Circuit Court

has voiced that rule in Johnston v. Lagomarsino, 88

F. (2d) 86, 88. It is significeant however, that after so

holding in the Lagomarsino case it was then held that

the taking of separate pieces of mail matter from a

locked mail pouch, a depository for mail, cannot be set

out as separate offenses for each piece of mail matter

taken. Thus it seems to us that the cases cited by ap-

pellee do not bear upon the question before the court

at the present time. They also cite as authority for

their position the case of Blockbiirger v, U, S., 284

U.S. 299. This case clearly sets forth the distinction

that should be applied to a determination of the ques-

tion here before the court. In the Blockburger case,

supra, the defendant was charged under an informa-

tion containing three counts, the pertinent question

was raised under the construction of the sentence

under Counts 2 and 3 thereof. Each of these counts



alleged a sale of narcotics on successive days to the

same purchaser and the contention was made that

this constituted one simultaneous transaction and

thus punishable as only one crime. The United States

Supreme Court very properly distinguished this case

setting forth the rule that if the sale or sales had

been simultaneous, and all part of one transaction,

and not selective, then the appellant's position would

be correct.

The appellee cites McKee v, Johnston, 109 F. (2d)

273, as authority for his position. In order to reach

a proper determination of the question now before

the court, it is necessary to carefully examine not

only the McKee case above cited, but the later McKee

case reported as McKee v. Johnston, 125 F. (2d) 282.

McKee was charged with the abstraction of letters

from a number of different mail pouches, all of the

takings having been committed during the course

of one transaction. There was no record before the

court as to precisely how these crimes were com-

mitted and the court therefore in McKee v, Johnston,

109 F.(2d) 273 at page 275, said as follows:

"In Johnston v. Lagomarsino, supra, it was
held that separate counts allegedly abstracted at

the same time of three different parcels from
the same mail pouch charged but a single offense.

"Here there was a feloneous taking of mail

matter from each of six different pouches. It

may be assumed and the assumption is properly

warranted by the language of the indictment,

that each taking was part of a continuous trans-

action. However, it does not appear that the

takings were simultaneous (Italics ours). Since



the record is not before us we are entitled to as-

sume, in support of the judgment that the tak-

ings were not simultaneous and that they were

selective/' Cases cited.

It is appaient then, that the McKee case is not

authority for our present position. We are not un-

mindful of the fact that this McKee case above cited

was mentioned with approval and cited as authority

when this same appellant was before this court in

Kerr v. Johnston, Warden, 130 F.(2d) 637. While

we contend that the precise question raised by this

appeal was not then before the Circuit Court (See

appellant's opening brief) nevertheless, if it was the

record at that time could be said to be of the same

kind as the record before the court in the McKee case

above cited. However, the factual situation is now
different. The trial court in our instant case has made

a positive ''finding of fact" to the effect that the tak-

ings of the three mail pouches in the instant case was

simultaneous and all one transaction. That being so,

the McKee case above quoted ceases to be authority

for the appellee's position.

r The McKee question again, came before this court

in McKee v. Johnston, ,^ F. (2d) 282. An attempt

was made to prepare and submit to this court a record

showing that the takings were not selective and were

simultaneous. However, the court held that the record

was not complete and that there was no showing that

the takings were simultaneous and not selective. In

that case the court inferentially approved the holding

in Colson v. Johnston, Warden (D. C. Cal. 35, Supp.

317) and the court's statement thereof is set forth
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in full in the appellant's opening brief at page 9

thereof.

If one were to pursue appellee's argument, the

logical result would be that depending solely upon the

number of individual articles stolen as for example,

sheep, a person could receive a much greater penalty

for simple larceny than could be imposed for the vio-

lent crime of robbery. It is inconceivable that the

intent of the congress should be so construed.

REPLY TO APPELLEE'S SECOND QUESTION

It is submitted that the appellee has not in any

manner whatsoever, answered the appellant's ques-

tion as to the proper procedure to be taken where, as

in this instant case, the appellant has been fined

under a judgment and committment valid on its face,

but in fact invalid, as to part as being excessive where

as part of that judgment and committment he was

required to pay a fine and where he is unable to pay

that fine. A careful reading of Hogan v. Hilly 9 F.

Supp. 333, will show the procedure adopted by the

appellant in this case is of necessity the proper one.

Certainly a United States Commissioner would not

have the authority to determine the validity of pun-

ishment imposed under a judgment and commit-

ment valid on its face.



CONCLUSION

The gist of the crime under Counts 4, 5, and 6, of

the indictment here is the taking of ynail matter from
and out of a post office. This defendant admits that

he did so commit that crime by his entry of a plea of

guilty and by his service of the punishment imposed

under Count 4 of the indictment. That being so, and

the trial court having made its finding of fact that

the taking was simultaneous and all one transaction

(Tr. 20-21) it would conclusively appear that this

court should hold that the sentences imposed on

Counts 5 and 6 of the indictment are void and exces-

sive and remand this matter to the trial court with

instructions to permit the appellant to make his ap-

plication to the U. S. Court to be adjudged a pauper

or poor prisoner under the provision Title 18, U.S.C.

A., Section 641, and if he does so qualify to order

his discharge under a writ of habeas corpus.

Respectfully submitted,

John M. Schermer,

James W. Mifflin,

Counsel for Appellant
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2 United States of America, et al,, vs.

In the District Court of the United States for

the Eastern District of Washington, Northern

Division.

No. 404

AUGUSTA J. LaLONE, on behalf of JULIE S.

LaLONE, JANET D. LaLONE, JILL R.

LaLONE and LANCE D. LaLONE,
Plaintiff,

vs.

THE UNITED STATES OP AMERICA, THE
SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD OP THE
UNITED STATES OP AMERICA,

Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Plaintiff Alleges:

I.

That plaintiff is a resident of Spokane, Wash-

ington in the Eastern District of Washington,

Northern Division. That plaintiff is the surviving

wife of Dwight J. LaLone who died at Spokane,

Washington on the 20th day of November, 1942.

That on said date of death and for many years

prior, plaintiff and said Dwight J. LaLone lived

together as wife and husband. That as the issue

of said marriage six children have been born and

are now living, Jeanne A. LaLone, age 11 years.

Julie S. LaLone, age 10 years, Janet D. LaLone, age

8 years, Jill R. LaLone, age 6 .years, Lance D.

Laljone, age 5 years and Thomas J. LaLone, age 1

year, the last of whom was born subsequent to the

death of said Dwight J. LaLone. That all of said
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children are under 18 years of age, are unmarried

and have never been married, and on the 20th day

of November, 1942 and during all of their lives

prior tliereto were dependent upon said Dwight J.

LaLone, and ever since said date all of said childreji

are and have been I'esiding with and aj*e and have

been wholh^ dependent upon plaintiff.

II.

That on or about the 1st day of August, 1938 said

decedent, Dwight J. LaLone entered the employ of

F. S. Barrett & Co., a corporation, Sy)okane, Wash-

ington or Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency, Spo-

kane, Washington, [1*] as manager of the Insur-

ance Agency at agreed monthly compensation of

$200.00 per month plus automobile expense allow-

ance. That said decedent remained in such employ

until about the 1st day of May, 1942. That on or

about the 1st day of May, 1942 said decedent en-

tered the employ of Vermont Loan & Trust Com-

pany, a corporation, Spokane, Washington in

charge of its insurance department and remained

in said employment until the date of his death, No-

vember 20, 1942. That all such employment by

said decedent constituted service by said decedent

for his employers within the meaning of the Social

Security Act of the United States.

III.

That subsequent to August 1, 1938 said decedent

registered with the Social Security Board of the

*Page numbering appearing at foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Record.
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United States as an employee and obtained his

social security account number which is 539-16-1206.

That said registration as an employee under the Act

was made in person by said Dwight J. LaLone and

was made under the direction of the duly authorized

officer of his said employer.

IV.

That claims for said Child's Insurance Benefits

have been duly made to said Social Security Board

by the plaintiff herein in cases numbered 12-268,

12-269, 12-270 and 12-271 in behalf of said minor

children and the claims have been disallowed by

said Board.

Wherefore Plaintiff Prays for judgment that

the decision of the Social Security Board in cases

numbered 12-268, 12-269, 12-270 and 12-271 for

Child's Insurance Benefits be reversed and for

judgment directing the allowance of said claims by

said Social Security Board and for such other

relief as to the Court may seem proper.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Filed May 8, 1944. [2]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

SUMMONS

To the Above Named Defendants:

You and each of you are hereby summoned and

required to serve upon Justin C. Maloney, plain-
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tiff's attorney, wliose address is 31 1 Empire State

Bnildiiig, Spokane, Washington, an answer to the

Toniplaint wliieli is herewith served, upon you,

witliin 60 days after service of this Summons up(»n.

you, exclusive of the day of service. If you fail

to do so, judgment by default will be taken against

you for the relief demanded in the Complaint.

[Seal] A. A. LaPRAMBOTSE
Clerk of Court

Dated May 8, 1944.

RETURN ON SERVICE OF WRIT

United States of America,

East. District of Wash.—ss.

I hereby certify and return that I served the an-

nexed Summons & Complaint on the therein-named

The United States of America by handing to and

leaving a true and correct copy thereof with Ed-,

ward M. Connelly, the United States Attorney, for

the Eastern District of Washington, at Spokane in

said District on the 8th day of May, 1944.

WAYNE BEZONA,
U. S. Marshal

By ELWYN U. DANIEL,
Deputy
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RETURN ON SERVICE OF WRIT

United States of America,

East. District of Wash.—ss.

I hereby certify and return that I served the

annexed Summons & Complaint on the therein-

named The Social Security Board of The United

States of America, by handing to and leaving a

true and correct copy thereof with Arthur C.

Kinnley, the Field Office Mgr. of the Social Se-

curity Board of Spokane, personally at Spokane in

said District on the 11th day of May, 1944.

WAYNE BEZONA,
U. S. Marshal

By ELWYN L. DANIEL,
Deputy [3]

RETURN ON SERVICE OF WRIT

United States of America,

East. District of Wash.—ss.

I hereby certify and return that I served the

amiexed Summons and Complaint on the therein-

named United States of America by depositing in

the Post Office at Spokane, Wash, directed to said

Attorney General of the United States of America

at Washington, D. C. as registered mail, personally

on the 8th day of May, 1944.

WAYNE BEZONA,
U. S. Marshal

By R. R. ISAACS,
Deputy

[Endorsed] : Filed May 11, 1944.
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RETURN RECEIPT

Received t'l'oin the Postmaster the Registered or

Insured Article, the original numher of which ap-

pears on the face of this Card.

1 Atty Gen

2 O. M. Bertrand

Date of delivery 5-13-1944

RETURN ON SERVICE OF WRIT

I hereby certify and return, that on the 13th day

of May, 1944, I received the within summons and

served the defendant. The Social Security Board

of the United States of America, by handing to and

leaving a true and correct coj)y of the within sum-

mons together with a copy of the complaint in said

case with Newton Montgomery, an attorney of the

Social Security Board of the United States of

America, personally at 1825 H Street NW in the

City of Washington, District of Cohunbia, on the

13th dav of Mav, 1944.

JOHN B. COLPOYS,
United States Marshal

By WILLIAM S. HENNESSY, Jr.

Deputy United States

Marshal

Marshal's Fees: Service $'2.00.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 19, 1944. [4]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION TO DISMISS ON BEHALF OF THE
UNITED STATES OP AMERICA

Now comes the defendant, the United States of

America, by Edward M. Connelly, United States At-

torney for the Eastern District of Washington, and

appearing herein specially for this motion and for

no other purpose, and objecting to the jurisdiction of

the court, moves the court to dismiss the action as

to said defendant for want of jurisdiction, on the

grounds

(a) That the United States has not consented to

be sued for or in connection with benefits under

Title II of the Social Security Act;

(b) That Section 205(g) of the Social Security

Act as amended (Title 42, US.C. Section 405 (g))

provid-es an exchisive procedure for reviewing de-

cisions of the Social Security Board by a civil action

in which the said Social Security Board is the party

defendant, and no decision of the Board may be

reviewed except as therein provided (Section 205(h)

of the Social Security Act as amended. Title 42,

U.S.C. Section 405 (b)).

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
United States Attornev

Attorney for Defendant,

United States of America.
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Service aekiunvled^ed by I'eeeij)! of co})y this 30th

day of Jime, 1944.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Filed June 30, 1944. [5]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER
The defendant Social Security Board of the

United States of America, an agency of the United

States, answers the complaint herein as follows:

First Defense

1. Plaintiff has no claim upon which relief can

be granted, as sho^vn by the provisions of the Social

Security Act as amended; the Regulations of the

Social Security Board promulgated thereunder; the

transcript of the record uj^on which the decision

complained of was made ; and the findings and con-

clusions of the Social Security Board based thereon.

Second Defense

2. Prom August 1, 1938 to May 1, 1942, the

decedent Dwight J. LaLone was in self-employment

as a co-owner of and coadventurer in the Barrett-

LaLone Insurance Agency, Si)okane, Washington;

his alleged comi^ensation from tlie business did not

constitute **wages'' in ''employment" within the

definitions in Section 209 (a), (b) of the Social

Security Act as amended (Title 42 U.S.C, Section
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409 (a), (b)); nor did he render any services in

employment. The facts as found by the Social

Security Board so show; the findings are supported

by substantial evidence and are conclusive.

3. The Social Security Board therefore found

that in none of the fifteen calendar quarters from

July 1, 1938 to March 31, 1942 did decedent Dwight

J. LaLone receive $50 or more in wages so as to

acquire a quarter of coverage (Section 209 (g) of

the Social Security Act as amended, Title 42, U.S.C.,

Section 409 (g)). Since his services in the employ

of the Vermont Loan & Trust Co. could account for

only three quarters of coverage and since twenty-

three quarters elapsed after 1936 and up to but

excluding the quarter of death, the Social Security

Board determined that decedent was not a fully

insured individual who had the required eleven

quarters of coverage.

4. By reason of the facts set forth in Paragraph

2 of this answer, the Social Security Board found

that decedent was not paid wages of $50 or more

for any of the ten calendar quarters between Oc-

tober 1, 1939 and March 31, 1942, which quarters are

included within the twelve calendar quarters im-

mediately preceding the quarter in which decedent

died. It therefore determined that decedent had not

been paid wages of $50 or more for each of not less

than, six [6] of such twelve calendar quarters and

was not a cui'rently insured individual (Section

209 (h) of the Social Security Act as amended. Title

42, U.S.C., Section 409 (h)).
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5. The Board tlierefore propiEfrly diei^ldeti' that

phiintiff's infant cliildren were not ' entitled to

child's insurance benefits (Section 202 (c) of the

Social Security Act as amended, Title 42, U.S.C.,

Section 402rc)) as the childrenOf a fnllv or cur-

rently insured individual.

Fourth Defense

6. Defendant admits ihc allegations of para-

graj)hs I and IV of the complaint.

7. Answering paragra])hs II and III of the com-

plaint, defendant refers to the findings of fact of

the Social Security Board contained in the tran-

script of the record filed lierew^ith as a part of this

answei* as establishing the facts on which this action

to review is based, and except as so established by

said findings denies the allegations of said para-

graphs of the complaint.

8. In accordance wdth the provisions of Title II,

Section 205 (g) of the Social Security Act as

amended (Title 42, U.S.C., Section 405 (g)) de-

fendant files herewith as part of its answer a certi-

fied copy of the transcrii)t of the record including

the evidence upon which the findings and decision

complained of are based.

\\Tierefore, defendant ])rays for judgment dis-

missing the complaint with costs and disbursements,

and for judgment in accordance with Section

205 (g) of the Social Security Act as amended,

affii'mini^- the decision of the Social Security Board
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complained of; and for such other relief as may be

appropriate.

FRANCIS M. SHEA
Assistant Attorney General

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
United States Attorney

ft.

Attorneys for Defendant,

Social Security Board.

Service of this Answer is acknowledged by receipt

of copy thereof July 3, 1944.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Piled July 3, 1944. [7]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION POR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Now comes the defendant, the Social Security

Board, and respectfully moves this court for sum-

mary judgment in the above entitled action pur-

suant to Rule 56 of the Pederal Rules of Civil

Procedure, on the ground that there is no genuine

issue as to any material fact and that the defendant

is entitled to judgment as a matter of law; and for

judgment in accordance with Section 205 (g) of

the Social Security Act as amended (Title 42,
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U.S.C, Section 405 (g)) affirming the decision of

the Social Security Board herein complained of.

FRANCIS M. SHEA,
Assistant Attorney General

EDWARD M. CONNELLY,
United States Attorney

Attorneys for Defendant,

Social Security Board

NOTICE

Justin C. Maloney, Esquire

311 Empire State Building

Spokane, Washington

Please take notice that the points and authorities

in support of the foregoing motion for summarj^

judgment are hereto attached. The rules of the

above-entitled court require that if you oppose the

granting of this motion you shall, within the time

required, or such time as the court may allow or

the parties hereto agree upon, file in reply a mem-
orandum of the points and authorities upon which

you rely and serve a copy thereof upon the

undersigned.

FRANCIS M. SHEA
Assistant Attorney General

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
LTnited States Attorney

Attorneys for Defendant,

Social S(T'urity Board.

Served a true copy of the foregoing motion and

notice and of the niemuianduni in support of de-
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fendant's motion upon plaintiff's attorney by mail-

ing a copy thereof in an envelop bearing Govern-

ment frank and addressed to him at 311 Empire

State Building, Spokane, Washington.

Service of the within notice, motion and mem-

orandum is acknowledged by receipt of copies there-

of July 3, 1944.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY,
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed]: Piled July 3, 1944. [8]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OP AMENDMENT OP MOTION TO
DISMISS ON BEHALP OP THE UNITED
STATES OP AMERICA

To the Above Named Plaintiffs, and To Justin C.

Maloney, Your Attorney of Record:

You and each of you will please take notice that

a typographical error has been discovered in the

original motion to dismiss on behalf of the United

States of America, and the copy served upon you

as follows: the last line of said motion wherein

appear the words, ^'Section 405 (b) ". The correct

citation intended by the undersigned attorney for

defendants, and the correct reading of said motion

should be Section 405 (h).

You are further notified that at the time of

argument of said motion, the undersigned attorney

for the defendants will move the court for an order
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permitting the aiiieiidnient of said motion to dis-

miss on behalf of the United States of America as

indicated herein.

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
Attorney for Defendants,

United States of America

Service of the foregoing Notice of Amendment

of Motion to Dismiss on behalf of the United States

of America, by receipt of copy thereof, is acknowl-

edged this 28 day of August, 1944.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Piled Sept. 1, 1944. [9]

(Transcript of Proceedings on Hearings before

Social Security Board submitted in accordance with

the Stipulation as to Record on Appeal filed Marcli

1, 1945,—in the form of a photostatic copy certified

by the Chairman of the Appeals Council, Social

Security Board.)

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

OPINION OF THE COURT

TIk* defendants have moved for surrunary judg-

ment on the ground that there is no gc^nuine issue

as to any material fact and that defendants are

entitled to judgment as a matter of law. On De-

cembei" 7, 1942, plaintiff filed apy)lication under the
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Social Security Act as amended (53 Stat. 1362,

42 U.S.C.A., Sections 401 et seq.) for child's in-

surance benefits (Section 202 (c) of the Act as

amended, 42 TJ.S.C, Section 402 (c)) for four of

her infant children, based upon the alleged status of

her husband, Dwight J. LaLone, as an insured in-

dividual under the Act. He died on November 20,

1942.

On Fe))ruary 19, 1943, the Bureau of Old-Age and

Survivors Insurance of the Social Security Board

denied the application on the ground that the wage

earner was not a fully or currently insured in-

dividual. Plaintiff disagreed with the determina-

tions. She requested [11] and was given a hear-

ing before a referee of the Social Security Board.

The referee held that the wage earner was not a

fully or currently insured individual for the reason

that he was not an employee within the contempla-

tion of the statute for a sufficient period prior to

his death.

Thereupon plaintiff appealed to the Appeals

Council of the Social Securitv Board which af-

firmed the referee on March 11, 1944, and adopted

his findings of fact and statement of reasons. Under

the practice of the Social Security Board this be-

came the final decision of the Board. Plaintiff then

brought this action to review the denial of her

claims on behalf of her children, pursuant to the

jurisdiction conferred by Section 205 (g) of the

Social Securitv Act.

Section 205 (g) (Title 42, U.S.C, Section 405

(g), the jurisdictional provision of the Act which
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iiuthorizes the action to review tlie administrative

decision, ])rovides that ''As part of its answer the

"Board sliall file a certified copy of the transcript

of tlie I'ecord including the evidence upon whicli

tJK^ findins^s and decisions complained of are based."

Tliis has been done.

The a])plicable statute provides in part as fol-

lows: ''Any individual * * * may obtain a review

of such decision bv a civil action commenced within

sixty days * * *. Such action shall be brought

in the District Court of the United States for the

judicial district in which the plaintiff resides * * ".

The Court shall have power to enter, upon the

'^leadings and transcript of the record, a judgment

iiffirming, modifying or reversing the decision of

the Board, with or without remanding the cause

for a reliearing. The findings of the Board as to

any fact, if supported by substantial evidence, shall

be conclusive, '' * *." 42 U.S.C.A. 405 (g).

Section 209 (a) of the Social Security Act as

amended (Title 42, U.S.C., Section 409 (a) ]m)-

vides that "The term 'wages' means all remunera-

tion for em])lo\Trient * * *." Section 209 (b) of

the Social Security Act as amended (Title 42,

r^S.C, Section 409 (b)) defines [12] em])loynient

as "any service perforined after December 31, 1936,

and ])]'i()]- to Jamiary 1. 1940, whicli was employ-

ment as defined in Section 210 (b) of the Social

S(»curity Act prior to January 1, 1940 * * *," and

with (^xcoptions not here ])ertinent, "any service oC

whatever nature, performed after December 31,

1939, by an emi)loyee for the person employing hiin
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* ^ '':' Section 210 (b) of the Social Security

Act ill effect prior to January 1, 1940, (49 Stat. 625)

defines '^employment" to mean, with exceptions not

here pertinent, *'any service of whatever nature per-

formed within the United States by an employee for

his emx:>loyer." The pertinent regulations are found

in the footnote.^

^Regulations 90 and 91 relatins: to the definitions

of em])1oyment are as follows: '^Generallv the re-

lationshi]) exists when the person for whom services

are performed has the right to control and direct

the individual who performs the services, not only
as to the result to be accomplished by the work but
also as to the details and means by which the re-

sult is accomplished. That is, an employee is sub-

ject to the will and control of the employer not only
as to w^hat shall be done but how it shall be done.

In this connection, it is not necessary that the em-
ployer actually direct or control the manner in

which the services are performed; it is sufficient if

he has the right to do so. The right to discharge is

also an important factor indicating that the person
possessing that right is an employer. Other factors

characteristic of an employer are the furnishing of

tools and the furnishing of a place to work, to the

individual who performs the services. In general,

if an individual is subject to the control of direc-

tion of another merely as to the result to be accom-
plished by the work and not as to the means and
methods for accomplishing tlie result, he is an in-

dependent contractor, not an employee.
If the relationship of employer and employee

exists, the designation or description of the rela-

tionshi]) by the parties as anything other than that
of employer and employee is immaterial. Thus, if

two individuals in fact stand in the relation of em-
ployer and employee to each other, it is of no con-
sequence that the employee is designated as a part-
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At the threshold of the ease, T am met witli de-

fendant's eontention that the order of the Social

Security T^oard is eonehisive and biiidins^ upon this

Court. I giv(^ i'ull recognition to the })rinciple that

resolving the question of the status of the wage

earner belongs to the usual administrative routine

of the Board. Gray v. Powell, 314 U.S. 402, 411.

Unquestionably the Board's determination is to be

accepted if it has wari*ant in the record and a rea-

sonable basis i]i law. National Labor Relations

Board v. Hearst Publications, Inc., 322 U.S. Ill,

131. However, if the applicable statute and regula-

tions properly interpreted forbid the method of

analysis of the testimony followed by the Board,

the Board's decision ''would not be in accordance

witli law and the Court w^ould be empowered to

modify or reverse it. Whether it is true is a clear-

cut question of law and is for decision by the

courts." Dobson v. Commissioner, 320 U.S. 489,

492. After a careful review of the record in this

case and a studv of the referee's decision, I am
convinced that the referee reached his conclusion

without I'egard to the statute or regulations and that

his determination has no reasonable basis in law

and that his factual analysis has no warrant u\

the records.

First: A careful study of the referee's decision

ner, coadventurer, agent, or iridepcnulent con-
tractor.

The measurc^ment, method, or designation of com-
pensation is also immaterial, if th(^ 7-(^lationship o'l"

employer and employee in fact exists.
>»
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can bring one to no other conclusion than that he

totally ignored the applicable regulation. He con-

cluded that LaLone was a partner or joint adven-

turer in the insurance business. He emphasized

the importance of statements LaLone made in which

he referred to himself as a partner. At no place

in his decision did the referee refer to that portion

of the regulation reading: '^If the relationshij)

of employer and employee exists, the designation or

description of the relationship by the parties as

anything other than that of employer and employee

is immaterial. Thus, if two individuals in fact

stand in the relation of employer and employee to

each other, it is of no consequence that the em-

ployee is designated as a partner, coadventurer,

agent, or independent contractor." [14] He gave

no consideration to the testimony that the two Bar-

retts had the right to control and direct the methods

of operation, but stressed the testimony that such

direction and control was infrequent. In this, the

referee ignored the provision in the regulation read-

ing: *^In this connection, it is not necessary that

the employer actually direct or control the manner

in which the services are performed; it is suiB-

cient if he has a right to do so." At no place in

his decision did the referee discuss the testimony

submitted as to tlie right of the Barretts to termi-

nate the relationship on their own volition. In this

the referee ignored the provision of the regulation

reading: ^'The right to discharge is also an im-

portant factor indicating that the person possessing

that right is an employer." The referee gave no
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weidit to the testiinom' showing that the Barretts

furnished the oflSce space out of which LaLone

worked. Tn doing this, the referee disregarded that

])ortion of the regulation reading: *' Other factors

characteristic of an employer are the furnishing

of tools and the furnisliing of a place to work to the

individual who perforins the services." This in-

terpretative regulation represents a *^ contempor-

aneous construction of the statute by the men

charged vvith the responsibility of setting its ma-

cliinery in motion, making the parts work efficiently

and smoothly while they are yet untried and new,"

and is entitled to great weight. Norwegian Nitro-

gen Products Co. V. United States, 288 I^. S. 294,

315; United States v. American Trucking Asso-

ciations, Inc., 310 U. S. 534, 549; White v. Win-

cliester Country Club, 315 U. S. 32, 41. Certainly

tlie referee had no right to ignore that whicli the

courts are commanded to respect.

Second: The referee's approach to the problem

hei'e involved completely ignored the broad aspects

of the statute with the administration of which this

agency is charged. The Social Security Act was

])assed to meet the challenge of the great economic

and social problems which confronted the Nation

as an outgrowth of the evils of unemployment, old-

age penury and juvenile dependency. Th(» best

statement of [15] its objectives can be found in the

testimony of Senator Wagner, the sj)onsor of the

legislation, ])efore the Senate Committee on Fiiuiiice

on January 22, 1935. (See: Hearings, Kconomic

Security Act, United States Senate Committee on
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Finance, 74th Cong. 1st Session, S. 1130, p. 2).

Whether an individual comes within the classifica-

tion of ''employee" must be answered from the his-

tory, terms and purposes of the legislation. The

word is not treated by Congress as a word of art,

as having a definite meaning. Rather, it takes

color from its surroundings in the statute where

it appears. United States vs. American Trucking

Associations, Inc., 310 U.S. 534, 545. The w^ord

derives meaning from the context of that statute

which ''must be read in the light of the mischief to

be corrected and the end to be attained." South

Chicago Coal & Dock Co., v. Bassett, 309 U. S.

251, 259. The Ways and Means Committee of the

House of Representatives clearly demonstrated its

purpose to cause a liberal interpretation of the

word by this language, in its Report of June 6,

1939. (See: House Report No. 728, 76th Cong., 1st

Session, Congressional Record, v. 84, pt. 6, p. 6711,

et seq.) : "The enactment of the Social Security

Act marked a new era, the Federal Government

accepting, for the first time, responsibility for pro-

viding a systematic program of protection against

economic and social hazards." Later, in the same

Report (see, p. 6729) that Committee said: "A
restricted view of the employer-employee relation

-

shij) should not be taken in the administration of

the Federal old-age and survivors insurance sys-

tem in making coverage determinations. The tests

for determining the relationships laid down in cases

relating to tort liability and to the common-law con-

cept of master and servant should not be nar-
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rowly applied.'' The defendants ])lace great em-

j)liasis upon a statistical showing of the percentage

of workers within the country not covered by the

Act (Report, Social Security Board, 1943, p. 14).

The restriction upon the coverage does not stem

from the language Congress used in defining ** em-

plover," ''employee," or ''employment." It is the

result of fifteen [16] restrictive exceptions with-

holding from coverage certain specified classes

oF workers. T am not entirely unfamiliar with the

legislative background of this statute. A review of

its legislative history must convince one that the

restriction of the coverage w-as effectuated by op-

ponents to the legislation unwilling to opx)ose its

general ])ur])oses and forced to a program of legis-

lative attrition by the means of restrictive amend-

ments.

The referee, in analyzing the facts of this case,

indisputably demonstrates his belief that such facts

should be analyzed upon the basis of the common-

law concept to the end that the employer-employee

relationshi]) should, if possible, be avoided. In so

doing, he ran directly contrary to the command
of the Su]n'eme Court when, in discussing the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act, it delineated the steps

to be taken in determining the existence or non-

existence of the employer-employee relationship. Na-

tional Labor Relations Board v. Hearst Publica-

tions, su])ra. The lang*uage there used is a])plicable

h(Me. "Congress, on the one hand, was not think-

iiiU" solely of the immediate technical relation of



24 United States of America, et al,, vs.

emploj^er and employee. * ^' * Congress had in mind

a wider field than the narrow technical legal rela-

tion of ^master and servant', as the common-law

had worked this out in all its variations, and at the

same time a narrower one than the entire area of

rendering service to others. The question comes

down therefore to how much was included of the

intermediate region between what is clearly and un-

equivocally ^employment,' by any appropriate test,

and what is as clearly entrepreneurial enterprise

and not employment.

^^It will not do, for deciding this question as one

of uniform national application, to import whole-

sale the traditional common-law conceptions or

some distilled essence of their local variations as

exclusively controlling limitations upon the scope

of the statute's effectiveness. To do this would

be merely to select some of the local, hairline varia-

tions for nation-wide application and thus to reject

others for coverage under the Act. That result

hardly would be consistent with the statute's broad

terms and purposes. [17]
*^ Congress was not seeking to solve the nationally

harassing problems with which the statute deals by

solutions only partially effective, * - * Yet only

partial solutions would be provided if large seg-

ments of workers about w^hose technical legal })o-

sition such local differences exist should be wholly

excluded from coverage by reason of such differ-

ences. Yet that result could not be avoided, if

choice must be made among them and controlled

by them in deciding who are ^employees' withiii
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the Act's moaning. Enmeshed in such distinctions,

the administration of the statute soon might become

encumbered bv the same sort of teclmica] leral re-

finement as has cliaracterized the long evolution of

the employee-independent contractor dichotomy in

the courts for other pur])Oses. The consequences

would be ultimately to defeat, in part at least, the

achievement of the statute's objectives. Congress

no more intended to import this mass of techni-

cality as a controlling 'standard' for uniform na-

tional application than to refer decision of the ques-

tion outright to the local law."

The Circuit Court of Appeals for the Sixth Cir-

cuit had for decision a question of employer-em-

ployee relationship under the Fair Labor Standards

Act. Tn its interpretation, it laid down this stand-

ard: ''We are dealing, however with a specific

statute which, like the National Labor Relations

Act, 29 U.S.C.A. 151, is of a "class of regulatory

statutes designed to implement a public, so(dal, or

economic policy through remedies not only unknow^n

to the common-law but often in derogation of it.

* " * If the Act presently considered, expressly or

by necessary imj)lication, brings within the scope of

its remedial and regulatory provisions, workers in

the status here involved, w^e are not concerned with

the question whether a master-servant relationship

exists under otherwise ap[)licable rules of the com-

mon-law." Walling V. American Needlecrafts, ITO

F. (2d) 60, 63.

The Circuit Court of Ai)peals for the Kourth

Circuit had this statute before it for interpretation.
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United States of America v. The Vogue, inc., de-

cided November 13, 1944. That court, speaking [18]

through Judge Parker, said: ''The Social Security-

Act, like the Fair Labor Standards Act, and the

National Labor Relations Act, was enacted pur-

suant to a public policy unknown to the common-

law; and its applicability is to be judged rather

from the purposes that Congress had in mind than

from common-law rules worked out for determining

tort liability * * *, Whatever conclusion might be

draw^n, however, as to whether Mrs. Fulton and

Mrs. Woodfin were or were not independent con-

tractors under the rules of the common-law as ap-

plied in the several states, we think there can be

no question that they and their assistants should be

held to be employees of plaintiff wdthin the meaning

of the Social Security Act as amended. 26 U. S. C.

A. 1400, 1410. The purpose of that act was to pro-

vide old age, unemployment and disability insur-

ance. * * *.

The inhospitable scope with which the referee

viewed the statutory definition of '^ employee" is

w^ell demonstrated in the emphasis placed by him

upon an unsigned written i)roposal proferred to

La Lone by the Barretts.^ As to this feature, I must

^The extent to which the courts frown upon such
an attitude of viewing a statute was best described

bv Mr. Justice Holmes, on Circuit, when he wrote
in Johnson v. United States, 163 F. 30, 32: '^A

statute may indicate or require as its jnstifieation a

change in the policy of the law, although it ex-

presses that change only in tlie specific cases most
likely to occur to the mind. The legislature has the

power to decide what the policy of the law shall
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confess tliat I [19] am liaii(licap|)ed by the awkward

handling of the facts by the referee in his decision.

The courts do not expect of an administi^ative agency

that exactness or nicety vvhich the appellate courts

require of us inferior judges in distinguishing be-

tween findings of fact and conclusions of law. None-

theless, it does not seem imreasonable to me to sug-

gest that judicial review cannot be nullified by a

confused mixture of findings, inferences and conclu-

sions in the referee's decision. Beaumont, Sour

Lake & Western Railway Company v. United States,

282 U. S. 74, 86; Florida v. United States, 282 U. S.

194, 215 ; United States v. Carolina Freight Carriers

Corp., 315 U. S.'475, 488; United States v. Chicago,

Milwaukee, St. Paul & Pacific R. Co., 294, U. S.

499, 510; Eastern-Central Motor Carriers Associa-

be, and if it has intimated its will, however in-

directly, that \\\\\ should be recognized and obeyed.
The major premise of the conclusion expressed in

a statute, the change of policy that induces the en-

actment, may not be set out in terms, but it is not
an adequate discharge of duty for courts to say:
We see what you are driving at, but you have not
said it, and therefore we shall go on as before."
See, also. Frankfurter, J., in Keifer & Keifer v.

Reconstruction Finance Corp., 306 U. S. 381, 391,
and United States v. Hutcheson, 312 U. S. 219,
235 ; Taft, C. J., in United Mine Workers v. Cor-
onado Coal Co., 259 U. S. 344, 385-389; Sutherland,
J., in Funk v. United States, 290 U. S. 371, 381;
Cardozo, J., in Van Beeck v. Sabine Towing Co.,
300 U. S. 342, 350-351 ; Lord Birkenliead, L. C, in
Bourne v. Keane (1919) A. C. 815, 830; Stone, The
Common Law^ in the LFnited States (1936) 50 Harv.
L. Rev. 4, 13; Landis, Statutes and the Sources of
Law, Harvard Legal Essays, p. 213.
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tion V. United States, 321 U. S. 194, 212. This

unsigned proposal was received in evidence and dis-

cussed in detail by the referee. I give full recog-

nition to the principle that administrative agencies

usually are not restricted to the same rules of evi-

dence as apply in court proceedings and that the

Board is permitted to consider that which would be

objectionable in a court of law if it is of a kind on

which fair-minded men are accustomed to rely in

serious matters. Opp Cotton Mills, Inc. v. Ad-

ministrator, 312 U. S. 126, 155; National Labor

Relations Board v. R-emington Rand, 94 F. (2d)

862, 873; EUers v. Railroad Retirement Board, 132

F. (2d) 636, 639. However, here was a piece of

evidence as to a mere offer to contract upon which

clearly there was no meeting of the minds. The

referee recognized this and, at one point, he indi-

cated his intention to disregard it. Yet it is clear,

from the reading of his decision, that the unsigned

proposal was of controlling influence and weight

with him. It is true that the witness Barrett testi-

fied that he thought the proposed writing stated his

understanding with LaLone; yet the remainder of

his testimony conclusively negatives such a (-on-

clusion by him. The [20] agreement was unsigned

;

its terms were disregarded; there was no justifica-

tion for the referee emphasizing its imjiortanee as

he did in reaching his conclusions. Undoubtedly,

the referee properly received the proposed contract.

I refer to the emphasis placed by him on it merel\'

to indicate the restricted field of vision with which he

approached the problem.
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In my opinion, the testimony submitted hero es-

tablishes an employer-employee relationship not nn-

familiai* to those who have had some practical busi-

ness experience. F. S. Bariett and his son had been

in the real estate business in Spokane for many

yeai's. As a young man LaLone went to work for

them selling insurance. Under their direction and

supervision, he was so successful that a local bank

made him an offer of a position as manager of its

insurance dei^artment. He left the Barretts under

most friendly circumstances. Upon the failure of

the bank, LaLone purchased the insurance business

of the bank and started out on his own. Like so

many men with sales ability, LaLone failed when

faced with the responsibility of management. By

1938, his business reached a point where he owed

substantial sums of money to the companies he rep-

resented for commissions he had collected. He faced

serious consequences unless such commissions could

be paid. Tn his decision, the referee stresses tlio

value of LaLone 's insurance assets. To the un-

initiated, such insurance accounts might seem valu-

able. With commendable modesty the referee ad-

mitted his unfamiliarity with the insurance business.

The fact is that there is nothing less valuable than

the insurance accounts of an agent who becomes

delincjuent with the companies he represents. Tl(*

not only loses the right of representation of those

particular companies, but he loses the opportunity of

representation of any other companies. What he

has is worthless. This w^as the situation confronting

LaLone in 1938. Then he went back to his old em-
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ployers, the Barretts. They were willing to assist

their former employee. They advanced the neces-

saiy funds with which he could make up his delin-

quencies. They took his notes for such amounts.

They acquired the [21] right to enforce the payment

of those notes by discontinuing the relationship that

was established. He went to w^ork for $200 a month.

It is true that he hoped, as did the Barretts, that

an insurance partnership later could be evolved.

What he had at the time and during the entire time

he was working there was simply a provisional ar-

rangement whereby he could become a partner upon

the success of the enterprise. The Barretts fur-

nished the place at which the business was trans-

acted; LaLone adjusted his working hours to comply

with the office hours of the Barretts. The Barretts

decided on the important questions of policy and had

the right to decide on all questions of policy. It is

true that they used the name Barrett-LaLone In-

surance Agency. That, however, was simply a busi-

ness device intended for the purpose of developing

and retaining any business that might be secured.

It is true LaLone had the right to sign checks along

wdth Mr. Barrett. That is no proof of a partner-

ship relationship. Many employees are given the

dubious honor of signing checks without any pro-

prietary interest in the business. The referee made

much of the fact that, without the Barretts' co]i-

sent, LaLone sold his insurance accounts to the

Vermont Loan and Trust Company in 1942, and l|

l)aid back to the Barretts the amount of money they
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liail loaiunl to him. I can readily understand how

anyone inexperienced in business practices would

construe this to mean that at all times TjaLone main-

tained a proprietary interest in his business and was

workins:: for himself. Actually, all he had was the

right to recapture these accounts if they became

valuable and he could secure a sum sufficient to pay

off his debt. This case presents an excellent il-

lustration of what was discussed by Judge Paiker

in an addi'ess before the section on Patent, Trade-

mark and Copyright Law of the American Bar As-

sociation (American Bar Association Journal, v.

30, p. 623). Judge Parker was there discussing the

proposed creation of a patent court. He said:

*'What is needed there is not so much a court of

experts, as a court of wide experience and sound

common sense. Eveiybody knows that the training

[22] wliich makes a man an expert necessarily nar-

rows his field of vision and renders him imprac-

tical in matters outside his specialty. * * * What
is needed is not the bookish approach of the scientist

to the problem but the common sense approach of a

court accustomed to deal with all sorts of human

relationships." There was nothing unusual or un-

common about this relationship between the Barretts

and LaLone. He had worked there before. When
he got into financial difficulties, they were willing

to help him out. Of course, they permitted him to

make a deal whereby he could better his situation.

That did not mean that he had been in partnershij)

with them in an insurance agency. As long as he

was there, he was simply working there. LaLone
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had no financial responsibility. If the arrangement

had resulted in debt, the Barretts would have paid

the debts and would have discharged him. They con-

trolled and directed his activities; they furnished

him a place to work ; he worked on a definite salary

w^hich he drew regardless of profits. Situations such

as this are a matter of daily occurrence in the busi-

ness world. It would require the most tortuous in-

terpretation of the statute and regulation to conclude

other than that LaLone was an employee. He had

the right to hope that, if the business succeeded, the

relationship would ripen into a partnership or joint

adventure. That time never came while he was

working there.

The motion for summary judgment must be

denied.

L. B. SCHWELLENBACH
United States District Judge

November 27, 1944.

[Endorsed]: Piled Nov. 27, 1944. [23]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

Comes now the plaintiff above named and respect-

fully moves the Court for smnmary judgment in

th-e above entitled action pursuant to rule 56 of the

Federal Rules of Civil Procedure in her favor; and

for judgment in accordance with Section 205 (g)

of the Social Security Act as amended (Title 42,
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TT.S.C. A. Section 405 (g) ) reversing the decision

of the Social Security Board herein complained of.

This motion is based on the records, files and

proceedings herein, the ])leadings of the parties and

the certified copy of the transcript of the record

including the evidence on file herein.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Plaintiff.

Copy received December 5, 1944.

EDWARD M. CONNELLY

[Endorsed] : P'iled Dec. 5, 1944. [24]

In the District Court of the United States for

the Eastern District of Washington, Northern

Division

No. 404

AUGUSTA J. LaLONE, on behalf of JULIE S.

LaLONE, JANET D. LaLONE, JILL R. La-

LONE, and LANCE D. LaLONE,
Plaintiff,

vs.

THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, THE
SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD OF THE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Defendants.

JUDGMENT

The above entitled matter having come regularly

on for hearing and determination before the Court
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the plaintiff appearing by her attorney, Justin C.

Maloney, and the defendants appearing by Edward

M. Connelly, United States Attorney, and the plead-

ings of the parties being on file herein, and the

defendant, The Social Security Board of The United

States of America having filed as part of its answer

herein a certified copy of the transcript of the record

including the evidence upon which the findings and

decision complained of herein are based, and both

plaintiff and defendants having moved for summary

judgment in their respective favor, and the Court

having heard the argument of counsel, and briefs

and memorandums of authorities having been sub-

mitted to and considered by the Court and the Court

having fullv considered the matter and beino' fuUv

advised in the premises and having filed herein the

written opinion of the Court, It Is Hereby

Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that the motion

for summary judgment of the defendants in their

favor be and the same is hereby denied.

It Is Further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that the motion for summary judgment of the plain-

tiff in her favor be and the same is hereby granted.

It Is Further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that the decision of the Social Security Board of the

United States of America in the cases of Augusta J.

LaLone on behalf of Julie S. LaLone, Case No.

12-268, Janet D. LaLone, case No. 12-269, Jill R.

LaLone, case No. 12-270, Lance D. LaLone, case

No. 12-271, for Child's Insurance Benefits, he and

the same are hereby reversed. And the defendant.

The Social Security Board of The United States of

I
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America be and it is hereby directed to certify to

tlie Managing Trustee the names and addresses of

the parties plaintiff herein as entitled to receive

Child's Insurance Benefits as provided by law and

the order of this Court.

Done in open court this 22nd day of December,

1944.

L. B. SCHWELLENBACH
Judge.

Copy Received 12/22/44.

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
U. S. Atty.

Presented by

:

JUSTIN C. MALONEY

[Endorsed]: Filed Dec. 22, 1944. [25]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice Is Hereby Given that the United States

of America and The Social Security Board of the

LTnited States of iVmerica, defendants above named,

hereby appeal to the Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit from the final Judgment which

was entered in this action on December 22, 1944.

Dated this 21st day of February, 1945.

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
United States Attorney for the Eastern District

of Washington, Attorney for Appc^lhuits.



36 United States of America, et ah, vs.

Copy of the above Notice of Appeal mailed to

Justin C. Maloney, Attorney for Plaintiff, this 21st

day of February, 1945.

EVA M. HARDIN,
Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed]: Piled Feb. 21, 1945. [26]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OP THE POINTS UPON WHICH
APPELLANTS INTEND TO RELY UPON
APPEAL TO THE CIRCUIT COURT OF
APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Come Now the appellants by their attorney, Ed-

ward M. Connelly, the duly appointed, qualified and

acting United States Attorney for the Eastern

District of Washington, and make the following

statement of the points on which they intend to

rely on the appeal:

I.

The District Court erred in failing to hold that

the Social Security Board's findings that decedent

Dwight J. LaLone was self-employed and a joint-

venturer in the insurance business were supported

by substantial evidence and conclusive.

II.

The District Court erred in holding that the Social

Security Board had applied an improper rule of

law, had failed to follow National Labor Relations
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Board v. Hearst Publications, Inc., 322 U.S. Ill,

and had io^nored the ajoplicable regulation in de-

termining said deceased individual's employment

status for Social Security purposes.

III.

The District Court erred in failing to give due

weight to the evidence supporting the Social Se-

curity Board's findings, but instead, selecting evi-

dence tending to support other findings and con-

clusions.

IV.

The District Court erred in entering judgment

for plaintiff.

Dated this 21st day of February, 1945.

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
United States Attorney for the Eastern District of

Washington, Attorney for Appellants.

Service of the foregoing Statement of Points upon

which Appellants intend to rely upon Appeal is ad-

mitted by receipt of copy thereof this 21st day of

Febraary, 1945.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Augusta J. LaLone, Julie S. LaLone

and Lance D. LaLone, Plaintiffs and Aj;)pellees.

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 21, 1945. [27]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION AS TO BECORD

Comes now the parties above named, Augusta J.

LaLone, on belialf of Julie S. LaLone, Janet D.

LaLone, Jill R. LaLone and Lance D. LaLone,

plaintiff and appellee in the above-entitled proceed-

ing, by his attorney Justin C. Maloney, Esquire, and

the United States of America and the Social Se-

curity Board of the L^nited States of America, de-

fendants and appellants, by their attorney, Edward

M. Connelly, United States Attorney for the East-

em District of Washington, and hereby agree and

stipulate that the following parts of the record,

proceedings and evidence shall be and are desig-

nated to be included in the record on appeal, to-wit

:

1. Transcript of proceedings on hearing before

the Social Security Board of the United States of

America and titled as follows: ^'Federal Security

Agency, Social Security Board, Office of Appeals

Council..''

DECISION OF APPEALS COUNCIL

In the cases of Augusta J. LaLone on behalf of
Case No. Claim For :

Julie S. Lalone 12-268 Child's Insurance Benefits

(Claimant)

Janet D. LaLone 12-269 Child's Insurance Benefits

(Claimant)

Jill R. LaLone 12-270 Child's Insurance Benefits

(Claimant)

Lance D. LaLone 12-271 Child's Insurance Benefits

(Claimant)

Dwight J. LaLone
(Wage Earner)

(Social Security Account No . 539-16-1206)
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which said transcript constitutes the basis of ai)peal

I'roni the appeal council of the Social Security

Board to the United States District Court for the

Eastern District of Washington. It is especially

stipulated, however, that this transcript of proceed-

ings in the Social Security Board need not be made

a part of the printed record on appeal, but may be

reproduced in the form of photostatic copies. It is

further stipulated that the parties must otherwise

comply with the rules of the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Xinth Circuit with refer-

ence to the prej^aration of record on appeal save

[28] with respect to this particular transcript.

2. Plaintiff's Complaint filed with the Clerk of

the United States District Court for the Eastern

District of Washington on May 8, 1944.

3. Summons with attached copy of United States

Post Office receipt for registered mail.

4. Defendant's Answ^er.

5. Defendant's Motion for Sunmiary Judgment.

6. Notice of x\mendment of Motion to Dismiss on

Behalf of the United States of America.

7. Opinion of the Trial Court.

8. Plaintiff's Motion for Summary Judgirient.

9. Judgment filed December 22, 1944.

10. Notice of Appeal.

11. Statement of the Points Upon Which Af)-

pellants Intend to Rely upon Appeal to the Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

12. Stipulation as to Record.
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Dated this 1st day of March, 1945.

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
Attorney for Defendants

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Filed March 1, 1945. [29]

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE TO TRANSCRIPT
OF RECORD

United States of America,

Eastern District of Washington—ss.

I, A. A. LaFramboise, Clerk of the District Court

of the United States for the Eastern District of

Washington, do hereby certify the foregoing type-

written pages numbered from 1 to 29 inclusive, to

be a full, true, correct and complete copy of so much
of the record, papers and all other proceedings in

the above entitled cause, as are necessary to the hear-

ing of the appeal therein, in the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, as called for by the stipula-

tion of comisel for appellant and appellee, as the

same remain of record and on file in the office of

the Clerk of the said District Court, and that the

same constitute the record on appeal from the

judgment of the District Court of the United States

for the Eastern District of Washington, to the

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Judicial

Circuit, at San Francisco, California.

I further certify that in accordance with the stij)-
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Illation of counsel, I herewith enclose a i)hotostatic

copy of the Transcript of Proceedings before the

Social Security Board of the United States of

America.

In Witness Whereof, 1 have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said District Court at

Spokane in said District this 6th day of March, 1945.

[Seal] A. A. LaFRAMBOISE
Clerk, U. S. District Court,

Eastern District of Wash-

ington. [30]

[Endorsed]—No. 10998. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. United

States of America and the Social Security Board

of the United States of America, Appellants, vs.

Augusta J. LaLone, on behalf of Julie S. LaLone,

Janet D. LaLone, Jill R. LaLone and Lance D.

LaLone, Appellees. Transcript of Record. Upon

A})peal from the District Court of the United States

for the Eastern District of Washington, Northei7t

Division.

Filed March 8, 1945.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Xiiith Circuit

No. 10998

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA and THE
SOCIAL SECURITY BOARD OP THE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,

Appellants,

V.

AUGUSTA J. LaLONE, on behalf of JULIE S.

LaLONE, JANET D. LaLONE, JILL R. La-

LONE and LANCE D. LaLONE,
Appellees.

DESIGNATION OF POINTS UPON WHICH
APPELLANTS WILL RELY UPON APPEAL

To the Honorable Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals, to the above-named ap-

pellees and to Justin C. Maloney, your attorney of

record :

You and each of you will please take notice that

the points upon which appellants will rely upon

appeal are those points which appear in the Trans-

cript of Record, heretofore served and filed, follow-

ing service of Notice of Appeal in the above-entitled

proceedings.

Dated at Spokane, Washington, this 13th day of

March, 1945.

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
United States Attorney for the Eastern District of

Washington, and Attorney for Appellants.
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Service acknowledged by receipt of copy this l^ih

day of March, 1945.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Appellees.

[Endorsed]: Piled March 15, 1945. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

APPLICATION TO RELIEVE PARTIES
FROM PRINTING CERTAIN PORTIONS
OF RECORD

Come now the parties above-named by their re-

spective attorneys and stipulate and respectfully

make application to the Court for relief from

printing and producing the transcript of proceed-

ings on hearing before the Social Security Board

of the United States of America.

This application is made upon the ground that

said transcript, in addition to the wi'itten re])ro-

duction of testimony in question and answer form,

contains many documents, is a bulky and voluminous

transcript and has already been filed in the Court

and one copy furnished a])pellants' attorney, which

he in turn made available to appellee's counsel pend-

ing arguments, and that counsel for both pai-ties and

the Clerk of the District Court are familiar with tlu^

transcript in its present form and that to disturb

its present form by printing it in record form as

required by the rules of Court for sucli records

would tend to confusion and entail an unnecessary
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and excessive exjjense wliich would serve no useful

purpose either to this Court or to the counsel who

will prepai'e briefs and arguments on appeal from

said transcript.

EDWARD M. CONNELLY
Attorney for Appellants.

JUSTIN C. MALONEY
Attorney for Appellee.

So Ordered:

CURTIS D. WILBUR
Senior United States Circuit

Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 15, 1945. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.



No. 10998

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit

United States oi America and , Social Securitv

BOARD^ APPELLANT?^

V,

AluLola J. LaLone, on Behalf mx> ^ ^.j.ih. S: LaLone,

Janet D, LaLone, Jill R. LaLone, and LanOe D.

LaLone, apPetJ.res

ON APPEAL FROM WK' JUDGMENT 01 DISTRICT COURT OF
^'" UNITED STATED FOR THF, ^ --.,-. ^p WA^U

OY \'Oi?Tifr.T?x mvjs<fn\

BKIEi^ FOR APPELLANTS AND APPENDIX

FRANCIS M. SHEA,
Ass fa taut Attome if

(:<

EDWARD M. CONNELLY.
UnitrfJ SIfnfrs 'At

ARNOLD LEVY
Spcrial A8.'<

HUBERT H. MARGQLIES

FILED

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Ci.ERK





INDEX
Page

Jurisd ict ional st at oment 1

Statement of the ease 2

Specification of errors relied upon 13

Statutes and regulations involved 14

Questions presented 14

Summary of argument 15

Argument

:

I. The Board was warranted in determining that persons sus-

taining the relation to a business that LaLone did in the

instant case are not wage earners under the social security

program 17

II. LaLone was a self-employed individual and the Board prop-

erly so found 28

III. Findings of the Board supported by substantial evidence are

conclusive 38

Conclusion 44

Appendix 45

AUTHORITIES CITED
Oases:

Anglim v. Empire Star Mines, 129 F. (2) 914 (C. C. A. 9) 26,27

Auten V. Michigan Unemployment Compensation Comm.; 17 N. W.
(2) 249 (Mich.) 22

Chambers v. Macon Wholesale Orocer Co., 334 Mo. 1215, 70 S. W.
(2) 884 22

Coccaro v. Herman Coal Co., 145 Pa, Super. 81, 20 Atl. (2) 916. __ 22

Com'r. V. Scottish American Investment Co., Inc., 323 U. S. 119. 38, 39, 40

Consolidated Water Power Co. v. Bowles, 146 F. (2) 492 (Em. Ct.

App.) 32

Costanzo v. Tillinghast, 287 U. S. 341 31

Dezendorf v. National Casualty Co., 171 So. 160 (La. Ct. App.)._ 22

Dohson V. Com'r., 320 U. S. 489 38,41,42,44
Eagle Star his. Co. v. Bean, 134 F. (2) 755 (C. C. A. 9) 29

Emard v. Squire, 58 F. Supp. 281 (W. D. Wash.) 27

E.Htate of Tilton, 8 B. T. A. 914 22

Fawcus Machine Co. v. United States, 282 U. S. 375 31

Federal Trade Comm. v. Algoma Co., 291 U. S. 67 39

Federal Trade Comm. v. Educational Society, 302 U. S. 112 30

First Mechanics Bank v. ComW., 91 F. (2) 275 (C. C. A. 3) 29

€ihson-McPherson-Sutter Live Stock Co. v. Murphy, 384 111. 414,

51 N. E. (2) 514 _ 22

643730—45 1 (I)



II

Cases—Continued. Page

Glenn v. Beard, 141 F. (2) 376 (C. C. A. 6) 27

Gray v. Powell, 314 U. S. 402 28, 38,40,42,44
Henderson v. Kimmel, 47 F. Supp. 635 (D. Kans.) 43

Illinois Central R. R. Co. v. Interstate Commerce Commission, 206

U. S. 441 43

Independent Oil Co. v. Fly, 141 F. (2) 189 (C. C. A. 5) 21

Industrial Commission v. Bracken, 83 Colo. 72, 262 Pac. 521 22

Los Angeles Athletic Club v. United States, 54 F. Supp. 702 (S. D.

Calif.) 21

Lyle V. //. R. Lyle Cider Co., 243 N. Y. 257, 153 N. E. 67 22

Matcovich v. Anglim, 134 F. (2) 834, cert. den. 320 U. S. 744 27

Matter of Morton, 284 N. Y. 167, 30 N. E. (2) 369 38

McGowan v. Lazaroff, C. C. A. 2, C. C. H. Unemployment In-

surance Service, Vol. 1, Fed. Par. 9186 23

Morgan v. Social Security Board, 45 F. Supp. 349 (M. D. Pa.)___ 11

National Broadcasting Co. v. United States, 319 U. S. 190 11

A^. L. R. B. V. Hearst Publications, Inc., 322 U. S. Ill 13, 14,

15,24,26,27,31,38,41,43

N. L. R. B. V. Hoffman & Sons, 147 F. (2) 679 (C. C. A. 3) 43

N. L. R. B. V. J. S. Popper, Inc., 113 F. (2) 602 (C. O. A. 3)-.. 31

A^. L. R. B. V. Long Lake Lumber Co., 138 F. (2) 363 (C. C. A. 9)_- 27

Nevins v. Rothensies, 58 F. Supp. 460 (E. D. Pa.) 20

Norwegian Nitrogen Products Co. v. United States, 288 U. S. 294__ 31

Pacific Gas & Electric Co. v. S. E. C, 127 F. (2) 378 (C. C. A. 9)._ 38

Peterson v. Dept. of Labor & Industries, 160 Wash. 454, 295 Pac.

172 22

Punke V. Murphy, 267 App. Div. 673, 48 N. Y. Supp. (2) 347 32

Radio City Music Hall Corp. v. United States, 135 F. (2) 715

(C. C. A. 2) 27

Ridge Country Club v. United States, 135 F. (2) 718 (C. C. A. 7). 18, 20

Rochester Tel. Corp. v. United States, 307 U. S. 125 41,42,44

Rottenberg v. United States, 137 F. (2) 850 (C. C. A. 1) 43

Ryder v. Jacobs, 196 Pa. 386, 46 Atl. 667 26

San Francisco Iron & Metal Co. v. American Milling Co., 115

Cal. App. 238, 1 P. (2) 1008 26

Schneider v. Schneider, 347 Mo. 102, 146 S. W. (2) 584 29

Sharp V. United States, D. Fla., C. C. H. Unemployment Insurance

Service, Vol. 1. Fed. Par. 5054.511 22

Shields V. Utah-Idaho R. R. Co., 305 U. S. 177 42

Skouichi v. Chic Cloak & Suit Co., 230 N. Y. 296, 130 N. E. 299. 22

Social Security Board v. Warren, 142 F. (2) 974 (C. C. A. 8) _ 38,42,44

South Chicago Coal & Dock Co. v. Bassett, 309 U. S. 251 38,42

Spillson V. Smith, 147 F. (2) 727 (C. C. A. 7) 21

Sweet V. Bureau of Old-Age & Survivors Insurance, D. Idaho,

C. C. H. Unemployment Insurance Service, Vol. 1, Fed. Par.

6348.21 22

Texas Co. v. Higgins, 118 F. (2) 636 (C. C. A. 2) 27

United States v. Aberdeen Aerie, C. C. A. 9. C. C. H. Unemploy-

ment Insurance Service, Vol. 1, Fed. Par. 9177 26

United States v. American Trucking Ass'n., 310 U. S. 534 43



Ill

Cases—Continued. Page

United States v. Mutual Trucking Co., 141 F. (2) 655 (C. C. A. 6)

.

27

United States v. Vogue, Inc., 145 F. (2) 609 (C. C. A. 4) 27

Virginian Ry. v. United States, 272 U. S. 658 41

WaUijig V. Plymouth Mfg. Co., 139 F. (2) 178 (C. C. A. 7) aff'g. 46

F. Supp. 433 (N. D. Ind.) 25

Walker v. Altmeyer, 137 F. (2) 531 (C. C. A. 2) 11,38,40,42,44

Whalen v. Harrison. 51 F. Supp. 515 (N. D. 111.) 20

Wyoming-Indiana Oil Co. v. Weston, 43 Wyo. 526, 7 Pac. (2) 206_ 26

Statutes:

Social Security Act of 1935 46

Social Security Act. as amended:

Title II, 53 Stat. 1362, 42 U. S. C. 401, et seq 3,38

Section 202 (c) (42 U. S. C, 402 (c)) 3,45

Section 203 (d) (1) (42 U. S. C, 403 (d) (1)) 28,40

Section 205 (g) (42 U. S. C. 405 (g)) 1,2,11,28,38,40,43,47
Section 205 (h) (42 U. S. C. 405 (h)) 1,2,48

Section 209 (a) (42 U. S. C. 409 (a)) 18,46

Section 209 (b) (42 U. S. C. 409 (b)) 12, 18,46

Section 209 (g) (42 U. S. C. 409 (g)) 3,10,29,45
Section 209 (h) (42 U. S. C. 409 (h)) 3, 10,29,46

Federal Insurance Contribution Act:

(Chapter 9 (A) of Internal Revenue Code, 26 U. S. C. §1400,

et seq., formerly Title VIII of the Social Security Act). 20, 32, 50

Federal Unemployment Tax Act:

(Chapter 9 (C) of Internal Revenue Code, 26 U. S. C.

§1000, formerly Title IX of the Social Security Act)

Regulations and Rules:

S. S. B. Regulations No. 2 (Title 20 C. F. R. Part 402) Section

402.3 12,48,50
S. S. B. Regulations No. 3 (Title 20, C. F. R. (1940 Supp.), Part

403) 12,48,50
Section 403.201 (c) (1) 10

Treasury Regulations 90 (applicable to Title IX of the Social

Seciirity Act) Article 205 12,23,50
Treasury Regulations 91 (applicable to Title VIII of the Social

Security Act) Article 3 12, 23, 50
Treasury Regulations 106 and 107 50

Miscellaneous:

Senate Report 628, 74th Cong., 1st Sess 18, 19,21

Hou.se Report 615, 74th Cong., 1st Sess 19

Report of Committee on Economic Security 1935 18, 20

Eighth Annual Report, Social Security Board (1943) 19

Hearings on S. 1130, Senate Committee on Finance, 74th Cong.,

1st Sess _. 20

Social Security Yearbook, 1940 22, 23

Social Security Yearbook, 1941 21,23,24
Social Security Yearbook, 1942 21

C. B. XV-2, 405, S. S. T. 23 22

Blachly and Oat man. Judicial Review of Benefactory Action,

33 Geo. L. J. 1. 12 43





In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit

No. 10998

United States of America and Social Security

Board, appellants

V.

Augusta J. LaLone, on Behalf of Julie S. LaLone,

Janet D. LaLone, Jill R. LaLone, and Lance D.,

LaLone, appellees

ON APPEAL FROM THE JUDGMENT OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF
THE UNITED STATES FOR THE EASTERN DISTRICT OF WASH-
INGTON, NORTHERN DIVISION

BRIEF FOR appellants AND APPENDIX

jurisdictional statement

The action was instituted in the United States Dis-

trict Court for the Eastern District of Wasliington

against the United States and the Social Security

Board to review, pursuant to Section 205 (g) of the

Social Security Act as amended (42 U. S. C. § 405

(g)) a denial of child's insurance benefits. A motion

to dismiss the action as to the defendant United

States as in violation of Section 205 (h) (R. 8) was-

(1)



not acted upon by the District Court/ The jurisdic-

tion of this court to review the order of the District

Court is sustained by Section 205 (g) of the Social

Security Act, as amended, and Section 128 of the

Judicial Code (28 U. S. C. § 225).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This is an appeal from an order and final judgment

of the United States District Court for the Eastern

District of Washington, entered December 22, 1944,

denying the motion of the defendant Social Security

Board for summary judgment and for judgment af-

firming the decision of the Social Security Board

complained of in the action; granting plaintiff's cross-

motion for summary judgment; and reversing the

decision of the Social Security Board (R. 33-35).

The order and final judgment adjudges that plaintiff's

children are entitled to child's insurance benefits

under the Social Security Act, based upon the status

'Of their father, Dwight J. LaLone, as an insured indi-

vidual at the time of his death, and directs the Social

Security Board '^to certify to the Managing Trustee

the names and addresses of the parties plaintiff herein

as entitled to receive" such benefits.

The decision of the Social Security Board (Tr. 2,

8-13") reversed by this judgment found that from

^ In view of the fact that consent to sue the United States is ex-

pressly Avithheld by Section 205 (h) of the Social Security Act
as amended (42 U. S. C. § 405 (h) ) and that no order was entered

against the United States, the manifest jurisdictional defect in

retaininir the United States as a party to the proceeding will not

be noticed further.

- References to the printed record will be abbreviated R. * * *

-References to the photoprint transcript of the administrative pro-



August 1938 to May 1942, I.aLone was an entre-

preneur having a proprietary interest in the Barrett-

LaLone Insurance Agency and not in covered emi)loy-

ment under the Social Security Act. Exclusive of

this period he could be neither *^ fully insured" (Sec-

tion 209 (g) of the Social Security Act as amended)

nor ^^ currently insured'' (Section 209 (h) of the

Social Security Act as amended). Consequently his

children were not entitled to child's insurance bene-

fits (Section 202 (c) of the Social Security Act as

amended)

.

A. The administrative proceedings

Dwight J. LaLone died on November 20, 1942. On
December 7, 1942, plaintiff filed application under

Title II of the Social Security Act as amended (53

Stat. 1362, 42 U. S. C. §§401 et seq.) for child's

insurance benefits (Section 202 (c) of the Act as

amended, 42 U. S. C. Section 402 (c)) on behalf of

four infant children. On February 19, 1943, the

Bureau of Old-Age and Survivors Insurance of the

Social Security Board denied the application on the

ground that he was not an employee of F. S. Barrett

& Co., and did not qualify as a fully or currently

insured individual. As permitted by the regulations,

plaintiff requested reconsideration. On reconsidera-

tion, it disallow^ed the claim on April 26, 1943, con-

ceedings will be abbreviated Tr. * * * Pursuant to the order
of this court dated March 8, 1945, the printing of the transcript

of the proceedings before the Board has not been required.

Photoprint positive copies have, however, been furnished to the

clerk of this court. References to specific pages of the transcript

will be to the handwritten numbers appearing near the top of the
outside nnargin.



eluding that LaLone ^Svas a party to a joint venture

and, therefore, self-employed rather than an em-

ployee'' (Tr. 113-114). Disagreeing with the deter-

minations, plaintiff requested and was given a hear-

ing before a referee of the Social Security Board.

The evidence before the referee at the hearing on

November 15, 1943, including the testimony of plain-

tiff and three other witnesses in her behalf, may be

summarized as follows :

^

For some time prior to August 1, 1938, LaLone

operated an insurance business that dealt in all

forms of insurance except life, under the name of

the D. J. LaLone Insurance Agency (Tr. 24-25). He
was then indebted to several insurance agencies to

the extent of more than two thousand dollars. His

accounts were worth $3,600 (Tr. 57-58). To protect

his representation, he approached F. S. Barrett & Co.,

for whom he had once worked. F. S. Barrett & Co.

was primarily a realty company but it had a small,

unprofitable insurance business. (Tr. 36). F. S.

Barrett & Co. took LaLone 's notes and advanced the

money with which to meet his obligations on promis-

sory notes payable in a year (Tr. 39-40, 55-56,

120-123).

The two separate insurance businesses were pooled

as the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency (Tr. 40,

50). LaLone moved his office to the real estate office

of F. S. Barrett & Co., taking his stenographer and

some of his office furniture with him (Tr. 25, 29-30,

42), together with his insurance accounts, far exceed-

^ The evidence is summarized in the referee's decision, Tr. 8-12.



ing' the F. S. Barrett & Company's insurance business

in value (Tr. 36). A bank account in the name of

Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency was established for

the handling of all receipts and disbursements of the

Agency. All checks had to be signed by LaLone and

either F. S. Barrett, Sr., or F. S. Barrett, Jr., presi-

dent and secretary, respectively, of the Barrett Co.

(Tr. 40-41). Loans were obtained on two signatures,

LaLone 's and one of the Barretts' (Tr. 51-52). The

insurance operations were virtually the exclusive con-

cern of LaLone. Separate accounts and stickers on

the business originating with each constituent were

maintained (Tr. 43-44, 66).

No formal agreement was ever executed. In an

unsigned agreement (Tr. 116-119) which completely

embodied and ''clearly reelected" the temis of the

arrangement (Tr. 38-39) F. S. Barrett & Co. was

given an option to buy a one-half interest for $1,800

after repayment of its loan to LaLone, if the parties

should then decide to continue the Barrett-LaLone In-

surance Agency. That agreement recited the desire of

the parties to consolidate their insurance businesses

and to *^form a new insurance agency as of the first

day of August 1938, to be known as the Barrett-

LaLone Insurance Agency, the business of which shall

be conducted in the office of the first party (F. S.

Barrett & Co.) under the general management of the

second party (LaLone) in which agency the first

and second party shall have an equal interest, and

the second j)arty shall devote his entire time to the

business of said insurance^ agency." The advances
643730—45 2



were not to exceed $2,148. LaLone was to receive

$200 a month out of net profits, and the Agency was

to ^^ continue for the period of one year, or until such

further time as all advances by the first party have

been repaid, at which time the parties hereto agree

that said Agency may be dissolved or may be con-

tinued, in the discretion of either party, and if it is

decided to continue said Agency, the first party shall

pay to the second party the sum of Eighteen Hundred

Dollars ($1,800.00) and shall thereupon own a one-

half interest in said Agency. Upon a dissolution

of said Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency each of

the parties hereto shall hold as his own all in-

surance business turned over to said Agency by

him and all new business brought to said Agency by

him * * *.'' (Tr. 118).

All profits realized from the business were to be ap-

plied to the payment of LaLone 's notes. Thus the

profits on the insurance business derived from the

F. S. Barrett & Co.'s accounts (which had never

been lucrative, Tr. 36) would also be applied in pay-

ment on the notes. The Barrett Company was look-

ing to a ^^ built-up insurance business eventually''

(Tr. 47) as its inducement and consideration. Dur-

ing the pooling F. S. Barrett & Co. returned only

part of the profit as income. It was at LaLone 's

instance that '^partnership'' profits were so returned

(Tr. 73-74).

F. S. Barrett, Sr. He said in order to keep

things straight we should show this partnership

that there was a profit there to our account.



As far as receiving anything, we never re-

ceived a cent. That was a matter of book-

keeping.

Referee. But you considered that you had an

interest in the profits of that agency ?

F. S. Barrett, Sr. Yes.

Referee. Desi)ite the terms of that agree-

ment whereby he was to receive all the profits?

F. S. Barrett, Sr. Yes. AVell, it was 50-50.

He showed so much profit, and then we added it

up 50 to us and 50 to him, I think it was on

our books too.

A separate charge was made by F. S. Barrett & Co.

to Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency for rent and

telephone (Tr. 45). The charges for ^^ office rent and

phone rent'' were paid currently by the Agency to

the Company (Tr. 51). LaLone was allowed $200*

a month out of net profit (Tr. 74), paid by check

from the Barrett-LaLone account. On several oc-

casions when the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency

had insufficient funds in its bank account to pay La-

Lone 's drawing, money was borrowed from the bank

upon the note of the Insurance Agency, signed by

LaLone and one of the Barretts and repaid out of

subsequent profits of the Agency; on just one oc-

casion F. S. Barrett & Co. advanced a small amount

to Barrett-LaLone (Tr. 51-52).

The Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency maintained

its own records, which LaLone took with him upon

dissohition of the Agency (Tr. 129). Its affairs were

not reflected on tlio books and records of F. S. Barrett

& Co. other than to show the loan to LaLone and other
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transactions between the Agency and the corporation

(Tr. 50-51). The Agency was publicly held out as a

distinct firm. It had its own bank account and ad-

vertised the business in the name of the Agency. Con-

tracts for calendars and billboards to advertise the

Agency (not the corporation) were signed by LaLone

on behalf of the Agency (Tr. 42-43). Barrett, Sr.,

testified that the Agency account was still open for the

deposit of collections on bills outstanding and that

plaintiff as administratrix had an interest in realiza-

tions (Tr. 61-63).

Barrett, Jr. considered that LaLone '^was acting as

the manager of the insurance business.'' He was

thereupon asked by the referee: '^As your employee?"

Whereupon Barrett, Sr., interjected: ^^No'' (Tr. 56).

Barrett, Jr., did not take issue.

In May 1942, without consulting the Barretts, La-

Lone sold his business to the Vermont Loan & Trust

Co. for $5,000, paying the notes held by the Barrett

Co. out of the purchase price. The buyer tpok over

all the insurance accounts LaLone brought to Barrett-

LaLone and those he had developed; the remainder

reverted to the F. S. Barrett Co. (Tr. 31-32, 47-48,

58, 129).

One week before the dissolution of the Barrett-

LaLone Insurance Agency, LaLone wrote the Bureau

of Internal Revenue (Tr. 124, Exhibit X) with refer-

^ence to employer's identification numbers:

We have what is known as Barrett-LaLone

Insurance Agency, and the owners are F. S.

Barrett & Co. and D. J. LaLone, and this is an

entirely separate organization. Therefore, there
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should be a number for the Barrett-LaLone In-

surance Agency and also for F. S. Barrett & Co.

Social Security tax reports for the years prior to

1942 were not filed. No returns have ever been filed

listing LaLone as an employee of F. S. Barrett & Co.,

of the Barretts individuallv, or of Barrett-LaLone In-

surance Agency, except that he was listed in tax re-

turns (Tr. 76; 125-129, Exhibit Y) by Barrett-LaLone

Insurance Agency for the quarter ended March 31,

1942, and for the second quarter up to May 15, 1942,

to which LaLone attached a statement (Tr. 129, part

of Exhibit Y) reading as follows:

The partnership of the Barrett-LaLone In-

surance xigency was dissolved as of May 1, 1942.

The salary of Dwight J. LaLone ceased on that

date, but Dorothy May Ebeling was paid w^ages

until May 15, 1942.

The records of the Barrett-LaLone Insurance

Agency are kept by D. J. LaLone, at 1114 Old

National Building, Spokane, Washington.

Taxes in connection with these two quarters, the only

two filed, were paid out of the Barrett-LaLone Insur-

ance Agency funds (Tr. 70).^

Prior to August 1, 1938, LaLone was admittedly

self-emi)loyed and no contention to the contrary has

been advanced. His employment with the Vermont

* After the filing of plaintiff's application, a statement was made
ont on January 15, 1048, on Social Security Board Form OAC-
1001, in the course of the usual administrative inquiry of each al-

le<red em})loyer, si^ied ''I^arrett-LaLone Ins. Agency by F. S.

Barrett," and filed with the Board, purporting to show watjes

paid LaLone conmiencin^ in the third quarter of 1938 and ending

May 1, 1042 (Tr. 03, 05, 00).
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Loan & Trust Company from May 1 to November 20,

1942, would yield only three quarters of coverage ^ of

the 11 quarters of coverage after December 31, 1936,

that would be needed for fully insured status (Section

209 (g) of the Act as amended) (Tr. 113-114)' and

only tw^o of the twelve calendar quarters immediately

preceding the quarter in which LaLone died of the six

required for currently insured status (Section 209 (h)

of the Act as amended) (Tr. 113). Entitlement to

child's insurance benefits is conditioned upon the wage-

earner's having died a fully or currently insured in-

dividual. Unless the decedent was in covered employ-

ment during the continuance of the arrangement with

F. S. Barrett & Co., he could not have been fully or

currently insured.

On these facts the referee denied the claims on De-

cember 20, 1943. He found that **LaLone w^as not an

employee, but as a member of a partnership or joint

venture w^as an employer" (Tr. 12), and that ^^LaLone

owned a proprietary interest in the Barrett-LaLone

Insurance Agency, and therefore could not be an em-

ployee thereof (Tr. 13).

Plaintiff thereupon appealed to the Appeals Council

of the Social Security Board. On March 11, 1944,

the Council affirmed the decision of the referee and

adopted his findings and decision as its own (Tr. 2).

^ Quarters in which he was paid w^ages of $50 or more in covered

employment.
® After 1936 and up to but excluding the quarter in which he

died there were twenty-three quarters. Half must be quarters of

coverage. Since the number of quarters (23) is odd, the number
is reduced by one before division. Section 209 (g) ; Regulation 3

of the Social Security Board, Section 403.201 (c) (1)

.
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In confoniiity witli the practice of the Social Security

Board the decision of the Appeals Council became

the final decision of the Board.

B. The proceedings in the district court

Thereafter and within the time permitted by Section

205 (g) of the Social Security Act as amended (42

U. S. C. § 405 (g)) plaintiff conmienced this action in

the district court to review and set aside the decision

of the Social Security Board (R. 2-4). The Board

answered the complaint (R. 9-12) and pursuant to the

requirements of Section 205 (g) filed as part of its

answer a certified transcript of the administrative

record (R. 11).

Section 205 (g) of the Act as amended does not

contemplate a trial de novo. It provides that the re-

viewing court *^ shall have power to enter upon the

pleadings and transcript of the record, a judgment

affirming, modifying or reversing the decision of the

Board.'' It further provides that the findings of the

Board as to any fact, if supported by substantial evi-

dence, shall be conclusive.

In view of the limited nature of judicial review in

proceedings under Section 205 (g) and the fact that

the record before the court consists only of the plead-

ings and the administrative transcript, it has been the

practice of the Social Security Board to move for sum-

mary judgment pursuant to Rule 56 (b) of the Federal

Rules of Civil Procedure as soon as issue is joined.

Walker v. Altmeyer, 137 F. (2) 531 (C. C. A. 2)

;

Morgan v. Social Security Board, 45 F. Supp. 349

(M. D. Pa.) ; cf. National Broadcasting Co, v. United
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States, 319 U. S. 190, 227. Such practice was followed

in this case (R. 12-13). The plaintiff cross-moved

for summary judgment in her favor (R. 32-33).

C. The decision of the district court

"

The district court in an extended opinion (R. 15-

32) reversed the Board's determination as without

basis in law and without warrant in the record, and

following closely plaintiff's analysis of the alleged

facts (Tr. 4-6), stated that ^*It would require the

most tortuous interpretation of the statute and regu-

lation to conclude other than that LaLone was an

employee." Apparently referring to Section 209 (b)

(1)-(15) of the Act as amended (42 U. S. C. 409

(b) (1)-(15)), the court said:

The restriction upon the coverage does not

stem from the language Congress used in de-

fining ^^ employer," *^ employee," or ^* employ-

ment." It is the result of fifteen restrictive

exceptions withholding from coverage certain

specific classes of workers.

The court purported to follow the pertinent regu-

lations but inadvertently cited Treasury Regulations

90 and 91, applicable to the tax provisions, instead of

Social Security Board Regulations 2 and 3. The

court reasoned as follows

:

1. The referee did not refer to the provision, found

in the Treasury and Board regulations defining em-

ployment status, that ^^If the relationship of employer

and employee exists, the designation or description of

the relationship by the parties as anything other than

^ Reported in 57 F. Supp. 947.
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that of employer and em])loyee is immaterial/' and

"totally ignored" the applicable regulation. He

ignored the Barretts' alleged right to control, but

stressed the infrequency of its exercise; he ignored

the Barretts' right to terminate the relationship "on

their own volition"; he ignored the fact that the Bar-

retts furnished the office space.

2. The referee "ignored the broad aspects of the

statute with the administration of which this agency

is charged." In violation of the Supreme Court's

command in Labor Board v. Hearst Publications, 322

U. S. Ill, the referee gave the Act "inhospitable^

scope."

3. The referee's findings handled the facts inex-

pertly and without comprehension, laying undue

stress on the unsigned wuitten proposal. To people

versed in the ways of business, the evidence estab-

lished an employee relationship. The contrary view

of the referee was ascribed to inexperience, imprac-

ticality, and a "restricted field of vision."

On December 22, 1944, the court granted plaintiff's

motion for summary judgment and directed the Board

to certify to the Managing Trustee the names of

the infants as entitled to receive child's insurance

benefits.

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS RELIED UPON

The district court erred

—

(1) In failin^;' to hold that the Social Security

Board's finding that decedent was self-employed, a

joint venturer in the insurance business, not an em-
643730—45 3
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ployee, was supported by substantial evidence and

conclusive.

(2) In holding that the Social Security Board had

applied an improper rule of law, had failed to follow

National Labor Relations Board v. Hearst Publica-

tions, Inc., 322 U. S. Ill, and had ignored the appli-

cable regulation in determining LaLone's employment

status for Title II purposes.

(3) In failing to give any weight to the evidence

supporting the Social Security Board's findings, but

instead, substituting the court's own inferences and

evaluation of the evidence for the Board's.

STATUTES AND REGULATIONS INVOLVED

For the convenience of the court the statutes and

regulations herein involved are set forth in an appen-

dix hereto (pp. 45-50, infra),

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

The only questions presented on this appeal are

(1) was the administrative determination on the un-

disputed facts that LaLone was self-employed and not

in the employ of another so erroneous as to permit

the district court to say that as a matter of law it was

not supported by substantial evidence and to go on

and to make substituted findings of its own, and (2)

was the district court justified in imposing its own
views of coverage upon the Board as a matter of law.

It is submitted that in administering the Act, the

Board has constantly refused to permit its coverage

determinations to be dominated by restrictive common
law tests for ascertaining the master and servant rela-

tion but that, adopting the most liberal construction,
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entrepreneurs are not within the ambit of the Social

Security Act, and LaLone unquestionably fell in the

ranks of the self-employed, as a working partner or

joint venturer; that the Hearst case, 322 U. S. Ill,

and the regulations afford no open sesame to coverage

for LaLone and other self-employed individuals. In-

deed, the necessity for more expansive tests to cover

those not comprehended by common law tests assumes

the continuance of groups not satisfying the more

inclusive tests of employee status. The Hearst case

clearly has not forced abandonment of all standards

for coverage determination in benefit proceedings.

Even if it be deemed to establish the rule of the

most liberal construction, it would still leave room

for the agency to which administration is confided to

determine that a particular individual was a self-

employed working partner or coadventurer not ren-

dering services for, and not in the employ of,

another.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

1. The differences are misconceived if they are laid

to divergent views as to the scope of coverage under

the Social Security Act rather than as to application.

Long before the decision by the Supreme Court in the

Hearst Publications case, concepts substantially the

same as Mr. Justice Rutledge's had been adopted by

the Social Security Board. The Board disclaims as a

ground for appeal any reliance on narrow views of

coverage.

Contrary to intimations in the opinion below, the

terms ^^ employment,'' *' employer," and *^ employee"

connote an exclusion of those not qualifying as em-
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ployees by the tests applied by the Board. A rule of

liberal construction is not in itself decisive of status

in specific instances. Unreserved acceptance of all

the implications of the Hearst case does not predeter-

mine employee status for a co-owner of a business.

The court fallaciously interpreted the Hearst case as

virtually obliterating the distinction between persons

in the employ of another and the self-employed.

Actually, while the Supreme Court recognized that the

class of employed persons might be viewed expan-

sively by an administrative agency, it did not require

the agency to lose sight of the limitations upon cover-

age attributable to the implicit restriction to those in

an employment status, wholly apart from more spe-

cific exclusions.

2. Appraising the evidence, the Board found that

decedent was self-employed. That finding was sup-

ported by substantial evidence before an agency well-

grounded in the correct principles to be applied. By
the standard of substantial support in the evidence,

the Board's finding must be upheld. Actually it is

supported by the great preponderance of the evidence.

The court below, however, chose to search the record

for evidence to support its own theory of the rela-

tionship, to make unwarranted assertions as to the

evidence, to select particular excerpts from the regula-

tions, and in so doing to tax the Board with failing

to adhere to the precepts of the Hearst case and the

regulations. By those very precepts, nevertheless,

LaLone must be found to have been self-employed

and, therefore, not in covered employment during the
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critical period from August 1938 to May 1942. The

Hearst case requires that the administrative agency's

determination be accepted if it has *'warrant in the

record and a reasonable basis in law."

3. Particularly with respect to a program of such

vast proportions as the Old-Age and Survivors Insur-

ance program, intrusion by the courts, and the sub-

stitution of judicial disposition for that of the

administrative body, should be discountenanced. The

courts, dealing with these cases sporadically, do not

share the advantages of familiarity with the back-

ground and knowledge of the practical consequences

that will ensue from any particular construction.

Eeversal of the Social Security Board may only be

justified when the Board's findings of fact are unsup-

ported by evidence, or when it has applied the wrong

principle of law. In the case at bar, the Board has

manifestly ai)plied the correct principles, and adhered

to its own regulations. In no sense was there any

error of law. The only question is whether the Board

is to be permitted to apply fair tests of coverage (and

noncoverage) even when its finding results in a denial

of benefits.

Point I

The Board was warranted in determining that persons sus-

taining the relation to a business that LaLone did in the

instant case are not wage earners under the Social Security

program

Entitlement and benefits payable under the Old-Age
and Survivors Insurance program are determined and

measured by wages paid. *' Wages" are defined as
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^^remuneration for employment." (Section 209 (a)

of the Act as amended, 42 TJ. S. C. 409 (a)). ^^Em-

ployment'' is defined as ^^any service * * * per-

formed * * * by an employee for the person em-

ploying him." (Section 209 (b) of the Act as

amended, 42 TJ. S. C. 409 (b)). (Prior to January 1

1940, it was defined as ^^any service * * * pep_

formed * * * by an employee for his employer.")

Self-employed individuals are not within the scope nor

within the intention. They are not in receipt of re-

muneration for services performed in the employ of

another; they work for themselves. Apart from their

definitional exclusion, self-employed indi\dduals are

commonly regarded as typically better able to protect

themselves from the hazards of insecurity and their

earnings as being highly differentiated, in character

and amount, from the wages of industrial workers

receiving periodic remuneration while employed.

Ridge Comitry Club v. United States, 135 F. (2) 718

(C. C. A. 7). It is no new discovery that their *^eco-

nomic situation may not be one whit better than that

of many workers covered by the compulsory system."

Report of Committee on Economic Security (1935)

p. 35.

A considerable part of the population, how-

ever, is outside of Title II. Included in this

excluded group are all agricultural workers,

domestic servants, employees of charitable, edu-

cational and religious organizations, all self-

employed persons, farmers, professional people

and proprietors and entrepreneurs. These
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groups include almost half of all persons ^^gain-

fully occupied'' as this term is used in the

United States Census. Senate Report No. 628,

on H. R. 7260, which became the Social Secu-

rity Act of 1935, 74th Cong., 1st Sess., p. 9.

[Italics supplied.]
^

The Social Security Board in its Eighth Annual

Report, 1943 (p. 14) recognizes the desirability of

extending coverage

:

Self-employed persons are often thought of in

terms of Avell-to-do business and professional

men whose work is * independent." Yet the

10.0-11.7 million persons excluded from sub-

stantially all participation in social insurance

by reason of their self-employment represent

for the most part operators of small farms and

stores, repair services, and the like, whose re-

turns are small and whose ^'independence" is

largely illusory ^ * *

Letters received by the Board indicate that

many owners of little luiincorporated businesses

look longingly at the protection which wage

earners have under the Social Security Act and

other social insurance legislation. Often they

are contributing under such laws in behalf of

their employees while they themselves have no

^ See also computations and tables in Report No. 628 of Senate

Committee on Finance, May 13, 1935 (to accompany H. R. 7260),

pp. 26, 27, and Report No. 615 of House Committee on Ways and

Means, April 5, 1985 (to accompany H. R. 7260), pp. 14, 15, which

indicate that in addition to the specially excluded types of service,

it was intended that the individuals not within the coverage of

title VIII and title IX of the original act would be "owners, op-

erators, self-employed (including the professions)."
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adequate means of making provision for their

old age or assuring the support of their families

if they should die.^

Not to belabor the point, the court below cited as the

best statement of the objectives of the Social Security

Act, the testimony of Senator Wagner on his unen-

acted bill, S. 1130, before the Senate Committee on

Finance on Januaiy 22, 1935 ( See Hearings, Economic

Security Act, Committee on Finance, 74th Cong., 1st

Sess. S. 1130). Senator Wagner said at p. 2 (the

court's page reference) that ^^Lost profits may be re-

gained upon the upward swing of the business cycle,

but the working day that is lost is gone forever," and

specifically noted (p. 8) ^^The compulsory national

system of old-age insurance will not provide for those

who engage in business for themselves."

The concept of the exclusion of the self-employed

was basic. It never occurred to Congress that any

one would contend that persons who were self-em-

ployed would be entitled to the same social security

benefits '° (or liable for the Federal Insurance Con-

® "The statute does not comprehend storekeepers, professional

men engaged in making their own livelihood, profiting or losing

from the exercise of their own judgment, capital, and enterprise."

Ridge Country Club v. United States, 135 F. (2) 718 (C. C. A. 7)

;

Whalen v. Harrison, 51 F. Supp. 515 (N. D. 111.) ; Nevins v. Roth-
ensies, 58 F. Supp. 460 (E. D. Pa.)

^° As a supplement to the system applicable to wage-earners it

was originally planned to sell deferred life annuities to indi-

viduals on a cost basis. In its Report to the President (1935) the

Committee on Economic Security, p. 5, stated that "The primary
purpose of the plan is to offer persons not included within the

compulsory system a systematic and safe method of providing for

their old age." This plan, devised to take in the self-employed,
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tributions tax on employees, 26 U. S. C. § 1400) as

those employed by another. In view of the foregoing,

appellants must take exception to the statement of the

court below that ''The restriction upon the coverage

does not stem from the language Congress used in de-

fining 'employer/ 'employee,' or 'employment.' It

is the I'esult of fifteen restrictive exceptions withhold-

ing from coverage certain specified classes of work-

ers." As the Board has said (Social Security Year-

book, 1941, p. 51) : "Coverage under the old-age and

survivors insurance program is based on 'employ-

ment,' and services in employment can be rendered

only by 'employees.' But not all services rendered

by employees constitute 'emplo3anent' as that term is

defined in title II of the Social Security Act." See

also Social Security Yearbook for the calendar year

1942 (June 1943), p. 26, Table 8."

The cases interpreting the Social Security Act and

related social legislation have recognized that people

in business for themselves, whether operating as sole

proprietors or as co-proprietors in a partnership or

was embodied in title XI of H. K. 7260. It was not, however,

enacted as a part of the Social Security Act of 1935. In its recom-

mendations on unemplo^anent compensation (p. 10) the Commit-
tee noted that "Even with compulsory coverage large groups of

workers cannot readily be brought under unemployment compen-

sation ; among them employees in very small establisliments, and^

of course^ all self-employed persons.'''' See also Senate Report
No. 628, 74th Cong., 1st Sess., pp. 3, 9-10, 52.

" Neither "employer" nor "employee" is specifically defined in

the Social Security Act. See Independent Oil Co. v. Fly^ 141 F.

(2) 189 (C. C. A. 5) ; SpiUsonv. Smith, 147 F. (2) 727 (C. C. A. 7)

;

Los Angeles Athletic Club v. United States^ 54 F. Supp. 702, 704

(S.D.Calif.).

643730—45 4
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joint adventure, are not covered. See Sweet v. Bureau

of Old-Age and Survivors Insurance^ decided August

31, 1942, United States District Court for the District

of Idaho, C. C. H. Unemployment Insurance Service,

Vol. 1, Fed. Par. 6348.21; Sharp v. U7iited States,

United States District Court for the District of Flor-

ida, decided January 21, 1942, C. C. H. Unemployment

Insurance Service, Vol. 1, Fed. Par. 5054.511; C. B.

XV-2, 405, S. S. T. 23; Industrial Comnfiission v.

Bracken, 83 Colo. 72, 262 Pac. 521; Gibson-McPher-

son-Sutter Live Stock Co, v. Murphy, 384 111. 414,

51 N. E. (2) 514; Dezendorf v. National Casualty Co,,

171 So. 160 (La. Ct. App.) ; Auten v. Michigan Unem-

ployment Compensation Commission, — Mich. —

,

17 N. W. (2) 249; Chambers v. Macon Wholesale

Grocer Co., 334 Mo. 1215, 70 S. W. (2) 884; Skouichi

V. Chic Cloak & Suit Co,, 230 N. Y. 296, 130 N. E. 299;

Lyle V. H. R, Lyle Cider Co,, 243 N. Y. 257, 153 N. E.

67; Coccaro v. Herman Coal Co,, 145 Pa. Super. 81,

20 Atl. (2) 916; Peterson v. Department of Labor &
Industries, 160 Wash. 454, 295 Pac. 172; cf. Estate

of Tilton, 8. B. T. A. 914, 917.

The Social Security Board may not be said to have

accepted restrictive common law views. In the Social

Security Yearbook for the calendar year 1940 (June

1941), pp. 74-75, the Board candidly rejected the ap-

proach of respondeat superior:

In the field of social insurance the only con-

trol which appears to be relevant is general

economic control and the dependence of an
individual for his livelihood upon the person

claimed to be the employer. It is somewhat
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incongruous that rights and liabilities under a

modern program designed to protect individ-

uals from insecurity in old age or to help bridge

the gap between jobs—problems which are

peculiarly the product of current foims of

industrial organization—should be determined

by any concepts which originated in the nine-

teenth century. In such a program the only

individuals who could logically be excluded on

the basis of their general status are the self-

employed or those who are engaged in operat-

ing independently established businesses.

See also Social Security Yearbook for the calendar

year 1941 (June 1942) pp. 47-52. But the Board

caimot remain unaware that no matter how broad the

coverage of ^^employees" may be, the need for de-

ciding whether the individual is in the employ of

another is not obviated. Indeed, far from dispensing

with decision of that question, more recent cases have

accentuated its importance by giving the ^^inde-

pendently established" test greater emphasis than the

delusively simple and telescoped '^control test." The

control test was formerly applied pretty much as a

matter of course,^^ with the completely unpredictable

results that might be anticipated from a test de-

pendent on the distinction between result and details

and means. Cf. McGowa^i v. Lazaroff, C. C. A. 2,

March 26, 1945, C. C. H. Unemployment Insurance

Service, Vol. 1, Fed. Par. 9186. It is perhaps signifi-

cant that in its footnote 1, quoting Treasury Regula-

tions 90 and 91 on employment, the court below

^' See Social Security Yearbook ( 1940) , p. 76.
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(which took the referee to task for not referring to

a portion of the regulation) omitted the following

paragraphs

:

Generally, physicians, lawyers, dentists, vet-

erinarians, contractors, subcontractors, public

stenographers, auctioneers, and others who fol-

low an independent trade, business, or profes-

sion, in which they offer their services to the

public, are independent contractors and not

employees.

Whether the relationship of employer and
employee exists will in doubtful cases be de-

termined upon an examination of the particular

facts of each case.

N, L. R. B. V. Hearst Publications, 322 U. S. Ill,

implements the important role that the legislative

purpose must play in the establishment of the bound-

aries of coverage by endowing the administrative

agency with power to effectuate the objectives of the

Act. It is the very opposite of a mandate to reject

the well-settled distinction between employees and the

self-employed. '^Independent contractor" may be

ambiguous—it may be used to describe employer or

employee because generically it excluded only servants

at common law, a narrower conception than employees.

But the term '^ employee" cannot absorb the '^ self-

employed."'' The Hearst case itself dealt with the

^^ See Social Security Yearbook, 1941, p. 49 "* * * insofar

as tort or workmen's compensation liability is concerned, use of

the term 'independent contractor' as the antithesis of 'employee'

probably does not seriously affect the validity or desirability of

the legal conclusion reached in most cases. Experience has made
it manifest, however, that serious consequences flow from the
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problem of cases '4n the borderland between what

is clearly an employer-employee relationship and what

is clearly one of independent entrepreneurial dealing"

(p. 121) and Justice Rutledge stated at p. 124 (with

reference to the Labor Act)

:

Congress had in mind a wider field than the

narrow technical legal relation of ^^master and

servant," as the common law had worked this

out in all its variations, and at the same time

a narrower one than the entire area of render-

ing service to others. The question comes down
therefore to how much was included of the

intermediate region between what is clearly

and unequivocally '^employment," by any ap-

propriate test, and what is as clearly entre-

preneurial enterprise and not employment.

The controversy between the parties to this appeal

is not over a pure question of law. Whether a co-

ownership or an employer-employee relation exists is

a question of fact. Walling v. Plymouth Mfg. Co,, 139

F. (2) 178 (C. C. A. 7) affirming 46 F. Supp. 433

transfer of these concepts to a system of old-age and survivors

insurance which seeks to secure wage earners and their dependents

against the economic consequences of old age and death. In this

program the extent and nature of the control reserved or exer-

cised over the individual who performs the service would seem

to be a factor of no great relevance in ascertaining whether he
should be covered. The proper inquiry would seem to be whether
he was a wage earner dependent upon the continuance of an eco-

nomic association with one whose business was furthered by the

services he performed * * * Without prejudice to the view
that coverage of the 'self-employed,' on economic and legal

grounds, may be amply justified, it would seem that the initial in-

clusion of all gainful workers excepting self-employed individuals

(and certain special groups) apart from considerations of tort lia-

bility is reasonable * * *"
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(N. D. Ind.) cert. den. 322 U. S. 741; San Francisco

Iron (& Metal Co. v. American Milling Co., 115 Cal.

App. 238, 1 P. (2) 1008, 1011 (joint venture) ; Ryder

V. Jacobs, 196 Pa. 386, 46 Atl. 667 (partnership);

Wyoming-Indiana Oil Co. v. Weston, 43 Wyo. 526,

7 Pac. (2) 206, 208 (joint venture). The issue is

whether, having regard to all the complex of attributes

of the relationship of LaLone to the Barrett-LaLone

Insurance Agency, and to all tlie characteristics of the

Agency, the court below could say as a matter of law

that LaLone had no proprietary interest in the Agency,

but instead was merely an employee of a distinct

entity of which he was not a member, with assurance

that a contrary view was altogether unsound and un-

supportable. So long as substantial evidence may be

shown for holding that an individual was in en-

trepreneurial enterprise as a co-owner, that situation

does not obtain. It is significant that the court did

not specify who the employer was, whether (1) F. S.

Barrett & Co., (2) the Barretts individually, or (3)

Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency.

The Hearst case does not relieve the trier of fact

from coming to an over-all judgment on the facts

and circmnstances {United States v. Aberdeen Aerie,

No. 24, decided by this court on February 16, 1945,

C. C. H. Unemployment Ins. Service, Vol. 1, Fed. Par.

9177; Anglim v. Empire Star Mines, 120 F. (2) 914,

917 (C. C. A. 9)) nor does it establish any presump-

tion of coverage militating against giving appropriate

effect to the judgment and primary jurisdiction of

the administrative agency. National Lahor Relatio7is

Board v. Hearst Publications, 322 U. S. Ill, 130.
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Neither this court (see Anglim v. Empire Star

Mines, 129 F. (2) 914; Matcovich v. Anglim, 134 F.

(2) 834, cert. den. 320 U. S. 744; cf. N, L, E, B, v.

Long Lake Lumber Co,, 138 F. (2) 363 (C. C. A. 9) ;

E7nard v. Squire, 58 F. Supp. 281 (W. D. Wash.))

nor any Circuit Court, certainly not the Fourth Cir-

cuit in United States v. Vogue, Inc, (145 F. (2) 609,

cited by the court below, involving a seamstress in a

Lynchburg store and her helpers) has attributed such

breadth to the Social Security Act's coverage. The

court below stands alone in purporting to find that the

scope is intrinsically, and apart from administrative

construction, so far reaching. The cases have almost

uniformly justified denials of coverage on the basis

of the applicable regulations' adoption of concepts

not too remote from those of the common law, re-

ferring to the contrast in the regulations between em-

ployees and independent contractors."^* The Act has

been interpreted judicially for almost ten years with-

out any intimation that ^^employment" as a matter of

law included persons in LaLone's situation.

Notwithstanding its liberal approach, the district

court's intrusion into the administration of the Social

14 See, e. g., Texas Co. v. Higgins, 118 F. (2) 636 (C. C. A. 2)

;

Radio City Mmic Hall Corp. v. United States^ 135 F. (2) 715

(C. C. A. 2) ; Glenn v. Beard, 141 F. (2) 376 (C. C. A. 6) ; U7iited

States V. Mutual Trucking Co., 141 F. (2) 655 (C. C. A. 6)

;

Anglim v. Empire Star Mines, 129 F. (2) 914 ; cf . Emard v. Squire,

58 F. Supp. 281 (W. D. Wash.). Although the Board disagrees

with many of the decisions, and many of them were rendered be-

fore the Supreme Court handed down its opinion in the Hearst

case, the difference in construing the regulations is too marked to

be overlooked. The uniform trend in the decisions has been to the

effect that literally read, the regulations seem to reflect a desire

not to innovate in the interpretation of employment status.
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Security program goes far beyond the limited par-

ticipation envisaged for the courts by Section 205 (g)

of the Act and by general rules for judicial review

of administrative determinations. It interposes a

serious obstacle to efficient unified administration of

the Act by injecting the many district courts into the

administration of Title II of the Social Security Act.

It censures a responsible finding of fact for no better

reason than that it does not find in favor of coverage.

If it is allowed to stand as a precedent the Board may
be whipsawed for denial of coverage in benefit (entitle-

ment) appeals and for favoring coverage in directing

deductions for earnings of $15 or more in covered

employment,'^ to the detriment of consistency, uni-

formity, and responsible administration.

Point II

LaLone was a self-employed individual and the Board
properly so found

The facts in this case are that at a time when he

was in debt LaLone pooled his insurance business with

that of F. S. Barrett and Company. He was installed

as the active managing partner and allowed $200 a

month out of the profits. The Barrett-LaLone Insur-

ance Agency clearly was not intended to be a

mere adjunct of the realty company. Cf, Gray v.

Powell, 314 U. S. 402, 414. Although the Barrett

Company financial contribution and its power to de-

mand payment of LaLone 's notes at any time after

^^ Section 203 (d) (1) of the Social Security Act as amended,

42 U. S. C. § 403 (d) (1), requires loss of a monthly benefit for

any month in which the individual renders services (in covered

employment) for wages of $15 or more.
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maturity may have given it a potentially dominant

voice in the event of disagreement, it seems clear that,

as the referee found, LaLone's interest was tliat of a

co-owner. His sale of his interest for $5,000 in May,

1942, is conclusive that he had a proprietary interest

and was not an employee of another from August 1,

1938, to May, 1942.'' The indicia of a joint adventure

are clearly present.

In the face of LaLone's contribution of an estab-

lished business to the common enterprise, and his

proprietary interest in the subject matter which would

give rise to profits, it cannot be successfully main-

tained that Barrett, Sr. and LaLone misconceived the

relation '" and that LaLone was an employee engaged

in another's business. The sharing of the profits

strongly evidences that LaLone was a joint adventurer

or partner along with F. S. Barrett Company.'^ Al-

though no express agreement was ever reached as to

losses,'"" the insurance accounts LaLone put into the

insurance agency were at the risk of the business.

Both parties considered they were to share in losses,

^^ If he was not in the employ of another he was unable to gain

quarters of coverage or quarters for which wages of not less than

$50 were paid him. It must appear "to the satisfaction of the

Board" that payments for services have been made. Sections

209 (g), (h) of the Act as amended.
'' Cf. Schneider v. Schneider, 347 Mo. 102, 146 S. W. (2) 584.

^^ LaLone would have shared even in the profits that were to go

to tlie Barrett Company because those profits would discharge his

obli<rati(m on the notes.

^^ The absence of an agreement to share losses is not inconsistent

with a joint venture. First Mechanics Bank v. Coni'r.^ 91 F. (2)

275, 279 (C. C. A. 3) ; Ea^Ie Star Ins. Co. v. Bean, 134 F. (2) 755

(CCA. 9).
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as appears from the fact that LaLone as well as one

of the Barretts signed the notes every time money was

borrowed by the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency

(Tr. 51-52). Moreover, no losses were sustained (Tr.

44-45, 48-49). The court nevertheless found (57 F.

Supp. 947, 954) that ^^LaLone had no financial re-

sponsibility. If the arrangement had resulted in debt,

the Barretts would have paid the debts and would have

discharged him. '

'

In violation of the restricted scope of judicial re-

view prescribed by the Supreme Court in a long line

of cases (see, e, g., Federal Trade Comm. v. Educa-

tional Society, 302 U. S. 112, 117) the court below paid

no attention to the evidence in support of the Board's

findings. Instead, it searched the record for evidence

to sustain the contentions of the plaintiff, drew

its own inferences to establish a departure from the

applicable regulations, and put an unprecedented con-

struction on the regulations themselves. On the evi-

dence in the record as distinguished from judicial

notice of such items as the worthlessness of accounts

in the hands of a delinquent agent and his complete

absence of bargaining power, inferences that will

often be, and in this case were, at variance with the

facts, it may be said that the overwhelming weight of

the evidence supported the finding of self-employment.

The Social Security Board, by virtue of the Congres-

sional delegation to it of the administration of the

benefit provisions, has made hundreds of thousands of

coverage determinations and has gained therefrom a

specialized knowledge of the variations. Even if the
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facts were as consistent with the employee hypothesis

as the court supposed, it may be doubted that the

strictures upon the referee's inexperience in business

practices were warranted, or that a relationship so

dependent on intention could be categorically charac-

terized as employment. The court's ingenious recon-

struction of the alleged facts does not exclude the

Board's more tenable finding. This ^'penumbra of the

employment relation" did not escape the notice of the

Supreme Court in the Hearst case (p. 126)

:

Myriad forms of service relationship, with

infinite and subtle variations in the terms of

employment, blanket the nation's economy.

Some are within this Act, others beyond its

coverage. Large numbers will fall clearly on
one side or on the other, by whatever test may
be applied. But intermediate there will be

many, the incidents of whose employment par-

take in part of the one group, in part of the

other, in varying proportions of weight.

Coverage turns largely upon the interpretation to be

given a regulation of the Social Security Board defin-

ing ^^ employment." The Board should be considered

the best judge of its meaning; its interpretation

should not be disregarded by the courts unless clearly

erroneous or arbitrary. Norwegian Nitrogen Prod-

ucts Co, V. United States, 288 U. S. 294; iV,. L. R, J5.

V. J. S. Popper, Inc., 113 F. (2) 602 (C. C. A. 3) ; cf.

Fawcus Machine Co. v. United States, 282 U. S. 375;

Costanzo v. Tillingliast, 287 U. S. 341. ^*In any case

of ambiguity in a regulation established by an admin-

istrative officer, his interpretation is entitled to great
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weight/' Consolidated Water Potver Co. v. BoivJes^

146 F. (2) 492, 494 (Em. Ct. App.).

As for the payment of Social Security taxes (to-

talling $12.00) for two quarters in 1942, the erroneous

collection or receipt by Government agents cannot

enlarge the scope and application of the tax statute.

Much less may it enlarge the scope of the distinct, al-

though related, benefit statute. These payments were

made voluntarily and without any assessment or deter-

mination bv the Bureau of Internal Revenue. For anv

erroneous payment of taxes the Internal Revenue Code

provides a remedy in the form of a claim for refund (26

U. S. C, Int. Rev. Code, §1421). The Old-Age and

Survivors Insurance Program can give credit only

for such earnings as constitute wages. Cf Pnnke v.

Murphy, 267 App. Div. 673, 675, 48 N. Y. Supp. (2)

347, 349. The considerations to be applied by the

Board are indicated in Title II of the Act. Signifi-

cantly, the taxes in question were paid by Barrett-

LaLone Insurance Agency, of which LaLone was one

of the owners, not by F. S. Barrett & Co. Even after

LaLone 's death, F. S. Barrett executed and filed with

the Social Security Board statements (Form OAC-
1001) purjDorting to show pajanent of wages to La-

Lone during 1938-1942, not by F. S. Barrett & Co.,

but by Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency (Tr. 92,

95, 99).

The District Court said (57 F. Supp. 947, 950) that the

referee

* " " gave no consideration to the testi-

mony that the two Barretts had the right to

control and direct the methods of operation, but
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stressed the testimony that such direction and

control was infrequent. In this, the referee

ignored the provision in the regulation reading

:

'*In this connection, it is not necessary that the

employer actually direct or control the manner
in which the services are performed ; it

,
is

sufficient if he has a right to do so."

Nothing in the referee's decision warrants any

assertion by the court as to the consideration the ref-

eree gave to such alleged testimony. The referee's

decision contains no reference whatever to frequency

or infrequency of any alleged direction or control.

Moreover, the evidence shows consultation among the

Barretts and LaLone, not control or direction by the

Barretts over LaLone (Tr. 41, 49-50). The evidence

is at least as consistent with the theory of consulta-

tion between co-partners or joint adventurers, as with

the theory of an employer giving instructions to an

employee, or the employee consulting his employer for

the purpose of obtaining instructions; especially so

when read and considered in the light of overwhelm-

ing other evidence establishing LaLone 's proprietary

interest in the insurance business. Because F. S.

Barrett Sc Co. had advanced LaLone money upon his

promissory notes, maturing in one year (but not paid

imtil LaLone terminated the venture by selling his

insurance accounts to a third party for $5,000), and

because LaLone may have deemed it advisable to avoid

any serious falling out with the Barretts so long as he

wanted to continue the venture, it is possible that the

Barretts were in a position to have the final say as to

what should be done, but that is no different from the
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situation which frequently exists between partners or

joint adventurers. In any event, the lower court

exceeded its power in substituting its own contrary

finding of ^^ control'' for the referee's finding of ^^con-

sultation," rather than control.

The District Court stated (at p. 950) that ^^The

referee gave no weight to the testimony showing

that the Barretts furnished the office space out of

which LaLone worked," and (p. 954) that *'The Bar-

retts furnished the place at which the business wa^

transacted," and that (p. 954) ^^They furnished him a

place to work," and also said that the referee thus

*^ disregarded that portion of the regulation reading:

* Other factors characteristic of an employer are the

furnishing of tools and the furnishing of a place to

work to the individual who performs the services.'
"

The court not only misconstrued the evidence regard-

ing the office space, but even relied upon it as evi-

dencing an employer-employee relationship. In fact,

the full evidence regarding the office space supports

the referee's decision. The evidence shows that F. S.

Barrett & Co. charged the Barrett-LaLone Insurance

Agency for rental and telephone (Tr. 45), and that

these charges for ^* office rent and phone rent" were

paid currently by the Barrett-LaLone Insurance

Agency to F. S. Barrett & Co. (Tr. 51). Thus, it is

not true that the ^^ Barretts furnished office space out

of which LaLone worked," except in the sense that

the venture—Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency (of

which LaLone was a member)—was a lessee or tenant

of F. S. Barrett & Co.
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The District Court concluded that LaLone *Vent to

work for $200 a month'- (p. 953), and that ''he worked

on a definite salary which he drew regardless of

profits'' (p. 954). However, his so-called ''salary"

was not payable and was not paid by F. S. Barrett

& Co. nor by the Barretts, nor with funds supplied

by them, and he was not on their pay roll. This is

obvious from the evidence regarding the only tax re-

turns (Tr. 125-129), and the statements on Form

OAC-1001 (Tr. 93, 95, 99), as well as from the evi-

dence that LaLone's "salary" was payable only from

profits of the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency ("He

was to receive $200 a month out of the net profit,"

Barrett, Sr., testified. Tr. 74. See also Tr. 117),

and was actually paid only by checks of the Agency

drawn upon its own bank account, derived from insur-

ance premiums (Tr. 51), which had to be signed by

LaLone and co-signed by Barrett, Jr., or Barrett, Sr.

(Tr. 40-41). Moreover, on several occasions when the

Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency had insufficient

funds for LaLone 's "salary," the salary of his secre-

tary and other expenses of said Agency, money was

borrowed from the bank upon notes of the Barrett-

LaLone Insurance Agency, signed by LaLone and one

of the Barretts. The loans were repaid out of subse-

quent profits of said Agency (Tr. 51-52). There is

also the significant testimony that on one occasion when

the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency had insufficient

funds to pay "those salaries and those expenditures,"

F. S. Barrett & Co., ''advanced the Barrett-LaLone

Insurance Agency a small amount of money—maybe
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$200 additionar' (Tr. 51). All this clearly shows that

neither the Barretts nor LaLone considered F. S.

Barrett & Co., the corporation, or the Barretts per-

sonally, obligated to pay LaLone 's ** salary," and that

LaLone could look only to the profits of the Barrett

LaLone Insurance Agency for his ** salary", which is

in accordance with the unsigned agreement (Tr. 117).

Thus, it is obvious that the court's statements regard-

ing LaLone 's ^^ salary" erroneously convey the im-

pression that LaLone's ^^ salary"was paid by F. S.

Barrett & Co. or *Hhe Barretts," and '* regardless of

profits," when as a matter of fact they paid him no

salary whatever, and w^ere astute enough to so arrange

matters that neither F. S. Barrett & Co., nor the Bar-

retts personally, would be responsible for his ^^ salary."

That '^salary" was merely a working partner's or

coadventurer's allowance or drawings and not a true

salary in the sense of an employee's remuneration.

The District Court asserted (p. 950) that *'At no

place in his decision did the referee discuss the testi-

mony submitted as to the right of the Barretts to ter-

minate the relationship on their own volition. In this

the referee ignored the provision of the regulation

reading: ^The right to discharge is also an important

factor indicating that the person possessing that right

is an employer.' " A partnership may always be

terminated at the w^ill of any partner, although such

termination may be a breach of the agreement, subject-

ing the withdraw^ing partner to an action for damages.

Assuming, however, that the court referred to a right

to terminate the relationship without breach, this,.
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again, is characteristic of most partnerships and many

joint ventures. In this case, moreover, it is not true

that the parties were free to terminate the relationship

at will. Since the notes LaLone executed to F. S..

Barrett it Co. (Tr. 55-56, 120-123), did not mature

until one year after date, the court's inference (p. 953)

that '^They acquired the right to enforce payment of

those notes by discontinuing the relationship that was

established," is improper. It should be noted that

paragraph 8 of the agreement provided that the Bar-

rett-LaLone Insurance Agency should have a minimum
term of one year or continue until the repayment of

the loan, if that was later, at which time the parties

would determine whether to dissolve or to continue the

venture (Tr. 118). It is true that the agreement was

never formally executed, but the testimony that it

represented the actual relationship that was intended,

coupled with all the other evidence (e. g., the entry

into the relationship, the making of the loan by F. S.

Barrett & Co., the execution and delivery by LaLone

of one-year notes covering said loan, the relationship

for nearly four years, and the circumstances of simul-

taneous dissolution of the relationship and discharge

of the debt by payment from the proceeds of LaLone 's

sale of his insurance accounts (Tr. 58)) is at least

substantial evidence that the relationship was not in-

tended to be terminable at will. Assuming, however,

that it was so terminable, that would be at best a factor

to be weighed by the referee rather than the court in

the light of all circumstances. In consequence, it

cannot be said that the referee erred in giving more
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weight to other factors clearly indicating that LaLone

was a co-owner of the insurance business and not an

employee. It was beyond the power of the court to

re-evaluate the evidence.

Point III

Findings of the Board supported by substantial evidence are

conclusive

Congress has committed the determination of rights

to Title II benefits to the Social Security Board. Sec-

tion 205 (g) of the Social Security Act as amended

contains the usual limitation on judicial review of ad-

ministrative decisions and provides that the ^^ findings

of the Board as to any fact, if supported by substan-

tial evidence shall be conclusive." The Board's de-

termination must be sustained if supported by sub-

stantial evidence. Walker v. Altmeyer, 137 F. (2)

531 (C. C. A. 2) ; Social Security Board v. Warren,

142 F. (2) 974 (C. C. A. 8) ; see Pacific Gas d Elec-

trie Co, V. S. E. C, 127 F. (2) 378, 382 (C. C. A. 9) ;

3Iatter of Morton, 284 N. Y. 167, 30 N. E. (2) 369.

The finality accorded to the Board's findings by the

Act extends to its inferences or conclusions so long as

they are ^treasonably reached upon due consideration"

and after a hearing. Gray v. Powell, 314 U. S. 402;

South Chicago Coal & Dock Co, v. Bassett, 309 U. S.

251, 257; Dolson v. ComW,, 320 U. S. 489, 501-3;

ComW. V. Scottish American Investment Co., Inc., 323

U. S. 119; N. L. R. B. v. Hearst Puhlications, 322

U. S. Ill ; Walker v. Altmeyer, supra; Social Security

Board v. Warren, supra.
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The court below approached the problem as one of

substituting its own inferences and implications from

the evidence for those drawn by the Board. This ap-

proach was plain error. Federal Trade Comm. v.

AJgoma Co,, 291 U. S. 67, 73. In Com'r, v. Scottish

American Investment Co., 323 U. S. 119, the Supreme

Court reversed the Third Circuit which had said (142

F. (2) 401, 403) ^^With no real dispute as to the

facts, the problem here resolves itself into just what

is meant by the language of [Treasury Regulations

101, Article 231 (1)] defining such office or place of

business * * ^.''

The Supreme Court said (323 U. S. at p. 124)

:

The judicial eye must not in the first instance

rove about searching for evidence to support

other conflicting inferences and conclusions

which the judges or the litigants may consider

more reasonable or desirable. It nmst be cast

directly and primarily in support of those made
by the Tax Court. If a substantial basis is

lacking the appellate court may then indulge

in making its own inferences or conclusions or

it may remand the case to the Tax Court for

further appropriate proceedings. But if such

basis is present the process of judicial review

is at an end * * ^ The factual situation is

too decisive and too varied from case to case to

warrant a great expenditure of appellate

court energy in unraveling conflicting factual

inferences.

In the present case the Board's inferences were not

merely permissible from the evidence ; they were com-

pelled. There is no latitude for judicial reexamina-
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tion of those inferences and implications by what

amounts to a judicial trial de novo on the administra-

tive record, particularly under a statute rendering

findings of the Board conclusive if supported by

substantial evidence.

Couii:s may not substitute their judgment even

where the evidentiary facts are undisputed. In Gray

V. PoivclJ, 314 U. S. 402, 412, the court said:

Although we have here no dispute as to the

evidentiary facts, that does not permit a court

to substitute its judgment for that of the Di-

rector * * *. It is not the province of a

court to absorb the administrative functions to

such an extent that the executive or legislative

agencies become mere fact-finding bodies de-

I^rived of the advantages of prompt and definite

action.

In Walker v. AUmeycr, 137 F. (2) 531 (C. C. A. 2)

the district court in a proceeding under Section 205

(g) of the Social Security Act reversed the adminis-

trative fhiding as to employment in a case where the

individual, an attorney, continued to perform services

after qualifying and so was subject to loss of benefits

for months in which he rendered services for wages

of $15 or more (Section 203 (d) (1) of the Act as

amended, 42 U. S. C. 403 (d) (1). The Court of

Appeals, reinstated the Board's decision, saying (pp.

533-534)

:

The facts underlying that decision which were

found on substantial evidence were, of course,

binding upon the district court. That is not

the question this ajDpeal raises. The error into

which the court fell was not that of making
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new and contrary findings bnt of substituting

new and contrary inference of its own from

the found facts which led it to reverse tlie ad-

ministrative conclusion which had been reached

as to the employee status of the i)laintiff.

That sort of action went beyond the power of

the district court to review in such a suit as

this. It was the judgment of the administra-

tive body as to an em})loyer-employee relation-

ship rather than that of the court which the

statute made effective provided that judgment

was based upon conclusions reasonably reached

upon due consideration of all relevant issues

presented after parties in interest had been

given a fair hearing pr a fair opportunity to

be heard upon the facts and the applicable law.

Gray v. Poivell, 314 U. S. 402.

The Supreme Court has consistently given effect

to the administrative judgment in cases like that now
at bar. But it has on various occasions apparently

interchangeably labeled the issue as ^^fact" {Vir-

ginian Rjj. v. United States, 272 U. S. 658, 6(35),

'^ultimate fact'' {Dohson v. Com'r, 320 U. S. 489,

501), '^ ultimate conclusion" or ^ inference of fact"

{N. L. R. B. v. Hearst PiibUcations, 322 U. S. 11,

130), '^factual inferences and conclusions" {ComW
V. Scottish American Inv. Co., 323 U. S. 119, 124).

More recent pronouncements use the fonnula of

** warrant in the record and a reasonable basis in

law" (iV. L. R. B. V. Hearst Pt(bIications, supra, at

131) or require that there be a *' rational basis" for

the administrative conclusion (Rochester Tel. Corp.

V. miited States, 307 U. S. 125, 146). The Dohson

and Scottish American cases indicate that the admin-
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istrative decision, whether called ^'factual inferences

and conclusions," ^^ ultimate fact" or *^ mixed," is not

to be treated as one of law unless the elements of a

decision can be so separated *^as to identify a clear-

cut mistake of law," Dobson case, 320 U. S. at 502.

The present question of administrative discretion

in the field of coverage does not differ materially

from that in the Walker and Warren cases where the

issue related to employee status after entitlement.

Coverage in those cases had an adverse effect on the

individual's right to benefits. In both cases the dis-

trict courts found for claimants on restrictive inter-

pretations of the Act imposed on the Board as mat-

ters of law. In both instances the district courts

had to be reversed. The issue in Gray v. Powell, 314

U. S. 402 was whether, on undisputed facts, the Di-

rector of the Bituminous Coal Division correctly con-

cluded that a railroad was a ^^ producer" within the

meaning of the Bituminous Coal Act; in Shields v.

Utah-Idaho R. R. Co., 305 U. S. 177, whether a rail-

road was an *^ internrban" within the meaning of the

Railway Labor Act; in the Rochester Telephone case

whether one company was under the *^ control" of

another within the meaning of the Communications

Act; and in South Chicago Coal & Dock Co. v. Bas-

sett, 309 U. S. 251, whether a claimant was a

**member of a crew" within the meaning of the

Longshoremen and Harbor Workers Compensation

Act.

The establishment by Congress of an administrative

authority with power to determine a particular ques-

tion manifests an intention to rely on the expert judg-
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ment of a body ^'informed by experience." N. L.

R. B. V. Hearst Publications, 322 U. S. Ill, 130; Illi-

7iois Central R. R. Co. v. Interstate Commerce Com-

mission, 206 U. S. 441, 454; N, L, R. B. v. Hoffman &
Sons, 147 F. (2) 679 (C. C. A. 3). Even if it were an

available alternative a court is not warranted in im-

posing on tlie Social Security Board the construction

of employment it favors. See United States v. Ameri-

can Trucking Ass% 310 U. S. 534, 545, fn. 29. The

Board in dealino- dailv with the old-age and survivors

insurance system and processing upwards of 2,000,000

claims (See Blachly and Oatman, Judicial Review of

Benefactory Action, 33 Geo. L. J. 1, 12, fn. 53) has

developed a familiarity with the background and ob-

jectives of the Act, which cannot well be attained by a

court in a single contact with a segment of a problem

arising under the Social Security Act, in most in-

stances under appealing circumstances inimical to the

fommlation of a workable general rule."^ An inte-

grated national program may be thrown out of gear

by a court desirous of liberalizing but inevitably lack-

ing the flexibility, power, and resources to recast the

regulations so as to achieve a stable nation-wide equi-

librium in a com})licated field. Cf. Rottenherg v.

United States, 137 F. (2) 850, 856 (C. C. A. 1) af-

firmed sub. nom. Yakus v. United States, 321 U. S.

414; Henderson v. Kimmel, 47 F. Supp. 635, 645 (D.

Kan.).

-'^ The finalitv accorded the findin<2:s of the Board bv Section

205 (^) is nieaiiiii<rless if a court may produce a ''desirable" result

in tlie li<rht of a particular record, at the risk of disrupting coordi-

nated administration of the tax and benefit provisions of the Old-

Age and Survivors Insurance program as a contributory system.
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Decisions of the character involved herein go to the

heai^t of the Social Security Act. Affecting the mi-

nute details of administration, they belong uniquely

to the expert tribunal established in the specialized

field. There having been a fair hearing before the

Board, an opportunity for plaintiff to present her

contentions to the administrative tribunal, applica-

tion of the Act in a just and reasoned manner, and a

rational basis in the evidence to support the Board's

conclusion, the court below exceeded its authority in

reversing the judgment of the Board in the field en-

trusted to it by Congress. Rochester Tel. Corp. v.

U^tited States, 307 U. S. 125, 146 ; Gray v. Potvell, 314

U. S. 402; Dobson v. Com'r, 320 U. S. 489; Walker v.

Altmeyer, 137 F. (2) 531 (C. C. A. 2) ; Social Security

Board v. Warren, 142 F. (2) 974 (C. C. A. 8)

.

CONCLUSION

The judgment appealed from clearly exceeded the

proper scope of judicial review, is erroneous, and

should be reversed with instructions to the district

court to enter judgment affimiing the decision of the

Social Security Board.

ResiJectfully submitted.

Francis M. Shea,

Assistant Attoiiiey General.

Edward M. Connelly,

United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellants.

Of Counsel:

Arnold Levy,

Special Assistant to the Attorney General,

Hubert H. Margolies,

Attorney, Department of Justice.



APPENDIX

Statutes and regulations involved

Title II, Section 202 (c) (1) of the Social Security

Act (42 U. S. C. 402 (c) (1)) reads as follows:

Child's insurance benefits

(c) (1) Every child * * * of an individ-

ual wlio died a fully or currently insured indi-

vidual (as defined in section 209 (g) and (h))

after December 31, 1939 * * ^ shall be en-

titled to receive a child's insurance benefit for
each month * * *

Title II, Sections 209 (g) and (h) of the Social

Security Act as amended (42 U. S. C. 409 (g), (h))

provide in pertinent part as follows

:

(g) The term ^^ fully insured individual '^

means any individual with respect to whom it

appears to the satisfaction of the Board that

(1) He had not less than one quarter of cov-

erage for each two of the quarters elapsing after

1936, * * * >^Yi^ ijp to \yii{ excluding the

quarter in which he ^ * * died * * *,

As used in this subsection, and in subsection
(h) of this section, the term ^^ quarter'' and the
term ^^ calendar quarter" mean a period of three
calendar months ending on March 31, June 30,

September 30, or December 31; and the term
** quarter of coverage" means a calendar quar-
ter in which the individual has been paid not
less than $50 in wages. When the number of
quarters specified in paragraph (1) of this sub-
section is an odd number, for purposes of such
paragraj)h such number shall be reduced by
one ^

(45)
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(h) The term ^^ currently insured individual"
means any individual with respect to whom it

appears to the satisfaction of the Board that

he has been paid wages of not less than $50 for

each of not less than six of the twelve calendar
quarters, immediately preceding the quarter in

which he died.

Title II, Sections 209 (a) and (b) of the Social

Security Act as amended (42 U. S. C. 409 (a) and (b))

read in pertinent j)art as follows

:

Definitions

When used in sections 201-209 of this chap-
ter

—

(a) The term ^Svages'' means all remunera-
tion for employment, including the cash value

of all remuneration paid in any medium other
than cash; * * *

(1)) The tenn ^^ employment" means any serv-

ice performed after December 31, 1936, and
prior to January 1, 1940, wliieh was employ-
ment as defined in section 210 (b) of this chap-
ter prior to January 1, 1940 (except service

performed by an individual after he attained the

age of sixty-five if performed prior to January
1, 1939), and any service, of whatever nature,

performed after December 31, 1939, by an em-
ployee for the person employing him, irrespec-

tive of the citizenship or residence of

either ^ * *

Employment had been defined in Section 210 (b)

of the Social Security Act of August 14, 1935 (49 Stat.

620, 625) as follows:

(b) The term ^^em])loyment" means any serv-

ice, of whatever nature, performed by an em-
ployee for his employer ^ * *

Title II, Section 205 (g) of the Social Security Act

as amended (42 U. S. C. 405 (g)) reads as follows:
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Any individual, after any final decision of the

Board made after a hearing to which he was
a party, irrespective of the amount in contro-

versy, may obtain a review of such decision by a

civil action commenced within sixty days after

the mailing to him of notice of such decision or

within such further time as the Board may
allow. Such action shall be brought in the dis-

trict court of the United States for the judicial

district in which the plaintiff resides, or has his

princi])al place of business, or, if he does not

reside or have his principal place of business

within any such judicial district, in the District

Court of the United States for the District of

Columbia. As part of its answer the Board
shall file a certified copy of the transcript of the

record including the evidence ui:)on which the

findings and decision complained of are based.

The court shall have power to enter, upon the

l)leadings and transcript of the record, a judg-

ment affirming, modifying, or reversing the de-

cision of the Board, with or without remanding
the cause for a rehearing. The findings of the

Board as to any fact, if supported by substan-

tial evidence, shall be conclusive, and where a

claim has been denied by the Board or a deci-

sion is rendered under subsection (b) hereof

which is adverse to an individual who was a

I)arty to the hearing before the Board, because
of failure of the claimant or such individual to

submit proof in conformity with any regulation

prescribed under subsection (a) hereof, the

court shall review only the question of con-

formity with such regulations, and the validity

of such regulations. The court shall, on motion
of the Board, made before it files its answer, re-

mand the case to the Board for further action

by the Board, and may, at any time, on good
cause shown, order additional evidence to be
taken before the Board, and the Board shall,

after the case is remanded, and after hearing
such additional evidence if so ordered, modify
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or affirm its findings of fact or its decision, or

both, and shall file with the court any such addi-

tional and modified findings of fact and de-

cision, and a transcript of the additional rec-

ord and testimony upon which its action in

modifying or affirming was based. Such ad-

ditional or modified findiiigs of fact and de-

cision shall be reviewable only to the extent

provided for review of the original findings of

fact and decision. The judgment of the court
shall be final except that it shall be subject to

review in the same manner as a judgment in

other civil actions.

Title II, Section 205 (h) of the Social Security

Act as amended (42 U. S. C. 4505 (h)) reads as

follows

:

(h) The findings and decision of the Board
after a hearing shall be binding upon all in-

dividuals who were parties to such hearing.

No findings of fact or decision of the Board
shall be reviewed by any person, tribunal, or

governmental agency except as herein provided.

No action against the United States, the Board,
or any officer or employee thereof shall be

brought under section 24 of the Judicial Code of

the United States to recover on any claim aris-

ing under this title.

Section 403.804 of Social Security Board Regula-

tions No. 3 '' (Part 403, Title 20, Code of Federal Regu-

lations, 1940 Sup2).) provides:

^ Controlling with resj^ect to services aft^r December 31, 1939.

The Board-s Regulations Xo. 2 (Part 402. Title 20, Code of Fed-

eral Regulations, Section 402.3) control with respect to services

until December. 1939. They contain substantially the same pro-

visions. The first sentence reads : "The relationship between the

person for whom services are perforihed and the individual who
performs such services must as to those services be the legal rela-

tionship of emjDloyer and employee."
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Every individual is an employee if the re-

lationship between him and the person for whom
he y)erforms services is the legal relationship of

em])loyer and employee.
Generally sueh relationship exists when the

person for whom services are performed has
the right to control and direct the individual

who performs the services, not only as to the

result to be accomplished by the work but also

as to the details and means by which that result

is accomplished. That is, an employee is sub-

ject to the will and control of the employer not
only as to what shall be done but how it shall be
done. In this connection, it is not necessary
that the employer actually direct or control

the manner in which the services are performed

;

it is sufficient if he has the right to do so. The
right to discharge is also an important factor
indicating that the person possessing that right
is an employer. Other factors characteristic of

an employer, but not necessarily present in

every case, are the furnishing of tools and the
furnishing of a place to work to the individual
who performs the services. In general, if an
individual is subject to the control or direction
of another merely as to the result to be ac-

complished by the work and not as to the means
and methods for accomplishing the result, he is

an independent contractor. An individual per-
forming services as an independent contractor
is not as to such services an employee.

Generally, physicians, lawyers, dentists, vet-

erinarians, contractors, subcontractors, public
stenographers, auctioneers, and others who fol-

low an inde|)endent trade, business, or profes-
sion, in which they offer their services to the
j)ublic, are independent contractors and not
employees.
Whether the relationship of employer and

employee exists will in doubtful cases be deter-
mined upon an examination of the particular
facts of each case.
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If the relationship of employer and em-
ployee exists, the designation or description of
the relationship by the parties as anything
other than that of employer and employee is

immaterial. Thus, if such relationship exists,

it is of no consequence . that the employee is

designated as a partner, coadventurer, agent,

or independent contractor.

The measurement, method, or designation of

compensation is also immaterial, if the relation-

ship of employer and employee in fact exists.

No distinction is made between classes or
grades of employees. Thus, superintendents,
managers, and other superior employees are

employees. An officer of a corporation is an
employee of the corporation, but a director as

such is not. A director may be an employee of

the corporation, however, if he performs serv-

ices for the corporation other than those re-

quired by attendance at and participation in

meetings of the board of directors.

Treasury Regulations 91, Article 3, applicable to

Title Vlli of \\\^ Social Security Act (Part 401, Title

20, Code of Federal Regulations, Section 401.3)

;

Treasury Regulations 90, Article 205, applicable to

Title IX of the Social Security Act (Part 400, Title

20, Code of Federal Regulations Section 400.205);

Treasury Regulations 106, Section 402.204, applicable

to chapter 9A of the Internal Revenue Code, Federal

Insurance Contributions Act (Part 402, Title 26, Code
of Federal Regulations, 1940 Supp.) ; and Treasury
Regulations 107, Section 403.204, applicable to chapter

9C of the Internal Revenue Code, Federal Unemploy-
ment Tax Act (Part 403, Title 26, Code of Federal

Regulations, 1940 Supp.) define ^'employees" in sub-

stantially the same terms as the corresponding sections

of Social Security Board Regulations 2 and 3.
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BRIEF OF APPELLEE

Upon Appeal From the District Court of the United

States for the Eastern District of Washington,

,
Northern Division,

STATEMENT AS TO JURISDICTION

Appellee instituted this action in the District Court

of the United States for the Eastern District of

Washington, Northern Division, being a resident of

such judicial district, seeking review of the final de-

cision of The Social Security Board of the United

States denying the application of appellee for child's

insurance benefits for four of her minor children



pursuant to jurisdiction conferred by Section 205 (g)

of the Social Security Act.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Appellee controverts the statement of the case made

by appellants in their brief as wholly inadequate and

incomplete. December 7, 1942, appellee duly filed ap-

plication under Title 11 of the Social Security Act as

amended (53 Stat. 1362, 42 U.S.C.A., Sections 401 et

seq.) for child's insurance benefits (Section 202 (c)

of the Act as amended, 42 U.S.C.A. Section 402 (c)

for four of her infant children, based upon the al-

leged status of her husband, Dwight J. LaLone, as an

insured individual under the Act. (Tr. 78) \ February

19, 1943, the Bureau of Old Age and Survivors In-

surance of the Social Security Board denied the ap-

plication (Tr. 115), and thereafter upon reconsidera-

tion affirmed its decision. (Tr. 113). Hearing of the

application before a Referee of the Social Security

Board was requested and granted. The Referee de-

nied the application and held that the wage earner

was not a fullv or currently insured individual for the

reason that he was not an employee within the con-

templation of the statute for a sufficient period prior

to his death (Tr. 8 to 13).

Thereupon appellee appealed to the Appeals Coun-

cil of the Social Security Board. March 11, 1944, the

Appeals Council affirmed the Referee and adopted his

1. References to the printed record will be abbreviated R. . . . References to the photo-

print transcript of the administrative proceei'.ings will be abbreviated Td. . . . Refer-

ences to specific pages of the transcript will be to th^ handwritten numbers appearing

near the top of the outside raaigin.



findings of fact and statement of reasons (Tr. 2).

Under the practice of the Social Security Board this

became the final decision of the Board. Appellee then

brought this action to review the denial of her claims

on behalf of her children, pursuant to the jurisdiction

conferred by Section 205 (g) of the Social Security

Act (R. 2).

Appellee is the widow of Dwight J. LaLone who

died November 20, 1942. He left surviving him be-

sides appellee, five minor children and a sixth child

who was born some time later. The application here

under review is in behalf of the four children named

in the caption of this proceeding.

F. S. Barrett and his son, F. S. Barrett Jr., had

been engaged in the general real estate business in

Spokane for many years prior to the periods here in

question (Tr. 35). While a young man Dwight J.

LaLone worked for them as an insurance salesman

(Tr. 37). That employment terminated when he ob-

tained emplo}anent as manager of the insurance de-

partment for a local bank. When that bank failed

Mr. LaLone purchased the insurance business of the

bank and from that time until August 1, 1938,

decedent conducted said insurance business under the

name of D. J. LaLone Insurance Agency (Tr. 38).

By 1938, his business had reached the point where

he owed substantial sums of money to the companies

he represented for commissions he had collected (Tr.

27). He faced serious consequences unless such could

be paid. Final demands for payment of these sums



aggregating more than Two Thousand ($2,000.00)

had been made upon him (Tr. 32). This was the situ-

ation confronting LaLone in 1938. He then went back

to his old employers, the Barretts. They were willing

to assist their former employee (Tr. 37). They ad-

vanced the necessary funds with which he could make

up his delinquencies (Tr. 40). They took his notes

for such amounts, totaling the sum of $2,039.63 (Tr.

120 to 123). At that time, August 1, 1938, LaLone

went to work for the Barretts for $200.00 a month

(Tr. 28, 34). The LaLone Insurance Agency was then

moved to the office of the Barretts. LaLone was em-

ployed as manager of the combined agencies. The

promissory notes signed by LaLone in favor of P. S.

Barrett & Co. were all due and payable one year from

their respective dates (Tr. 120 to 123). No payment

of principal or interest was made on any of the notes

until May 1, 1942 (Tr. 49). LaLone 's compensation

of $200.00 a month continued from August, 1938, to

May 1, 1942 (Tr. 34). During this period of three

years and nine montlis the Barretts furnished the

place at which the business was transacted. LaLone

adjusted his working hours to comply with the office

hours of the Barretts (Tr. 49, 66). The Barretts de-

cided on the important questions of policy and had

the right to decide on all questions of policy (Tr. 49,

53, 56). In matters of office management the policy

of the corporation prevailed (Tr. 50, 76, 77). The

Barretts considered LaLone as their employee. The

matter of ultimate control of the insurance department

was with the Barretts (Tr. 53).



F. S. Barrett Jr., was the secretary-treasurer of the

corporation, the arrangement between the corporation

and LaLone was made with F. S. Barrett Jr., acting

on behalf of the corporation (Tr. 34). Barrett Jr. em-

ployed the stenographer in the insurance department,

the only other employee besides LaLone (Tr. 42).

In January, 1942, LaLone registered as an employee

with the Social Security Board and received his Social

Security Account Number (Tr. 69, 70). At the same

time Miss Dorothy Ebeling, stenographer in the in-

surance department, also registered and received her

Account Number. Thereafter returns were duly filed

under the Act showing both employees and the wages

paid them. Barrett Jr. had requested from time to

time that such registrations be made and the returns

filed (Tr. 70, 76). Barrett Jr. knew that only salaries

paid to employees should be reported and taxed, and

with that knowledge, coupled with his knowledge of

the relation between his company and LaLone, direct-

ed that LaLone register as an employee and that the

tax thereon be paid (Tr. 76, 77). LaLone personally

registered as an employee.

A memorandum of agreement was prepared by

counsel for Barrett Company but was never executed

by either of the parties thereto (Tr. 53). The copy

of the memorandum introduced in evidence was un-

covered in the Barrett office while some furniture

was being moved, shortly prior to the hearing befoi'e

the Referee (Tr. 39).



On some occasions tliere was not sufficient money

on liand in the agency to pay salaries and expenses as

they became due, and on such occasions money was

either advanced by the corporation to the agency or

borrowed by the agency from the bank (Tr. 51). The

agencies were kept separate during the entire time

for business reasons; that is, the policies written in

the LaLone agency were endorsed ^*U. J. LaLone In-

surance Agency," and the policies written in the Bar-

rett agency were endorsed with the Barrett name (Tr.

43, 54, 66), The bank account was carried in the name

of Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency (Tr. 40). The

arrangement between the parties provided for the

breaking up of the business just as it had been put

together. If it didn't prove satisfactory on either part,

LaLone could pay the Barretts back their money and

take his business (Tr. 48, 57, 59). LaLone had the

right to buy back his business (Tr. 55). The relation

between the Barretts and LaLone remained the same

from August 1, 1938, to May 1, 1942, when the rela-

tionshijD was terminated (Tr. 29).



QUESTIONS INVOLVED

1. "Was Mr. LaLone engaged in employment cov-

ered by the Social Security Act from August 1, 1938,

to May 1, 1942.

Answered by the trial Court in the affirmative.

2. Was the determination by the Social Security

Board that Mr. LaLone was not engaged in employ-

ment covered by the Social Security Act from August

1, 1938, to Ma}^ 1, 1942, warranted by the record in

this case, and did such determination have reasonable

basis in the law.

Answered by the trial Court in the negative.

First, in order to clarifv the issue in this case, no

question is raised in this proceeding about the deter-

mination of other proceedings by the Social Security

Board. Second, the straw-man argument urged by

appellants that self-employed people, employers and

entrepreneurs are not covered by the Social Security

Act, is admitted. Third, let us not beg the question

with the assumption that LaL(me was a self-employed

person during the period in question and then proceed

vigorously to demonstrate that self-employed people

are not covered by the Act.

Appellants apparently admit that the administra-

tive determination in this matter was erroneous, for

on Page 14 of their biief they say, ^'Was the admin-

istrative determination on the undisputed facts that

LaLone was self-employed and not in the employ of

another so erroneous as to permit the District Court



8

to say that as a matter af law it was not supported

by substantial evidence." The matter presented to

the Board was simple, clear-cut and not involved

—

was LaLone in covered employment between the dates

stated above. The Board's determination -of that mat-

ter was either right or wrong; there is no in between

zone.

The definitions of *Svages" and ^ ^ employment " as

set forth in the Act seem to be as broad and inclusive

as carefully selected language could provide. Section

209 (a) of the Social Security Act as amended (Title

42, U.S.C, Section 409 [a] ), provides that "The term

* wages' means all remuneration for employment . . .

"

Section 209 (b) of the Social Security Act as amended

(Title 42, U.S.C, Section 409 [b]), defines employ-

ment as "any service performed after December 31,

1936, and prior to January 1, 1940, w^hicli was em-

ployment as defined in Section 210 (b) of the Social

Security Act prior to January 1, 1940 ..." and with

exceptions not here pertinent, "any service of what-

ever nature, performed after December 31, 1939, by

an employee for the person employing him ..." Sec-

tion 210 (b) of the Social Security Act in effect prior

to January 1, 1940, (49 Stat. 625), defines "employ-

ment" to mean, with exceptions not here pertinent,

"any service of whatever nature performed within

the United States by an employee for his employer."

AVhat does the record disclose as to the relation or

agreement between the Barretts and LaLone. In de-

teTmining whether that relation constituted LaLone



an employier, a partner, a joint venturer or an erar-

ployee, we must consider the situation of the parties

at the time the relationship was created. LaLone was

defunct ; he was in a perilous situation ; the companies

for whom he wrote insurance had not beeji paid the

portions of the premimns due them on their insuring

contracts then outstanding; over $2,000.00 was due

tliese companies ; final demands for payment had been

made upon LaLone; his agency was on the precipice,

yes, but more—he was not indebted on a pure con-

tractual obligation — his indebtednesses represented

monies belonging to those companies when they were

first collected by him. The trial Court in his written

opinion herein accurately stated the position of La-

Lone :

^^In his decision, the referee stresses the value

of LaLone 's insurance assets. To the uninitiated,

such insurance accounts might seem valuable.

With commendable modesty the referee admitted
his unfamiliarity with the insurance business.

The fact is that there is nothing less valuable

than the insurance accounts of an agent who be-

comes delinquent with the companies he repre-

sents. He not only loses the right of representa-

tion of those particular companies, but he loses

tlie opportunity of representation of any other

companies. What he has is worthless. This was
the situation confronting LaLone in 1938." (R.

29).

Clearlv, LaLone at that time was not entirely a

free agent. On the other hand, the Barretts were en-

tirely free in the matter. Their former employee had

left tliem under friendly circumstances, they were will-

ing to assist their former employee and they advanced
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the necessary funds with which he could make up his

delinquencies and they took his notes for such amounts,

as the trial Court found

:

*'It is true that he (LaLone) hoped, as did the
Barretts, that an insurance partnership later

could be evolved. What he had at the time and
during the entire time he was working there was
simply a provisional arrangement whereby he
could become a partner upon the success of the
enterprise." (R. 30).

As Mr. Barrett Jr. testified:

*^0h, no, no, because our understanding pro-

vided for the breaking up of our business just as

it had been put together. If it didn't prove sat-

isfactory on either part he could pay us our money
back and take his business." (Tr. 57).

And again:

'*Well, our understanding was that he could

buy his business—was separate to the extent that

he could buy back the notes and take his busi-

ness." (Tr.'59).

Appellants in their brief on Pages 29 and 30 thereof,

state that ''Both parties considered they were to share

in losses as appears from the fact that LaLone, as

well as one of the Barretts, signed the notes every

time money was borrowed by the Barrett-LaLone In-

surance Agency." Their unwarranted conclusion is

best answered by referring to the transcript on Page

103 thereof we find the following questions propound-

ed to Mr. Barrett Sr., and his answers thereto:

''23. a. What provisions were there in the

partnership agreement for the sharing of losses?

None.
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b. If there was no such provision, what was the
parties' understanding as to the allocation of such
losses ?

F. S. Barrett & Co. would have been responsible
and would have terminated his employment and
kept the business.''

Clearly, the finding of the Court that '^LaLone had

no financial responsibility. If the arrangement had

resulted in debt, the Barretts would have paid the

debt and discharged him" (R. 31, 32) is wholly war-

ranted by the record herein and is typical of the mis-

leading arguments of appellants herein, and is typical

of the way the Referee ignored the record^herein.

Three people were involved: F. S. Barrett Sr., F.

S. Barrett Jr., and D. J. LaLone. All three have un-

equivocally indicated by either word or act that the re-

lationship created was one of employment.

Page 107 of transcript, F. S. Barrett stated to Mr.

Paul F. Johnson, assistant manager of Social Secur-

ity Board office at Spokane, Washington, that:

''He (F. S. Barrett Sr.) stated that he had
always considered Mr. LaLone as his employee;
however, he could offer no explanation as to

whv he had not included Mr. LaLone on their

tax returns."

F. S. Barrett Jr. testified that he considered Mr.

LaLone as their employee (Tr. 76, 77). Further, it

was at his suggestion and direction that Mr. LaLone

register as an employee. Mr. LaLone certainly con-

sidered himself an employee, for he registered under

the Social Security Act as an employee. Thus we see

all of the people involved in this matter considered
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the relation one of employment. What stronger show-

ing of employment could be made than presenting

acts and statements of both employer and employee

that the relationship was that of emplo3^ment? Could

the trial Court have done else but find that the deci-

sion of the Referee was not warranted by the record?

On pages of the transcript 93, 95 and 99, F. S. Bar-

rett filed Statement of Employer covering the years

1938, 1939, 1940, 1941 and 1942, wherein he stated,

*^This is to certify that there has been paid to Dwight

Julian Laljone 539-16-1206 for employment (as de-

fined by ihe Social Security Act as amended) with

the undersigned employer, wages in the amounts in-

dicated during the quarters shown below:" (Then

follows statement of wages paid). These were all

signed by Mr. Barrett Sr., January 15, 1943. Again

on January 27, 1943, Mr. Barrett Sr. stated the ar-

rangement had with LaLone in the following words:

*^Oral understanding that F. S. Barrett & Co.

loan to Dwight LaLone, sufficient money to pay
overdue premiums to his com]:)anies, he to give

his business as security, moving into F. S. Bar-
rett & Co.'s office and managing both his and
Barrett's insurance business, on a salary of

$200.00 per month until he paid his notes. At
that time a new basis was to be agreed upon or

he could take agency of his companies out of F.

S. Barrett & Co.'s office. A bank account was
opened up as Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency,
otherwise the business was maintained under two
separate heads, notes were paid and he moved
out May 1, 1942." (Tr. 104).

In view of the foregoing, it is fair to ask: Why
were all funds deposited to the account of Barrett-
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LaLone Insurance Agency? Why were all notes

signed by one of the Barretts and LaLone? Why
were all checks signed by one of the Barretts and

LaLone? And the answers are certainly obvious: Not

because LaLone had any proprietary interest or pres-

ent ownership therein, but solely for the protection

of the Barretts. What less could have been done by

the Barretts to protect their agency from the condi-

tion in which LaLone then found himself?

Appellants on Pages 35 and 36 of their brief, con-

tend that LaLone did not receive a salary of $200.00

a month as found bv the trial Court, and conclude on

Page 36, ^*That salary was merely a working part-

ner's or coadventurer's allowance or drawings . . .

''

Again we find the answer clear and direct in the rec-

ord:

^^30. a. Did the employee receive a salary for

the services he performed in addition to his draw-
ing account, if any?

No drawing account permitted. $200.00 month-
ly salary onl.y.

b. Was he allowed a drawing account?

No." (Tr. 103).

Appellants laboriously attempt to show on Page 37

of their brief that the Barretts could not terminate

the relationship. Never has an unexecuted, disregarded

and forgotten instrument l)een accorded more weight

than in the decision of the Referee in this proceeding

and in the brief of appellants herein. Nothing could

be more definite than the statement of F. S. Barrett

Sr. that in event of loss, P. S. Ban-ett & Co. would
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have been responsible and would have terminated his

employment and kept the business.

Truly, the ix^cord bulges with proof that LaLone

was an employee from August 1, 1938, to May 1, 1942,

and only by the most tortuous interpretation of the

statute and regulations and disregard of the record

herein, could it be concluded that LaLone was not

engaged in employment covered by the Act. The find-

ing and decision of the Referee clearly does not have

warrant in the record.

Appellants argue ^'Findings of the Board supported

by substantial evidence are conclusive."

The applicable statute provides in part as follows:

^^Any individual . . . may obtain a review of

such decision by a civil action commenced within
sixty days . . . Such action shall be brought in

the District Court of the LTnited States for the

judicial district in which the plaintiff resides . . .

The Court shall have power to enter, upon the

pleadings and transcript of the record, a judg-

ment affirming, modifying or reversing the deci-

sion of the Board, with or without remanding the

cause for a rehearing. The findings of the Board
as to any fact, if supported by substantial evi-

dence, shall be conclusive, ..."

Title 11, Section 205 (g) of the Social Securitv

Act as amended (42 U.S.C.A. 405 [gl).

ObvioUvSly, this statute does not require of the

Court an idle act, but substantially provides for re-

view as therein provided. The wording of the statute

itself answers the argument of appellants when it

says, ^* if supported by substantial evidence." If we

follow the reasoning of appellants, we come to this
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situation : Any determination by administrative board

is final and conclusive if a hearing has been accorded

and there is a scintilla of evidence to sustain the de-

cision. The directives of the statute are plain; the

findings of the Board as to any fact, ultimate or in-

termediate, are only conclusive if supported by sub-

stantial evidence. In order for the Court to accord

the review provided by the statute, the Court must

examine the evidence to see if there is substantial

evidence to support the Board's findings.

A similar question was presented to the District

Court of Pennsylvania, and the Court there held:

*' Counsel for the Board contend that there is

substantial evidence to support the Board's find-

ing that Morgan was * neither actually nor con-

structively paid wages in the period from January
1, 1937, to April 9, 1938,' and that, consequently,

this Court cannot consider this question in this

proceeding. Were this merely a finding of fact,

we would agree with this reasoning. 42 U.S.C.A.
Par. 405 (g). However, this finding represents

a determination by the Board that the facts do
not constitute payment of w^ages within the mean-
ing of the Social Security Act as a matter of law.

As such it is subject to review by this Court."

Morgan ik Social Senirity Board
45 Fed. Supp. 349, 352.

The trial Court has found that the Referee reached

his conclusion without regard to the statute or regu-

lations and that his determination has no reasonable

l)asis in law, and that his factual analvsis has no war-

rant in the records. The Supreme Court of the United

States has passed upon this question

:
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^*It is contended that tlie applicable statutes

and regulations properly interpreted, forbid the
method of calculation followed by the Tax Court.
If this were true^ the Tax Court's decision would
not be 4n accordance with law' and the Court
would be empowered to modify or reverse it.

Whether it is true is a clear-cut question of law
and is for decision by the Courts.''

Dobson v: Commissioner of Internal Uevewue
320 IT. S. 489, 492, 493.

In Gray v. Powell, 314 U. S. 402, relied upon by

appellants herein, the Supreme Court in its decision

showed that the administrative decision was made in

accordance with law and did have warrant in the rec-

ord, and the reversal of the Circuit Court was on the

merits as shown by the record, that the finding of the

Commission that the railroad was a '^producer" within

the meaning of tlie Bituminous Coal Act, did have

warrant in the record and was in accordance with

law.

Walker v. AUmeyer, 137 F. (2) 531 (C. C. A. 2),

cited by appellants, is fuither proof of the point that

the decision of the administrative Board must be in

accordance with law and supported by substantial evi-

dence. There tlie Court thoroughly justified the ad-

ministrative decision and showed that Walker was

engaged in employment and was receiving compensa-

tion in excess of $15.00 a month, and therefore not

entitled to primary benefits under the Act. Stated

conversely, the ruling of the Court was sim^Dly that

the conclusion of the trial Couit was not supported

bv the evidence in the case.
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A similar question was presented to the Circuit

Court of Appeals, Seventh Circuit in Carroll v. Social

Security Board, 128 F. (2) 876, and that Court on

Page 881, said:

*'The puipose which Congress had in mind, and
the object sought to be accomplished by the enact-

ment before us, is aptlv stated in Ilclvering r.

Davis, 301 U. S. 619, 640, 672; 57 S. Ct. 904; 8]

L. Ed., 1307; 109 A.L.R., 1319, et seq. That it

should be liberally construed in favor of those
seeking its benefits cannot be doubted. While the

question before us is not free from doubt—^in fact,

it is extremely close—we are of the opinion that

plaintiff was an employee of the l)ank within the

meaning of the Act and entitled to its benefits.

In so concluding we have not overlooked the

statutory admonition which binds us to accept the

finding of the Social Security Board if supported
by substantial evidence. The rule Ls not control-

ling, however, because the Board's decision, that

plaintiff was not an employee within the terms
of the Act, is without substantial support. More-
over, in our view, the rule has no application be-

cause the question presents an issue of law rather

than of fact. It involves a construction of the

Act."

CarroU w Social Seciiriti/ Board
128 F. (2) 876, 881.

In every case the reviewing Court has examined the

evidence and determined whether or not tlie admin-

istrative decision has warrant in the record and is sup-

ported by substantial evidence. The trial Court in

this case did just that thing and found that the admin-

istrative decision did not have warrant in the record

and was not supported by substantial evidence and

was contrary to law. Appellants apparently seek a
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rule requiring the Courts to blindly accept the admin-

istrative determination. Such is not the law.

The Referee's decision in this matter and statement

of reasons therefor adopted by the Social Security

Board as its decision not containing any findings of

fact, but being as the trial Court has stated, "sl con-

fused mixture of findings, inferences and conclusions,"

certainly cannot nullify the judicial review provided

by statute. United States v. Carolina Freight Car-

riers Corp., 315 U. S. 475, 488, 489; Florida v. United

States, 282 U. S. 194, 215.

Appellants disclaim all intent to narrowly construe

the Act or to be dominated by restrictive common law

tests in determining coverage, but the decision of the

Referee on the record herein speaks more positively

to the contrary.

The Circuit Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit

had before it a comparable question and said:

**It will avail us little to consider whether the

master-servant relationship existed between the

appellee and its home workers under the common
law, and we may assume that the well-considered

opinion of the District Judge was, in that respect,

sound, even though there are cases, both state and
federal, which hold that an employer-employee
status may exist when there is no continuous

supervision over the work if there is such super-

vision as the nature of the work requires . . . We
are dealing, however, with a specific statute

which, like the National Labor Relation's Act,

29 U.S.C.A. Sec. 151 et seq., is of a class of regu-

latory statutes designed to implement a public,

social, or economic policy through remedies not

onlv unknown to the common law but often in
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derogation of it ... If the Act presently consid-
ered, express!}' or by necessary implication, brings
within the scope of its remedial and regulatory
provisions, workers in the status here involved,

we are not concerned with the question whether
a master-servant relationship exists under other-

wise applicable rules of the common law."

Walling r. American NeedJecrafts Inc.,

139 F. (2) 60, 63.

In United States r. Vogue Inc., Judge Parker,

speaking for the Court said:

**
. . . To allow the employer to escape the con-

sequences or to deny the employee the benefits

of the employer-employee relationship because of

agreement that payment be made on the piece

work basis or because the employee exercises the

judgTuent with respect to the work that is expect-

ed of any skilled worker, is to lose the substance

of the relationship in attempting to apply certain

rule of thumb distinctions in the law of indepen-

dent contractors. The fact that one having an
independent calling, such as a cook, gardener, or

chauffeur, exercises a judgment as to the work
done free of detailed direction by his employer
does not make him an independent contractor

11

And again Judge Parker says:

''The Social Security Act, like the Fair Labor
Standards Act, . . . , and the National Labor Re-
lations Act, . . . , was enacted pursuant to a public

policy unknown to the common law; and its a])-

plicability is to be judged rather from the ])ur-

poses that Congress had in mind than from com-

mon law rules worked out for detc^rmining tort

liability ..."

United Staffs v. Vof/ue Inc.

145 F. (2) 609, 610, 611.
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In National Labor Felations Board v, Hearst Pub-

lications Inc., 322 U. S. Ill, the Court discussed the

questions here presented and stated the guiding rules

which are determinative of this proceeding:

At Page 124 the Court said

:

^^ Whether, given the intended national uni-

formity, the term ^employee' includes such work-
ers as these newsboys must be answered primarily
from the history, terms and purposes of the leg-

isUition. The woi'd 4s not treated by Congress
as a word of art having a definite meaning . . .

'

Rather 'it takes color from its surroundings . . .

(in) the statute where it appears,' . . . and derives

meaning from the context of that statute, which
4nust be read in the light of the mischief to be
corrected and the end to be attained,' ..."

and on Page 126,

^^The mischief at which the Act is aimed and
the remedies it offers are not confined exclusive-

ly to 'employees' within the traditional legal dis-

tinctions separating them from independent con-

tractors.' Myriad forms of service relationship,

with infinite and subtle variations in the terms
of emplo}Tiient, blanket the nation's economy.
Some are within this Act, others beyond its cov-

erage. Large numbers will fall clearly on one side

or on the other, by whatever test may be applied.

But intermediate there will be many, the inci-

dents of whose employment partake in part of the

one group, in part of the other, in varying pro-

portions of weight. And consequently the legal

pendulum, for purposes of applying the statute,

may swing one way or the other, depending upon
the weight of this balance and its relation to the

special purpose at hand."

The Court on Page 128 deals with the economic

situation particularly pertinent to this case:
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*'In short, when the particular situation of
emplo^^nent combines these characteristics, so that
the economic facts of the relation make it more
nearly one of employment than of independent
business enterprise with respect to the ends sought
to be accomplished by the legislation, those char-
acteristics may outweigh technical legal classi-

fication for purposes unrelated to the statute's

objectives and bring the relation within its pro-
tections."

continuing on Page 129 with further reference to the

economic situation:

*'In this light, the broad language of the Act's
definitions which in terms reject conventional
limitations on such conceptions as * employee,'
* employer,' and Mabor dispute' leaves no doubt
that its applicability is to be determined broadly,

in doubtful situations, by underlying economic
facts rather than technically and exclusively by
previously established legal classifications ..."

and the Court on Page 132 of the opinion after state-

ment of the record states that ^^The record sustains

the Board's findings and there is ample basis in the

law for its conclusion.
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CONCLUSION

The Trial Court correctly found that D. L. LaLone

was in covered employment under the Act during the

time here involved and the finding of the Social Se-

curity Board to the contrary was not sustained by

substantial evidence and was not warranted by the

record and not in accordance with law. The judgment

of the trial Court is correct and should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

JUSTIN C. MALONEY,
Attorney for Appellee.
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PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Til is reply brief is submitted, pursuant to stipula-

tion herein, primarily for the purpose of repelling the

attacks on appellants' statement of the case and

renewed attacks on the referee's findings. For a more

complete statement of the facts, reference is made

to a])pellants' main brief and the referee's decision

herein (Tr. 8-13).

THE FACTS

It is plain from the record that LaLone possessed

a valuable asset in his insurance business and that the

Barretts were actuated by business motives rather than

sentiment in associating themselves with him. Even

the testimony of Mrs. LaLone (Tr. 27, 32) does not

bear out appellees' statement that final demands from

the insurance companies had been received and that

LaLone 's condition was desperate. In fact, his valuable

insurance business was quite attractive to the Barretts,

who entered into an arms-length nmtual benefit agree-

ment with anticipation. At least the referee might

have so found. The record is without support for the

court's assertion (R. 29), quoted at page 9 of appellees'

brief, that what LaLone had in 1938 was worthless, or

appellees' assertion that LaLone 's agency w^as on the

precipice. Moreover, at the inception of the venture in

1938, according to Barrett, Jr.'s, testimony, it was con-

sidered that LaLone 's insurance accounts were worth

$3,600. He testified that F. S. Barrett & Co., by lend-

ing $2,148 (the actual amount was $2,039.63) to La-



Lone, put into the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency

only a ''little'' more than the $1800 for which F. S;

Barrett & Co., under the terms of the agreement, could

buy a one-half interest in the Barrett-LaLone Insur-

ance Agency after repayment of the notes, and that he,

Barrett, therefore felt that their interest was "a little

over half way" (Tr. 57-58). In May 1942, LaLone

sold his insurance business to a third party for $5,000,

paid off the notes, and dissolved the Barrett-LaLone

Insurance Agency (Tr. 31-32, 47-48, 58, 129). Ap-

pellees are unable to reconcile the sale of his business

in 1942 for $5,000 with its worthlessness in 1938. In

view of the absence of any evidence to show a change

in value and the failure to show profits between 1938

and 1942 (Tr. 49), if the insurance accounts were

worth $5,000 in 1942, they were worth at least $3,600 in

August 1938. Indeed, appellees' counsel stated at the

hearing before the referee, and Barrett, Jr., agreed

with him (Tr. 54), that the venture never proved as

successful as the parties had hoped.

Appellees fail to explain the rental charged the Bar-

rett-LaLone Insurance Agency by the Barrett Co. (Tr.

45, 51) and the maintenance of separate accounts (See

Tr. 48 Barrett, Jr.
—''We kept our records entirely

separate with the idea that we could split if the agree-

ment didn't prove out to be all right, and we pooled

the money into one account and handled it all under

the Barrett-LaLone Agency account."). And Mrs.

LaLone testified (Tr. 27)—"I don't know whether they

ever came to an agreement or not. But he was to

manage Mr. Barrett's insurance agency in connection

with his own."



The failure to file social security tax returns until

1942, as well as the fact that money was never bor-

rowed for the ^* benefit of the insurance company''

without LaLone's signature (Tr. 52) also require ex-

})lanation if the theory of an employment status with

F. S. Barrett & Co. is to be accepted.

At page 5 and elsewhere in appellees' brief much

is made of the evidence that in January, 1942, LaLone

I'egistered as an employee wdth the Social Security

Board and received a Social Security Account Number,

and that at the same time Miss Ebeling also registered

and received her Account Number, and that thereafter

'^returns were duly filed under the Act showing both

employees and the wages paid them," etc. Attention

might have been drawn to Lalone's contemporaneous

insistence that coverage under the Social Security Act,

was not sought on the basis that he and Miss Ebeling

were employees of the corporation, F. S. Barrett & Co.,

which had its owTi Employer's Identification Number

distinct from that obtained by Barrett-LaLone Insur-

ance Agency (Tr. 124), but on the contrary, on the

basis they were employees of the latter. And it might

well have been added that those returns (filed only

for the first quarter of 1942, and for the second quarter

up to May 15, 1942), alleged that LaLone and Miss

Ebeling were employees of Barrett-LaLone Insurance,

not of F. S, Barrett <& Co. (Tr. 125-129). Likewise,

it is liighly selective to omit to mention that LaLone,

in obtaining for Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency a

separate Employer's Identification Number, exj)ressly

informed the Bureau of Internal Revenue that he and

F. S, Barrett c& Co. tvere co-otvners of fJic Barrett-



LaLone Insurance Agency (Tr. 124), and subsequently

filed (attached to the tax return for the second quarter

up to May 15, 1942), a notice of dissolution of the part-

nership of the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency (Tr.

129). Appellees neglect to refer to the highly signifi-

cant testimony that the Social Security taxes in connec-

tion with the only two returns that were filed, w^ere

^^paid out of the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency,

not Barrett and Company" (Barrett, Sr., at Tr. 70).

F. S. Barrett & Co. never reported either LaLone or

Miss Ebeling as its employee. Even after the death of

LaLone and the filing of the application for benefits,

a statement was made out on January 14, 1943, in the

course of the usual administrative inquiry, on Social

Security Board Form OAC-1001, signed ^^Barrett-La-

Lone Ins. Agency, by F. S. Barrett," purporting to

show w^ages paid LaLone not by F, S. Barrett & Co.,

hut by Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency as the al-

leged employer (Tr. 93, 95, 99). It becomes obvious

that both the Barretts and LaLone, in their belated

efforts to obtain coverage, were proceeding upon the

legally untenable theory that a working member of

a partnership or joint adventure, drawing a so-called

*^ salary," is not only a partner or joint adventurer,

but may also simultaneously be an employee of the

partnership or joint adventure—in this case, the Bar-

rett-LaLone Insurance Agency. See cases cited at

page 22 of Appellants' brief, e, g., Aiiten v. Michigan

Unemployment Compensation Commission, 17 N. W.
(2d) 249, (1945), in which the Supreme Court of

Michigan held, in accordance with the general rule,

that "^ working partner, receiving a stated salary," is



not an **emj)loyee.'' See also Ellis v. Joseph Ellis &
Co,, (1905) 1 K. B. 324; ^^ Working Partners/' by Joel

Brown, Chairman, Idaho Industrial Accident Board,

Bulletin No. 432, Bureau of Labor Statistics, United

States Department of Labor, 1926, pages 190-195.

The appellees' rhetorical questions (Brief, pp. 12-

13), ''Why were all funds deposited to the account

of Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency? Why were all

notes signed by one of the Barretts and LaLone ? Why
were all checks signed by one of the Barretts and

LaLone?", ignore the essentials of the situation. It

was not merely that LaLone^s powers were circum-

scribed. By the same token the Barretts could not

sign checks on the Agency funds without the cosigna-

ture of LaLone (Tr. 40-42), nor sign notes of the

Agency without the cosignature of LaLone (Tr. 51-

52). It would be strange, indeed, for the signature of

a mere employee to be requisite to the effectiveness

of a check or note signed by the supposed sole owner

of the business. Clearly, the requirement of counter-

signature by the representative of one member of the

venture, the corporation, and by the other, LaLone, was

important evidence of joint control and ownership.

At pages 10-11 of appellees' brief, the finding of the

court below that, ''LaLone had no financial i*esponsi-

bility. If the arrangement had resulted in debt, the

Barretts would have paid the debt and discharged him"

(R. 32) is adopted. LaLone put at the hazard of the

business not only his accounts but also his personal

liability on the notes to the bank, not to mention his

liability on the notes to F. S. Barrett & Co., Inc. The
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appellees, like the lower court, rely upon a statement

in the Questionnaire to the effect that there was no

provision for sharing of loss and that F. S. Barrett &
Co. would have been responsible for losses. However,

the statement is disproved by the evidence before the

referee. In the first place, there are the promissory

notes totalling $2,039.63, which LaLone executed to

F. S, Barrett & Co. He would have remained liable if

he had not discharged them. Then, too, there is the

testimony regarding notes given for bank loans ob-

tained by Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency, which

LaLone was required to sign along with one of the

Barretts. Those notes were later repaid to the bank

out of the subsequent profits of the agency (Tr. 51-52),

but LaLone, as w^ell as Barrett, would have been liable

if losses had been suffered. Indeed, under the pro-

visions in the unsigned agi*eement, which Barrett testi-

fied ^^ clearly reflects the relationship that was in-

tended" by Barrett and LaLone (Tr. 39), it was con-

templated that LaLone would share in losses as well

as in profits. Finally, as pointed out in footnote 19

at page 29 of appellants' brief, the absence of an ex-

press agreement to share losses is not inconsistent with

a joint venture.

For the rest, appellees have misconceived the scope

of judicial review and consequently have been per-

suaded (pp. 7-8 of their brief) that

Appellants apparently admit that the admin-

istrative determination in this matter was er-

roneous, for on page 14 of their brief they say,

'^Was the administrative determination on the

undisputed facts that LaLone was self-employed



and not in the eni})loy of another so erroneous

as to permit the District Court to say that as a

matter of law it was not supi)orted by sub-

stantial evidence.''

Nothing could be further from appellants' intention

nor wider of the mark. The language is convention-

ally used in the cases (see, e. g,, in addition to the

cases cited in Point III of appellants' main brief,

Gardner v. Railroad Retirement Board, 148 F. (2d)

935, 937 (C. C. A. 5)) to signify that in the ^inter-

mediate" cases {National Labor Relations Board v.

Hearst Publications, 322 U. S. Ill, 124, 126) there is

an "\\\ between" zone where the Board's determina-

;tion, reasonably reached, is conclusive. Cf, Merrill

V. Fahs, 324 U. S. 308, 310. Our formulation of the

question, when read in context, intended to refer (1)

to the high degree of conclusiveness accorded to the

administrative determination, and (2) to the limited

scope of judicial review\ Far from admitting, even

arguendo, that the administrative determination in

this case was erroneous in any sense our j)osition in

the brief was clear. *^By the standard of substantial

support in the evidence, the Board's finding must

be upheld. Actually it is supported by the great

preponderance of the evidence'' (p. 16; see also

pages 30, 39).

What appellees have attempted to do in their coun-

tier-statement and argument is precisely what not even

the courts, in reviewing administrative determinations,

have the power to do, to *^pick and choose bits of evi-

dence to make findings of fact contrary to the findings

of the Commission." Federal Trade Commission v.

Educational Society, 302 U. S. 112, 117.
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Repeated assertions in appellees' brief, such as those

at page 4, that ^^LaLone went to work for the Barretts

for $200 a month/' that ^^LaLone's compensation of

$200 a month continued from August, 1938, to May 1,

1942," and similar statements elsewhere in appellees'

brief, are unaccompanied by the disclosure that the

$200 w^as payable only from net profits of the Barrett-

LaLone Insurance Agency.

Inasmuch as appellees' brief (pp. 12-13) has quoted

from and referred to some of Barrett, Sr. 's, answers in

the Partnership Questionnaire, it should be emphasized

that Barrett filled out the questionnaii-e in connection

wdth the ex parte, routine investigation of appellees'

application for benefits by the Bureau of Old-Age and

Survivors Insurance of the Social Security Board.

Later, after the Bureau had disallowed the claim and

appellees obtained a hearing before a referee, the Bar-

retts appeared as witnesses for appellees and gave

more complete testimony. The referee and the Ap-

peals Council obviously had discretion to give greater

credence to the testimony (and other evidence) at the

hearing. For example, the same Barrett who had

signed the Questionnaire, including statements therein

purporting to show that LaLone was paid a ''salary"

of $200 a month, testified at the hearing that ''He

[LaLone] was to receive $200 a month out of the net

profit'' {Tr, 74). This is in accordance with what the

unsigned agreement provides (Tr. 117), and what was

actually done in practice.

The information contained in the questionnaire is

inconclusive. Taken as a whole, it is at least as favor-

able to the inference that LaLone retained a propri-
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etaiy interest in his insurance business and was co-

owner of the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency, from

whose funds his so-called ^^salary'^ was paid, as to the

inference that he was an employee. The excerpt

quoted from the questionnaire at page 12 of appellees'

brief, clearly shows that F. S. Barrett & Co. did not

purchase LaLone's business. On the contrary, it

stat; s that said Company made him a loan on his busi-

ness as security^ and admits that, ^^A bank account

was opened up as Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency,

otherwise the business was maintained under two sepa-

rate heads, notes were paid and he moved out May 1,

1942." This disproves the contention that F. S. Bar-

rett & Co. purchased LaLone's insurance business and

that he merely had the right to buy it. Significantly,

question 14 (Tr. 102), as to w^hether income tax returas

^ Tlie statements at page 6 of appellees' brief that if the arrange-

ment between the parties ''didn't prove satisfactory on either part,

LaLone could pa}- the Barretts back their money and take his busi-

ness," and that "LaLone had the right to buy back his business,"

imply that F. S. Barrett & Co. purchased LaLone's business.

Actually F. S. Barrett & Co. merely made a loan and all that the

Barretts claimed was that his business was secuHty for the

repayment of the loan. See also Barrett, Jr.'s, testimcmy: "Well,

I think we had advanced him certain moneys as a mortgage on

his business" (Tr. oS).

By selling his business in 1942 without previous consultation

with the Barretts, LaLone convincingly evinced his own under-

standing of the interest he retained. He did not proceed on the

assumption that in 1088 he had no alternative but to sell his busi-

ness to F. S. Barrett & Co. and become its employee. His action

is consistent only witli the view that he had solved his problem by

obtaining a loan and pooling the insurance businesses under his

management. In forming a joint venture it is not unusual for

the coadventurers to retain title to specific assets but to pool their

use and share profits in agreed proportions. The Barretts never

questioned his power or right to dispose of his i)roprietary interest.
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were made on a partnership basis, was left unanswered

in the questionnaire. But at the hearing it was dis-

closed that F. S. Barrett & Co. returned only one-half

of the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency profit as

income (Tr. 71-74).

The contention at page 4 of appellees' brief that the

Barretts had ultimate control of the insurance depart-

ment finds its answer in the evidence, which shows

consiiltation among the Barretts and LaLone on ques-

tions of policy, not control or direction by the Barretts

over LaLone. (Appellants' brief, pages 33-34.)

The statements at page 12 of appellees' brief to the

effect that, ^^F. S. Barrett filed Statement of Em-

ployer," purporting to show payment of wages to

LaLone and that, ^^ These were all signed by Mr. Bar-

rett, Sr., January 15, 1943," neglect to mention that

these Statements (Tr. 93, 95, 99) were not signed by

Barrett, Sr., as President of F. S. Barrett & Co., but in

behalf of Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency, and that

Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency is the only name

given LaLone 's alleged employer. They inadvertently

convey the impression that the Statements (not filed

until the processing of appellees' ajoplication for bene-

fits), purport to show payment of wages by F. S. Bar-

rett & Co. In fact they show payment hy Barrett-La-

Lone Insurance Agency, and carry the latter 's Identi-

fication Number. The ^^ Statement of Employer" is

the capstone in the proof that the Barretts did not con-

sider LaLone an employee of F. S. Barrett & Co.

It is plainly an overstatement to say that the record

*^ bulges" with proof that LaLone was an employee.

The overwhelming weight of the evidence shows that
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LaLone retained his proprietary interest in his insur-

ance business during the i)eriod of combined or

**pooled^' operation of his insurance business and the

much smaller insurance business of F. S. Barrett &
' Co. The Barretts and LaLone considered that he was

co-owner of the Barrett-LaLone Insurance Agency.
r

Such evidence as refers to him as an employee, does not

do so on the theory that he was an employee of F. S.

P Barrett & Co., but rather on the theory that his so-

called *^ salary" from the profits of the Barrett-LaLone

L Insurance Agency could qualify him as having the

status of an employee of Barrett-LaLone Insurance

Agency under the Social Security Act, notwithstanding

his proprietary interest.

A trace of editorial slant is perhaps inevitable in any

concise statement of the case. It is respectfully sub-

mitted that the referee's decision is unusually free of

this failing.

CONCLUSION

The judgment appealed from should be reversed and

the decision of the Social Security Board reinstated.

Respectfully submitted.

Edward M. Connelly,

United States Attorney,

Arnold Levy,

Special Assistant to the Attorney General,

Hubert IT. Margolies,

Attorney, Department of Justice,

Attorneys for Appellants.

U. S. GOVERNMENT PRINTING OFFICE: l»4B
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UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, Appellee

BRIEF OF THE UNITED STATES

Upon Appeal from the United States District Court

for the District of Oregon.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

The appellant, Chester W. Crum, is serving a 25-

year sentence in a United States penitentiary as a

result of conviction on a i)lea oi' guilty in the United

States District Court for the District of Oregon in

Criminal Case No. C-ir)153. The indictment is the

identical indictment brought before this llonoi-able

Court for consideration in the case ol' Lloyd II. Rark-



2 Chester W. Crum vs.

doll, Appellant y. United States of America, Appellee,

No. 10858, in Avhieli case an opinion was rendered and

filed the 15tli day of February, 1945. The indictment

charged appellant with the violation of Section 88,

Title 18, U.S.C.A., in Count One. Counts Two and

Three charged liolations of Section 588b (a) and

(b), Title 12, U.S.C.A., and Count Four was the viola-

tion of Section 588c, Title 12, U.S.C.A.

On July 28, 1937, the appellant appeared in Court

in person and by his attorney, Hugh L. Biggs, there-

upon withdrew his plea of not guilty and entered a

plea of guilty as charged in the indictments

On July 29, 1937, the appellant appeared in Court

with his attorney and Avas sentenced by the Court as

follows : On Count One, imprisonment for a period

of two years ; Count Two, imprisonment for a period

of twenty years; Count Three, imprisonment for a

period of 25 years and a fine of $1,000; Count Four,

imprisonment for a term of 25 years; the said terms

of imprisonment all to run concurrently.

This Court has held that Section 588b defines one

crime only and that only one sentence can be imposed.

See Lloyd II. Barkdoll v. United States of America,

Xo. 10858, February 15, 1945.
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doll, Appellant v. United States of America, Appellee,

Xo. 10858, in which case an opinion was rendered and

filed the 15th day of February, 1045. The indictment

charged appellant with the violation of Section 88,

Title 18, IJ.S.C.A., in Count One. Counts Two and

Three charged violations of Section 588b (a) and

(b). Title 12, U.S.C.A., and Count Four was the viola-

tion of Section 588c, Title 12, U.S.C.A.

On July 28, 1037, the appellant appeared in Court

in person and by his attorney, Hugh L. Biggs, there-

upon AvithdreAv his plea of not guilty and entered a

plea of guilty as charged in the indictment.

On July 20, 1037, the appellant appeared in Court

with his attorney and was sentenced by the Court as

follows : On Count One, imprisonment for a period

of two years ; Count Two, imprisonment for a peiiod

of twenty years; Count Three, imprisonment for a

period of 25 j^ears and a fine of $1,000; Count Four,

imprisonment for a term of 25 years ; the said terms

of imprisonment all to run concurrently.

This Court has held that Section 588b defines one

crime only and that only one sentence can be imposed.

See Lloyd H, Barkdoll v. United Stales of America,

No. 10858, February 15, 1045.
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QUESTION INVOLVED

The only question which, appears to be involved is

whether or not the appellant is now entitled to any

relief by way of this appeal, in view of the fact that

he is now serving a valid sentence for the offense

charged in Count Four of the indictment.

ARGUMENT

It is now clear that appellant should have been

sentenced for only one term of imprisonment under

Counts Two and Three of the indictment. Count Four

of the indictment charged that in committing the of-

fense of bank robbery, the defendant forced a person

to accompany him Avithout the consent of that person.

The sufficiencv of the indictment on this count and

the fact that it charges a separate and distinct crime

is established by the decision of this Court in the case

of Lloyd 11. BarkdoUy Appellant v. United States of

Americay Appellee, wherein the Court states:

"We hold this indictment sufficient as the crime
is described as 'that in committing said offense

the said defendants did force Oscar Iloverson to

accomj)any them, without his consent'."

We respectfully submit that that decision is conti-oll-

iijg in this case as it pertains to the same indictment

and (he same offense, J>arkd()ll and the Appellant

Crum having been co-defendants in that prosecution.
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CONCLUSION

In conclusion, we submit that the appellant's ap-

peal should be dismissed without any relief Avhatso-

ever.

Respectfully submitted,

Carl C. Donaugh^

United States Attorney for the

District of Oregon.

Mason Dillard^

Assist. United States Attorney.

7/30/45—40
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Chester W. Crum vs.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion^ we submit that the appellant's ap-

peal should be dismissed without any relief whatso-

ever.

Kespectfully submitted,

Carl C. Donaugh^

United States Attorney for the

District of Oregon.

Mason Dillard^

Assist. United States Attorney.

7/30/45—40



No. 11000

^nttet) States

Circuit Court of appeals^
jTor ttie ^tntti Circuit.

RUBY M. BROWN,
Appellant,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
and FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION,

Appellees.

Qtranj^cript of Eecorb

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon V^
J

I f^ W\

MAY - 9 1945

PAUL P, O BRIEN,^
CLERK

Rotary Colorpnnt, 661 Howard Street, Son Fronctsco





No. 11000

(Mniteti s>tates

Circuit Court of 9ppeate
Jfor tf)e Mintti Citcuit.

RUBY M. BROWN,
Appellant,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
and FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION,

Appellees.

^rans^cript of Eecorti

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oreqon

Rotary Colorpnnt, 661 Howard Street, Son Francisco





INDEX

[Clerk's Note: When deemed likely to be of an important nature,
errors or doubtful matters appearing in the original certified record
are printed literally in italic; and, likewise, cancelled matter appear-
ing in the original certified record is printed and cancelled herein
accordingly. When possible, an omission from the text is indicated by
printing in italic the two words between which the omission seems
to occur.]

PAGE

Affidavit of James C. Uezeiidorf 70

Affidavit in Opposition to Motion to Amend
Pre-Trial Order and for a New Trial 72

Amended Pre-Trial Order 2

Appeal

:

Certificate of Clerk to Transcript of Record

on ns

Notice of 78

Order re Pi'inting of Exhibits in Record on 117

Statement of Points and Designation of

Record on 115

Stipulation re Printing of Exhibits on. . . . 116

Certificate of Clerk to Transcript of Record on

Appeal 113

Designation of Record, Statement of Points and 115

Exhibits for Defendant:

Pre-Trial 34—Shortages by Years 79

Exhibits for Plaintiff:

Pre-'l>ial 39—Certified Copy of Resolution

of Board of Directors Adopted Sept. 1,

1942 79



U INDEX

Exhibits for Plaintiffs— (Continued)

Pre-Trial 40—Agreement, Aug. 29, 1942,

Between Harney County National Bank
and the Federal Deposit Insurance Cor-

poration 88

Findings of Fact and Conchisions of Law. 54

Judgment Order 66

Motion to Amend Pre-Trial Order and for a

New Trial 68

Affidavit in Opposition to 70

Names and Addresses of Attorneys of Record . . 1

Notice of Appeal 78

Opinion 32

Order Denying Plaintiff's Motion for New Trial

and to xlmend the Pre-Trial Order 77

Order re Printing of Exhibits in Record on Ap-

peal 117

Pre-Trial Order, Amended 2

Motion to Amend 68

Statement of Points and Designation of Record

on Appeal 115

Stipulation re Printing of Exhibits on Appeal . . 116



NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF ATTORNEYS
OP RECORD

HAMPSON, KOERNER, YOUNG & SWEET,
DEY, HAMPSON & NELSON,
JAMES C. DEZENDORF,

800 Pacific Bldg., Portland, Ore.

For Appellant.

HUNTINGTON, WILSON & DAVIS,
W. M. HUNTINGTON,
ROLAND DAVIS,

514 Porter Bldg., Portland, Ore.,

For Appellee.

ROBT. F. MAGUIRE,
R. R. BAILEY,
MAGUIRE, SHIELDS & MORRISON,

Pittock Block, Portland, Ore.,

For Inter-pleaded Defendant.



2 Riibj/ M. Bi^oivn vs.

In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon

Civil No. 1412

RUBY M. BROWN,
Plaintiff,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant,

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION,

Inter-pleaded Defendant.

AMENDED PRETRIAL ORDER

The above entitled action came on regularly for

a pretrial conference on Monday, July 19, 1943,

at 10:00 o'clock A.M., before the Honorable James

Alger Fee, one of the Judges of the above entitled

court. Plaintiff appeared in person and by and

through Dey, Hampson & Nelson and James C.

Dezendorf, her attornevs. The Defendant New
York Life Insurance Company did not appear. The

Defendant Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,

the Inter-pleaded Defendant, appeared by and

through Maguire, Shields, Morrison & Biggs and

Robert F. Maguire, its attorneys. The formal pre-

trial conference adjourned Tuesday, July 20, 1943,

with the understanding that an effort would be

made by the parties to agree upon a pretrial order.

Thereafter, the parties duly waived a jury and the i
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case was set for trial for Wednesday, August 11,

1943, at 10:00 oVloek A.M.

AGREED PACTS

I.

Plaintiff is a resident of the State of Oregon.

Defendant New York Life Insurance Company is

a corporation organized and existing under the laws

of the State of New York and is authorized and

licensed to engage in the life insurance business in

the Stat-e of Oregon. The Harney County National

Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon, [26*] is a national

banking association, organized and existing under

the laws of the United States. The Federal De-

posit Insurance Corporation is a corporation or-

ganized under and by virtue of the laws of the

United States. The matter in controversy exceeds,

exclusive of interest and costs, the sum of $3,000.00.

11.

On November 27, 1935, New York Life Insur-

ance Company, in consideration of the payment of

the premiums therein specified, issued its policies

of life insurance, Nos. 12748022 and 12748023, on

the life of Edward N. Brown, in which policies

Plaintiff, Ruby M. Brown, was named as beneficiary.

In each of the said policies the New York Life T'

surance Company agreed to pay to Ruby M. Brown,

the beneficiary, the sum of $10,000.00 upon receii^t

of due proof of the death of Edward N. Brown.

*Page numbering: appearing at foot of page of original certified
Transcript of Record.
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III.

Edward N. Brown died on or about August 6,

1942, and due proof of his death was thereafter

furnished to and received by New York Life In-

surance Company and by reason thereof there be-

came due and payable to Ruby M. Brown, the bene-

ficiary, upon said policies, the total sum of $20,-

582.00.

IV.

New York Life Insurance Company, on or about

August 18, 1942, issued, and on August 21, 1942,

delivered to Plaintiif two checks, whereby it di-

rected th-e United States National Bank of Port-

land (Oregon) to pay to the order of Plaintiff the

total sum of $20,582.00.

V.

Plaintiff presented said checks to The United

States National Bank of Portland (Oregon) for

payment on September 4, 1942, and the said Bank

failed and refused to pay Plaintiff any sum thereon

and advised her that New York Life Insurance Com-

pany had previously coimtermanded payment

thereof. [27]

VL
Prior to September 4, 1942, when said checks

were presented for payment, the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation notified the New York Life

Insurance Company that it had information indi-

cating that the money used in payment of premiums

on the above mentioned policies were funds of the

Harney Comity National Bank of Burns, Burns,
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Oregon, and Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

notified New York Life Insurance Company that

it would claim the right to receive the proceeds of

said i)olicies of insurance. New York Life In-

surance Company thereupon stopped payment on

the two checks above mentioned.

VII.

New York Life Insurance Company does not have

nor claim any right or interest in or to the proceeds

of said policies of insurance and it is entitled to be

discharged from any further liability to either

Plaintiff or the Federal Deposit Insurance Cor-

poration upon payment into the registry of this

Court of the sum of $20,582.00, less its costs and

disbursements herein incurred and such sum as

may he allowed to it for attorneys' fees.

VIII.

Edward N. Brown paid the premiums due on the

New York Life Insurance Company policies issued

on his life bv checks, w^hich said checks were re-

ceived at the Boise, Idaho, office of the New York

Life Insurance Company on the following dates:

Policy No. 12748022 Policy No. 12748023

November 29, 1935 February 6, 1936

October 21, 1936 January 11, 1937

September 11, 1937 November 3, 1937

December 2, 1938 December 31, 1938

October 21, 1939 October 21, 1940

December 28, 1940
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IX.

All of the checks forwarded by Edward N. Brown
in payment of premiums and received by the New
York Life Insurance Company were [28] drawn

upon the Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Burns, Oregon, except the payment of December

28, 1940, upon policy No. 12748022, and it has been

impossible to determine upon what Bank said check

was drawn.

X.

The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on November 29, 1935, in pay-

ment of the first premium on policy No. 12748022

was drawn upon Edward N. Brown's personal ac-

count in the Harney County National Bank of

Burns, Burns, Oregon, and was charged against

his account on December 2, 1935. The records of

the bank disclose credits to said account and con-

tain corresponding deposit slips, carrying nota-

tions as follows: October 31, 1935, $160.00, salary

from said bank for the month of October, 1935;

November 30, 1935, $160.00, salaiy from said bank

for the month of November, 1935; December 2,

1935, $150.00, currency. The ledger sheet balance

on December 2, 1935, was $349.56, composed of said

items.

XL
The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on October 21, 1936, in payment

of the second premium on policy No. 12748022 was

drawn upon Edward N. Brown's special account in

the Harney County National Bank of Burns, Burns,
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Oregon, and was cliarg<id against his account on

October 23, 1936. The records of the bank disclose

credits to said account and contain corresponding

deposit slips, carrying notations as follows: Oc-

tober 16, 1936, $300.00, D. W. Williams; (1) Oc-

tober 13, 1936, $45.00, Paul Jackson, repayment;

(2) October 3, 1936, $336.12 (American Aircraft

$250.00, currency $50.00, transfer from personal ac-

count $36.12); (3) September 2, 1936, $1154.88

(transfer from personal account $145,48, Blyth &
Co. $1,009.40); xiugust 24, 1936, $242.85, J. R.

Jenkins & Son. The ledger sheet balance on Oc-

tober 23, 1936, was $2045.00, composed of said items.

Neither Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

nor Plaintiff [29] have any direct evidence to ex-

plain items (1) and (2), except that with respect

to that portion of item (2) ''American Aircraft

$250.00", it is admitted that a check in that amount

drawn by American Aircraft Co. and payable to

Edward N. Brown was received by him on that date.

With respect to that portion of item (2) ''transfer

from personal account $36.12", it is acbuitted that

there is a charge against Edward N. Brown's per-

sonal account in the Harney County National Bank
of Bui'us, Burns, Oregon, on October 3, 1936, in

the amount of $36.12, at which time the records of

the Bank disclose credits to his personal account

and contain corresponding deposit slips, carrying

notations as follows: September 30, 1936, $195.00,

September salary; August 31, 1936, $195.00, August

salary. The ledger sheet balance on October 3, 1936,

in his personal account was $204.72, composed of
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said items. With respect to that portion of item

(3) ^^Blyth & Co. $1,009.40'^ Blyth & Co.'s records

show that it remitted to Edward N. Brown this

amount as the proceeds of the sale of a Miller and

Lux $1,000.00 bond. It is admitted that there was no

Miller and Lux bond among the assets of the Bank.

With respect to that portion of item (3) '^August

24, 1936, $242.85, J. R. Jenkins & Son", it is ad-

mitted that checks totaling that amount w^ere on

that date deposited to the credit of Edward N.

Browns' account and said checks were charged

against the accounts of the drawers.

XIL
The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on September 11, 1937, in pay-

ment of the third premium on policy No. 12748022

was drawn upon Edward N. Brown's personal ac-

count in the Harney County National Bank of

Burns, Burns, Oregon, and was charged against

his account on September 14, 1937. The records

of the Bank disclose credits to said account and

contain corresponding deposit slips, carrying no-

tations as follows: August 31, 1937, $225.00, sal-

ary from said Bank for the month of x\ugust, 1937

;

July 31, 1937, $225.00, salary for the month of July,

1937; Jime 30, 1937, $225.00, salary for the month of

June, 1937. The ledger sheet balance on September

14, 1937, was $533.49, composed of said items.
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XIII.

The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company [30] on December 2, 1938, in

payment of the fourth premium on policy No.

12748022 was drawn upon Edward N. Brown's per-

sonal account in the Harney County National Bank
of Burns, Burns, Oregon, and was chai'ged against

his account on December 5, 1938. The records of

the bank disclose credits to said account and con-

tain corresponding deposit slips, carrying notations

as follows: (1) December 5, 1938, $175.00, from

Edward N. Brown grain account; November 30,

1938, $250.00, salary from said Bank for the month

of November, 1938. The ledger sheet balance on

December 5, 1938, was $313.06, composed of said

it^ms.

With respect to item (1), it is admitted that

Edward N. Brown's grain account shows a charge

against that account in that amount on that date.

XIV.

The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on October 21, 1939, in payment

of the fifth premium on policy No. 12748022 was

drawn upon Edward N. Brown's special account in

the Harney County National Bank of Burns, Burns,

Oregon, and was charged against his account on

October 24, 1939. The records of the Bank disclose

credits to said account and contain corresponding

deposit slips, carrying notations as follows: Oc-

tober 24, 1939, $350.00, Kidwell and Caswell; (1)

October 23, 1939, $656.90 (cash $250.00, Kidwell and
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Caswell $406.90). The ledger sheet balance on Oc-

toger 24, 1939, was $366.78, composed of said items.

That portion of item (1) ''Kidwell and Caswell

$406.90'' represents the amount received by Edward

N. Brown from Kidwell and Caswell on October 23,

1939, for the sale of livestock on the North Portland

Market. (See Paragraph E.)

XV.
The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on February 6, 1936, in payment

of the first premium on policy 12748023 was drawn

upon Edward N. Brown's special account in the [31]

Harney County National Bank of Bums, Burns,

Oregon, and was charged against his account on

February 10, 1936. The records of the Bank dis-

close credits to said account and contain correspond-

ing deposit slips, carrying notations as follows:

(1) February 10, 1936, $64.00, Pete Obiaque; (2)

February 5, 1936, $144.94, transfer from Edward

N. Brown's personal account; (3) February 5, 1936,

$247.88, Burns Lodge; December 31, 1935, $278.76,

checks. The ledger sheet balance on February 10,

1936, w^as $661.20, composed of said items.

With respect to item (1), it is admitted that on

or about February 10, 1936, Pete Obiaque paid Ed-

ward N. Brown $64.00 for rental of some pasture

land, owned or controlled by Edward N. Brown.

With respect to item (2), it is admitted that on

February 5, 1936, there is a charge against Edward

N. Brown's personal account for $144.94, at vvhich

time the records of the Bank disclose credits to
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liis personal account and contain coiTesponding dc-

l)0sit slips, carrying notations as follows: January

30, 1936, $195.00, January salary; December 31,

1935, $75.00, dividends on Harney County National

Bank stock; December 31, 1935, $165.00, December

salary. The ledger sheet balance on February 5,

1936, in his personal account was $331.91, composed

of said it-ems. With respect to item (3), it is ad-

mitted that on or about February 5, 1936, Burns

Lodge gave Edward N. Brown $247.88 to purchase

city bonds to be used in payment of street liens

against property ow^ned by it and that Burns Lodge

subsequently received from Edward N. Brown the

city bonds.

XVI.

The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on January 11, 1937, in payment

of the second premium on policy No. 12748023 was

drawn upon Edw^ard N. Brown's special account in

the Harney County National Bank of Burns, Burns,

Oregon, and was charged against his account on

Januarv 13, 1937. The records of the Bank disclose

credits to said account and contain corresponding de-

posit [32] slips, carrying notations as follows: (1)

December 31, 1936, $124.40 (dividends from Harney

County National Bank Stock $75.00, transfer from

his personal account $49.40) ; December 16, 1936,

$300.00, D. W. Williams; October 13, 1936, $45.00,

Paul Jackson, repayment; October 3, 1936, $336.12

(American Aircraft $250.00, currency $50.00, trans-

fer from Edward N. Brown personal account
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$36.12) ; September 2, 1936, $1,154.88 (transfer from

Edward N. Brown personal account $145.48, Blyih

& Company $1,009.40); August 24, 1936, $242.85,

J. R. Jenkins & Son. The ledger sheet balance

on January 13, 1937, was $1,872.20, composed of said

items.

With respect to item (1), it is admitted that on

December 31, 1936, Edward N. Brown rec-eived and

deposited in his special account $75.00 received as

a dividend on stock owned by him in the Harney

County National Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon.

With respect to that portion of item (1) 'transfer

from his personal account $49.40'', it is admitted

that on that date there is a charge against Edward

N. Brown's personal account for $49.40, at which

time the records of the Bank disclose credits to his

personal account and contain corresponding deposit

slips, carrying notations as follows: December 31,

1936, $195.00, Decemb-er salary; November 30, 1936,

$195.00, November salary; October 31, 1936, $195.00,

October salary. The ledger sheet balance on De-

cember 31, 1936, in his personal account was $260.82,

composed of said items. For explanation of the

balance of the items see explanation in paragraph

XI above, since the items are the same.

XVII.

The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on November 3, 1937, in payment

of the third premium on policy No. 12748023 was

drawn upon Edward N. Brown's personal account

in the Harney County National Bank of Burns,



New York Life Inmirance Co., et al 13

Burns, Oregon, and was cliarged against his ac-

count on November 8, 1937. The records of the

Bank [33] disclose credits to said account and con-

tain corresponding deposit slips, carrying notations

as follows: (1) November 3, 1937, $109.38 (Hearst

Publication Bond $100.00, coupons $9.38) ; October

30, 1937, $225.00, salary from said Bank for the

month of October, 1937; October 21, 1937, $240.00,

currency. The ledger sheet balance on November 8,

1937, was $541.41, composed of said items.

With respect to item (1), it is admitted that

this represents the proceeds of the sale of a Hearst

Publication Bond, which had been given to Edward

N. Brow^n some years before by Plaintiff and Leon

M. Brown.

XVIII.

The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on December 31, 1938, in pay-

ment of the fourth premium on policy No. 12748023

was drawn upon Edward N. Brown's personal ac-

count in the Harney County National Bank of

Bums, Burns, Oregon, and was charged against

his account on January 3, 1939. The records of the

Bank disclose credits to said account and contain

corresponding deposit slips, carrying notations as

follows: December 31, 1938, $75.00, dividends on

stock of Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Burns, Oregon; December 31, 1938, $250.00, salary

from said bank for the month of Dec^nnber, 1938.

The ledger sheet balance on January 3, 1939, was

$309.81, composed of said items.
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XIX.
The check received by the New York Life In-

surance Company on October 21, 1940, in payment

of the fifth premium on policy No. 12748023 was

drawn upon Edward N. Brown's personal account

in the Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Burns, Oregon, and was charged against his ac-

count on October 24, 1940. The records of the Bank

disclose credits to said account and contain corre-

sponding deposit slips, carrying notations as fol-

lows: (1) October 23, 1940, $833.00, P. M. Beck

check; (2) October 22, 1940, $2,437.60, Thomas and

Frank Mahon check. The ledger sheet balance on

October 24, 1940, was $3191.35, composed of said

items.

With respect to items (1) and (2), it is admitted

that they [34] represent the proceeds of livestock

sold by Edward N. Brown, which were deposited

to his personal account.

Note as to Paragraphs X to XIX, inclusive:

Defendant Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

does not admit that any of said credit items were

proper items of credit or that on the dates they were

recorded that Edward N. Brown had any actual

credit balance in said Bank.

XX.
Federal D(*i)osit Insurance Cor])oratioii has ])ai(l

all of said Bank's customers' or dej^ositors' accounts

in which shortages were claimed, irrespective of

whether the alleged loss was more or less than

$5,000.00.
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XXI.
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation filed a

claim in the Estate of Edward N. Brown, deceased,

on or about February 11, 1943, in the amount of

$388,669.26 as the amount determined due as of

January 1, 1943, reserving the right to file an amend-

ed claim, should further investigation disclose fur-

ther debits and credits which should be added to the

claim. On or about the 28th day of July, 1943,

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation filed a

supplemental claim in the Estate of Edward N.

Brown, deceased, in the amount of $24,182.09.

XXII.

Continuously between the date the policies of

insurance were issued and the death of Edward N.

Bro^vn, he was employed by the Harney County Na-

tional Bank in the following capacities, during the

times hereinafter mentioned

:

Assistant Cashier, January 12, 1932, to January

11, 1938. Director, January 7, 1936, to August 6,

1942. Vice President, January 11, 1938, to August

6, 1942, and had been employed by said Bank as

teller and in other capacities at least in 1927 and

until January 12, 1932. [35]

That the directors of said Bank, being entirely

ignorant of any wrongful acts, embezzlements, mis-

appropriations or defalcations on the part of the

said Edward N. Brown of any of the property or

assets of the Bank or of any breaches of trust of

duty on his part, authorized and fixed his salary in

the monthly sums mentioned in said deposit slips as



16 Ruby M. Brown vs.

salaries and authorized him to draw on said

amounts.

XXIII.

Edward N. Brow^n took his own life on August

6, 1942, while the National Bank Examiners were

making an examination of the Harney County Na-

tional Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon.

XXIV.
At all times herein concerned, the Harney County

National Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon, paid to

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation the neces-

sary assessments, so that its depositors' accounts

were insured by Federal Deposit Insurance Cor-

poration in accordance with the provisions of 12

U.S.C.A., Section 264.

[Notation] : Amendment allowed F 8/3/43.

STIPULATED EVIDENCE

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation con-

tends that the following facts are material on the

question of whether the j)ayments of premiums on

said insurance policies were paid by funds or prop-

erty of the Harney County National Bank

:

A.

That during the period of Edward N. Brown's

employment by the Bank he embezzled and misap-

propriated funds and {)roi)erty of the bank in the

follow^ing amounts:

$17(),9()3.0{) (Exhibit 26)

()7,r)()().()0 (Kx]iibit2())

1,480.00 (Exhibit 26)
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142,726.20 (Exhibit 26)

17,143.61 (Exhibit 30)

7,038.48 (Exhibit 30)

1,752.16 (Exhibit 35)

500.00 (Exhibit 37)

1,674.22 (Exhibit 36)

B.

That of said sums the said Edward N. BroT\Ti

embezzled and misappropriated funds and property

of the Bank by means of false entries, withheld

deposits made by depositors of said Bank, and by

unauthorized and wrongful withdrawls from credits

and accounts of depositors in said Bank as fol-

lows: [36]

A Net Amt. of

:

Prior to the Year 1935 $ 5,869.25

In the Year 1935 12,893.21

In the Year 1936 3,031.52

In the Year 1937 17,996.84

In the Year 1938 40,982.14

In the Year 1939 93,203.44

In the Year 1940 39,780.33

In the Year 1941

:

Embezzlements $93,272.41

Restitutions 93,762.40

Excess of

restitutions 489.99 489.99

In the Year 1942 10,319.61

Total $223,586.35

(Exhibit 34)
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C.

That by reason of an agreement with the Harney

County National Bank dated August 29, 1942, tlie

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation acquired,

and ever since said date has been the owner of, the

assets of the Bank, including all contracts, rights,

claims, demands and choses in action or causes

whatsoever, pending causes of action, and judg-

ments, whether known or unknown, which the said

Bank owned, held or had, or ow*ns, holds or has

against any person or persons whomsoever, includ-

ing among other things all those against its offi-

cers, directors or employees or their sureties arising

out of any action of any such persons in respect

to the Bank or its property, or arising out of the

nonperformance or manner of performance of their

duties, and any claims against any person for money

or property of the Bank or for damages which the

Bank may have or own.

The plaintiff admits the execution of the docu-

ment but denies that the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation succeeded or became subrogated to th(

rights of the Bank or its depositors. [37]

Plaintiff does not concede the truth of the facts

alleged in jjaragraphs A to C, admits that Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation could j)i-oduce evi-

dence to su])port the facts as alleged, waives their

production, contends that said evidence is incoiu-

j)etent, irrelevant and immaterial, and, if it is ad-

mitted at the trial oi* considered by the Court, the

Plaintiff requests that the following facts be ad-

mitted and considered. If the foUowiiig facts are
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admitted and considered, Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation admits that Plaintiff could produce

evidence to support the facts as alleged, waives their

production, and contends that said evidence is in-

competent, irrelevant and immaterial.

A.

Plaintiff and her husband, Leon M. Brown, dur-

ing the period herein concerned, loaned various

sums of money to Edward N. Brown, and made

gifts to him as follows

:

February 27, 1930, Leon M. Brown made a gift

of $2300.00.

May 3, 1930, Leon M. Brown loaned $339.00.

September 20, 1938, Leon M. Brown loaned

$500.00.

April 22, 1939, Leon M. Brown loaned $500.00.

September 19, 1939, Leon M. Brown loaned

$500.00.

May 29, 1940, Leon M. Brown loaned $500.00.

July 15, 1940, Leon M. Brown loaned $500.00.

September 14, 1940, Plaintiff loaned $500.00.

September 20, 1940, Plaintiff loaned $500.00.

July 11, 1941, Leon M. Brown loaned $500.00.

All of the loans were repaid by Edward N. Brown

before his death.

V.

From time to time while Edward N. Brown was

employed at the Bank (the exact dates not being

known), Edward N. Brown sold for Plaintiff* and

Leon M. Brown the following securities: [38]
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Bonds

$1,000.00 Minneapolis, St. Paul & St. Marie

Railway.

$1,000.00 Great Northern Railway General Mort-

gage Bond.

$1,000.00 Miller and Lux.

$500.00 American Telephone and Telegraph.

Stocks

17 shares Masonic Building Association.

2 shares Seattle Chamber of Commerce.

2 shares Northwestern Electric Company.

2 shares Hearst Publications, Inc.

Plaintiff and Leon M. Brown received all the

proceeds from the sale of the secuiities above men-

tioned before the death of Edward N. Brown.

C.

Between 1935 and the time of his death, Edward

N. Brown acquired ranches in the vicinity of Bums,

Oregon, by purchase and on contracts, as follows:

[39]

November 16, 1935: Acquired Porter-Field tract

from Harney County Sheriff, paid $73.93.

Mai'cli 9, 1938 : Acquired assignment of mortgage

upon the Sieloff ranch from Felix Urizar, paid

$175.00.

March 14, 1938: Acquired portion of Sieloff ranch

by deed from Frank Kueny, paid $10.00.

April 5, 19:58: Accjuired Denstedt ranch from the

State Land P>()ar(l, ])aid $H)0.00.

April 13, 1938: Acquired (U)zad and Denstedt

ranches fi'om Federal Land Bank, Spokane, paid

$700.00.
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August 22, 1938 : Acquired Allen field ranch from

State Land Board, paid $135.26.

February 11, 1939: Acquired Catterson ranch

from Federal Land Bank, Spokane, paid $150.00.

April 15, 1939: Acquired Max Sieloff and Kath-

erine Sieloff land from Sheriff of Harney County,

paid $750.00.

July 13, 1940: Acquired Lee Hand ranch, paid

$10.00.

September 16, 1940: Acquired 718 acre ranch

from the Sheriff* of Harney County, paid $360.00.

November 28, 1940 : Acquired Bolton ranch, paid

Federal Land Bank $300.00.

December 28, 1940: Acquired ranch from J. R.

Rush, paid $100.00.

June 23, 1941: Acquired ranch from Francis

Griffin, paid $600.00.

July 12, 1941 : Acquired four tracts of land north

of Lawen, Oregon, paid Sheriff of Harney County

$312.50.

July 26, 1941: Acquired Dr. Hand Catterson

ranch, paid Lee Hand $10.00.

December 8, 1941 : Acquired Sam Goodman ranch,

paid Clarence Fitchett $500.00.

D.

Edward N. Brown operated the ranches and prop-

erties above set forth, raised crops and ran live-

stock thereon from 1935 until [40] his death. He
also rented and operated the following properties

from plaintiff* and Leon M. Brown:
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Year Description Crop Annual Rental Paid

1940-41 Jordan ranch (Ruby M.

Brown 14 interest) Hay $400.00

1940-41 Valley Ranch (M. Brown &
Sons, Inc., owner) Hay, grain

pasture $400.00

On July 12, 1935, Edward N. Brown entered into

a contract with Bessie K. Hillman for the purchase

of 2560 acres of land near Burns. The total pur-

chase price to be paid was $3508.84, which was paid

in various installments until September 2, 1939,

when the contract was paid hi full and a deed to

the property w^as executed to Edward N. Brown.

This property w^as subsequently sold to the United

States on February 27, 1940, for a consideration of

$10,060.00, which was represented by Government

check mailed to Edward N. Brown from Portland,

Oregon, on March 16, 1940. [41]

E.

During the period commencing October 4, 1938,

until the end of 1940, Edward N. Bro^vn sold live-

stock on the North Portland market through Kid-

well and Casw^ell, North Portland Commission JMer-

chants and remittances were made to him by Kid-

well and Caswell as follows:

October 24, 1938 $ 492.92

November 21, 1938 257.86

November 21,1 938 320.85

December 19, 1938 477.86

January 23, 1939 688.74

Fe})ruary 6, 1939 1,052.10

March 1, 1939 524.93
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March 13, 1939 368.39

April 10, 1939 662.78

September 6, 1939 716.30

October 2, 1939 524.81

October 9, 1939 502.11

October 16, 1939 893.63

October 19, 1939 480.91

October- 19, 1939 406.90

October 26, 1939 466.57

November 7, 1939 10.55

December 20, 1939 341.30

January 24, 1940 264.67

July 2, 1940 279.78

September 23, 1940 793.94

October 7, 1940 984.49

October 24, 1940 428.73

November 18, 1940 72.75

November 19, 1940 345.10

December 2, 1940 1,709.53

December 16, 1940 1,284.80

$15,353.30

F.

During the period herein involved, Edward N.

Brown maintained in the Harney County National

Bank a commercial account, known as a ^\c^rain

account." Attached hereto, marked Exhibit ^'A",

is a photostatic copy of the ledger cards coverincr

said account, showing the debits, credits and bal-

ances carried in said account.
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G.

During the period herein involved, Edward N.

Brown had a savings account in the Harney County

National Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon. At-

tached hereto, marked Exhibit '^B", are photo-

static copies of the ledger cards covering said ac-

count, showing the debits, credits [42] and bal-

ances carried in said account. This account was

built up by Plaintiff and Leon M. Brown after

the birth of Edward N. Brown, by gifts to him

until the account reached $1300.00 on July 2, 1931,

after which all deposits and withdrawals w^ere made

by Edward N. Brown. ^

H.

During the period herein involved, Edward N.

Brown maintained in the Harney County National

Bank a commercial account, knowTi as a '^ steer

account." Attached hereto, marked Exhibit '*C", is

a photostatic copy of the ledger cards covering said

account, showing the debits, credits and balances

carried in said account. [43]

CONTENTIONS OF THE PARTIES

A.

Federal Deposit Insurance Coi^poration contends

that the premiums paid by Edward N. Brown upon

the jDolicies of insurance on his life issued by New
York Life Insurance Company were paid from and

out of the funds of the Harney County National

Hank of P)urns, Burns, Oregon, winch said funds

were wrongfully and unlawfully embezzled, a})])ro-
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priated and converted by tlie said Edward N. Brown
and by reason thereof Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation became and were the owners of said

policies of insurance and is entitled to a judgment

and decree awarding to it the full sum deposited

in the registry of this court by New York Life

Insurance Company.

B.

Plaintiff denies that Edward N. Brown paid the

premiums upon the policies issued on his life by

New York Life Insurance Company from funds

embezzled, or misappropriated from the Harney

County National Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon,

and contends that she, as the beneficiary under

both of said policies, is entitled to a judgment and

decree awarding to her the full sum deposited in

the registry of this court by New York Life In-

surance Company.

C.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation con-

tends that it is the owner of all the assets, property,

choses and rights of action and suit owned or pos-

sessed by the Harney County National Bank of

Burns and that it is the owner of all the proceeds

arising out of policies of insurance 12748022 and

12748023, being $10,327.00 and $10,255.00 respec-

tively.

ISSUES OF PACT TO BE DETERMINED

I.

To what extent, if at all, the premiums on the
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policies were paid with funds wrongfully embezzled

or misappropriated from the [4-1] Harney County

National Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon?

II.

What were the sources from which the premiums

on policies were paid to the insurance company?

ISSUES OF LAW TO BE DETERMINED

I.

Whether Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

succeeded to or became subrogated to the Bank's

rights, if any, as against the proceeds of the insur-

ance policies upon the life of Edward N. Brown.

XL

Whether the various premium payments were

paid with funds belonging to Edward N. Brown or

with funds wrongfully embezzled or misappropri-

ated from the Harney County National Bank of

Burns, Burns, Oregon.

III.

. Are the items of deposit which are constituted

by salary paid by the Bank to Brown and placed

in his account, moneys belonging to Brown which

constitute an actual credit to the account?

IV.

If Brown, at the time of drawing said salaries,

was guilty of embezzlement, misai:)propriations, de-

falcations or other breacli of trust in his dealings
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with the Bank, was he entitled to any compensation

from the Bank?

V.

If it be held that Brown was not entitled to any

compensation from the Bank, were the funds that

he drew as compensation funds wrongfully em-

bezzled, misappropriated or converted from the

Bank ?

VI.

Must the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

show that any particular item of deposit in Brown's

account was embezzled or the proceeds of embezzled

funds or property before it is entitled [45] to the

benefit of any particular premium payment or is it

entitled to the benefit of any and all premium pay-

ments unless plaintiff shows that any particular

items deposited in Brown's account in fact be-

longed to Brown and were not embezzled from the

Bank or the proceeds of embezzled funds?

VII.

Does the fact that BrowTi embezzled and misap-

propriated or wrongfully converted moneys, funds

or property belonging to the Bank automatically

extinguish, without a charge or set off by the Bank,

any items of deposit of his own funds in any ac-

count upon which checks in payment of premiums
were drawn?

VIII.

If it be found that Brown had embezzled, misap-

propriated or wrongfully converted funds or prop-

erty of the Bank, exceeding the amount of any
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items of deposit in his accounts, at or before the

time of the charging of any check for premiums,

whatever may have been the source of such items,

is the Defendant entitled to the benefit of the

premium payment so made?

IX.

If no evidence appears as to the source of funds

used in payment of the last premimn, who is en-

titled to the benefit of that premium payment ?

X.

If the total of the deposits in any account at any

time is composed of Brown's o\\ti funds and funds

of the bank, who is entitled to the benefit of the

premium payment made from said account if the

premium payment be less than the amount of his

own funds; if it be more than his own funds'?

XI.

It is conceded that the Oregon Supreme Court

in Janseu v. Tyler, 151 Ore. 268, has announced

a rule which, if applicable to this case, would award

to Defendant that proportion of the proceeds [46]

of the policies which the premiums paid from funds

or property embezzled, misappropriated or wrong-

fully converted by Brown from th(^ Bank bear to

the total premiums paid.

The Defendant contends tluit if in any case

]>rown had a balance in his account made u]) in

part of funds or pro])erty misa])])ro])riated, em-

bezzled or \vr(»ngfully converted from the l)ank and
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part from other funds, Defendant is entitled to

the benefit of the whole premium payment thus paid.

Plaintiff disputes this and contends* that as a

matter of law Brown would be held to have with-

drawn from a mixed fund, first, his own funds, and

if his own funds were sufficient to pay the whole

premium payment that the Bank would not be

entitled to any benefit from that payment.

Substituted page 8/3/43 F
Ex. No. Plaintiff's Pre-Trial Exhibits

1 Check dated February 27, 1930 $230.00

2 Check dated May 3, 1930 339.00

3 Check dated September 20, 1938 500.00

4 Check dated April 22, 1939 500.00

5 Check dated September 19, 1939 500.00

6 Check dated May 29, 1940 500.00

7 Check dated July 15, 1940 500.00

8 Check dated September 14, 1940 500.00

9 Check dated September 20, 1940 500.00

10 Check dated July 11, 1941 500.00

11 Original savings account ledger.

12 Grain account ledger.

13 Hillman Contract, July 12, 1935.

14 Hillman Deed, September 2, 1939.

15 Letter, September 15, 1942.

16 Steer account ledger.

17 F. M. Beck check.

18 F. M. Beck check stub.

19 Leon M. Brown check stub.

20 Vacant numbers.

21

22 '' **

4
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Ex. No. Plaintiff's Pre-Trial Exhibits

23 Vacant numbers.

24 '' "

25 " '' [47]

26 Proof of claim.

27 Detail items of proof of claim.

28 Depositions of Leon M. Brown, Ruby M. Brown
and Alfred L. Brown.

29 Deposit slips.

30 Supplemental claim of Federal Deposit Insur-

ance Corporation, $24,182.09.

31 Detail items making up Supplemental Claim of

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.

32 Supporting data to the Supplemental Claim.

33 National Bank Examiner's report of February

11, 1942.

34 Recapitulation of shortages and restitutions

from savings and commercial accounts prior to

1935 and subsequent to and including the time

of death of Edward N. Brown.

35 7 checks drawn by Edward N. Brown and 2 tax

receipts to Edward N. Brown ; chocks late 1934

to 1938, total $2252.16.

36 4 checks: Check dated 7/15/31 to 20-30 Club,

$10.37; Check dated 9/12/40, $363.85, Pari-

Mutur^.l Fund ; Check 7/23/42, $800, Edward N.

Brown Sijiadal Account; Check 6/1/42, $500,

Edward N;yNl5rown Special Accouiit.

37 Check Jun^ 11, 1942, $500, Edward N. Brown

Special Aferjount.

38 List of notes })ayal)le to the bank but not car-

ried in its loan and discount accounts.
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No. Ex. Plaintiff's Pre-Trial E^ibits

39 Certified copy of resolution (^ Board of Direc-

tors of Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

of September 1, 1942.

40 Agreement of August 29, 1942, Federal De-

posit Insurance Corporation and Harney

County National Bank of Burns, 16 pages.

40-A Copy of excerpts from last few pages of de-

fendant's pre-trial exhibit 40.

41 Bank register.

42 Statement at close of business August 29, 1942,

Harney County National Bank of Burns.

43 Minute book, Harney County National Bank
of Burns, pages 535 to 730, and loose pages 311

to 534 of minute book.

44 Airplane license and date of purchase by Ed-

ward N. Brow^n.

45 Ledger Sheets, Harney County National Banky

Edward N. Brow^n, Special Account. ^

46 Ledger sheets, Harney County National Bank, ^

Edward N. Brown General Account. ^
'('4 :t

47 Savings general ledger. r-
^

48 Defalcation account, general ledger. [48]

49 2 pages. Ruby M. Brown ^Igavings Account, jr

with memorandum of recoSiciliation on final

balance. 5 ^^

50 Ledger sheets, Leon M. Bijown and Ruby M. ^^

Brown joint account. •
^

51 Copy of Inventory and Appraisement in Estate IS

of Edward N. Brown, Deceased. [49]
*^

[Notation] : Substituted page. 8/3/43. F.
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The foregoing is a i)retrial order agreed upon at

a conference between counsel and the court. It

shall not be amended at the trial except by consent

or to prevent manifest injustice. It supersedes the

pleadings, which now pass out of the case.

The foregoing Pretrial Order is hereby approved

and entered.

Dated at Portland, Oregon, this 13th day of

August, 1943.

JAMES ALGER FEE
Judge

Order Approved:

/s/ JAMES C. DEZENDORP
Of Attorneys for Plaintiff

/s/ ROBERT F. MAGUIRE

except as to that portion providing that this order

supersedes the pleadings.

Of Attorneys for Federal Deposit Insurance Cor-

poration, Inter-pleaded Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 13, 1943. [50]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

June 12, 1944

OPINION

James Alger Fee, District Judge.

On November 27, 1935, the New York Life Insur-

ance (Company issued two policies of insurance on

tlie life of Edward N. Drown in tlie sum of $10,-

000.00 each, in which policies Ruby M. Brown was
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named as beneficiary. The premiums on these poli-

cies were, with one exception, paid by checks drawn

upon the Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Oregon, and dated from November 29, 1935, to

October 21, 1940.

Edward N. Brown was employed by the Harney

County National Bank beginning in the year 1927,

as teller, and in other capacities. On January 12,

1932, he became assistant cashier and on January

7, 1936, he also became a director. Upon becoming

vice president on January 11, 1938, which office

he held until his death on August 6, 1942, he gave

up the position of assistant cashier.

During the years of his connection with the bank,

[51] Brown embezzled $416,000.00. The audit shows

that the net amount of defalcations from customers'

accounts alone amounted to approximately $6,000.00

before 1935 and to over $12,000.00 during that year.

The schedule of further withdrawals from this

source alone, during the stated periods, follows:

1936 $ 3,031.52

1937 17,996.84

1938 40,982.14

1939 93,203.44

1940 39,780.33

Brown carried a personal account, a special ac-

count and a commercial account at the bank in

which he deposited sums from various sources. At
no time was the total amount in all of these ac-

counts, on any particular date, equal to the sum of

his defalcations to that date from commercial ac-

coimts of the bank alone.
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There were showings that Brown owned prop-

erties for which he had paid cash, that he had re-

ceived loans and had sold property and received

the purchase price, and that he had received gifts.

Taking all these matters into consideration, the

total amount thereof did not equal the amount of

defalcations at any time. When the defalcations

were about to be discovered by bank examiners,

Brow^n committed suicide.

Ruby M. Brown, as beneficiary, made claim for

the full amount of the insurance policies. Two
checks w^ere issued to her for a total sum of $20,-

582.00 by the insurance company. Upon discovery

that the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

had a claim, the insurance company stopped pay-

ment upon these checks. Ui:)on conmiencement of

this action [52] by Ruby M. Brown, against the

insurance company, it answered by depositing these

funds in court and asking for an order requiring

the claimants to interplead. Based upon a stipula-

tion, an order entered discharging the New^ York

Life Insurance Company of liability and setting up

adversely the claims of plaintiff and the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation.

A pretrial conference was held between tlie Fed-

eral Deposit Insurance Corporation, intervener,

which was the assignee of the assets of the Harney

County National Bank, and Ruby M. Brown, tlie

mother and beneficiary of the insurance policies on

the life of Edward N. Brown. Thc^ rc^sults of this

conference were crystallized in a pretrial order
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which accurately defines the questions of fact and

law to be answered by the court.

The matter thus arises between the beneficiary

(who paid nothing therefor) of insurance policies

upon the life of an embezzler and the assignee of

the assets of the bank from which he embezzled.

The cardinal factor is, that no item of the em-

bezzled funds is traced directly into the premiums

of the insurance policies, nor into the bank accounts,

w^hich Brown maintained with the Harney County

National Bank.

This cause is complicated by the geometrical in-

crease of the fact-pattern. Reduced primarily to

the lowest terms, it is relatively simple of solution.

First, if Brown were alive, could the bank recover

from him the moneys paid out by virtue of checks

drawn by him and from his transferee without

notice, but without consideration.

The sole ground of recovery by the bank against

the transferee would be that a trust had been

erected by the [53] use of money of the bank in

that transfer.

In order to further clear the ground,, a distinction

must be drawn between transactions which are

consensual and in the normal course of business,

and those which are colored by the proven fraud.

In the first category are pleiced dealings pre-

sumed to be innocent between solvent parties and

which occur as ordinary commercial transactions.

Thus, where a person brings cash into a bank which

accepts it, the relation is that of debtor and creditor.

When such a customer writes a check, the bank
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pays out its o^^^l money but is entitled by the im-

plied contract of deposit, to charge to the account

of the customer, the amount thereof. Tf the cus-

tomer writes and presents a check for more than

he has originally turned over to the bank, there is

no obligation to honor the demand. If the bank

does pay the check, the transaction is a loan to the

customer. The drawee, even if he paid no value

therefor, is not liable to the bank.

If the bank loans money to the customer and the

loan has matured, the bank has a right at any

time to set off the amount owed to it against the

amount owed by it. The bank thereby becomes

liable only for the remaining balance of its debt to

the customer, if there be any. But if the bank does

not exercise this right of set-off, and in the face of

the obligation of the customer to it, pays the check,

it will have no recourse against the drawee of the

check and can neither recapture the money nor

follow the proceeds thereof.

Likewise, a solvent corporation may pay the

personal debts of its officers and directors by cor-

porate check and while there is no doubt of its

right, itself or through its [54] assignee, to recover

from the officers, it has no right against the payee,

although the face of the check conveyed notice of

the transaction and even thougli no vahie was

given therefor.^

Also, a coiporation which is solvent may make

ail agreement with its offi(*ers wlio are the soU^

' Sweet vs. Lang, 14 F. (2d) 762.
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stockholders, to make payments on insurance poli-

cies upon the lives of each of these respectively. If

the agreement is carried out, there will be no right

upon the part of the corporation or its assignee to

recover the proceeds of the policies,^ wlien it be-

comes insolvent.

Now there is a like distinction to be observed in

considering relations which are given sanction by

the courts as trusts. Shortly, express trusts and

implied trusts such as those called resulting trusts,

are consensual in origin. With such relationships,

the presumptions of innocence and fair dealing

apply. A constructive trust, on the other hand, is

one imposed by law because of proven fraud, duress

or undue influence exercised by the party charged.

In cases of express trusts, since it is assumed the

trustee is acting innocently so long as he maintains

a balance sufficient to cover the exact amount of

the trust fund in a bank account, he is given credit

for paying out his own funds in any expenditure.-^

Therefore, if he purchases life insurance by check

upon the same bank account, the premiums are

deemed his and the proceeds of the policies [55]

inure to his beneficiary. If the trustee has two trust

fimds, one of which was given him for the purpose

of insurance, and he did purchase insurance and

there was not sufficient to cover both funds re-

maining, it will be presumed that he paid the prem-

" Oliver vs. Northwestern Mutual Life Ins. Co., 2

F. Suy)p. 266.

^See Portland Building Co. vs. State Bank of
Portland, 110 Oregon 61.
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iums out of the fund entrusted to him for that

purpose.'^ It is likewise held that where the trustee

of an express trust reduces the amount in the bank

where he had deposited his own funds and trust

funds, below the sum of the trust moneys, and there-

after introduces into the account his own money,

the latter sum is not in restitution, but is assumed

to remain his in the absence of clear intention to

make restitution. The presumption here again is

in favor of fair dealing. It is assumed that the

trustee withdrew the moneys from the trust in

accordance with the purposes thereof. Finally, it is

held that where there is an express trust, and the

trustee is dead and cannot explain the mingling of

funds, the burden of tracing remains with the cestui

que trust.5 Here again, the presumption of inno-

cence prevails.

But the courts are equally clear in holding that

where the trustee of an express trust comingles

funds and is unable to explain the transaction, the

whole becomes a trust fund.^ This is because the

presumption has been dissipated.

When the field of constructive trusts is ap-

proached, there is a relation imposed by the courts,

between parties, to prevent unjust enrichment of

one to the detriment of the other.*^ The funda-

* I]romley vs. Cleveland, C, C. & St. 1.. Ry. Com-
pany, 103 Wisconsin 562.

^ Ij().<;an vs. Logan, 138 Texas 40.

^Tretheway vs. Tn^thewav, 16 California {2(\^

133.

^Restatement of Restitution, Chap. 9.
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mental difference between such different [56] con-

cepts and the sanctions attendance thereon cause

a wide divergence of results.

^'An attempt to define a trust in such a way

as to include constructive trusts as well as ex-

press trusts is futile, since a single definition

which would include such distinct ideas would

be so general as to be useless."^

These basic concepts are then entirely distinct.

The failure of the courts, on occasion, to recognize

this distinction of the two concepts, called by the

general name ^'trusf , leads to confusion. Generally

speaking, the courts will compel one who obtains

land, personal property or money from another by

means of fraud, duress or undue influence, to hold

the property as though he were a trustee of an

express trust.^ In other words, by analogy, the

courts reflect many incidents of an express trust in

reasoning about this creation, to prevent unjust

enrichment.

While express trusts are fiduciary relationships,

a constructive trust need not have its origin in such

a bond. But the courts impose a constructive trust

upon money or property obtained through breach

of the obligations by one who takes advantage of

the opportunities laid open in a fiduciary or confi-

dential relationship.!^ There the duty is plain, and

the breach is usually in violation of good ethics as

^Restatement of Restitution, page 641.

'Scott on Trusts, Vol. Ill, Sec. 468.

'° Scott on Trusts, Vol. Ill, Sec. 468.
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well as law. Thus, there is imposed the constructive

trust, or the trust ex malefieio. There are two im-

portant differences between the incidents imposed

by the court as a result of the finding of such a

breach of duty involving transfer of property, and

those applied [57] to an express trust. In the first

place, there is no presumption of innocence or fair

dealing because the imposition of a constructive

trust presupposes a finding of bad faith and fraud.

In the second place, the duty to restore all the

avails of breach of faith requires a more flexible

concept than the res which canalize the obligation

of express trusts.

Turning to the situation in the instant case, we

find that the high duty of Brown, in his confidential

capacity as director-officer and trusted employee of

the bank, was well defined. He was a fiduciary at

all times. As a director he was bound by oath to

diligently and honestly administer the affairs of

the bank and was bound by oath not to violate him-

self or permit violations of the federal law relat-

ing to a national bank.^^ As an executive officer

of the bank, he could not borrow or otherwise be-

come indebted to it, or receive credit except under

extremely limited conditions of which he was re-

quired ot make a written report. ^^ If he liad known

of any embezzlements or thefts from the bank, he

would liave been rc^quired to give the bank notice

thereof in order to protect its interests. If he had

^M2 I'SCA Sec 73.

•^12 rSCA Sec37r)A.



Neiv York Life Insurance Co., et al 41

known of any customer of the bank who had em-
bezzled money therefrom or who was indebted

thereto, and who had also placed money on deposit,

if the facts were unknown to other agents of the

bank, he would have been required to report it in

order that the bank could protect itself by the

exercise of the right of set-off or by other means
within its power. [58]

There was a breach of this duty owed by Brown
to the bank, and a wilful abuse of the confidence

and trust placed in him. He embezzled and misap-
propriated money and other assets of the bank
in a sum of over $416,000.00. His realization of the

criminal phases and consequences of Ms acts^^ and
his moral and ethical responsibility therefor, caused
him to take his ovm life.

The evidence indicates that large sums of money
were taken directly from the bank. When notes
evidencing loans made by the bank were paid, he
kept the money. When deposits were made, he also

took the money. He concealed all of these trans-
actions from the other officers of the bank and the
bank examiners, by a series of false entries of
debits and credits on the books; by abstracting in-

dividual ledger sheets of customers from the files;

by leaving notes, which had been paid, in the files

of the bank as though they were outstanding; and
by noting deposits which never became part of the
assets of the bank, on the books of the depositors.

Specifically, he violated his duty by stealing the

13
12 USCA Sec. 952.
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cash of tlie bank; by failure to report the false

entries; and by failure to notify the bank, its offi-

cers or agents, that he was in any manner indebted

tliereto.

The acts of Brown reveal a gross and flagrant

breach of confidence imposed upon him by the bank.

To this were attached the subtle tendrils which,

because of the public nature of such an institution,

pervaded the entire social structure of the com-

munity. He had taken an oath to guard the funds

of the bank. By virtue of his position, he was

enabled to carry out his unlawful enterprises.

Finally, he prevented an accounting and escaped

responsibility [59] for his violations of the trust

and confidence reposed in him by killing himself

when assured that all would be soon discovered.

The moralities required that such conduct should

not pass unpunished and that no one should receive,

through the embezzler, the fruits of his unlawful

peculations. However, extreme care must be taken

in the examination of the applicable doctrines lest

we be swayed to a moral end, despite the long estab-

lis'hed rules for the control of conduct in such

tangled situations. Hard cases make bad law.

Tt is, however, estalilishcMl that there was a con-

fidential relationshi]) and a breach thereof. But

according to the definition of a constructive trust,

property must y)ass into the hands of the ])ersoTis

upon whom the courts imi)()se it, or by his machina-

tions, into file hands of thii'd ])arties in order to

lay a })asis To]- rcH'Overy. There is no doubt that

upon the discovery that the funds had been stolen.



Neiv York Life Insurance Co., et al 43

the bank could have recovered from Brown in some

:pf.-tJa^' forms of assumpsit or debt, but under the

dQcti*iiies of restitution it could not recover specific

property from him, or from a third party, unless

it could be proven that the funds so abstracted from

the bank were included therein, or were part of the

purchase price thereof. Therefore, unless the stolen

funds could be directly traced into specific articles

of property, or into life insurance premiums, there

could be no recovery by the bank of the articles

or proceeds of the policies, notwithstanding the

immoral and illegal operations of Brown and the

great loss caused to the bank thereby.

But the ministers of the law are not confined to

[60] one foundation for a constructive trust. They

may follow fraud in all its protean forms. Once

having established that the acts of Brown were in

violation of his duty as a fiduciary, that quality is

grasped firmly so that none of the benefits of re-

curring identity escape. ''No man can take ad-

vantage of his own wrong." No one is held more

strictly to the observance of this axiom than one

whose fiduciary character is established. Therefore,

before attempting to trace directly the funds actu-

ally taken by Brown, consideration should be given

to the other duties which he violated and the con-

sequences thereof.

His duty required him to disclose the fact of his

indebtedness to the bank and to actually exercise

the right of set-off for the bank as to any moneys

which he might deposit therein irrespective of the
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source.^'* His duty to the bank, likewise, required

him to disclose the fact of his indebtedness and to

accept no payments as salary or interests from the

bank without full disclosure. He was, therefore,

required, in view of all his knowledge of the facts,

to apply all the salary payments to the liquidation

of his indebtedness.

In Phillips vs. Chase, 203 Massachusetts 556, the

defendant fraudulently procured the adoption, by

his wife, of his own son by a former marriage in

order to secure his wife's property for his son,

thinking that if his son got the property the de-

fendant would benefit thereby. After the death of

both wife and son, the decree of [61] adoption was

set aside in order to prevent the defendant from

thus obtaining property unjustly. The court says:

*^It was established by the answers given by the

jury on the issues tried by them that the adoption

of his son Woodrutf was procured by a gross fraud

practiced by Dr. Chase upon his wife and upon the

court.

*'The law will not allow a man to profit by his

own wrong doing. Adopting and adapting the

words of Mr. Justice Field in New York Mutual

Life Ins. Co. vs. Armstrong, 117 U. S. 591, 600,

6 Sup. Ct. 877, 881, 29 L.Ed. 997, *it would be

a reproach to the jurisprudence of the country' if

that were not so.

*^It is settled that tlie English common law is not

^'See AtluM'ton vs. Anderson, 99 F. (2d) 883;
Tjive Stock State I)ank vs. Fii'st National IJaiik of
Fairfield, Jchilio, :U){) Fed. 945.
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open to that reproach. It has been twice laid

down in Great Britain, once by Lord King in Bovey

V. Smith, 1 Vern. 60, and once by Lord Redesdale

in Kennedy v. Daly, 1 Sch. & Lef. 355, 379, that

one who obtains property by a breach of trust and

afterwards buys it from a bona fide purchaser for

value does not get a good title to it although every

one else in the world buying under those circum-

stances would get the title of the bona fide purchaser

for value. And that has been decided in New York

(Clark V. McNeal, 114 N. Y. 287, 21 N. E. 405,

11 Am. St. Rept. 638) and in Maine (Bailey v.

Bailey, 61 Me. 361).

Where a fiduciary is guilty of a breach of duty

and acquires property or money by reason of his

tortious conduct, the person to whom the duty is

owing may have restitution of the benefit thus ob-

tained, either from the faithless fiduciary or from

the person who has obtained the property from him,

except the latter be a bona fide purchaser for

value. 1^

Even if this principle were not available, still

constructive trusts are imposed where a person is

entitled to recover money which he has paid to

another on account of the terms of a contract which

he supposed to exist and which, to the knowledge of

the other party, did not actually [62] exist, whether

'^Restatement of Restitution, Sec. 138, 190, 201;
Restatement of Agency, Sees. 314, 403, 404 and 407

;

Restatement of Trusts, Sees. 197 and 226.
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failure or consideration or some other defect was

responsible for the condition. ^^

Brown paid practically all premiums on the poli-

cies in question out of accounts maintained at the

same bank from which the tremendous sums above

mentioned were stolen. If Brown had taken the

money which he stole from the bank, and placed it

in cattle, there would have been no question of the

right of the bank to recover the cattle against any-

one, except a holder for value in good faith. If

Brown had not deposited money in the bank, but

had, on the records thereof, set up entries showing

that he had an account there when in truth he had

none, and his checks were cashed w^hich paid for

cattle, it could not be held that the money so paid,

was his money, and therefore the bank, under like

circumstances, could recover.

But it is said that when Brown actually de-

posited money, it remained his until the bank ac-

tually exercised its right of set-off. The bank would,

of course, have exercised this right if the defalca-

tions were known to it at the time. This argument

simply means that where a thief is successful in

concealing his abstractions, the ill gotten gains will

be protected, whereas, if the abstractions have been

timely discovered, the losses could have been re-

^^ Restatement of Restitution, Sees. 15 and K).

**l^ayments as a result of fraud or uiisrepresenta-

tion are within the rule stated in this s(H*tion. In
such cases the payor is entitled to rc^stitution al-

though his mistake was not basic, 'i'lie rules s])e-

cially ap))licable are stated in Sees. 8, 9 and 28.''
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coiiped. Besides, as above noted, the failure to

notify the bank or make the set-off was itself a

fraud.

If Brown, as an officer, had set up a fictitious set

of entries purporting to show that he had an ac-

count in the bank where he had made no deposits,

and had paid for cattle with the proceeds, the result

would be the same. If Brown had abstracted moneys

from a till in the bank and [63] it had been proven

that he deposited these moneys in a valid bank ac-

count in his own name, and had issued a check

thereon in payment for cattle, and there were no

more moneys in the account than those stolen, the

bank could still recover the cattle. Where Brown,

by virtue of his position as employee, director and

officer, surreptitiously embezzled funds from the

bank and thereafter deposited funds in the bank, the

bank could not become indebted to him by virtue of

such a deposit, until he had repaid all he had un-

lawfully abstracted. If then, in ignorance of the

true situation, through his fraud, the bank honored

checks on a suppositious account, it paid out its owm

money and not that of Brown. It was deluded into

believing it paid the money of Brown, but the situ-

ation was no different than if Brown had made no

deposits. Therefore, if Brown had bought personal

property with this money of the bank, the latter

could have recovered.

The options which one whose money is stolen has

against the defaulter are clearly developed in the

scholarly opinion of Judge Learned Hand in Pri-
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mean vs. Granfield, 148 Fed. 480^*^ which illumi-

nates the field. A learned review of the subject is

made by Judge St. Sure, writing for the Circuit

Court of Appeals of the Xinth Circuit, in Republic

Sup23ly Co. of California vs. Richfield Oil Co., 79

F.(2d) 375, where like reasoning is followed.

The results of this reasoning were squarely stated

by the court in McConnell vs. Henochsberg, 11 Ten-

nessee Appellate 176, in an able and well w^orked

out opinion upon facts almost identical with those

in the case at bar. [64] Criticism is made of the

application of that case to the situation here because

of the fact that the court savs '^it is evident that

several thousand dollars of this stolen money was

used by Henochsberg and did actually pass through

his bank accounts." The same finding could be

made in the case at bar. However, this court does

not place the decision here upon that basis, but

upon the broad ground upon which the Tennessee

court may also have relied, that the fiduciary who

obtains property by breach of his obligations of con-
j

fidence cannot equitably retain it.

American National Bank vs. King, 158 Oklahoma

278, deserves but slight consideration upon this is-

sue. The court there held that a finding by the lower

court that the premiums upon life insurance poli-

cies of its defaulting president were not paid by

moneys of the bank, was not against a fair pre-

ponderance of the evidence. The i)rinci])les of law

^^ Reversed on other grounds. Primc^au vs. Gran
field, 2Cir. 193 Fed. 911.
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relating to this feature were not discussed. The

scholarly treatment of the remedy of restitution in

like circumstance in the Tennesses case, is not men-

tioned, nor is that case cited. The court apparently

entertained an emotional dislike for the doctrine of

recovery of the proceeds of an aleatory contract and

upon this feeling the case is found-ed.

The result is, that the Tennessee case is the only

reasoned case upon this particular set of circum-

stances. Inasmuch as this decision squares with cor-

rect doctrine, as indicated by the previous discus-

sion, it will be followed upon this jjoint. All the

money paid out upon checks issued by Brown
against his paper accounts, belonged to the bank.

By his fraud and false representations, he had pre-

vented the bank from withholding his salary pay-

ments and from exercising [65] its right of set-off.

Whether the payments w^ere made for salary, or in

honoring his checks, the bank made them by mis-

take of fact, j)ursuant to obligations vv^hich it be-

lieved it owed to Brown.

There is an alternative and equally convincing

theory upon w^hich the same conclusion may be

founded. A review of the evidence which, although

indirect, is convincing, makes clear that since Brown
had no other sources of income initially, except his

salary and the embezzled funds, that the bulk of

the moneys which he deposited was from these

springs. None of the stolen money can be traced

directly thereto, but any fact may be proven by di-

rect or indirect evidence. This leads to a considera-

tion of an analogous line of cases where the defaulter
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is not an employee of a bank bnt deposits the stolen

fnnds therein. It will be a})parent that the doc-

trine just held controlling would not apply under

such circumstances. However, the courts reach the

same result on the ground that once fraud has been

l)roven, the doctrine of comingling of funds applies^^

and the constructive trustee will be liable if he does

not segregate the fund. Since there is no presuni])-

tion of innocence attaching, his death will not i)ro-

tect the beneficiaries.^^

In the case of Truelsch vs. Northwestern Mutual

Life Insurance Co.^o there is an illustrative example

of a situation where the defaulter was not an em-

ployee of the bank. [66] where he deposited his

funds. The court there finds from indirect evidence

that the money stolen was deposited in the bank

and paid out by check upon the ])remium. The

court disregards the question as to whether salary

paid belonged to the employer, but treats the whole

bank account, which may have contained some sal-

ary payments, as a comingled fund. The fact that

the defaulter was dead did not ])revent the applica-

tion of this doctrine.

Thus it is, that all the moneys paid out by the

^*^ Massachusetts Honding & Insurance (^o. vs.

Josselvn. 224 Michigan 159; Moselev vs. Fikes, i:^:^

Texas' 386; Lono- vs. Karle, 277 'Michioan 505;
Meyei-s vs. I]aylor Tniversitv, (i S.W. (2d) 39:^,

394.

^^See Meyers vs. Bayloi- Fniversity, supra.

"** Truelsch vs. Northwestern Miitiinl Life insur-

ance Co., 186 Wisconsin 239.



New York Life Insurance Co., et dl 51

bank belong to it. Therefore, if Brown bad bought

cattle with the proceeds, the bank could have ob-

tained this i)roperty in specie from anyone except

a bona fide purchaser for value. It is objected that

while such property could have been recovered, it

is a grave injustice to permit the recovery of the

proceeds of an aleatory contract such as an insur-

ance policy on the defaulter's life. However that

may be, the question is settled in the State of Ore-

gon by the decision in Jansen vs. Tyler, 151 Ore-

gon 268, wherein is cited the able opinion of the

elder Judge Sanborn reported as Vorlander vs.

Keyes, 1 F. (2d) 67.

The Vorlander opinion just cited is repudiated by

the Oklahoma court in American National Bank vs.

King, supra. The rationale of the last mentioned

opinion is that the wife and minor children of a

defaulter have an investment in his life which should

be given to them despite his wrongdoing.

In this case, the full amount of the insurance will

not cover the peculations. There is a strong public

policy against permitting a wrongdoer from thus

taking advantage of his own wrong in order to build

up an estate which the law will render secure for

his successors as against the [67] person from whom
the money was stolen.

The status of the wife or mother who is inno-

cent of fraud and who is beneficiary of these *' sol-

emn contracts of insurance" according to plain-

tiff's brief, is well stated in the Vorlander case,

1 F.(2d) 67,69-70:
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''(4) Nor may another, in tliis ease the wife,

now the widow of the trust-ee ex maleficio, though

herself innocent of the fraud, wlio has ])aid no

consideration for the property purchased with the

misappropriated funds or for their fruits, hold any

of them against the cestui que trust, the owner

thereof. A third person, unless he or she has in

good faith acquired for value without notice a

subsequent interest, seeking any benefit resulting

from the misappropriation becomes a })articeps

criminis however innocent of the fraud in the be-

ginning. Story's Equity Jurisprudence (14th Ed.)

Sec. 1666, 1667, 1668, 1669, 1670, Perry on Tnists,

Sec. 127, 166."

The bank would have, therefore, been entitled to

recover all of the proceeds of the insurance which

was paid for by checks dra\\Ti on the fictitious ac-

counts of Brown therein. However, as to the pay-

ment of the premium made December 28, 1940, on

policy No. 12748022, there is no evidence from what

source this was made. Recoverv could not then be

had by the bank of the proceeds thereof on the

theory that the payment was traced into a comingled

fund. On the other hand, to allow recovery U])on

the theory that the funds were comingled when

placed into the insurance policies, would violate the

princii)h's laid down in the Jansen case above cited.

Finally, it is objected that no matter what were

the rights of the bank, the intervenor could not

succeed to them because, having assumed the dei)osit

liability of* the bank the obligation was rims satis-

tied. It is assumed that this objection can be based
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upon American Surety Company vs. Bank of Cali-

fornia, decided by this court in an opinion reported

in 44 P. Supp. 81, and affirmed by the Circuit

Court [68] of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit in an

opinion reported in 133 F.(2d) 160. The confusion

of plaintiff seems to arise from the fact that no ac-

coimt is taken of the specific contract made in these

two cases. The American Surety Company had

there become responsible for the fidelity of the em-

bezzler and when the proceeds of the wrongdoing

were replaced, the obligation was completely satis-

fied. Here, the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion was under duty simply to replace the assets,

no matter how the loss occurred. It has no specific

responsibility for the fidelity of Brown. When it

carried out the obligation to replace the assets lost,

it acquired the right of the bank against the wrong-

doer. Both these cases are ruled by Oregon de-

cisions. The American Surety Company case is gov-

erned by the opinion in the case of American Cen-

tral Insurance Company vs. Weller, 106 Oregon 494.

This case, on the other hand, is governed by the

Jansen case above cit^d.

Findings and judgment may be prepared in ac-

cordance herewith.

[Endorsed] : Filed July 12, 1944. [69]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS
OF LAW

The above entitled action came on for trial, the

plaintiff appearing in })erson and by Mr. James

Dezendorf of counsel, and the defendant, the Fed-

eral Deposit Insurance Corporation appearing by

Mr. Robert F. Maguire of its counsel, and the de-

fendant New York Life Insurance Company having

heretofore inter-pleaded and by order of court here-

tofore made, having deposited in the registry of

this court the sum of $20,582.00, being the proceeds

of the insurance policies on the life of Edward N.

Brown which are the subject of this action, a pre-

trial conference having heretofore been had and as

a result thereof the court having made and entered

its pretrail order based thereon ; the respective par-

ties, Ruby M. Brown and Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation having respectively offered evidence

upon the issues of this case as made up by the ])lead-

ings and the pre-trial order, and both parties having

rested and having submitted the case to the court

for decision and the court being fully advised in

the premises hereby makes its,

FINDINGS OF FACT

I.

Plaintiff is a resident of the state of Oregon, the

defendant. New York Life Insui'ance Com])a7iy is

a coi'})()rati()n organized and existing undei* and by

virtue of the laws of the stat(^ of New York, and is
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licensed to engage in the life insurance business in

the state of Oregon. The Harney County National

Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon, is a national bank-

ing association organized and existing under the

laws of the United States. The defendant, Fed-

eral Deposit Insurance Corporation is a corpora-

tion organized and existing by virtue of the laws of

the United States.

II.

The amount in controversy exceeds, exclusive of

interest and costs, [70] the sum of $3,000.00.

III.

On November 27, 1935 the New York Life Insur-

ance Company in consideration of the payment of

the premiums therein specified, issued its policies

of life insurance on the life of Edward N. Brown,

in which policies the plaintiff Ruby M. Brown was

made his beneficiary. Said policies were numbered

#12748022 and #12748023 respectively, and by the

terms of each of them the insurance company agreed

to pay to Ruby M. Brown the sum of $10,000.00 upon

the receipt of proof of the death of Edward N.

Brown.

IV.

The defendant, Edward N. Brown, died by his

own hand on or about August 6, 1942, and due proof

of his death was thereafter furnished to and re-

ceived by the insurance company, and by reason

thereof there became due and payable under said

policies the total sum of $20,582.00, being $10,327.00
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on policy #12748022 and the sum of $10,255.00 on

I)olicy #12748023.

V.

On or about August 18, 1942, the msurance com-

pany issued, and on August 21, 1942, delivered to

plaintiff two checks in the following amounts re-

spectively $10,327.00 and $10,255.00, whereby it

directed the United States National Bank of Port-

land, (Oregon) to pay to the order of the plaintiff

the respective amounts thereon.

VI.

The plaintiff presented each of said checks for

payment to said bank on September 4, 1942, but the

bank refused to pay said checks and advised her that

the insurance company had previously counter-

manded payment thereof.

VII.

Prior to Sex)tember 4, 1942 when said checks were

presented for payment the Federal Deposit Insur-

ance Corporation notified the insurance com})any

that it had information indicating that the money

used in j)ayment of premiums on tlie above entitled

policies were funds of the Harney County National

Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon, and the Federal

Dei)osit Insurance Corporation notified the insur-

ance^ company that it would and it did claim the

right to receive the ])roceeds of said ])olicies of in-

surance; whereupon the insurance company st()p])ed

payment on the two checks abov(^ mentioncHl.
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VIII.

The New York Life Insurance Company does not

have 01* claim to have [71] any right or interest in

the proceeds of said policies, and has tendered into

the registry of this court the sum of $20,582.00, being

the whole amount of said jjroceeds, and by order of

this court made and entered was allowed the sum of

$416.06 as and for its costs and reasonble attorney's

fees, which said last named sum has been paid from

the registry of said court to said insurance company.

XL
There remains in the registry of this court the

sum of $20,165.94, which is the sum in controversy

between the plaintiff and the defendant Federal De-

posit Insurance Corporation.

X.

Edward N. Brown paid the premiums due on said

policies of insurance by checks which were received

at the Boise, Idaho office of the insurance company.

The amounts of said checks and the date when the

same were received by the insurance company and

the premium payments made thereby upon the re-

spective policies and the banks upon which they

were drawn are as follows

:

Policy No. Date Amount Bank on which Drawn

#12748022 11/29/35 $297.20 Harney County National Bank
of Burns, Burns, Oregon.

10/21/36 297.20

9/11/37 297.20

12/ 2/38 297.20

10/21/39 297.20

12/28/40 297.20 Source of payment unknown.
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Policy No. Date Amount Bank on which Drawn

#12748023 2/ 6/37 297.20 Harney County National Bank
of Burns, Burns, Oregon.

1/11/37 297.20
a a n (

(

11/ 3/37 297.20
H li il ii

12/31/38 297.20 H i( < < n

10/21/40 310.40

XL
Each of the checks drawn by Edward N. Brown

on the Harney County National Bank were hon-

ored and paid by said bank from its funds.

XII.

At the time each of said checks were presented to

and paid by Harney County National Bank Ed-

ward N. Brown had an apparent credit on the books

of the bank in the account on which said checks were

drawn of more than the amount of the checks. Said

apparent balances on the dates hereinafter [972] set

forth, which are the dates when the respective checks

were presented to and paid by said bank were as

follows

:

Policy No. Date Account Amount

#12748022 12/ 2/35 Personal account $ 349.56

10/23/36 Special account 2,045.00

9/14/37 Personal account 533.4!)

12/ 5/38 Personal account 313.06

10/24/39 Special account 366.78

#12748023 2/10/36 Special account 661.20

1/13/37 Special account 1,872.20

11/ 8/37 Personal account 544.44

1/ 3/38 Personal account 309.81

10/24/40 Personal account 3,191.35

These apparent credit balances consisted of the

then remaining balances of actual deposits of cash
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or checks made payable to Edward Brown or his

order, or both.

XIII.

Edward N. Browii w^as continuously an employee

of the Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Bums, Oregon, from the year 1927 to the date of

his death, and he occupied the following positions:

A. From 1927 to January 12, 1932 as Teller and

in other capacities

;

B. Prom January 12, 1932 to January 11, 1938

as Assistant Cashier

;

C. From January 7, 1936 to August 6, 1942 as

Director

;

D. From January 11, 1938 to August 6, 1942 as

Vice President.

XIV.
During the period of Brown's employment, and

while he was an officer and director of said bank he

embezzled and misappropriated approximately $416,-

777.73 of its funds and properties.

XV.
From manipulations of customers' accounts alone

Edward N. Brown's embezzlements and appropria-

tions were as follows during each of the years here-

inafter set forth; [73]

Embezzlements

Prior to 1935 $ 5,869.29

In 1935 12,893.21

In 1936 3,031.52

In 1937 17,996.84

In 1938 40,982.14

In 1939 93,203.44

In 1940 39,780.33
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Embezzlements

In 1941 -489.99*

In 1942 10,319.61

Embezzlements from customers'

accounts alone $223,586.39

* Embezzlements $93,272.41, but there were

compensatory bookkeeping entries in connection

with the above embezzlements of $93,762.40.

These embezzlements and misappropriations from

customers' accomits were accomplished by means of

false entries, withheld deposits made by depositors,

withheld pa^nments made by borrowers, and by un-

authorized or unlawful withdrawals from credits

and accounts of depositors of the bank.

XVI.

Of the embezzlements and misappropriations de-

scribed in Findin<^s XIV and XV no part was ever

repaid or otherwise made good to the bank. The

directors of the bank were not aware of any wrong-

ful acts, embezzlements or misappropriations and

defalcations of Edward N. Brown, and of any

breaches of trust or duty on his ])ai't toward the

bank; and in authorizing and fixing his salary, and

in j)aying the same and in authorizing him to draw

and T'eceive the same the directors acted without

knowledge of his peculations and broaches of ivwM

and duty.

XVII.

At all times conceriuMl in this action ihv accounts

of de])ositors of the Hainey County National Haiik

of BuTTis, Oregon were insured by the Fedeial De-
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posit Insurance Corporation in accordance with the

provisions of the laws of the United States, and

particularly of Title 12 U.S.C.A. Section 264.

XVIII.

On or about August 29, 1942, Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation entered into an agreement

with the Harney County National Bank to acquire,

and did acquire, and ever since said date has been

and is the owner of the assets of said bank includ-

ing all contracts, rights, claims, demands and choses

of action and causes whatsoever pending, causes of

action and judgment, w^hether known or unknown,

which Harney County National Bank owned, held

or had or owns or has against any person whomso-

ever including among other things all those which

said bank had or has against any of its officers, [74]

directors, or employees, or their sureties arising out

of any action of any such persons in respect to the

bank or its property, or arising out of the non-

performance or manner of performance of their

duties, together with any claims against any person

for money or i3roperty of the bank or for damages

that the bank may have had or owned.

XIX.
At all times when Harney County National Bank

honored and paid the several checks drawn by Ed-

ward N. Brown against it in payment of insurance

premiums on the policies of insurance involved in

this case, Edward N. Brown was indebted to the

bank by reason of his misappropriations, embezzle-
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iTients and defalcations in amounts vastly in excess

of any credits to his various accounts by reason of

deposits or otherwise.

XX.
All premiums paid on jjolicy #12748022, with the

exception of the premium of $297.20 paid December

28, 1940 were paid by funds of and belonging to

Harney County National Bank of Burns, Burns,

Oregon, and no part of the same were paid from

funds or credits belonging to Edward N. Brown.

XXI.
That all premiums paid on policy No. 12748023

were paid with funds of and belonging to Harney

County National Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon,

and no part of the same were paid from funds or

credits belonging to Edward N. Brown.

XXII.
All premiums on policy #12748022 were paid

from funds and property of the Harney County Na-

tional Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon, except one

premium of $297.20 paid to the insurance company

on December 28, 1940, the source of which latter

payment was not proved nor traced by either })lain-

tiflf or defendant.

From the foi'egoing Findings of Fact the couii:

has reached and does make the following,

—

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
I.

That all pi-(Mniums y)aid on policy #12748022, with

the exc>eption of the premium payment of $297.20
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paid December 28, 1940, were paid from funds and

property of Harney County National Bank of

Burns, Burns, Oregon, [75] and were not paid by or

with funds or credits belonging to Edward N.

Brown.

II.

That all premiums paid on policy #12748023

were paid from funds and property of Harney

County National Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon,

and no i^art of the same were paid with any credits,

funds or property of Edward N. Brown.

III.

All premimns on policy #12748022 were paid

from funds and property of the Harney County Na-

tional Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon except one

premium of $297.20 paid to the insurance company

on December 28, 1940, the source of which latter

payment was not proved nor traced by either plain-

tiff or defendant.

IV.

That by reason of the wrongful use by Edward N.

Brown of property, assets and funds of Harney

County National Bank of Bums, Burns, Oregon, in

paying the premiums on policy No. 12748023 a con-

structive trust arose in favor of Harney Countv

National Bank of Burns, Burns, Oregon, and in

favor of its assignee Federal Deposit Insurance.

Corporation, and for the full amount of the pro-

ceeds of said policy.

V.

That by reason of the wrongful and unlawful use

by Edward N. Brown of the assets and property of
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Harney County National Bank of Burns, Burns,

Oregon, in paying all the premiums on Policy Xo.

127-1:8022, with the exception of the premium of

$297.20 paid on December 28, 1940, a constructive

trust arose in favor of the bank, and in favor of de-

fendant Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation as

assignee of said bank for that proportion of the

proceeds of said policy that the amount of the pre-

miums paid from the bank's funds bears to the total

amount of the premiums paid on said policy.

VI.

That Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as

assignee of Harney Comity National Bank of Burns,

Burns, Oregon, is the owner of and entitled to judg-

ment for the whole amount of the proceeds of pol-

icy No. 12748023, namely $10,255.00, less one-half

the amount of the allowance of $416.06 paid to New
York Life Insurance Company for costs and at-

torneys' fees herein to-wit, $10,046.97, and for an

order to the clerk of this court [76] directing him to

pay said sum to Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion from the funds in the registiy of this court.

VII.

That Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as

assignee of Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Burns, Oregon, is the owner of and entitled to judg-

ment for five-sixths of the amount of the proceeds

of Policy No. 12748022, namely, five-sixth of $10,-

327.00, less one-half* of the amount of tlu^ allowance

of $416.0() paid to N(»w York Lif^* insurance Com-

pany for costs and attoi'ueys' fees herein, to-wit.

five-sixth of $10,118.97, or $8,432.45, and for an
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order to the clerk of this court directing him to pay

said siun to Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

from the funds of the registry of this court.

VIII.

That defendant Federal Deposit Insurance Cor-

poration is entitled to have and recover said costs

and disbursements from the balance of funds de-

posited in the registry of this court by New York

Life Insurance Company, and for an order direct-ed

to the clerk of this court to pay the same to said

corporation from the balance of the proceeds of said

policies in his hands so far as the same may be suffi-

cient to satisfy said costs and disbursements.

X.

That plaintiff Ruby M. Brown is the owner of

one-sixth of the proceeds of Policy No. 12748022,

namely, one-sixth of $10,327.00, less one-half of the

amount of the allowances of $416.06 paid to New
York Life Insurance Company for costs and dis-

bursements, to-wit, one-sixth of $10,118.97, or $1,-

686.49, and less the further amount of such costs

and disbursements of Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation as may be allowed and taxed herein, and

for an order directing the clerk of this court to

pay the same to the plaintiff from the amount of the

funds deposited by New Your Life Insurance Com-

pany to the registiy of this court.

Done in open court this 20th day of November,

1944.

/s/ JAMES ALGER FEE
Judge
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State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

Service of the foregoing Findings of Fact and

Conclusions of Law by copy, as prescribed by law

is hereby admitted, at Portland, Oregon this ....

day of June, 1944.

/s/ JAMES C. DEZENDORF
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 20, 1944. [77]

In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon

Civil No. 1412

RUBY M. BROWN,
Plaintiff,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant,

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORA-
TION,

Inter-pleaded Defendant.

JUDGMENT ORDER

The court having heretofore and made and en-

tered its Findings of Facts and Conckisions of law

herein that the defeiuhmt, Federal Do])osit Insur-

ance Corporation, having moved the court for an

order of judgment and decree based on said tindings
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and conclusions, the court being advised of the

premises,

—

It Is Hereby Ordered, Adjudged And Decreed as

follows

:

1. That the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion have and recover all of the proceeds of policy

No. 12748023 being the sum of $10,255.00 less one-

half the amount of $416.06 costs and disbursements

allowed and paid to the New York Life Insurance

Company, to-wit the sum of $10,046.97.

2. That the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion have and recover a sum equal to five-sixths of

the proceeds of policy No. 12748022, being five-

sixths of the sum of $10,327.00 less one-half of the

sum of $416.06 paid to the New York Life Insur-

ance Company for costs and disbursements, to-wit

the sirni of $8432.45, being five-sixths of $10,118.97.

3. That the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion have and recover from the plaintiff, Ruby M.

Brown, its costs and disbursements herein incurred

and taxed at ... . dollars.

4. That the clerk of this court be and he is hereby

ordered and directed to pay to the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation from the registry of this

court the sum of $10,046.97, the further sum of

$8432.45 and the amount of defendant Federal De-

posit Insurance Corporation's costs and disburse-

ments taxed at ... . dollars.

5. The plaintiff have and recover the balance of

said funds paid in by the New York Life Insurance

Company after the payments therefrom of the sums
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ordered and adjudged to be paid to the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation. [78]

Done in open court this 20th day of November,

1944.

/s/ JAMES ALGER FEE
Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 20, 1944. [79]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION TO AMEND PRE-TRIAL ORDER
AND FOR A NEW TRIAL.

Comes now plaintiff and moves the court for an

order (1) setting aside the findings of fact, conclu-

sions of law and judgment heretofore entered herein

on November 20, 1944, (2) amending the pretrial

order so as to permit Plaintiff to deny Paragraph

B, on Page 11-a thereof, and (3) directing a trial

on the issue raised by Paragraph B and Plaintiff's

denial thereof.

This motion is based upon the Affidavit of James

C. Dezendorf, one of Plaintiff's attorneys, which is

attached hereto and upon the following grounds

:

(a) In Paragraph B, on Page 11-a of the Pre-

trial Order, there is set forth the shortage claimed

by F.D.I.C. as against Edward N. Brown in each

year from 1935 through 1942. The facts, as claimed

by F.D.I.C. in this paragraph, were not conceded by

Plaintiff but it was admitted that F.D.I.C. could

produce evidence to support the facts as alleged.
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(b) At the time of the pretrial and of the settle-

ment of the Pretrial Order, Plaintiff had not made

any audit of the records of the Harney County Na-

tional Bank and her financial condition was such

that no complete audit could have been made.

(c) In connection with the suit brought by F.D.I.

-

C. against the Edward N. Brown Estate, pending in

this court, Civil No. 2329, an audit has been made

of such records of the Harney County National

Bank of Burns, Oregon, as have been produced by

F.D.I.C., (although it has been impossible to make

a complete audit because of the absence of requisite

information and records which have been requested)

and, after the decision herein was announced, on

June 12, 1944, it was discovered by the auditor for

the Estate of Edw^ard N. Brown, deceased, and

was [80] reported to Plaintiff herein and it now ap-

pears probable that Edward N. Brown was not in-

debted to the Bank by reason of alleged embezzle-

ments and misappropriations during the years 1935,

1936, 1937, 1938 and perhaps in the subsequent

years, except 1942.

(d) If, in fact, Edward N. Brown was not in-

debted to the Bank during the years 1935, 1936,

1937, 1938 and in the subsequent years, except 1942,

under the decision announced herein Plaintiff vrould

receive the benefit of all premiimi payments prior to

1942 and the final result would be entirely different.

(e) In addition, the incomplete audit which has

been made indicates that the Bank's records actually

reflect many of the deposits and withdrawals in de-

positors' accounts which are claimed by F.D.I. C. to
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have been withheld, so that, in fact, they actually

were received and went through the Bank's records.

/s/ HAMPSON, KOERXER,
YOUNG & SWETT

JAMES C. DEZENDORF
Attorneys for Plaintiff,

[Endorsed]: Piled Nov. 28, 1944. [81]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF JAMES C. DEZENDORF

State of Oregon

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, James C. Dezendorf , being first duly sworn, de-

pose and say that I am one of the attorneys for

Plaintiff herein; that at the time of the pretrial

conference herein and at the time of the settlement

of the Pretrial Order Plaintiff had not made an

audit of the records of the Harney County Na-

tional Bank of Burns, Oregon, for the purpose of

verifying the facts as claimed by F.D.I.C. with re-

spect to the alleged shortage of Edward N. Brown
during the years 1935 to 1942. In connection with

the action by F.D.I.C. against the Edward N.

Brown Estate an audit has been made of such rec-

ords of the Harney County National Bank of

l^>urns, Oregon, as have been produced by F.D.I.C.

and, after the decision was announced herein on

June 12, 1942, tlu* auditoi* repoi'ted to me that from

the audit which he had made it ap])eai'ed probable

that Edward N. Brown was not, in fact, indebted to
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the Bank by reason of alleged embezzlements and

misappropriations during the years 1935, 1936,

1937, 1938 and perhaps in the subsequent years, ex-

cept 1942. The auditor for the Estate also re-

ported to me that his examination of the Bank's

records disclosed that they actually reflect many of

the deposits and withdrawals in depositors' ac-

counts which F.D.I.C. claimed were withheld, so

that the funds represented by the so-called with-

held items were actually received by and went

through the records of the Bank.

That if the auditor's statements, as above set

forth, are true the result herein, upon the basis of

the court's opinion, will be entirely different and

plaintiff will receive the benefit of all premium pay-

ments prior to 1942.

/s/ JAMES C. DEZENDORP [82]

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 28th day

of November, 1944.

[Seal] /s/ DOROTHY THAIN
Notary Public for Oregon

My commission expires Dec. 20, 1944.

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

Service of the foregoing Motion to Amend Pre-

trial Order and For a New Trial by copy, as pre-

scribed by law is hereby admitted, at Portland,

Oregon, this 28th day of November, 1944.

/s/ MAGUIRE, SHIELDS &
MORRISON.
Of Attorneys for F.D.I.C.

[83]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT IN OPPOSITION TO PLAIN-
TIFF'S MOTION TO AMEND PRETRIAL
ORDER AND FOR A NEW TRIAL

Comes now Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion and tiles its objections to motion made by the

plaintit? for an order setting aside the findings of

fact and conclusions of law judgment heretofore

entered on November 20, 1944, and to amend the

pretrial order to permit plaintiff to deny Para-

graph B, on page 11-A thereof and for an order

directing a trial on the issues raised by Paragraph

B and plaintiff's denial thereof upon the following

grounds and reasons:

1. That said motion is not timely;

2. That the affidavit supporting said motion is

insufficient in law and fact and purely hearsay, not

made by any person having any knowledge of the

facts and that the plaintiff is estopped to have or

receive the relief prayed for therein.

In support hereof the defendant Federal De^iosit

Insurance Corporation submits the affidavit of

Robert F. Maguire, one of its attorneys, attached

hereto.

/s/ MAGIHRE, SHIELDS &
MORRISON

Attorneys for Fodei'al De])osit Insurance Corpora-

tion
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State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, Robert F. Maguire, being first duly sworn on

oath, depose and say that I am one of counsel for

Federal Dex)osit Insurance Corporation in the case

of Ruby M. Brown vs. New York Life Insurance

Company and Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion. That at the time the said case came on for

trial the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

had in attendance on the trial its examiner Fos-

sum, who had charge of the complete audit of the

books, records and affairs of the Harney County

National Bank and the duty of ascertaining the

amounts and extent of the [84] misappropriations

and defalcations of Edward N. Brown of the funds,

assets and properties of that Bank. That Fossum

was intimately familiar w4th the means and methods

whereby the said Edward N. Brown accomplished

the misappropriations and defalcations which made

up the items and the amounts claimed by the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation and was

prepared to and would have testified in detail with

regard to each of said items which make up the

various sums set forth in Paragraph B, page 11-A

at the pretrial order; that the audit examination of

the books and records of the Bank and its affairs in-

cluded examination and audit of passbooks, check

stubs, and supporting data of the Bank's customers

relating to their several respective transactions with

the Bank as to which misappropriations and de-

falcations were alleged; that the defendant Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation was then prepared,
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ready, able and willing to have offered detailed

proof of each of said items, but plaintiff although

not admitting the amount of said misap])ropriations

and defalcations admitted that the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation could produce evidence to

substantiate the same.

At the request of the administrators of the estate

of Edward N. Brown, deceased, and in connection

with the action brought in this court by the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation against said ad-

minstrators the defendant Federal Deposit Insur-

ance Corporation had transported to affiant's office

in Portland, Oregon, the Bank's books and records

which were so voluminous their weight was ap]^ro-

ximately one ton; that all these records were made

available to the auditor of the administrator who

spent several wrecks in examining tliem.

That during the latter part of said auditor's

examination he informed the affiant that he had dis-

covered that in a number of instances deposits al-

leged to have been made by the customers which

were the basis of claims of misappropriations l)y

Edward N. Brown had been reflected in *'The Sav-

ings Ledger" and further stated that while he did

not doubt there was an explanation as to why mis-

a|)pr()priation was claimed with respect to this he

y)ersonally did not know the explanation and re-

quested affiant to ascertain the facts relative there-

to.

As an example he cited the case of P. Jeneskie.

Affiant thereu|)()n comnnmicated with Federal De-

])()sit Insurance Corporation and ascertained that
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Mr. Fossuiii was then detailed to an investigation

in one of the New England states and that as soon

as he could be released therefrom and [85] returned

to the general office of the corporation in Chicago,

Illinois, where his records were available, he would

make an analysis and that the result thereof would

be communicated to affiant. Unfortunately, how-

ever, before Mr. Fossum could return to Chicago

he was taken seriously ill and only within recent

days has been able to resume work.

Affiant is informed by Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation and verily believes and alleges that the

facts with regard to these instances w^here withheld

deposits appear to have been credited to the so-

called ^^ Savings Ledger" are as follows:

That the so-called ''Savings Ledger" is misnomer,

that it is in fact merely a daily journal used solely

for trial balance purposes; that it was the practice

of the said Edward N. Brown in many instances to

credit the amount of the deposit upon the de-

positor's passbook, to make entries thereof on the

so-called "Savings Ledger", which was actually a

daily savings journal, but not to make correspond-

ing entries in the individual ledger sheets, that he

would then withhold the deposit and convert it to

his owm use and reconcile the trial balance by means

of debit memos which were destroyed when they

had served their purposes of reconciliation of the

trial balance with the actual balance; said debit

memos were false and fictitious, and were used

solely for the purpose of concealing his misappro-

priations and embezzlements; but that in each of
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these instances no credits were passed into or en-

tered upon the individual savings ledger of tlie

customer.

That the entries made on the so-called ^'Savings

Ledger" or daily savings journal cannot be re-

conciled with the individual depositor's ledger

sheets due to the fact that where deposits w'ere with-

held by Brown no corresponding entries were made

on the latter. That in the case of the Jeneskie ac-

count, the customer's passbook disclosed the proper

entries, which w^ere in a large part of these sup-

ported by cancelled checks issued to the depositor

by the Hines Lumber Company; that in truth and

in practice said Edward N. Brown misappropriated

and embezzled each of the items making up the

amounts set forth in the pretrial order referred to

in the motion for new trial, and alleged by the de-

fendant to have been misappropriated and embez-

zled bv him, and the amounts thereof were at least

as large as the amounts set forth in the pretrial

order, and in the Exhibits offered by the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation at the trial for each

of the years, 1935, 193(), 1937, 1938, 1939, 1940,

1941 and 1942. [86]

/s/ ROBERT F. MAGUIRE

Subs(^ribed and sworn to before me this 5th day

of December, 1944.

[Seal] /s/ MARION HITGGINS
Notary Public for Oregon

My commission expires: !M8-47.
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State of Oregon,

Covmtv of Multnomah—ss.

Service of the foregoing Affidavit by copy, as pre-

scribed by law is hereby admitted, at Portland,

Oregon, this 5th day of December, 1944.

/s/ JAMES C. DEZENDORF
Attorney for plaintiff

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 5, 1944. [87]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER DENYING PLAINTIFF'S MOTION
FOR NEW TRIAL AND TO AMEND THE
PRETRIAL ORDER

This matter having come on for hearing on Jan-

uary 8, 1945 upon plaintiff's motion for a new trial

and to amend the pretrial order, and the plaintiff

appearing by Mr. James C. Dezendorf of her coun-

sel, and the defendant. Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation appearing by Robert F. Maguire of its

counsel, and the court having heard counsel and

being advised of the premises, and having in open

court denied said motions and each of them

—

It Is Hereby Ordered and Adjudged that plain-

tiff's motions for a new trial and to amend the pre-

trial order herein is hereby denied.

Done this 31st day of January, 1945 as of Jan-

uary 8, 1945, the latter being the date on which said

motions were denied.

/s/ JAMES ALGER FEE
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 31, 1945. [88]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice is hereby given tliat the Plaintiff above

named, Ruby M. Brown, hereby appeals to the Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals, for the Ninth Circuit, from

(1) the Judgment Order entered in this action on

November 20, 1944, and (2) the order denying

Plaintiff's Motion to Amend Pretrial Order and

for a New Trial entered in this action on Januray

8, 1945.

HAMPSON, KOERNER,
YOUNG & SWETT

Signed: JAMES C. DEZENDORP
Attorneys for Appellant,

Rubv M. Brown

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

Service of the foregoing Notice of A])peal by

copy, as prescribed by law^ is hereby admitted, at

Portland, Oregon, this 13th day February, 1945.

Of Attorneys for Inter-

pleaded Defendant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 13, 1945. [89]
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DEFENDANT'S PRE-TRIAL EXHIBIT No. 34

Shortages by Years

Year Restitutions

Prior to 1935 $ 1,112.01

1935 9,173.32

1936 24,283.76

1937 10,818.23

1938 7,521.58

1939 47,084.38

1940 56,879.87

1941 93,762.40

1942 33,002.87

The above figures do not include the interest adjustments

made by Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, nor the ma-

jority of adjustments made by the National Bank Examiners.

Omitted Credits and
Improper Debits Net Shortage

$ 6,981.26 $ 5,869.25

22,066.53 12,893.21

27,315.28 3,031.52

28,715.07 17,996.84

48,503.72 40,982.14

140,287.82 93,203.44

96,660.20 39,780.33

93,272.41 489.99

43,322.48 10,319.61

Total .-..$223,586.35

PLAINTIFF'S PRETRIAL EXHIBIT No. 39

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

Certified Copy of Resolution of Board of Directors

I, E. F. Downey, Secretary to the Board of

Directors of the Federal Deposit Insurance Cor-

poration, do hereby certify that the attached is a

true and correct copy of a resohition duly adopted

at a meeting of the Board of Directors of said Cor-

poration, regularly called and held on the 1st day

of September, 1942, at which a quorum was present,

and that the same has not been amended or re-

scinded and is now^ in full force and effect.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto subscribed

my name and caused the seal of the Corporation to
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be affixed hereto, in the City of Washington and

District of Cohinibia, this 1st day of September,

1942.

(Signed) E. F. DOWNEY
Secretary to the Board of Directors of the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation

RESOLUTION

Whereas, The Harney County National Bank of

Burns, Burns, Oregon, an insured national banking

association (hereinafter referred to as the ^'Selling

Bank'') proposes to sell certain of its assets to The

United States National Bank of Portland, Portland,

Oregon, an insured bank, (hereinafter referred to

as the *' Purchasing Bank") in consideration of the

assumption by the Purchasing Bank of the liabi-

lities of the Selling Bank to its depositors as sho\\Ti

by its books as of the close of business on the date

on which the proposed sale of assets and assumj)ti(m

of deposit liabilities is consummated ; and

Whereas, The Selling Bank has various invest-

ments which are now carried on its books at more

than their present actual cash value, and has sus-

tained losses which have substantially impaired its

reserves, surplus and cai)ital, and it is unsafe for

the Selling Bank to continue in th(^ bankinu* busi-

ness; and

Wliereas, the Selling Bank has a])])lied to and

requested that this Cor])orati()n, (a) ])urchase all

of its assets not considered of somid banking quality

and not acceptable for acciuisition by the Pinvlias-

ing, Hank, and/or (b) make a loan to the Selling
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Bank upon the security of the aforesaid assets,

pursuant to the provision of paragraph (4) of sub-

section (n) of Section 264 of Title 12, U.S.C., as

amended; and

Whereas, It appears that unless the aforesaid

liabilities of the Selling Bank are assumed by the

Purchasing Bank through aid extended by this

Corporation as provided in paragraph (4) of sub-

section (n) of Section 264 of Title 12, U.S.C., as

amended, it will probable be necessary that the

Comptroller of the Currency of the United States

close the Selling Bank on account of inability to

meet the demands of its depositors; and

Whereas, It is the judgment of this Board that

this Corporation would sustain greater losses in

the event of the closing of the Selling Bank and

the liquidation of its assets in receivership than in

the event of its extending aid to the Selling Bank
as hereinafter provided; and

Whereas, This Board has determined to extend

aid to the Selling Bank in the form of a purchase

of assets and that the proposed purchase will reduce

the risk and avert threatened losses to this Cor-

poration and will make possible the consummation

of the aforesaid assumption of the aforesaid lia-

bilities of the Selling Bank by the Purchasing

Bank

;

Now, Therefore, Be It Resolved, That this Cor-

poration purchase from the Selling Bank all of its

assets not considered of sound banking quality and

not acceptable for acquisition by the Purchasing
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Barilv, subject to each and all of the following con-

ditions :

1. The proposed assumption of the deposit lia-

bilities of the Selling Bank by the Purchasing Bank
in consideration of the transfer and sale to the

Purchasing Bank of certam assets of the Selling-

Bank having an agreed value equal to the amount of

the deposit liabilities assumed by the Purchasing

Bank shall be consummated concurrently with the

aforesaid sale to this Corporation.

2. The exact amount of the purchase price to be

paid by this Corporation to the Selling Bank shall

equal the difference between the agreed value of

the assets classified as acceptable for acquisition

by the Purchasing Bank and the amount of the de-

posit liabilities of the Selling Bank as shown by its

books as of the close of business on the date the

proposed sale to this Corporation is consummated

and shall be based upon the amount necessary to

make possible the aforesaid assumption of the de-

posit liabilities of the Selling Bank by the Purchas-

ing Bank as determined by authorized representa-

tives of this Corporation at the time of the consum-

mation of said sales; provided that the amount of

the purchase price to be paid for the assets acquired

by this Corporation from the Selling l>ank shall not

exceed One Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousaiul

($1,250,000) Dollars.

\\. The Selling Bank shall (wecute a contract em-

bodying the teruLs of the sale to this (\)rpo]ation

(supi)orted by such exhibits as may be lecjuired by
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counsel for this Corporation) which shall provide

in substance for the transfer to this Corporation of

absolute title to the property sold free and clear of

any liens or encumbrances or any reserved right,

title or interest of any kind or character in favor of

the Selling Bank and for the payment of a further

contingent purchase price (over and above the in-

itial cash purchase price determined as hereinbefore

provided) equal to the amount of the recoveries

realized by the Corporation through the liquidation

of the property acquired from the Selling Bank in

excess of the initial cash purchase price, the costs

of liquidation of the property acquired from the

Selling Bank in excess of the initial cash purchase

price, the costs of liquidation and a service charge

or fee equal to four per cent (4%) per annum of

the unrecovered portion of the initial cash purchase

price and the costs of liquidation.

4. The assets to be acquired by this Corporation

by purchase shall consist of all the unacceptable as-

sets of the Selling Bank, including its non-book

assets.

5. The proposed purchase transaction shall be

duly assented to by the Comptroller of the Currency,

the directors of the Selling Bank and of the Pur-

chasing Bank, and by the holders of two-thirds of

the voting rights of the outstanding stock of the

Selling Bank, and all contracts, conveyances, trans-

fers, assignments, and other documents and all

corporate proceedings necessary or proper for the

consummation of all phases of the transactions pro-
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posed herein and the protection of the Corporation

shall conform to the requirements of counsel for this

Corporation.

6. Any fees or charges billed to the Selling Bank

for services of accountants, attorneys or other

specialists in connection with any matters handled

on behalf of the Selling Bank at any time prior to

disbursement of the amount of the purchase prices

to be paid by this Corporation in connection with

any phase of the jjurchase and sale transactions,

herein described and referred to, shall be submitted

to representatives of this Corporation prior to pay-

ment, and no such fees or charges shall be paid in

excess of such amounts as may be approved as rea-

sonable by representatives of this Corporation.

7. The Purchasing Bank shall enter into an

agreement in form required by this Corporation

providing for the furnishing of such facilities and

the performance of such services as may be required

by this Corporation, without expense to this Cor-

j)oration save and except out-of-pocket expenses in-

curred in connection with the liquidation of the

assets purchased by this Corporation.

8. This Corporation shall be furnished with suit-

able assurance that the management of the Purchas-

ing Bank is satisfactory; such assurance to be

through approval by the Comptroller of the Cur-

rency, or otherwise as the Chairman of this Cor-

poration may determine.

9. The conimitnient of this (\)ri)orati()n herein

set forth shall roitlnvitl] expire:

I
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(a) If the Selling Bank shall cease to be an

operating institution under the management of

its Board of Directors prior to the disbursement

of the purchase prices to be paid to it by this

Corporation as hereinabove provided.

(b) If all phases of the proposed transaction

between the Purchasing Bank and the Selling

Bank and this Corporation, hereinabove pro-

vided for, shall not have been completed within

ninety (90) days from date.

10. Such other and further conditions as may be

required by the Chairman of the Board of Direc-

tors of this Corporation.

Further Resolved, That prior to the actual dis-

bursement of the initial cash purchase price to be

paid by this Corporation as hereinbefore provided,

there shall be no agreement or obligation on the

part of this Corporation to purchase any property

from the Selling Bank.

Further Resolved, That W. G. Loeffler, Fiscal

Agent for this Corporation, be and he is hereby

authorized and directed upon receipt by hira of

satisfactory evidence that all of the conditions here-

inabove set forth have been fulfilled, to disburse

from funds now deposited to the credit of the Cor-

poration with the Treasury of the United States,

an amount equal to the initial cash purchase price

certified by the authorized representatives of this

Corporation to be necessary to make possible the

assumption of the deposit liabilities of the Selling

Bank by the Purchasing Bank; provided that the
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amount so disbursed shall not exceed the sum of

One Million Two Hundred Fifty Thousand Dollars

($1,250,000).

Further Resolved, That W. G. Loeflfler, Fiscal

Agent, be and he is hereby authorized and directed

to issue and deliver to the Acting Chief of the Di-

vision of Liquidation, the Supervising Liquidator,

or the Acting Supervising Liquidator, a check in

the amount of Five Thousand ($5000) Dollars pay-

able to the order of the Purchasing Bank for credit

to the accoimt of the Corporation which shall be

deposited in the Pui'chasing Bank to be used as an

Imprest Fund for the completion of this transaction

and for the liquidation of the assets; and that as

vouchers are submitted from time to time showing

the proper disbursement of any portion of said

funds, said Fiscal Agent be and he is directed to dis-

burse such further sums as shall be necessarv to

maintain at all times a balance of $5,000 in such

Imprest Fund.

Further Resolved, That withdrawals fi'om such

accoimt may be made on the signature of a desig-

nated Examiner in Charge of completion of the

purchase transaction. Liquidator or Assistant Li-

quidator in Charge of the liquidation of the pur-

chased assets; and that the Chief or Acting Chief

of the Division of Liquidation or Supervising Li-

quidator ov Acting Su|X^rvisiiig Liquidator of this

Corporation may designate the Examiner in Charge,

Licpiidator oi* Assistant Iji<|nidator for the purpose

of making such withdrawals.
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Further Resolved, That the Chairman of the

Board of Directors of this Corporation or such

person or persons as he may designate, be and they

are hereby authorized to execute for and on behalf

of this Corporation such instruments as may be

necessary or proper to carry out the terms of this

resolution.

Further Resolved, That the Chairman of the

Board of Directors of this Corporation be and he

is hereby authorized to amend or waive any of the

conditions of this resolution provided such amend-

ment or waiver is, in his judgment, consistent with

the best interest of this Corporation.

Further Resolved, That if it shall appear desir-

able to the Corporation to make a loan or loans to

the Selling Bank under the provisions of paragraph

(4) of subsection (n) of Section 264 of Title 12,

tl.S.C, as amended, to be secured by any or all of

such unacceptable assets instead of purchasing such

unacceptable assets as hereinabove provided, such

loan or loans to the Selling Bank, in an amount not

to exceed the initial cash purchase price hereinabove

provided for may be made and consummated on such

terms and conditions as shall be required and pre-

scribed by counsel for the Corporation, and the

amount of such loan or loans shall be disbursed as

hereinbefore provided with respect to the initial

cash purchase prices provided that the aggregate

amount to be disbursed by the Corporation either

by way of purchase price or loan or loans shall not

exceed the amount of the commitment set forth in

condition No. 2 hereof.
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PLAINTIFF'S PRETRIAL EXHIBIT No. 40

This Agreement, made and entered into this 29th

day of August, 1942, by and between the Harney

County National Bank of Burns, a national bank-

ing association duly organized and existing under

and by virtue of the laws of the United States, with

its princi])al office in Burns, Oi*egon (hereinafter

referred to as the ^^Bank")? a^^d the Federal De-

posit Insurance Corporation, a corporation created

and existing under and by virtue of an act of the

Congress of the United States, having its principal

office in the City of Washington, District of Colum-

bia, (hereinafter referred to as the *^ Corporation'') :

Witnesseth

:

Whereas, the Bank has various investments which

are now carried on its books at more than their

present actual value and has sustained losses which

have wholly exhausted and wiped out its reserves,

surplus and capital, and it is unsafe for the Bank

to continue in the banking business without new or

additional capital and the Bank desires to protect

its depositors against losses which would be sus-

tained in the event of forced liquidation of its in-

vestment; and

Whereas, the Bank proi)oses to sell certain of its

assets to The United States National Bank of Port-

land, a iiational banking association duly organized

and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the

United States with its ])rincipal office in Poi-tland,

Oregon, in consideration of the assumption of the
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deposit liabilities of the Bank as shown by the

Bank 's books as of the close of business on the date

hereof; and

Whereas, the Bank has filed an application re-

que^iion the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion to purchase certain assets of the Bank and/or

to loan money on the security of said assets in order

to facilitate and make possible the proposed sale of

assets to, and the aforesaid assumption of the de-

posit liabilities by the United States National Bank

of Portland ; and

Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation has determined that

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation will not

make a loan to the bank but will purchase, on cer-

tain terms and conditions, all of the assets of the

Bank not purchased and acquired by The United

States National Bank of Portland, as aforesaid,

and has concluded that such purchase of assets by

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation will re-

duce a risk and avert a threatened loss to the Fed-

eral Deposit Insurance Corporation; and

Whereas, the Initial Cash Purchase Price (as de-

fined m Section 12 hereof) to be paid by the Fed-

eral Deposit Insurance Corporation for such assets

together with certain other assets of the bank (con-

sisting of cash, high-grade securities, and other as-

sets considered to be of sound banking quality and

acceptable for acquisition by The United States

National Bank of Portland) will equal the aggre-

gate amount of the deposit liabilities of the Bank as
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shown bv its books of aeeoimt as of \hv close of

business on the date hereof; and

Now, Tlierefore, each of tlie parties liereto in-

tending to be legally bound hereby, do severally

undertake, promise, covenant, and agree each with

the other, and the Bank does hereb}^ represent, war-

rant, covenant and agree to and with the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation, as follows:

1. The Bank hereby acknowledges that if filed

an a})f)licatio7i requesting the Federal Deposit In-

surance Corporation to purchase certain assets of

the Bank and/or to loan money on the security of

said assets and that it has been determined by the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation that it will

not make a loan to the Bank but will purchase cer-

tain assets of the Bank instead.

2. The Bank hereby warrants that at the close of

its Business on the date hereof (Inunediately prior

to execution and delivery of this instrument) tlie

assets of the Bank consist of two classes:

(a) The first class of "acceptable assets''

consists of each, deposits in other banks and cer-

tain investments of the Bank of sound banking

quality (With adjustnu^nts for accrued interest

and unearned discount) which are being sold,

transferred, assigned, and conveyed to The

United States National Bank of Portland at

agreed values under the terms of a contract bear-

ing even date herewitli.

(b) The second class or 'Sniacceptable as-

sets", consists of every other asset and all other

property of the Bank.



Netv York Life Insurance Co., et al 91

Exhibit '^A" hereto shows as at the close of its

business on the date hereof (Immediately prior to

the execution and delivery of this instrument), the

total assets and liabilities of the Bank as shown by

its books of account, the total acceptable assets of

the Bank (shown in the column headed "^'acceptable

assets") and the total unacceptable assets of the

Bank as shown by the books of the Bank (shown in

the column headed ^'unaccexjtable assets"), but does

not show assets of the Bank which do not appear on

its books and which for the purposes hereof are in-

cluded in classification of '' unacceptable assets".

Such exhibit identifies the several classes of assets

only through the totals in the central accounts in the

general ledger of the Bank, and for a more particular

description of the individual items comprising these

totals. Reference is made to the books of account

and supporting records and files of the Bank, on

which the detail of such items will appear.

3. The Bank does hereby sell, grant, convey, as-

sign, transfer and set over to the Corporation, all of

its property other than:

(a) The ^'acceptable assets" of the Bank

shown in Exhibit ''A" hereto, and records per-

taining thereto;

(b) The property held by the Bank as bailee

or as fiduciary for other than itself, and the

records pertaining to its activities as fiduciary

;

(c) The records of the Bank pertaining to

its deposit liabilities as shown upon its books

immediately prior to the execution and delivery

of this instrument.
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Without any limitation on the generality of the

foregoing, the property so sold, granted, conveyed,

assigned, transferred and set over to the Corporation

(hereinafter sometimes referred to as the ** property

sold"), shall exj^ressly include, without being limited

to, each and all of the following

:

(1) All *' unacceptable assets" of the Bank,

shown in Exhibit ''^A" hereto.

(2) All assets of the Bank which are not carried

on its books of account or which are carried on such

books at a nominal amount for bookkeeping purposes.

(3) All property specifically listed on certain

paper records known as ''Line Sheets", heretofore

jointly prepared by representatives of the Bank and

the Corporation and now in the possession of the

Corporation, each such Line Sheet being marked with

the legend:

''The property described in the within memoran-

dum has been and is hereby sold, granted, conveyed,

assigned, transferred and set over to the Federal

Deposit Insurance Corporation pursuant to the

terms of a contract dated August 29, 1942.

THE HARNEY COUNTY
NATIONAL BANK OF BURNS

By
President/Cashier

Dated: Burns, Oregon, August 29, 1942."

(the property described on such Line Sheets being

also more ])articularly desci'ibed on the books of

account or in the records of the Bank, to which ref-

erence is made for a more i)articular description

thereof).
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(4) All property of the Bank which heretofore

had been specifically endorsed to the Corporation, or

granted, conveyed, transferred or assigned to the

Corporation by deeds or other written instruments

of conveyance or transfer, specifically referring to

the property conveyed or transferred, or delivered

to its representatives, w^hether or not listed on such

Line Sheets.

(5) All contracts, rights, claims, demands, chosen

in action or causes whatsoever, pending causes of

action, and judgments, whether known or unknown,

w^iich the Bank owns, holds or has against any per-

son or i)ersons w^homsoever, including, without being

limited to, any claims against its stockholders for

payment of or by reason of ownership of its capital

stock (neither the mention of the foregoing liability

or the approval of this agreement by the Bank

and/or its stockholders shall be deemed an admission

bv said Bank or stockholders of the existence of such

liability) any claims against its directors, officers or

employees or their sureties arising out or any act of

any such persons in respect to the Bank or its prop-

erty or arising out of the non-performance or manner

of performance of their duties, any claims against

any person for money or property of the Bank, or

for damages, which the Bank may have or owti.

(6) A non-negotiable demand promissory note

bearing even date herewith in the sum of $906,856.47

executed by the Bank in favor of the Corporation and

secured by any property, assets, rights, claims or

causes of action, w^hich under the law, or for any

other reason, are not assignable or transferable or
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which the Corporation may consider to be non-

assignable or non-transferable. In the event the Cor-

poration receives any net excess recoveries as defined

in Section 12 herein, then said note shall be forthwith 1

cancelled by the Corporation and returned to the

Bank or the liquidating agent or committee repre-

senting the interests of the stockholders of the Bank.

(7) All moneys, credits or other property of

every kind or character acquired by the Bank as the

result of its sale, collection or enforcement of anv of

the ''property sold" which have not been applied or

credited on the assets comprising the ''property

sold."

(8) All fees or commission due, or which shall

hereafter become due to the Bank for any services

pei'formed by the Bank as fiduciary or in a fiduciary

capacity.

(9) All books of account, records, correspondence

files and credit files of the Bank pertaining to any

of the *' property sold."

4. Upon the completion of the Corporation of

written schedule, now under preparation, containing

a more particular description or inventory of such of

the property sold as is known, tlie Bank agrees to

identify the same by signature of its authorized

agents in its behalf and affixation of its corporate

seal. Such schedules shall l)e and become exhibits

forming a part of this agreement, although not at-

tached hereto. The omission of the Corporation to

list any item of property sold in such schedules shall

not be deemed to exclude such omitted item from the
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sale, if otherwise included in the general description

of the property sold.

5. The Bank warrants that it has heretofore de-

livered to the Corporation, all of the property sold

w hich is capable of manual delivery, and has hereto-

fore duly executed, acknowledged and delivered to

the Corporation instruments of conveyance, assign-

ment or transfer, or has made endorsements of each

known item of property sold, in order to vest absolute

title in the Corporation for each item of the prop-

erty sold. The Bank covenants and agrees on behalf

of itself, its successors, legal representatives and as-

signs, on request of the Corporation to execute such

further instruments of conveyance, assignment or

transfer, to make such endorsements, to make such

deliveries and to give such further assurances as

shall be necessary or proper to vest in or confirm

to the Corporation w^hatever right, title and interest

the Bank has on the date hereof in any of the prop-

erty sold, which through inadvertence, by reason of

lack of discovery or otherwise, may not heretofore

have been effectively conveyed or transferred to the

Corporation. The form and content of each such

instrument of conveyance, assignment or transfer

or of such endorsements and the manner of such

deliveries, shall conform with the requirements of

the Corporation and shall be so done as to vest in the

Corporation the absolute and unqualified title in fee

simple to all of the property sold.

6. Notwithstanding the form of any endorsement

by the Bank to the Corporation of notes or other

negotiable instruments the Bank expressly warrants
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that eacli such instrument is genuine and in all

respects what it purports to be; that it has good

title to each such instrument; that all prior parties

had capacity to contracts ; that it has no knowledge

of any fact which would impair the validity of the

instrument or render it valueless and that the bal-

ance due on each such instrument is as shown by

such instrument. The Bank agrees for itself, its

successors, legal representatives or assigns, to en-

force for the benefit of the Corporation, under the

direction and at the expense of the latter, all rights

or claims which the Bank may be entitled to enforce

with respect thereto by reason of the facts or cir-

cumstances constituting a breach of such warranty,

and to turn over to the Corporation all things of

value realized by it as the result of any such action.

The Bank further agrees to enforce or liquidate for

the benefit of the Corporation and under the direc-

tion and at the expense of the latter, any rights,

claims or other property which are included in the

description of the property sold but which are not

assignable or transferable for any reason, and any

rights or claims wliich it may have under any

covenants in any conveyances to the Bank of aiiy

real i)roperty sold by the Bank to the Corporation

which cannot be enforced by the Corporation in its

own name for any reason, and any other rights or

claims, including Init not being limited to general

and s])ecial warranties of every kind and character,

which are incidcMit to the property sold but which

cannot be enforced by the Corporation in its own

name for anv reason.



Netv York Life Insttrancc Co,, et al 97

7. The Bank agrees to preserve and safely keep

all of its files, books of account and records not

included in the property sold to the Corporation or

to The United States National Bank of Portland,

for the joint benefit of itself and the Corporation

and that it will permit the Corporation to inspect

and make extracts from or copies of any of such

files, books, or records at any reasonable time. None

of such files, books, or records shall be destroyed

until such time as the Corporation may consent in

writing to the destruction thereof.

8. The agreed value of the acceptable assets as

shown in exhibit ^^A" hereto, together with the

sum of $906,856.47 of the Initial Cash Purchase

Price being paid for the property sold to the Cor-

poration constituting the consideration initially re-

ceived by the Bank hereunder, is intended to equal,

but not exceed, the aggregate amount of the liabili-

ties of the Bank to its depositors at the close of

business on the date hereof, as shown in Exhibit

^^C." The Bank warrants Exhibit ^^C" to be true

and correct; but if, through omissions, errors in

bookkeeping, listing, computation or otherwise, the

amount due to depositors of the Bank actually shall

be less than the aggregate amount thereof as of the

close of business on the date hereof shown in Ex-

hibit ^*C'', then the Bank authorizes and directs

The United States National Bank of Portland to

pay over to the Corporation the amount of such dif-

ference forthwith upon discovery thereof (such dif-

ference or i3ayment to constitute a part of the prop-
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erty sold by the Bank to the Corporation under tliis

agreement).

9. The Bank hereby covenants and wairants tliat

it has ceased to have any right, title or interest in

or to any of the property sold to the Corporation,

of any nature, legal or equitable, and that hence-

forth the Corporation shall have the absolute own-

ership of all of the property sold free and clear of

all liens, encumbrances or claims, of any nature,

legal or equitable, express or implied, and of all

rights incident thereto. Neither this instrument nor

any other instrument executed by the Bank in con-

nection with the transaction singly or collectively,

shall be construed to be a mortgage or mortgages

or to create or continue any right in rem in the

Bank with respect to any of the property sold to

the Corporation. The Bank hereby expressly

waives and relinquishes any and all purchase money

liens granted or implied by law in its favor as seller

of any of the property sold.

10. The Bank hereby irrevocably nominates, con-

stitutes and appoints James N. Markliam, Wheeler

McDotigal, Francis C. Brown and John L. Cecil,

who are agents of the Corporation, or eitlier or

any of such persons, the true and lawful attorneys

of the Bank, for it and in its name, ])lace and stead,

with fill! power of substitution and revocation, to

sign, endorse or acknowledge any and all checks,

drafts, bills of exchange, evidences of debt, stock

powerj^, l)ills of sale, deeds, moitgages, assignments

of mortgages, assignments of choses in action, in-

debtculness or other personal pro])erty, releases, or
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other instruments in writing of like or different

nature, as may be necessary or proper to convey or

perfect title of tlie Corporation to all or any of the

property sold or to effect the collection or liquida-

tion thereof, to protect or preserve the same, or

fully to enjoy the incidents of absolute ownership

of the same.

11. In the event any action at law^ or in equity

shall be instituted by any person against the Bank

and the Corporation as co-defendants, the Bank

agrees to join with the Corporation in a petition to

remove the action to the United States District

Court for the proper district, and hereby authorizes

and api3oints as its attorney for the purpose of ef-

fecting such removal, any attorney designated by

the Corporation to act in that capacity. The Bank

agrees to institute as party plaintiff, with or with-

out joinder of the Corporation as co-plaintiff, any

action with respect to any of the property sold, or

any of the property intended to be sold under this

agreement, or any matter connected therewith,

whenever notice requiring such action shall be given

by the Corporation to the Bank stating that in the

opinion of counsel for the Corporation such action

is requisite for the proper protection of the Cor-

poration or the proper protection or enforcement,

collection or liquidation of any of such property.

12. The Corporation agrees to and does hereby

purchase from the Bank the property sold to is by

the Bank for the sum of (a) $906,856.47 in cash, to

be paid upon the deliver}^ and exchange of executed

copies of this agreement, and (b) the amount of the
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liability or liabilities, if any, of the Bank to any

depositor or depositors for any reason act included

and listed in Schedule "^^A" hereto, provided that

the Corporation alone and in its sole and absolute

discretion shall determine, and such determination

by it shall be final, the amount of the liability or

liabilities, if any, and the identity of the depositor

or depositors of the Bank, if any, not so included

and listed in said Schedule '"iV\ The said cash

payment of $906,85(3.47 plus any payments under

clause (b) of this section shall constitute the initial

Cash Purchase Price to be paid by the Corporation

to the Bank and the words, ''Initial Cash Purchase

Price", wherever elsew^here used in this agreement

shall only include and have reference to the pay-

ments by the Corporation provided for in clauses

(a) and (b) of this section, in addition to the Initial

Cash Purchase Price and as part of the purchase

price of the property sold to is by the bank, the

Corporation agrees to pay a further simi, if any,

w^hich further sum is described, defined and limited

as follows (and as so described defined and limited

is hereafter called the '* further sum"). The further

sum shall be in the amount of the net recoveries,

if any, received by the Corporation from the col-

lection inforeement, liquidation, resale or (^])eration

of the property sold to it by the Bank in excess of:

(1) The amount of the initial (*ash j)urchase

price to be paid by the Corporation to the Hank, as

in this section first hereinbefore ]U'ovide(l ; and

(2) All costs oi' li(iui(lati()n paid or incuiTed hy



New York Life Insurance Co., et al 101

the Corporation in connection with the property

sold; and

(3) A reasonable return to the Corporation on

the aggregate amount whicli the Corporation from

time to time has invested in the property sold, in-

cluding, without being limited to: (a) the amount

of the initial cash purchase price referred to in

subdivision (1) of this section, and (b) all costs

of liquidation referred to in subdivision (2) of this

section, such return to be an amount equivalent to

4% per annum of the total unrecovered, unrealized

or uncollected amount of such investment by the

Corporation, after allowing for said recoveries ef-

fected by the Corporation from time to time, such

recoveries to be applied and such reasonable return

to be computed at such reasonable intervals as may
be consistent with the prevailing accounting prac-

tices of the Corporation.

The term '^ costs of liquidation'' as herein em-

ployed, shall include all sums expended or liabilities

assumed or incvirred by the Corporation heretofore

or hereafter in any way arising out of or connected

with any of the following

:

(a) The investigation or examination of the

Bank or its property preparatory to or connected

with the transfer to the Corporation of the property

sold or the negotiation or consummation of the pur-

chase and sale provided for in this agreement;

(b) The supervision, administration, manage-

ment, control, ownership, operation, improvement,

reconstruction, modernization, repairing, replace-

ment, restoration, protection, preservation, enforce-
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ment, collection, liquidation, disposition, sale or re-

sale of the property sold

;

(c) Obligations or liabilities adjudicated against

or imposed upon the Corporation, or voluntarily

assumed by the Corporation by way of compromise

or otherwise, arising out of or connected witli the

purchase by the Corporation of any of the property

sold or tliis agreement or any phase of the trans-

action set forth in this agreement or any act or fail-

ure to act of the Corporation or any of its agents,

with respect to any of the property sold, including,

without being limited to, the expense of investigat-

ing, defending or prosecuting any claims or litiga-

tion and any counsel fees and Court costs connected

therewith
;

(d) Any act done or undertaking assumed or

entered into by the Cori)oration at any time with

respect to the Bank or for the benefit of the Bank

or from which the Bank may derive any direct or

indirect benefit in any way connected witli the prop-

erty sold, this agreement or any phase of the trans-

action set forth in this agreement, iiu^hiding without

being limited to, any loss which the Corporation

may sustain or liability which it may incur b\' rea-

son of any property whicli the Corporation at any

time may purchase or acquire from the Bank or

any subsidiary corporation of the Bank, or any

corporations, substantially all of the stock of wliich

is owned or controlled by the Bank;

(e) Any other expenses, expenditures made or

liabilities assumed or incurred by the Corporation

bearing any reasonable n^latiou to the ])T'operty sold
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or to any act or failure to act of the Corporation

with respect to the property sold or to any phase of

the transaction set forth in this agreement, whether

of the same or different character as the expendi-

tures or liabilities hereinbefore specifically enumer-

ated
;

(f) In each instance, the foregoing specifically

enumerated items of expenditure or liability shall

be deemed to include, without being limited to, sal-

aries of employees of the Corporation, fees, commis-

sions, charges and expenses paid or incurred by the

Corporation to attorneys, accountants, real estate

brokers, real estate operators, appraisers, engineers,

security brokers, insurance brokers, auditors or

other specialists; amounts paid or incurred for

travel, subsistence, telephone, telegraphic or other

communication facilities ; amounts paid or incurred

for the purchase, rental, operation and maintenance

of automobiles, machinery equipment, furnitui*e and

fixtures; rentals paid or incurred for office space;

amounts paid or incurred for real estate taxes, as-

sessments, liens, encumbrances, due or charges;

amounts paid or incurred for repairing, improving

reconstructing, modernizing, preserving, restoring,

replacing, managing or operating real estate, im-

provements on real estate or other property in-

cluded in the property sold; the cost of bookkeep-

ing, accountings, appraisals, examinations, audits or

reports, and the cost of surety bonds, insurance and

indemnifications of every kind or character and all

other expenses of collection, enforcement, liquida-
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tion, ownership, operation or resale of the property-

sold, or arising out of any phase of the transaction

set forth in this agreement.

Any net income which may be received by the

Corporation from the specific property sold ])ending

the collection, enforcement, resale or other liquida-

tion of such property by the Corporation, sliall be

considered recoveries from the operation by tlie

Corporation of the property sold. If tlie Corpora-

tion shall elect at any time to foreclose a borrower's

right, title to or interest in any collateral held as

security to any of the ^'property sold'' and to })ur-

chase said collateral at said sale, any i2,ain realized

from the resale by the Corporation of the pro])erty

so purchased shall be considered recoveries from

the ''property sold" and any loss suffered from the

resale of said property shall be deductible from said

recoveries in determining the amount, if any, of the

Further Sum. The Intitial Cash Purchase Price

and the Further Sum constitute the full considera-

tion to be paid by the Corporation to the Bank.

There shall be no liability or obligation u])on the

Corporation to pay any Purthei* Sum unless and

until the excess recoveries refen-ed to in this Sec-

tion in the definition of ''Fui'ther Sum'' shall liave

been actually received by the Cor])ornti()n.

13. The right of the Hank under Section V2 of

this agreement to a Further Snm is conditional,

and limitcnl to the receipt of the further sum, if any,

wliich !nay l)ecome due it, determined as herein-

before provided. This agre(MiHMi1 doc^s not uivc and
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shall not be construed to give the Bank any right

in or to any portion of the property sold which may
remain after the Corporation shall have been fully

reimbursed and no portion of such excess propertj^

shall revert to or revest in kind in the Bank. The

Bank shall have no right to interfere by legal pro-

cess or otherwise with the absolute management and

control by the Corporation incident to its absolute

ownership of the property sold, including, without

being limited to, the right of the Corporation in its

absolute and uncontrolled discretion to liquidate col-

lect, exchange, sell or dispose of the property sold to

is by the Bank at public or private sale, without no-

tice to the Bank, item by item or in bulk, to make

sales contracts and to agree to releases, extensions,

compromises, compositions and adjustments, and to

enter into contract of every kind or character with

respect to such property and to do all things inci-

dent to its absolute ownership of the property. The

Corporation shall not be held in any Court or other-

wise to account for any act taken by it with respect

to all or any item or portion of the property sold by

the Bank to the Corporation, but shall be liable only

to pay over to the Bank the Further Sum, if any, to

which the Bank may become entitled under the

terms of this agreement.

14. The Bank acknowledges that the sum of

$906,856.47 of clause (a) of the Initial Cash Pur-

chase Price paid by the Corporation for the pro-

perty sold exceeds the present or probably future

realizable value of the proj)erty sold and agrees
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that the findin"' or determination In' unanimous

vote of tlie directors of hte Corjooration, based u])on

the reports of the accounting department employees

of the Corporation, of the amount of the further

sum payable to the Bank under this agreement, or

tliat nothing further is payable to the Bank, shall

be binding and conclusive on the Bank, and the

Bank agrees to indemnifv and hold harmless tlie

Corporation from any cost or expense of any kind

or character arising out of any effort which it or

any stockholders may make, notwithstanding tlie

provisions hereof, through litigation or otherwise,

to require any accounting or to dispute the conclu-

sive effect of any finding or determination by the

corporation.

15. The Bank authorizes the Corporation to make

or cause to be made in such manner and at such

times as the Corporation may determine, inspec-

tions and audits of any books, records and papers in

the custody or control of the Bank and others re-

lating to the financial or business condition of tlie

Bank, including the making of co])ies therefor and

extracts therefrom and the ins])ection and valua-

tion of any of its assets. All constituted federal,

state, municipal and other authorities, including but

not being limited to, the United States Treasury

DepaHment, the Bureau of Internal Bevenue, the

Board of Governors of the Federal Keserve System

and the Com])tr()ller of the Currency are heieby au-

thorized to furnish re])orts of examinations, rec-

ords and other information relatim;- to the conditions
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and affairs of the Bank, upon request therefor by

the Corporation, and are authorized to permit rep-

resentatives of the Corporation to have full access

from time to time to, and to make copies of and ex-

tracts from, all reports by or with respect to the

Bank and all information concerning the Bank from

time to time contained in their files and records.

16. The Bank warrants that the laws pursuant

to which the Bank is incorporated and subject to

which it conducts its business, and its articles of

incorporation or charter, by-laws and other regula-

tions, and the corporate proceedings heretofore

taken, together with the approval of the Comptroller

of the Currency heretofore received by the Bank,

authorize and permit the Bank to sell property to

the extent, in the manner and for the amount and

on the terms set forth in this agreement.

17. Warranties against encumbrances in any deed

to real estate heretofore or hereafter executed by the

Bank in favor of the Corporation covering any item

of real property sold, shall not be deemed to extend

to unpaid taxes or local assessments which are or

may become a lien on the real property so conveyed

by the Bank to the Corporation.

18. This agreement sets forth an understanding

orally agreed to between the parties hereto on Au-

gust 17, 1942, and for the purpose of fixing the

rights of the Corporation as a holder in due course

or for value of any negotiable instrument as against

any person liable thereon, the title of the Corpora-

tion shall be deemed to relate back to that date.

19. This agreement and any amendments or sup-
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plcments hereto, together with all conditions im-

posed by, and all collateral instriunents executed or

entered into with or for the benefit of the Corpora-

tion in connection with its purchase of the property

sold pursuant to the application to the Corporation

heretofore made by the Bank shall constitute the

contract between the Bank and the Corporation.

Such contract shall inure solely to the benefit of

the Corporation its legal successors and assigns, and

shall be binding upon and inui*e to the benefit of

the Bank, its legal successoi's and assigns, but shall

not be assignable by the bank as a whole or in pait

without the written consent of the Corporation, and

shall not be construed to inure to the benefit of any

parties other than the parties hereto.

20. No modification, recession, w^xiver, release

or annulment of any part of such contract shall be

effective, except pursuant to a w^ritten agreement

subscribed by a duly authorized officer of the Cor-

poration.

21. All exhibits, Avritings and contracts refei-red

to in this agi-e^ment shall be and are incorporated

herein by reference, with the same force and effect

as if set foi-th herein at length.

22. The following instruments shall be deemed

exhibits to this agreement:

Exhibit **
A''

: Schedule as to the close of business

on August 29, 1942, showang segregation of the as-

sets of the ]3ank into ^'acceptable assets'' and **un-

acceptabl e assets.
'

'

Exhibit '^B'': Schedules of property sold.
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Exhibit *'C": Certified copy of agreement pro-

viding for the sale of certain assets to and the as-

sumption of deposit liabilities by The United States

National Bank of Portland.

Exhibit '^D": Certified copy of minutes of spe-

cial meeting and adjourned special meeting of the

Board of Directors of the Bank.

Exhibit ''E": Certificate as to officers authorized

to act for Bank.

Exhibit ^^P": Certified copy of minutes of spe-

cial meeting of stockholders of the Bank.

Exhibit "G^'i Opinions of Comisel.

Exhibit '*H": Certified copy of the articles of

incorporation or charter, by-laws and regulations of

the Bank including all amendments to date.

23. The rights and obligations of the parties

hereto shall become eifective forthwith upon dis-

bursement by the Corporation of the amount of the

initial cash purchase price provided to be paid in

accordance with Section 12 of this agreement.

In Testimony AVhereof, the parties hereto have

executed this agreement by their officers thereunto

duly authorized and the Bank has caused its cor-

porate seal to be affixed hereto.

THE HARNEY COUNTY
BANK OP BURNS

By BEN BROWN
President
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Attest

:

[Seal] LEON M. BROWN
Cashier

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSUR-
ANCE CORPORATION

By FRANCIS C. BROWN
Witness

:

LUCY M. BROOKFIELD

State of Oregon,

County of Harney—ss.

On this 29 day of August, 1942, before me ap-

peared Ben Brown to me personally knowTi, who,

being duly sworn, did say that he is the President

of the Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Burns, Oregon, and that the seal affixed to said in-

strument is the corporate seal of said corporation,

and that said instrument was signed and sealed in

behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board

of Directors, and said Ben Brow^n acknowledged said

instrument to be the free act and deed of said cor-

poration.

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my official seal this the day and

year first in this, my certificate written.

ORVAL D. YOKOM
Notary Public in and for said County and State.

My Conunission expires April 7, 1946.



LIABILITIES
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Cash in ^ $962,575.63

Cash in 1 5,012.60

Cash Iter '73.60

Due from 1-00

Due fronj

Banking I

Prepaid \ $ 66,740.56

Prepaid 1 230,14L26

Posta-e S 1,470.98

Reeordak 15.00

Loans an

Stock &
Other Re^D's 586.09

Overdrafivings 571.82

Note cxc'St. Savings 4.90

Nation^awn on First

Special Aland, Oregon.. 255.68

Claim vs.

Total Ace

Add: Pui

able A
Non-Bo

$ 967,662.83

298,367.80

1,418.49

$ 1,267,449.12

^ed $ 1,267,449.12
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Attest

:

[Seal] LEON M. BROWN
Cashier

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSUR-
ANCE CORPORATION

By FRANCIS C. BROWN
Witness

:

LUCY M. BROOKFIELD

State of Oregon,

County of Harney—ss.

On this 29 day of August, 1942, before me ap-

peared Ben Brown to me personally known, who,

being duly sworn, did say that he is the President

of the Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Burns, Oregon, and that the seal affixed to said in-

strument is the corporate seal of said corporation,

and that said instrument w^as signed and sealed in

behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board

of Directors, and said Ben Brow^n acknowledged said

instrument to be the free act and deed of said cor-

poration.

In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed my official seal this the day and

year first in this, my cx^rtificate written.

ORVAL D. YOKOM
Notary Public in and for said Comity and State.

My Commission expires April 7, 194().



EXHIBIT "A"

THE HARNEY COUNTY NATIONAL BANK

BURNS, OREGON

AT THE CLOSE OF BUSINESS, AUGUST 29, 1942

lU

ASSETS

Acceptable AsBet

Cash in Vault $ 92,512.41

Cash in Transit 1.200.00

Cash Items 1.981.86

Due trom V. S. National Bank 80,0.'i7.86

Due from Federal Reserve 159,082.26

Banldna House and Fixtures 25,000.00

Prepaid Ins. on Bank Bldg 383.87

Prepaid F. D. I. C. Assessment 331.24

Postage Stamps 10.15

Recordak Films 6 x 5 :50 33.00

Loans and Diseounts

Stock & Bonds

Other Real Estate

Overdraft Account

Note executed by Harne.v County

National Bank

Special Account for Adjustment

Claim vs. Edward Brown Estate

Total $360,592.65

Total Acceptable Assets $ 360,592.65

Add; Purchase price of Unaccept-

able Assets together with all

Non-Book and Charged off Assets 906,856.47

LIABILITIES

Unaccepted Aaaets Total Assets

$ 92,512.41

1,200.00

1,981.86

80,057.86

159,082.26

25,000.00

383.87

331.24

10.15

33.00

$ 253,192.62 253,192.62

342,172.53 342,172.53

9.00 9.00

3,272.19 3,272.19

800,000.00 800,000.00

150,000.00 150,000.00

268,187.03 268,187.03

$ 1,816,833.37 $2,177,426.02

RECAPITULATION

Demand Deposits:

Sub.ieet to Check

Cashiers' Checks

Certified Check

Demand Certificates

Time Deposits:

Ctfs. of Deposit ...

.Savings Accounts .

Cash Letters of Credit

..$962,575.63

5,012.60

73.60

1.00

..$ 66,740.56

.. 230,141.26

.. 1,470.98

15.00 298,367.f

Other Liabilities:

Accured Interest on C.!D'i

Accrued Interest on Savings

Accrued Interest on Prtst. Savings

Outstanding Drafts drawn on First

National Bank, Portland, Oregon..

586.09

571.82

4.90

i 1,267,449.12 Total Liabilities Transferred $ 1,267.449.12

Certified Correct

(Seal) HARNEY COUNTY NATIONAL BANK
BURNS, OREGON

By LEON M. BEO'WN,
Cashier
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United States of America,

District of Oregon—ss.

CERTIFICATE OP CLERK

I, Lowell Mundorff, Clerk of the District Court

of the United States for the District of Oregon, do

hereby certify that the foregoing pages numbered

from 1 to 95 inclusive, constitute the transcript of

record upon the appeal from a judgment of said

court in a cause therein numbered Civil 1412, in

which Ruby M. Brown is plaintiff and appellant,

and New York Life Insurance Company is defend-

ant and appelee; that said transcript has been pre-

pared by me in accordance with the designation of

contents of the record on appeal filed by the appel-

lant and in accordance with the rules of Court ; that

I have compared the foregoing transcript with the

original record thereof and that it is a full, true and

correct transcript of the record and proceedings had

in said court in said cause, in accordance with the

said designation, as the same appears of record and

on file at my office and in my custody.

I further certify that the cost of comparing and

certifying the within transcript is $35.70 and that

the same has been paid by said appellant.

I further certify that I have enclosed under sep-

arate cover a duplicate transcript of the testimony

taken in this cause together with exhibits 1 to 19, 26

to 28, 30 to 32, 34 to 36, 37 to 40 and 40 A, 44 to 46,

48 and 51.
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In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said Court in Portland,

in said District, this 7th day of March, 1945.

[Seal] LOWELL MUNDORFF
Clerk

By F. L. BUCK
Chief Deputy. [95]

[Endorsed]: No. 11000. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Ruby M.

Brown, Appellant, vs. New York Life Insurance

Company and Federal Deposit Insurance Corpora-

tion, Appellees. Transcript of Record. Upon Ap-

peal from the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon.

Filed March 9, 1945.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.



New York Life Insurance Co., et al 115

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 11000

KUBY M. BROWN,
Appellant,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant,

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION,

Appellee.

STATEMENT OF POINTS ON WHICH AP-
PELLANT INTENDS TO RELY ON AP-
PEAL AND DESIGNATION OF RECORD
TO BE PRINTED

Appellant hereby adopts as its points on appeal

the Statement of Points appearing in the certified

transcript of the record.

Appellant hereby designates for printing the fol-

lowing poi*tions of the certified transcript on appeal

:

(1) Pretrial Order,

(2) Opinion dated June 12, 1944, filed July 12,

1944,

(3) Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law,

(4) Judgment Order,

(5) Motion to Amend Pretrial Order and for a

New Trial,

(6) Affidavit in Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion

to Amend Pretrial Order and for a New Trial,
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(7) Order denying Motion to Amend Pretrial

Order and for a New Trial,

(7a) Notice of Appeal,

(8) Exhibit 34, and

(9) Exhibit 40.

/s/ HAMPSON, KOERNER,
YOUNG & SWEET

JAMES C. DEZENDORF
Attorneys tor Appellant

State of Oregon

County of Multnomah—ss.

Service of the foregoing Statement of Points on

which A])pe]lant Intends to Rely on Appeal and

Designation of Record to be Printed by Copy, as

prescribed by law, is hereby admitted at Portland,

Oregon, this 15th day of March, 1945.

ROBT. P. MAGUIRE
Of Attorneys for Appellee

[Endorsed]: Filed March 19, 1945. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

STIPULATION
In connection with the designations by Appellant

and Appellee of the record to be printed herein,

It Is Hereby Sti])iilated and Agreed that Exhibits

39 and 40 shall be printed in full and that the fii'st

page of Exhibit 34, which is the summary of the

numerous yellow sheets attached thereto, shall be

printed but that the yellow sheets attiiched thereto
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need not }3e printed and Appellant and Appellee

request that the yellow sheets attached to the sum-

mary and all other exhibits which have been filed

with the Clerk at San Francisco be considered in

their original form because of the difficulty and

expense incident to printing thereof.

Dated this 26th day of March, 1945.

JAMES C. DEZENDORF
Of Attorneys for Appellant,

ROBERT F. MAGUIRE
By ROBERT H. AGNEW

Of Attorneys for Appellee

[Endorsed]: Filed March 27, 1945. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

ORDER
A stipulation so providing having heretofore been

filed herein,

It Is Hereby Ordered that Exhibits 39 and 40 and

the summary sheet of Exhibit 34 shall be printed

and included in the printed record, and

It Is Further Ordered that the yellow sheets at-

tached to the summary sheet of Exhibit 34 and all

other exhibits filed herein shall be considered by

this Court in their original form.

Dated at San Francisco, California, this 27th day

of March, 1945.

FRANCIS A. GARRECHT
United States Circuit Judge
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State of Oregon

County of Multnomah—ss.

Sei'vice of the foregoing Order by cox^y, as pre-

scribed by law, is hereby admitted at Portland,

Oregon, this 26th day of March, 1945.

ROBERT F. MAGUIRE
By ROBERT H. AGNEW

Attorney for Appellee

[Endorsed]: Filed March 27, 1945. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk
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No. 11000

5n tf)c mnittii States;

Cirruit Court of Sppeafe
jFor tfje iSintf) Circuit

RUBY M. BROWN,
Appellant^

m VS.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE
COMPANY, Defendant,

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE
CORPORATION, Appellee,

I

prief of appellant

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States,

for the District of Oregon

I

JURISDICTIONAL STATEMENT

Appellant, a citizen of Oregon, brought this action

against Defendant New York Life Insurance Company,

a New York corporation, upon two checks issued to her

by, it, aggregating $20,582.00, payment of which was re-

fused by the bank on which they were drawn.

By way of answer and cross complaint, Defendant



New York Life Insurance Company set up that the checks

which it had issued to Appellant were in payment of the

proceeds of two policies of life insurance issued by it to

Edward N. Brown, in which Appellant was named bene-

ficiary. After the issuance of the checks, Appellee, Fed-

eral Deposit Insurance Corporation (hereinafter called

F.D.I.C.), notified the Defendant New York Life Insur-

ance Company that it had information indicating that

the money used to pay the premiums on the policies were

funds of the Harney County National Bank of Burns,

Burns, Oregon (hereinafter called the Bank). Defendant

New York Life Insurance Company disclaimed any right

or interest in or to the proceeds of the policies, paid the

same into the registry of the Court and prayed that

F.D.I.C. be made a party so that the claims of Appellant

and F.D.I.C. to the proceeds of the policies might be

determined.

After a pretrial conference, the Defendant New York

Life Insurance Company was discharged from further

liability and a trial was had upon the issues joined between

Appellant and F.D.I.C, which resulted in the judgment

which is the subject of this appeal.

Following the entry of judgment. Appellant filed a

Motion for New Trial, which the court denied.

The action was properly filed in the District Court

pursuant to Section 24 of the Judicial Code, as amended,

(28 U.S.C.A., Section 41, subd. (1)).

Defendant New York Life Insurance Company was

entitled to deposit the proceeds of the policies and to re-
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quire Appellant and F.D.I.C. to litigate their claims to

the fund under Section 24 of the Judicial Code, as

amended, (28 U.S.C.A., Section 41, subd. (26) ).

This appeal is taken from the judgment entered in

the trial court and from the order denying Appellant's

Motion for New Trial.

This court has jurisdiction of the appeal by virtue of

Section 128 of the Judicial Code (28 U.S.C.A., Section

225), it being an appeal from final orders of the District

Court, a direct review of which may not be had in the

Supreme Court of the United States under Section 238

of the Judicial Code (28 U.S.C.A., Section 345).
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STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The case was tried in the District Court upon an

Agreed Statement of Facts, which is contained in the

Pretrial Order.^

From the Agreed Statement, it appears that Appel-

lant's son, Edward N. Brown, became connected with the

Harnev County National Bank of Burns, at Burns, Ore-

gon, as a teller in 1927. He became assistant cashier on

January 12, 1932.^

On November 27, 1935, he applied for and New York

Life Insurance Company issued the policies of life insur-

ance involved.^

On January 7, 1936, Brown was elected a Director

of the Bank and on January 11, 1938, he was promoted

to Vice President."*

Brown committed suicide on August 6, 1942, while

the National Bank Examiners were making an examina-

tion of the Bank.^ It was later found that he was short

about $416,000.00.^

Brown paid all but one of the premiums on the poli-

cies by checks drawn on his accounts in the Bank. It was

impossible to determine upon wliat bank the check in

payment of the last premium was drawn.'

1 R. 2-24.

2 R. 15.

3 R. 3.

4 R. 15.

5 R. 16.

R. 16 and 17.

7 R. 5 and 6.



Due proof of death of Brown was furnished to and

received by New York Life Insurance Company and, by

reason thereof, there became due and payable to Appel-

lant, the beneficiary, the sum of $20,582.00.*

On or about August 18, 1942, New York Life Insur-

ance Company issued and on August 21, 1942, it deliv-

ered to Appellant two checks whereby it directed the

L^nited States National Bank of Portland (Oregon) to

pay to the order of Appellant the sum of $20,582.00.^

Appellant presented the checks to the United States

National Bank for payment on September 4, 1942, and

it failed and refused to pay Appellant any sum thereon

and advised her that New York Life Insurance Company

had previously countermanded payment thereof.^^.

Prior to September 4, 1942, when Appellant presented

the checks for payment, F.D.I.C. had notified the New
York Life Insurance Company that it had information

indicating that the money used to pay the premiums on

the policies were funds of the Harney County National

Bank. This notification prompted the New York Life

Insurance Company to stop payment on the checks. ^"^

The balances in Brown's accounts at the time his checks

in payment of the premiums were cleared through the

Bank and the credits to his accounts which made up the

various balances are all agreed upon.*^^

8 R. 4.

9 R. 4.

10 R. 4.

11 R. 4 and 5.

12 R. 5-14.
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The question of fact and issues of law which were to

be determined by the trial court are clearly defined in the

Pretrial Order.^^

The cause was submitted on August 13, 1943, and

briefs were then filed. On June 12, 1944, the court's deci-

sion was announced and on July 12, 1944, the opinion was

filed. ^^ Findings, Conclusions and Judgment were entered

November 20, 1944.^^

On November 28, 1944, Appellant filed her Motion

for New Trial. ^^ The IMotion was argued January 8,

1945, and the Order Denying the INIotion was entered

January 31, 1945.^^

Notice of Appeal from the Judgment and from the

Order denying Appellant's JNIotion for New Trial was

duly filed February 13, 1945.^^

13 R. 25-28.

14 R. 32-53.

15 R. 54-68.

1« R. 68-71.

17 R. 77.

18 R. 78.



SPECIFICATION OF ERROR I

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN CONCLUDING THAT
F.D.LC. SUCCEEDED TO OR BECAME SUBROGATED TO
THE RIGHTS, IF ANY, OF THE HARNEY COUNTY NATION-

AL BANK AGAINST THE PROCEEDS OF THE POLICIES.

(a) When F.D.LC. made good the shortages in the de-

positors' accounts, the right of the Bank or of its depositors

to pursue the claim against Brown's insurance was destroyed,

otherwise a dual recovery would be permitted.

(b) After payment by F.D.LC, there was in existence

no enforceable claim against the insurance proceeds which

the Bank could assign to F.D.LC. and which would support

a recovery in favor of F.D.LC.

(c) F.D.LC. has no right of subrogation.

(d) The assignment to it of the assets of the Bank or
of the depositors' claims cannot assist it.

ARGUMENT

We contended in the trial court and we still insist that

there is at the threshold an insuperable obstacle which

defeats F.D.I.C.'s claim to the proceeds of the insurance

policies.

The question is raised by the first Issue of Law con-

tained in the Pretrial Order/^ It is as follows:

ii^'Whether Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation suc-

ceeded to or became subrogated to the Bank's rights, if

any, as against the proceeds of the insurance policies

upon the life of Edward N. Brown."

19 R. 26.
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F.D.I.C., as its name implies, is a Government owned

insurance company, engaged in the business of guarantee-

ing depositors' accounts in banks which pay to it annually

a premium equal to 1/12 of 1% of the total deposit

liability.''

It is admitted in this case that the Harney County

National Bank had paid the necessary assessments or

premiums so that its depositors' accounts were insured

by the F.D.I.C.^^

It is also conceded that F.D.I.C. made good the short-

ages which were discovered in the accounts of the depos-

itors of the Harney County National Bank after Brown

committed suicide.^

Appellant's contention that F.D.I.C. is in no position

to assert the rights which miglit have been available to the

depositors or the Bank except for its responding upon

its obligation to make good the sliortages in tlie depos-

itors' accounts is founded upon the case of American

Surety Co. v. Bank of California, 44 F. Supp. 81 ; af-

firmed 183 F. (2d) 1()().

In that case Crowe wrongfully abstracted money from

Interior's account at tlie Bank of California under such

circumstances that tlic l^ank was liable to Interior for its

loss. Interior had a policy of insurance with American

Surety Co. ])r()tecting it against Crowe's infidelity and

it made a claim under tlie ])()licy and the loss was made

20 12U. S. C. A., § 264 (1).

ai H. 10.

22 H. 14.
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good. American Surety Co. took an assignment of In-

terior's claim against the Bank and attempted to recover

on it against the Bank.

It was held that in responding on its policy the Ameri-

can Surety Co. merely did what it undertook to do for a

consideration and therefore its payment discharged the

debt and it could not aid its position or change the con-

sequences by taking an assignment or anything else.

In our case here, it is claimed that Brown wrongfully

abstracted money from depositors' accounts in the Harney

County National Bank under such circumstances that the

Bank was liable for the losses. F.D.I.C. had insured the

depositors' accounts and it responded and has made good

the shortages in the depositors' accounts, taking an assign-

ment of the depositors' claims against the Bank. In this

action F.D.I.C. is attempting to assert the remedy which

the depositors and the Bank had to reach the proceeds of

the policies on the life of the wrongdoer, and under the

doctrine of the American Surety Co. case it must be held

that when F.D.I.C. made good the shortages in the depos-

itors' account that it merely did what it undertook to do

for a consideration and therefore its payment discharged

the debt and it can not aid its position or change the conse-

quences by taking an assignment or anything else.

A diagram best demonstrates the applicability of the

rule of the American Surety Co. case to the facts of this

case.
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Interior ^Bank of California

Crowe -^ American Surety Co.

Crowe, whose fidelity was insured by Interior with

American Surety, wrongfully abstracted money from

Interior's account under circumstances making the Bank

of California liable for the loss. Interior therefore had a

claim for its loss against Crowe, American Surety and !

the Bank. It called on the Surety Company to respond

and it did so, taking an assignment of Interior's claim

against the Bank. Held payment by the insurer extin-

guished the debt and it could not recover over against the

Bank either by virtue of the assignment or subrogation.

^.^r'Brown's Insurance

--' .'"^

Depositors -^- ^Bank *

\
Brown''-* F.D.I.C.

Brown wrongfully abstracted money from depositors

accounts which were insured by F.D.I.C. under circum-

stances making the Bank liable for the loss. Depositors

therefore had a claim against Brown, F.D.I.C. and the

Bank. Depositors called upon F.D.I.C. to respond and

it did so, taking an assignment of depositors' claims against

the Bank. It must be held that payment by the insurer

extinguished the debt so that it does not hold by reason of
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assignment or subrogation any rights which the depositors

or the Bank might have had over against Brown's Insur-

ance but for its payment of the claims.

In the trial court, F.D.I.C.'s counsel argued that the

American Surety Co. case was not applicable because:

1. F.D.I.C. was the owner by assignment of the

Bank's claim against the insurance,

2. F.D.I.C. was seeking to enforce a property right

assigned to it by the Bank,

3. If F.D.I.C. claimed by reason of subrogation.

Appellant was no better off than her son—the

wrongdoer,

4. As subrogee it had a right to recover the Bank's

property as against Appellant, who paid nothing

to become the beneficiary,

5. Edward N. Brown was the wrongdoer and Ap-
pellant claimed only through him.

Not one of the five reasons assigned is adequate by

itself or in combination with any or all of the others to

distinguish the case.

F.D.I.C. says it is the owner by assignment of the

Bank's claim (Reasons 1 and 2 above). However, the

F.D.I.C.—being an insurer for a consideration—by mak-

ing good the shortages, destroyed the Bank's and the

depositors' claims against Brown's life insurance—wit-

ness the following language from the American Surety

Co, opinion (pp. 164 and 165 of 133 F. (2d) ) :

"When Insurers (F.D.I.C.) paid Interior (made
good the shortages in the depositors' accounts), the
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right of Interior (the Bank or the depositors) to

pursue its claim against Bank (the depositor against

the Bank; the Bank against Brown's insurance) was
destroyed as Interior (the depositors or the Bank)
would not be permitted a dual recovery. Therefore,

there was in existence no enforceable claim against

Bank (the depositors against the Bank; the Bank
against Brown's insurance) which Interior (the de-

positors or the Bank) could assign to Insurers

(F.D.I.C.), and which woidd support recovery in

favor of Insurers (F.D.I.C.). * * * That Oregon
law follows the rule stated is evident in American
Central Ins. Co. v. Weller, 106 Or. 494, 212 P. 803,

where the court held, as already mentioned in connec-

tion with this case, that payment by the insurer

(F.D.I.C.) on the insurance* policy (l2 U.S.C.A.,

Sec. 264 (1)) satisfied the debt involved, and con-

cluded that the debt could not be assigned.

"Insurers (F.D.I.C.) have no right of subroga-

tion. The assignment to them of Interior's (the de-

positors' claim against the Bank; the Bank's claim

against Brown's insurance) cause of action against

the Bank (the depositors' claim against the Bank; the

Bank's claim against Brown's insurance) cannot

assist them."

F.D.I.C. says if it must rely on subrogation that its

rights are superior to Appellant's since she claims only

through the wrongdoer (Reasons 3, 4 and 5 above) . How-
ever, Appellant does not claim through the wrongdoer

but under solenui contracts in which she was designated the

beneficiary and it cannot be claimed that she had either

actual or constructive notice of her son's wrongdoing.

I
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The equities are in her favor as against an insurer for a

consideration—witness the following statements from the

American Surety Co. opinion (pp. 162, 163 and 164 of

133 F. (2d)):

"The right of subrogation is a creature of equity,

applicable where one person is required to pay a debt

for which another is primarily responsible, and which

the latter should in equity discharge. In theory one

person is substituted to the claim of another, but

only when the equities as between the parties pre-

ponderate in favor of the plaintiff. * * * A
surety may pursue the independent right of action

of the original creditor against a third person, but

it must appear that said third person participated in

the wrongful act involved or that he was negligent,

for the right to recover from a third person is merely

conditional in contrast to the right to recover from the

principal which is absolute. The equities of the one
asking for subrogation must be superior to those of

his adversary. If the equities are equal or if the de-

fendant has the greater equity, subrogation will not

be applied to shift the loss.

* * *

"In the instant case the surety contracts are con-

fined to Insurers and Interior. Any right of recov-

ery against third parties for money paid Interior by
Insurers under the contracts must rest solely upon
a weighing of the equities as between the third parties

and Insurers. Such equities generally depend upon
participation in wrongdoing, negligence, or knowl-
edge, although we do not mean to say that these

expressions cover the gamut of equities which may or

should be considered.

"In all of the situations outlined defendants had
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actual knowledge of facts sufficient to put them on
notice of the wrongdoing and in a way, therefore,

were implicated in the wrong done. * * * Xo
indication is found that Bank knew any facts which

would suggest the fraud of an employee of its de-

positor. Insurers, on the other hand, expressly con-

tracted to secure Interior against losses caused by a

dishonest employee, such as Crowe. They accepted

the responsibility for such losses for a compensation,

the premiums paid to them, which they have retained.

Both they and Bank are innocent of any wrong-
doing, although all were liable to Interior (under

assumption of Bank's liability to Interior) on the

basis of independent contract obligations—the im-

plied contract of Bank to pay only to those entitled,

and the contracts of Insurers to indemnify against

losses caused by a defalcating employee. Since In-

surers expressly, voluntarily and for a compensation

guaranteed against loss in the exact situation involved,

the equity in the situation cannot lie in favor of In-

surers and against Bank for the payment made."

This issue was disposed of by the trial court in these

words :^

"Finally, it is objected that no matter what were

the rights of the bank, the intervenor could not suc-

ceed to them because, having assumed the deposit

liability of the bank the obligation was thus satisfied.

It is assumed that this objection can be based upon
American Surety Company vs. Bank of California,

decided by this court in an opinion reported in 44 F.

Su])]). 81, and affirmed by the Circuit Court of Ap-
peals for the Ninth Circuit in an opinion reported in

133 F. (2d) 100. The confusion of plaintiff seems to

arise from the fact that no account is taken of the

23 R. 52 and 53.
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specific contract made in these two cases. The Ameri-
can Surety Company had there become responsible

for the fidelity of the embezzler and when the pro-

ceeds of the wrongdoing were replaced, the obligation

was completely satisfied. Here, the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation was under duty simply to

replace the assets, no matter how the loss occurred.

It has no specific responsibility for the fidelity of

Brown. When it carried out the obligation to replace

the assets lost, it acquired the right of the bank against

the wrongdoer. Both these cases are ruled by Oregon
decisions. The American Surety Company case is

governed by the opinion in the case of American Cen-
tral Insurance Company vs. Weller, 106 Oregon 494.

This case, on the other hand, is governed by the Jan-
sen case above cited."

While it is perhaps unimportant, it should be noted

that the trial court misstated the issue to be decided.

No one contends and it is not the fact that F,I.D,C,

''assumed the deposit liability of the hank".

According to the admitted facts, F.D.I.C. merely re-

placed the shortages in the depositors' accounts.^

The trial court attempted to distinguish the American

Surety Co. case on the ground that the obligation as-

sumed by F.D.I.C. was different from that assumed by

the Surety Company.

There is no distinction in the liability assumed if

24 R. 14.
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F.D.I.C/s obligation and uchat it actuaUjj did according

to the adinitted facts is correctly stated,

American Surety Co. agreed to make good a shortage

due to an employee's infidelity. F.D.I.C. agreed to make

good a shortage whether due to an employee's infidelity

or merely to bad judgment. F.D.I.C.'s obligation was

greater than the Surety Company's but what it was called

on to do in this case w^as to fulfill the identical obligation

which the Surety Company assumed in the American

Surety Co. case.

Here F.D.I.C. made good the shortage due to the

employee's infidelity. In the American Surety Co. case

the Surety Company made good the shortage due to the

employee's infidelity.

F. D. I. C, by so responding, can acquire no better

standing than American Surety Co. did when it responded

in identically the same way.

In the concluding sentences of its opinion on this point,

the trial court says:^

'*The American Surety Company case is gov-

erned by the opinion in the case of American Central

Insurance Company vs. Weller, 106 Oregon 494.

This case, on the other hand, is governed by the Jan-

sen case above cited."

35 R. 53.
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The Jansen case referred to is Jansen v. Tyler, 151

Ore. 268, 47 P. (2d) 969, 49 P. (2d) 372, which merely

holds that where an employee embezzles funds and uses

them to pay life insurance premiums, the employer may

claim the proceeds of the policies to the extent that em-

bezzled funds were used to pay the premiums. The Jan-

s!en case is not concerned with a third party attempting,

by virtue of assignment or subrogation, to assert the right

of the one whose funds were stolen. It has no bearing upon

the right of F.D.I.C. or of American Surety Co. to assert

the right of the victim after the loss has been made good.

The American Surety Co. case is controlling and it

must be held that F.D.I.C. has no claim to the proceeds

of the policies. A judgment awarding all of the proceeds

of the policies to Appellant should be entered.
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SPEanCATION OF ERROR II

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FEVDING AND CON-

CLUDING THAT F.D.I.C. WAS ENTITLED TO AN\ OF THE
PROCEEDS OF THE POLICIES.

(a) Since the conlrollmg facts were stipulated, the or-

dinary rule that the trial court's findings will not be reviewed

is without application and this court is free to reach its own
conclusion untrammeled by the District Court's Findings and

Conclusions.

(b) The sole question for determination is whether the

premiums were paid with funds wrongfully embezzled or mis-

appropriated from the Bank.

(c) The trial court found and concluded that embezzled

funds were not traced into Brown's accounts or into the

premium payments.

(d) Tlie trial court held and it is the law that unless the

stolen funds can be directly traced into the insurance pre-

miums, there can be no recovery by or on behalf of the Bank.

(e) The moneys drawn by Brown as salary were not

embezzled funds.

(f ) Tliere is no such thing as an automatic setoff which

would extinguish the balances in Brown's accounts when the

premium checks cleared.

(g) Tlie burden of proving that embezzled funds went

into the payment of the premiums was on F.D.I.C.

(h) Since Bro\^Ti had other sources of income and the

exact items of credit making up the balances in his accounts

have been agreed upon^ it cannot be found or concluded that

the funds in his accounts were embezzled.

(i) If conimiugling I»e assumed, since Brown's o>vn funds

were more than sufficient to pay eac-h of the premiums when

the checks cleared, Appellant is entitled to prevail.

(j) Tlie admitted facts compel the conclusion that Ap-

pellant is entitled to prevail.
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ARGUMENT

(a) Since the controlling facts were stipulated, the ordinary

rule that the trial court's findings will not be reviewed

is without application and this court is free to reach its

own conclusion untrammeled by the EHstrict Court's Find-

ings and Conclusions.

Since the controlling facts have been agreed upon and

are contained in the Pretrial Order,^^ the ordinary rule that

an appellate court will accept the trial court's findings of

fact, where it saw the witnesses and observed their de-

meanor, is without application.^^

The facts having been stipulated, this court on this

appeal is free to reach its own conclusion untrammeled by

the district court's findings and conclusions.^^

(b) The sole question for determination is whether the pre-

miums were paid with funds wrongfully embezzled or

misappropriated from the Bank.

Assuming the first Issue of Law framed in the Pre-

trial Order (which raises the question as to F.D.I.C.'s

right to claim the proceeds of the policy as assignee or by

way of subrogation) is decided against Appellant—the

possibilitj^ of which assumption we expressly deny—it

will then become necessary for the court to decide the

remaining Issues of Law.

26 R. 3-16.

27 British American Assur. Co. v. Bowen (CCA. 10th), 134 F. (2d)

256, 260.
28 Wigginton v. Order of United Commercial Travelers of America

(CCA. 7th), 126 F. (2d) 659, 661, certiorari denied 317 U. S. 636,
87 L. ed. 513, 63 S. Ct. 28. See also Cyclopedia of Federal Procedure
(2ded.),Vol. 12, § 6211, p. 268.
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The second Issue of Law is as follows:^

"Whether the various premium payments were paid '

with funds belonging to Edward N. Brown or with funds

wrongfully embezzled or misappropriated from the Har-

ney County National Bank of Bums, Burns, Oregon."

This question is one of law because all of the facts with

regard to the balances in Brown's accounts at the time the

premium checks cleared and the items of credit making

up the balances have been agreed upon.^

(c) Tlie trial court found and concluded that embezzled funds

were not traced into Brown's accounts or into the pre-

mium payments.

No evidence was offered and none exists to show that

any of the stolen funds went into Brown's bank accounts

against which the premium checks were drawTi.

The trial court, in its opinion, made it clear that there is

no evidence that the embezzled funds went into Brown's

accounts, in the following words :^^

"The cardinal factor is, that no item of the em-

bezzled funds is traced directly into the premiums

of the insurance policies, nor into the bank accounts,

which Brown maintained with the Harney County

National Bank."

(d) Tlie trial court held and it is the law that unless the

stolen funds can be directly traced into tlie insurance

premiums, there can be no recovery by or on behalf

of the Bank.

29 R. 26.
30 Baer v. Lorimcr (Cal. 1934), 28 P. (2d) 909, 910. See also Wiggin-

ton V. Order of United Oniniercial Travelers (CCA. 7th), 126 F.

(2d) 659, 661, certiorari denied 317 U. S. 636, 87 L. ed. 513, 63 S.

Gt. 28.
31 R. 35.
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In the trial court, we contended that before F.D.I.C.

could share in the proceeds of the policies it would have to

be proven that the stolen funds entered Brown's various

accounts.

The law on this point is clear^^ and the trial court held

correctly that the stolen funds must be traced into Brown's

accounts before F.D.I.C. can prevail.

Witness this paragraph of the court's opinion :^

"It is, however, established that there was a con-

fidential relationship and a breach thereof. But ac-

cording to the definition of a constructive trust, prop-

erty must pass into the hands of the persons upon
whom the courts impose it, or by his machinations, into

the hands of third parties in order to lay a basis for

recovery. There is no doubt that upon the discovery

that the funds had been stolen, the bank could have
recovered from Brown in some of the forms of

assumpsit or debt, but UNDER THE DOC-
TRINES OF RESTITUTION IT COULD
NOT RECOVER SPECIFIC PROPERTY
FROM HIM, OR FROM A THIRD PARTY,
UNLESS IT COULD BE PROVEN THAT
THE FUNDS SO ABSTRACTED FROM
THE BANK WERE INCLUDED THEREIN,
OR WERE PART OF THE PURCHASE
PRICE THEREOF. THEREFORE, UNLESS
THE STOLEN FUNDS COULD BE DI-
RECTLY TRACED INTO SPECIFIC ARTI-
CLES OF PROPERTY, OR INTO LIFE IN-
SURANCE PREMIUMS, THERE COULD

32 Picciano v. Miller (Idaho 1943), 137 P. (2d) 788, 790, 791; Bogert,
Trusts and Trustees, Vol. 4, § 921, p. 2651; Restatement, Trusts, §

202; Restatement, Restitution, §§ 205, 215.
33 R. 42 and 43.
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BE NO RECOVERY BY THE BANK OF THE
ARTICLES OR PROCP^EDS OF THE POLI-
CIES, NOTWITHSTANDING THE IM-
MORAL AND ILLEGAL OPERATIONS OF
BROWN AND THE GREAT LOSS CAUSED
TO THE BANK THEREBY."

Since the stolen funds were not traced into Brown's

bank accounts out of which the premiums were paid

—

and the trial court so held^—all of the proceeds of the

policies should have been awarded to Appellant.

(e) The moneys drawn by Brown as salary were not em-

bezzled funds.

Under the admitted facts, several premium payments

on the policies were made in whole or in part with funds

Brown had drawn as salary.^

Legal issues III, IV and V, stated in the Pretrial

Order,^ raise the question whether Appellant or F.D.I.C.

is entitled to claim the benefit of the premium payments

so made.

"Ill

''Are the items of deposit wliich are constituted by

salary paid by the Bank to Brown and placed in his ac-

count, moneys belonging to Brown which constitute an

actual credit to the account?

IV

661
•If Brown, at the time of drawing said salaries, was

guilty of embezzlement, misappropriations, defalcations

^ See page 20 herein.

35 R. G-13, paragraphs X, XI, XII, XIII, XV, XVI, XVII and XVIII.

38 R. 2G and 27.
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or other breach of trust in his dealings with the Bank,

was he entitled to any compensation from the Bank?

''If it be held that Brown was not entitled to any

conipensation from the Bank, were the funds that he

drew as compensation funds wrongfully embezzled, mis-

appropriated or converted from the Bank?'m

F.D.I.C. contended below that Brown was not enti-

tled to draw any salary because of his infidelity.

Appellant contended and now insists that the ques-

tion is not whether he was entitled to draw his salary

—

the fact remains that he did. The question is whether the

funds so drawn were "funds wrongfully embezzled or

misappropriated from the bank". If they were not

—

regardless of whether he was entitled to draw his salary

by reason of his infidelity—Appellant is entitled to the

benefit of the payments so made.

We have found no case holding that one from whom
money is embezzled is entitled to claim the benefit of

premium payments made with money drawn as salary.

One of the leading cases in which one from whom
money was embezzled sought to invoke the remedy of

following the embezzled funds into the premiums and then

into the proceeds of the policy is Truelsch v. Northwest-

ern Mutual Life Insurance Company, 38 A.L.R. 914,

186 Wis. 239, 202 N.W. 352.

In that case the wrongdoer's salary was paid over to

his wife and she used it to run the home. The money used

to pay the premiums was definitely shown to have been
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embezzled and the court rightly held that the employer

was entitled to enforce a trust on the proceeds of the policy

to the extent that his funds could be traced into it. While

the exact point with which we are here concerned is not

mentioned by the court, there is a clear implication to the

effect that had the premiums been paid from the em-

ployee's salary that the employer would not have been

entitled to prevail.

It may be conceded that there are many cases holding

that a corporate officer or agent who is guilty of em-

bezzlement, fraud, mismanagement or gross neglect is not

entitled to claim or sue for his stipulated salary
.^^

But before F.D.I.C. is entitled to the benefit of any

premiums paid, it must be shown that the money used to

pay them was "wrongfully embezzled or misappropri-

ated" from the Harney County National Bank.^

The sums which Brown drew as salary were drawn

with the knowledge, consent and ap2)roval of the Bank.^^

Under no possible theory could it be held that funds

so acquired were "wrongfully embezzled or misappropri-

ated" from the Bank. i

In Sweet v. Lang (CCA. 8th), 14 F. (2d) 762, it is"

held that a receiver acquires no interest in a policy on the

life of an officer, payable to his wife or estate, the pre-

miums on which were paid with company funds, when the

corporation knew of and ratified the payments.

37 See 5 Fletcher on Corporations, Perm, ed., § 2145, p. 462.
3« R. 20—Issue of Law II.

39 R. 15 and 16—Pretrial Order Paragraph XXII.
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In Oliver v. Northwestern Mutual Life Ins, Co.,

(D. C. Pa.) , 2 F. Supp. 266, it is held that where premiums

are paid with company funds drawn with the consent of

the stockholders and directors that there is no breach of

trust sufficient to permit a receiver to recover the

premiums.

Funds drawn by Brown as salary were no more "em-

bezzled funds" than money regularly borrowed from a

bank and it has neverj been held that a lender can follow

money borrowed to pay premiums into the proceeds of the

policy.

In Jansen v, Tyler, 151 Ore. 268, 47 P. (2d) 969, 49 P.

(2d) 372, the Oregon Supreme Court established the rule

under which F.D.I.C. (if it should prove that Brown paid

the premiums with funds or property embezzled, mis-

appropriated or wrongfully converted from the Bank,)

would be entitled to that proportion of the proceeds of

the policies which the premiums paid with stolen funds

bear to the total premiums paid.^" In that case it was held

that Tyler paid the first 3 premium payments upon the

policies involved with company funds. The balance of

the premium payments were held to have been made with

Tyler's own funds. Tyler's embezzlements and misap-

propriations were at all times in a very large amount and

at the time of his death he had overdrawn his salary ac-

count by at least $5,000.00. Unquestionably, some of the

premium payments which were held to have been made

with Tyler's own funds were paid with funds which he

40 R. 28—paragraph XL
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drew from his salary account, either as salary or over-

draft, but they were still held to have been paid with

Tyler's funds and not with the corporation's.

Clearly the salary items are not "embezzled funds" so

that F.D.I.C. cannot benefit from the payments made

with them.

(f) Tliere is no such thing as an automatic setoff ^hich would
extinguish the balances in Brown's accounts when the

premium checks cleared.

Since the stolen funds were not and cannot be traced

into Brown's bank accounts and since the salary items are
ft-

not "embezzled funds", F. D. I. C. conjured up a theory

to destroy the balances in Brown's accounts when the

premium checks cleared in an attempt to prevent Appel-

lant from recovering.

F.D.I.C.'s theory (which the trial court followed) is

that of automatic setoff.

Issues of Law VII and VIII are as follows :^^

"Does the fact that BrowTi embezzled and misap-

propriated or wrongfully converted moneys, funds or

property belonging to tlie Bank automatically extinguish,

without a cbarge or set off by tbe Bank, any items of

deposit of bis own funds in any account upon which

checks in payment of premiums were drauii?"

"If it l>e found that Brown bad embezzled, misap-

propriated or wrongfully converted funds or property

41 R. 27 and 28.



27

of the Bank, exceeding the amount of any items of de-

posit in his accounts, at or before the time of the charg-

ing of any check for premiums, whatever may have been

the source of such items, is the Defendant entitled to

the benefit of the premium payment so made?"

In the trial court, F.D.I.C. contended that even

though it be held that Brown's salary and the other items

credited to his account are "his funds", as distinguished

from moneys "embezzled" from the Bank, that there never

were any actual balances in any of his accounts because

at all times his embezzlements exceeded any balances

which might otherwise exist.

It is Appellant's contention that the balance in any or

all of Brown's accounts can not be extinguished as of a

long past date, by merely showing that he had at all times

embezzled more than his balances.

In American National Bank v. King, 158 Okla. 278, 13

P. (2d) 164, King, while cashier and president of the

bank, embezzled and misappropriated large sums of

money—exceeding at all times the balance in his account
^

at the bank. During the period when he was a defaulter,

he took out insurance on his life, in favor of his wife and

family. King committed suicide and the embezzlements

were discovered. Thereafter the Bank brought action to

share in the proceeds of the policy to the extent that the

premiums were paid from funds of the bank. It was con-

tended that while the premiums were paid by checks drawn

on King's personal account, that there never was any

actual balance in his favor because at all times he had
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embezzled far more than the balance shown in his account.

The trial court and the Oklahoma Supreme Court refused

to follow the Bank's theory (which is identical with that

asserted here by F.D.I.C.) and held that the balance in

King's account could not be so extinguished.

Another case which is helpful as showing that there

can be no such thing as a retroactive automatic setoff is

the case of Duke v. Johnson, 127 Wash. 601, 221 Pac. 321.

In that case Johnson bought shares in the bank under an

agreement with Larson that he (Larson) would repur-

chase them if Johnson at any time wished to return them.

Johnson, while Vice President and Director of the bank,

called upon Larson to repurchase the stock, which was

done by the delivery to Johnson of a cashier's check which

was subsequently charged by Larson to the personal ac-

count in the bank of one Lindeberg, who owned most of

the stock of the bank. Shortly after the check was paid the

bank was found to be insolvent and the plaintiff—the State

Supervisor of Banking—took charge. The Supervisor

brought action to recover from Johnson the amount of the

check issued in repurchase of his stock, which was charged

to Lindeberg's account, on the theory that he (Johnson)

wrongfully took the bank's assets while A^ice President

and a Director thereof. The trial court decided against

the Supervisor and he appealed. In affirming the judg-

ment, the Supreme Court of Washington said (p. 322 of

221 Pac.) :

"The ap])enant further contends that the credit

to Lindeberg's account as shown on the books of the

bank was fictitious rather than real. This claim is
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founded on the fact that the bank then held Linde-

berg's obhgations for an amount possibly in excess of

his checking account. But the hank had not then at-

tempted to exercise a right of set-off, even conceding

it had such right. It then recognized the account as a

checking account, and as long as it did so, Lindeberg
or his authorized agent were privileged to draw checks

thereon."

Another case in point is Peoples State Bank v. Cater-

pillar Tractor Co., 12 N.E. (2d) 123. In that case the

Tractor Company sold a tractor to its dealer on a condi-

tional sales contract and took an assignment of the pur-

chase order which the dealer held and all moneys due under

it. The dealer delivered the machine to the customer, col-

lected the funds and deposited them in its bank account.

The dealer then drew a check for a part of the amount due

on the conditional sales contract in the Tractor Company's

favor and the bank then set off its claim against the dealer

on a past due note and dishonored the Tractor Company's

demand for the funds due it on the sale of the tractor.

Reversing the trial court, the Supreme Court of Indiana

said (p. 126 of 12 N.E. (2d) ) :

"A deposit in bank creates a relationship of cred-

itor and debtor between the bank and the depositor,

and the bank has the right at its option to set off its

indebtedness to the depositor against any debt which

may be due from the depositor to the bank. But, until

the hank elects to set off , any one in favor of whom
checks are drawn and paid takes the funds free of

any claim hy the hank. * * * The rights of the par-

ties therefore must be determined as of the time when
the appellant elected to exercise its right to set-off."
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It will thus be seen that no retroactive automatic setoff

can be claimed in order to avoid the effect of past com-

pleted transactions.

In the trial court, counsel for F.D.I.C. did not contend

that the case of McConncll v. Henochsherg, 11 Tenn. Ap-

peals 176, supported their theory of automatic setoff but

it was cited to support the following proposition of law:

"A constructive trust is created, arising ex male-

ficio out of the fraud and dishonest conduct of one

who purchases for himself with the funds of another."

The trial court adopted F.D.I.C.'s theory of automatic

setoff and as supporting authority placed its decision

solely and squarely upon McConnM v, Hcnoclisherg,

The trial court said:''^

"The result is, that the Tennessee case (McCon-
nell v. Henochsberg) is the only reasoned case upon
this particular set of circumstances. Inasmucli as this

decision squares with correct doctrine, as indicated by
the previous discussion, it will be followed upon this

point. All the money paid out upon checks issued by
Brown against his paper accounts, belonged to the

bank."

An analysis of the McConn'cU case shows that (1) it

is not in point on the facts, (2) it was decided in 1929 by

an intermediate appellate court in Tennessee, (3) while

« R. 49.
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there have been literally thousands of cases on the subject

of tracing stolen funds into insurance premiums, it has

never once been cited or followed, and (4) it does not sup-

port the theory of automatic setoff.

In the McConnell case H was teller and assistant

cashier in a bank in Memphis. During an examination of

the bank by the State Bank Examiners a shortage was

discovered. H thereafter confessed his guilt and took his

life. The bank thereupon closed its doors and was taken

over by the superintendent of banks. An audit revealed

that H was $329,591.75 short. The auditors were able to

reconstruct H's transactions so as to show his methods of

withdrawals and concealment. At the time of H's death,

there was in force a considerable amount of life insurance

payable to his wife, son and daughter. One-third of the

insurance was taken out prior to 192Q and all premium

payments made prior to that date were paid with H's own
funds. H maintained six accounts in the bank and all

premium payments subsequent to 1920 were made from

these accounts. While H's salary was $300.00 to $350.00

per month (which he deposited in these six accounts) in

the seven years following 1920 he ran through his accounts

over $116,000.00. A very conmderable part of the deposits

entering H's accounts were made from funds stolen from

the bank. While H had outside enterprises, all were un-

profitable except one on which he made approximately

$1,000.00. By his own confession H lost large sums in

gambling over a period of years. The auditors, by an

analysis of H's six bank accounts, demonstrated that all
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premiums paid on the life insurance policies subsequent to

1920 were made out of funds embezzled from the bank.

H had sources other than his salary and funds stolen from

the bank "but the amounts received from these sources

are insignificant".

Upon this evidence, the trial court held that the super-

intendent of banks was entitled to all the proceeds realized

from the insurance upon H's life which was taken out sub-

sequent to 1920 and to a proportionate part of the funds

paid upon the policies taken out before 1920 in the ratio

that the premiums paid subsequent to 1920 bore to those

paid by H prior to 1920.

The beneficiaries appealed, contending (1) no prece-

dent in Tennessee warranted the imposition of a construc-

tive trust upon the proceeds of insurance policies, the pre-

miums on which were paid wholly or partly with embezzled

funds, (2) the beneficiaries acquired a vested property

right in the policies upon payment of the initial premiums,

(3) the imposition of a constructive trust never follows

the mere showing of misappropriations, (4) trust funds

could not be held to reaj)pear in H's accounts when new

deposits were made after complete exhaustion thereof,

(5) the burden was on the superintendent of banks to

clearly and definitely trace the trust funds into and out

of H's accounts and into the premiums paid, and (6) since

other funds were available for ])ayment of premiums there

was no presumption that they were paid out of embezzled

funds.

Points 1 and 2 were disposed of by following cases

from other jurisdictions, among them Truelsch l\ North-
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western 3Iutual Life Insurance Company^^ and Vorlander

V, Keyes,^"^ which establish the rule which is conceded in

this case/^

Points 3, 4 and 5 are disposed of by the court in the

following language

:

"* * *, no constructive trust can he impressed

upon property unless the misappropriated fund is

traced into the property sozight to be impressed with

the trust.

"It is urgently insisted in this case by appellants

that the complainant has failed to show by satisfactory

or sufficient evidence that any part of the funds stolen

by Henochsberg from the bank went into any of the

property, the life insurance involved, the Hein Park
property, and the other property involved in this case,

and that without a sufficient tracing of the misap-

propriated or stolen funds into this property that there

can be no constructive trust in favor of the bank.

"There can be no question, but that the stolen

funds must be traced into the property sought to be

impressed with the constructive trust. This principle

has been recognized by the courts and textwriters

with practical unanimity.

* * *

"Appellee concedes that the rule is as above

stated, but insists that complainant has shown by
proof that the property sought to be impressed with

a constructive trust in this case, including the insur-

ance premiums, was purchased with funds stolen from
the bank, and that the stolen funds have been defi-

nitely traced into the payment of the insurance pre-

« 38 A.L.R. 914, 186 Wis. 239, 202 N.W. 352.
44 1 F. (2d) 67.

« R. 28 and 29—Pretrial Order Paragraph XI.
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miums and the purchase of the other property, except
insurance premiums paid on the poHcies issued prior

to January 1, 1920.

"* * * 2Vo^ all of this money so stolen by
Henochsberg was passed through his various bank
accounts, but it is evident that several thousand dol-

lars of this stolen money was used by Henochsberg
and did actually pass through his bank accounts in

the American Savings Bank S^ Trust Company, His
salary during this period, a part of the time, was $300
per month, and a part of the time $350 per month, and
while he had some other business connections during
this period, it is clearly apjmrent from the record that

his earnings from such sources were comparatively

insignificant. His bank accounts showed deposits

several times larger than any source of income that

he had during this period. The checks draxcji by
Henochsberg and his wife on his accounts at the bank
eoccceded greatly any legitimate deposits made by him
to these accounts. It is true that at no time during this

period did his bank accounts reflect any considerable

balance to his credit, and it is also true that on certain

dates approximating the dates on which checks were
given for insurance premiums, that his bank accounts

would show small overdrafts. It would appear, and
we think with sufficient definiteness, that Henochs-
berg employed a system of feeding into his bank
accounts stolen moneys from the bank, from time to

time, a sufficient amount to have his accounts show
only small balances on any given date to his credit,

and that this was one of the methods employed by

him to deceive the bank officials, or to prevent sus-

picion. But it is clearly apparent from the record that

checks issued by him in payment of the life insurance

premiums after January 1, 1920, and in payment of

the other investments, and payments on the other

property sought to be impressed with a trust herein.
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were paid out of moneys which did not belong to him,

and that he had so mingled the stolen moneys zcith his

on-n funds in the bank accounts as to make it impossi-

ble to actually ear- mark the stolen moneys as having

been used ejcclusi'cely in paying the life insurance

premiums and the payments on the other property

inzohed/'

The climax of the Court's holding is expressed in the

following paragraph on pages 197 and 198 of the opinion:

"While recognizing the settled rule that the mis-

appropriated funds must be traced into the specific

property before there can be a constructive trust im-

pressed, we are of the opinion that where the trustee

ex maleficio has pursued a systematic scheme and
plan of stealing funds from the bank, where he sus-

tains the fiduciary' relation of assistant cashier and
has direct supervision of the accounting department
of the bank and abuses the confidence of the em-
ployers of the bank, and by the method employed uses

the stolen funds taken by him from the deposits of

customers, and at such times as it becomes necessary

and expedient feeds a sufficient amount of the stolen

funds into his ozcn bank account to protect checks

drazcn by him on his accounts in the payment of life

insurance premiums and payments on the other prop-

erty sought to be impressed with the trust, that it con-

stitutes such a tracing of the stolen funds into this

property' as to meet the exactions of the law with refer-

ence to impressing such property with a constructive

trust."
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The distinction between the case at bar and McConnell

v. Henochsberg is clear and unmistakable.

First, The funds which H embezzled were definitely

traced into the accounts from which the premiums were

paid. Second, H had no funds of his own from which the

premiums could have been paid.

Here (a) there has been a complete failure to prove

that any embezzled funds went into the accounts from

which the premiums were paid, (b) Brown had ample

funds of his own from which to pay the premiums/® and

(c) the exact items credited to his accounts, when the

checks in payment of premiums were cleared, have been

agreed upon^ and it is not even claimed that any of them

are ''embezzled funds''. In any event, at all times there

was sufficient of Brown's own funds in the accounts to pay

the premium checks.

If it were the fact (and it is not) that Bro>vn placed

"embezzled funds" in his accounts, we may rest assured

that F.D.I.C.'s auditors would have compiled and there

would have been introduced in evidence a chart or sum-

mary tracing the amounts withheld from depositors' ac-

counts into his bank accounts.

That this is not the fact is best established by the

Agreed Facts which show the various credits to Brown's

accounts when the premium checks cleared. In every in-

stanced^ the credits to his accounts are either salary or

amounts received by him from outside sources. In not one

4« R. 19-24.

47 R. 6-14—paragraphs X to XIX.
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single instance is it claimed that any credit is either "em-

bezzled funds" or the proceeds of embezzled funds.

Obviously, McConnell v, Henochsberg is not in point.

The proof which was relied upon by the court in finding

that Henochsberg paid the premiums with embezzled

funds was positive and convincing. Here there is a total

absence of proof that any "embezzled funds" went into

Brown's accounts. The facts agreed upon in the Pretrial

Order with respect to the items of credit in the accounts

when the premium checks cleared repel and make impossi-

ble a finding or conclusion that the accounts then con-

tained "embezzled funds".

(g) The burden of proving that embezzled funds went into

the payment of the premiums was on F.D.LC.

Issues of Law VI and IX** present the question of

"Burden of Proof".

66VI

"Must the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation

show that any particular item of deposit in Brown's ac-

count was embezzled or the proceeds of embezzled funds

or property before it is entitled to the benefit of any par-

ticular premium payment or is it entitled to the benefit of

any and all premium payments unless Plaintiff shows that

any particular items deposited in Brown's account in fact

belonged to Brown and were not embezzled from the

Bank or the proceeds of embezzled funds?"

"IX

"If no evidence appears as to the source of funds

48 R. 27 and 28.
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used in payment of the last premium, who is entitled to

the benefit of that premium payment?'•i»

Appellant contends that the burden of proving that

the premiums were paid with money "embezzled or wrong-

fully misappropriated" from the Bank is on the F.D.I.C.

throughout the case.

Appellant further contends that under Oregon law,

which governs this case, the proof that embezzled funds

went into Brown's accounts and from them into the pre-

mium payments must be strong, clear, convincing and

indubitable.

The trial court's own declaration^^ that the proof failed

to show that any of the stolen funds found their way into

Brown's accounts or into the premiums should end the

case.

F.D.I.C.'s theory, as it was expressed in the trial court,

was that since under the stipulated evidence it can be taken

as admitted that Brown did embezzle sums exceeding the

balances in his accounts, F.D.I.C. is entitled to the benefit

of all premium payments because Appellant has not shown

that the funds in his accounts were not embezzled or wrong-

fully appropriated from the Bank.

In otiier words, F.I3.I.C. says it is entitled to the bene-

fit of all payments, in view of the defalcations of Brown,

unless the innocent beneficiary can establish to the court's

49 H. 35 and see page 20 herein.
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satisfaction that her son's own individual funds and not

embezzled funds were used to pay the premiums.

A mere statement of the rule contended for by F.D.I.C.

brands it as foreign to our conception of fairness and

justice.

One might as well contend that an accused criminal

is presumed guilty until proven innocent.

We believe the law to be that Appellant is entitled to

the proceeds of the policies in which she was designated

beneficiary irrespective of the source of the funds which

w^ere used to pay the premiums—save only the exception

that she may be deprived of the proceeds if her son em-

bezzled or stole the money which he used to pay the pre-

miums. One who claims that the premiums were paid

with money embezzled or stolen from him must prove it.

His proof need not be conclusive. It need not be direct

but may be circumstantial. But it must be satisfactory

and sufficient to satisfy one with an open mind of the

probability that stolen or embezzled funds were actually

used to pay the premiums.

All the texts and cases we have been able to find sup-

port Appellant's view on this question.

In 65 C.J. 1055, Trusts, § 985, it is said:

"In an action to follow^ trust property and to en-

force the trust thereon, the burden of proof in the first

instance is on the cestui que trust to trace and identify

his property either in its original or substituted form.

Similarly, where the beneficiary claims that trust
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moneys have become mingled with other funds by the

trustee, he has the onus of tracing such moneys into

the funds. No presumption arises that a payment
for property by a trustee was made with trust funds.
* * * There is no presumption that trust moneys
in the hands of a fiduciary for many years and undis-

posed of are a part of his estate."

As is said in Scott on Trusts, Vol. Ill, § 508.4, at

p. 2445, n. 7:

"The claimant seeking to follow his money into

the proceeds and to enforce a constructive trust or

equitable lien has the burden of proving that his money
was in fact used in the payment of premiums upon
the policy."

The following appears in Bogert, Trusts and Trus-

tees, Vol. 4, § 921, pp. 2653-6;

"Most American courts have recognized this ele-

mentary conception with regard to the remedy of

tracing, and have insisted that the cestui or successor

trustee who is seeking to follow trust funds should

convince the court that the bonds, bank accounts,

stock, realty, or other property, wliich the complain-

ant desires to take from the hands of a defaulting

trustee or another not a bona fide purchaser, either

is part or all of the original trust property, or is

property wliich has been ])roduced by the original

trust res through sale, barter, reinvestment, or some

other process.

"This ma jority view denies the remedy of tracing

where the proof of the cestui claimant merely shows
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the receipt of trust property by the defendant and
makes no case as to its subsequent history or its

existence among the present assets of the defendant,

and also where the evidence shows that the trust prop-
erty has been disposed of in such a way as to leave

no product."

Not only is the burden of proof upon F.D.I.C. but

the proof offered must be strong, clear, convincing and

indubitable.

In Barger v, Barger, 30 Ore. 268, 47 Pac. 702, the

Supreme Court of Oregon said (at page 275 of 30 Ore.)

;

"It may be stated, also, as a settled principle of

law, that in order to establish a resulting trust the evi-

dence must be strong, clear, convincing, and indubita-

ble, touching the fact of payment by the alleged bene-

ficiary, or for or in his behalf: 2 Pomeroy's Equity
Jurisprudence, § 1040; Sisemore v. Pelton, 17 Or.

546 (21 Pac. 667); Lee v. Browder, 51 Ala. 288;

Westerfield v. Kimmer, 82 Ind. 369; Murphy v.

Hanscome, 76 Iowa 192, (40 N.W. 717). And when
a payment of a part only is claimed, it must be shown
in the same clear, concise, and unequivocal manner,
the exact proportion of the whole price actually paid,

and that the payment was made for some specific

part or distinct interest in the estate: 2 Pomeroy's
Equity Jurisprudence, § 1040; Cutler v, Tuttle, 19

N.J. Eq. 561; Olcott v. Bynum, 84 U.S. (17 Wall.)

59; Baker v. Fining, 30 Me. 127 (1 Am. Dec. 617)

;

Browne on the Statute of Frauds, § 86. So it is, also,

as respects constructive trusts—the evidence that the

purchase was made with trust funds must be clear
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and unmistakable: 2 Pomeroy's Equity Jurispru-

dence, § 1049."

The same rule has been stated in different terms in

more recent Oregon decisions.
^^

(h) Since Brown had other sources of income and the exact

items of credit making up the balances in his accounts

have been agreed upon, it cannot be found or concluded

that the funds in his accounts were embezzled.

As an alternative theory (in addition to automatic

setoff) to support the judgment in favor of F.D.I.C., the

trial court held that in the complete absence of any evi-

dence that stolen funds got into Brown's accounts it could

be inferred that they were in his accounts since when Brown

started with the Bank in 1927 he had no other source of

income but salary and stolen funds.

The exact language of the court is as follows:*^

"There is an alternative and equally convincing

theory upon which the same conclusion may be

founded. A review of the evidence which, although

indirect, is convincing, makes clear that since Brown
had no other sources of income initially, except liis

salary and the embezzled funds, that the bulk of the

moneys which he deposited was from these springs.

None of the stolen money can he traced directly

50 Schwartz v. Gerhardt, 44 Ore. 425, 432, 75 Pac. 698; Smith v. Barnes,
129 Ore. 138, 147, 276 Pac. 1086.

51 R. 49 and 50.

I
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thereto, but any fact may be proven by direct or in-

direct evidence. This leads to a consideration of an
analogous line of cases where the defaulter is not an
employee of a bank but deposits the stolen funds
therein. It will be apparent that the doctrine just held

controlling would not apply under such circumstances

(automatic setoff). However, the courts reach the

same result on the ground that once fraud has been
proven, the doctrine of comingling of funds applies^*

and the constructive trustee will be liable if he does

not segregate the fund. Since there is no presumption
of innocence attaching, his death will not protect the

beneficiaries.^^

"Thus it is, that all the moneys paid out by the

bank belong to it.

18 Massachusetts Bonding & Insurance Co. vs.

Josselyn, 224 Michigan 159; Moseley vs.

Fikes, 133 Texas 386; Long vs. Earle, 277
Michigan 505; Meyers vs. Baylor Uni-
versity, 6 S.W. (2d) 393, 394.

19 See Meyers vs. Baylor University, supra."

If there were no evidence in the case as to the exact

items of deposit in Brown's accounts when the premium

checks cleared and if it were the fact that Brown had no

funds of his own and no other source of income except

stolen funds when the premium payments were made, a

finding and conclusion that stolen funds were used to pay

the premiums might be justified.
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In this case, however, the exact items of deposit in his

accounts, when the premium checks cleared, were agreed

upon. F.D.I.C. does not contend that one single deposit

item represents stolen funds—and the court held :"

*'The cardinal factor is, that no item of the em-
bezzled funds is traced directly into the premiums of

the insurance policies, nor into the bank accounts,

which Brown maintained with the Harney County
National Bank."

In addition. Brown's other sources of income were sub-

stantial during the time the premium payments were being

made and he had funds to start with other than his salary

and embezzled funds. The facts in this regard have also

been agreed upon^^ and cannot be ignored.

When analyzed, the trial court's alternative theory^*

is that, since Brown stole money from the Bank, every-

thing he owTied can be presumed to have been acquired

with stolen funds.

In other words^ the court has placed the burden of

proving that stolen money was not used to pay the pre-

miums on Appellant.

The trial court cites 4 cases to sustain its holding in this

regard. An analysis of them shows that they do not sup-

port the trial court's theorv.

I52 R. 35.

63 H. 19-24—paragraphs A to H.
M See page 42 herein.

{
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Mass. Bonding 4 I^^- ^o. v. Josselyn, 224 Mich.

159, 194 N.W. 548.

In this case an attorney was appointed administrator

of two estates and he put the funds in his own account and

paid premiums on existing pohcies on his hfe. After his

death, the estates were permitted to share in the proceeds

of the pohcies in the proportion that estate moneys were

used. The Court said:

"It clearly appears from (the attorney's) bank

account that the balances on deposit at the time the

several checks for premiums were paid were less than

the amount of the moneys of the estates which had
been theretofore deposited and not withdrawn.''

It is apparent from the opinion that had the attorney's

account contained more than enough of his own money

to pay the premium payments at the time the premium

checks were cleared that the estates would not have been

permitted to share in the proceeds. This is the rule for

which we contend in this case (which is discussed under

the next heading) and if this case be followed. Appellant

and not F.D.I.C. is entitled to prevail.

Moscly V. Fikes, (Texas Civil Appeals, 1939), 126

S.W. (2d) 589 (erroneously cited by the court as

133 Texas 386).

In this case. Plaintiff sued Defendant to impress a

trust upon certain lands purchased with the proceeds of

lands held for plaintiff by defendant, which defendant

agreed to reconvey. The defendant admitted that he put
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the proceeds of the sale of the lands in accounts containing

his own funds and it was held:

"Although defendant further testified that he had
money of his own acquired from other sources, with

w^hich he paid for all those investments, we believe the

court erred in the ruling noted, under the general

doctrine relating to commingling of trust funds by a

trustee with his own, and the adverse presumption
that may be indulged from his refusal to answer ques-

tions propounded by plaintiff's attorney, under cir-

cumstances such as appear here."

The case is clearly distinguishable because the trustee

who comingled the funds was alive and under such circum-

stances it can be admitted that the burden is upon the trus-

tee to separate the fund. In this case not one cent of stolen

money is traced into any of Brown's bank accounts, hence

there is no commingling.

Long V. Ernie, 227 Mich. 505, 269 N. W. 577.

This case involves a suit by beneficiaries to establish

a trust upon property purchased with the proceeds of a

trust fund. The trust was admitted and the court cited

and relied upon Qo C.J. 973 to the effect that if there is

comingling the whole fund is subject to the trust except

insofar as the trustee may be able to distinguish and sej)-

arate his own funds. Here again the trustee was alive,

which distinguishes the case from the present case and a

rule, which is not applicable here because of Brown's death,

was correctly applied.

i
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Meyers v. Baylor University, 6 S.W. (2d) 393.

This case involved a suit by Baylor University against

Meyers and his wife to recover title and possession of real

and personal property. It was claimed and found that

Meyers embezzled Baylor's funds and invested them.

Meyers contended that the burden was on Baylor Uni-

versity to trace the embezzled funds into the property

shown to be embezzled and that not sufficient proof was

offered. The court said on page 394:

"Our courts have often said that, in order to estab-

lish a trust, such as is attempted in this case, the trust

fund must be clearly traced into the specific prop-

erty; that nothing must be left to conjective, and that

no presumptions, except the usual and necessary de-

ductions from facts proven, can be indulged * * *

;

yet this does not mean that the trust must be estab-

lished beyond a reasonable doubt.

"It is quite true that the burden of proof was upon
plaintiff to establish the trust, but, where proof of

the fiduciary relationship of the parties was made, the

betrayal of the trust and the probable amount of the

embezzlement shown, a prima facie case was pre-

sented, and the burden was then on Meyers to show,

if he could, that his money, and not that of plaintiff,

paid for the properties in whole or in part.

"Meyers was in possession of the exact facts, and
it was his duty to reveal the entire trust. As he did

not testify, and made no explanation of this matter,

every intendment is against him.
* * *

"As stated in our conclusions, Meyers deposited

his own (salary) and money embezzled from plain-

tiff to his personal credit in the banks, thus destroying

the identity of these funds ; hence the whole mingled
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fund became subject to the trust, as well as the prop-

erty purchased therewith.
* * *

"An audit of the accounts kept by him with 3

banks showed that, * * * he deposited to his per-

sonal accounts the gross sum of $81,589.22, of which

$32,975 was his salary. He furnished, at the request

of officials of plaintiff, a statement showing that all

moneys of whatever nature or origin, other than sal-

ary, deposited in these accoimts, amounted to the sum
of $23,325.16. He thereupon admitted that the sum
of these items, to-wit, salary and other moneys depos-

ited shown in statement, subtracted from the total

deposits in the banks, revealed the total amount of his

embezzlements, which, by this method, were shown to

be in excess of $25,000. The items sought to be

charged represented a total investment of $21,200.
"* * * it appeared from the evidence that he

had no other money or property with which to make
the investments."

This case merely analyzes and follows the rule that

where there is commingling and the trustee is alive that he

has the burden of separating the funds, failing which the

beneficiaries have a lien on the entire fund.

It is interesting to note that the court considers the

salary which INIeyers had drawn to be "his funds" as dis-

tinguished from ''embezzled funds", which is our conten-

tion here, as against the position contended for by

F.D.I.C'

Since Brown is dead, the rule whicli requires a trustee

^ See page 22 herein.
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to separate the fund, where a commingling is involved, has

no application.

The case of Logan v. Logan, 138 Texas 40, 156 S.W.

(2d) 507, relied upon by F.D.I.C, to place the burden

upon Appellant in this action and cited and relied upon by

the trial court in its opinion,^^ best demonstrates the inap-

plicability of the rule contended for. In that case, the court

recognized the rule that where a trustee commingles trust

funds with his own private funds and the proof necessary

to distinguish the funds lies exclusively within the trustee's

possession and he refuses to make a disclosure of such facts

as he has at his command, that a presumption arises that

all funds or property purchased therewith are subject to

the trust.

The Court expressly holds, however, that if the trustee

is dead that no such presumption exists or can be indulged

in. The Court said on page 511 of 156 S.W. (2d) :

"The trustee is dead, and consequently there is no

willful failure to make a disclosure on his part. * * *

Under these circumstances, the rule applicable to a

wrongful commingling is inapplicable."

A very recent case, decided by the Supreme Court of

Idaho, is ^particularly ap^^licable. It is the case of Picciano

In that case, plaintiff contended that defendant had

56 R. 38.

" Originally decided Sept. 15, 1942; reversed on rehearing May 21,
1943. 137 P. (2d) 788.
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unlawfully appropriated, out of their business, some six

thousand dollars. Plaintiff sought to prove that the stolen

money was used by defendant to purchase a home. The

lower court found for plaintiff and defendant appealed.

The original opinion affirming the case was reversed after

a rehearing.

In the final opinion, the Court said (from 790 and 791

of 137 P. (2d)):

"There is nothing in the record to show from where

Miller received the money for the purchase and im-

provement of the property involved. Therefore, no

part of the trust fund was traced into this particular

piece of property. The conclusion that the money was
traced into the property is evidently based on infer-

ence, that inference being that as IMiller bought the

property and it did not appear he purchased it with

funds he had acquired otherwise, it would therefore

follow that he used the trust money for that purpose.

In matters of this kind, no presumption whatever can

be indulged in by the courts. The rule is announced
in Pomeroy's Equity Jurisprudence, Volume 2, Sec-

tion '4'22, page 184, as follows: 'A court of equity, in

order to raise a resulting trust, will not assume from
the mere fact that the purchaser had or might have

had trust moneys in his hands, that he used them in

paying for the property purchased, in the absence of

evidence clearly showing such use by him.'

"The question of the sufficiency of identification

of a trust fund is discussed in 26 R.C.I^., Section 219,

page 1355, wherein it is stated: 'As to what is a suffi-

cient identification of a trust fund when it is attempted

to show that it remains a constituent part of the assets

of an insolvent trustee's estate, it was at one time held

by the courts of some of the states to be unnecessary
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that the misapplied trust funds or proceeds of the

trust property should have actually come into the

possession of the executor, administrator, receiver,

or assignee ; not essential that it should be traced into

the estate; * * * Most if not all of these cases

have, however, been overruled or greatly limited and
qualified and the generally accepted rule at the pres-

ent time is that it must appear that the trust property

or its proceeds have found their way directly into the

estate of the trustee, that the property must be found
to reside in the assets at the time when the claim is

asserted, and must not have been expended or dissi-

pated for any purpose in the business of the trustee.'

See also 26 R.C.L., Section 218, page 1354.

"The rule applicable to the facts in this case is

clearly stated in Jones on Liens, 3rd Ed., Volume 2,

page 172, Section 1179, as follows: 'Trust funds

which have been misapplied by the trustee to the pur-

chase of lands in his own name may be declared a lien

upon such lands; but it must be clearly proved that

the trust funds were invested in the lands. It is not

sufficient to show that the trustee was in possession of

the funds, and while in possession of them he pur-

chased and paid for the lands ; for in such case no pre-

sumption arises that the lands were purchased with
such funds. If the trust money has been mingled with
other moneys of the trustee so as to be indistinguish-

able, and the trustee has made investments generally

with the moneys in his possession the cestui que trust

cannot claim a specific lien upon the property or

funds constituting the investments.' (Italics mine.)

"What appears to be a leading case on this ques-

tion, the same being cited in the several texts above

referred to, is the old case of Ferris v. Van Vechten,

73 N.Y., beginning page 113, decided in 1878, and we
quote therefrom a portion of the opinion, beginning
page 119, as follows, to-wit: 'To follow money into
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lands, and impress the latter with the trust, the money
must be distinctly traced and clearly proved to have

been invested in the lands. While money, as such, has

no ear-mark by which, when once mingled in mass, it

can be traced, it is, nevertheless, capable under some
circumstances of being followed to, and identified

with, the property into which it has been converted;

but the conversion of the trust money specifically, as

distinguished from other money of the trustee, * * *

must be clearly shown. It does not suffice to show the

possession of the trust funds by the, trustee, and the

purchase by him of property—that is, payment for

property generally by the trustee does not authorize

the presumption that the purchase was made with

trust funds. The product of, or substitute for the

original trust fund follows the nature of the fund as

long as it can be ascertained to be such ; and if a trus-

tee purchase lands with trust money, a court of equity

will charge them with a resulting trust for the person

beneficially interested. But it must be clear that the

lands have been paid for out of the trust money/

*'Had there been a tracing of any part of the trust

money into the property in this case, then, of course,

the riile from Waddell v. Waddell, 86 Utah 43,5, 104

P. 743, quoted in the original opinion, would have

been applicable. That rule is not in conflict with the

rule placing the burden on one who would impress

property with a trust to show that some portion, at

least, of the trust funds went into the property. Had
that been done in this case, then tlie burden would

have been upon appellant Miller to have shown that

his own money or at least some portion thereof, had

gone into the trust property, but due to the failure of

res])ondent to trace any ])ortion whatever of the so-

called trust fund into the property, no such burden

shifted to or was placed upon appellant JNIiller."
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The trial court's alternative theory does not square

with the Agreed Facts, with the applicable law establish-

ing the burden of proof or prescribing the degree of proof

required and it erroneously assumes the existence of a

presumption that stolen funds got into Brown's accounts,

even in the face of its own direct finding that stolen funds

were not traced into the accounts.

(i) If commingling be assumed, since Brown's own funds

were more than sufficient to pay each of the premiums
when the checks cleared, Appellant is entitled to prevail.

Assuming that there is some evidence upon which a

finding could be based that Brown placed depositors' funds

in his accounts prior to the time the various premium pay-

ments were charged against his accounts (we deny that

there is any such evidence in the case and the trial court

held with us^^), then Issues of Law X and the last two

paragraphs of XI^^ must be decided.

"X

"If the total of the deposits in any account at any time

is composed of Brown's own funds and funds of the Bank,

who is entitled to the benefit of the premium payment

made from said account if the premium payment be less

than the amount of his own funds; if it be more than

his own funds?

58 R. 35.

59 R. 28 and 29.
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XI

*

"The Defendant contends that if in any case Brown
had a balance in his account made up in part of funds

or property misappropriated, embezzled or wrongfully

converted from the Bank and part from other funds,

Defendant is entitled to the benefit of the whole pre-

mium payment thus paid.

^^Plaintiff disputes this and contends that as a matter

of law Brown would be held to have withdrawTi from a

mixed fund, first, his own funds, and if his own funds

were sufficient to pay the whole premium payment that

the Bank would not. be entitled to any benefit from that

payment."

It is Appellant's contention that if embezzled money

is found to have been deposited in the accounts from which

premiums were paid so that Brown's own funds and em-

bezzled funds were mixed together, that even so Brown

would still be held to have drawn out his own funds in

paying the premiums and if his account contained enough

to pay the premium payment that F.D.I.C. would have

no claim on the payment so made. If the premium pay-

ment exceeds the amount of Brown's own funds then in

the account, then F.D.I.C. would share in the premium

payment to the extent of any required balance.

A leading case upon this point is Bromley v. Railway

Company, 103 Wis. 5G2, 79 N.W. 741. In that case Brom-

ley was an agent of the Railway Company and he, from

time to time, collected large sums of money which he was

under obligation to immediately remit to the Company.

Bromley had one bank account in which he kept money of
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his own, some of his wife's and into which he placed money

collected for the Railroad. At a time when he was badly

in arrears in his remittances to the Railroad he purchased

several life insurance policies in favor^ of his wife. After

his death, which occurred shortly after the taking out of

the policies, the railroads claimed that they were entitled

to the proceeds of the policies because the premiums were

paid with funds belonging to the railroads.

In rejecting the Railroads' contention, the Court said

on page 743

:

"Assuming that Mr. Bromley received and de-

posited the moneys of the defendants (Railroads) and
the plaintiff (his wife), in a fiduciary capacity, and
that in drawing moneys from the bank on checks for

his own private use he is presumed to have drawn out

his own moneys in preference to any of such trust

funds, yet it does not follow that, in paying such pre-

miums on such insurance by checks for the benefit of

his wife, he is presumed to have drawn the moneys
belonging to the defendants, instead of the moneys
belonging to his wife. On the contrary, and as the law
presumes innocence instead of wrong, we would nat-

urally suppose that he would pay such premiums from
his wife's moneys, instead of moneys belonging to the

defendants; in other words, all checks drawn for the

benefit of the defendants would naturally be supposed
to have been drawn on funds belonging to the defend-

ants, and all checks drawn for the benefit of the plain-

tiff would naturally be supposed to have been drawn
on funds belonging to the plaintiff. Of course, this

is on the supposition that Mr. Bromley had on de-

posit the funds of both parties. The court finds that

Mr. Bromley received and deposited to his credit in

the bank from the plaintiff's separate estate $700 in

1894, $400 in 1895, and in addition he received from
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ter part of 1896. There is no evidence that he ever

drew out any of such moneys so deposited for the

plaintiff, or for her benefit, except in payment of the

jiremiums mentioned."

On the same page, it is also said:

"* * * Since the insurance was for the benefit

of the plaintiff, and payable to her, jNIr. Bromley
would be quite as likely to pay the premium thereon

out of her moneys in the bank to his credit as out of

the moneys of the defendants. The relations between

Mr. Bromley and the defendants appear to have been

of mutual confidence, and more like the relation of

debtor and creditor than that of trustee and cestui que
trust. The burden was on the defendants to prove

that their money went into the policies."

There is a direct holding upon the point by the Supreme

Court of Oregon.

In Portland Building Co. v. State Bank of Portland,

110 Ore. 61, 222 Pac. 740, the Bank was obligated to pick

up and pay the coupons and bonds of the Building Com-

pany, using funds specially deposited with it for that

purpose. Altliough carried as trust funds, the moneys so

entrusted to the bank were not segregated from but were

mixed with other moneys belonging to the bank. Before

the Bank paid any bonds or coupons, it became insolvent

and there was in the fund into which the trust fund had

been placed more than the amount of the trust funds. The

Building Com])any contended that its money was still
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there and had not been dissipated. The court upheld this

contention, saying on page 67 (of 110 Ore.) :

"The fact that the cash balances of the bank were

constantly changing as new deposits were made and

checks were paid cannot affect the rights of the cestui

que trust to reclaim its money, either from the bank

or the superintendent of banks, as the amount of the

trust fund was at all times clearly ascertainable, and

that amount was at all times actually in the bank.

The presu7nption of law is that, in paying checks

drawn upon the bank and its other eocpenses, the hank
used its own funds then in the bank, as it was its duty

to do, and did not wrongfully use the trust funds in its

possession * * *."

(j) The admitted facts compel the conclusion that Appellant

is entitled to prevail.

Applying the principles which we believe to be ap-

plicable to paragraphs IX to XIX, inclusive, of the ad-

mitted facts,^ we reach the following results

:

IX. Since no one knows the source of the funds used

to pay the payment of December 22, 1940, upon Policy

12748022 (hereafter called the first policy), Appellant

gets the benefit of the payment.

X. Since the first payment on the first policy was

made from Brown's personal account at a time when it

was composed of salary and cash items and there is no

evidence to show that the cash deposit was either embezzled

money or the proceeds of embezzled funds, Appellant

must be given the benefit of the payment. Even if it be

60 R. 6-14.
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held that the cash were embezzled funds, since the salary

items exceed the premium payment (which was less than

$300.00), it must be presumed that Brown drew first his

own funds, especially where it was admittedly drawn for

his own purpose.

XI. The second payment on the first policy was made

from Brown's special account. Under the Agreed Facts,

it is established that the account contained genuine items

of credit, payable to Brown personally, as follows:

American Aircraft $ 250.00

Transfer from Personal Account 36.12

Transfer from Personal Account 145.48

Blyth & Co 1,009.40

Checks 242.85

The premium payment was less than $300.00, so that

Appellant must be given the benefit of this payment.

XII. The third payment on the first policy was drawn

on the personal account and it was then composed only of

salary items. The benefit of this payment must therefore

be awarded to Appellant.

XIII. The fourth payment on the first policy was

drawn on the personal account when it contained salary

and a transfer from Brown's grain account. There is no

showing that the grain account contained embezzled funds

or the proceeds of embezzled funds, so Appellant must

get the benefit of this payment.

XIV. The fifth payment on the first policy was

drawn against the special account and since there is no

evidence tracing embezzled funds into that account, Appel-

lant is entitled to the benefit of it. In any event, there is
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an item of credit to the account "Kidwell and Caswell

$406.90" which is more than sufficient to pay the pre-

mium, so it must be awarded to Appellant.

XV. The first payment on the second policy was

drawn on the special account and there is no evidence to

show that embezzled funds were deposited in it, so Appel-

lant must be given the benefit of this payment.

XVI. The second payment on the second policy was

charged against the special account when it contained the

same items against which the second payment on the first

policy was drawn except it contained in addition a divi-

dend on stock Brown owned in the Harney County Bank

and a transfer from his personal account which was then

made up only of salary items. Clearly this payment must

be awarded to Appellant.

XVII. The third payment on the second policy was

charged against the personal account when it contained

the proceeds of the sale of a bond Brown owned, salary

and currency. The salary and bond items are more than

sufficient to cover the payment, so Appellant is entitled to

the benefit of it.

XVIII. The fourth payment on the second policy

was drawn on the personal account and came entirely

from salary. Appellant should have the benefit of it.

XIX. The fifth payment on the second policy was

made from the proceeds of the sale of cattle. No evidence

was produced to show that the cattle were not Brown's or

were purchased with funds embezzled from depositors.

Obviously, Appellant is entitled to the benefit of this

premium payment.
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SPECIFICATION OF ERROR III

THE TRIAL COURT ABUSED ITS DISCRETION LN DENY-

ING APPELLANT'S MOTION FOR NEW TRIAL.

Since it was made to appear that an audit of the Bank's

records disclosed that Bro^Ti was not indehted to the Bank
in the years when the various premium payments were made,

so that the whole basis of the court's holding against Appel-

lant was incorrect, the trial court abused its discretion in not

ordering a new trial.

ARGUMENT

Prior to the pretrial conference, which resulted in the

Pretrial Order, Appellant had not made an audit of the

Bank's records. At the conference, F.D.I.C. represented

that its audit indicated that by reason of withheld deposits

alone Brown had taken from depositors' accounts the fol-

lowing amounts in the years indicated:*^

Year Net Shortage

Prior to 1935 $ 5,869.25

1935 12,893.21

1936 3,031.52

1937 17,996.84

1938 40,982.14

1939' 93,203.44

1940 39,780.33

1941 489.99

1942 10,319.61

i

4
61 H. 79. Exhibit 34.
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The trial court used these figures as the basis for its

holding that at no time did the total in Brown's accounts

equal the sum of his defalcations from commercial accounts

alone.^^ No attempt was made by F.D.I.C. to break down

by years any other source of alleged shortages.

In connection with an action pending in the District

Court by F.D.I.C. against Edward N. Brown's Estate,

an audit was made of the Bank's records in May and June

of 1944. The audit was in progress when the court's opin-

ion was announced and it was completed shortly there-

after.

According to the auditor for the Estate, it appeared

probable that Brown was not, in fact, indebted to the Bank

by reason of alleged embezzlements during the years 1935,

1936, 1937, 1938, and perhaps in the subsequent years,

except 1942. The auditor also discovered that many of the

so-called withheld deposits were actually reflected on the

Bank's record so that the funds were actually received

by and went through the Bank.

As soon as these findings were reported to Appellant,

an appropriate Motion for New Trial was filed in which

these facts were made to appear.^^

Counsel for F.D.I.C. filed an affidavit in opposition

to the Motion, in which he attempted to explain the so-

called withheld deposits—but it is apparent from his ex-

planation that, in fact, the withheld deposits actually were

recorded in the daily savings journal or ledger so that

62 R. 33.

63 R. 68-71.
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the funds of necessity were received by and passed through

the Bank.^

Since the result would be entirely different and Appel-

lant would be entitled to prevail even under the trial

court's decision, if she were permitted to present the true

facts, we contend that the trial court abused its discretion

in refusing to grant a new trial.

CONCLUSION

The case of American Surety Co. v. Bank of Cali-

fornia has not and cannot be distinguished. F.D.I.C.'s

claim to the fund must therefore be denied.

In view of the Agreed Facts, it cannot be found or

concluded the embezzled funds were used to pay the

premiums.

In any event, the trial court committed reversible error

in refusing to grant a new trial.

Respectfully submitted,

Hampson, Koerner, Young & Swett,

James C. Dezendorf,

Attorneys for Appellant,

800 Pacific Building,

Portland 4, Oregon.

w R. 75 and 76.



No. 11000

In the United States Circuit Cnurt of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

RUBY M. BROWN,
Appellant,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant^

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION,
Appellee

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

UPON APPEAL FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON

Maguire, Shields & Morrison,
Robert H. Agnew,

Attorneys for Appellee,

723 Pittock Block,

Portland 4, Oregon.
James M. Kane,

135 So. LaSalle Street,

Chicago 3, Illinois.

Edward C. Klein,

135 So. LaSalle Street, FILED
Chicago 3, Illinois,

Of Counsel.
^^y^ ,,945

PRESS OF JUDD & DETWEJLLER, INC., WASHIjS^AlWfcw (P, O'&fXl EN,
CJLERK



I



INDEX

Subject Index
Page

Statement of the case 1

Proceedings below 5

Argument

:

1. As to Appellant's Specification of Error 1 6

2. As to Appellant's Specification of Error II 17

(a) Contentions of the Parties 17

(b) As to the Matter of Tracing Embezzled
Funds 19

(c) As to the Matter of Tracing Misapplied

Funds 30
(d) As to the Matter of Estopel by Public

Policy 35
(e) As to the Matter of Salary 39
(f) As to the Matter of Burden of Proof and

the Trial Court's Alternative Theory
Concerning Commingling of Trust
Funds 42

(g) As to the Matter of Withdrawing Own
Funds 50

3. As to Appellant's Specification of Error III. ... 52
Conclusion 53
Appendix 55

Citations
Cases :

American National Bank v. King (1932), 158 Okla. 278,

13 P. (2d) 164 34
American Surety Co. v. Bank of California (1943), 44 F.

Supp. 81, afT'd 133 F. (2d) 160 7
Bromley v. Cleveland C, C. & St. L. Ry. Co. (1899),

103 Wis. 562, 79 N. W. 741 45
City National Bank v. Fuller (CCA 8, 1931), 52 F. (2d)

870 11

Cook County National Bank v. U. S. (1883), 107 U. S.

445 36

—923



u INDEX

Page

Dahl & Penne, Inc. v. State Bank of Portland (1924),

110 Ore. 68, 71, 222 Pac. 1090 10

Deitrick v. Greaney (1940), 309 U. S. 190, reh. den.

1940, 309 U. S. 697 36
DVench Duhme and Company v. FDIC (1942), 315

U. S. 447, reh. den. 1942, 315 U. S. 830 37
Duke V. Johnson (1923), 127 Wash. 601, 221 Pac. 321 . . 33

In re: Edwards' Estate (1923), 140 Ore. 431, 440, 14 P.

(2d) 274 10

Farnum v. O'Neill, 252 N. Y. S. 900, 904 31

F. D. I, C, V. Mangionacina, (1938), 198 A. 777, 16

N. J. Misc. 203 7

FDIC V. Vest (CCA 6, 1941), 122 F. (2d) 765, cert. den.

1941, 314 U. S. 696 37
General American Life Ins. Co. v. Anderson (Ky., 1942),

46 F. Supp. 189 37

Grant Co. Bldg. Loan & Savings Assn v. Lemmon (Ky.,

1904), 78 S. W. 874, 875 30

Hahl V. Kellogg (1906), 42 Tex. Civ. App. 636, 94 S. W.
389 40

Holmes v. Gilman (1893), 138 N. Y. 369, 34 X. E. 205,

20 L. R. A. 566 17

Jansen v. Tyler, Two cases (1935), 151 Ore. 268, 47 P.

(2d) 969, 49 P. (2d) 372 16

Jones V. N. Y. G. & I. Co. (1880), 101 U. S. 622 39

Joyce V. Auten (1900), 179 U. S. 591 32

Kane v. First National Bank (CCA 5, 1932), 56 F. (2d)

534, 85 A. L. R. 362, cert. den. 287 U. S. 603 32

Keyes v. Paducah and I. R. Co. (CCA 6, 1932), 61 F.

(2d) 611 29

Lahr v. Kraemer (1903), 91 Minn. 26, 97 N. W. 418, 13

L. R. A. 72, Note 40

Lamberton v. FDIC, 141 F. (2d) 95 8

Logan v. Logan (1941), 138 Tex. 40, 156 S. W. (2d) 507. 47

Long V. Earle (1936), 277 Mich. 505, 269 X. W. 577. . . 46

McConnel v. Henochsberg, 11 Tenn. App. 176 21 ,23

Mahon v. Harney County Natl Bank (1922), 104 Ore.

323, 329, 206 Pac. 224 10

Mass. Bonding & Ins. Co. v. Josselyn (1923), 224 Mich.

159, 194 X. W. 548 17,48



INDEX Ul

Page

Meyers v. Baylor University (Tex., 1928), 6 S. W. (2d)

393, 394 21,46
Miller v. Ahrens (W. Va., 1908), 163 Fed. 870, 877. . . 31

Moseley v. Fikes (Tex., 1939). 126 S. W. (2d) 589 48
Neely v. Wilrjwre (1916), 124 Ark. 460, 187 S. W. 637.

.

40
Thomas P. Xichols Co. v. Xafional City Bank, (1943),

48 X. E. v2d) 49, cert. den. 320 U. S. 742 8
Oliver v. Xorthicestern Mut. Life Ins. Co. (Pa., 1932),

2 F. Supp. 266 41
Peoples State Bank v. Caterpillar Tractor Co. (Ind.,

1938), 12 X. E. (2d) 123 34
Peterson v. Mayer (Minn., 1891), 49 X. W. 245, 246. . . 40
Picciano v. Miller, (Idaho, 1942), 137 P. (2d) 788 49
Portland Building Co?npany v. Bank of Portland (1924),

110 Ore. 61, 222 Pac. 740 51
W. G. Reddirigius Co. v. Enkema (1923), 156 Minn. 283,

194 X. W. 646 40
Renland v. First Xat'l Bank (Mont., 1931), 4 P. (2d) 488. 31

Royal V. Royal (1897), 30 Ore. 448, 47 Pac. 828 40
Schomaker v. Petersen (Cal. 1930), 285 Pac. 342 31

Steele v. Bank of California (1932), 140 Ore. 107, 112,

9 P. (2d) 1053 10

Sweet V. Larig (CCA 8, 1926), 14 F. (2d) 762 41

Texas and Pacific R. R. Co. v. Pottoroff (1934), 291

U. S. 245, 254 9
Tilton V. Boland (1934), 147 Ore. 28, 35, 31 P. (2d) 657. 31

TUloic V. Sundquist, (CCA 9, 1916), 234 Fed. 613 29
Tolrtian v. Croicell (1934), 288 Mass. 397, 193 X. E. 60. 44
Truelsch v. Xorthicestern Mutual Life Ins. Co. (1925),

186 Wis. 239, 202 X. W. 352 17,28
U, S. V. Doherty, (D. C. Xeb. 1937), 18 F. Supp. 793.

.

7

Vorlander v. Keyes (CCA 8, 1924), 1 F. (2d) 67 17,34
Winslow V. Rutherford (1911), 59 Ore. 124. 114 Pac. 930. 40

Statutes:

U. S. C. Title 12:

Sec. 73 20,30
Sec. 161 36
Sec. 264 (1) (1) 55



IV INDEX

Page

Sec. 264 (1) (7) 15,55
Sec. 264 (n) (4) 4,15,56
Sec. 375 (a) 20,30,34,39
Sec. 481 36
Sec. 592 20
Chapter 2 37

Chapter 3 37

Texts:

7 Am. Jur., Sec. 444, p. 444 10

7 Am. Jur., p. 453 32

7 Am. Jur., pp. 455-457 32

7 Am. Jur., p. 459 32

11 Am. Jur., pp. 411-412 36

35 Am. Jur., p. 503 40

Bogert, Trusts and Trustees, Vol. 4, Sec. 925, p. 2676.

.

43

65 C. J., Sec. 899, p. 972 43

Pomeroy, 5th Ed., Vol. 4, Sec. 1076 44

Restatement of Restitution, Sec. 138

Miscellaneous

:

1942 FDIC Report, p. 11 9



In the United States Circnit Conrt of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

No. 11000

RUBY M. BROWN,
Appellant,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY,
Defendant,

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION,
Appellee

BRIEF OF APPELLEE

UPOX APPEAL FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED STATES

FOR THE DISTRICT OF OREGON

Statement of the Case

To the chronology of events stated in appellant's state-

ment of facts there should be added the following

:

Edward N. Brown, during the time he was employed as

teller, assistant cashier, director and vice president of the

Harney County National Bank (hereinafter referred to as

the Bank), engaged in systematic pillage of its funds and

assets. The Bank's deposits were something over $1,-

200,000; he succeeded in misappropriating about $416,000

lb



(R. 16, 17). He accomplished this by a variety of means

such as withholding deposits, making unauthorized with-

drawals from customers' balances, taking the Bank's cash,

retaining payments made by its borrowers on notes and

keeping the notes in the note pouch as bank assets, and

looting the Bank's accounts with correspondent banks.

By juggling customers' accounts and deposits alone, such

as withholding deposits and making unauthorized with-

drawals, from a date prior to 1935 up to the time of his

suicide on August 6, 1942, he embezzled and misappro-

priated over $223,000. These peculations are scheduled

by years and set forth in the stipulated evidence (R. 17).

He succeeded in concealing his crimes not only from other

officers and stockholders of the Bank, but from the national

bank examiners until the day of his death.

In 1935 he took out with the New York Life Insurance

Company the policies of insurance involved (R. 3), and

all of the premiums, with the exception of one, which could

not be traced, were paid by the Bank in honoring ten checks

for the sum of $297.20 each and one check for $310.40

(R. 57, 58), which Browm drew with seeming indiscrimina-

tion upon either the account carried in the Bank designated

*^ Edward N. Brown, Personal", or ''Edward N. Brown,

Special" (R. 6-14, paragraphs X to XIX). At the time

each of these checks for insurance premiums was presented

to the Bank and honored by it, the books of the Bank re-

flected credit balances in the respective accounts on which

the checks were drawn in excess of the amount of the

checks. These apparent credit balances were in fact fic-

titious because (a) at all times from Jannniy 1, WKW), to

the date of liis dcnlli he was indebted to the Hank by rea-

son of his thefts, embezzlements and misai)propriations in

sums vastly exceeding the api)arent credit balances in his

favor shown on the Bank's books; (b) on four occasions the



purported balances in Brown's personal account were built

up with credits representing salary and stock dividend pay-

ments wrongfully taken by Brown from the Bank, see

R. 6, par. X; R. 8, par. XII; R. 11, par. XV; R. 13, par.

XVIII ; on one other occasion with a salary payment plus a

transfer from one of his several other accounts, viz., his

grain account, see R. 9, par. XIII ; on still another occasion

with a salary payment, currency of $240 from an unex-

plained source and the proceeds of a $100 Hearst Publica-

tion bond, see R. 12, 13, par. XVII; and on the last such

occasion the balance in his personal account was made up

of the proceeds of the sale of livestock, see R. 14, par.

XIX, there being no direct evidence that Brown acquired

the livestock with other than embezzled or misapplied bank

funds; (c) the purported credit balances in Brown's special

account were built up with currency from unexplained

sources, R. 7, R. 9, par. XIV ; R. 11, par. XVI, transfers from

purported balances in his personal account, R. 7, R. 10, par.

XV ; R. 11, par. XVI, created with salary and dividend pay-

ments wrongfully taken by Brown from the bank, R. 11,

par. XV; R. 12, par. XVI, rental from property and pro-

ceeds of sale of livestock, bonds or other property—see R.

9, par. XIV; R. 10, par. XV; R. 11, par. XVI, there being

no evidence that Brown acquired the livestock, bonds or

other property with other than embezzled or misapplied

bank funds.

When the Bank honored and paid the checks no one con-

nected with the institution had any knowledge of Brown's
defalcations or the fact that he owed the Bank, rather than

that the Bank owed him, R. 15. He made his mother bene-

ficiary of the insurance, but at no time did she give any
consideration therefor and he was not indebted to her in any
amount.



After Brown's death it was discovered that the Bank's

capital was impaired and it was unable to meet the demands

of its depositors.

The Bank made application for financial assistance to the

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (hereinafter re-

ferred to as FDIC), which had insured the Bank's deposits

as provided by law. FDIC approved the Bank's application

and agreed to purchase the Bank's unacceptable assets

pursuant to powers conferred upon it by Federal statute

(U. S. C. Title 12, Sec. 264 (n) (4) quoted in appendix

p. — ). Thereupon the FDIC and the Bank, on August 29,

1942, executed a contract for the sale to and purchase b}^

FDIC of certain of the Bank's assets. The assets so ac-

quired by the FDIC were those not considered of sound

banking quality, having an aggregate book value of only

$598,646.34 exclusive of the $800,000 note given by the Bank

to FDIC and the Brown shortage set up in Exhibit A
(R. Ill) in two items, viz.. Special Account for Adjustment,

$150,000, and Claim v. Edward Brown Estate, $268,187.03.

This sale was part of a transaction, whereby a second bank,

The United States National Bank of Portland, Oregon

(hereinafter referred to as the Purchasing Bank), was to

take over the deposit liabilities (R. 88 and 89) and accept-

able assets of the Bank. In further consideration of as-

suming the Bank's deposit liabilities the Purchasing Bank

was to receive the consideration paid by the FDIC to llie

Bank for the unacceptable assets. The depositors of the

Bank were then to become depositors of the Purchasing

Bank.

The i)urcliase price })aid by the FDIC to the Bank was

equal to tlie difference between the agreed value of the as-

sets classified as acceptable by the Purchasing Bank and

the amount of tlie deposit liabilities assumed by th(' Pui-

chasing Bank (R. 91, 92, 93, 99, 100). The initial cash price



paid by FDIC was $906,856.47 (R. 99 and 100), (which was

far in excess of even the $598,646.34 book value of the

assets purchased), and FDIC agreed to pay such additional

sums as might be necessary to meet the Bank's liability to

any depositor or depositors not included in the list of deposit

liabilities attached to the contract. The Bank, pursuant to

the contract, delivered the acceptable or bankable assets

including the amount of the initial purchase price, to the

Purchasing Bank, thereby enabling the latter to assume

and pay the entire deposit liabilities (R. 89).

Proceeding's Below

The New York Life Insurance Company had issued two

policies of insurance on the life of Brown in the sum of

$10,000.00 each, in which policies Ruby M. Brown was

named as beneficiary.

Upon Browm's death. Ruby M. Brown, as beneficiary,

made claim for the full amount of the insurance policies.

Two checks were issued to her by the insurance company

for a total sum of $20,582.00. The insurance company, upon

discovery that the FDIC had a claim against the proceeds

of the policies, stopped payment on these checks. Where-

upon Ruby M. Brown instituted this action against the in-

surance company.

The insurance company answered by depositing the funds

in court and asking for an order requiring the claimants to

interplead. By stipulation an order was entered discharg-

ing the New York Life Insurance Company of liability and

setting up adversely the claims of Ruby M. Brown and

FDIC.

A pretrial conference was held between the FDIC and

Ruby ]\[. Brown, resulting in the entry of a pretrial order

defining the questions of fact and law to be determined

by the court (R. 2-32).



The trial court decided that by reason of the wrongful

and unlawful use by Edward N. Brown of the assets and

property of the Bank a constructive trust arose in favor

of the Bank, and in favor of the FDIC, as assignee of said

Bank, for that proportion of the proceeds of said insurance

policies as the amount of the premiums paid . from the

Bank's funds bears to the total amount of the premiums

paid on said policies (R. 32).

Plaintiff filed a motion to amend the pretrial order and

for new trial, which was denied (R. 77), whereupon Plaintiff

appealed from the judgment and from the order denying her

motion (R. 78). The opinion of the court below is reported

in 58 F. Supp. at page 252.

Argument As To Specification of Error I

Appellant's specification of Error I contends that the trial

court erred in concluding that FDIC succeeded to or be-

came subrogated to the rights, if any, of the Harney County

National Bank against the proceeds of the policy for the

following alleged reasons

:

(A) When FDIC^ made good the shortages in the deposi-

tors' accounts, the right of the Bank or its depositors

to pursue the claim against Brown's insurance

was destroyed, otherwise a dual recovery would be

permitted.

(B) After payment by PM)IC there was in existence no
enforceable claim against insurance proceeds which

the Bank couhl assign to FDIC and which would
suj^port a recovery in favor of FDIC.

(C) FDIC has no right of subrogation.

(D) The assignnuMit to it of the assets of the Bank or

the depositors' chiims cannot assist it.

Appellant's argument in support of contentions (A) and

(B) attempts to analogiz^e the position of the FDIC, in tlie



case at bar, to that of a surety company on a fidelity bond,

citing in support thereof as the controlling case, American

Surety Co. v. Bank of California (1943), 44 F. Supp. 81,

aff'd (CCA 9) 133 F. (2d) 160.

A comparison of the facts in the American Surety Co.

case with those in this case discloses that no such analogy

may, with propriety, be drawn. Accordingly, appellant's

contentions are not well founded and the American Surety

Co. case, as will hereinafter be shown, cannot be considered

as controlling or applicable to the facts in this case.

Appellant's argument in support of contentions (C) and

(D) attempts to project the doctrine of equitable subroga-

tion into this case. We submit, however, that the FDIC
acquired its cause of action herein by assignment from the

Bank rather than by way of subrogation to the rights of

depositors.

Let us first consider the method by which the FDIC ac-

quired its cause of action herein

:

The FDIC, an agency of the Federal Government, is a

corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of

an Act of the Congress of the United States, F. D. I. C. v.

Mangiaracima (1938), 198 A. 777, 16 N. J. Misc. 203;

U. S. V. Doherty (D. C. Neb. 1937), 18 F. Supp. 793.

The FDIC insured the deposits of the Bank.

Because of Brown's peculations, the Bank's capital be-

came impaired and it was unable to meet its deposit lia-

bility, thus prompting the Bank's application to the FDIC
for financial aid to protect the depositors of the Bank.

There are two methods by which the FDIC may protect

the depositors of insured banks in financial difficulties:

1. By paying the claims of depositors in an insured

bank which closes without making adequate provision

for payment of its depositors. Under the statute this

method is employed only where the bank is placed in
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receivership. It involves the usual procedure of takin^^

offsets, proving claims and obtaining assignments of

claims, and is commonly referred to as the pay-off
procedure. The liability of the Corporation under this

procedure is fixed by the terms of the statute, and does

not exceed $5,000 per depositor (U. S. C, Title 12, Sec.

264 (1) (1).)

2. By advancing cash to an insured bank, through
the medium of a loan or by a purchase of assets of

the bank, to replace substandard assets in order to

facilitate the contemporaneous assumption of its de-

posit liabilities by another insured bank. This is com-
monly referred to as the purchase procedure. The
liability of the Corporation under this procedure is not

fixed by the terms of the statute but by negotiation and
contract. The statute authorizes but does not require

aid under this procedure. It expressly provides that

the advances shall be ''upon such terms and conditions

as it (i. e. the FDIC) may determine'' (U. S. C, Title 12,

Sec. 264 (n) (4)). The Corporation may (1) limit

precisely the amount of any advance which it makes and

(2) make the advance by loan secured in whole or in

part by the assets of the bank aided, or by the mecha-
nism of purchasing assets, as was done in this case.

For a discussion of the power of llie FDIC to make such

a contract and its rights thereunder see Thoma.^ P. Niehols

Co. V. Natio^ial City Bank (194;^), 48 X. E. (2d) 49, cert,

den. 320 U. S. 742; Lamherton v. FDIC, 141 F. (2d) 95.

In this case the FDIC met the contingency by the \n\y-

chase method in the following manner: The l^irchasing

Bank pui'chased the acceptabU* assets of tlie Bank in con-

sideration of its assumption of the P)ank's deposit liabili-

ties. The FDIC, pursuant to an appropriate resolution of

its Board of Directors (B. 79), purchased the remaining as-

sets of the Bank at a price fixed by the di ffcrence between

the value of the assets purchased 1)\ tlie Pnrchasing Bank

and the aggregate amount of the deposit liability of the
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Bank. The cash thus realized by the Bank from the sale

of its reniainini>' assets to the FDIC was then turned over

to the Purchasing Bank as further consideration for the

aforesaid assumption of deposit liabilities. In accordance

with its resolution the FDIC entered into an agreement

with the Bank, the pertinent parts of which are quoted in

the appendix infra at p. — and the entire agreement ap-

pearing in the record at p. 88 et seq.

This method is frequently utilized by the FDIC. Of the

390 insured banks which closed because of financial diffi-

culties between 1934 and December 31, 1942, 150 banks with

902,000 accounts and $383 million of deposits were aided

by the Corporation through advances to the extent of $170

million under this procedure. By comparison, during this

period 240 banks with 364,000 depositors and $102 million of

deposits were placed in receivership and the Corporation

paid $81 million of claims of insured depositors.^

Among the assets purchased by and assigned to the FDIC
was the Bank's claim against Edward Brown. This claim

was founded on the loss sustained by the Bank by reason of

the peculations of its funds and properties by Brown,

its employee, director, and officer, amounting eventually

to $41G,777.73 (R. 59). It is apparent therefore that the

FDIC acquired its cause of action herein by express con-

tract with the Bank and not by way of subrogation.

Appellant's misconception of the relationship between

the FDIC, the Bank, its depositors and the appellant is

best illustrated by the following excerpt taken from page

9 of her brief

:

*'In our case here, it is claimed that Brown wrong-
fully abstracted money from depositors' accounts in

the Harney County National Bank under such circum-

11942 FDIC Annual Report, p. 11. (The courts will take judicial

notice of the annual reports to Congress of government agencies.) Texas
and Pacific R. R. Co. v. Pottoroff (1934), 291 U. S. 245, 254.
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stances that the Bank was liable for the losses. FDIC
had insured the depositors' accounts and it responded
and has made good the shortages in the depositors' ac-

counts, takinm; an assit»nnient of tlie de])ositors' claims

against the Bank. In this action FDIC is attempting

to assert the remedy which the depositors and the

Bank had to reach the proceeds of the policies on the

life of the wrongdoer, and under the doctrine of the

American Surety Co. case it must be held that when
FDIC made good the shortages in the depositors' ac-

count that it merely did what it undertook to do for a

consideration and therefore its payment discharged the

debt and it cannot aid its position or change the con-

sequences by taking an assignment or anything else."

The foregoing is utterly fallacious in that the money ab-

stracted by Brown was the property of the Bank not "money
from depositors' accounts." The relationship between a

bank and a depositor is that of debtor and creditor.^ When
Brown embezzled funds from the Bank, the Bank suffered

a loss of assets but continued to be indebted to its deposi-

tors. Consequently, the Bank alone (not the depositors)

acquired a liglit of action against Brown. In the first

sentence of the above quotation appellant seems to have

been laboring under the notion that the situation is as

though the bank had closed because of inability to meet

its deposit liabilities and that a receiver liad been ap-

pointed, in wliicli event the receiver would have succeeded

to the Bank's I'ight of action against Brown and the de-

positors (or FDI(y, as statutory insurer-subrogee) would

liave been relegated to filing chiinis with the rt'ceiver as

-Dahl i(- Penm, Inc. v. State Bank of Portland (1924), 110 Ore. 68,

71, 222 Pac. 1000;

Mahon v. Ilarneij County NaVl Bank (1922), 104 Ore. 323, 329, 206

Pac. 224;

Steele v. Bank of California (1932), 140 Ore. 107, 112, 9 P. (2d) 1053;

In re Edwarch Estate (1932), 140 Ore. 431, 440, 14 W (2(1) 274;

7 Am. Jur., Banks, p. 444, Sec. 444.
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general creditors. However, that did not occur, but instead

the FDIC properly acquired the right of action herein by

way of purchase and assignment fro mthe Bank rather than

from the depositors. So much for the first sentence of the

foregoing quotation.

The second sentence thereof is a pure figment of appel-

lant's imagination. FDIC insured the depositors' accounts

but only to the extent of $5000.00 for each depositor. Through

the method employed by the FDIC herein shortages in

the Bank's assets were restored with cash supplied by

FDIC, which made possible the assumption of the entire

deposit liability by the Purchasing Bank. The Bank's lia-

bility to the depositors was assumed by the Purchasing

Bank and the Bank's liability was extinguished by opera-

tion of law under the doctrine of novation when the de-

positors dealt with the Purchasing Bank in such manner

as to release the Bank. City National Bank v. Fuller

(CCA 8), 52 F. (2d) 870. The FDIC did not in fact,

constructively or otherwise, take any assignment of the

depositors' claims against the Bank and could not have done

so because such claims were retained by the depositors and

became obligations of the Purchasing Bank under its con-

tract of assumption with the Bank.

As to the third sentence of the quotation, appellant errs

in that she states that the *^FDIC is attempting to assert

the remedy which the depositors * * * liad to reach

the proceeds of the policies * * *." As hereinbefore

stated, the depositors had no right of action against Brown
whatsoever. The FDIC claims through the Bank, not

through the depositors. The FDIC did not, by purchasing

the assets of the Bank, discharge a debt. It was under no

obligation to the Bank and the purchase of the assets was a

transaction for value.
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The appellant contends that the instant case is governed

by the doctrine laid down in the case of American Surety

Co. V. Baul: of California, supra.

In the American Surety Co. case an insurer paid the

actual amount of the loss, $6,562.33, to its insured, the em-

ployer of the defaulting employee under a fidelity bond.

The loss was alleged to have been incurred by the insured's

employee procuring the genuine signature of his employer

to checks on which he had inserted the names of fictitious

payees. By forgery of the fictitious payees' endorsements

the employee obtained the proceeds of the checks. In deny-

ing recovery to the insurer against the paying bank under

the theory of subrogation this court in its opinion said:

"The right of subrogation is a creature of equity,

applicable where one person is required to pay a debt

for which another is primarily responsible, and which

the latter should in equity discharge. * * * ^q_

cordingly, subrogation will not operate against an in-

nocent person wronged by a principal's fraud. A
surety may pursue the independent right of action of

the original creditor against a third person, but it must
appear that said third person participated in the wrong-

ful act involved or that he was negligent, for the right to

recover from a third person is merely conditional in

contrast to the right to recover from the princi])al

which is absolute. The equities of the one asking for

subrogation must be superior to those of his adversary.

If the eciuities are equal or if the defendant has the

greater equity, subrogation will not be applied to shift

the loss.

It also stated tlinl :

"The cases, dealing willi the surety's alleged right

of subrogation to tlie claim of tli(^ oi'iLiiiial ci-cMlitor

against a third party with whom the indemnitor is

not in ])rivity, indicate that the result reached depends

n])on a cai'ct'ul analysis of the facts involved."
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Throughout its opinion in the American Surety Co. case

the Court was dealing with an asserted right in personam

which, if upheld, would have required the bank to again

pay the sums abstracted by the defaulter to the banks

loss whereas here we are dealing with a right in rem (the

insurance proceeds) and no attempt is being made to sub-

ject Mrs. Brown to personal liability. Moreover the in-

surance was a gratuity, she was not wronged by Brown's

fraud, she will suffer no loss and as will be pointed out

infra all equities favor appellee's claim, none favor hers.

The diagram appearing in appellant's brief attempting

to illustrate the similarity between the case at bar and the

American Surety Co. case is fatally defective in several

important aspects. At the outset it should be noted that

the contract with the Bank and its assignment of assets to

the FDIC are totally disregarded. The diagram is en-

tirely erroneous without giving consideration to the assign-

ment, because

:

1. The depositors had no right of action against Brown.

2. Prior to the assignment the FDIC had no right of

action against Brown, for it could obtain no derivative

right by subrogation from the depositors, because:

(a) It paid nothing to the depositors.

(b) The depositors had no right which could be

subrogated.

Furthermore, it did not stand in the position of a surety

as to Brown for it insured the Bank's deposits, not Brown's

fidelity.

3. The depositors assigned nothing to the Bank or to

the FDIC.

4. The FDIC was an assignee for value of the Bank's

claim against Brown and not a subrogee of the depositors.

2h
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5. The FDIC took no assignment of the depositors'

claims against the Bank.

Prior to the execution of the contract and the assign-

ment the relationship of the parties was as follows

:

Bank <

—

Depositors

T i
Brown FDIC

After the execution of the contract and the assignment

ment the relationship was as follows

:

Purchasing Bank

Bank^^ -e;^ Depositors

X
V

Brown ^ I^FDIC

FDIC did not insure the Bank or the depositors against

Brown's dishonesty. It insured each depositor to the ex-

tent of $5,000.

Had the I^aiik closed and FDIC paid its deposit insur-

ance liability to the depositors, as required by statute in
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such cases, it would have become subrogated to their rights

against the Bank to the extent of the payment made (U. S.

C, Title 12, Sec. (1)(7)). FDIC did not do this. Rather

than permit the Bank to close, FDIC, pursuant to the

Bank's application for financial assistance, purchased cer-

tain assets of the Bank and paid cash therefor, which it had
authority to do, to the end that the Bank could make provi-

sion for payment to the depositors (IT. S. C, Title 12, Sec.

264(n)(4)). The assets so purchased included the Bank's
claim against Brown (R. 93). The depositors were
strangers to this purchase transaction. The case at bar

and the American Surety Co. case stand for different pro-

positions and the appellant's faulty diagrams and incorrect

assumptions of facts cannot reconcile them. American
Surety Co. v. Bank of California, supra, is good law, but it

is inapplicable to this case.

Weighing the equities between FDIC and appellant, it

is submitted that the FDIC is a purchaser of assets for

value including the Bank's claim against Brown arising

from its unwitting investment in the insurance policies here

involved. The proceeds of the insurance policies were not

created by Brown's use of his own funds, nor by the funds

of appellant. It was created by funds of the FDIC's as-

signor, the Bank.

The alleged equities of the appellant are that she is a

beneficiary under a policy of insurance on the life of her

son; that her son had repaid loans made by her to him;

that her son was under no obligation to so designate her

and she paid nothing for being so designated. Whereas

the equities of appellee include the fact that the premiums

for the insurance were paid with the Bank's funds dis-

honestly and criminally misappropriated and embezzled

by her son from the Bank in which he was a trusted em-

ployee, officer and director, and the further fact that Brown
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was heavily indebted to the Bank for concealed thefts by

reason of which both the Bank and FDIC have suffered

huge losses.

Do the contentions of the appellant, Ruby ^I. Brown,

appeal to the conscience of equity when the facts in the

case at bar disclose that her son was false to his trust

;

that through concealment of his frauds he procured the

Bank to honor his checks ; that the Bank and FDIC have

suffered huge losses as the result of his transgressions;

that the insurance premiums were paid by Bank funds;

that she gave no consideration to her son or the insurance

company, but because her guilty son placed her name in

the policy she demands the fruits of his fraud and crime!

All the equities, therefore, are in favor of the FDIC, none

exist in favor of Brown or his beneficiary. Counsel asserts

that ^* Appellant does not claim through the wrongdoer but

under solemn contracts * * */'3 gj^^ made no con-

tract, she furnished no consideration for the contract. The

contract was entered into by the wrongdoer. The con-

sideration received by the insurance company was paid not

with the wrongdoer's funds but with the funds of the

wronged Bank.

The FDIC as assignee of the Bank's cause of action

against Brown is proceeding to follow funds which Brown

had embezzled or misappropriated from the Bank and in-

vested in a life insurance policy. It is not asserted that

the Bank could not have done so, and what the Bank could

do, FDIC can also do, as i! lias l)y express contract and

assignment acquired the Bank's claim against Bi-own.

The policies of insurance in the case at bar are no more

solemn contracts than those in the case of JauscH v. Ti/lcr

(Two Cases), (1935), lol Ore. 268, 47 P. r2d) 96!), 49 P.

(2d) 372, in which the wife and dauglitiT of the insured.

P. V2, Appellant's Brief.
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who was the defaulter, were the claimants, as beneficiaries,

against the receiver of the company defrauded. The appel-

lant's position in this case is no different than the position

of the wife and daughter in that case. They were bene-

ficiaries, and so is the appellant here. The insured had

misapplied funds and used them to pay the premiums for

the policies under which they claimed. That is precisely

the appellant's position here. The proceeds of the policies

were applied in repayment of the misappropriations in

proportion to the amount of the premiums paid with mis-

appropriated funds. That is what the trial court ordered

in this case, and it should be sustained.^

Specifications of Error II

Contentions of the Parties

In appellant's specification of Error II, it is asserted

that:

"The sole question for determination is whether
the premiums were paid with funds wrongfully em-
bezzled or misappropriated from the Bank."

The gravamen of appellant's argument seem« t^ i^^' ^^^n-^

"embezzled funds" were not directly traced into the pre-

miums paid by the defaulter on the life insurance policies

here involved. However, appellant has either failed to

consider or overlooked the question of whether misappro-

priated funds were used to pay these premiums. In the

interest of clarity, it is deemed advisable at this juncture

^Holmes v. Gilman (1893), 138 N. Y. 369, 34 N. E. 205, 20 L. R. A.

566;

Truelsch v. N. W. Mutual Life Ins. Co. (1925), 186 Wis. 239, 202

X. W| 352;

Mass. Bonding dt Ins. Co., v. Josselyn (1923), 224 Mich. 159, 194 X. W.
548;

Vorlander v. Keyes (C. C. A. 8, 1924), 1 F. (2d) 67.
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to epitomize appellee's position in this main aspect of the

case, which is

:

1. Appellee agrees that the basic question in this case

is whether the various premium payments were paid with

funds belonging to the defaulter or with funds wrongfully

embezzled or misappropriated (actual or constructive, di-

rectly or indirectly) from the Bank.

2. While the court below did not predicate its decision

upon a finding that the various premium payments (except

one) were paid with funds directly embezzled by Bro\^Ti

from the Bank, yet the Court observed (R. 48) that such

a ** finding could be made in the case at bar" and appellee

submits for reasons whicli will be outlined below that the

various premium payments, save one, were paid with funds

embezzled either actually, indirectly or constructively from

the Bank by Brown.

3. That the various premium payments (except one)

were paid with funds wrongfully misappropriated from the

Bank by Brown for the several reasons so learnedly stated

by the lower court.

4. Appellant, standing in the shoes of the defaulter, is

estopped and precluded as a matter of federal public policy

from resorting to the very acts of thievery, misapplication

and concealment condemned by the federal statutes relat-

ing to national banks as a means of thwarting the purposes

of those statutes or as a means of preventing the FDIC,

as assignee of the Bank, from recovering property into

which the Bank's fnnds were dishonestly, criminally .•nul

unlawfully converted. Each of th('S(> ])ro])ositions will he

discussed in the order stated, followed by discussion of

other questions raised.
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As to the Matter of Tracing Embezzled Funds

Appellant would have us believe that the lower court in

stating

:

''The cardinal factor is that no item of the em-
bezzled funds is traced directly into the premiums of

the insurance policies, nor into the bank accounts,

which Brown maintained with the Harney County
National Bank," (Italics supplied)

meant to exclude any finding or conclusion that embezzled

funds were indirectly or constructively traced into the

premium payments. The court's use of the word ''directly"

is alone enough to negative appellant's version, but if fur-

ther proof be required that the court did not so intend,

we need but to read Findings of Fact XX and XXI to the

effect that all premiums (but one) were paid with funds

of and belonging to the Bank and no part of the same were

paid from funds or credits belonging to Edward N. Brown,

and to Conclusions of Law I and II to the same effect,

to say nothing of the court's scholarly analysis of the facts

and the applicable law. The court below concluded (and

we think correctly) that embezzled funds were either in-

directly or constructively traced into the premium pay-

ments.

It is well known, and we think this court will take judicial

notice of the fact, that each defaulting bank officer or em-

ployee uses a somewhat diiferent technique from most

other defaulting bank servants, not only in effecting his

peculations but also in concealing them. The devices em-

ployed by Brown were unusually cunning and so well con-

cealed that it has been impossible to trace the origin or

disposition of more than a segment of his defalcations.

Seemingly, a large portion of Brown's shortages consisted

of cash abstractions, presumably from the till, which he

concealed by making improper charges to depositors' ac-
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counts, by not recording customers' deposits or payments

on customers' notes, by withdrawing ledger sheets and

otherwise. Each time he withdrew the cash, he not only

violated the provision of U. S. C, Title 12, Sec. 375a, which

prohibits an executive officer or director of a national bank

from borrowing money or otherwise becoming indebted

to the Bank, but he also violated the criminal section of

the National Bank Act (U. S. C, Title 12, Sec. 592) by

abstracting and embezzling the Bank's funds. ^loreover,

by not placing either in tlie till, or among the assets of the

Bank, some evidence of his indebtedness in the form of

a countercheck, debit ticket or note, he fraudulently and

illegally concealed the abstractions. It should require no

citation of authority, even if there were no statutory re-

quirement that he take the oath as director prescribed by

U. S. C, Title 12, Sec. 73, to support the proposition that,

notwithstanding his peculations, he had the legal duty to

place some evidence of his indebtedness among the assets

of the Bank and otherwise to reveal to the officers, directors

and bank examiners the nature and extent of his indebted-

ness.

Brown maintained several checking accounts in his name

on the books of the Bank. Some of these were captioned

** Grain" account, *' Steer" account, ^'Edward X. Brown,

Personal," and '* Edward N. Brown, Special." The record

made by Appellant is conspicuously silent in oven attempt-

ing to exphiin the purpose of these several accounts. How-

ever, circumstances indicate tliat Brown maintained or

used these accounts as nii integral part of liis scheme to

conceal his peculations, such as unexplained and seemingly

indiscrimate transfers from one account to another, pr(»-

sumably to meet outstanding checks; proceeds of the sale

of livestock were credited in some instances to his special

account and other times to his persoiuil account; checks
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issued in payment of life insurance premiums were drawn

against both his personal and his special account; unex-

plained credits purporting to be represented by currency

or cash in both accounts. These circumstances, considered

in the light of Brown's unscrupulous pillage and faithless-

ness toward the bank, negative any presumption of honesty

on his part and shifts to appellant the burden of proving

honesty in all of his transactions in these accounts. McCon-

nel V. Henochsherg, 11 Tenn. App. 176. Brown's death

does not overcome the prima facie showing of complete

dishonesty, Meyers v. Baylor University (Tex.), 6 S. W.
(2) 393, 394.

Appellant has not met this burden. It must, therefore,

be presumed that Brown maintained these several accounts

for the purpose of concealing transactions which might have

been discovered had he maintained but one checking account

in his name. We respectfully submit that the Court should

look through the form and to the substance of the transac-

tions and conclude that in effect Brown maintained but one

deposit account in which there was at all times actually a

very substantial overdraft and that credits resulting from

legitimate income of the defaulter (if there was any) should

be applied to the pre-existing overdrafts rather than to

pay those checks which would serve the best interests of

the embezzler and those whom he sought to favor to the

prejudice and at the expense of the Bank to which he owed

undivided fidelity and loyalty. Does it matter that he did

not run bookkeeping entries through his accounts to reflect

all of his peculations when he had the duty so to do, and

does his omission in this regard entitle appellant to rely

on Brown's culpable acts! Certainly not.

The fallacy of appellant's contention is in the refusal to

recognize that a depositor owns no part of the bank's funds,

and that the relationship between them is solely that of
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debtor and creditor. A bank is not bound, and in fact has

no ri^i^'bt, to pay out its funds in honoring a check drawn
upon it, unless at the time of presentation this debtor-

creditor relationship results in a credit balance in favor

of the drawer equal to the amount of the check.

True, under certain circumstances a bank may permit an

*^ overdraft"—itself a significant term, but permission im-

plies knowledge. Brown, assistant cashier, director and

vice president, concealed his wrongs and kept from the

Bank all knowledge that the apparent balance was not

actual. As a result of such concealment and violation of

his duty to disclose his peculations, the Bank when it paid

and honored Brown's checks for premiums was not paying

a debt it owed to him, but was unknowingly investing its

funds in a life insurance policy payable to appellant.

The law has never concerned itself with defining or

describing all possible ways in which fraud, deceit, and

breaches of trust can be accomplished. It has contented

itself in declaring that however done, however new and

ingenious the means and methods, its arm will reach out

to correct the wrong and deprive the wrongdoer, and those

who, without valuable consideration, claim through him, of

the fruits of the wrong.

It was stipulated that during Brown's employment his

peculations from the Bank amounted to $416,777.73, and

that from 1935 to 1942 he embezzled and misappropriated

from one source alone, viz., false entries, withheld deposits

made by depositors, and by unauthorized and wrongful

withdrawals from credits and accounts of depositors the

sum of $223,586.35 (R. 17).

AVhile the appellant did not concede the truth of these

facts, it did admit that the FDIC could jiroduce evidence

in support thereof, yet appellant waived their production

(R. 18). These facts, therefore, renuiin undisputed.
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All of the checks in payment of premiums on the policies

were drawn between 1935 and 1940 by Brown on his per-

sonal or special accounts with the Bank except the last

premium on policy No. 12748022 (R. 6). The various

items of credit appearing to his accounts at the times the

checks in payment of premiums were honored were agreed

to (R. 6-14). The FDIC did not admit that they were

proper items of credit or that on the dates that they were

recorded Brown had any actual credit balance in the Bank
(R.14). So far as the items are concerned there is neither

conflict nor dispute.

The trial court was not misled by the argument of the

appellant that the embezzled funds with which the premiums

were paid must be definitely and specifically traced, and rely-

ing on the case of McConnel v. Henochsherg, 11 Tenn. App.

176, observed:

''Criticism is made of the application of that case to

the situation here because of the fact that the court

says 'it is evident that several thousand dollars of this

stolen money was used by Henochsberg and did ac-

tually pass through his bank accounts.' The same find-

ing could be made in the case at bar. However, this

court does not place the decision here upon that basis,

but upon the broad ground upon which the Tennessee
court mav also have relied, that the fiduciarv who ob-

tains property by breach of his obligations of confi-

dence cannot equitably retain it."

The facts of that case are almost identical with those of

the case at bar. Henochsberg was an assistant cashier and

over a period of years embezzled $329,591.75 of the bank's

funds. The bank examination revealed that he had manip-

ulated depositors' accounts in covering his operations in

much the same way as did Brown. He, too, had purchased

life insurance, but his wife and children were the bene-

ficiaries rather than his mother. The premiums on the
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policies subsequent to January 1, 1920, were paid by cliecks

drawn on tbe various accounts he had with the bank which

he fed with the embezzled cash. The cash that passed

throui^h these accounts was far in excess of his salary and

his own resources. The same question arose as to actually

tracing the money used in paying the life insurance pre-

miums and the other property involved, but the court de-

cided the issue against the claimants and said:

** While recognizing tlie settled rule that the mis-

appropriated funds must be traced into the specific

property before there can be a constructive trust im-

pressed, we are of the opinion that where the trustee

ex maleficio has pursued a systematic scheme and plan

of stealing funds from the bank, where he sustains the

fiduciary relation of assistant cashier and has direct

supervision of the accounting department of the bank
and abuses the confidence of the employers of the bank,

and by the method employed uses the stolen funds

taken by him fi'om the deposits of customers, and at

such times as it becomes necessary and expedient feeds

a sufficient amount of the stolen funds into his own
bank account to protect checks drawn by him on his

accounts in the payment of life insurance premiums
and payments on the other property sought to be im-

pressed with the trust, that it constitutes such a trac-

ing of the stolen funds into this property as to meet
the exactions of the law with reference to impressing

such property with a constructive trust. It would be

a subversion of justice and all rules of equity to say,

that a trusted employee charged with the duty of

handling the funds of liis employer, through a fraudu-

lent scheme and systematic coui'se of fraud and decej)-

tion to steal the funds of his employe]', and to mix
such stolen funds with his own funds and out of the

mingled funds, mingled with deliberate fraudulent in-

tent to conceal and to hide away the identical funds

stolen, and to invest such funds in property taken in

his own name, could reap the fruits of his own misdoing

at the ex])ens(» of the employer."*'

• ••••••
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The appellant denies that any embezzled funds were

traced into Brown's accounts and by way of emphasis states

in her brief. ^ "In every instance the credits to his accounts

are either salary or amounts received by him from outside

sources.'' "Outside sources" might mean anything and

possibly that is what appellant had in mind, because there

are these unexplained items of cash and currency appear-

ing in Brown's accounts when the premium checks were

honored

:

December 2, 1935 $150.00 "currency" (E. 6).

October 3, 1936 50.00 "currency" (R. 7).

October 23, 1939 250.00 "cash" (R. 9).

October 21, 1937 240.00 ^

' currency '

'

(R. 13).

The question of who had the burden of proof, and how
that burden (if appellee's) was met and how appellant

failed to sustain her burden is dealt with more fully under

the subheading "As to the Matter of Burden of Proof,"

infra, but it should be observed at this juncture that the

breakdown of Brown's accounts is not for all of the months

between 1935 and 1940, but only the months when the

premium checks were honored. Although this is not in-

tended as an analysis of Brown's various enterprises, there

are several items that deserve more than passing notice.

In the years 1938, 1939, and 1940 he sold livestock to the

total of $15,353.30. The livestock was not a gift, it was not

all that he had, but merely what he sold, yet his salary in

1937 was only $225 per month and in and after 1938 it was

but $250 per month. Appellant offered not one scintilla

of proof that the livestock was purchased with Brown's

own funds. The premiums on the insurance here involved

were nearly $600 annually. In 1935 he began buying real

estate at a time when his salary was only $160.00 per month.

5 p. 36 Appellant's Brief.
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From 1935 to 1940 he bought real estate for which he had

paid $6,433.03 and this was only the real estate he held

at his death. Where did he get the money to pay for this

real estate? His only actual resources about whicli there

can be no question were two gifts of cash, one in 1930 of

$2,300 and the other of $1,300 in 1931, but these sums were

apparently dissipated since they do not appear in any

amount in his accounts in the years 1935 to 1940. He bor-

rowed $4,000 from his parents in 1938, 1939 and 1940, which

he repaid. It is an irrefutable conclusion that his opera-

tions were founded by and nurtured with his peculations

from the Bank. His only resources, besides the salary he

drew, were borrowed funds of $4,000, but these are en-

tirely inadequate for such operations. The funds passing

through his grain and steer accounts were apparently the

fruits of his operations with the Bank's funds and he drew

on these accounts to feed his personal and special accounts

from which the premium payments were made. Between

1935 and 1940 his peculations from one source alone were

:

In the year 1935 $12,893.21

In the year 1936 3,031.52

In the year 1937 17,996.84

In the year 1938 40,982.14

In the year 1939 93,203.44

In the year 1940 39,780.33

Appellant concedes that the Oregon Supreme Court in

Jansen v. Tyler, supra , has announced a ruk^ whicli, it' ap-

plicable to tliis case, would award to FDIC that ])roportion

of the proceeds of the policies wliicli the premiums paid

from funds or })roperty embezzled, misappropriated or

wrongfully converted by Brown from the Bank, bear to the

total premiums paid.

Tvlcr was the president and general manager of an in-

vestment company. He created an insurance trust for the
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benefit of his wife and daughter, some of the insurance

premiums having been paid with funds misappropriated

from the investment company. He was indicted for em-

bezzlement and shortly thereafter committed suicide. The
action was instituted by the receiver of the investment com-

pany against the trustees of the insurance fund to recover

the proceeds of certain policies, the premiums of which

were thus paid. The court held that Tyler was a trustee of

the investment company and allowed a recovery. It said:

*' Where a fiduciary embezzles funds of his cestui

que trust and uses same in building an estate in life

insurance, equity will impress a trust in favor of the

cestui que trust in the proceeds of such insurance for

moneys so embezzled.''

and on the rehearing:

**It is well settled that whenever a trustee or other

person in a fiduciary position wrongfully purchases
land or personal property with trust funds, or funds
in his hands impressed with a fiduciary character, and
takes title to such property in his own name, without
any declaration of a trust, a trust with respect to such
property at once results in favor of the original cestui

que trust or other beneficiary. The doctrine in regard
to such a trust is of wide operation and is used by
courts of equity in maintaining and protecting bene-

ficial rights of property. It is applied to trustees

proper, to executors, administrators, directors, and
managers of corporations, guardians of infant wards,
agents using money of their principals, partners using
partnership funds, and to all persons who stand in

fiduciary relations towards others. 1 Pomeroy, Equity
Jurisprudence (4th Ed.) sec. 422." (Italics added.)

For the reasons stated by the court below and discussed

infra, the rule laid down in the Jansen case is controlling

here.
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Tracing of specific funds is not necessary to impress a

trust on tlie proceeds of insurance. The Wisconsin

Supreme Court in the case of Truelsch v. Northwestern

Mutual Life Insurance Co. (1925), 186 Wis. 239, 202 N. W.
352, 38 A. L. R. 914, decided a case similar in many respects

to the case at bar. Paul Truelsch was a clerk and book-

keeper who falsified entries and trial balances to cover his

withdrawal of cash from his employer's deposits before

they were taken to the bank. It is not entirely clear from

what source the premiums were paid on the life insurance

he had purchased. When his misdeeds were about to be

uncovered he committed suicide. The court said:

"On the subject of tracing the funds, counsel for the

respondent relies on the legal proposition that the

burden was on the appellant to prove that the money
embezzled went into the policies ; that, when the funds

cannot be traced, the equitable right of the cestui que

trust to follow and reclaim a trust fund fails ; that the

rio'ht to follow and reclaim a trust fund is alwavs

based upon the right of property, and not on the theory

of preference by reason of an unlawful conversion.

"Although in this case the proof of criminal conduct

on the part of Paul was involved, it is very clear, on

well-settled rules, that it was not necessary to prove

either the embezzlement or the tracing of the funds

beyond a i-easonable doubt. Nor was it necessary in

proving that the moneys embezzled were used to pay
for the premiums, to show that the identical specie or

bills abstracted were so employed. Whatever may
have been the former rule, it is not now the law thiit

one cannot follow money in equity because it has no

earmarks.''

We do not contend nor argue that if Brown had received

a girt from his father in cash and had used some of that

cash to pay a life insurance premium that the Bank or
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FDIC would be entitled to the proceeds of the policy.

Neither do we contend nor argue that if Brown had taken

a part of the hypothetical gift from his father, brought it

to the Bank as a special deposit (not a deposit for a special

purpose) (see Keyes v. Paducah and L R. Co., C. C. A. 6,

61 F. (2d) 611, defining '* special deposit'' and ^* general

deposit,'' and Titlow v. Snndquist, C. C. A. 9, 234 Fed.

613, defining ^'deposit for special purpose") to be

delivered to the life insurance company in kind or to

purchase therewith a draft from the Bank payable to the

life insurance company, that the Bank's funds would have

been used to pay the premium. However, nothing of that

sort was done, and this being a case in equity, the court

will not indulge in a fiction by saying, as appellant would

have it do, that the situation is as though Brown made a

special deposit or purchased a draft, when to do so would

defeat, not promote, the ends of justice and the plain pur-

pose of the Federal protective statutes enacted for the

protection of the Bank, its depositors, and the FDIC. We
do, however, earnestly assert and submit that if Brown took

that gift and deposited it in the Bank, the Bank then ac-

quired the ownership of the money and became obligated

to account to him either in the form of a deposit account

which could be set off against Brown's indebtedness or by

way of direct application on Brown's indebtedness with-

out entering it as a credit in his deposit account.

Assuming, but not conceding, that some of the credits

appearing in Brown's deposit account represented funds

derived by him from legitimate sources. Brown admittedly

intended that title to those funds was to pass to the Bank.

Having done so and having previously violated practically

every trust and confidence imposed on him by the Bank
and by the law, neither equity nor the law will then permit

him to secretly and surreptitiously juggle or apply those

3b
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credits to tlie payment of his insurance premiums, rather

than to the reduction of his prior defalcations, thereby

serving his best interests at the expense, and to the prejudice

of his innocent, unwitting, trusting employer, the Bank, cf.

Grant Co. Bldg. Loan S Sav. Assn. v. Lcmmon (Ky., 1904),

78 S. W. 874, 875.

It is our position, therefore, that even if any of the credits

which were reflected in Brown's account can be considered

as funds received by Brown from legitimate sources (which

appellee does not concede) that these credits operated

either as a matter of law or in equity merely to reduce

Brown's pre-existing indebtedness whether it be considered

an overdraft or otherwise. Therefore there were no credit

balances against which the insurance premium checks could

be charged on the respective dates they were presented,

but instead there were actual overdrafts which were in-

creased by the payment of the premium checks. It follows

that Brown used embezzled funds to pay the premium

checks, and that embezzled funds were constructively, if

not actually, traced into the premiums, save one. There

was abundant evidence before the trial court to justify

such findings.

As to the Matter of Tracing Misapplied Funds

The laws governing indebtedness to national banks by

executive officers are explicit and stringent (U. S. C, Title

12, Sec. 375a), and as a director Brown was re(]uired under

his oath honestly to administer the alTairs of the Bank

(U. S. C, Title 12, Sec. 73). He violated botli provisions.

The deposit accounts Brown maintained at tlie Bank and

on which he drew for the payment of the })reniiuins created

nothing more than a creditor and debtor relationshi]). They

were no different than any other de])osit account with a

])ank. The funds dej)Osited are i'uiuls of tlu^ Bank and not
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the depositor. As such the funds were not earmarked and

if he deposited more than he withdrew, then the Bank was

his debtor, conversely when he withdrew more than he

deposited, the Bank w^as the creditor. Obviously Brown had

not borrowed the money and he was prohibited by law

from becoming otherwise indebted to the Bank. It is

equally obvious that the credit balances in his favor in these

accounts were fictitious because he had deliberately failed

to charge his withdrawals and indebtedness to the Bank.

Therefore, despite the apparent credit in his accounts,

whenever the Bank honored his checks for premium pay-

ments to the insurance company, it was paying its funds and

not Brown ^s funds. The Bank, by honoring his checks, did

not ratify or confirm his indebtedness because it had no

knowledge of the facts and was unaware of the true con-

dition of his accounts.^ Therefore, his attempted use of the

alleged deposits to pay the insurance premiums, rather than

the application or credit of those deposits to his defalca-

tions, was clearly misapplication of the funds of the bank

and the court below correctly decided that misapplied funds

of the bank were traced into the premium payments.

Appellant's position seems to be that Brown's embezzle-

ments and abstractions are something apart, unrelated to,

and disconnected from his deposit account. With that posi-

tion, we disagree for the reasons soundly relied upon by the

court below and the portion of our argument under the

heading *^As to the Matter of Tracing Embezzled Funds.''

However, let it be asumed, arguendo that appellant's ver-

sion as just stated can be supported and that, broadly speak-

ing, the situation is something akin to Brown having

borrowed $416,000 on demand or past due notes and at the

^Tiltoji V. Boland (1934), 147 Ore. 28, 35, 31 P. (2d) 657; Schomaker
V. Petersen (Cal., 1930), 285 P. 342; Farnum v. O'Neill, 252 N. Y. S.

900, 904; Renland v. First Nat'l Bank (Mont., 1931), 4 P. (2d) 488;
Miller v. Ahrens, 163 Fed. 870, 877.
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same time maintaining deposit accounts. What would his

duty have been with respect to the use of the deposits?

—

knowing, 1st, that the Bank had a banker's lien on the

commercial paper allegedly deposited by him for collection

(see Joyce v. Auten, 179 U. S. 591; Kane v. First National

Bank (C. C. A. 5), TjC) F. (2d) 534, 85 A. L. R. 362, cer.

den. 287 U. S. 603; 7 Am. Jur. Sec. 626, p. 453) and, 2nd,

that the bank had the right to set off the balances appear-

ing from time to time in deposit accounts (see 7 Am. Jur.,

Sec. 629, pp. 455-457), particularly where the depositor-

borrower is insolvent and even though the debt were un-

matured (see 7 Am. Jur., Sec. 632, p. 459).

As an officer and director who had taken a solemn statu-

tory oath to faithfully serve the Bank, he was bound to

credit those deposits on his indebtedness to the Bank rather

than to use the deposits to build up an insurance estate

for his mother. His breach of that duty was a patent

misapplication of the Bank's funds. In legal effect, the

deposit balances constituted collateral pledged by opera-

tion of law to secure the depositors' indebtedness and, to

be sure, if he had converted securities or chattels which had

been pledged as collateral. Brown would have been guilty

of misapplication. A fortiori in the situation in the case

at bar, his wrongful, dishonest use of the deposits for his

selfish purposes constituted misapplication of the gravest

type because he concealed his indebtedness from other offi-

cers and directors who could and no doubt would have

applied the deposits to the reduction of Brown's shortages.

If, for any reason, tliere is a lack of tracing of embezzkMl

funds into the premium i)ayments, then to be cei'tnin such

deficiency is clearly sup}jlied by the tracing of the most

flagrant and unconscionable species of niisa])])lication.

The matter of set-offs of embezzlements against apparent

credit balances in the defaulter's bank account was urued
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upon and the court considered it in the case of McConnell v.

Henochsberg, supra, in which the facts are peculiarly simi-

lar to the case at bar. The FDIC in support of its position

cites the same quotation from that case which it presented

to the trial court:

^'But it is clearly apparent from the record that

checks issued by him in payment of the life insurance
premiums after January 1, 1920, and in payment of

the other investments, and payments on the other
property sought to be impressed with a trust herein,

were paid out of moneys which did not belong to him,
and that he had so mingled the stolen moneys with his

own funds in the bank accounts as to make it impossible
to actually ear-mark the stolen moneys as having been
used exclusively in paying the life insurance premiums
and the payments on the other property involved. It is

contended for appellants that this would necessitate

the application of the rule of set-off, and that the mis-
appropriated funds should have been set-off against
legitimate deposits. We think a sufficient answer to

this contention is that, the bank officials had no knowl-
edge, intimation or suspicion that Henochsberg was
a defaulter with the bank until the morning of his sui-

cide. Henochsberg had so manipulated these accounts,

as well as his own, as to successfully conceal his short-

ages and thefts. In this situation there was no opjDor-

tunity for the bank officials to resort to set-off."

The trial court correctly followed this case and found that

:

^' All the money paid out upon checks issued by Brown
against his paper accounts, belong to the Bank."

The appellant has cited Duke v. Johnson (1923), 127

Wash. 601, 221 Pac. 321, but it is without merit here. Tlio

depositor Lindeberg, although his checking account was
good for the amount charged against his account, was
indebted to the bank at the time the check in question was
honored. The bank was aware of the indebtedness, but
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through choice had not exercised its right of set-off. There

was no secret embezzlement or fraud involved and a con-

structive trust had not been applied to reach the funds

in question.

The other case cited by appellant, Peoples State Bank v.

Caterpillar Tractor Co. (Ind., 1938), 12 N. E. (2d) 123, has

no effect here because once again the facts of that case

show that there was no fraud; that the trust theory was not

applied to decide the issues. It was a business transaction

in which the bank set off its indebtedness against a deposi-

tor, and its rights were determined as of that time.

The point urged by the appellant for these cases might be

helpful if it were not for the fact that the Bank at all times

was at the mercy of Brown and could not exercise its rights

against his accounts by reason of his fraudulent practices

and concealment. Neither could the officers, nor directors,

have authorized, permitted, or ratified Brown's acts without

themselves violating Section 375a of U. S. C, Title 12.

The appellant cites AjnericaYi National Bank v. King, 158

Okla. 278, 13 P. (2d) 164, as authority for its position. The

case represents a minority view which is not followed in Ore-

gon. It holds that where a trustee ex malcficio uses funds to

purchase insurance, the cestui que trust cannot recover the

proceeds of the policy on the death of the trustee insured.

It refuses to follow Vorlander v. Keyes (C. C. A. 8, 1924),

1 F. (2d) 67; and the majority view on the subject, and on

the doctrine of commingling of funds says:

**If we apply the M)ag' theory discussed in the briefs,

there was contained therein tlie ])remiums and tlio sac-

rifice of a human life that the bank had no control

over and no mortgage on.''

While conceding that tangible property could be followed

and recovered under the trust theory, it does not discuss

and seems to have been wholly unaware of the principle of
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law that the relationship between a bank and depositor

is merely that of a debtor and creditor and that the doctrine

of set-off applies. The court stated that had King been

charged at any time with the amount of the defalcation of

which he was cognizant, there never would have been any-

thing to his credit at the bank, but it concluded:

''The theory of the plaintiff bank is that if it can
establish that the bank's money paid the premiums, it

gets the insurance, overlooking the fact that it took
King's death to mature the contract of insurance and
create the funds."

Small wonder that the trial court in considering, but re-

fusing to follow, the case says

:

"The court apparently entertained an emotional
dislike for the doctrine of recovery of the proceeds of

an aleatory contract and upon this feeling the case is

founded."

The law of the Oklahoma case is not recognized in Oregon,

where the majority view prevails and was followed in the

case of Jansen v. Tyler, discussed and analyzed supra, in

which it was held that the cestui que trust recovery is not

limited to the amount of the misapplied funds, but is en-

titled to the proceeds of the policies in the proportion that

the payments made from the trust funds bear to the total

premiums paid and then that the cestui que trust may re-

cover the entire proceeds where all the premiums have been

paid with trust funds. Both parties agree that Jansen v.

Tyler governs this case, if applicable to the facts here

involved (R. 28).

As to the Matter of Estoppel by Public Policy

The Federal courts have grouped the numerous statutes

in that field of law relating to national banks to take notice
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of questions of public policy clearly shown by the pattern

of those statutes. The clear intent of the statutory enact-

ments is effectuated by the court's decision. See recent

leading case of'Deitrick v. Greaney (1940), 309 U. S. 190,

reh. den. 1940, 309 U. S. 697. Public policy once declared is

supreme. It is based upon the enforcement of that which

is for the public good, 11 Am. Jur. Sec. 125, pp. 411-412.

This being an action involving the winding up of the affairs

of a national bank is controlled by the provisions of the

Act and other related Federal statutes which constitute a

complete code for the organization, regulation and winding

up of such institutions. See Cook County National Bank

v. U. S. (1883), 107 U. S. 445; Deitrick v. Greaney, supra.

The Federal banking statutes of the United States, by the

very nature of their protective character, form a pattern

from which is readily discernible a public policy designed

to protect the public generally, and particularly from the

fraudulent or criminal acts and unjust enrichment of officers,

directors and employees of the banks. Some of the indicia

of this policy found in the Federal statutes are:

1. Banks are subject to supervision and examination

by the Comptroller of the Currency, U. S. C. Title 12,

Sec. 481

;

2. Banks are required to make reports of conditions

from time to time to the Comptroller of the Currency
and to publish such reports, U. S. (\ Title 12, Sec. ICn

;

3. Embezzlement of banks' funds by an oflicMM- or v\\\-

])loyee or agent of the bank, as well as false entries,

misapplication, false reports, etc., are constituted crim-

inal offcMises under provision of U. S. C TitU^ 12, Sec.

592.

4. The borrowing of money, either directly or otluM*-

wise, by executive ofiicers of the banks is rigorously

limited and largelv i)roliil)ile(l under provisions of

U. S. C. Title 12, Sec. 375a.
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5. Directors are required to take and subscribe to

an oath of office before entering upon discharge of their

duties. U. S. C. Title 12, Sec. 73.

The Congress has enacted numerous other statutes and

erected elaborate safeguards to protect the public in its

dealing with national banks, U. S. C. Title 12, Chapter 2;

with members of the Federal Reserve System, to which all

national banks in Continental United States must belong,

U. S. C. Title 12, Chapter 3; and with all banks, the de-

posits of which are insured by the Federal Deposit Insur-

ance Corporation, U. S. C. Title 12, Sec. 264. The United

States Supreme Court in its opinion in the case of Deitrick

V. Greaney, supra, enumerated in considerable detail many
of the protective and regulatory provisions enacted by Con-

gress. Not only are these and other statutes, as well as

regulations of the Federal Bank Supervising Agency (which

have the force and effect of law) designed to protect the

public in general, but also to protect Federal Deposit In-

surance Corporation and the public fund which it adminis-

ters. D'Oench Duhme and Company v. FDIC (1942), 315

U. S. 447, reh. den. (19*42), 315 U. S. 830; FDIC v. Vest

(C. C. A. 6, 1941), 122 F. (2d) 765, cert. den. (1941), 314

U. S. 696; General American Life Ins. Co. v. Anderson (Ky.

1942), 46 F. Supp. 189.

In the case at bar, Brown knowingly violated the prohi-

bition against embezzlements, misapplications and false en-

tries ; the solemn oath taken by him as a director and the

prohibition against officers becoming indebted to the bank.

He also made false reports and misrepresentations to the

directors and the bank examiners, and otherwise in almost

every conceivable manner breached his statutory as well as

common law fiduciary duties to the bank to serve his ow^n

selfish interests. In this action to recover insurance pro-

ceeds illegally and dishonestly acquired. Brown's bene-



38

ficiary now seeks by way of defense to plead and rely upon

the bank records maintained by Brown, which are replete

with false entries made with his full knowledge, if not his

direction, which records concealed from the honest officers

and directors of the Bank, as well as from the bank exami-

ners, the real facts with respect to the status of his deposit

accounts and his numerous transgressions. Appellant also

seeks to support her contention by relying upon Brown's un-

conscionable act of omission in not applying his deposits to

reduce his abstractions, and his wrongful act of commis-

sion in converting the alleged deposits to his own use when

the Bank had the indisputable right to set off or appropriate

them to reduce its loss. Paraphrasing the language of Mr.

Justice Stone in Deitrick v. Grcaney, supra, at page 198:

It is a principle which derives its force from the

circumstances that Brown's acts apart from their pos-

sible injurious consequences to creditors are them-

selves violations of the Federal Statutes; and that the

statutes read in the light of their purposes and policy

preclude resort to the very acts which they condemn,
as the means of thwarting those purposes by preventinii;

the receiver and the creditors o'f the bank from recover-

ing propei'ty to which the bank's funds were dishonestly

and unlawfully converted.

Rights or remedies ordinarily enforceable as well as de-

fenses ordinarily available are not recognized by con its

when to do so violates and thwarts the legislative policy and

where the result would defeat the objectives sought to be

accomplished by the legislative safeguards. See Deitrick

V. Greaney, supra, holding that the wrongdoer was estopped

to plead accommodation and D'Oench Duhnir and Company
V. FDIC, supra, where tlie court held tliat want of con-

sideration could not be jjleaded and cited numerous stated

authorities to the same effect. See also FDIC v. Vest,
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supra, extending the rule to one who only unwittingly acted

in concert with a bank officer.

The doctrine of estoppel by public policy is further

buttressed by the axiomatic principle that equity will not

extend its aid in the assertion of a mere legal right con-

trary to the clear equity and justice of the case. Jones v.

N. Y, G. & 1. Co. (1880), 101 U. S. 622.

We respectfully submit that the judgment and decision

of the court below be affirmed, not only for the reasons

argued under the preceding headings but also on the

grounds of estoppel as a matter of Federal public policy

and as a matter of equity.

As to the Matter of " Salary''

The appellant completely ignores the significant part of

the Pre-Trial Order pertaining to Brown's salary (R. 15) :

^'That the directors of said Bank, being entirely

ignorant of any wrongful acts, embezzlements, mis-

appropriations or defalcations on the part of the said

Edward N. Brown of any of the property or assets

of the Bank or of any breaches of trust of duty on his

part, authorized and fixed his salary in the monthly
sums mentioned in said deposit slips as salaries and
authorized him to draw on said amounts."

There is neither conflict nor dispute as to these facts.

Brown was prohibited by law from borrowing or becom-

ing otherwise indebted to the Bank (U. S. C, Title 12, Sec.

375a)

:

*^No executive officer of any member bank shall bor-

row from or otherwise become indebted to any mem-
ber bank of which he is an executive officer, and no

member bank shall make any loan or extend credit in

any other manner to any of its own executive officers;''
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and under his oath as a director he swore (U. S. C, Title 12,

Sec. 73) :

'* * * * that he will, so far as the duty devolves

on him, diligently and honestly administer the affairs

of such association, and will not knowingly violate or

willingly permit to be violated any of the provisions

of this chapter."

Brown's manipulation of the records of the Bank not

only eluded detection by the other officers and employees of

the Bank, but by the national bank examiners as well. His

operations succeeded over a period of years. Tlie nub of

the matter is not that the Bank did not discover his dis-

honesty, and exercise its rights against him, but that he

drew the salary knowing of his defalcations. Brown vio-

lated his oath and breached his trust relationship by bis

acts of drawing a salary when he knew that in fact he was

indebted to the Bank many times more than the said salary.

In the Restatement of Restitution, Sec. 138, is the follow-

ing:

*^A fiduciary who has acquired a benefit by a breach
of his duty as fiduciary is under a duty of restitution

to the beneficiary."

The law is well settled that the unfaithful employee is not

entitled to salary for a breach of trust or duty, whether tlie

breach be as a result of negligence, want of skill or in-

tentional."^

T Peterson v. Mayer (Minn., 1891), 49 N. W. 245, 246; 35 Am. Jur.,

Master & Servant, Roc. 72, p. 503; Ilahl v. KrUogg (1906), 42 Tex. Civ.

App. 636, 94 S. W. 389; Lahr v. Kraemcr (1903), 91 Minn. 26, 97 N. W.
418; 13 L. R. A. 72, Note; Hoyal v. Royal (1897), 30 Ore. 448, 47 P. 828;

Wimloiv V. Rutherford (1911), 59 Ore. 124, 114 P. 930; W. G. Reddingius

Co. V. K>ikrma (1923), 156 Minn. 2S3, 194 X. W. 646; and Neely v. Tr»7-

morc (1916), 124 Ark. 460, 187 S. W. 637.
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The appellant's position, however, seems to be that since

Brown had avoided an accounting that there is now no rea-

son for her to account.

The appellant cites Siveet v. Lang (CCA 8), 14 F. (2d)

762, in support of her contention. That case falls far short

of the facts of the case at bar. The officers in that case all

paid their personal obligations with corporation checks.

Such transactions were duly charged to their accounts, and

interest on the sums so advanced was charged. All the

officers had actual knowledge of the practice and acquiesced

therein, and the corporation at the time was solvent. Again

in the case of Oliver v. Northwestern Mutual Life Ins. Co.

(Pa. 1932), 2 F. Supp. 266, the corporation was solvent and

the officers pursuant to agreement, paid their insurance

premiums with corporation checks, but there was neither

concealment nor fraud perpetrated by the insured under

the policy of insurance.

Here, however, there is the additional fact that the ap-

pellant is not an injured innocent third party. She gave

no consideration, has no property right to be protected and

stands in the same position as Brown, were he alive. He
was an embezzler and in ignorance of his conduct the Board

of Director permitted him to draw his salary.

To overcome the effect on the case at bar, the appellant

makes an erroneous assumption of the facts in the case of

Jansen v. Tyler, supra, that *^ Unquestionably, some of the

premium payments which were held to have been made with

Tyler's own funds were paid with funds which he drew from

his salary account, either as salary or overdraft." This is

eontrarv to the facts stated bv the Court

:

^'The receiver and Mrs. Woodworlh, former treas-

urer of the company and bookkeeper, who was assist iiig

the receiver, and W. L. Coleman, all of whom are ac-

countants, made a thorough and searching examination
of the records and books of the company and testified
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to the effect that there had not been paid by the com-

pany or out of its funds directly or indirectly any
premiums upon any insurance policies upon the life of

Mr. Tvler, except the three quarterly premiuiMs on

policies No. 629852 and No. 649853, of the New England
Mutual Life Insurance Company" (Italics supplied).

There is no basis whatever for the appellant's assump-

tion that the otlier premiums were paid out of funds which

Tyler had misappropriated from the company.

The appellant's contention that the salary drawn hy

Brown was no more "embezzled funds" than money regu-

larly borrowed from the Bank is spurious reasoning under

the circumstances of this case. Brown was in no position

to borrow from the Bank; he did not draw the funds as a

loan ; and he had no intention of repaying the sum.

As to the Matter of "Burden of Proof and the Trial

Courtis Alternative Theory Concerning Commingling of

Trust Funds.

Appellant contends that the burden of proving that the

premiums were paid with money embezzled or wrongfully

misappropriated from the Bank is on the FDIC through-

out the case and that a failure to show that any of the

stolen funds found their way into the premiums should end

the case.

The trial court in reasoning this case set forth the alter-

native theory that the commingling of funds where fraud

has once been proven would have achieved an identical

result. The appellant concedes that the proof to establish

that the prc^nium payments were paid from connningled

funds need neither be conclusive nor direct and may be

circumstantial.

The text writers say that the duty to separate and dis-

tinguish liis proi)erty is on the defaulting trustee, hence

the burden of proof is his.
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65 C. J., sec. 899, p. 972:

^^As a general rule the cestui que trust's equitable

right of recovery is not destroyed by reason of the

fact that the trustee has so commingled the trust prop-

erty with his own property that it is impossible par-

ticularly to identify the trust property; for, unless the

trust property is such that it can be ascerjtained and
separated from the rest, the entire commingled fund
or profjerty will be treated as subject to the trust, to

the extent necessary to make good the claim of the

cestui que trust to funds traced to, and still found
commingled in, the common fund, except in so far as

the trustee may be able to distinguish and separate

that which is his own.''

The record in this case is replete with clear and con-

vincing proof of Brown's dishonesty and a dearth of proof

that Brown had any substantial source of revenue or in-

come other than from avails of money stolen from the

Bank. These facts do not permit a presumption of Brown's

innocence, and under such circumstances the burden is on

appellant to show that the payment of premiums was not

made with Bank funds.

The appellant has cited from Bogert, Trusts and Trus-

tees, under the heading of ''Tracing Trust Funds." From
the same volume and under the same heading (Bogert,

Vol. 4, sec. 925, p. 2676) the following is taken:

"But other courts have aided the cestui in tracing

by introducing a presumption that trust assets con-

tinued in the hands of the trustee to the time of his

death or insolvency. They have held that a cestui

makes out a prima facie case for tracing w^hen he
shows that trust assets came into the hands of the

trustee, and that the burden is then upon the trustee

or his successor to prove that those assets were not

held by the trustee at his deatli or insolvency but had
been used up in some fashion.
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'^Tbe cestui may use circumstantial evidence, as

where lie proves that the trustee had no property or

source of income other than the trust funds from which
he could have purchased property found in his hands
at his death or failure."

The duty of the trustee not to mingle has been stated

by Pomero*.^ 5th Ed., Vol. 4, sec. 1076:

^'The trustee may not thus mingle trust moneys
with his own, even tliough he eventually accounts for

the whole, and nothing is lost. The rule is designed

to protect the trustee from temptation, from the hazard

of loss, and of being a possible defaulter. When a

trustee does mingle trust moneys with his ow^n, the

right and lien of the beneficiary attach to this entire

combined fund as security for all that actually belongs

to the trust estate. (See 1058d.) A violation of this

duty subjects the trustee to the following liabilities

:

1. If the mingling is followed by actual loss, acciden-

tal or otherwise, the trustee must make good the prin-

cipal sum lost, together wdth interest, and perhaps with

compound interest.

2. Where there has been no positive loss, but the

whole funds, principal, profits, and proceeds, are in

the trustee's hands in their mingled condition the />//;•-

den of proof rests upon Jtim of showing most conclu-

sively what portion is his, and whatever of the mixed
fund, including both profits and principal, he cannot

thus show to be his ow^n, even though it be the whole

mass, will be awarded to the beneficiary. The bene-

ficiary is always entitled to claim and receive the

actual i)rohts when thev can be ascertained.''

The appellant has cited from Scott on Trusts. The foot-

note to the particular (juotation cites but two cases. The

first is Tnlmau v. Crowell (1934), 288 Mass. 397, 193 N. E.

()(). Ill that case a demurrer to a bill to establish a trust

in the proceeds of ]iolicies of life insurance was sustained
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because the bill did not allege that the insured had used

misappropriated funds in payment of the premiums. The

second case is Bromley v. Cleveland C. C. & St. L. Ry. Co.

(1899), 103 Wis. 562, 79 N. W. 741, which is a case that

clearly can be distinguished from the case at bar and which

is discussed more fully hereinafter.

The proof as to Brown's income incorporated in the pre-

trial order shows that his operations were too large for

his limited *' other sources.''

The appellant does not dispute that Brown stole, em-

bezzled and misappropriated from the Bank more than

$400,000, nor is there any conflict that he was a fiduciary

at the time. The premium payments of the insurance here

involved at all times amounted to almost $600 annually.

His salary was:

In 1935 $160 per month $1920 annually

In 1936

In 1937

In 1938 to

$195 per month
$225 per month

$2340 annually

$2700 annually

1940 $250 per month $3000 annually

His only legitimate outside resources were the gifts of

cash amounting to $3,600 made in 1930 and 1931, and of

which there is no trace in any of his accounts at any time

during which the premium payments were made. In three

years, 1938 to 1940, he received $15,000.00 (R. 22, 23) for

livestock, which was merely his sales and not his hold-

ings. These sales were made by Kidwell & Caswell (R.

9, 10, 22, 23). He must have purchased the livestock, be-

cause nowhere was it shown as a gift to him. Of his real

estate purchases alone, made from 1935 to 1940, he held at

the time of his death in excess of $6,400. There were un-

explained items of cash of $690 and the proceeds of "grain"
(R. 9) and "steer" (R. 9, 10, 22, 23) accounts passing

through the two accounts on which the checks for the

4&
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premium payments were drawn and honored. The only

legitimate source of funds was the $4,000 borrowed and

repaid between the years 1938 and 1940. If Brown were

alive can there be any doubt that a court of equity under

such circumstances would require him to account! Is the

appellant in any better position since she is claiming under

him?

Appellant admits that the case of Long v. Earle (1936),

277 Mich. 505, 269 N. W. 577, lays down and correctly ap-

plies the proper rule but contends that it is inapplicable

here because Brown was dead. The authorities hold other-

wise, see Meyers v. Baylor University (Tex., 1928), 6 S. AV.

(2d) 393, 394:

**It is quite true that the burden of proof was upon
plaintiff to establish the trust, but, when proof of the

fiduciary relationship of the parties was made, the

betrayal of the trust, and probable amount of the em-
bezzlements shown, a prima facie case was presented,

and the burden was then on Meyers to show, if he could,

that his moneys, and not that of the plaintiiT, paid for

the properties in whole or in part.

^'Meyers was in possession of the exact facts, and
it was his duty to reveal the entire truth. As lie did

not testify, and made no explanation of this matter,

every intendment is against him. 20 C. J., p. 482, sec.

78; 39 Cyc. p. 476.

**As stated in our conclusions, Meyers deposited his

own and money embezzled from plaintiff to his per-

sonal credit in the banks, thus destroying the identity

of these funds; hence the whole mingled fund became
subject to the trust, as well as all i)roperty purchased
therewith.

'^The rule applicable to these facts is clearly and
satisfactorily stated in 39 Cyc. p. 538, as follows:

*Where a trustee so mingles the trust fund or prop-

erty with his own, or so invests it in ])roperty together

with his own, that the trust fund or property cannot be
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separated, or the amount of each ascertained, the whole
mingled fund or property becomes subject to the triisi,

except so far as the trustee may be able to distinguish

or separate his own fund or property, the burden of

making such distinction or separation being on the

trustee or his representative; and this rule applies so

long as any portion of the fund or property into which
the trust fund or property can be traced, remains.' "

(Italics added.)

Appellant's reliance (p. 49 of her brief) on the case of

Logan v. Logan, 138 Texas 40, 156 S. W. (2d) 507, over-

looks two vital distinctions, first, that there was no wrong-

ful commingling of the funds by the father in the Logan

case, whereas here if there was a commingling it was wrong-

ful ; second, that the Court in the Logan case reaffirmed the

rule in the Baylor case when it said, at p. 510

:

^' It is a general rule that where a trustee wrongfully
mixes trust funds of an indeterminable amount with
his own private funds, the burden is on him to dis-

tinguish his funds and the amount thereof from those

of the cestui que trust ; and if he cannot do so the whole
commingled fund, or the property purchased therewith,

becomes subject to a trust in favor of the cestui que
trust.

*'The rule is analogous to that of confusion of goods,

Andrews v. Brown, supra. It is a harsh one, but is

justified by the wrongful conduct of the trustee. The
emphasis is on the injustice of requiring an innocent

beneficiary to distinguish and trace the trust funds
when the commingling was occasioned by the wrongful
act of the trustee. It is expressed in Andrews v.

Brown, supra [10 S. W. 2d 709], as follows: 'The prin-

ciple, we apprehend, is but a part of equity's declina-

tion to extricate the wrongdoer from self-imposed hard
conditions, or to tax the innocent, where one or two
not in parti delicto must suffer.'

*'We do not contend that death of a fiduciary creates

a presumption of dishonesty so as to place the burden
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of tracing on the cestui but we do vigorously assert

that the death of the fiduciary who has been shown to

be dishonest and to have wrongfully connningled his

funds with those of his cestui, does not shift the bur-

den to the cestui to distinguish his funds from those of

the unfaithful trustee. Death alone does not create a

presumption of dishonesty, but neither does death

ov^ercome proof of dishonesty."

There is nothing in the opinion in the case of Mass. Bond-

ing d Ins, Co. V. JosseUjn (1923), 224 Mich. 159, 194 N. W.
548, to warrant the inference suggested by appellant. The

case stands for the proposition quoted below and nothing

more

:

"It is an elementary rule that a trustee may make no
profit out of the handling of a trust estate. It is also

well settled that, where money held upon trust is mis-

applied by the trustee, and traced into an unauthorized
investment in property of any nature, the investment

thus made, in the absence of a claim of bona tide owner-
ship by a third person, may be treated by the cestui

que trust as made for his benefit. * * * The con-

sideration for the investment is trust money and the

cestui que trust becomes the ecpiitable owner of the

property purchased therewith. His right thereto is a

property right, not one created by any preference or

favoritism shown by a court of equity.

"We are unable by any process of reasoning to ai)ply

any different rule to trust moneys used in the payment
of life insurance premiums."

As to the case of Mosclcy v. Filxcs (Tex. Civ. A pp. 191)9),

126 S. W. (2d) 589, the appeUant admits that the burden

to separate funds is on the trustee who commingles funds

if he is alive, but denies that Brown was guilty of any such

practice.
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111 Picciano v. Miller (Idaho, 1942), 137 P. (2d) 788

the facts are that M was employed by P. In 1935 M bought

a house for $1500, on which he put improvements costing

$2000, at a time when his salary was $100 a month. He
claimed that he was a partner and entitled to about $50.00

per week. The jury found that their relationship was not as

partners, but as employer and employee. In the four years

under examination M, therefore, had no income other

than his salary of $4800. He borrowed $821.64 and his

legitimate receipts were $5621.64, of which he expended

$3817.65, leaving $1803.99, or an average of $37.58 per month

for the four years with which to pay living expenses of his

wife and himself, taxes and insurance on the property pur-

chased, and automobile expenses. The court on the matter

of tracing said:

** While appellant might contend that all of the pur-

loined money went into the living expenses and that he
used only the money he received legitimately to pay
upon the house, it was a reasonable deduction for the

trial court to make that some part of the purloined

money went into the purchase and improvement of the

real property. Hence, there was a sufficient tracing to

bring the case within the last rule above noted."

On rehearing, the court reversed itself. The court was

divided in both the original opinion and on the rehearing.

The case turned on the divided views of the court's

evaluation of the facts. It is of little weight in the present

situation.

Aside from the facts that at all times Brown had no actual

balance in his accounts, there are the items of cash, the

proceeds of his grain and cattle sales traced into his ac-

counts. It will be argued that these were the fruits of his

operations founded on his own sources, but this can scarcely

be credited in face of the overwhelming odds that with

over $400,000 of embezzled money and only $4000 borrowed



50

money he could invest $6400 in real estate and be holding it

at his death, and sell off some of his cattle for $15,000.

Assuming that all of the items in Brown's several ac-

counts were not open to question, the predominantly im-

portant factor is that at no time during the period here

involved did he have any credit balance with the Bank; the

deposits he did make, even if legitimate, created no balance

of credit in his favor, for at all times his indebtedness

arising from his criminal conduct far exceeded the deposits.

The foregoing authorities are cited, quoted from and dis-

cussed to demonstrate and show the soundness of the trial

court's alternative theory that had there been a com-

mingling of funds, where fraud has once been proven an

identical result would have ben achieved. FDIC does not

contend that the facts justify a finding there was a com-

mingling of funds in the case at bar. The cited cases and

quotations clearly indicate, however, the inescapable bur-

den of the appellant to prove that Brown had an actual

credit balance (not a fictitious or extinguished credit bal-

ance) in his accounts with the Bank at the time the checks

drawn on said accounts in payment of the insurance pre-

miums were honored by the Bank. In the absence of such

proof it must be conceded that the payment of premiums

was made with Bank funds.

As to the Matter of "Withdrawing Own Funds''

Brown knew, and he alone, that at no time when he either

issued or the Bank honored the checks in payment of the

insurance premiums was the Bank indebted to him. IK' knew

that there were no funds legally to his credit on which he

could draw, or on which the Bank could properly honor his

checks. lie also knew that the Bank in honoring tlie checks

was not loaning liim the money, or extending credit to him,

but that the Bank was deceived into paying out its funds by
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reason of his false entries and dishonest conduct. He alone

was responsible for the deception.

The case of Bromley v. Cleveland C. C. S St. L. Ry. Co.,

supra, is no authority in the case at bar for the contention

claimed by appellant. Her contention is that if Brown's

deposits were part legitimate and part embezzled funds, it

would be presumed that his withdrawals would be on the

legitimate part first until that was exhausted. In that case

the insured had deposited in his account funds of his wife,

which he held in trust and part of which he held for the

specific purpose of paying insurance premiums, and the

funds belonging to several railroads which he had collected

and w^as bound to return. The court held (page 743) that

the insured's relation to the railroads was that of creditor

and debtor rather than a trustee, and that the insurance

premiums were, therefore, paid from the trust funds of his

wife, for which she had given him funds. The wife was the

beneficiary of the policy. The presumption was that he

withdrew the trust and specific funds for paying the

premiums rather than the funds of the railroads.

Here the question is whether or not there was any credit,

in fact, in the Bank belonging to Brown, on which he might

draw for the payment of premiums. It is not a question of

which of two parties are entitled to a commingled fund.

The case of Portland Building Company v. Bank of Port-

land, (1924), 110 Ore. 61, 222 Pac. 740, cited by appellant

is of little value here. In that case the bank was a trustee

mortgagee of a mortgage given by a building company, on

which bonds of the company had been issued. Pursuant to

the terms of the mortgage the company paid to the bank
the necessary funds with which to redeem the bonds and

coupons that had been issued. The bank held the funds,

as trustee, in a special account and not as a general deposit.

When the bank failed, the superintendent of banks denied

the building company a preference because at all times it



52

was shown that the bank had in its possession cash in excess

of the amount of the trust funds. It was presumed that in

honoring the checks drawn against it in payment of its other

obligations, the bank did not wrongfully use trust funds to

meet these obligations.

In the case at bar, Brown's accounts were all general

deposits and were part of the general deposits of the Bank.

They were the funds of the Bank and not of Brown. When
he drew premium checks the relationship was that of debtor

and creditor, but he was the debtor, not the creditor. There-

fore, when the Bank honored his checks it was not discharg-

ing an actual obligation it owed him, but was using its own
funds.

Specification of Error III

Appellant's specification of Error III contends that the

trial court abused its discretion in denying appellant's mo-

tion for new trial, since it was made to appear that an audit

of the Bank's records disclosed that Brown was not in-

debted to the Bank in the years when the various premium

payments were made, so that the whole basis of the court's

holding against appellant was incorrect.

The contention was submitted by appellant in support of

the motion to amend the pretrial order and for a new

trial, and was denied by the trial court.

Appellant had the opportunity of having an audit made

at the time of the pretrial and of the settlement of the pre-

trial order, but did not do so. Moreover, the auditors \\li()

made tlie examination of the Bank on behalf ol' llie FDIC
were in attendance at the pretrial, testiiied, and could have

been cross-examined by counsel for appellant. Although

the truth of the figures submitted by the FDIC auditors

was not conceded by appellant, it was admitted that the

FDIC could produce evidence to substantiate its offer and

thus the pretrial order was completed and entered,
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The appellant's auditor reported to appellant's counsel

that it appeared probable (not a fact, but merely probable)

that Brown was not indebted to the Bank by reason of his

embezzlements and misappropriations during the years

1935, 1936, 1937, 1938 and perhaps in the subsequent years

except 1942. The affidavit in support of the motion was

made by appellant's counsel, not by the auditor. This evi-

dence is the same as that by which counsel sought to retry

the case. Such evidence was not presented to the court

and no opportunity was afforded to cross-examine the

auditor whom counsel quotes. Moreover, appellant's coun-

sel did not permit the iiitroduction of the testimony of the

FDIC's auditors in substantiation of the shortages set up

in the stipulated evidence.

Conclusion

The facts of this case set forth in the pretrial order were

agreed to and are free of contradiction or dispute. The case

was tried in August 1943, and after submission of compre-

hensive briefs was decided by the court on July 12, 1944.

The motion to amend the pretrial order and for a new
trial was filed November 28, 1944, and denied by the court

on January 8, 1945.

Appellant has failed completely to prove that any of

Brown's money was used to pay the premiums on his life

insurance, whereas appellee has shown both as a matter of

fact and of law, that all premiums save one were paid with

embezzled or misappropriated funds of the bank. More-

over, in the circumstances of this case appellant is estopped

as a matter of public policy and of equity to take the bene-

fits of the defaulter's ill-gotten gains at the expense of the

Bank and FDIC.

The decision and judgment of the court below is correct,

according to well established law, and should be sustained.
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The motion for a new trial was properly denied by the

trial court.

Respectfully submitted,

Maguire, Shields & Morrison,

Robert H. Agxew,
Attorneys for Appellee,

723 Pittoek Block,

Portland 4, Oregon.

James M. Kane,
135 So. LaSalle Street,

Chicago 3, Illinois.

Edward C. Klein,

135 So. LaSalle Street,

Chicago 3, Illinois,

Of Counsel.
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APPENDIX

U. S. C. Title 12, Sec. 264 (1) (1)

^'The Temporary Federal Deposit Insurance Fund and
the Fund For Mutuals heretofore created pursuant to the

provisions of this section are hereby consolidated into a

Permanent Insurance Fund for insuring deposits, and the

assets therein shall be held by the Corporation for the uses

and purposes of the Corporation : Provided, That the obli-

gations to and rights of the Corporation, depositors, banks,

and other persons arising out of any event or transaction

prior to August 23, 1935 shall remain unimpaired. On and
after August 23, 1935, the Corporation shall insure the

deposits of all insured banks as provided in this section:

Provided, That the insurance shall apply only to deposits

of insured banks which have been made available since

March 10, 1933, for withdrawal in the usual course of the

banking business: Provided further, That if any insured

bank shall, without the consent of the Corporation, release

or modify restrictions on or deferments of deposits which

had not been made available for withdrawal in the usual

course of the banking business on or before August 23, 1935,

such deposits shall not be insured. The maximum amount
of the insured deposit of any depositor shall be $5,000.

The Corporation, in the discretion of the board of directors,

may open on its books solely for the benefit of nmtual sav-

ings banks and depositors therein a separate Fund For
Mutuals. If such Fund is opened, all assessments upon
mutual savings banks shall be paid into such Fund and the

Permanent Insurance Fund of the Corporation shall cease

to be liable for insurance losses sustained in mutual savings

banks: Provided, That the capital assets of the Corporation
shall be so liable and all expenses of operation of the Cor-

poration shall be allocated between such Funds on an

equitable basis.''

U. S. C. Title 12, Sec. 264 (1) (7)

^*In the case of a closed national bank or District bank,

the Corporation, upon the payment of any depositor as

provided in paragraph (6) of this subsection, shall be
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subrogated to all rights of the depositor against the closed

bank to the extent of such payment. In the case of any
other closed insured bank, the Corporation shall not make
any payment to any depositor until the right of the Corpo-
ration to be subrogated to the rights of such depositor on
the same basis as provided in the case of a closed national

bank under this section shall have been recognized either

by express provision of State law, by allowance of claims

by the authority having supervision of such bank, by as-

signment of claims by depositors, or by any other effective

method. In the case of any closed insured bank, such sub-

rogation shall include the right on the part of the Corpora-
tion to receive the same dividends from the proceeds of the

assets of such closed bank and recoveries on account of

stockholders' liability as would have been payable to the

depositoi- on a claim for the insured deposit, but such de-

positor shall retain his claim for any uninsured portion of

his deposit : Provided, That, with respect to any bank which
closes after May 25, 1938, the Corporation shall waive, in

favor only of any person against whom stockholders' indi-

vidual liability may be asserted, any claim on account of such

liability in excess of the liability, if any, to the bank or its

creditors, for the amount unpaid upon his stock in such

bank; but any such waiver shall be elTected in such manner
and on such terms and conditions as will not increase re-

coveries or dividends on account of claims to whicli the

Corporation is not subrogated: Provided further. That the

rights of depositors and other creditors of any State bank
shall be determined in accordance with the applicable ])ro-

visions of State law."

IT. S. (\ Title 12, Sec. 2()4 (n) (4)

^'Wlienever in the judgment of the board of directors

such action will reduce the risk or avert a threatened loss

to the Corporation and will facilitate a merger or consoli-

dation of an insured bank with another insured bank, or

will facilitate the sale of the assets of an open or closed

insured bank to and assumption of its liabilities by another

insured l)ank, tlu^ (\)rporation nuiy, upon such terms and
conditions as it may determine, make loans secured in

whole or in ])art by assets of an open or closed insured
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bank, which loans may be in subordination to the rights of

depositors and other creditors, or the Corporation may
purchase any such assets or may guarantee any other in-

sured bank against loss by reason of its assuming the lia-

bilities and purchasing the assets of an open or closed

insured bank. Any insured national bank or District bank,

or, with the approval of the Comptroller of the Currency,

any receiver thereof, is authorized to contract for such sales

or loans and to pledge any assets of the bank to secure such

loans/'

Excerpts from Agreement Between Bank and F. D. I. C.

''This Agreement, made and entered into this 29th day
of August, 1942, by and between the Harney X'ounty Na-
tional Bank of Burns * * * ^j^^ the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation * * *

'

' WITNESSETH :

"AVhereas, the Bank proposes to sell certain of its assets

to The United States National Bank of Portland * * *

in consideration of the assumption of the deposit liabilities

of the Bank as shown by the Bank's books as of the close

of business on the date hereof; and
"Whereas, the Bank has filed an application requesting

the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation to purchase
certain assets of the Bank and/or to loan money on the

security of said assets in order to facilitate and make pos-

sible the proposed sale of assets to, and the aforesaid as-

sumption of the deposit liabilities by The United States

National Bank of Portland; and
"Whereas, the Board of Directors of the Federal De-

posit Insurance Corporation has determined that the Fed-
eral Deposit Insurance Corporation will not make a loan

to the Bank but will purchase, on certain terms and con-

ditions, all of the assets of the Bank not purchased and
acquired by The United States National Bank of Port-
land, as aforesaid, and has concluded that such purchase
of assets by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
will reduce a risk and avert a threatened loss to the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation ; and
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**Now, Therefore, each of the parties hereto intending

to be legally bound hereby, do severally undertake, promise,

covenant, and agree each with the other, and the Bank
does hereby represent, warrant, covenant and agree to

and with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, as

follows

;

^'Without any limitation on the generality of the fore-

going, the property so sold, granted, conveyed, assigned,

transferred and set over to the Corporation * • *

shall expressly include, without being limited to, each and
all of the following

:

*' (2) All assets of the Bank which are not carried on its

books of account or which are carried on such books at a

nominal amount for bookkeeping purposes.

^'(5) All contracts, rights, claims, demands, choses in

action or causes wdiatsoever, pending causes of action,

and judgments, whether known or unknown, which the

Bank owns, holds or has against any person or persons

whomsoever, including, without being limited to, any claims

against its stockholders for payment of or by reason of

ownership of its capital stock (neither the mention of the

foregoing liability or the approval of this agreement by
the Bank and/or its stockholders shall be deemed an ad-

mission by said Bank or stockholders of the existence of

such liability) any claims against its directors, otlicers or

employees or their sureties arising out of any act of any
such persons in respect to the Bank of its property or

arising out of the non-])erfoi-mance or manner of perform-

ance of their duties, any claims against any person for

money or property of the Bank, or for damages, which the

Bank may liave or own. '

'

(923)



No. 11000

111 the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

RUBY M. BROWN,
Appellant,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COM-
PANY,

Defendant,

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE COR-
PORATION,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United

States for the District of Oregon.

Hampson, Koerner, Young & Swett,

James C. Dezendorf,

Attorneys for Appellant,

800 Pacific Building,

Portland 4, Oregon.

THE IVY PRESS, PORTLAND

t ; V X i? 1945





TABLE OF CONTENTS
Page

Appellee's ''Statement of the Case" 1

Appellee's "Argument as to Specification of Error I" . 2

Bro^Ti stole the Bank's funds not the depositors'

and the Bank alone acquired a claim against Bro^^Ti 4

The depositors acquired no claim against Brown
and did not assign any claim to F.D.I.C 7

The foundation of its claim in this action is the

Bank's claim against Brown, which was assigned

to it 8

F.D.I.C. did not insure against Brown's dishon-

esty—it insured the Bank's deposits to the extent

of 85.000.00 for each depositor 9

F.D.I.C. purchased the Bank's assets and it did

not thereby discharge a debt. The purchase was
for value 10

Xo personal judgment is sought against Appellant
and she will suffer no loss 12

The equities are in favor of F.D.I.C. as against

Appellant 12

Appellee's Argument under Specification of Error II

.

14

The Burden of Proof 15

F.D. I. C.'s Theory of Automatic Setoff 17

Federal Pubhc Pohcy 19

Appellee's Argument under Specification of Error III 20

Conclusion 20



TABLE OF CASES
Page

American Surety Co. v. Bank of California, 44 F. Supp.
81 ; affirmed 133 F. (2d) 160

2, 4, 6, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 14

McConnell v. Henochsberg, 11 Tenn. Appeals 176. . 15, 17

Meyers v. Baylor University, 6 S. W. (2d) 393 15



No. IIOOO

In the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

RUBY M. BROWN,
Appellant,

vs.

NEW YORK LIFE INSURANCE COM-
PANY,

Defendant,

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE COR-
PORATION,

Appellee,

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United

States for the District of Oregon.

APPELLEE'S "STATEMENT OF THE CASE"

The greater part of Appellee's "Statement of the Case"

is argument presenting its theory of the law as applied to

the facts.



The objectionable part of the "Statement" commences

with the sentence starting at the bottom of page 2 and con-

tinues on to the heading "Proceedings Below" on page 5.

We, of course, concede that F.D.I.C. is entitled to

argue its theory of the law as applied to the facts — but

such argument does not belong in the "Statement of the

ase .

Obviously, if the agreed facts contained the conclusions

which Appellee sets forth in its "Statement", there would

be nothing for this court to decide.

The governing facts— correctly stated— are all agreed

upon and are contained in the Pretrial Order.^

APPELLEE'S "ARGUMENT AS TO SPECIFICATION
OF ERROR F'

In its argument under this heading, F.D.I.C. concedes

that the principles announced by this court in American

Surety Co. v. Bank of California^ are correct and that

"American Surety Co. v. Bank of California, supra, is

good law * * *."^

F.D.I.C. attempts to avoid the fatal effect of the hold-

ing in that case upon its claim to the insin^ance proceeds in

this action by arguing tliat the facts of this case are so dif-

ferent tliat the rule stated in American Surety Co. v. Bank

of California is inapplicable.

1 R. 3-23.
2 4 1 F. Supp. 81; arrinned 133 F. (2d) 100.
3 Appellee's Brief p. 15.



As "distinguishing features", F.D.I.C. asserts:

(1) Brown stole the Bank's funds not the depositors'

and the Bank alone acquired a claim against Brown.

(2) The depositors acquired no claim against Brown
and did not assign any claim to F.D.I.C.

(3) The foundation of its claim in this action is the

Bank's claim against Brown, which was assigned to it.

(4) F.D.I.C. did not insure against Brown's dishon-

esty — it insured the Bank's deposits to the extent of

$5,000.00 for each depositor.

(5) F.D.I.C. purchased the Bank's assets and it did

not thereby discharge a debt. The purchase was for value.

(6) No personal judgment is sought against Appellant

and she will suffer no loss.

(7) The equities are in favor of F.D.I.C. as against

Appellant.

These alleged "distinguishing features" are practically

the same as those urged by F.D.I.C. in the trial court. Its

contentions in the court below are stated and answered in

our opening brief at pages 11 to 14, inclusive.

We will now discuss briefly the alleged "distinguishing

features" now asserted.



Brown stole the Bank's funds not the depositors' and
the Bank alone acquired a claim against Brown.

Because F.D.I.C. did not indicate in the trial court

whether it was claiming that the stolen funds were depos-

itors' funds or the Bank's funds, we assumed and analyzed

both positions. Now that F.D.I.C. has elected to contend

that the Bank's funds were stolen by Brown, a simplifica-

tion of our diagram and argument is possible, which makes

more certain the applicability to the facts of this case of

the rule announced in Avierican Surety Co. v. Bank of

California.

F.D.I.C. does not deny that it is an insurer for a consid-

eration. It proclaims that it insured the deposits of the

Bank.^ It concedes that under the "purchase" arrange-

ment it "protected the depositors"^ by paying out the dif-

ference between the remaining acceptable assets of the

Bank and its total deposit liability.^ In other words, short-

ages in the Bank's assets were restored with cash supplied

by F.D.I.C.^

The diagram and exjilanation of the holding in A incri-

can Surety Co. v. Bank of California is as follows

:

Interior^ ^ Bank of California

/ \
Crowe American Surety Co.

Crowe, whose fidelity was insured by Interior with

American Surety, wrongfully abstracted money from In-

4 Appellee's Brief p. 7.

* Appellee's Hrief j). 7.

* Appellee's Brief p. (S.

7 Appellee's Brief p. 11.



terior's account under circumstances making the Bank of

California liable for the loss. Interior therefore had a claim

for reimbursement against Crowe, American Surety and

the Bank. It called upon the Surety Company to respond

and it did so, taking an assignment of Interior's claim

against the Bank. Held payment by the insurer extin-

guished the debt and it could not recover over against the

Bank either by virtue of the assignment or subrogation.

The simplified diagram and explanation of the facts in

this case, based on F.D.I.C.'s position that Bank funds

were stolen by Brown, is as follows

:

Bank > Brown's Insurance

/ \
Brown F.D.I.C.

Brown wrongfully abstracted money from the Bank

under circumstances making F.D.I.C. liable for the loss

(to the extent of $5,000.00 for each depositor) . The Bank

therefore had a claim against Brown, a claim against

F.D.I.C, and, assuming stolen money could be traced into

the insurance premiums, a claim against Brown's insur-

ance. The Bank called upon F.D.I.C. to respond and it

did so, taking an assignment of all of the Bank's assets

which included its claim-over against Brown's insurance.

It must be held that payment by the insurer extinguished

the debt so that it does not hold by reason of assignment or

subrogation any rights which the Bank might have had
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over against Brown's insurance but for its payment of

the claim.

The paragraph in our opening brief at page 9, which

F.D.I.C. singles out for criticism, may likewise be re-

phrased in view of F.D.I.C.'s election to contend that

Brown stole the Bank's funds and not the depositors, as

follows

:

"In our case here, it is claimed that Brown wrong-
fully abstracted money from the Bank under circum-

stances making F.D.I.C. liable to the extent of

$5,000.00 for each depositor. F.D.I.C. has responded
and has made good the shortages in the depositors'

accounts, taking an assignment of all the Bank's
assets, including the Bank's right to follow stolen

funds into the insurance proceeds. In this action,

F.D.I.C. is attempting to assert the remedy which the

Bank had to reach the proceeds of the policies on the

life of the wrongdoer, assuming stolen funds can be
traced into the premiums, and under the doctrine of

the American Surety Co. case it must be held that

when F.D.I.C. made good the shortages in the depos-

itors' accounts that it merely did what it undertook
to do for a consideration and therefore its payment
discharged the debt and it can not aid its position or

change the consequences by taking an assignment or

anything else."

F.D.I.C. can no more reimburse itself by attempting

to follow stolen funds into the premiums than American

Surety Co. could reimburse itself by asserting Interior's

claims against the Bank of California. AVhile Interior, in

the A in cricaii Surety Co. case and the Bank in this case had

an election whether to proceed against any one of three

sources for reimbiu'sement, when Interior and the Bank



called upon the insurer and it responded it could not, by

virtue of an assignment from its insured, pursue any of the

other remedies available to its insured prior to its exercise

of its election.

American Surety Co. v. Bank of California cannot be

distinguished and this court's ruling must be that Appel-

lant is entitled to the proceeds of the policies.

The depositors acquired no claim against Brown and
did not assign any claim to F.D.I.C.

In making this argument, F.D.I.C. has completely ig-

nored the issue of law framed by the pretrial order which

is the basis of this Specification of Error. The issue of

law is :^

"Whether Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
succeeded to or became subrogated to the Bank's
rights, if any, as against the proceeds of the insurance

policies upon the life of Edward N. Brown."

If F.D.I.C. had taken the position in the trial court and

here that the funds stolen by Brown were the depositors'

and not the Bank's, then it would have to show an assign-

ment of the depositors' claims to follow the stolen funds

into the insurance proceeds. Since F.D.I.C. now claims

that what Brown stole was Bank funds and that it stands

in the position of the Bank as assignee of its assets, it is

apparent that the depositors had no claim against Brown
since their monev was not stolen bv him and they would

therefore have no claim against Brown, against F.D.I.C,

as the insurer, or against the proceeds of Brown's insurance.

8 R. 26.



8

The Bank was the insured — it had a claim against

Brown, against F.D.I.C., as the insurer, and against the

proceeds of Brown's insurance, assuming stolen funds

could be traced into the premiums.

This asserted "distinguishing feature" therefore dis-

appears.

Tlie foundation of its claim in this action is the Bank's

claim against BrowTi, which was assigned to it.

F.D.I.C. is clearly wrong in its suggestion that the

foundation of its claim in this proceeding is the Bank's

claim against Brown, which it claims to hold as assignee.

The fact is that the foundation of F.D.I.C.'s claim in this

proceeding is the Bank's rights to follow stolen funds into

the insurance proceeds which it is claimed the Bank as-

signed wuth all its other unacceptable assets to F.D.I.C.

As has already been pointed out, when Brown died and

the shortage was discovered, the Bank had three claims

for reimbursement, anv one of which it was entitled to fol-

low. The first was the claim against Brown, which could

be followed by making a claim against his Estate. The

second was the claim against the insurer, F.D.I.C, to re-

quire it to respond on its obligation to restore the stolen

funds to tlie extent of $5,000.00 for each depositor. The

third was the right to trace stolen funds into tlie proceeds

of Brown^s insurance.

The Bank elected to call upon the insurer, F.D.I.C, and

it responded, taking an assignment of tlie Bank's assets.

F.D.I.C. is not asserting in this action the Bank's claim

against Brown's Estate but is attempting to assert the



9

third remedy which the Bank had to follow stolen funds

into the insurance proceeds.

Under the doctrine of American Surety Co. v. Bank of

California, the debt was extinguished when F.D.I.C. re-

sponded on its obligation and it cannot assert, by way of

assignment, the right which the Bank had to follow stolen

funds into the insurance proceeds.

Obviously the Bank's claim against Brown's Estate is

not the foundation of F.D.I.C.'s claim in this proceeding

and it is wholly erroneous in so asserting. In any event,

the Bank having made the election to call on the insurer,

no other remedies are open to it or to F.D.I.C, as its

assignee.

F.D.I.C. did not insure against Brown's dishonesty—it

insured the Bank's deposits to the extent of $5,000.00 for

each depositor.

While it is true that in the American Surety Co. case the

insurer merely undertook to make good any losses by rea-

son of the infidelity of Interior's employee and while

F.D.I.C. insured the Bank's deposits to the extent of

$5,000.00 for each depositor, the event which caused the

loss in both instances was the infidelity of the insured's

employee.

The fact that F.D.I.C.'s obligation was broader than

American Surety Co.'s does not furnish a basis for dis-

tinguishing the case, especially in view of the fact that both

insurers responded because of an identical loss — theft by

the insured's employee.
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F.D.I.C, by so responding, can acquire no greater

rights than American Surety Co. did and it must be held

that payment by F.D.I.C, as the insurer, extinguished the

debt and left it no right to reimburse itself by attempting

to follow, by virtue of an assignment, any of the other

remedies which tlie insured had prior to payment by the

insurer.

F.D.I.C. purchased the Bank's assets and it did not

thereby discharge a debt. Tlie purchase was for value.

From time immemorial insurers have endeavored to

acquire their insured's right to follow other claims for re-

imbursement, so as to reduce their loss.

In the American Surety Co. case the insurer took an

assignment of Interior's right to recover against the Bank

of California and attempted to assert it to reduce its loss.

In this case, F.D.I.C. attempted to invest itself by

assignment with the right which the Bank had, prior to

calling upon F.D.I.C. to respond, to reimburse itself by

following stolen funds into the insurance proceeds.

Since F.D.I.C. is admittedly an insurer for a considera-

tion, since it admittedly responded and paid the loss, it

mereh^ did what it had contracted to do. It cannot reduce

its loss by attempting to assert any other remedy which

the Bank, as its insured, had to reimburse itself prior to

caHiiig upon F.D.I.C. to respond.

While F.D.I.C. chiims tliat it "purchased" the unaccept-

able assets of the Bank, it is interesting to note that the

"purcliase price" was measured by the difference between
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the remaining acceptable assets of the Bank and its total

deposit liabilities, so that by "purchasing" it merely re-

placed the loss.

It is interesting to note further that the "purchase price"

did not go to the Bank but went to The United States

National Bank, which assumed the deposit liabilities of

the Bank.

It is interesting to note, in addition, that F.D.I.C. com-

pelled the Bank to give it a note for $800,000.00^ so that

instead of the Bank receiving anything in the so-called

"purchase", it turned over its unacceptable assets to

F.D.I.C, which gave the "purchase price" to The United

States National Bank and the Bank was compelled to give

its note to offset the so-called "purchase price" which it

didn't even receive!

Obviously, the so-called "purchase" was conceived for

the sole purpose of attempting to void the effect of Ameri-

can Surety Co. v. Bank of California, which F.D.I.C. now
proclaims is good law.

When the shortage was discovered, F.D.I.C. was obli-

gated to respond under its contract, it did respond, it can-

not aid its position by claiming that it "purchased" the

unacceptable assets of the Bank. It is admittedly attempt-

ing to assert the Bank's claim to follow stolen funds into

the insurance proceeds by virtue of an assignment from

the Bank.

The assignment can help it no more than the assign-

9 R. 111.
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ment of Interior's claim against the Bank of California

to American Surety Co. aided the surety company in

American Surety Co. v. Bank of California,

No personal judgment is sought against Appellant and
she will suffer no loss.

F.D.I.C. attempts to distinguish this case from Ameri-

can Surety Co. v. Bank of California by claiming that no

personal judgment is sought against Appellant and that

she will suffer no loss. It is inconceivable to us that F.D.I.C.

can seriously contend that Appellant will suffer no loss

if she is deprived, in this proceeding, of the proceeds of

the insurance policies in which she was named the bene-

ficiary. While it is true that no personal judgment is

sought against Appellant, that is because the fund to which

she is entitled under the contracts of insurance is being

held in the registry of the court to abide the final decision

herein. Had the proceeds of the policies been paid to Ap-

pellant prior to the institution of this proceeding, F.D.I.C.

would have been seeking a personal judgment against Ap-

pellant requiring her to turn over to it the money which

she received.

Obviously, this alleged "distinguishing feature" has no

merit in it.

Tlie equities are in favor of F.D.I.C. as against

Appellant.

The language of this coin*t in America}! Surety Co. v.

Bank of California answers this sugested distinguishing

feature better than any argument we can supply. It is as

follows:''

10 133 F. (2d), pp. 1G2, U)3 and 164.
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"The right of subrogation is a creature of equity,

apphcable where one person is required to pay a
debt for which another is primarily responsible, and
which the latter should in equity discharge. In theory
one person is substituted to the claim of another, but
only when the equities as between the parties prepon-
derate in favor of the plaintiff. * * * A surety may
pursue the independent right of action of the original

creditor against a third person, but it must appear that

said third person participated in the wrongful act in-

volved or that he was neglicfent, for the right to re-

cover from a third person is merely conditional in con-

trast to the right to recover from the principal which
is absolute. The equities of the one asking for subro-

gation must be superior to those of his adversary. If

the equities are equal or if the defendant has the greater

equity, subrogation will not be applied to shift the loss.

* * *

"In the instant case the surety contracts are confined
to Insurers and Interior. Any right of recovery
against third parties for money paid Interior by In-

surers under the contracts must rest solely upon a
weighing of the equities as between the third parties

and Insurers. Such equities generally depend upon
participation in wrongdoing^ negligence, or knowl-
edge, although we do not mean to say that these ex-

pressions cover the gamut of equities which may or

should be considered.

* * *

"In all of the situations outlined defendants had
actual knowledge of facts sufficient to put them on
notice of the wrongdoing and in a way, therefore, were
implicated in the wrong done. * * * No indication

is found that Bank knew any facts which would
suggest the fraud of an employee of its depositor. In-

surers, on the other hand, expressly contracted to se-
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cure Interior against losses caused by a dishonest em-
ployee, such as Crowe. They accepted the responsi-

bility for such losses for a compensation, the pre-

miums paid to them, which they have retained. Both
they and Bank are innocent of any wrongdoing, al-

though all were liable to Interior (under assumption
of Bank's liability to Interior) on the basis of inde-

pendent contract obligations—the implied contract of

Bank to pay only to those entitled, and the contracts

of Insurers to indemnify against losses caused by a

defalcating employee. Since Insurers expressly, vol-

untarily and for a compensation guaranteed against

loss in the exact situation involved, the equity in the

situation cannot lie in favor of Insurers and against
Bank for the payment made."

It is conceded in this case that Appellant knew nothing

of her son's wrongdoing. She was not negligent in any way.

There is no possible way that F.D.I.C. can claim that the

equities are in its favor as against her.

The American Surety Co, case is controlling and it must

be held that F.D.I.C. has no claim to the proceeds of the

policies. A judgment awarding all of the proceeds to Ap-
pellant must enter.

APPELLEE'S ARGUMENT UNDER SPECIFICATION
OF ERROR II

In an effort to sustain the trial court's opinion and to

answer the authorities and argument wliicli we have pre-

sented under tliis Specification of Krror, F.D.I.C. con-

tends. ( 1 ) that the burden of proving that the ])rcmiums

were paid with Brown's own funds is upon Ap])ellant,

(2) that automatic setoff o])crated to extinguish Brown's
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own funds in his accounts when the premium checks cleared,

and (3) Federal Public Policy estops Appellant from

claiming the funds.

THE BURDEN OF PROOF

Only two cases are relied upon to place the burden of

proof upon Appellant. They are McConnell v. Henochs-

berg, 11 Tenn. Appeals 176, and Meyers v, Baylor Uni-

versity. 6 S. W. (2d) 393. In our opening brief, we have

already demonstrated conclusively that neither case sup-

ports F.D.I.C.'s position in this regard and, since the

authorities cited in our opening brief have not been an-

swered or distinguished, it must be held that the burden of

proof was upon F.D.I.C.

F.D.I.C. argues for, but fails to support with authority,

its theory that Brown's death does not dispense with the

rule requiring the wrongdoer to separate the fund. As we

pointed out in our opening brief, not one single case exists

which invokes a presumption in favor of a beneficiary at-

tempting to trace trust funds where the trustee or wrong-

doer is dead.

Since in this case the items in Brown's accounts when

the premium checks cleared are agreed upon and since not

one single cent of stolen funds have been traced into the

bank accounts at any time, much less when the premium

checks cleared, the situation is exactly the same as if Brown

were alive and he had explained that the items in his ac-

counts when the checks cleared were his own funds. Such

a showing would require a finding in Appellant's favor and
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the facts having been stipulated and there being no evi-

dence that even one cent of embezzled funds was placed

in these bank accounts, Appellant must be awarded the pro-

ceeds of the policies.

In argument, F.D.I.C. suggests that the lands which

Brown purchased, his cattle and grain operations and the

bank accounts concerned were conducted and maintained

with stolen funds yet not one cent of stolen money is traced

into the real jwoperty he admittedly owned, into the steer

or grain accounts or into the bank accounts involved. The

fact that F.D.I.C. is unable to trace any of the stolen money

into any of Brown's assets or accounts is conclusive proof

that they did not so originate and that the admitted assets

which he had were the proceeds of his own funds — not

stolen funds.

If it should be finally held that the burden is upon Ap-

pellant to show that the funds which were in his accounts

when the premium checks cleared were Brown's and not

stolen moneys, that burden has been met by the stipulated

evidence which details the items which were in his accounts

at the time the checks cleared — not one of which can be

claimed to be stolen funds or the proceeds of stolen funds.

It has never been held that all a beneficiary must do in

order to trace trust funds is to show that the trustee failed

to deliver up the trust estate. A beneficiary is not entitled

to touch anything left by the trustee in the absence of evi-

dence tracing the fund. The rule contended for would per-

mit the confiscation of everything the trustee owned even

thougli acquired with his own funds.
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Nothing short of placing the burden of proof upon Ap-
pellant can sustain the trial court's opinion. The only issue

for this court to decide on this point is whether the benefi-

ciary has the obligation of tracing the trust funds before

trust property or the proceeds of trust property can be re-

covered. If tracing is required (and it has been required in

every reported case), then F.D.I.C.'s claim to the pro-

ceeds must fail. The trial court itself held that stolen

moneys were not traced into the accounts and, in fact, they

were not traced into anything that Brown had at the time

of his death. The judgment awarding F.D.I.C. the pro-

ceeds of the policies must be reversed and the fund awarded

to Appellant.

F.D.I.C.'S THEORY OF AUTOMATIC SETOFF

A careful examination of Appellee's brief fails to dis-

close any case supporting its theory of automatic setoff,

which would extinguish the balances in Brown's accounts

at the time the premium checks cleared. McConnell v,

Henochsberg was the only case relied upon by the trial

court. It is clearly distinguishable as we have pointed out

in our opening brief and no other case supporting the theory

exists or has been brought forth.

It is only necessary to examine the consequences which

would follow the establishment of a theory of automatic

setoff in order to demonstrate that it cannot exist.

If it be assumed that everything which Brown himself

owned and deposited in his accounts could be thus extin-
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guished, F.D.I.C. could recover from every single person

who ever accepted a check from Brown on any of his ac-

counts in the Bank. Even though Brown purchased gro-

ceries by drawing a check against his bank account when

admittedly only his own funds were in the account, F.D.I.C.

could require the grocer to pay back the amount received.

The doctor, the lawyer, the druggist and every other

person would be subject to being deprived of payment made

to them for services performed and everything Brown him-

self owned could be confiscated to offset the claim for

moneys stolen by him from the Bank.

No one could ever accept any check from any bank em-

ployee without being liable to return the funds so received

should it at some later date develop that the bank employee

had stolen some bank funds. The negotiability of checks

would be destroyed.

Such a theory has never been announced before — it

cannot be accepted and affirmed by this court. The very

essence of following trust funds is to trace them into the

property sought to be charged with the trust. If auto-

matic setoff were adopted, not only would tracing be not

required but even property admittedly free from any taint

of trust could be recovered to offset the wrongful deple-

tion of the trust fund.

Every single case recognizes the right of the trustee to

have and use his own funds. If automatic setoff were

ado])ted, every decided case would be overruled and a theory
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permitting the confiscation of a trustee's own funds to

replace stolen trust funds would be substituted.

The complete absence of evidence tracing even one cent

of embezzled funds into Brown's bank accounts cannot be

held to furnish the foundation for a recovery in favor of

F.D.I.C.

FEDERAL PUBLIC POLICY

F.D.I.C. argues that Appellant is estopped to claim that

the funds in Brown's bank accounts at the time the checks

in payment of the premiums cleared were his own funds.

The agreed facts establish that the funds in Brown's ac-

counts when the premium checks cleared were his own.

F.D.I.C. may not rely upon Federal Public Policy to con-

fiscate Brown's own property acquired with his own funds.

The public policy which governs this case has been estab-

lished for centuries in the rule which requires a beneficiary

to actually trace trust moneys into property sought to be

recovered for the trust fund. No policy exists which would

warrant the establishment of a rule which would excuse a

beneficiary from tracing trust funds when the trusee is

dead.

F.D.I.C. is free to recover every single penny of stolen

funds to reimburse itself. It is not entitled to one cent of

Brown's own funds to offset its loss. Whenever trust funds

can be traced into property or bank accounts, F.D.I.C. is

entitled to recover. In this case, since not one cent of em-

bezzled funds was traced into Brown's bank accounts or into

the premium payments, F.D.I.C. is not entitled to recover.
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APPELLEE'S ARGUMENT UNDER SPECIFICATION
OF ERROR III

Our position in connection with this Specification is ade-

quately presented in our opening brief. The question

whether any indebtedness exists is not one which is subject

to argument or debate. An audit of the books will be con-

clusive on the question. Since it affects the whole basis of

the trial court's holding, Appellant is entitled to have the

decision rest upon the true facts.

CONCLUSION

F.D.I.C. has failed to distinguish any of the cases relied

upon by Appellant on this appeal. The judgment should

be reversed and the fund in the registry of the court awarded

to Appellant.

Respectfully submitted,

Hampson, Koerner, Young & Swett,

James C. Dezendorf,

Attorneys for Appellant,

800 Pacific Building,

Portland 4, Oregon.
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2 United States of America vs.

In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona

Xo. Civil—245—Tucson

UNITED STATES OF A^IEEICA,
Libelant,

vs.

7 BOXES LEMONS, 307 Lbs. Gross: 2 BOXES
GRAPEFRnT, 92 Lbs. Gross: 10 CASES
CANXED MILK, 48 cans ea., 14^;^ oz. net

weight each, and OXE TRUCK, 1940 PICK-

UP, MOTOR Xo. T-105-288T, PLYMOUTH
MODEL PTIOd, SR. 9209S23.

Respondents.

JUDGMEXT

The Libel of Information of the L'nited States

for the forfeiture of the above-described property

having been tiled herein on the 10th dav of June,

1944, and due process having issued thereon and

due notice thereof having been made, and no claim

to said 7 Boxes Lemons, 307 Lbs. Gross; 2 Boxes

Grapefruit, 92 Lbs. Gross, and 10 Cases Caimed

Milk, 48 cans ea., 14^^^ oz. net weight each, having

been made in due time and no answer or petition

having been filed, in accordance with the rules and

practices of this Courts and the time to file such

claim and appearance having expired the default

thereof is herebv entered, and it further appear-

ing that one Miguel Morachis in due time ap-

peared and filed herein his verified petition claim-

ins: that he is the ownpr of said IWO PI\-mouth
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Truck and requesting that the same be restored to

him, and the Court having heard the evidence and

being fully advised in the premises,

It Is Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that the

said 7 Boxes Lemons, 307 Lbs. Gross; 2 Boxes

Grapefruit, 92 Lbs. Gross, and 10 Cases Canned

Milk, 48 cans ea., 141/2 oz. net weight each, be and

the same are hereby forfeited to the United States

of America for the reasons stated in the Libel, and

It Is Further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that the L^nited States Marshal for the District of

Arizona deliver the said ten cases of canned milk

to the Warden of the Federal Prison Camp, Tuc-

son, Arizona, or his duly authorized representative

;

and

It Is Further Ordered that the proceeds from the

sale of the said 7 Boxes Lemons and 2 Boxes

Grapefruit, heretofore de})osited with the Clerk of

this Court by the Marshal be disposed of according

to law, and

It Is Further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that the petition of said Miguel Morachis for the

restoration of said respondent, 1940 Plymouth

Truck to him, the owner thereof, be and the same

is hereby granted.

Dated this 27th day of Januar}^, 1945.

ALBERT M. SAMES
United States District Judge

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 27, 1945.
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[Title of District Court aiui Cause.]

ASSIGNMENTS OF ERROR

1. The Court erred in ordering restoration of

the respondent, one Plymouth Truck pickup auto-

mobile, 1940 model, to petitioner, Morachis.

2. The Court erred in failing to hold the afore-

said 1940 pickup truck for forfeiture to the United

States.

3. The Court erred in failing to order forfeiture

of the aforesaid 1940 pickup Phuiouth truck to

the United States.

4. The Court erred in holding that Title VI of

the Act of June 15, 1917, Chapter 30, 40 Stat. 223,

as amended did not provide forfeiture of the ve-

hicle containing the lemons, grapefruit and canned

milk under the circumstances revealed in the find-

ings of fact herein.

5. The Court erred in finding that the aforesaid

1940 })ickup Plymouth truck was not being taken

out of the United States in violation of law within

the meaning of Title VI of the Act of June 15,

1917v Chapter 30, 40 Stat. 223 as amended, (46

U.S.C. §401-407 inch).

P. E. FLYNN
United States Attorney

JOHN P. DOUGHERTY
Assistant United States

Attorney

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 1, 1945.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice is hereby given that the United States of

America, libelant above-named, hereby aj)peals to

the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

from the Judgment entered herein on the 27th day

of January, 1945, granting the petition of Miguel

Morachis for the restoration to him of the 1940

Phmouth truck.

Signed F. E. FLYNN
United States Attorney

JOHN P. DOUGHERTY
Asistant U. S. Attorney, Attorney for Appellant,

412 Federal Building, Tucson, Arizona.

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 1, 1945.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PETITION FOR ALLOWANCE
TO APPEAL

Comes now the Libelant, the United States of

America, by F. E. Flynn, United States Attorney

for the District of Arizona and petitions the Court
for an allowance to appeal to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

from the final judgment of this Court, in the above-

entitled case, granting the petition of Miguel
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Morachis for the restoration of the respondent 1940

Plymouth Truck.

F. E. FLYNN
United States Attorney

JOHN P. DOUGHERTY
Assistant U. S. Attorney

Attorney for Libelant.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 1, 1945.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER

It appearing to the Court that the petition of

F. E. Flynn, United States Attorney for the Dis-

trict of Arizona, on behalf of the libelant herein

for an allowance to appeal to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit

from the final judgment of this Court in the above-

entitled case granting the petition of Miguel

Morachis for the restoration of one 1940 Pl3rmouth

Truck has been filed herein,

It Is Therefore Ordered that the said petition be,

and the same is, hereby allowed.

Dated this 7th day of February, 1945.

ALBERT M. SAMES
United States District Judge

[Endorsed]: Filed Vvh. 7, 1945.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER—STAY OF EXECUTION

It appearing to the Court that an appeal has

been taken bv the United States of America from

that paii: of the final judgment of this Court en-

tered herein granting the petition of claimant for

the restoration of that certain 1940 Plymouth

Truck and a Petition for Stay of Execution has

been filed on behalf of said United States.

It Is Therefore Ordered that the operation and

enforcement of said Judgment, in so far as it in-

cludes that 1940 Plymouth Truck, is stayed pend-

ing the result of said appeal in the Circuit Court

of the United States for the Ninth Circuit.

ALBERT M. SAMES
United States District Judge

[Endorsed]: Filed Feb. 7, 1945.



8 United States of America vs.

In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona

No. Civil—245—Tucson

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Libelant,

vs.

7 BOXES LEMONS, 307 Lbs. gross; 2 BOXES
GRAPEFRUIT, 92 Lbs. gross; 10 CASES
CANNED MILK, 48 cans ea., 141/2 oz. net

weight each, and ONE TRUCK, 1940 PICK-

UP, MOTOR No. T-105-2887, PLYMOUTH
MODEL PT105, SR. 9209823,

Respondents,

MIGUEL MORACHIS,
Claimant.

CITATION ON APPEAL

To: Ruffo Espinosa, Proctor for Miguel Morachis,

the claimant herein:

Greeting

:

You Are Hereby Cited and Admonished to be

and appear in the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, to be holden at the

City of San P'rancisco, State of California, forty

(40) days from and after the date of this citation,

pursuant to an order allowing an aj)peal duly made

and entered and tiled in the office of the Ck'i'k of

the ab()ve-nam(^d District Court uiuh^r date of Feb-

ruary 7, 1945, wlicreiii the United States of America
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is appellant and Miguel Morachis is appellee, to

show cause, if any there be, why the judgment ren-

dered against said appellant on January 27, 1945,

should not be corrected, and why speedy justice

should not be done to the parties in that behalf.

Dated at Tucson, Arizona, this 8th day of Feb-

ruary, 1945.

ALBERT M. SAMES
Judge, United States District Court for the Dis-

trict of Arizona.

Service of the above Citation upon Ruffo Espi-

nosa, Proctor for said Miguel Morachis, at Nogales,

Arizona, on the 10th day of February, 1945, is

hereby acknowledged.

RUFFO ESPINOSA
Proctor for Appellee

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 12, 1945.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AGREED STATEMENT

Comes now the Libelant herein, the United

States of America, by its proctor F. E. Flynn,

United States Attorney for the District of Arizona,

and the Claimant of said 1940 Plymouth truck,

Miguel Morachis, by his proctor Ruffo Expinosa,

imder Rule 5, paragraph 4, of the Rules of Ad-

miralty of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-
peals for the Ninth Circuit, and stipulate and agree

that the Findings of Fact, in the above-entitled
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case, by Judge Albert M. Sames, Judge of the

United States District Court for tlie District of

Arizona, are true and comi)]ete statements of all

the essential facts that were averred, proved, and

sought to be proved, in the i)roceedings of the trial

of this case, and that the same are as follows:

1. That on or about the 3rd day of June, 1944, at

the Port of Nogales, Arizona, the Collector of Cus-

toms seized the following described property, to-

wit: 7 boxes lemons, 307 lbs. gross; 2 boxes grape-

fruit, 92 lbs. gross; 10 cases canned milk, 48 cans

ea., 141/2 c>z. net weight each, and one truck, 1940

Pickup, Motor No. T-105-2887, Plymouth Model

PT105, SR. 9209823, upon the grounds that the said

food products were then and there about to be ex-

])orted, shipped from or taken out of the United

States of America in the said vehicle without any

s})ecial export license having been issued by For-

eign Economic Administration under the Ex])ort

Control Act of 1940, as amended, and on the further

ground that the truck contained articles about to

be expoT'ted, shij)])ed from or taken out in violation

of law, and that the said truck was intended to be

used for said ex})ortatio]i.

2. That within ten days after the seizure of said

property an ai)plication on oath was duly filed and

a warrant for further deti^iitioii of the 1940 Ply-

mouth tru(tk and the lemons, grapefruit and (»anned

milk was issued by this United States District

Court on f]nuv 7, 1944, herein.

3. That within 30 days after said seizure a veri-

fied petition was tiled in this Court by Miguc^I
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Morachis claiming that he was the owner of said

Plymouth Truck and that said truck was not in-

tended to be exported from the United States of

America to the Republic of Mexico and requesting

that said truck be restored to him.

4. That no petition was filed within 30 days after

said seizure for the restoration of the 7 boxes of

lemons, 307 lbs. gross, 2 boxes grapefruit, 92 lbs.

gross, and 10 cases canned milk, 48 cans each, 14^^

oz. net weight each.

5. Miguel Morachis at the time of the seizure

here involved had an office in the wholesale fruit

office in Nogales, Arizona, where he bought produce.

He was then in the business of buying and selling

produce and shipping it from the United States

into Mexico.

6. That on said day of June 3, 1944, the em-

ployees of said Miguel Morachis who were conduct-

ing his business in his absence arrived at the Cus-

toms Station at Nogales, Arizona, with the said

Plymouth Truck containing the aforesaid lemons,

grapefruit and canned milk and presented to the

Customs Inspector a Shipper's Export Declaration

to export 3 crates of celery, 2 boxes of sweet pota-

toes, 20 boxes of fresh bread and 10 cases of apples.

7. That in examining the contents of the said

Plymouth Truck, the Inspector found concealed

beneath the bread in separate bread cartons 10

cases of canned milk which had not been declared

and further examination revealed that the boxes

labelled ''a^jples'' actually contained lemons and
grapefruit.
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8. That one of the employees arrivhig with the

truck as aforesaid, one Rodolpho Tapia, shipping

clerk and secretary of said Miguel Morachis, was

in complete charge of the business of said Morachis.

He w^as in charge of making purchases and the ex-

I^ortation back and forth. Morachis just checked

the bills every month or so.

9. That the said employees of Miguel Morachis

were instructed by Rodolpho Tapia to attem])t the

smuggling and that said Tapia admitted that he

had no license to export the said milk, gra})efruit

or lemons and had attempted to smuggle the pro-

duce across the border.

10. That the said undeclared, concealed and

falsely declared milk, grapefruit and lemons were,

at the time of seizure, about to be exported from

or taken out of the United States in violation of

law and without a special license therefor having

been issued by the Foreign Economic Administra-

tion.

11. That the said Pl^Tiiouth Truck, registered

imder the laws of Arizona, was in constant daily

use between Nogales, Mexico and Nogales, Arizona,

for a period of about two years prior to the date

of seizure, shipping ])roduce from the United States

into Mexico.

12. That said Plymouth Truck was used in this

instance in an attem})t to carry articles out of the

United States without the required ex])ort licens(\

13. That on the lOth day of June, 1944, a libel

of forfeiture was filed herein against the Plymouth
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Truck and the lemons, grapefruit and canned milk

proceeded against herein.

14. The 1940 Plymouth Truck here proceeded

against was used by Morachis and his aforesaid

employees at Nogales, Arizona, in their produce

business.

15. For the four or five months previous to the

seizure Morachis had not driven the truck as he

was busv on other matters. The truck at the time

of seizure w^as being driven by Tapia.

16. When the truck, canned mnlk, lemons and

grapefruit were seized, the truck was going from

the United States into Mexico, and the contents of

the truck were being shipped into Mexico.

17. The value of the canned milk was around

$50.00.

18. There was no declaration of the aforesaid

milk, grapefruit and lemons before or at the time

of the aforesaid seizure.

19. No individual, general, program or special

project license is shown to have been obtained from

Foreign Economic Administration for the afore-

said exportation or taking out of the lemons, canned

milk and grapefruit.

20. The aforesaid employees of Morachis, who
were conducting his business with his consent in

his absence, used the aforesaid Plymouth Truck
with the intention of, and as a means of, exporting

or taking out of the United States and into Mexico

the aforesaid lemons, grapefruit and canned milk

without having declared said lemons, grapefruit

and canned milk.
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Then upon such Findings of Fact the trial Court

made the following Conclusions of Law, which

Libelant contends are not justified by the law and

the evidence:

Now therefore this Court concludes that the said

7 boxes of lemons, 307 lbs. gross, 2 boxes grapefruit,

92 lbs. gross, and 10 cases canned milk, 48 cans

each, 141/2 oz. net weight each were, at the time of

seizure, about to be exported from the United

States into the Republic of Mexico in violation of

the Export Control Act of 1940, as amended, and

are subject to forfeiture to the United States

herein

;

And this Court further concludes that the said

Plymouth Truck was not about to be exported,

shipped from or taken out of the United States into

the Republic of Mexico in violation of law.

And further that Title VI of the Espionage Act

of 1917, (22 U.S.C. 401-407 inch) does not authorize

forfeiture of a vehicle containing articles about to

be imlawfully exported or taken from the United

States but only authorizes seizure and detention

of the vehicle so used.

The liibelant contends that the Assignments of

Error, accom})anying this Petition, contain a con-

cise statement of the points relied upon by it to

reverse the Judgment of the trial Court.

It Is Further Stipulated that the Transcript of

Record shall include the Assignments of Error,

Notice of Appeal, Pc^tition for Order Allowing Aj)-

})eal, Order Allowing Appeal, Order Staying Ex-
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ecution, Citation, and this Agreed Statement, and

Order Extending Time for filing record.

Witness our hands this 6th day of March, 1945.

F. E. FLYNN
United States Attorney

JOHN P. DOUGHERTY
Assistant U. S. Attorney

Proctor for Libelant

RUFFO ESPINOSA
Proctor for Claimant

[Endorsed] : Filed March 6, 1945.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER EXTENDING TIME

On the motion of John P. Dousrhertv, Assistant

United States Attorney, attorney for the Appellant

in the above-entitled case, it is hereby ordered that

the time for filing the record on appeal and docket-

ing the action be, and the same is, hereby extended

to and including the 26tli day of March, 1945.

Dated: March 5th, 1945.

ALBERT M. SAMES
United States District Judge

[Endorsed]: Filed March 5, 1945.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE TO TRANSCRIPT
OF RECORD

United States of America,

District of Arizona—ss.

I, Edward W. Scruggs, Clerk of the United

States District Court for the District of Arizona,

do hereby certify that I am custodian of the rec-

ords, papers and files of the said Court, including

the records, pax)ers and files in the case of The

United States of America, Plaintiff, versus One

Truck, 1940 Pickup, et al, Respondents, numbered

Civil—245—Tucson, on the docket of said Court.

I further certify that the attached pages, num-

bered 1 to 19, inclusive, contain a full, true and

correct transcript of the proceedings of said cause

and all the papers filed therein, together with the

endorsements of filing thereon, called for and des-

ignated in the Agreed Statement filed in said cause

and made a part of the transcript attached hereto,

as the same appear from the originals of record

and on file in my office as such Clerk, in the City

of Tucson, State and District aforesaid.

I further certify that the Clerk's fee for pre-

paring and certifying to this said transcri]^t of

record amounts to the sum of $4.40, and that a

memorandum of said sum has been entered in said

cause by me lor services rendered on belialf of the

UnitcHl States.
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I further certify that the original citation issued

in the said cause is hereto attached and made a

part of this record.

Witness my hand and the Seal of the said Court

this 15th day of March, 1945.

(Seal) EDWARD W. SCRUGGS
Clerk.

[Endorsed]: No. 11007. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. United

States of America, Appellant, vs. Miguel Morachis,

Owner and Claimant of one Plymouth Truck, 1940

Pickup, Motor No. T-105-2887, Model PT105, Sr.

9209823, Appellee. Transcript of Record. Upon
Appeal from the District Court of the United

States for the District of Arizona.

Filed March 19, 1945.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 11007

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Aijpellant,

vs.

7 BOXES LEMONS. 307 lbs. gross; 2 BOXES
GRAPEFRUIT, 92 lbs. gross: 10 CASES
CANNED MILK, 48 cans each, 141/2 oz. net

weight each, and ONE TRUCK, 1940 PICK-
UP, MOTOR No. T-105-2887, PLYMOUTH
MODEL PT105, SR. 9209823,

Appellee,

MIGUEL MORACHIS,
Claimant.

STA^rEMENT OF POINTS AND DESIGNA-
TION OF RECORD

Now comes the appellant herein by his Proctor,

Prank E. Flynn, United States Attorney for the

District of Arizona, and designates the agreed

statement heretofore signed and submitted bv the

Proctors for botli a])})ellant and appellee, as em-

bracing all the record necessary for the consid-

eration of this appeal.

Said ap])ellant hereby desires to adopt as his
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points on appeal the assignments of error he here-

tofore made and that are included in said records.

FRANK E. FLYNN,
United States Attorney

JOHN P. DOUGHERTY
Assistant U. S. Attorney

Proctor for Appellant.

Ruffo Espinosa, Proctor for appellee and the

claimant, consents that the above designation of the

record is final and complete.

RUFFO ESPINOSA
Proctor for Appellee and

Claimant.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 29, 1945. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.





No. 11007

Orcuit Court of appeals

jFoc ti)e iSintf) Circuit.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Appellant,

vs.

MIGUEL MORACHIS, Owner and Claimant of

one Plymouth Truck, 1940 Pickup, Motor No.

T-105-2887, Model PT 105, Sr. 9209823,

Appellee.

SUPPLEMENTAL

?Kransictipt of Eecorti

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona

6 - 1946

PAUL P. O'BHiEN,
CLERK

Rotary Colorprint, 661 Howard Street, San Francisco





No. 11007

(BniteD s>tat£s

Circuit Court of iippeals

jFor tije iSintf) Circuii.

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Appellant,

vs.

MIGUEL MORACHIS, Owner and Claimant of

one Plymouth Truck, 1940 Pickup, Motor No.

T-105-2887, Model PT 105, Sr. 9209823,

Appellee.

SUPPLEMENTAL

^Transcript of EecorD

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona

Rotory Colorprint, 661 Howard Street, San FrorKisco





INDEX

[Clerk's Note: When deemed likely to be of an important nature,

errors or doubtful matters appearing in the original certified record
are printed literally in italic; and, likewise, cancelled matter appear-
ing in the original certified record is printed and cancelled herein
accordingly. When possible, an omission from the text is indicated by
printing in italic the two words between which the omission seems
to occur.

J

PAGE

Affidavit for Warrant of Detention of Seized

Property 21

Attachment and Monition with Marshal's Re-

turn 28

Certificate of Clerk to Supplemental Record. . 35

Designation as to Supplemental Record 34

Docket Entries of June 7, 1944 24

Information of Libel 24

Minute Entry of June 7, 1944 23

Warrant for Detention of Seized Property .... 36





Miguel Morachis 21

In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona

No. Civil—245—Tucson

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Libelant,

vs.

7 boxes lemons, 307 lbs. gross; 2 boxes grapefruit,

92 lbs. gross ; 10 cases canned milk, 48 cans ea.

;

141/^ oz. net weight each, ''Pet" and ''Carna-

tion" brands, and one truck, 1940 Pickup, Mo-

tor No. T-105-2887, Plymouth Model PT 105,

Sr. 9209823,

Respondents.

AFFIDAVIT FOR WARRANT OF DETEN-
TION OF SEIZED PROPERTY

United States of America,

District of Arizona—ss.

William H. Shane, being first duly sworn, de-

poses and says : that he is a Customs Inspector sta-

tioned at Nogales, Arizona; that he was so engaged

on June 3, 1944; that since that day he has been

on duty in such official capacity at Nogales, Ari-

zona; that on June 3, 1944, Robei-to Sanchez Cue-

vas and Alfredo Grijalva, truck drivers for Miguel

Morachis of Nogales, Arizona, arrived at the Cus-

toms Inspection Station and presented two export

declarations to support the exportation of three

crates, 210 pounds, celery, two boxes, 70 pounds,

sweet potatoes, twenty boxes, 540 pounds bread,
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and ten boxes 480 pounds, of apples. A license

from the Board of Economic Warfare was required

for the apples, which they presented. Upon exami-

nation of the load of merchandise Inspector Wil-

liam H. Shane found that the boxes labeled ai)ples

contained grapefruit and lemons ; further examina-

tion of the load disclosed that five of the twenty

boxes labeled bread, contained canned milk, Car-

nation and Pet Brands. The truck drivers admitted

that it was a deliberate attempt to smuggle the

merchandise and that they had been so instructed

by their immediate sui)erior, Rodolfo Tapia Mon-

tano, shipping clerk and secretary for Miguel Mor-

achis. Rodolfo Tapia Montano stated that they

had endeavored to smuggle the fruit and canned

milk because they had no license to export same;

that on June 3, 1944, the truck, grapefruit, lemons,

and the canned milk were seized, detained, and re-

main in the custody of the Collector of Customs,

United States Customs District No. 26, Nogales,

Arizona, because said merchandise was being ex-

ported in said truck in violation of the Export Con-

trol Regulations and as provided in Section 401,

Title 22, U. S. C. A., pursuant to order of the

Foreign Economic Administration, dated January
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10, 1944, issued under the act of July 2, 1940, as

amended June 30, 1942, 50 U. S. C. 701.

W. H. SHANE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 6th day

of June, 1944.

[Seal] E. K. GUMMING,

United States Commissioner,

District of Arizona.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jun. 7, 1944.

In the United States District Court for the

District of Arizona

May, 1944, Term at Tucson

Minute Entry of Wednesday,

June 7, 1944

Honorable Albert M. Sames, United States Dis-

trict Judge, presiding.

[Title of Cause.]

It Is Ordered that a warrant for the detention of

the seized property issue.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

EXCERPT OF DOCKET ENTRIES
1944

June 7. File affidavit for warrant of detention of

seized property.

June 7. Order Warrant of detention issue.

June 7. Issue warrant of detention.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

INFORMATION OF LIBEL

(For the forfeiture and condemnation of goods

sought to be exported in viol. 50 USC 701,

USA a party, Federal question.)

To the Honorable Albert M. Sanies, Judge of the

Said Court:

Now comes the United States of America by As-

sistant United States Attornev John P. Dou2:hertv,

its attorney, and alleges on information and belief

as follows:

I.

That on or about the 3rd day of June, 1944, at

the Port of Nogales, Arizona, 7 boxes Lemons, 307

lbs. gross; 2 boxes Grapefruit, 92 lbs. gross; 10

cases Canned Milk, 48 cans ea., 14V1> oz. net weight

each *^Pet'' and '^Carnation'' brands, and One

Truck, 1940 Pickuj), Motor No. T-105-2887, Ply-

mouth Model PT105, Sr. 920923, were attemi)ted to

be exported or shipped from, or taken out of the

United States of America in violation of law, and

with the intention that said articles be exported, or
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shipped from, or taken out of the United States of

America, in violation of law.

II.

That the said articles were not manifested, and

no export license for the said articles was presented

to the Collector of Customs.

III.

The exportation of said articles are prohibited

by the provisions of 50 USC 701, and Proclama-

tions, Executive Orders and Regulations issued

pursuant to said statute and supplements and

amendments thereto.

IV.

No export license had been issued for the expor-

tation of said articles although licenses for the ex-

portation of the same are required by the aforesaid

Statutes, Proclamations, Executive Orders and Reg-

ulations.

V.

That on or about the 3rd day of June, 1944, the

Collector of Customs at Nogales, Arizona, pursuant

to the authority of 22 USC 238 and 402, seized and

detained the said articles and retained and still re-

tains possession thereof for further disposition as

may be provided by law.

VI.

That thereafter, with due diligence and on or

about the 7th day of June, 1944, said collector of

Customs applied to the Honorable Judge of the

United States District Court for the District of Ari-
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zona, under 22 USC 239 and 402, for a warrant to

justify the further detention of such property;

and on the 7th day of June, 1944, the said Judge,

having been satisfied that the seizure was justified,

issued his warrant accordingly, pursuant to the au-

thority of 22 USC 239 and 402, and the said prop-

erty has since been detained by said Collector for

disposition according to law.

VII.

That more than thirty days have passed since the

seizure of said articles, and no owner or claimant

has filed a petition for restoration of the whole or

any part thereof.

VIII.

That the Attorney General of the United States

has directed the United States Attorney for this

District to institute a libel proceeding in this Court

against said articles, to forfeit and condemn said

articles to the United States of America, pursuant

to 22 USCA 241 and 404.

IX.

That by reason of the ])remises and tlie same be-

ing contrary to the form of the statute or statutes of

the United States in such cases provided, and the

Proclamations, Executive Orders and Regulations

issued by authority of law, the said Articles became

and are forfeited to the United States of America.

AVherefore, libelant prays that })rocess in due

i'onn of law be issued to enforce said forfeiture and

condemnation against the aforesaid articles citing
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all persons having or claiming any interest in the

said articles to appear upon the return day and

show cause why the condemnation and forfeiture

should not be decreed; and that the aforesaid ar-

ticles be condemned and forfeited to the United

States of America and be ordered disposed of as

provided by law and that the libelant have such

other and further relief in the premises as the Court

shall deem just.

F. E. FLYNN,
United States Attorney.

JOHN P. DOUGHERTY,

Assistant U. S. Attorney, Attorney for Libelant,

412 Federal Building, Tucson, Arizona.

United States of America,

District of Arizona—ss.

John P. Dougherty, being first duly sw^orn, de-

poses and says that he is an Assistant United

States Attorney for the District of Arizona; that

he has read the foregoing libel of information and

knows the contents thereof, and that he believes the

same to be true in substance and in fact.

JOHN P. DOUGHERTY.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 10th day

of June, 1944.

[Seal] SHIRLEY M. YOUNG,
Deputy Clerk, U. S. District Court for the District

of Arizona.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jun. 10, 1944.
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ATTACHMENT AND MONITION

The President of the United States of America, to

the Marshal of the District of Arizona, Greet-

ing:

Whereas, an Information of Libel has been filed in

the District Court of the United States for the Dis-

trict of Arizona, at Tucson, Arizona, on the 10th day

of June, A. D. 1944, by F. E. FMm, United States

Attorney for the District of Arizona, on behalf of

the United States against 7 Boxes Lemons, 307 lbs.

gross; 2 Boxes Grapefruit, 92 lbs. gross; 10 Cases

Canned Milk, 48 cans ea., 1414 oz. net weight each

^^Pet" and ''Carnation" brands, and One Truck,

1940 Pickup, Motor No. T-105-2887, Plymouth

Model PT105, SR. 9209823 for reasons and causes in

said libel mentioned, and praying the usual process

and monition of the said Court in that behalf to be

made, and that all persons having or pretending to

have any right, title or interest therein may be

cited to appear and answer all and singular the

matters in the said libel articulately propounded,

and that this Court shall be pleased to propound,

and that said property, hereinbefore particularly

described, be proceeded against and attached and

seized for condemnation, and for such other penal-

ties as are mention in said libel.

You Are, Therefore, Commanded, to attach the

said property and to detain the same in your cus-

tody until the further order of this Court respect-
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ing the same, and to give notice of the time and

place of said hearing, by giving the substance of

such libel with the order of Court therein, setting

forth the time and place for trial, to be inserted for

one publication in some newspaper of general cir-

culation, published at Nogales, in said District of

Arizona. The said publication to be fourteen days

prior to the date for hearing said libel, and to post

notices thereof fourteen days prior to date of hear-

ing, one at the west door on the south side of the

United States Post Office and Court House in

Tucson, and two thereof in two public places in the

City of Tucson, Arizona, to all persons claiming the

said property, or knowing or having anything to

say why this Court should not proceed against the

same, according to the prayer of said libel, and that

they be and appear before said Court, to be holden

in and for said District of Arizona, at the United

States Court House, in the City of Tucson, in the

said District of Arizona, on Monday, the 10th day

of July, 1944, at the hour of 10:00 o'clock in the

forenoon of that day, if that be a day of jurisdic-

tion, and then and there to interpose a claim to the

same, and to make their allegations in that behalf.

And of what you shall have done in the premises

do you then and there make return, together with

this writ.
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Witness the Honorable Albert ^I. Sames, Judge

of the said Court and the seal thereof, this 10th day

of June, A. D. 1944.

EDWARD W. SCRUGGS,
Clerk District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona.

By JEAN E. MICHAEL,
Deputy Clerk.

United States of America,

District of Arizona—ss.

Marshal's Return

Civil-245-Tucson

I, B. J. McKinney, United States Marshal for

the District of Arizona, hereby certify and return

that I executed the within writ of Attachment and

Monition by seizing on June 12, 1944, at Nogales,

Arizona, 7 boxes Lemons, 307 Lbs. gross; 2 boxes

grapefruit, 92 Lbs. gross; and 5 cases canned milk

of 48 141/^ Oz. cans each, three labeled, ^^Pef and

two labeled *' Carnation" at the Customs Service

storeroom; and at the same time and place I handed

a copy of the within writ, with a copy of Libel at-

tached, to Alfred J. Taylor, Deputy Collector of

Customs; and on tlie same day I stored the afore-

mentioned fruit at the Citizens Utilities Company,

Nogales, Arizona, and the canned milk at the Santa

Cruz County Sheriff's Office, Nogales, Arizona; and

on the same day at the Post Office Service Station,

Nogales, Ai'zona, I seized One 1940 Plymouth T^ick-



Miguel Morachis 31

up Truck, Motor No. T-105-2887, Model PT 105

Serial No. 9209823 ; and I stored said automobile at

the place where seized; and on June 19, 1944, at

Tucson, Arizona, I posted Notice of Hearing on

bulletin boards in three public places, to wit : U. S.

Court House, Pima County Court House, and Tucson

City Hall ; and on June 23, 1944, 1 caused said Notice

to be published in the Nogales International, a

weekly newspaper of general circulation published

in Nogales, Arizona ; and attached hereto and made

a part hereof is the publisher's Affidavit of Publi-

cation.

Signed and dated this 13th day of July, 1944, at

Tucson, Arizona.

B. J. McKINNEY,
United States Marshal

By HAROLD BPtOOKS ROGERS,
Deputy U. S. Marshal.

Marshal's constructive earnings $4.12

Drayage expense 1.00

Publication expense 8.25

AFFIDAVIT OF PUBLICATION

State of Arizona,

County of Santa Cruz—ss.

Before me, J. Figueras, a Notary Public in and

for the County of Santa Cruz, duly commissioned

and sworn, on this day personally appeared Craig

Pottinger, who being first duly sworn, deposes and

says: That he is the Publisher of The Nogales In-
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ternational, a paper published at Nogales, Santa

Cruz County, State of Arizona, and that the an-

nexed notice or advertisement was published in

said newspaper one time the publication being on

June 23, 1944.

CRAIG POTTINGER

Subscribed and sworn to before me, at Nogales,

Arizona, this 8th day of July, 1944.

[Seal] J. FIGUERAS,
Notary Public

My Commission Expires 2/23/47.

LEGAL NOTICE

Notice of hearing. No. Civil-245-Tucson. In the

District Court of the United States for the District

of Arizona. United States of America, Libelant,

vs. 7 Boxes Lemons, 307 lbs. gross; 2 Boxes Grape-

fruit, 92 lbs. gross; 10 Cases Canned Milk, 48 cans

ea., 14^/2 oz. net weight each '*Pet" and ^'Carna-

tion" brands, and One Truck, 1940 Pickup, Motor

No. T-105-2887, Plymouth Model PT105, Sr.

9209823, Respondents. Notice is hereby given that

on the 10th day of June, A. D. 1944, F. E. Flynn,

United States Attorney for the District of Arizona,

filed in the above-entitled court an Information of

Libel on ])ehalf of the United States of America

against the respondents named in the title liereof,

which were then and there intended to be exported,

in violation of 22 USC 401, into the Republic of

Mexico from the Port of Nogales, Arizona by

Miguel Moracliis, and on the filing of said Tnf(^rma-
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tion of Libel the Court, on the 10th day of June,

A. D. 1944, duly ordered the issuance of an Attach-

ment and Monition against the above-named re-

spondents, and the said described articles have by

the United States Marshal been duly levied upon

and seized by virtue of said monition and order of

attachment, and which order of said Court fixed

the 26th day of June, 1944, at the hour of 10:00

o'clock in the forenoon of said day as the day for

hearing said petition and any and all persons who

might appear in said cause, and which order of said

Court directed that notice of hearing on said In-

formation be given by one publication in a news-

paper of general circulation and printed and pub-

lished at Nogales, in said District of Arizona, the

said publication to be fourteen days prior to the

date for hearing said libel, and to post notice there-

of fourteen days prior to the date of hearing, one at

the west door on the south side of the United States

Post Office and Court House in Tucson, and two

thereof in the City of Tucson, Arizona. Now,

Therefore, Notice Is Hereby Given that pursuant

to an Order of the Court made and entered in the

above-entitled Court in the above-entitled cause, the

hearing on the Information of Libel in the above-

entitled matter will be had before the Court at the

Federal Courtroom in said Court in the City of

Tucson, Arizona, on the 10th day of July, 1944, at

the hour of 10:00 o'clock A. M. of said date, or

upon any subsequent date of said Court to which

the hearing may be continued, at which time all

persons interested are notified to appear and show
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cause, if any they have, why the prayer of said

Information slioiild not be allowed and why the

Court should not pronounce against said articles

hereinabove described and declare the same for-

feited to the United States Government and deliv-

ered to the proper officers of the United States Gov-

ernment for the use and benefit of said Government

as provided by law, and at which time any and all

persons having any interest in and claim to said

articles may present to said Court any and all such

claims and any and all reasons that they may have

why said articles should not be forfeited as prayed

for in said Information. Dated this 10th day of

June, 1944. B. J. McKinney, United States Mar-

shal.

[Endorsed] : Filed July 13. 1944.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

DESIGNATION AS TO SUPPLEMENTAL
RECORD

It appearing that there have been omitted cer-

tain parts of the transcript of record of this action

on appeal, and counsel having stipulated thereto,

the Clerk of the above entitled court is hereby

directed to certify to the Clerk of the Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, the following

additional portions of said record:

1. Minute Entry of June 7, 1944;

2. All docket entries of June 7, 1944;
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3. Affidavit for Warrant of Detention of Seized

Property, filed June 7, 1944;

4. Information of Libel, filed June 10, 1944

;

5. Attachment and Monition with Marshal's re-

turn thereon, filed July 13, 1944;

6. This Designation.

JOHN P. DOUGHERTY,
Assistant U. S. Attorney, At-

torney for Libelant-Appel-

lant.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 12, 1945.

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE TO
SUPPLEMENTAL TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD

United States of America,

District of Arizona—ss.

I, Edward W. Scruggs, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the District of Arizona, do here-

by certify that I am the custodian of the records,

papers and files of the said Court, including the

records, papers and files in the case of United States

of America, Libelant, versus 7 Boxes Lemons, et al,

Respondents, numbered Civil-245-Tucson, on the

docket of said Court.

I further certify that the attached pages, num-

bered 1 to 14, inclusive, contain a full, true and

correct transcript of the proceedings of said cause

and all the papers filed therein, together VTith the
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endorsements of filing thereon, called for and desig-

nated in the Designation as To Supplemental Rec-

ord filed in said cause and made a part of the sup-

plemental transcript attached hereto, as the same

appear from the originals of record and on file in

my office as such Clerk, in the City of Tucson, State

and District aforesaid.

I further certify that the Clerk's fee for prepar-

ing and certifying to this said supplemental tran-

script of record amounts to the sum of $6.15, and

that a memorandum of said sum has been entered

in said -cause by me for services rendered on behalf

of the United States.

Witness my hand and the Seal of the said Court

this 12th day of September, 1945.

[Seal] EDWARD W. SCRUGGS,
Clerk

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

WARRANT FOR DETENTION OP
SEIZED PROPERTY

Whereas, an Affidavit having been filed alleging

that the above-named articles in the title hereof

were seized by William H. Shane, Customs Inspec-

tor at Nogales, Arizona, and that said articles were

being, and intended to be exported, shipped from

and taken out of the United States of America and

into the Rey)ublic of JMexico in violation of law, and

without obtaining the necessary license to export

the same, and
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Whereas, a motion has been made by the United

States District Attorney for the District of Ari-

zona for the issuance of a warrant upon said Affi-

davit,

Now, Therefore, I, Albert M. Sames, Judge of

the District Court of the United States for the Dis-

trict of Arizona, by this my warrant, authorize and

empower that said articles above-described be de-

tained by said seizing officer until the President of

the United States orders the same to be restored to

the owner or claimant, or until the same are dis-

charged in due course of law on petition of the

claimant or on trial of condemnation proceedings

as provided in 22 USCA 401-408.

Given under my hand this 7th day of June, 1944.

(Signed) ALBERT M. SAMES
Judge, U. S. District Court

for The District of Arizona

I certify that this a true, exact, and correct copy

of an original Warrant for Detention of Seized

Property on file in the office of the Collector of

Customs, Customs Collection District of Arizona,

Nogales, Arizona.

ALFRED G. KIBBE,
Deputy Collector of Cus-

toms

Subscribed and sworn to before me by Alfred G.

Kibbe at Nogales, Arizona, on September 25, 1945.

[Seal] H. R. CHATHAM,
Assistant Collector of Cus-

toms
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[Endorsed: No. 11007. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. United

States of America, Appellant, vs. Miguel Morachis,

Owner and Claimant of one Plymouth Truck, 1940

Pickup, Motor No. T-105-2887, Model PT 105, Sr.

9209823, Appellee. Supplemental Transcript of

Record. Upon Appeal from the District Court of

the United States for the District of Arizona.

Filed September 19, 1945.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit

No. 11007

United States of America, appellant

V,

One Plymouth Truck^, 7 Boxes of Lemons 307 Lbs.

Gross, 2 Boxes Grapefruit 92 Lbs. Gross, 10 Cases

Canned Milk, 48 Cans Each, '^Pet'' and '* Carna-

tion" Brands, respondents-appellees

Miguel Morachis, claimant-appellee

UPON APPEAL FROM THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES FOR THE DISTRICT OF ARIZONA

BRIEF OF APPELLANT

JURISDICTION OF THE DISTRICT COURT

The District Court had jurisdiction of this proceed-

ing under Section 24 (9) of the Judicial Code as

amended (28 U. S. Code, Section 41 (9) as this is a

suit or proceeding for the enforcement of forfeitures

incurred under the laws of the United States (R. 2,

4, 10, 11, and 14). The laws of the United States

involved are: Title YI of the Espionage Act of 1917,

i. e., the Act of June 15, 1917, Chapter 30, 40 Stat.

(1)



223-225 as amended, 22 U. S. Code, Section 401-408

incl. ; and the Export Control Law of 1940 as amended,

i. e., Section 6 of the War Powers Act of July 2,

1940, Chapter 508 (54 Stat. 714), as amended by the

Act of June 30, 1942, Chapter 461 (56 Stat. 463), as

further amended by Act of July 1, 1944, Chapter

360, 58 Stat. 671; 50 App. U. S. C. § 701.

JURISDICTION OF THIS COURT

This is an appeal from a final decision in the Dis-

trict Court for the District of Arizona, and no direct

review may be had in the Supreme Court under Sec-

tion 238 of the Judicial Code (28 U. S. C. §345).

This Court therefore has jurisdiction of this appeal

under Section 128 of the Judicial Code (28 U. S. C.

§ 225 (a)), as amended.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

This case is a test case and is representative of a

large number of similar cases, a -few^ of which are in

this circuit and many are in the Fifth Circuit. The

quCvStion is directly presented for the first time to an

appellate court for an authoritative determination.

This appeal is taken by the United States from the

judgment of the United States District Court at

Tucson, Arizona, entered on January 27, 1945, de-

creeing restoration of the Plymouth truck under sei-

zure (by the Collector of Customs) and in the actual

or constructive custody of the Coui't in a j)roceeding

wherein appellant United States claimed forfeiture

of the truck to the United States under Title VI of

the Espionage Act, June 15, 1917, 40 Stat. 223-225

as amended (22 U. S. C. § 401-408).



The truck was seized by the United States Collector

of Customs on June 3, 1944, at Nogales, Arizona, to-

gether with 7 boxes of lemons, 307 lbs. gross; 2 boxes

grapefruit, 92 lbs. gross; and 10 cases of canned milk,

48 cans per case (R. 10, FF 1). The food and the

truck were seized on the grounds that the food was

about to be exported, shipped from, or taken out of

the United States into Mexico in violation of law in

that a license for such an exportation as required by

the regulations of the Foreign Economic Adminis-

tration ('formerly Board of Economic Warfare ^)

under the Export Control Act of 1940, as amended

(50 Apj). U. S. C. §701), had not been issued (R.

10), and on the further grounds that the truck con-

tained articles about to be exported, shipped from,

or taken out in violation of law, and that the truck

was intended to be used for said exportation (R. 10).

Within ten days after the said seizure a warrant for

further detention of the property seized including

the food and the truck was applied for on oath filed

in the United States District Court for Arizona (See

Appendix A, p. 50 this brief) and granted by the Court.

(R. 10. See Appendix A, p. 52 this brief.) A libel of

forfeiture was filed (See Appendix A, p. 53 this brief)

by the United States against the cases of canned milk,

and boxes of lemons and grapefruit, and the Plym-

^ Executive Order 9361, July 15, 1943 (8 F. R. 9861), issued by
the President pursuant to the Act of December 18, 1941, ch. 593,

55 Stat. 838, 50 App. U. S. C. 601, transferred powers and func-

tions of Board of Economic Warfare to Office of Economic War-
fare, and by Executive Order 9380 (8 F. R. 13081), September 25,

1943, the powers and functions of the Office of Economic Warfare
were in turn transferred to the Foreign Economic Administration.



outh truck on June 10, 1944 (R. 2, 12, 14). No
petition for restoration of the milk, lemons and grape-

fruit pursuant to Section 3 of Title VI of the Es-

pionage Act, 22 U. S. C. § 403 was filed by owner or

claimant (R. 11). The District Court found as a con-

clusion of law that the boxes and cases of food were

subject to forfeiture to the United States because they

were ^^ about to be exported from the United States

into the Republic of Mexico in violation of the Ex-

port Control Act of 1940 as amended" (R. 14), and

ordered them -forfeited to the United States in the

judgment (R. 3).

Timely Petition for Restoration of the automobile

however was filed by Miguel Morachis in the District

Court for the District of Arizona claiming that he

was the owner of said Plvmouth truck, that said truck

was not intended to be exported from the United

States to the Republic of Mexico and requesting that

said truck be restored to him (R. 10, 11.) The Dis-

trict Court held as a conclusion of law that the Ply-

mouth truck w^as not about to be exported, shipped

from, or taken out of the United States into the

Republic of Mexico in violation of law and that Title

VI of the Espionage Act of 1917 does not authorize

forfeiture of the vehicle containing articles about to

be unlawfully exported but only authorizes seizure

and detention of the vehicle so used (R. 14), and

ordered in its judgment of January 27, 1945 that the

petition of Miguel Morachis for restoration of said

Plymouth truck be granted (R. 3). The Court did

not purport to act under the bonding provisions of

Section 5 (22 U. S. C. § 405).



On February 7, 1945 execution of the order of res-

toration was stayed by the District Court pending

the result of this appeal (R. 7). Also on February

7, 1945 the District Court allowed the appeal herein

(R. 6), petition for allowance of which was filed by

the appellant (R. 5) since the statute here involved

(Sec. 5) provides that the proceedings shall conform

as near as may be to the proceedings in admiralty,

22 U. S. C. § 405.

Because it was not sure whether or not Rule I

of the Rules in Admiralty of this Court was applica-

ble to this appeal, appellant also filed a timely notice

of appeal (R. 5). Assignments of error were filed on

February 1, 1945 and citation on appeal was issued

on February 8, 1945 and filed with acknowledgment

of service by proctor for appellee on February 12,

1945 (R. 9). An agreed statement of facts was en-

tered into by proctors for both parties (R. 9, 15)

and filed on March 6, 1945 (R. 15). Said agreed

statement was designated by both parties as embrac-

ing all the record necessary for the consideration of

this appeal (R. 18 and 19).

QUESTION INVOLVED

The only question involved is w^hether Title VI
of the Espionage Act of 1917, 22 U. S. C. § 401-408

inch, in conjunction with the Export Control Law of

1940 as amended, i. e.. Title 6 of the Act of July 2,

1940, Chapter 508, as amended by Act of June 30,

1942, Chapter 461, 56 Stat. 463,' 50 App. U. S. C.

2 As further amended by Act of July 1, 1944, Chapter 360, 58

Stat. GTl.
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§ 701 and the orders and regulations issued there-

under, authorizes forfeiture of a vehicle seized there-

inider if the vehicle is used to take out or attempt to

take out articles that cannot lawfully be exported

because no license as required by said export control

orders, regulations and laws had been issued for such

exportation. If it does the judgment below should be

reversed and the automobile under seizure should be

forfeited to the United States.

SPECIFICATION OF ASSIGNED ERRORS

Appellant's five assigiunents of error in substance

relate to one principle error—to wit: that the Court

erred in concluding that the PljTnouth truck was not

subject to forfeiture to the United States under Title

VI of the Espionage Act of 1917. For that reason

the following five assignments of error which appear

on page 4 of the Record will be treated as one in the

argument herein:

1. The Court erred in ordering restoration of the

respondent, one Plymouth Truck pick-up automobile,

1940 model, to petitioner, Morachis.

2. The Court erred in failing to hold the aforesaid

1940 pick-up truck for forfeiture to the United States.

3. The Court erred in failing to order forfeiture

of the aforesaid 1940 pick-up Plymouth truck to the

United States.

4. The Court erred in holding that Title VI of the

Act of June 15, 1917, Chapter lU), 40 Stat. 223, as

amended did not provide forfeiture of the vehicle con-

taining the lemons, grapefruit and canned milk imder



the circumstances revealed in the findings of fact

herein.

5. The Court erred in finding that the aforesaid

1940 pick-up Plymouth truck was not being taken out

of the United States in violation of law within the

meaning of Title VI of the Act of June 15, 1917,

Chapter 30, 40 Stat. 223 as amended (46 U. S. C.

§401-408 inch).

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

The agreed statement as it relates to the facts covers

only four pages of the record (R. 10-13 incl.) but for

the court's convenience the substance of the facts ap-

pearing therein will be here set forth

:

On June 3, 1944, at the Port of Nogales, Arizona,

the Collector of Customs seized 7 boxes of lemons

307 lbs. gross, 2 boxes grapefruit 92 lbs. gross and 10

cases of canned milk 48 cans each, and 1 Plymouth

Truck for forfeiture under the Export Control Act

of 1940 as amended (R. 10) upon the groimds here-

inabove set forth. (Statement of Case, p. 3 this

brief. See also R. 10.)

At the time of the seizure, claimant-appellee Mora-

chis had an office in Nogales, Arizona, where he was

in the business of buying and selling produce and

shipping it into Mexico (R. 11, FF 5). On June 3,

1944 the employees of claimant-appellee Morachis

who were conducting his business in his absence ar-

rived at the Customs station at Nogales, Arizona, with

the Plymouth truck here involved containing the afore-

said lemons, grapefruit and canned milk and presented



to the Customs Iiisi)ector an Export Declaration declar-

ing for export 3 crates of celery, 2 boxes of sweetpota-

toes, 20 boxes of fresh bread and 10 cases of apples (R.

11, FF 6). Upon examination of the contents of the

truck, the Inspector found concealed beneath the bread

in separate bread cartons, 10 cases of canned milk

which had not been declared and also discovered that

the boxes labeled **ap])les'' actually contained lemons

and grapefruit (R. 11, FF 7) which also had not been

declared (R. 13, FF 18) . No license for the exporta-

tion of said milk, grapefruit and lemons as required by

the regulations of the Foreign Economic Administra-

tion had been obtained (R. 13, F 19). The agreed

statement on this appeal also adopts the following

facts as found by the District Court

:

16. When the truck, canned milk, lemons and
grapefruit were seized the truck was going

from the United States into Mexico and the

contents of the truck were being shipped into

Mexico (R. 13).

*

20. The aforesaid employees of Morachis,

who were conducting his business with his con-

sent in his absence, used the aforesaid Plym-
outh Truck with the intention of, and as a

means of, exporting or taking out of the United

States an(J into Mexico the aforesaid lemons,

grai)efruit, and canned milk without having de-

clared said lemons, grapefruit, and canned

milk (R. 13).

« ^ « « «

14. T\w 1940 Plymouth Truck here pro-

ceeded against was used by Morachis and his
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aforesaid employees at Nogales, Arizona, in

their produce business (R. 13).

* * "Jf -x- *

12. That said Plymouth Truck was used in

this instance in an attempt to carry articles out

of the United States without the required ex-

port license (R. 12).*****
8. That one of the employees arriving with

the truck as aforesaid, one Rodolpho Tapia,

shipping clerk and secretary of said Miguel

Morachis, was in complete charge of the busi-

ness of said Morachis. He was in charge of

making purchases and the exportation back and
forth. Morachis just checked the bills every

month or so (R. 12).

9. That the said employees of Miguel Mora-
chis were instructed by Rodolpho Tapia to

attempt the smuggling and that said Tapia

admitted that he had no license to export the

said milk, grapefruit or lemons and had at-

tempted to smuggle the produce across the bor-

der (R. 12).

10. That the said undeclared, concealed and

falsely declared milk, grapefruit and lemons

were, at the time of seizure, about to be ex-

ported from or taken out of the United States

in violation of law and without a special license

therefor having been issued by the Foreign

Economic Administration (R. 12).

11. That the said Plymouth Truck, registered

under the laws of Arizona, was in constant

daily use between Nogales, Mexico, and Nogales,

Arizona, for a period of about two years prior to

the date of seizure, shipping produce from the

United States into Mexico (R. 12).
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The appellant asserts the Plymouth Truck is made

subject to forfeiture by Title VI of the Espionage

Act of 1917 as amended, 22 U. S. C. § 401-408 inch,

since no license was obtained for the exportation of

the canned milk, lemons and grapefruit as required by

regulations and orders issued under the Export Con-

trol Act of 1940 as amended, 50 App. U. S. C. § 701.

The Government, of course, does not question that

portion of the judgment which forfeited to the United

States the canned milk, lemons and grapefruit.

STATUTES AND REGULATIONS

Title VI, Espionage Act of 1917, act of June 15, 1917, chapter

30, 40 Stat. 223-225, as amended by the act of March 1, 1929,

chapter 420, 45 Stat. 1423

SEIZURE OF ARMS AND OTHER ARTICLES IXTEXDED FOR

EXPORT

Section 1. Whenever an attem})t is made to export

or ship from or take out of the United States any

arms or munitions of war, or other articles, in viola-

tion of law, or whenever tliere shall be known or

probable cause to believe that any such arms or muni-

tions of war, or other articles, are being or are in-

tended to be exported, or shi])ped from, or taken out

of the United States, in violation of law, the several

collectors, comptrollei^ of customs, surveyors, inspec-

tors of customs, and marshals, and deputy marshals

of the United States, and every other person duly

authorized for the purpose by the President, may

seize and detain any articles or mimitions of war about

to be exported or shipi)ed from, or taken out of the

United States, in violation of law, and the vessels or
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vehicles containing the same, and retain possession

thereof luitil released or disposed of as hereinafter

directed. If upon due inquiry as hereinafter pro-

vided, the property seized shall appear to have been

about to be so unlawfuly exported, shipped from, or

taken out of the United States, the same shall be for-

feited to the United States (40 Stat. 223-4 ; cf . Title

22,U. S. C. §401).

Sec. 2. It shall be the duty of the person making

any seizure under this title to apply, with due dili-

gence, to the judge of the district court of the United

States, or to the judge of the United States district

court of the Canal Zone, or to the judge of a court of

first instance in the Philippine Islands, having juris-

diction over the place within which the seizure is

made, for a warrant to justify the further detention

of the property so seized, which warrant shall be

granted only on oath or affirmation showing that there

is known or probable cause to believe that the property

seized is being or is intended to be exported or shipped

from or taken out of the United States in violation

of law ; and if the judge refuses to issue the warrant,

or application therefor is not made by the person mak-

ing the seizure within a reasonable time, not exceeding

ten days after the seizure, the property shall forthwith

be restored to the owner or person from whom seized.

If the judge is satisfied that the seizure was justified

under the provisions of this title, and issues his war-

rant accordingly, then the property shall be detained

by the person seizing it mitil the President, who is

hereby expressly authorized so to do, orders it to be

restored to the owner or claimant, or until it is dis-
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charged in due course of law on petition of the claim-

ant, or on trial of condemnation proceedings, as here-

inafter provided (40 Stat. 224; cf. Title 22, U. S. C.

§402).

Sec. 3. The owner or claimant of any property

seized under this title may, at any time before con-

demnation proceedings have been instituted, as here-

inafter provided, file his petition for its restoration in

the district court of the United States, or the district

court of the Canal Zone, or the court of first instance

in the Philippine Islands, having jurisdiction over the

place in which the seizure was made, whereupon the

court shall advance the cause for hearing and deter-

mination with all possible dispatch, and, after causing

notice to be given to the United States attorney for

the district and to the person making the seizure, shall

proceed to hear and decide whether the property

seized shall be restored to the petitioner or forfeited

to the United States (40 Stat. 224; cf. Title 22 U. S. C.

§403).

Sec. 4. Whenever the person making any seizure

under this title (sections 238 to 245, inclusive, of chap-

ter 5, title 22 United States Code) applies for and ob-

tains a warrant for the detention of the property, and

(a) upon the hearing and determination of the peti-

tion of the owner or claimant restoration is denied, or

(b) the owner or claimant fails to file a petition for

restoration within thirty days after the seizure, the

United States attorney for the district wherein it was

seized, upon direction of the Attorney General, shall

institute libel proceedings in the United States district

court or the district court of the Canal Zone or the
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court of first instance of the Philippine Islands hav-

ing jurisdiction over the place wherein the seizure was

made against the property for condemnation; and if,

after trial and hearing of the issues involved, the

property is condemned, it shall be disposed of by sale,

and the proceeds thereof, less the legal costs and

charges, paid into the Treasury: Provided, That the

court shall order any arms and mmiitions of war so

condemned delivered to the War Department of the

United States. (As amended by Act of March 1, 1929,

Chapter 420, 45 Stat. 1423 ; cf . Title 22, U. S. C. § 404.)

Sec. 5. The proceedings in such summary trials upon

the petition of the owner or claimant of the property

seized, as well as in the libel cases herein provided for,

shall conform, as near as may be, to the proceedings in

admiralty, except that either party may demand trial

by jury of any issue of fact joined in such libel cases,

and all such proceedings shall be at the suit of and in

the name of the United States: Provided, That upon

the payment of the costs and legal expenses of both the

summary trials and the libel proceedings herein pro-

vided for, and the execution and delivery of a good

and sufficient bond in an amount double the value of

the property seized, conditioned that it will not be

exported or used or employed contrary to the pro-

visions of this title, the court, in its discretion, may
direct that it be delivered to the owners thereof or to

the claimants thereof (40 Stat. 224-5 ; cf . 22 U. S. C.

Sec. 405).

Sec. 6. Except in those cases in which the exporta-

tion of arms and munitions of war or other articles

is forbidden by proclamation or otherwise by the Pres-
664599—45 2
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ident, as provided in section one of this title, nothing

herein contained shall be construed to extend to, or

interfere with any trade in such commodities, con-

ducted with any foreign port or place wheresoever,

or with any other trade which might have been law-

fully carried on before the passage of this title, mider

the law of nations, or under the treaties or conventions

entered into by the United States, or under the laws

thereof (40 Stat. 225; cf. Title 22 U. S. C. § 406).

Sec. 7. Upon payment of the costs and legal ex-

penses incurred in any such summary trial for pos-

session or libel proceedings, the President is hereby

authorized, in his discretion, to order the release and

restoration to the ow^ner or claimant, as the case may
be, of any property seized or condenmed under the pro-

visions of this title (40 Stat. 225; cf. Title 22, U. S.

C. § 407).

Sec. 8. The President may employ such part of the

land or naval forces of the United States as he may
deem necessary to cany out the purposes of this title

(40 Stat. 225, cf . 22 U. S. C. § 408)

.

Export control law of 1940, section 6 of War Powers Act of

July 2, 1940, chapter 508 (54 Stat. 714), as amended by act

of June 30, 1942, ch. 461 ; (56 Stat. 463), as further amended by

act of July 1, 1944, chapter 360, 58 Stat. 671, 50 App. U. S. C.

§701

Skc. () (a). The President is hereby autliorized to

prohibit or curtail the exportation of any articles,

technical data, materials, or supplies, except under

such rules and regulations as he shall ])rescribe.

(b) Unless the President shall otherwise direct, the

functions and duties of the President under this sec-
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tion shall be performed by the Foreign Economic

Administration.

(c) In case of the violation of any provision of any

proclamation, rule, or regulation issued hereunder,

such violator or violators, upon conviction, shall be

punished by a fine of not more than $10,000, or by

imprisonment for not more than two years, or by

both such fine and imprisonment.

(d) The authority granted by this section shall

terminate on June 30, 1945, or upon any prior date

which the Congress by concurrent resolution, or the

President, may designate; except that as to offenses

committed, or rights or liabilities incurred prior to

such date, the provisions of this section and such

rules, regulations, and proclamations shall be treated

as remaining in effect for the purpose of sustaining

any suit, action, or prosecution with respect to such

right, liability, or offense (Title 50, App. U. S. C.

§ 701).

Revised export control regulations of the Board of Economic
Warfare, Vol. 8, Fed. Register, p. 1494, as amended by Amend-
ment 143 (Foreign Economic Administration), effective on
January 29, 1944, Vol. 9, Fed. Register, pp. 833, 834.

§ 801.2. Prohibited Exportations,—The exportation

from the United States of all the commodities here-

after enumerated in this section and all technical data

as defined in § 806.1 of this subchapter to all destina-

tions except Canada (including that part of Labrador

under Canadian authority) is hereby prohibited unless

and until a license authorizing such exportation shall

have been issued by the Office of Exports

:
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(Fruits—canned, dried, and fresh are included, pp.

1513, 1514; milk and cream, condensed, evaporated,

dried and fresh are specifically included under ** Dairy

products'' p. 1509; ^'General License Group—None"

for all these commodities is provided in Amendment

143. Vol. 9, Fed. Register, pp. 833, 834.)

ARGUMENT

Point I

The statute clearly authorizes seizure of the vehicle coniain-

ing- articles about to be exported in violation of law

The forfeiture to the United States is claimed herem

under Title VI of the Espionage Act of 1917 approved

June 15, 1917 as amended, 22 U. S. C. § 401^08 inch

The purpose of that Title was to provide effective civil

punishment for illegal traffic in the exportation of

arms, mmiitions of war and other articles or produce

deemed necessary by the President to our wartime or

domestic economy. Consonant with similar enforce-

ment statutes the statute provided for seizure of the

vehicle being used in the unlawful exportation.

Section 1 of Title VI of the Espionage Act of 1917

(22 U. S. C. §401) provides in part as follows:

Whenever an attempt is made to export * * *

or take out of the United States any arms or

mmiitions of war, or other articles, in violation

of law * ^ ^ (40 Stat. 223, 22 U. S. C.

§401). [Italics by counsel.] See full text

pp. 10-11, this brief.)

Clearly the described contingency existed in this

case in view of the admittedly imlicensed character of

the food products which it was attempted to export.
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Said section after stating the above condition and

adding an alternative condition where only ** probable

cause '^ exists provides that the Collectors, inspectors

of customs, etc.

may seize and detain any articles * * *

about to be exported * * * from * * *

the United States, in violation of law, and the

* * * vehicles containing the same, * * *

(40 Stat. 224. 22 U. S. C. § 401). [Italics by

counsel.]

This statutory provision leaves it unquestioned that

the seizure in this case was authorized and justified

in view of the agreed statement of facts indicating

that the boxes and cases of food were about to be

exported in violation of law.

Section 1 then provides that the seizing authorities

may ^^ retain possession thereof until released or

disposed of as hereinafter directed, * * *.'^ This

clause providing for retention or possession ^ thereof ''

clearly applies to both the vehicles and the articles

seized and hence not only is the seizure of the truck

here involved clearly within the statute but its reten-

tion in the possession of the seizing officer is clearly

provided for.

Point II

When read together the several provisions of the act show that

Congress intended that a vehicle taken out of the country
in violation of law, i. e., transporting, exporting, or taking

out articles illegally, shall be forfeited to the United States

The agreed statement of fact states that there was

an admitted attempt to ^'smuggle the produce across
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the border'' (R. 12, FF 9) ; that the Plymouth truck

was used in this instance in an attempt to carry arti-

cles out of the United States without the required

export license (R. 12, FF 12) ; that the truck was

used with the intention of, and as a means of, export-

ing or taking out of the United States and into Mexico

the food here involved without declaring same and

without a license for same (R. 13, FF 20, 16, 18, 19) ;

and that at the time of the seizure the milk, grape-

fruit, and lemons were about to be exported from or

taken out of the United States in violation of law,

and without a license having been issued (R. 12,

FF 10).

As stated in Point I of this brief. Section 1 of Title

VI of the Espionage Act (22 U. S. C. § 401) provides

clearly for seizure of the vehicle containing such

articles or produce and for its retention until released

or disposal of ^^as hereinafter directed.'' Imme-

diately thereafter the same section provides:

If upon due inquiry as hereinafter provided, the

property seized shall appear to have been about

to be so unlawfully exported, shipped from, or

taken out the United States, the same shall be

forfeited to the United States (40 Stat. 224,

22U. S. C, §401).

Here for the first time the word property is used.

In the ])revious clauses which must be closely scruti-

nized there are three groups of things or })roperty

dealt with: (1) arms or numitions of war, (2) other

articles, and (3) vessels or vehicles containing the

same.
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For convenience in analysis we reprint here the pro-

visions of Section 1 (40 Stat. 223-4, 22 U. S. C, § 401)

:

Section 1. Whenever an attempt is made to

export or ship from or take out of the United

States, any arms or munitions of ivar, or other

articles, in violation of law, or whenever there

shall be known or probable cause to believe

that any such arms or munitio7is of tvar, or

other articles, are being or are intended to be

exported, or shipped from, or taken out of the

United States, in violation of law, the several

collectors, naval officers, surveyors, inspectors

of customs, and marshals, and deputy marshals

of the United States, and every other person

duly authorized for the purpose by the Presi-

dent, may seize and detain any articles or muni-

tio7is of war about to be exported or shipped

from, or taken out of the United States, in

violation of law, a7id the vessels or vehicles con-

taining the same, and retain possession thereof

until released or disposed of as hereinafter

directed. If upon due inquiry as hereinafter

provided, the property seized shall appear to

have been about to be so unlawfully exported,

shipped from, or taken out of the United

States, the same shall be forfeited to the United

Sates (40 Stat. 223-4, 22 U. S. C. §401).

[Italics by counsel.]

The use of the words '^the property seized '^ in the

last sentence is significant when compared w^ith the

language previously used. In the first part of the

section setting forth the conditions under which

seizure may be had, reference is made to ^^arms or
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munitions of war'' on the one hand and *^ other

articles" on the other hand. In the middle clause de-

fining what may be seized and detained, reference is

made to *^any articles" and to *^ munitions of war''

and to '^vehicles or vessels containing the same."

But in the last sentence of the section providing for

substantive forfeiture the all inclusive words **the

property seized" is used for the first time. Thus the

vehicles seized as well as the articles seized are to be

forfeited.

Section 2 (40 Stat. 224, 22 U. S. C § 402) makes

it the duty of the seizing officer to apply for a war-

rant for further detention. This clearly applies to the

vehicle as well as to the property. For convenience

in scrutiny the section is here reproduced in full:

Sec. 2. It shall be the duty of the person

making any seizure under this title to apply,

with due diligence, to the judge of the district

court of the United States, or to the judge of

the United States district court of the Canal

Zone, or to the judge of a court of first instance

in the Philippine Islands, having jurisdiction

over the place within which the seizure is made,

for a warrant to justify the further detention

of the property so seized, which warrant shall

be granted only on oath or affirmation showing

that there is known or probable cause to believe

that the property seized is being or is intended

to be exported or shipped from or taken out of

the United States in violation of law; and if

the judge refuses to issue the warrant, or ap-

l^lication therefor is not made by the person

making tlie seizure within a reasonable time,

not exceeding ten days after the seizure, the
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property shall forthwith be restored to the

owner or person from whom seized. If the

judge is satisfied that the seizure was justified

under the provisions of this title and issues his

warrant accordingly, then the property shall

be detained by the person seizing it until the

President, who is hereby expressly authorized

so to do, orders it to be restored to the owner

or claimant, or until it is discharged in due

course of law on petition of the claimant, or

on trial of condemnation proceedings, as here-

inafter provided (40 Stat. 224, 22 U. S. C.

§ 402). [Italics by counsel.]

Here again the section clearly refers to '^any seizure"

and the Judge if satisfied that ^Hhe seizure" was

justified and issues his warrant accordingly, ^*then

the property shall be detained." If return of the

vehicle were intended, here there should have been

a provision for it. But instead further detention

is authorized if the seizure was justified. Point I

of this brief demonstrates that seizure of the vehicle

was justified.

Section 3 (40 Stat. 224, 22 U. S. C. § 403) provides

in part as follows

:

The owner or claimant of any property

seized * * * may at any time before con-

demnation proceedings have been instituted,

* * * * file his petition for its restora-

tion * * * whereupon the Court * * *

shall proceed to hear and decide whether the

property seized shall be restored to the peti-

tioner or forfeited to the United States

(40 Stat. 224, 22 U. S. C. §403). [Italics by

counsel.]
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Thus the provisions of both Section 2 and 3 envisage

the continued possession in the seizing officer of all

or any of the three classes of things or property re-

ferred to in the various clauses of Section 1, i. e.

;

(1) arms or munitions of war, (2) other articles, and

(3) the vehicles containing same, up until after con-

demnation proceedings are commenced or until the

hearing on petition for restoration.

Section 3 provides for a summary hearing on the

question of whether the property seized shall be for-

feited or restored. No substantive test as to whether

or not the vehicle or the commodities shall be forfeited

appears in either Section 2 or 3, nor is there any

indication of the time when such vehicle is to be re-

stored. But it is reasonable to suppose that if Sec-

tion 2 and 3 did not contemplate that the vehicles

were to be continued in the possession of the seizing

officer and in the constructive custody of the Court

the words ^Hhe property seized" would not be con-

tinued to be used but reference rather would be made

to ^'arms or munitions of war or other articles" as

is done in the first clauses of Section 1 and also in

Section 6. This would seem to follow from the sole

use in Section 1 of the words ^Hhe property seized" to

refer to all three classes of things or property men-

tioned in Section 1.

Section 4 (45 Stat. 1423-4, 22 U. S. C. § 404) ])ro-

vides in part as follows:

Whenever flu* person making any seizure

undei- this title * * * obtains a warrant

for the distention of the property * * * the

United States attorney * * * f^^y \\^^ (jig_



23

trict wherem it was seized, * * * shall in-

stitute libel proceedings in the United States

District Court * * * wherein the seizure

was made, against the property for condemna-

tion ; and if after the trial or hearing of the is-

sues involved, the property is condemned, it

shall be disposed of by sale, -^ * * (45

Stat. 1423-4, 22 U. S. C. § 404). [Italics by

counsel.]

Section 4 continues to refer to ^Hhe property"

and ^^any seizure," and indicates that libels of for-

feiture and decrees of coyidemyiation against the ve-

hicle containing the arms, munitions or other articles

are envisaged by the Act.

Analysis of section 5 (40 Stat. 224-5, 22 U. S. C.

§ 405) reveals a similar result

:

The proceedings in such summary trials upon
the petition of the owner or claimant of the

property seized, as well as in the libel case

herein provided for, shall conform, ^ * *

to the i)roceedings in admiralty, * -^ * Pro-

vided, That upon the payment of the costs and
legal expenses of both the summary trials and
the libel proceedings herein provided "for, and
the execution and delivery of a good and suf-

ficient bond in an amount double the value of

the property seized, conditioned that it will

not be exported or used, or employed contrary

to the provisions of this title, the court, in its

discretion, may direct that it be delivered to

the o^^^lers thereof or to the claimants thereof

(40 Stat. 224-5, 22 U. S. C. § 405). [Italics by

counsel.]

Here again the use of the all inclusive words 'Hhe

property seized" instead of ^^arms and munitions or
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other articles'' is significant. It clearly indicates that

up until, during and after either a summary trial (on

petition for restoration of the claimant) or the

plenary trial (in libel proceedings) the vehicle con-

taining the arms or munitions or other articles still

are expected to be in the possession of the seizing

officer and in the constructive possession of the court.

Furthermore this section indicates that the ve-

hicle is included in the bonding procedure by the use

of the words '^conditioned that it will not be exported

or used or employed contrary to the provisions of

this title." The use of the words '*or used or em-

ployed" appear to refer to the vehicle's transport-

ing the commodities, because the other provisions of

title VI do not purport to make illegal the use or em -

ployment of arms or munitions or other articles in

any way, but specifically make illegal their exporta-

tion. The ordinary and obvious meaning of the words

''used or employed" in this situation would be ap-

plicable only to the vehicle used in the exportation.

It should be noted that the proviso begins by set-

ting up the condition that the costs and expenses of

the summary trial and the libel proceedings must be

paid before the bonding will release "the property

seized." Here again the use of this language indi-

cates that it was envisaged that the vehicles might

still be under seizure and detention during and after

botli types of trials or hearings have been had and

that such trials might i-esull in condc^nnation of the

vehicle as well as the anus, munitions or other

articles. OtheT*wis(^ there* would he no necessity for

its release upon bond nor tor the condition that it not
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be used or employed contrary to the provisions of

the title.

Here again we find the provision that upon bond-

ing in the Court's discretion ^^it," which refers back

to ^^the property seized/' be delivered to the owner

or claimant. (The lower court did not purport to re-

lease the Plymouth truck under bond pursuant to

Sec. 5.)

The vehicle containing the forbidden munitions or

articles also appears to be included within the scoi)e

of Section 7 (40 Stat. 225; 22 U. S. C. §407) which

provides in part as follows

:

Upon pajnuent of the costs and legal ex-

penses incurred in any such summary trial for

possession or libel proceedings, the President,

is hereby authorized, * * ^ to order ^ * *

restoration * * * of any property seised

or condemned under the provisions of this title.

(40 Stat. 225; 22 U. S. C. §407 [Italics by

counsel) ]

Here again the use of the words ^^any property

seized'' would seem to include the vehicle seized.

Otherwise the section could have employed the phrase

as did Section 1 and 6 : ^^arms and munitions of war or

other articles." Also the first clause by providing:

^^Upon payment of the costs and legal expenses in-

curred in any such summary trial for possession or

libel proceedings" indicates that it was envisaged that

there might be a trial and libel proceedings involving

the vehicles as included in ^^any property seized."

That the words ^^the property" was not being used

in these sections as synonymous with ^^arms, muni-
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tions of war or other articles'' is demonstrated by the

language of Section 6 (See text pp. 13-14 this brief.)

Section 6 (40 Stat. 225, 22 U. S. C. § 406) signifi-

cantly reverts t) the use of the words **arms and mu-

nitions of war" on the one hand and ^*or other

articles'' on the other hand and does not use the word
^* property."

We therefore conclude that in the last sentence in

Section 1, 22 U. S. C. § 401 the words *Hhe property

seized" was purposely used to include the vehicle

and that it was intended that the vehicle containing

the forbidden arms or articles together with the amis

and munitions of war or other articles should be for-

feited to the United States.

None of the above provisions sets a time or defines

the circumstances under which the vehicle seized while

containing forbidden exports shall be restored by the

Court unconditionally to the ow^ner, although as Point

I of this brief demonstrates, their seizure is clearly

provided by statute.

Section 2 (22 U. S. C. § 402) authorizes restoration

of the property by the President. It i)rovides that

if the judge is

—

satisfied that the seizure was justified * * *

the proj)erty shall be detained by the person

seizing it until the President, who is hereby

expressly authorized so to do, ordei^s it to be

restored to the owner or claimant, or until it is

discharged in due course of law upon petition

of the claimant, or upon trial of condemnation

proceedings as hereinafter provided. [Italic^^

by counsel.] (40 Stat. 224; 22 U. S. C. § 402.)
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Restoration by the President on certain conditions

in his discretion is specifically provided by Sec. 7

:

Upon payment of the costs and legal expenses

incurred in any such summary trial * * *

the President is hereby authorized in his dis-

cretioyi, to order the release and restoration to

the owner or claimant as the case may be of

any property seized or condemned luider the

provisions of this title." [Italics by counsel.]

(See text p. 21 this brief, 40 Stat. 225; 22

U. S. C. § 407.)

Here is an appropriate provision and here appear

the circumstances under which the return of such

vehicle is authorized. The language is logically ap-

plicable to the circumstances. But as emphasized

above the language here envisages the fact that the

vehicle would still be in the possession of the Court

during and after the summary trial and libel pro-

ceedings.

Restoration hy the Court of the vehicle containing

illegal exports appears to be specifically authorized

under the conditions set forth in Section 5 (quoted

just above p. 23 this brief.)

Section 5 (40 Stat. 224; 22 U. S. C. § 405) provides

that the proceedings shall conform as near as may be

to the proceedings in admiralty, and then adds the

proviso that the property seized may be delivered to

the owners or claimants, upon execution of a bond in

an amount double the value of the property seized

^'conditioned that it will not be exported or used or

employed contrary to the provisions of this

title ***.'-'
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Here is the only provision, outside of Section 7

ai)d the clause in Section 2, expressly authorizing the

President to order restoration of the property seized,

setting forth the time and circumstances under which

the vessel which is being used to transport illegal

exports may be restored by the Court to the owner,

i. e., the court in its discretion may in proper circum-

stances order the release of the property seized on

bond. This provision would seem appropriate as ap-

plied to the vehicle especially in view of the language

of the statutory condition to be contained in the bond,

namely ^Hhat it will not be exported, or used, or

employed contrary to the provisions of this title.''

But the Court did not purport to release on bond.

Thus not only is no time or set of circumstances

set forth in the statute specifically for return of the

vehicle containing the illegal merchandise, but the

language of the various sections indicate such vehicle

is to be held and forfeited together with the mer-

chandise, where the latter is subject to forfeiture.

Point III

There would be no necessity or useful purpose in providing

for seizure and detention of the vehicle, which provision is

clearly contained in the sections 1 and 2 of the title here in-

volved, were forfeiture of the vehicle not also contemplated

A. Seizure and search authorized anyway

It is well established that it is the duty of investiga-

tive or prosecuting officers to seize any pro])erty con-

nected with the crime and preserve it for use at the

trial. The Court in United States of America v. 21
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lbs, 8 oz. Platinum, 147 Fed. (2) 78 (C. C. A. 4)

stated as follows

:

* * * it was their duty as prosecuting offi-

cers to seize any property connected with the

crime and preserve it for use at the trial (p.

82).

In Agnello v. United States, 269 U. S. 20, the U. S.

Supreme Court stated at page 30 as follows

:

The right without a search warrant contem-

poraneously to search persons lawfully arrested

while committing crime and to search the place

where the arrest is made in order to find a^id

seize things connected with the crime as its

fruits or as the means hy which it was com-

mitted, as well as weapons and other things to

effect an escape from custody, is not to be

doubted. See Carroll v. United States, 267

U. S. 132, 158; Weeks v. United States, 232

U. S. 383, 392. [Italics by counsel.] (p. 30)

Any violation of the Export Control Law of 1940

is a crime. 50 App. U. S. C. 701 (c). See text page

15, this brief.

In Carroll v. U. S., 267 U. S. 132, the Court at p.

153 said:

Having thus established that contraband goods

concealed and illegally transported in an auto-

mobile or other vehicle may be searched for

without a warrant, we come now to consider

under what circumstances such search may be

made. It would be intolerable and unreason-

able if a prohibition agent were authorized

to stop every automobile on the chance of find-

ing liquor and thus subject all persons lawfully
664599—45 3
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using the highways to the inconvenience and
indignity of such a search. Travellers may be

so stopped in crossing an interyiational bound-

ary hecaiise of national self protection reason-

ably requiring 07ie entermg the country to iden-

tify himself as entitled to come in, and his be-

longiyigs as effects which may be lawfully

brought in (pp. 153-4). [Italics by counsel.]

Once the merchandise such as the canned milk,

lemons and grai:)efruit here involved is seized and

taken into the custody of the collector of customs

there would be no point in providing further deten-

tion of the automobile if the whole act eiivisaged the

restoration of the automobile to the claimant.

B. Further detention useless if no forfeiture of vehicle envisaged

In fact, in fairness to tlie owner-claimant, // the

vehicle were not subject to forfeiture, the vehicle

should not be subject to detention beyond the time

required to remove from the vehicle the prohibited

articles. Hence all the elaborate machinery for the

obtaining of a warrant for further detention, the peti-

tion for restoration, the filing of a libel, the filing of

an answer to the libel, the summary and plenary trials,

the filing of a petition addressed to the President,

w^hich as demonstrated in Point II above are a])pli-

cable to the vehicle as well as to the arms and muni-

tions of war or other articles, would be meaningless

and vain proceedings, were the ultimate event to be

that the vehicle should be restored to the claimant.

It is to be presumed that Congress would not pro-

vide for a vain mid useletss thing. A contention for

an interpretation of other language in the same sec-
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tion which also would call for seizure and detention

plus restoration of property seized was repudiated by

the Circuit Court of Appeals for the 4th Circuit in

the case of Unite] States v. 21 lbs. 8 ozs, more or less

of Platinum, 147 Fed. (2) 78, as follows:

We think that a literal interpretation of the

statute is not permissible, for it leads to a result

that Congress could not have intended. Under
a literal interpretation a warrant for detention

could never be issued and a condemnation of

forfeiture could never be decreed. The statute

contemplates first a seizure under § 401 and
next, an application for a warrant of detention,

under § 402. Where a seizure has taken placey

the goods are safely in the custody of a govern-

ment agent and the possibility of an illegal ex-

portation is at an end ; so that it cannot be said

that the property is then being exported or in-

tended to be exported in violation of law, and
it would be impossible to accompany the ap-

plication for a warrant of detention with an
affidavit showing an intention at the time to

export the goods.

Furthermore, a forfeiture could not be had
under a literal construction because the issu-

ance of the warrant is the first step to be taken

in a proceeding for condemnation, and § 402

says that if the judge refuses the warrant, the

property shall be forthwith restored to the

owner (p. 83).

Thus we conclude forfeiture of the vehicle contain-

ing the forbidden merchandise was intended, as other-

wise the statutory provision for seizure, detention, and

retention in custody would be unnecessary and would

serve no useful purpose.
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PoiXT IV

The judicial, executive, and legislative branches of the Gov-

ernment have treated the statute since its passage in 1917

as including forfeiture of the vehicles containing the arti-

cles whose exportation is unlawful

A. Judicial

The question here involved has never been authori-

tatively discussed by an appellate court. However there

have been a number of judicial inferences that the

vehicles containing the commodities whose exporta-

tion was forbidden are subject to forfeiture under

the statute on that ground alone.

In United States v. 251 Ladies' Dresses and One

1941 Ford Truck, 53 F. Supp. 772 (District Court

S. D. Texas, Brownsville Div., August 6, 1943), the

Court ordered forfeiture of the truck under seizure

on the sole groimds that it was ^^ being used in the

transportation of said merchandise from Laredo to El

Fronton Ranch at the time of seizure'' (p. 772) . It was

stipulated that later the goods were to be smuggled

into Mexico without a license. No discussion appeal's

in the opinion on the specific point but apparently all

parties assumed that the truck was subject to for-

feiture and that the truck, together with the ladies'

dresses, were forfeited, the Court's opinion concluding

as follows:

From what lias been said, it follows that the

two hundred and fifty-one (251) Ladies' i^ayon

^* Synthetic" Dresses and the truck in which

same were being trans])orted should liave been

seized and should now be forfeited in this suit

to the United States of America (p]). 774-775).
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In United States v. 267 Twenty Dollar Gold Pieces,

255 F. 217 (District Court, W. D. Wash., January

23, 1919) in considering separate libels for forfeiture

under the Espionage Act against one McLaughlin auto-

mobile and 267 Twenty Dollar Gold Pieces based on

the same set of facts, the Court and counsel made no

point at all that the automobile was not subject to for-

feiture under the Act, though this question was squarely

before the Court since a separate libel was filed against

the automobile. The allegation against the automobile

in support of its forfeiture was that by the use of said

automobile claimant ^^did wilfully and feloniously at-

tempt to export out of the United States at the port

of Blaine, Washington, into the Province of British

Colombia, gold pieces, coin of the United States, with-

out having first made application to a Federal Reserve

Bank in violation of the Espionage Act" (p. 218).

Exceptions filed on other grounds were sustained.

See also forfeiture decree (App. C. p. 63 this brief)

entered Jan. 27, 1919 in District Court for Arizona

in United States v. One Vim Auto-Truck (unreported).

This case was not called to the attention of the Dis-

trict Court.

In addition during the last four years decrees of

forfeiture have been entered by various district courts

against automobiles on the sole ground that they were

being used in carrying out of the country commodities

the exportation of which was unlawful. The following

list will identify 17 such specific cases in various

district courts which are unreported and wherein

decrees of forfeiture of the automobile or truck con-

taining illegal exjjorts have been entered where the
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violations were similar to that involved in this case.

This is not an exhaustive list.

1. United States v. 11 Rohbins AutomohUe Tire

Tubes, One Cadillac Sedan, et al. Civil No.

547. Southern District of California. May 7,

1945.

2. United States v. One 10 Plj) Goodrich Silvertown

Tire, One 1936 Ford Sedan, etc. Civil No. 250,

Tucson. District of Arizona. November 6,

1944.

3. United States v. 10 Cases of Ai^senate of Lead

ayid One Chevrolet Truck. Civil No. 204.

Western District of Texas, El Paso Division.

December 5, 1942.

4. Ujiited States v. One Chevrolet Sedan and 65

Used Rubber Tires. Civil No. 328. Southern

District of Texas, Brownsville Division. May
19, 1945.

5. Ufiited States v. One Diamond ''T" Truck and

One Lot of Ammunition. Civil No. 305.

Southern District of Texas, Brownsville Divi-

sion. May 19, 1945.

6. United States v. One 1936 Dodge Sedan and 7

Used Tires. Civil No. 310. Southern District

of Texas, Brownsville Division. May 19, 1945.

7. United States v. 0}ie Lot of Ammunition and One

Chevrolet Sedan. Civil No. 304. Southern Dis-

trict of Texas, Brownsville Division, ^lay 19,

1945.

8. United States v. One Truck and One Lot of Mis-

cellaneous Mercha)idise. Civil No. 314. South-

ern District of Texas, Brownsville Division.

May 19, 1945.
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9. United States v. One Hundred Gross Buttons arid

One Pontiac Coupe Automobile. Civil No. 20.

Western District of Texas, Del Rio Division.

November 30, 1943.

10. United States v. One Lot of Automobile Parts

and One 1936 Ford Coupe. Civil No. 147.

Southern District of Texas, Laredo Division,

March 4, 1944.

11. United States v. One Lot of Automobile Parts

and One 1930 Ford Roadster. Civil No. 146.

Southern District of Texas, Laredo Division.

March 4, 1944.

12. United States v. One Ford Coupe Automobile and

One Lot of Automobile Parts. Civil No. 130.

Southern District of Texas, Laredo Division.

April 13, 1944.

13. United States v. One Chevrolet Pick-up Truck

and Certain Electrical Equipment and Wearing

Apparel. Civil No. 135. Southern District of

Texas, Laredo Division. March 4, 1944.

14. United States v. One Plymouth Automobile and

Fourteen Rolls Copper-Coated Steel Tubing.

Civil No. 124. Southern District of Texas,

Laredo Division. June 9, 1944.

15. Uyiited States v. One Plymouth Sedan. Civil No.

343. Western District of Texas, El Paso Divi-

sion, June 19, 1944.

16. United States v. 18 gallons of Flavored Syrup and

One 1935 Ford Truck. Civil No. 213.' South-

ern District of Texas, Brownsville Division.

June 18, 1943.

17. United States v. One Case of Lard, 32 pieces of

Silverware and One Chevrolet Truck. Civil
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No. 205. Western District of Texas, El Paso

Division. December 5, 1942.

Here are a number of judicial indications that the

automobile carrying the illegal exports is to be for-

feited.

B. Administrative

A long standing administrative interpretation sup-

ports the interpretation that the vehicle is subject

to forfeiture. This administrative interpretation is

evidenced by the fact already referred to above that

in 1919 libel of forfeiture was filed against the auto-

mobile carrying the illegal export in the case just

discussed, United States v. 267 Twenty Dollar Gold

Pieces, 255 F. 217 (District Court, W. D. Wash.,

January 23, 1919). The court there was considering

a libel for forfeiture under the Espionage Act against

one McLaughlin automobile and also a libel for for-

feiture of 267 Twenty Dollar Gold Piece. As al-

ready has been pointed out the only allegation asserted

against the automobile in support of its forfeiture was

that hy the use of said automobile claimant ^Mid wil-

fully and feloniously attempt to export * * * gQ\^

pieces, etc.'' (Opinion, p. 218.) See also decree of

forfeiture against the automobile entered Jan. 27,

1919 in District Court for Arizona, U. S. v. One Vim
Auto-Truck, p. 63 this brief, App. C.

Since the statute provides that the libel proceed-

ings shall be instituted *^upon direction of the At-

torney General," 45 Stat. 1423-4, 22 U. S. C. §404,

the cases just referred to are direct evidence of the

fact that the administrative inter2)retation of the
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statute in the years shortly after its passage in 1917

was that the vehicle was subject to ferfeiture.

Also the administrative interpretation is directly

evidenced by the opinion in United States v. 251

Ladies Dresses and One 1941 Ford Truck, 53 F. Supp.

772 (S. D. Texas, Brownsville Div., Aug. 6, 1943)

discussed above where the truck under seizure was

^^being used in the transportation of said merchandise

from Laredo to El Fronton Ranch at the time of

seizure'' (p. 773). Here again the libel presumably

was filed in accordance with the statutory require-

ment ^^upon direction of the Attorney General.'' 22

TJ. S. C. § 404. Incidentally it was the Attorney Gen-

eral who drafted the Espionage Act of 1917 and had

the President submit it to Congress (see vols. 54 and

55, Congressional Record)

.

Again after the Export Control Law of 1940 became

the occasion of numerous forfeitures incurred under

Title VI of the Espionage Act it is clear that the ex-

ecutive interpretation of the Espionage Act was that

the vehicle containing the unlawful commodities was

subject to forfeiture proceedings, as is evidenced by the

large number of forfeiture libels and decrees against

automobiles containing illegal commodities which have

been filed in the last four years under Title VI of the

Espionage Act of 1917, as listed above under subpoint

A, this point (pp. 33-36 inch). These libels also

were not to be filed except *^upon direction of the

Attorney General."

Such long standing administrative interpretation is

evidence of the proper interpretation of the statute.
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The Supreme Court of the United States stated the

rule as follows in Edward's Lessee v. Darhy, 25 U. S.

(12 Wheaton) 206:

In the construction of a doubtful and am-
biguous law, the contemporaneous construction

of those w^ho were called upon to act under the

law, and were appointed to carry its provisions

into effect, is entitled to very great respect (p.

210).

The rule as stated by Sutherland on Statutory Con-

struction (3rd Ed.—Horack) is as follows:

Long-continued contemporaneous and prac-

tical interpretation of a statute by the execu-

tive officers charged with its administration and

enforcement, the courts, and the public consti-

tutes an invaluable aid in determining the

meaning of a doubtful statute '^ (Section 5103,

Vol. 2, p. 512).

See also United States v. Hill, 120 U. S. 169.

C. Legislative

Congress passed two statutes popularly knoA\Ti as

the Neutrality Act of 1935, and the Neutrality Act of

1937, in each of which it apparently assumed that the

vehicle was subject to forfeiture by reason of Title VI
of the Es})ionage Act of 1917. The arms and vehicles

containing them were made subject to Title VI of the

Espionage Act, and the language used implies that

forfeiture of the vehicle by reason of Title VI was

assumed by Congress.

The 1935 Act, Senate Joint Resolution No. 173, ap-

proved August 31, 1935, Chapter 837, 49 Stat. 1081,

full text of Section 1 of which is set forth in Appen-

dix B, p. 58 this brief, i)rovided in part as follows:
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Whoever, in violation of any of the provi-

sions of this section, shall export, or attempt to

export, or cause to be exported, arms, ammuni-

tion, or implements of war from the United

States, or any of its possessions, shall be fined

not more than $10,000 or imprisoned not more

than five years, or both, and the property, ves-

sel, or vehicle containing the same shall be sub-

ject to the provisions of section 1 to 8 inclusive,

title 6, chapter 30 of the Act approved June 15,

1917 (40 Stat. 223-225; U. S. C, Title 22, sees.

238-245).

In the case of the forfeiture of any arms, am-

munition, or implements of war iy reason of a

violation of this Act, no public or private sale

shall be required; but such arms, ammunition,

or implements of war shall be delivered to the

Secretary of War for such use or disposal

thereof as shall be approved by the President

of the United States (49 Stat. 1081).^ [Italics

by counsel.]

Analysis of the language used indicates that the

Congress when it passed this Act believed that the

vessels or vehicles containing the prohibited commod-

ities are subject to forfeiture imder the 1917 Act. The

second paragraph by the use of the words ^4n the case

of^' indicates two categories of forfeiture under the

previous paragraph:

1. Of arms, ammunition or implements of war, and

2. The vessel or vehicle containing the same.

It provides in the case of forfeiture of the first cate-

gory for delivery to the War Department. Since this

^ Repealed by House Joint Res. 306, approved Nov. 4, 1939,

chapter '2, Section 19, 54 Stat. 12.
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particular statute covers only arms, ammunition or

implements of war, the second paragraph need only

have read ^^any propei^ty (or article) forfeited by

reason of a violation of this Act shall be delivered to

the Secretary of War" unless it envisaged forfeiture

also of the vehicle containing the forbidden expoi'ts by

the provision that they shall be subject to Title VI of

the Espionage Act of 1917.

Similarly the Act of 1937, Senate Joint Resolution

51, approved May 1, 1937, Chapter 146, 50 Stat. 121,

full text of section 1 of which appears in Appendix B,

p. 60 this brief, provides in part as follows:

(e) Whoever, in violation of any of the pro-

visions of this Act shall export, or attempt to

export, or cause to be exported, arms, amnumi-
tion, or implements of war from the United

States shall be fined not more than $10,000, or

imprisoned not more than five years or both,

and the property, vessel, or vehicle containing

the same shall be subject to the provisions of

sections 1 to 8, inclusive, title 6, chapter 30, of

the Act approved June 15, 1917 (40 Stat.

223-225; U. S. C. 1934 ed., title 22 sees,

238-245).

(f) In the case of the forfeiture of any arms,

amninnition, or implements of war hy reason of

a violation of this Act, no public or private

sale shall be required; but such arms, anununi-

tion, or implements of war shall be delivered to

the Secretary of War for such use or disposal

thereof as shall be approved by the President
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of the United States (50 Stat. 122^). [Italics

by counsel.]

Here again Congress indicated its belief that for-

feiture of the vehicle containing the forbidden articles

is provided under Title VI of the Espionage Act by-

specifying in subsection (f) that **In the case of the

forfeiture of any arms, ammunition or implements of

war by reason of a violation of this act, * * *

such arms, ammunitions or implements of war shall

be delivered * ^ *." This language seems clearly

to imply other forfeitures were available under the

Neutrality Act by reason of their being made subject

to Title VI of the Espionage Act of 1917. Such other

forfeitures under the language of this Neutrality Act

could only be the vehicle containing the arms, etc.

And as to such vehicle, subsection (e) supra provides

only that it ^^ shall be subject to Sections 1 to 8, inclu-

sive. Title 6," Espionage Act of 1917.

As has been demonstrated in Point III of this brief

there would be no point in providing that the ve-

hicles should be subject to Title VI of the Espionage

Act if the only purpose was to authorize their seizure

and detention, as such provision would be unnecessary

and serve no useful purpose.

It thus appears that ever since the passage of the

Act of 1917 the executive, legislative, and judicial

branches have assumed that the automobile containing

* Repealed by House Joint Res. 306, approved Nov. 4, 1939,

Chapter 2, Section 19, 54 Stat. 12.
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the articles, as well as the forbidden articles, is sub-

ject to forfeiture.

PoiXT V

This is a remedial statute. It was drafted during our neutral-

ity crisis and passed in wartime to be applicable to wartime

violations, as well as to other emergency situations such as

neutrality crises. Rule of strict construction inapplicable

The rule of strict construction does not require af-

firmance of the lower court's judgment.

The Espionage Act became law on June 15, 1917.

Title VI of the Act was reported to the 64th Congress

as Senate No. 6811, Feb. 8, 1917 (54 Cong. Rec. 2819).

The Act declaring war with Germany was approved

April 6, 1917 (40 Stat. 1).

A. Strict construction not required

This court stated in United States v. Monstad, et al.,

134 F. 2d 986

:

Strictness of construction should not defeat

the real objective of the statute (p. 988).

In that case the question was w^hether or not a

penalty provision was applicable to tishing and

gambling barges anchored off the California coast

within the meaning of the statute forbidding the

navigating of seagoing barges without a certificate of

inspection from the Government steamboat ins])ectors.

In discussing the very section of the Espionage Act

now under consideration, the 4ih C. C. A. in the case

of United States v. 21 Ihs. 8 ozs. Platinuiu, 147 F. (2d)

78 declined to aj)ply the rule of strict interpretation

(at p. 83) ill the following language:
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We think that a literal interpretation of the

statute is not permissible, for it leads to a
result that Congress could not have intended.

Under a literal interpretation a warrant for

detention could never be issued and a con-

demnation of forfeiture could never be decreed.

* * * * ^

Furthermore, a forfeiture could not be had
under a literal construction because the issuance

of the warrant is the first step to be taken in a
proceeding for condemnation, and § 402 says

that if the judge refuses the warrant, the prop-

erty shall be forthwith restored to the owner.

We must look therefore for a more reason-

able interpretation, * * *

* * * * *

There is no legal difficulty in giving this

meaning to the statute for it is established that

a thing may be within the letter of the statute

and yet not within the statute because not

within the spirit or legislative intent. ^*The

reason of the law in such cases should prevail

over its letter ''. Holy Trinity Church v. United

States, 143 U. S. 457 ; State of Maine v. United

States, D. C Me., 45 F. Supp. 35, aff., 134 F.

2d 574; Ufiited States v. Monstad, 9 Cir., 134

F. 2d 986.

Moreover, it is well established that ^^ statutes

to prevent frauds upon the revenue are con-

sidered as enacted for the public good and to

suppress a public wrong, and, therefore, al-

though they impose penalties or forfeitures,

not "to be construed, like penal laws generally,

strictly in favor of the defendant ; but they are
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to be fairly and reasonably construed so as to

carry out the intention of the legislature."

United States v. Stoivell, 133 U. S. 1, 12. See

also, Johnson v. Southern Pacific Co., 196 U. S.

1, 17; United States v. A. Graf Distilling Co.,

208 U. S. 199, 205-6; United States v. Ryan,
284 U. S. 167, 172. For like reasons, the Es-

pionage Act of June 15, 1917, which was en-

acted for equally important public purposes,

should be construed in a fair and reasonable

manner (pp. 83-84).

B. National Defense and Wartime Legislation

In any case, where legislation is enacted for ex-

pedition of the national defense, the rule of strict con-

struction of penal or forfeiture statutes should fall

beneath the compelling necessities of a nation pre-

paring for, or actually at, war. Sutherland on Statu-

tory Construction (3rd Edition—Horack—1943), Sec-

tion 7216, pp. 446-7 states

:

It is imperative that legislation providing

for national defense and the prosecution of war
shall be liberally construed to accomplish its

important objectives.

^ « » « »

In time of war criminal statutes pertain-

ing to national defense and the unimpaired

conduct of the war should not be given the

strict construction which is ordinarily ap])lied

to penal statutes; and it has not been uncom-

mon for the courts to recognize that a statute

may have a different meaning in time of war
than it does have in time of peace.
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It has also been held that statutes for the preven-

tion of fraud, for the suppression of a probable wrong,

or to effect a public good are not in a strict sense

penal, although they impose a penalty. Taylor v.

United States, 44 U. S. (3 Howard) 197, 210. In that

case the Court's language is revealing:

The judge was therefore strictly accurate,

when he stated that ^^It must not be understood

that every law which imposes a penalty is,

therefore, legally speaking, a penal law, that is,

a law which is to be construed with great

strictness in favor of the defendant. Laws
enacted for the prevention of fraud, for the

suppression of a public w^rong, or to effect a

public good, are not, in the strict sense, penal

acts, although they may inflict a penalty for

violating them." And he added, *^It is in this

light I view the revenue laws, and I w^ould

construe them so as most effectually to ac-

complish the intention of the legislature in

passing them.'' The same distinction will be

found recognized in the elementary writers,

as, for example, in Blackstone's Commentaries

(1 Black. Comm., 88), and Bacon's Abridg-

ment (statute I 7, 8), an^ Comyns' Digest

(Parliament R. 13, R. 19, R. 20), and it is also

abundantly supported by the authorities (p.

210-211).

C. The policy and spirit of the law indicates the vehicle should be subject

to forfeiture

The legislative history of the Espionage Act of 1917

in the 64th and 65th Congresses, shows that Congress
664599—45 4
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intended to fortify the Government with strong eco-

nomic as well as political weapons in time of war and

emergencies such as the neutrality crisis preceding

our entry into the war. While there is no clear ex-

pression in the debates and reports as to the precise

point here involved, the policy in enforcement statutes

of forfeiting vehicles or vessels used for the com-

mission of illegal acts is well established. There

are cogent reasons for the application of the same

policy where vital war or defense materials may make

their w^ay out of this country and possibly into un-

friendly hands, or where our political policy of neu-

trality or aid to a belligerent might be indirectly

compromised by such forbidden exports.

The reasons why forfeiture of the vehicle carrying

the illegal commodity is recognized to be an important

enforcement adjunct in statutes involving importation,

exportation and transportation are several. The real

culprits involved are hard to catch. They work

through ^^ fences,'' so that the real operators are not

present at the time of the seizure. Frequently they

are not resident in the United States and hence can-

not be apprehended noi* investigated readily. The ve-

hicle used always appears to belong to someone other

than those actually caught in the act. Frequently the

commodities seized at the time of the discovery are not

of large value although they constitute only one por-

tion of a continuing scheme of exportation or importa-

tion in small quantities. The subterfuge appearing in

the instant case is a typical example. Some of the

food was in biead cartons covered up with bread and
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some was labeled ^^ apples" and was so declared. Ac-

tually it consisted of canned milk, grapefruit and

lemons, the exportation of which was unlawful. It

can well be imagined that many similar attempt by

this or other groups are likely to be successful be-

cause undiscovered. The relatively large amount of

smuggling which is attempted at the Mexican border

might well be considered a matter of judicial notice.

It is illustrated by the large number of cases similar

to the one here involved which have arisen in the

Texas districts. (See list of only a fraction pp. 33-36

this brief.) An example of the type of operation

engaged in on the Mexican border is set forth in detail

in the opinion in the United States v. 251 Ladies

Dresses^ 53 Fed Supp. 772, an excerpt of which is set

out below in footnote.^

^ "It is agreed that at the time that Claimant Fortunate

Ramirez purchased said dresses in Laredo, they were intended to

be exported to Mexico.

"It is agreed that at the time the dresses were seized by the

officers, the same were being transported from Laredo, in Webb
County, Texas, to El Fronton Ranch, in Starr County, where the

claimant resides, and the goods were to be taken to his home, to

be stored, to be later taken from said El Fronton Ranch to Mon-
terrey, Mexico, and that the goods were seized at or about one

o'clock p. m. on a road leading from the highway from Roma to

Laredo to the El Fronton. Ranch and a short distance from the

claimant's home.

"It is agreed that claimant Rafael Ramirez is the owner of the

truck sought to be forfeited and that such truck was being used in

the transportation of said merchandise from Laredo to El Fronton

Ranch at the time of seizure.

"The foregoing stipulation is hereby entered into by and be-

tween the attorneys of record for the United States of America
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Other typical examples of violations encoimtered on

the Mexican border are set forth in the same voliune

in the consolidated cases of the TJyiited States v. 8

automobiles, United States v. 2 automobiles, and United

States V. 4 automohiles, 53 Fed. Supp. 775, and in

United States v. 7 cartons of wearing apparel, 53

Fed. Supp. 777.

Under these circumstances forfeiture of the goods

which are seized at the time of discovery is frequently

ineffectual to punish those really responsible. Fre-

quently they either cannot be apprehended or proof of

their complicity is difficult. We conclude therefore

the policy of forfeiture of the vehicles containing the

illegal merchandise is neither mmecessary or un-

reasonable and that Congress properly intended such

forfeiture.

and for the claimants in said Civil Action, and that such stipula-

tion may be filed in said action in the trial of this cause by either

party.

"In addition, the evidence shows

:

"(b) That there was an understanding or agreement between

Rafael Ramirez, the owner of the truck, and Fortunato Ramirez,

the owner of the dresses, that the dresses would be trans])orted

from Laredo, Texas, to the home of Fortunato Ramirez or Rafael

Ramirez, or other suitable place, in Texas, but near the border

(Rio Grande) between the United States and Mexico, and then

smu<r<rh'd into Mexico, i. e., taken out of the United States witliout

declarin«[i: same and without a license or other permit and in viola-

tion of the Laws and Executive Regulations of the United States.

"Also it was shown that at the time the dresses were seized, tliey

were in such truck and Fortunato Ramirez and Rafael Ramirez

were then and there attemj)tin<i: to carry out, and in the act of

carry iuu: out, such arranircmcMit and afrreemont." United States

v. 26J Ladles Dresses^ 5'J Fed. Supp. 772-3.
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CONCLUSION

The District Court erred in holding that Title VI
of the Espionage Act of 1917 does not authorize for-

feiture of a vehicle containing articles about to be un-

lawfully exported and in ordering restoration of the

Plymouth truck under seizure herein to claimant ; and

the court's judgment restoring the vehicle to claimant

should be reversed with appropriate provisions for

its forfeiture to the United States.

Frank E. Flynn,
United States Attorney,

John P. Dougherty,

Assistant United States Attorney.

Allan B. Lutz,

Attorney, Department of Justice,

Proctors for the United States.



APPENDIX A

APPLICATION FOR AVARRANT FOR FUR-
THER DETENTION

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona

No. Civil—245—Tucson

United States of America, libelant

V.

7 Boxes Lemons, 307 lbs. gross, 2 Boxes Grapefruit,

92 LBS. GROSS, 10 Cases Canned Milk, 48 cans ea.,

14% OZ. NET WEIGHT EACH, *^Pet" AND *' CARNA-

TION " Brands, and One Truck, 1940 Pick-up,

Motor No. T-105-2887, Plymouth Model PT105,

Sr. 9209823, respondents

affidavit for warrant of detention of seized

property

[Filed June 7, 1944]

United States of America,

District of Arizona:

William H. Shane, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says: Tliat he is a Customs Inspector stationed

at Nogales, Arizona; that he was so engaged on June

3, 1944; that since tliat day he has been on duty in

such official cai)acity at Nogales, Arizona ; that on

June 3, 1944, Roberto Sanchez Cuevas and Alfredo

(50)
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Grijalva, truck drivers for Miguel Morachis of No-

gales, Arizona, arrived at the Customs Inspection Sta-

tion and presented two export declarations to support

the exportation of three crates, 210 pounds, celery,

two boxes, 70 pounds, sweet potatoes, twenty boxes,

540 pounds bread, and ten boxes, 480 pounds, of

apples. A license from the Board of Economic War-
fare was required for the apples, which they pre-

sented. Upon examination of the load of merchan-

dise Inspector William H. Shane found that the boxes

labeled apples contained grapefruit and lemons; fur-

ther examination of the load disclosed that five of the

twenty boxes labeled bread, contained canned milk.

Carnation and Pet Brands. The truck drivers ad-

mitted that it was a deliberate attempt to smuggle

the merchandise and that they had been so instructed

by their immediate superior, Rudolfo Tapia Montano,

shipping clerk and secretary for Miguel Morachis.

Rudolfo Tapia Montano stated that they had endeav-

ored to smuggle the fruit and canned milk because

they had no license to export same; that on June 3,

1944, the truck, grapefruit, lemons, and the canned

milk were seized, detained, and remain in the custody

of the Collector of Customs, United States Customs

District No. 26, Nogales, Arizona, because said mer-

chandise was being exported in said truck in violation

of the Export Control Regulations and as provided in

Section 401, Title 22, U. S. C. A., pursuant to order

of the Foreign Economic Administration, dated Jan-
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uary 10, 1944, issued under the act of July 2, 1940,

as amended June 30, 1942, 50 U. S. C. 701.

*

W. H. Shane.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 6th dav of
%/

Jmie 1944.

E. K. Cu:^iMixG.

[Seal of

E. K. Gumming,
United States

Commissioner,

District of Arizona]

WARRANT FOR FURTHER DETENTION

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona

No. Civil-245-Tucson

United States of America, libelant

V.

7 Boxes Lemons, 307 Lbs. Gross ; 2 Boxes Grapefruit,

92 Lbs. Gross ; 10 Cases Canned Milk, 48 Cans Ea.,

14% Oz. Net Weight Each^ '*Pet'^ and ^^Carna-

tion'' Brands; and One Truck, 1940 Pick-Up,
Motor No. T-105-2887, Plymouth Model PT105,
Sr. 9209823, respondents

warrant for detention of seized property

Wliereas, an Affidavit liaving been filed alleging

that the above-named articles in the title hereof were
seized by William H. Shane, (^iistoms Ins])eetor at

Nogales, Arizona, and that said articles were being,

and intended to be ex])orted, shi|)j)ed from and taken

out of the United States of America and into the Re-
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public of Mexico in violation of law, and without ob-

taining the necessary license to export the same, and
Whereas, a motion has been made by the United

States District Attorney for the District of Arizona

for the issuance of a warrant upon said Affidavit,

NoAV, THEREFORE, I Albert M. Sames, Judge of the

District Court of the United States for the District

of Arizona, by this my warrant, authorize and em-

power that said articles above-described be detained

by said seizing officer until the President of the United

States orders the same to be restored to the owner
or claimant, or until the same are discharged in due

course of law on petition of the claimant or on trial

of condemnation proceedings as provided in 22 USCA
401-408.

Given under my hand this 7th day of June 1944.

Albert M. Sames,

Judge, U, S. District Court for

the District of Arizona.

LIBEL

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona

No. Civil-245-Tucson

United States of America, libelant

V.

Seven Boxes Lemons, 307 Lbs. Gross ; 2 Boxes Grape-

fruit, 92 Lbs. Gross; 10 Cases Canned Milk, 48

Cans Ea., 14y2 Oz. Net Weight Each ''Pet" and

''Carnation'' Brands, and One Truck, 1940 Pick-

up, Motor No. T-105-2887, Plymouth Model

PT105, Sr. 9209823, respondents
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IXFORMATIOX OF LIBEL

(For the forfeiture and condemnation of goods

sought to be exported in viol. 50 U. S. C. 701, U. S. A.

a party, Federal question.)

(Filed 6-10-44)

To the Honorable Albert M. Sames, Judge of the

said court:

Now comes the United States of America by As-

sistant United States Attorney John P. Dougherty, its

attorney, and alleges on information and belief as

follows

:

I

That on or about the 3rd day of June 1944, at the

Port of Nogales, Arizona, 7 boxes Lemons, 307 lbs.

gross; 2 boxes Grapefruit, 92 lbs. gross; 10 cases

Canned Milk, 48 cans ea., 14yo oz. net weight each

^^Pet" and ^^ Carnation" brands, and One Truck,

1940 Pickup, Motor No. T-105-2887, Plymouth Model

PT105, Sr. 9209823, were attempted to be exported or

shipped from, or taken out of the United States of

America in violation of law, and with the intention

that said articles be exported, or shipped from, or

taken out of the United States of America, in viola-

tion of law.

II

That the said articles were not manifested, and no

expoit license foi- tlu^ said articles was presented to

the Collector of Customs.
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III

The exportation of said articles are prohibited by

the provisions of 50 U. S. C. 701, and Proclamations,

Executive Orders and Regulations issued pursuant to

said statute and supplements and amendments thereto.

IV

No export license had been issued for the exporta-

tion of said articles although licenses for the exporta-

tion of the same are required by the aforesaid Stat-

utes, Proclamations, Executive Orders and Regula-

tions.

V
That on or about the 3rd day of June 1944, the Col-

lector of Customs at Nogales, Arizona, pursuant to the

authority of 22 U. S. C. 238 and 402, seized and de-

tained the said articles and retained and still retains

possession thereof for further disposition as may be

provided by law.

VI

That thereafter, with due diligence and on or about

the 7th day of June 1944, said Collector of Customs
applied to the Honorable Judge of the United States

District Court for the District of Arizona, under 22

U. S. C. 239 and 402, for a warrant to justify the

further detention of such property; and on the 7th

day of June, 1944, the said Judge, having been satis-

fied that the seizure w^as justified, issued his warrant
accordingly, pursuant to the authority of 22 U. S. C.

239 and 402, and the said property has since been de-

tained by said Collector for disposition according to

law.
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VII

That more than thirty days have passed since the

seizure of said articles, and no owner or claimant has

filed a petition for restoration of the whole or any
part thereof.

VIII

That the Attorney General of the United IStates

has directed the United States Attorney for this Dis-

trict to institute a libel proceeding in this Court
against said articles, to forfeit and condemn said

articles to the United States of America, pursuant

to 22 USCA 241 and 404.

IX

That by reason of the premises and the same being

contraiy to the form of the statute or statutes of the

United States in such cases provided, and the Proc-

lamations, Executive Orders and Regulations issued

by authority of law, the said articles became and are

forfeited to the United States of America.

Wherefore, libelant prays that process in due form

of law be issued to enforce said forfeiture and con-

demnation against the aforesaid articles citing all

persons having or claiming any interest in the said

articles to appear upon the return day and show

cause why the condemnation and forfeiture should

not be decreed; and that the aforesaid articles be

condemned and forfeited to the United States of

America and be ordered disposed of as provided by
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law and that the libelant have such other and further

relief in the premises as the Court shall deem just.

F. E. Flynn
Uyiited States Attorney,

John P. Dougherty,
Assistant U, S, Attorney,

Attorjiey for Lihellant,

412 Federal Building, Tucson, Arizona,

United States of America,

District of Arizona, ss:

John P. Doughei-ty, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says that he is an Assistant United States At-

torney for the District of Arizona; that he has read

the foregoing libel of information and knows the

contents thereof, and that he believes the same to be

true in substance and in fact.

John P. Dougherty.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 10th day

of June 1944.

Jean E. Michael,

Deputy Clerk, U. S. District Court

for the District of Arizona,

I



APPENDIX B

NEUTRALITY ACT OF 1935—EXCERPT

On the 31st day of August 1935 there was approved

Senate Joint Resolution No. 173, Chapter 837, 74tli

Congress, 1st Session, 49 Stat. 1081, providing for the

prohibition of the export of arms, ammunition, and

implements of war to belligerent countries, etc. Sec-

tion 1 of that resolution provided in part as follows:

[Chapter 837]

JoiXT Resolution

Providing for the prohibition of the export of

arms, ammunition, and implements of war
to belligerent countries; the prohibition of

the transportation of arms, ammunition, and
implements of war by vessels of the United
States for the use of belligerent states; for

the registration and licensing of persons en-

gaged in the business of manufacturing, ex-

porting, or importing arms, anununition, or

implements of \yar; and restricting travel by
American citizens on belligerent ships during
war.

Resolved hy the Senate and House of Bepn-
sentatives of the United States of America in

Congress assembled, That upon the outbreak
or during the x^i'^gi'ess of war between, or

among, two or more foreign states, the Presi-

dent shall ])r()claim such tact, and it shall tluM'c-

after be unlawful to ex])()rt arms, ammunition,
or implements of war from any place in the

(58)
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United States, or possessions of the United
States to any port of such belligerent states, or
to any neutral port for transshipment to, or for

the use of, a belligerent country.

The President, by proclamation, shall def-

initely enumerate the arms, ammunition, or im-
plements of war, the export of which is pro-

hibited by this Act.

The President may, from time to time, by
proclamation, extend such embargo u])on the

export of arms, ammunition, or implements of

war to other states as and when they may
become involved in such war.
Whoever, in violation of any of the provi-

sions of this section, shall export, or attempt to

export, or cause to be exported, arms, ammuni-
tion, or implements of war from the United
States, or any of its possessions, shall be fined

not more than $10,000 or imprisoned not more
than five years, or both, and the property, ves-

sel, or vehicle containing the same shall be sub-

ject to the provisions of sections 1 to 8 in-

clusive, title 6, chapter 30, of the Act approved
June 15, 1917 (40 Stat. 223-225; U. S. C, title

22, sees. 238-245).
In the case of the forfeiture of any arms, am-

munition, or implements of war by reason of

a violation of this Act, no public or private sale

shall be required; but such arms, ammunition,
or imj^lements of war shall be delivered to the

Secretary of War for such use or disposal

thereof as shall be approved by the President

of the United States.

When in the judgment of the President the

conditions which have caused him to issue his

proclamation have ceased to exist he shall re-

voke the same and the provisions hereof shall

thereupon cease to apply.

Except with respect to prosecutions com-
mitted or forfeitures incurred prior to March 1,

1936, this section and all proclamations issued
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thereunder shall not be effective after Febru-
ary 29, 1936.

9e * * * *

(49 Stat. 1081—repealed by Act of Nov. 4, 1939,

Chapter 2, Section 9, 54 Stat. 12.)

NEUTRALITY ACT OF 1937—EXCERPT

On May 1, 1937, there was approved Senate Joint

Resolution 146, 75th Congress, 1st Session, Chapter

146, 50 Stat. 121, which provided in part as follows:

[Chapter 146]

Joint Resolution

To amend the joint resolution entitled ^'Joint

resolution providing for the prohibition of the

export of arms, ammunition, and implements
of war to belligerent countries; the prohibition

of the transportation of arms, ammunition, and
implements of w^ar by vessels of the United
State for the use of belligerent states; for the

registration and licensing of persons engaged
in the business of manufacturing, exporting, or

importing arms, nmnnmition, or imi)lements of

war; and restrictins; travel bv American citi-

zens on belligerent ships during war", ap])roved

August 31, 1935, as amended.
Resolved iy the Senate and House of liepre-

sentatives of the United States of America in

Congress assembled, That the joint resolution

entitled ^^Joint resolution providing for the

prohibition of the export of arms, amnumition,
and im])lements of war to belligerent countries;

the pi'ohibition of the trans])ortation of arms,
ammunition, and imj)lements of war by vessels

of the United States for the use of belligerent

states; for the registration and licensing of per-

sons engaged in the business of manufacturing,
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exporting, or importing arms, ammunition, or

implements of war; and restricting travel by
American citizens on belligerent ships during
war'', approved August 31, 1935, as amended,
is amended to read as follows

:

**EXPORT OF ARMS, AMMUNITION, AND IMPLE-
MENTS OF WAR

^* Section 1. (a) Whenever the President shall

find that there exists a state of war between, or

among, two or more foreign states, the Presi-

dent shall proclaim such fact, and it shall

thereafter be unlawful to export, or attempt to

export, or cause to be exported, arms, ammuni-
tion, or implements of war from any place

in the United States to any belligerent

state named in such proclamation, or to any
neutral state for transshipment to, or for the

use of, any such belligerent state.

*^(b) The President shall, from time to time,

by proclamation, extend such embargo upon the

export of arms, ammunition, or implements of

war to other states as and when they may be-

come involved in such war.
^^(c) Whenever the President shall find that

a state of civil strife exists in a foreign state

and that such civil strife is of a magnitude or

is being conducted under such conditions that

the export of arms, amriiunition, or implements
of war from the United States to such foreign

state would threaten or endanger the peace of

the United States, the President shall proclaim
such fact, and it shall thereafter be unlawful
to export, or attempt to export, or cause to be
exported, arms, ammunition, or implements of
war from any place in the United States to such
foreign state, or to any neutral state for trans-

shipment to, or for the" use of, such foreign

state.

^'(d) The President shall from time to time
by proclamation, definitely enumerate the arms,

664599—45 5
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ammunition, and implements of war, the export
of which is prohibited by this section. The
arms, ammunition, and implements of war so

enumerated shall include those enumerated in

the President's proclamation Numbered 2163, of

April 10, 1936, but shall not include raw mate-
rials or any other articles or materials not of

the same general character as those enumerated
in the said proclamation, and in the Convention
for the Supervision of the International Trade
in Arms and Ammunition and in Im])lements of

War, signed at Geneva June 17, 1925.

^^(e) Whoever, in violation of any of the

provisions of this Act shall export, or attempt to

export, or cause to be exported, arms, ammuni-
tion, or implements of war from the United
States shall be fined not more than $10,000,

or imprisoned not more than five years oi* both,

and the property, vessel, or vehicle containing

the same shall be subject to the provisions of

sections 1 to 8, inclusive, title 6, chapter 30, of

the Act approved June 15, 1917 (40 Stat. 223-

225; U. S. C. 1934 ed., title 22, sees. 238-245).

**(f) In the case of the forfeiture of any
arms, ammunition, or implements of war by
reason of a violation of this Act, no public or

private sale shall be required; but such arms,
ammunition, or implements of war shall be de-

livered to the Secretary of War for such use
or disposal thereof as shall be approved by the

President of the United States.

*^(g) Whenever, in the judgment of the

President, the conditions which have caused
him to issue any proclamation under the author-

ity of this section shall thereu])on cease to a])-

ply with respect to the state or states named in

such ])roclamation, exce])t with respect to of-

fenses committed, or forfeitures incurred, prior

to such revocation."

(50 Stat. 121—repealed by Act of Nov. 4, 1939,

Chapter 2, Section 9, 54 Stat. 12.)



APPENDIX C

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona

Decree: Case No. T-145

United States of America

V,

One Vim Auto-Truck, Bearing Arizona 1918

License No. 13919

On this day here again comes C. R. McPall, Assist-

ant United States Attorney for the said United States^

and also comes A. A. Worsley, Esquire, Attorney

for the claimant of the above mentioned property;

and it appearing to the Court that a motion for de-

cree upon the pleadings has been heretofore filed

in this case on behalf of the United States and same

has been set for hearing on this day; and the Court

having considered the said motion of the said United

States Attorney, for the said United States, for de-

cree upon pleadings filed herein, and having heard

arguments of both said Assistant United States At-

torney and A. A. Worsley, Esquire, attorney for

claimants herein, and being now fully advised con-

cerning the same, allows the same, and orders that a

decree of forfeiture be entered in this case, as prayed
for in the Information filed herein.

It is, therefore, ordered, adjudged and decreed that

the property heretofore seized by the Collector of

Customs for the District of Arizona, as described in

(63)
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said information, to-wit, One Vim auto-truck, bearing

Arizona license No. 13919, be and the same is hereby

condemned and forfeited to the United States for the

reason and causes set forth in said Information, and
the said property is hereby adjudged and decreed to

be the property of the United States of America.

And it is further ordered, adjudged and decreed that

said property be sold by the United States Marshal

for the District of Arizona at public auction to the

highest bidder for cash, at some suitable public place

in the City of Nogales, in said District, to be selected

by said Marshal and that said Marshal give notice of

such sale as is provided by law and that place of sale,

together with the day and hour thereof, to be particu-

larly specified in said notice.

And it is further ordered, adjudged and decreed that

said Marshal do pay over the proceeds of said sale,

after deducting such costs and expenses as may be

authorized by law, to the Clerk of this Court.

And it is further ordered, adjudged and decreed that

all proper process do issue out of and under the seal

of this Court by the Clerk of this Court, directed to

said Marshal, commanding him to make sale of said

property and disposition of the proceeds thereof, as

herein adjudged.

Done in open court this 27th day of Jaimary 1919.

Wm. H. Sawtelle,

TJyiited States District Judge,

Endorsed

:

Filed Jan. 27, 1919.

MosE Drachman, Clerk,
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Copy

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona

United States of America

V.

One Vim Auto-Truck, Bearing Arizona 1918 License

No. 13919

WARRANT FOR DETENTION OF PROPERTY SEIZED FOR VIOLA-

TION OF ACT OF JUNE 15, 1917, AND ACT OF MARCH 3,

1893

Upon the Petition of George B. Mason, Special

Deputy Collector of Customs for the Port of Nogales,

District of Arizona, duly verified and heretofore filed

in this matter, and being satisfied that the seizure

made as set out in said Petition was and is justified

under the provisions of Title 6 of the Act of Congress

approved June 15, 1917, and entitled, ^^An Act To
punish acts of interference with the foreign relations,

the neutrality, and the foreign commerce of the United

States, to punish espionage, and better to enforce the

criminal laws of the United States, and for other

purposes;"

It is hereby ordered. That the property so seized

and described in said Petition, to-wit. One Vim Auto-

truck, bearing Arizona 1918 license number 13919,

shall be detained by the person making such seizure,

as set out in said Petition, to-wit, George B. Mason,

Special Deputy Collector of Customs for the Port of

Nogales, Arizona, until the President of the United

States orders said property to be restored to the

owner or claimant thereof, or until it is discharged

in due course of law, or is otherwise disposed of on
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trial of condemnation proceedings, if the same shall

hereafter be brought.

Dated at Tucson, Arizona, this 4th day of April

A. D. 1918.

Judge, District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona,

Tn the District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona

United States of America

V.

OxE Vim Auto-Truck, Bearing Arizona 1918 License

No. 13919

PETITION

To the Honorable William H. Sawtelle, Judge of the

District Court of the United States for the Dis-

trict of Arizona:

Comes now your Petitioner, Geo. B. Mason, Spe-

cial Deputy Collector of Customs for the Port of

Douglas, District of Arizona, and respectfully shows

to Your Honor, as follows

:

That on the 27th day of March A. D. 1918, at the

Port of Nogales, in the District of Arizona, your Peti-

tioner did seize and take into possession the following

described property, to-wit : One Vim Auto-tiiick, bear-

ing Arizona 1918 license nimiber 13919

;

Tliat your Petitioner has jn'obable cause to believe

that the above described ])ro])erty, seized as aforesaid,

contained certain merchandise, to-wit, four hundred

eighty cans of milk, which said merchandise was be-

ing exported and shipped from, and taken out, and
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intended to be exported and shipped from and taken

out of the United States, to and into the Republic of

Mexico, in violation of law, that is to say

:

That on the 27th day of March A. D. 1918, said

merchandise, to-wit, four hundred eighty cans of milk,

was being exported and shipped from and taken out,

and was intended to be exported and shipped from
and taken out of the United States, through the said

Port of Nogales, into the Republic of Mexico, without

license or permit from the War Trade Board, in vio-

lation of the Act of Congress approved Jime 15, 1917,

and the Proclamation of the President of the United

States dated February 14, 1917, promulgated under

and by authority of said Act

;

That the said merchandise was contained and trans-

ported in and by the said property so seized, to-wit,

One Vim Auto-Truck, bearing Arizona 1918 license

number 13919, and the the said Auto-Truck was, on

the aforesaid date, used by one Alberto Martinez, or

some other person, as a vehicle to contain and trans-

port, and export and ship from and take out, and to

attempt to export and ship from and take out of the

United States, through the said Port of Nogales, to

and into the Republic of Mexico, the aforesaid mer-

chandise, without license or permission so to do from

the War Trade Board, in violation of the aforesaid

Act of Congress and the said Proclamation of the

President promulgated under and by authority thereof.

And your Petitioner further states that the said

merchandise, to-wit, the said four hundred eighty

cans of milk, so contained and transported in and by

the said auto-truck, was being transported, shipped

from and taken out of the United States, to and into

the Republic of Mexico, through the said Port of

Nogales, Arizona, by the aforesaid Alberto Martinez,
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without the said Alberto Martinez delivering to the

customs officer at said Port of Nogales, Arizona, a

manifest thereof, as required by the Act of March 3,

1893.

Wherefore, your Petitioner prays that the said

property, to-wit—One Vim Auto-Truck, bearing Ari-

zona 1918 License number 13919, so seized as afore-

said, may be detained by your Petitioner until the

President of the United States orders it to be restored

to the owner or claimant thereof, or until it is dis-

charged in due course of law, or otherwise disposed

of on trial of condemnation proceedings, if the same
shall hereafter be brought, and for such other order

as may be necessary and proper in the premises.

Dated at Tucson, Arizona, this 3d day of April

A. D. 1918.

Geo. B. Mason,
Petitioner.

United States of America,

District of Arizona, ss,

George B. Mason, Special Deputy Collector of

Customs for the Port of Nogales, District of Arizona,

being first duly sworn, says that he has read the

above Petition and knows the contents thereof, and
that the same is true, according to the best of his

knowledge and belief.

[seal] Geo. B. Mason.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 3rd day of

April A. D. 1918.

Effie D. Botts,

Deputy Clerk, U. S. District Court.
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Endorsed

:

Law. No. 133 Tucson

In the District Court of the United States for the

of Arizona

V.

One Vim-Auto-Truck

Petition filed April 3rd, 1918.

MosE Drachman, Clerk.

By Effie D. Botts, Deputy.

In the District Court of the United States for

THE District of Arizona

May Term, A. D. 1918

United States of America

V.

One Vim-Auto-Truck Bearing Arizona 1918

License No. 13919

information

Be it remembered. That Thomas A. Flynn, United

States Attorney for the District of Arizona, who for

the said United States in this behalf prosecutes, comes

by John H. Martin, Assistant United States Attorney,

into the District Court of the United States for the

District of Arizona, on this the 26th day of June A. D.

1918, and for the said United States gives the Court

here to understand and be informed that on the 27th

day of March 1918, on land, at the Port of Nogales,
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in the collection and judicial District of Arizona,

Charles E. Hardy, then and there the Collector of

Customs for the District of Arizona, did seize certain

property, that is to say :

—

One Vim Auto-Truck, bearing Arizona License No.

13919, of the estimated value of Five Hundred Dollars

money of the United States of America.

Tliat the said Charles E. Hardy, Collector of Cus-

toms as aforesaid, now holds the said property in his

custody for the causes following, to wit:

(1) That prior to said seizure, to wit, on the 27th

day of March 1918, one Harry Left did fraudulently

and knowingly attempt to export, ship from, and take

out of the United States of America, to and into the

United States of Mexico, certain merchandise, to-wit,

four hundred and eighty cans of milk, and which said

four hundred and eighty cans of milk was being ex-

ported, shipped from; and taken out of, and intended

to be exported, shipped from and taken out of the

United States of America to and into the United

States of Mexico, contrary to law; that is to say,

without license or permit from the War Trade Board
as provided for by an Act of Congress approved

June 15, 1917, entitled ^^An Act to punish acts of

interference with the foreign relations, the neutrality

and the foreign commerce of the United States, to

punish espionage, and better to enforce the criminal

laws of the United States, and for other ])urposes"

and the Proclamation of the President of the United

States dated February 14, 1918, pronuilgated under

and by authority of said Act.

(2) And for that the said merchandise, to wit, the

said four hundred and eighty cans of milk was con-

tained and transpoi'ted in and by the property so

seized, to wit. One Vim Auto-Truck, bearing Arizona
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License, number 13919, and that the said Auto-Truck

was on the aforesaid date used by the said Harry Left,

or some other person, as a vehicle to contain and trans-

port, and export, ship from, and take out of, and in

attempting to export, ship from and take out of the

United States, through the said Port of Nogales, to

and into the United States of Mexico the aforesaid

merchandise without license or permission so to do

from the War Trade Board, in violation of the afore-

said Act of Congress, and the said Proclamation of the

President, promulgated under and by authority

thereof.

(3) And for that the said merchandise, to wit, the

said four hundred and eighty cans of milk, so con-

tained and transported in and by the said Auto-Truck

was being transported, shipped from and taken out of

the United States to and into the United States of

Mexico, without the said Harry Left or any other

person delivering to the Customs Officer at said Port

of Nogales, Arizona, a manifest thereof, as required

by the act of March 3, 1893, contrary to the form of

the statute in such case made and provided.

By reason of which said premises, and by force of

the statutes and Proclamation aforesaid, the said

property, to wit. One Vim Auto-Truck, bearing Ari-

zona 1918 License Number 13919 became and is for-

feited to the United States.

Wherefore^ the said United States Attorney, who
prosecutes as aforesaid, for the said United States,

prays that the said property, to wit, the said Vim
Auto-Truck, bearing Arizona 1918 License number
13919, be forfeited to the United States, and that due

process of law may be awarded in this behalf to en-

force such forfeiture of the said property so seized as

aforesaid, and to give notice to all persons concerned
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to appear on the return day of such process, and show
cause, if any they have, why such forfeiture shoifld not

be adjudged.

Thomas A. Flynn,
United States Attorney for the

District of Arizona.

JoHX H. Martin,

Assistant United States Attorney.

Endorsed

:

Filed June 26, 1918.

MosE Drachman, Clerh.

«. «OVEIINMEirr PRIR1in« OmCEt lt4S
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No. 11,007

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

United States of America,
Appellant,

vs.

One Plymouth Truck, 1940 Pickup,

Motor No. T-105-2887,

Respondeyit-Appellee,

and

Miguel Morachis,
Claimant-Appellee.

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEE.

JURISDICTION OF THE DISTRICT COURT.

The District Court had jurisdiction of this pro-

ceeding under Section 24 (9) of the Judicial Code as

amended (28 U. S. Code, Section 41 (9)) as this is a

suit or ])roceeding for the enforcement of forfeitures

incurred under the laws of the United States. (R. 2,

4, 10, 11, and 14.) The laws of the United States in-

volved are: Title VI of the Espionage Act of 1917, i.e.,

the Act of June 15, 1917, Chapter 30, 40 Stat. 223-225

as amended, 22 U. S. Code, Section 401-408 inc.; and



the Export Control Law of 1940 as amended, i.e.,

Section 6 of the War Powers Act of Julv 2, 1940,
» 7 7

Chapter 508 (54 Stat. 714), as amended by the Act of

June 30, 1942, Cha])ter 461 (5() Stat. 463), as further

amended by Act of July 1, 1944, Cliapter 360, 58 Stat.

671 ; 50 App. U.S.C. Sec. 701.

JURISDICTION OF THIS COURT.

This is an appeal fron) a tinal decision in the

District Court for tlie District of Arizona, and no

direct review may be had in the Supreme Court

under Section 238 of the Judical Code. (28 U.S.C. Sec.

345.) This Court therefore has jurisdiction of this

appeal under Section 128 of the Judicial Code (28

U.S.C. Sec. 225 (a)), as amended.

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT.

This is an appeal by the United States of America

from a judgment rendered January 27, 1945 by the

District Court of the United States for the District

of Arizona in which judgment the Court ordered that

one Plymouth truck be restored to Miguel Morachis,

the present claimant-appellee, said C(Mirt holding as a

conclusion of law that said truck was not about to be

ex])orted, shi})ped from, or taken out of the United

States into the Ke])ublic of Mexico in violation of

law, and further, that Title VI of the Espionage Act

of 1917 does not authorize forfeiture of the vehicle,



despite the fact that said vehicle contained articles

about to be unlawfully exported, but that said Espio-

nage Act only authorizes seizure and detention of the

vehicle so used. (R. 14.)

STATEMENT OF FACTS.

The facts are undisputed, and, concisely summa-

rized, are : That Rodolfo Ta])ia, an employee of Miguel

Morachis, in the absence of his employer (R. 13)

who was out of town at the time, attempted to use

Miguel Morachis' Plymouth truck to smuggle some

lemons, grapefruit, and canned milk to Mexico by

means of subterfuge and without a special license

from the Foreign Economic Administration. Said

truck and merchandise were promptly seized by the

Collector of Customs at the Port of Nogales, Arizona.

Within 30 days after said seizure a verified petition

w^as filed in the District Court of the United States

for the District of Arizona by Miguel Morachis claim-

ing that he was the owner of said Plymouth truck

and that said truck was not intended to be exported

from the United States of America to the Republic

of Mexico and requesting that said truck be restored

to him.

At the trial, it was developed that said truck was

registered under the laws of Arizona, w^as in constant

daily use between the border towns of Nogales,

Arizona and Nogales, Mexico for a period of about

two years prior to the date of seizure (R. 12) and that



said truck was used by Mo rack is at Xogales, Arizona

in his produce business. (R. 13.) Said truck had not

been driven by Morachis for about five months prior

to the seizure. The truck at the time of seizure was

being driven by Tapia. (R. 13.) Tapia, and other

employees of Moracliis, used said truck with the

intention of smuggling said ])roduce and canned milk

to Mexico. (R. 13.) Morachis was not a participant,

either as principal or accessory, directly or in-

directly, in the attempted smuggling. It is an un-

disputed fact that the truck itself was not being

attempted to be exj)orted to Mexico. The truck is

registered in Arizona and belongs to Morachis who

has his business and residence in the United States of

America. (R. 11; R. 12; R. 13.) Said District Court

ordered said truck restored to Morachis, and this ap-

peal followed.

QUESTION INVOLVED.

As the agreed facts, so far as they are matei'ial

to this appeal, are:

1. The articles (lemons, grapefruit and canned

milk) were attempted to be unlawfully ex]X)rted

to Mexico by Morachis' em])loyees without his

knowledge and consent;

2. Morachis' truck was the vehicle used f(^r the

attem])ted unlawful ox])()rtati()n of said articles:

3. The truck itself was not ])ei]ig ex])orted,

shipy)ed out of, or takcMi out of the United States

in violation of law;



the question before this Court is resolved into a

matter of law, e.g., whether or not Title VI of the

Espionage Act of 1917, 22 U.S.C. Sec. 401-408 inch,

authorizes forfeiture of Morachis' truck if it was used

by his employees to take out or attempt to take out

articles from the United States of America to Mexico

in violation of law.

The position of Miguel Morachis, the claimant ap-

ellee, is that the statute authorizing the forfeiture of

articles attempted to be exported contrary to law does

not forfeit the vehicles containing such articles. The

statute authorizes the seizure of such articles and the

seizure of the vehicle containing them, but its for-

feiture j)rovisions covers only the articles themselves

(in this case, the lemons, gi'apefruit, and canned

milk) ; its foreiture provisions does not extend to and

include the vehicle. Congress never intended that the

vehicles be forfeited; for the whole purpose of Con-

gress was to control ocean-going vessels and attempted

unlawful exports of articles in said vessels. The vessels

were to be seized and detained and not umiecessarily

delayed (hence the reason for the summary hearing

and admiralty procedure provided in the Act (22 U.

S.C., 403-405), and the articles, but not the vessels,

forfeited. Maritime traffic alone was considered by

Congress, unique border traffic in time of war was not

considered at all.



ARGUMENT.

POINT I.

THE STATUTE DOES NOT AUTHORIZE THE FORFEITURE OF
VEHICLES CONTAINING ARTICLES ATTEMPTED TO BE
EXPORTED CONTRARY TO LAW.

The correctness (^f a])])(^]lee's contention is made

manifest by a reading of the statute, 22 U.S.C. 401;

with its pertinent parts italicized, it is as follows:

''Whenever an attem])t is made to expoil oi*

ship from or takc^ out of the United States any

arms or munitions of war, or otlier articles, in

violation of law, or whenever there shall be known
or probable cause to believe that any such arms or

munitions of war, or other articles, are being or

are intended to be ex])orted, or shi])])ed from, or

taken out of the United States, in violation of

law, the several collectors, com]jtrollers of cus-

toms, surveyors, inspectors of customs, and mar-

shals, and deputy marshals of the United States,

and every other person duly authorized for the

pur})ose by the President, ))iay seize and detain

any articles or munitions of war ahont to be ex-

ported or shipped from, or takoi out of the

United States i)t violation of lair (uid the ves-

sels or vehicles co)itaining the same, and retain

])ossession thereof until released or dis])osed of

as directed in sections 402-408 of this title. //

u])oii due i]i(|uiry as provided in such sections

the />ro})erlt/ seized shall appear to liavr been

about fo be so loilawfallif exported, slnpped fro)n,

or tahen oat of tJic United States, the sa))}e shall

be forfeited lo I he Ignited States/'

It is clear that the statute^ does not ex])ressly for-

feit the vehicle containing \hv j)rescribed articles.



Such forfeiture can be read into the statute onlv

by imi)lication from the fact that it authorizes the

seizure of the vehicle and from the fact that at the

time the vehicle was about to be taken out of the

country it was the instrumentality for a violation of

law. This, however, would be contrary to all estab-

lished constructions of forfeiture statutes.

POINT II.

AS FORFEITURES ARE NOT FAVORED THEY SHOULD BE
ENFORCED ONLY WHEN WITHIN BOTH THE LETTER AND
SPIRIT OF THE LAW.

The general princij)les of constriction of forfeiture

statutes is expressed in 23 American Jurisprudence

601 as follows:

•^Statutes imposing forfeitures by way of jmn-

ishment are subject to the general rules govern-

ing the interpretation and construction of penal

statutes. Hence, statutes authorizing the forfeit-

ing of property ordinarily used for a legal pur-

pose are to be strictly construed, since they are

very drastic in their operation. It has been

pointed out, how^ever, that statutes to ])revent

fraud ui)on the revenue laws are considered as

enacted for the public good and to suppress a

public wrong and, therefore, although they im-

pose forfeitures, are not to be construed, like

penal laws generally, strictly in favor of the de-

fendant, but are to be construed fairly and reason-

ably, so as to (!arry out the intention of the legis-

latur(^ Tn accordance with the general principle

that tlu^ courts sc^lulouslv avoid a construction
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which is taiitainouiit to judicial legislation, the

courts will not force upon a forfeiture statute

a construction wliicli amounts to reading into the

law provisions not inserted therein by the legis-

lature.''

The revenue of the government is not involved in

the case and, therefore, the statute in question is to

be construed strictly in favor of the defendant. Never-

theless, even the more liberal mle of construction

would not enable a Court to find authority for the

forfeitui'e of the vehicle in the above quoted statute.

'^Forfeitures are odious, and to be declared only

when clearly im])osed by statute.'- Judge Bour-

quin in United States v. Two Glallons of Whisky,

et al., 213 Fed. 986.

'*A statute im])osing a forfeiture should be

strictly construed and in a manner as favorable

to the person whose ])ro])erty is to be seized as is

consistent with the fail* |)rinci])les of interpreta-

tion.'' Judge Sanford in United States v. One
Cadillac Eight Automobile, 255 Fed. 173.

United States v. One Model Ford V-8, 307 U. S.

219, 59 S. Ct. 861, recently laid down the rule for the

construction of forfeiture statutes as follows:

'*The point to be sought is the intent of the

lawmak'ing powers. Forfeitures ai'e not favored:

they should be enforced only when within both

letter and s])irit oT tlu^ law."

Counsel did not tind a case on j)oint involving the

war powers, but in U)-i'2 Chevrolet Automohile v.

State, 128 Pac. (2d) 448, the Court said:



"'The law does not favor forfeiture though
poUce powers may be involved, and statutes are

strictly construed to avoid them.'-

The intent of C'ongress not to forfeit vehicles

involved in cases under 22 U,S.(\ 401 is established

clearly by a comparision with other forfeiture statutes

of the United States. Such statutes found by counsel

in the United States Code are the following

:

Forfeiture of merchandise, baggage and vehicle

containing same for luilading or discharging mer-

chandise or baggage from vehicle without permit

of customs officer upon arri^nng in United States

from contiguous countrv. 19 USC 1459.

Forfeiture of merchandise and vehicle containing

same for failure to report or manifest merchan-

dise imported from contiguous country. 19 USC
1460.

Forfeiture of merchandise and container thereof

or closed vehicle containing same imported from

contiguous country for failure to oy)en container

or vehicle upon demand of customs officer. 19

USC 1462.

Forfeiture of vehicle and contents for failure

to deliver sealed vehicle to y)roper customs officers,

etc. 19 USC 1464.

Forfeiture of vehicle used in unlawful importa-

tion, transportation, etc. of merchandise into

United States. 19 USC 483.

Forfeiture of vehicle used to j)()ssess, conceal, or

transport contraband articles such as narcotic

drugs, firearms, counterfeit coins, etc. 49 USC
782.



10

Forfeiture of aircraft used in violation of customs

or public-health laws. 49 USC 181.

Forfeiture of goods, containers thereof, vessel or

other convevance containing- same for removal or

concealment of goods u])on which tax has been im-

posed with intent to defraud United States of

such tax. 26 r.SY' 3321.

Forfeiture of goods, etc. together with other per-

sonal ])ro]jerty (including vehicles) found in

building, yard or inclosure with such goods, etc.

for possession of such uoods, etc. for j^urpose of

sale or removal in fraud of internal revenue

laws. 26 USC 3720.

Forfeiture of intoxicating liquors involved in vio-

lation of Li(]uoT- Enforcement Act and vehicle

used in ti'ansporting same. 27 USC 224.

Forfeiture of liquor and conveyances thereof for

introduction of liquor into Indian Reservation.

25 USC 246, 247.

Forfeiture of package or ])arcel containing un-

lawfully concealed letters. 39 USC 499.

Forfeiture of halibut and vessel em])loyed there-

with for violation of Northern Pacific Halibut

Act. 16 USC 772.

Forfeiture of wliales and vessels involved in vio-

lation of The Whaling Treaty Act. 16 USC 909,

910.

Forfeiture of tobacco and boxes, barrels, machin-

ery, etc. for r(»moval oi' sah^ of tobacco without

giving bond required by law. 26 USC 2161.

The uniform practice of Congress in ex])ressly and

specifically forfeiting veliicles, vessels and containers
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used in eoimeetiou with tluvse various law violations is

significant as to tlie })ur|)ose and reason for the

silence of 22 USC 401 with respect to the forfeiture

of vessels and vehicles involved in its violation. Tt

indubitably means that Congress saw fit not to impose

the forfeiture of vessels and vehicles in cases arising

under this statute.

The obvious reason for this is that in 1917 the

truck was not in general use as we know of it today

while cheap oceanic traf^c had reached its maturity.

''Lusitania!" That was the torch of 1917! Although

the debates and reports of the 65th Congress, 1st

Session, Debates, House and (Conference Reports do

not help to clarify the precise point here, we would

have to disregard history, our Declaration of War,

our righteous anger over Prussian depredations on

the high seas not to realize that Congress in 1917

had its lance poised over the Atlantic.

Border crossing by trucks was not contemplated by

Congress.

It devolves as a consequence that Congress saw fit

not to impose the forfeiture of vessels and vehicles

under the statute as it would disrupt our ocean

commerce to forfeit an ocean liner worth millions of

dollars and a freighter worth hundreds of thousands

of dollars for an attempted ex])ortation of articles in

violation of law. The vessels and vehicles were to be

seized and detained for the purpose of search for

articles destined for unlawful exportation. (22 U.S.C.

401.) This control of vessels and vehicles is necessary;
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without it the statute is luigatoiy. But, if after sum-

mary hearing, the vessel or vehicle itself is not being

exported unlawfully, it is restored to its status quo

without delay. (22 U.S.C^ 403.) The intendment of

Congress is clear in this respect. (22 U.S.C. 401-408.)

POINT III.

ONLY EXPORTS AND ATTEMPTED EXPORTS OF ARTICLES. IN

VIOLATION OF LAW, ARE SOUGHT TO BE FORFEITED BY
CONGRESS.

The paramount inirpose of Congress, as manifested

by the text of 22 U.S.C. 401-408, is to restrict exports

in time of war. 22 U,S.(\ 401 ai)plies only when

attempts or intentions to export in violation of law

are demonstrated.

An exportation is ably defined in U.S. v. If ill, 34

Fed. (2d) 133, as follows:

''An ex])ortation is a severance of goods from

the mass of things belonging to this country with

the intention of uniting them to the mass of things

belonging to some foreign country. The shi])ment

of merchandise abroad with the intention of re-

turninfi the sanu to the Tnited States is not an

expoi'tation.
''

Applying this judical definition, do the facts in the

case at bar demonstrate an attem])ted ex])ortation or

an intent to export in violation of law i The libelant

did not i)roduce one scintilla of evidence^ whereby

res])ondent autoTno})ile was cvcm' attempted to be

severed from the mass of things belonging to the
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United States. To the contrary, it was shown without

dispute tliat the respondent automobile was alw^ays

taken out of the United States with the intention of

returning (daily border crossing), R. 12, Par. 11;

R. 13, Par. 14; and that the respondent automobile

always retained its American characteristics, e. g.,

American license plates and registration. (R. 12, Par.

11.)

POINT IV.

WAR STATUTES ARE CONSTRUED TO ACCOMPLISH THEIR
IMPORTANT OBJECTIVES, BUT STATUTES IN DEROGATION
OF PRIVATE PROPERTY, EVEN THOUGH THEY ARE WAR
STATUTES, ARE STRICTLY CONSTRUED, AND AN INTEN-
TION TO FORFEIT PRIVATE PROPERTY WILL NOT BE
RAISED BY INFERENCE.

Opposing counsel, by argument, wish to create a

statute to cover unique border conditions premised

upon a statute enacted to control maritime exi)orts.

This is contrary to all principles of law^, concisely pre-

sented in the Montesquieu theory of the division of

powers. The judicial power of government interprets

the law; the legislative power of government enacts

the law. Tt is within the province of Congress to en-

act a law to cover unique border traffic in time of

war, but up until such time as Congress chooses

to do so, we are bound to intei'pret the law as it is

not as we would wish it to be. The judicial branch

of government cannot create laws, it may only in-

terjjret them.

Our established jurisprudence upon the construction

of statutes is hereby briefly summarized:
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* i * * *
in the application of strict construction, the

courts refuse to enlarge oi' extend the law by

construction, intendment, ini])lication or infer-

ence, to matters not necessarilv, or unmistakably

implied, in order to .L;'ive the statute full operation.

These rules ]3revail even though the court thinks

that the legislature ought to have made the statute

more comprehensive/'

50 Am. Jnr., 407, 408.

""* * * an intention to confiscate private i)roperty

will not be raised by inference and construction

from ])rovisions of law which have ample field

for othei* operation in effecting a purpose clearly

indicated and declared. Similarly, no act of the

legislature is to be construed as infringing upon

the right of acquisition of property, unless its

language plainlji rnul rlcarh/ requires such a con-

struction.''

50 Aw. Jur,, 424.

**The rule of strict consti'ilction of penal statutes

generally reijuires that such statutes be con-

structed literally, or according to the letter.''

50 Am. Jur., 437.

k 4 * * A penal statute will not be construed to

include anything beyond its h^ttei', even though

it is witliin its spirit.''

50 .1)//. Jm., 441.

Tn discussing the very section of the Esj)ionage

Act now under consideration. Judge Neterer in Vnited

States V. 267 Gold Pieces and Automobile ^ 255 F(^d.

217, ap])lied the rule of strict inter])retation in the

following language:
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At page 219, Judge Neterer said:

''A statutory |)o\ver to divest the owner of title

to the property is here enacted, and T think the

mode of procedure prescribed by the act creating

tliis power is complete and must be strictly cov-

strtted, (italics supplied) and that tlie provisions

are mandatory as to the essence of the thing to

be done.''

This statement would indicate that the statute would

have been strictly construed had the point at bar been

raised.

At this point, counsel feels that it would be help-

ful to the Court to reach for 255 F. and open the

book at page 220.

The Court w^ill no doubt note that Judge Neterer

felt that the ^'spirit of the law is pregnant with

points of protection (for private property) as in-

dicated by the apt words used." The *^apt words''

which Congress used to restrict the statutory right

of the government in the ]:)roperty, are many, as

carefully noted by the learned Court, who stated,

u* * ^- the criminal liability of the offender

must not be confused with the statutory right of

the government in the property.
'

'

Judge Neterer further stated:

''Forfeiture by original seizure d(»i)ends entirely

upon the statute."

and at pcuje 221 Judge Neterer clearly indicated that

the statute, 22 U.S.C. 401,

''Instead of looking to the protection of the officer,

sections 2 and 4 bristle with provisions for the
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protection of private propertij (italics supplied)

and r(H]uire a s])eedy investigation of all facts

with relation to tlie seizure bv the officers * * *'

and Judge Neterer concluded, at page 2:21,

a* -X- * even if the Congi*ess could and had in-

tended to destroy a vested right, the limitations

would not have been i)rovided and" that it tvoiild

have done so in clear langiiac/e frov,i which there

is no escape/' (Italics su])plied.)

CONCLUSION.

It is therefore submitted that forfeiture of the truck

is not authorized by Title VT of the Espionage Act of

1917 ; for if Congress had intended that the vehicle

be forfeited it would '^have done so in clear language

from which there is no escape/' such as Congress has

already done in the other statutes cited.

It is further submitted that in all other similar cases

tried and heard before other tribunals or depart-

ments, that the point at issue was not raised; and,

consequently, these o])inions would not be persuasive

or hely)ful to this Court.

Wherefore, claimant-ay)pellee respectfully ])rays

that the respondent truck be* I'e-delivered and restored

to him as owner thereof, and that the Court's judg-

ment below to this effect be sustained.

Dated, Nogales, Arizona,

November 7, 1945.

Rl^FFO ESTnNOSA,

Aftoimey for daimant-Appellee

and Respondent-Appellee,
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In the light of the appellee's arguments, it appears

that a single basic question is presented by this appeal

:

Whether or not the plain language of the Espionage

Act of 1917, directing that the court shall decide

whether the property seized for violation of the Act



shall be condemned and forfeited to the United States

or shall be released and restored, is limited and re-

stricted in some way by the last sentence of Section 1,

which contains a special provision added in the course

of the consideration of the Act by Congress and pro-

viding for the forfeiture of property found merely to

appear to have been about to be unlawfully taken out

of the United States.

The contention of the United States is that Congress

in adding this special provision for the forfeiture of

property found to appear to have been about to be

unlawfully taken out did not intend to restrict the Act

but intended to leave unaffected the Act's general

provisions for condemnation and forfeiture of vehicles

or vessels seized as containing articles about to be

unlawfully taken out as w^ell as all other property

seized for violation of the Act. The contention of the

appellee, on the other hand, is that this added special

provision indicates an intention by Congress to restrict

the general language of the Act and confine forfeiture

to the single situation of articles appearing to be about

to be exported. In appellee's own language (Br. 5)

:

Congress never intended that the vehicles be for-

feited; for the wliole purpose of Congress was to

control ocean-going vessels and attempted unlaw-

ful exports of articles in said vessels. The vessels

were to be seized and detained and not umieces-

sarily delayed * * * and the articles, but not the

vessels, forfeited. Maritime traffic alone was con-

sidered by Congress, imicjue border traffic in time

of war was not considered at all.



In support of appellee's contention the only argu-

ments advanced are (1) that other statutes providing

for forfeitures have done so in what seems to appel-

lee's counsel to constitute more express and specific

language than that employed in this Act (Br. 9-11)
;

(2) that ''in 1917 the truck was not in general use"

and '"border crossing by trucks was not contemplated

by Congress" and so Congress must not have intended

to cover them (Br. 11, 13) ; and in conclusion, (3) that

the practice, uniformly followed prior to this present

case, of forfeiting the vehicles employed in exporta-

tion, should be disregarded since the point now at issue

on this appeal cannot be shown to have been specifi-

cally raised (Br. 16).^

In support of the Government's contention, comisel

for the United States submit (1) that the condemna-

tion and forfeiture of all property seized for violation

of the Act is provided without exception by its plain

general language; (2) that the legislative history of

the Act clearly show^s that both its general language

and the special provision added by the last sentence of

Section 1 were intended to provide for the condemna-

tion and forfeiture of the vehicles containing articles

^Subsequent to the taking of the present appeal the position of

the court below was brought to the attention of the District Court
for the Southern District of Florida, in a case where the United

States had already acquiesced in the report of the Commissioner
recommending that the vessel be released under the proviso of

Section 5. The question could not affect the result and was not

exhaustively briefed and argued. That Court, however, agreed

with the court below in this case. The Cachalot III, 60 F. Supp.

527, 529. No appeal was attempted since the Government agreed

the vessel should ])e released under Section 5 and there was ac-

cordingly doubt as to its appealability.



being exported as well as of the articles themselves; and

(3) that nothing in the Act requires it to be so limited

or restricted as to exclude from forfeiture vehicles or

vessels which are themselves unlawfully taken out of

the United States while containing articles being ex-

ported.

ARGUMENT.

I.

THE CONDEMNATION AND FORFEITURE OF ALL PROPERTY
SEIZED FOR VIOLATION OF THE ACT IS PROVIDED WITH-
OUT EXCEPTION BY ITS PLAIN GENERAL LANGUAGE,

In view of appellee ^s contention that the Act is abso-

lutely silent with respect to the forfeiture of vehicles

involved in its violation (Br. 11), we take the liberty

of setting forth the pertinent clauses of the Act's })lain

general provisions which the United States contends

are fully dispositive of this case. Appellee's statement,

based apparently upon its construction of the last

sentence of Section 1,- is diametrically opposed to the

Government's position that these provisions fully au-

thorize the condenmation and forfeiture of the vehicle

2It appears probable, althou<>h appellee nowhere so states, that

this statement is based upon the contention that the lai>t sentence

of Section 1 of the Kspionjuje Act (22 IJ.S.C. 401) contains the

Act's only provision for condemnation and forfeiture. This posi-

tion, which is untenable in the li^ht of the Act's le£>-islative history

as well as of the plain meaning of its ijfeneral prcnisions, was

expressly adopted by Jud^e Holland in The Cachalot ///, 60 F.

Supp. at 52!). The Couil below ado])ted a more conservative

position and merely concluded that the Act "does not authorize

forfeiture of a vehicle containing? articles nl)()ut to be unlawfully

exported" (R. 14).



subject to the court's discretion to order it restored

upon the giving of a bond against its employment in

further violations.

Section 1 (40 Stat. 223-224; 22 U.S.C. 401) provides

for the seizure of articles being unlawfully exported

and the vehicles containing the same. The pertinent

language, with emphasis sui)plied, is:

Whenever an attempt is made to export or ship

from or take out of the United States, any aiTns

or munitions of war, or other articles, in violation

of law, or whenever there shall be known or prob-

able cause to believe that anv such arms or muni-

tions of war, or other articles, are being or are

intended to be exported, or shipped from, or taken

out of the United States, in violation of law, * "^ *

[the persons authorized by the Act] may seize

and detain anv articles or munitions of war about

to be exported or shipped from, or taken out of

the United States, in violation of law, and the

vessels or vehicles containing the same, and retain

possession thereof itntil released or disposed of as

hereinafter directed.

Section 3 (40 Stat. 224, 22 U.S.C. 403) provides how,

in the event the owner makes a claim for restoration,

the Court shall hear and decide whether the property

seized shall be condemned and forfeited to the United

States or restored to the claimant. It should be noted

that it lumps all seized property together and does not

distinguish nor except from forfeiture the vehicles

or vessels seized as containing the articles being ex-

ported. With emphasis supplied, the language perti-

nent is:



The owner or claimant of anji propertij seized

under this title may, at any time before con-

demnation proceedings have been instituted, as

hereinafter provided, file his petition for its

restoration * * * whereupon the court * * * after

causing notice to be given to the United States

Attorney for the district and to the person making

the seizure, shall proceed to hear and decide

whether the property seized shall be restored to

the petitioner or forfeited to the United States.

Section 4 (45 Stat. 1423-1424; 22 U.S.C. 404; cf. 40

Stat. 224), provides how, upon the filing of a libel

for condemnation of the i)roperty seized, the Court

shall hear and decide whether the property shall be

condenmed and forfeited. Again, it must be noted, all

the property seized is lumped together and no excep-

tion or distinction is made of the vehicles or vessels

seized as containing the articles to be exported. The

pertinent language, with em|)hasis su])])lied, reads:

Whenever the person making anif seizure under

this title a])plies for and obtains a warrant for

the detention of the propert jj and (a) u])on the

hearing and determination of the petition of the

owner or claimant restoration is denied, or (b)

the owner or claimant fails to file a ])etition for

restoration * * ^ the United States Attorney for

the district wherein it was seized, upon the direc-

tion of the Attorney General, shall institute libel

proceedings * * * a(jaittst the property for con-

demnation; and //, after trial and hearing of the

issues involved, the property is condemned, it

shall be disposed of by .sY/Zr, and the proceeds there-

of, less the 1(\ual costs and charges, paid into the-*'

Treasury. * * *



Section 5 (40 Stat. 225; 22 U.S.C. 405), after pro-

viding that the in-oeeedings should follow those on

the admiralty side of the court, authorizes the court

to release and restore the property upon the giving

of a bond against its further unlawful employment

as an instrumentality for violation of the Act. With
emphasis supplied to the pertinent language, it reads:

Provided; That upon the payment of the costs and
legal expenses of both the summary trials and the

libel proceedings herein provided for, and the

execution and delivery of a good and sufficient

bond in an amount double the value of the prop-

erty seized, conditioned that it will not be exported

or used or employed contrary to the provision of

this title, the court, in its discretion, may direct

that it be delivered to the owners thereof or to the

claimants thereof.

And here again is further indubitable proof that Con-

gress had in mind the forfeiture of the vehicles or

vessels employed and seized as instruments of the

contraband traffic. The condition of the bond that

the jjroperty will not be ^^ttsed or employed contrary

to the provisions of this Act'' can apply only to further

use of the vehicle or vessel as the instrumentality of

the unlawful traffic.

It is thus abundantly plain that the instant case

may not be regarded as involving the silence of Con-

gress or its failure to make any provision for condem-

nation and forfeiture of vehicles or vessels seized

while about to be taken out of the United States oonfAiK-ii

ee which are themselves being unlawfully exported. It



8

is rather a question of wliether general language

plainly providing for condemnation and forfeiture

has been limited or restricted in some manner by the

effect of other language found within the four corners

of the Act.

Nor is there anything novel in jjroviding for the

condemnation and forfeiture of vehicles or vessels

which are the mere instrumental itv of violation. The

general policy of forfeiting the vehicle or vessel em-

ployed in violating embargo and non-intercourse laws

was established almost from the foiuidation of the

Republic and has always been regarded as necessary

to their effective enforcement. Several early and

familiar examples may illustrate the practice. Sec-

tion 1 of the Act of January 9, 1809, c. 5, 2 Stat. 506,

provided that for the violation of the Act ^^all such

specie, goods, wares and merchandise, and also the

shij), vessel, boat, water craft, cart, wagon, sled, or

other carriage or vehicle, on board, or in which the

same may be so put, placed, or loaded as aforesaid,

shall be forfeited." Section 2 of the Act of December

17, 1813, c. 1, 3 Stat. 89, similarly provided that ^^all

such specie, goods, war(\s, merchandise, ])roduce, pro-

visions, naval or military stores, livestock, and also

the ship, vessel, boat, watercraft, cart, wagon, sled, or

other carriage or vehicles, on board, or on or in

which the same may be so ])ut, placed, or loaded as

aforesaid, and also all horses, mules, and oxen, used

or employed in ccmveying the same, shall be forfeited."

Section 3 of the Act of Febi'uary 4, 1815 c. 31. 3 Stat.

196, likewise* directed tliat ''sucli naval or military



stores, arms, or the munitions of war, cattle, livestock,

articles of provisions, cotton, tobacco, goods, money,

or other supplies, together with the carriage or wagon,

cart, sleigh, vessel, boat, raft, or vehicle of whatsoever

kind, or horse, or other beast, by which they, or any

of them are transported, or attempted to be trans-

ported, shall be forfeited/'

Far from the border ti*affic bv means of vehicles

being, as appellee argues, new and unique or outside

the ambit of Congressional intent, it has always been

recognized as jn-esent and requiring specific provision

as in the Act of 1917. If anything is new, it is the

conception of the vehicle itself as an article of con-

traband exportation. It seems unlikely that the vehicle

itself was ever, until the development of the motor

car, more than a mere instrumentality of the illegal

traffic. But provision for the forfeiture of the vehicle

or vessel which is employed in violating the law has

always been essential.

It is obvious, indeed, that merely forfeiting the

articles, w^hile permitting the vehicle to be returned

to its owner, cannot sufficiently deter offenders from

attempting to export other articles without a license.

Especially must this be so wiienever the profit to be

gained by unlawful ex])ortation is high and the risk

of detection is not great. The only effective method

of y)reventing recurrent violations is, acco]"dingly, to

condemn the instrumentality used to perpetrate the

offense. The importance of the sanction of forfeiture

is illustrated by cases, differing but little from that

now at bar, where the vehicle is owned by an alien non-
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resident who is bevond the reach of our criminal laws
ft.

and the persons driving the vehicle are his agents or

employees. It is evident that in such cases criminal

punishment of the agent and forfeiture of only the

articles transported, without forfeiture of the trans-

porting vehicle, must be an insubstantial weapon

against the non-resident owner of the vehicle, who

can make repeated attempts by the hands of many

different agents to get the contraband goods across the

border.

It is thus impossible to conclude that Congress in

1917 was not just as fully aware of these facts as

were the Congresses which a hundred years earlier had

passed other non-intercourse acts. The history of Es-

])ionage Act of 1917 plainly indicates they were.

II.

THE LEGISLATIVE HISTORY OF THE ACT SHOWS IT WAS
INTENDED TO PROVIDE FOR THE FORFEITURE OF VE-

HICLES CONTAINING ARTICLES BEING UNLAWFULLY
EXPORTED.

It is clear from the history of the Act that the ])lain

general language of Sections 1, o and 4, as quoted,

sufficiently authorizes the condemnation and forfeiture

of all ])roperty involved, including the vehicles em-

ployed, without any resort to the special provision

found in the last sentence of Section 1. That sentence

was not even found in the Bill as originally pre])ared

in the Department of Justice and sul^mitted to the

Sixtv-fourth Congress. It was added only in the later
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version subsequently introduced in the Sixty-fifth

Congress.

The Espionage Act of 1917 as finally passed in the

first session of the Sixty-fifth Congress was designated

as H.R. 291, but the Bill originated in the Senate

during the second session of the Sixty-fourth Congress.

Title VI, the neutrality and export control provisions

with which we are here concerned (Cf R. 14), was

submitted by the Attorney Greneral on the instructions

of President Wilson as one of the fourteen Bills deal-

ing with neutrality, revelation of defense secrets,

espionage and kindred matters.^ As originally reported

to the Senate by the J udiciary Committee, it was desig-

nated S. 6811 of the Sixty-fourth Congress (54 Cong.

Rec. 2819). In the form in which they were reported

from Committee on February 8, 1917, Sections 1 and

4 of S. 6811, together with its title, expressly pro-

vided for the condemnation and forfeiture of the

vessels or vehicles containing arms and munitions of

war about to be illegally exported. With emphasis

supplied to the pertinent language, the provisions

read (54 Cong. Rec. 3416) :

An Act to authorize the seizure, detention, and

condemnation of arms and munitions of war in

course of exportation or designed to be exported

or used in violation of the laws of the United

States, together tvith the vessels or vehicles in

which the same are contained.

Sec. 1. Whenever, under any authority vested

in him by law, the President oF the United States

3See explanation of Senator Overman, 55 Conjr. Rec. 1787.
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by proclamation, or otherwise, shall forbid the

shipment or exportation of arms or munitions of

war from the United States to any other country,

or w^henever there shall be good cause to believe

that any arms or mimitions of war are being, or

are intended to be employed or exported, * * *

[the persons authorized hereby] may seize and
detain any arms or munitions of vyar about to be

so exported or employed and the vessels or vehicles

coyitaining the same, and retain possession thereof

until released, or disposed of as hereinafter di-

rected.
* * *

Sec. 4. Whenever the persons making any

seizure under this chapter shall have applied for

and obtained a warrant for the detention of the

property, and the o\\nier or claimant shall have

filed a petition for its restoration as provided in

this chapter, and upon the hearing and determina-

tion of said petition restoration shall have been

denied, or where such owner or claimant shall have

failed to file a petition for restoration, * * * the

United States attorney for the district wherein

it was seized, upon direction of the Attorney

General, shall institute libel proceedings * * *

against said, property for condenmation, and if

after trial and hearing of the issues involved the

property shall be condemned, it shall be disposed

of by sale, and the proceeds thereof, less the legal

costs and charges shall be paid into the Treasury

of the United States.

It is submitted that this provision for condemnation

and forfeiture of the vehicles containing the articles
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is clear and ample without the added final sentence of

Section 1. But it is equally clear that the last added

sentence was also intended by Congress to extend to the

vehicles or vessels which are merely taken out of the

United States with their cargo of contraband and are

not themselves intended to be exported.

In the course of the Sixty-fourth Congress the orig-

inal fourteen Bills w^ere consolidated and S. 6811 be-

came chapter 9 of S. 8148 (54 Cong. Rec. 3613). In

the Sixty-fifth Congress the consolidated Bill was

reintroduced in the Senate as S. 2 and as H. R. 291

in the House. In the Senate the neutrality and export

control provisions became chaj^ter 6 of S. 2 (55 Cong.

Rec. 794). While the Senate Bill was under considera-

tion, the Attorney General sent to the committee a

proposed addition, relating to the control of exports

generally. The reported debates show that one of the

purposes of this addition was to help relieve a shortage

of tin plate, which was being exported to various

neutral countries. In secret sessions, however, it was

disclosed that its fimdamental purposes was to enable

the United States to carry on economic warfare against

neutral countries which were assisting the Germans

by food and supplies.'* At the time there appeared to

be serious doubt as to whether these additional provi-

sions could be incorporated into the pending Bills or

would be so delayed that it would be necessary to enact

them as a separate statute.'^ To meet this doubt and

^See explanation of Senator Overman, 55 Conp:. Rec. 1787

•"^The AttoT-ney Oencral 's proposal was adopted in time, how-

ever, and ])ecame Title VTT of the Act (40 Stat. 225).
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make some general export control available at the

earliest possible moment, the Attorney General sug-

gested that chai)ter 6, which then covered the control

of only arms and munitions about to be exported,

should be strengthened by a provision i)ermitting the

forfeiture of articles which should merely appear to

have heen about to be unJawfullji taken out and

broadened by adding ^^or other articles'' as well as

arms and munitions.

The suggestions were accepted, partly in the revised

Bill as reintroduced, partly by committee amendment,

and parth^ by conference amendinent. The Senate, on

April 18, 1917, adopted a text under which the lan-

guage of Section 1 became (55 Cong. Rec. 794)

:

Sec. 1. Whenever, under any authority vested

in him by law, the President of the United States,

by proclamation or otherwise, shall forbid the

shipment or exportation of arms or munitions of

war, or other artieles the export of which is made
unlawful bv or under anv statute, from the United

States to any other country, or whenever there

shall be good cause to believe that any arms or

mimitions of war or other articles the export of

which is made unlawful, are being or are intended

to be employed or exported in coimection with a

military expedition or enterprise forbidden
* * * [the persons authorized hereby] may seize

and detain any arms or nuniitions of war or other

forbidden property about to be so exported or

employed, and the vessels or vehieles containing

the same, and retain possession thereof nntil re-

leased or disposed of as hereinafter directed. If

upon the due inquiry, as hereinafter provided,
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the property seized sJiall appear to have been

about to he so uvlawfidly exported, used, or em-

ployed, the same shall he forfeited to the U^tited

States. (Italics supplied.)

As a result of the exigencies of parliamentary j^ro-

cedure, when the House Bill, H. R. 291, came to the

Senate, the latter substituted S. 2, including the quoted

language, retaining only the designation H. R. 291 (55

Cong. Rec. 2014) and so adopted the Bill, which fol-

lowing slight modifications in conference, the Bill as

adopted became law.^

One of the modifications introduced in conference,

however, affected Section 1 of what had now become

Title VI and is of outstanding significance here. For

the expression ''so unlawfully exported, used or em-

ployed'^, as contained in the added last sentence and

in the corresponding clause of the first sentence,

as passed by the Senate, the conference substituted

the expression "^'so unlawfully exported, shipped from

or taken out of the United States/' The reasons

for the change which had been earlier recommended

by the Attorney General, are not discussed in the

conference reports nor in the debates. Its results

for the meaning of the statute, however, are obvious.

Exportation, as is well known, requires not only

an intent to sever the articles to be exported from

the mass of goods in the country from which the

articles are being taken out but also an intent to make

6See Conference Reports H. Rep. 65 and 60 fScr. vol. 7252] and

55 Cong. Rec. 3307, 3498, 3870.
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them a part of the mass of goods in the comitry into

which they are to be introduced. Cf. United States v.

Hill, 34 F.(2d) 133 (1929, CCA. 2.) Obviously, this

is not the case with the vehicles and vessels employed

as instrmnents of the violation. Such vehicles or

vessels are milawfully taken out in the course of vio-

lating the x\ct; they are not exported. This new ex-

pression makes it certain that this special provision,

like the general language of Sections 1, 3, 4 and 5,

was intended to apply not only to the articles exported

but also to vehicles oi* vessels unlawfully taken out

while employed in containing them—objects which are,

of course, not intended to be exported but, on the

contrary, are ^^unlawfully taken ouf with the inten-

tion of being returned to the United States and re-

peatedly used as the instrumentality of violations of

the export control laws.

It is thus impossible to accept appellee's contention

that Congress intended to restrict forfeiture to articles

which appear to be about to be exported. The con-

sideration of api)ellee's arguments confirms this view.

TTT.

NOTHING IN THE ACT LIMITS OR RESTRICTS ITS PLAIN

GENERAL LANGUAGE SO AS TO EXCLUDE FROM FOR-

FEITURE THE VEHICLES CONTAINING THE ARTICLES

BEING EXPORTED.

Ai)pellee can ])oint to nothing anywhere in the Act

itself purporting to exce])t fi-om the o])eration of the

act's general provisions for condenmation and for-
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feiture the vehicles which have been seized as con-

taining articles being unlawfully exported. Ax^jjellee

thus appears to put his sole reliance upon an attempt

at interpreting the added final sentence of Section

1 as authorizing the forfeiture only of articles about

to be exported. But that sentence as ultimately enacted

provides

:

^'If upon due inquiry as hereinafter provided,

the jjroperty seized shall appear to have heen

about to be so unlawfully ex})orted, shi])ped from,

or taken out of the United States, the same shall

be forfeited to the United States. (Italics sup-

plied.)

Appellee seems to believe that since the sentence

provides that property found to ^* appear to have been

about to be unlawfully exported'' shall be forfeited

it implies that only such property may be condemned

and forfeited and, smce the intent is obviously not

to export the vehicles containing the unlawful ex-

ports but rather to use them in repeated future

violations, the vehicles are not property '^ about to

be exported" and so should not be forfeited. But that

interpretation disregards the words ^^or taken out

of the United States" which were added to the

sentence in the course of the conference proceedings

on the Bill. Certainly the words were evidently in-

tended to add something to the term ''exported" else

the conferees would not have seen fit to insert them into

the language which had been adopted by the Senate.

It is submitted that they were added to cover just

such things as vehicles or vessels which are merely

''unlawfully taken out of the United States" while
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containing the articles about to be exported—tilings

which typically, although they are not to be ex-

ported, are none the less to be taken out, later

brought back, and rej^eatedly employed unlawfully

as the instrumentalities of the contraband traffic.

Fairly construed the sentence does not imply that

only property about to be exported and no other

property shall be forfeited. In no eveiit are its terms

restrictive. It neither states nor implies that vehicles

or vessels containing articles being exported shall

not, in accordance with the first sentence of Section

1, be ^^ disposed of as hereinafter directed'' by con-

demnation and forfeiture as provided in the appli-

cable provisions of Sections 3 or 4 subject to the

court's power to restore them under the proviso of

Section 5. It is merely an additional special pro-

vision for the forfeiture of ])roperty found to ''appear

to have been about to he so vnlawfully exported,

shipped from or tal^en out of the United States."

(Italics supplied.) Nothing indicates that the lan-

guage is intended to restrict the operation of the

statute. It obviously has another pur])ose; that of

broadening the Act. This ])rovision for the forfeiture

of property which is found to ''appear to have heev

about to be'' taken out re])resents a very distinct

enlargement of the general provisions of the Act

which a])])ly only where either (a) there is actually

an attempt to ex])ort or take out unlawfully, or (b)

there is ])r()bable cause to believe that the articles

*'are beintf or are intended to be exported or taken

out unlawfully." (Itnlics su])j)lied.) l^oth seizure for

an attempt to take out and for probable eause to be-
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lieve there is an intention to take out requires the

officer seizing- to have specific information in ad-

vance of the seizure of a deliberate decision on the

part of those in control of the property to employ it

unlawfully. In both situations it is necessary to prove

that before the seizure the officer had evidence of

this animus on the part of those in control of the

articles ; a matter which is always difficult. The added

provision of the last sentence for forfeiture of prop-

erty which is later found to appear to have been

about to be exported or taken out, involves no such

difficult requirement. Even though the original seizure

might haA^e been invalid for want of probable cause,

by virtue of this added provision it will suffice that

the evidence produced on the hearing establishes that

it then appears that it was about to be exported or

taken out unlawfully.

Moreover, if appellee's contention that the last sen-

tence defines the exclusive limits of the power to

forfeit were accepted, the entire Act would become

unworkable and the intention of Congress would be

defeated. This special provision of the last sentence

extends only to property which ''appears to have

been ahout to be" taken out. If interpreted in ac-

cordance with appellee's contention, not only would

this added provision of Section 1 ])rohibit the for-

feiture of the vehicles and vessels which contain

articles being exported, as provided by the general

language of the Act, but ecjually it would prohibit

the forfeiture of the articles themselves once they

had gone beyond the point where they were ''about

to be exported or taken out" and had reached the point
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where they were actually ''being exported or taken

out'\ It miglit also be argued that in accordance

with the last sentence the realities of the situation

are to be completely disregarded and the only ques-

tion held to be not whether there was a violation but

what the appearances were.'

It is submitted therefore that appellee's contention

should not be accepted but instead the Act should be

given a reasonable interpretation calculated to give

effect to the undoubted intention of Congress to pre-

vent unlawful exportation. ^^A thing may be within

a statute but not within its letter, or within its letter

and yet not within the statute/' said the Supreme

Court in Jones v. Guaranty Co., 101 U. S. 622, 626

(1879), '^The intent of the lawmaker is the law."

j^id, as this Court observed in United States v.

Manstad, 134 F. (2d) 986, 988 (1943, C. C. A. 9),

** Strictness of construction should not defeat the real

objective of Congress."

Finally, appellee a]^pears to urge that the for-

feiture of the vehicle or vessel be regarded as a

Draconian measure and lays stress upon the fact

that he was not personally a ])articipant, directly

or indirectly, in the attem])ted smuggling. (Br. 4.)

I^ut the problem of interpretation here is like that

in United States v. Fischer, 2 Cranch 358, 387-

390 (1805) where a similiar attempt was made to

"This, amazing as il would soeiii, is tlu' i)Osition actually adopted

by Judge Holland in The Cachalot HI, GO F. Supp. at 528, where

he says the question under the statute is not ''whether the owner
intended to export the hiniber • • • but • • * whether the prop-

ei1y seized shall appear to have been about to be so unlawfully

exported * • *". (Italics supplied.)
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narrow the general language of a statute and Chief

Justice Marshall said (p. 390)

:

***** if the intention of the legislature be ex-

pressed in terms which are sufficiently intelligible,

to leave no doubt in the mind, when the words
are taken in their ordinary sense, it would be

going a great way, to say that a constrained

interpretation must be ])iit upon them to avoid an
inconvenience which ought to have been con-

templated in the legislature, when the Act was
passed, and which in their opinion, was probably

over-balanced by the particular advantages it

was calculated to jjroduce.
>)

In any case no problem of such an inconvenience

or harshness is presented by the case at bar. Congress

was aware of the earlier embargo and non-intercourse

acts and of the necessitv of forfeiture of vehicles
ft/

and vessels as a means of enforcement, but Congress

was just as fully aware that the penalty of forfeiture,

in some cases, might be inequitable and harsh. It

accordingly added to Section 5 (40 Stat. 225; 22

U. S. C. 405) the proviso leaving to the discretion

of the court whether or not the property condemned

should be forfeited or, instead, should be restored to

the owner or claimant upon his giving security against

future violation.^ Under this proviso appellee will

^It is ordinary- legislative practice to provide for the forfeiture

of vehicles and vessels used by servants and employees in the

violation of the law although the master and owner is unaware

of the wTong. See annotation 5 A.L.R. 213. It is e(iuall,v common
to authorize mitigation in such and many other circumstances

where the owner can demonstrate his innocence. United States

V. One Ford Coach, 307 U.S. 219, 226 (1939) ;
see annotation 47

A.L.R. 1055; 61 A.L.R. 551: 73 A.L.R. 1087; 82 A.L.R. 607:

124 A.L.R. 288.
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have full relief if he can but satisfy the court of his

contention that he had no knowledge of the smuggling.

CONCLUSION.

It is therefore submitted that not only under the

plain general language of the first sentence of Sec-

tion 1 together with Sections 3 and 4 of the Act

but also under the last sentence of Section 1, the

Plymouth Truck here involved should be condemned

and forfeited to the United States. Accordingly, ap-

pellant respectfully submits that the case should be

remanded to the District Court with instructions

to declare the vehicle forfeited to the United States

and to take such further proceedings as may be re-

quired.

Dated, January 18, 1946.

Respectfully submitted,

Frank E. Flynn,
United States Attorney,

John P. Dougherty,
Assistant United States Attorney,

Leavenw^orth Colby,
Attorney, Department of Justice,

Attorneys for the United States, Appellant,










